
           

*REVISED AGENDA*

City Council Study Session
 

Monday, February 8, 2021
6:00 p.m.

*Consent Items 8-21 were renumbered
and New Items 8, 9, and 10 were added

Chandler City Council Chambers
88 E. Chicago St., Chandler, AZ

 



Our Vision
We are a world-class City that provides an exceptional
quality of life.
Our Brand
A safe community that connects people, chooses innovation
and inspires excellence.

Our Goals
City Council Strategic Policy Goals
1. Being the most connected City
2. Being a leader in trust and transparency
3. Maintaining fiscal sustainability
4. Attracting a range of private sector businesses
5. Fostering a contemporary culture that embraces unity
6. Being safe and beautiful

Pursuant to Resolution No. 4464 of the City of Chandler and to A.R.S. 38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the
Chandler City Council and to the general public that the Chandler City Council will hold a STUDY SESSION open to the public
on Monday, February 8, 2021, at 6 p.m., in the Chandler City Council Chambers, 88 E. Chicago Street, Chandler, Arizona. One
or more members of the Chandler City Council may attend this meeting by telephone.

Persons with a disability may request a reasonable accommodation such as a sign language interpreter by contacting the City
Clerk's office a 480-782-2181. Requests should be made as early as possible to allow time to arrange accommodation.

Agendas are available in the Office of the City Clerk, 175 S. Arizona Avenue.

   

Page 2 of 9 Council Study Session



           

Study Session Agenda   

 

 

Call to Order
 

Roll Call
 

Scheduled Public Appearances
 

1. Retirement Recognition   

 

2. Proclamation - Black History Month and Comments by Pastor Victor Hardy    

 

3. Chandler High School and Hamilton High School Football Teams Recognition   

 

4. Arizona Institute of Architects Award - Chandler Public Safety Training Center Shade Structure   

 

Consent Agenda
Items listed on the Consent Agenda may be enacted by one motion and one vote. If a discussion is required by
members of the governing body, the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda for discussion and
determination will be made if the item will be considered separately.
 

City Clerk
 
 

Page 3 of 9 Council Study Session



           

1. January 2021 Council Minutes
  Move to approve the Council meeting minutes of the Study Session and Special Meeting of January 25,

2021, and the Regular Meeting of January 28, 2021.
 

 
Council Focus Area(s):

 

Development Services
 
 

2. Resolution No. 5434, Authorizing a Wireless License Agreement with CCTMO, LLC, for the Existing
Monopalm Tower Adjacent to the Police Department Property and Evidence Yard

  Move to approve Resolution No. 5434, authorizing the Mayor to execute the license agreement between
the City of Chandler and T-Mobile West Tower, LLC, by and through CCTMO, LLC, for the existing
Monopalm macro cell site currently located at the Police Property and Evidence Yard at 576 W. Pecos
Road, and authorizing the City Manager or designee to execute other documents as needed to give effect
to the agreement.

 

 
Council Focus Area(s):

 

3. Resolution No. 5435, Authorizing a License Agreement with Cellco Partnership, dba Verizon
Wireless, for the Existing PHO Rubenstein Marco Cell Site

  Move to approve Resolution No. 5435, authorizing the Mayor to execute the wireless license agreement
between the City of Chandler and Cellco Partnership, dba Verizon Wireless, for the existing PHO
Rubenstein macro cell site, located at the east side of Cooper Road and south of Buchanan Street, and
authorizing the City Manager or designee to execute other documents as needed to give effect to the
agreement.

 

 
Council Focus Area(s):

 

4. Resolution No. 5436, Authorizing an Intergovernmental Agreement with Maricopa County
Regarding Regional Emergency Action Coordinating Team (REACT) Integrated Corridor
Management (ICM) Pilot for the Loop 101 Price Freeway

  Move City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 5436 authorizing an Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA)
between Maricopa County and the City of Chandler regarding the Regional Emergency Action Coordinating
Team (REACT) Integrated Corridor Management (ICM) Pilot Project for the Loop 101 Price Freeway.

 

 
Council Focus Area(s):

Page 4 of 9 Council Study Session



 

5. Introduction of Ordinance No. 4962, Annexation and Initial City Zoning ANX20-0002 for
Approximately 1.71 Acres and Zoning to Agricultural District (AG-1), Located South of the
Southwest corner of Gilbert and Ocotillo Roads

  Move City Council introduce and tentatively adopt Ordinance No. 4962 approving Annexation and Initial
City Zoning ANX20-0002, South of the Southwest Corner of Gilbert and Ocotillo roads, as recommended
by Planning staff. 

 

 
Council Focus Area(s):

 

6. Resolution No. 5437, Introduction of Ordinance No. 4960, PLH20-0033 and PLH20-0034 Chandler La
Paglia High School Seminary and Professional Offices

  Area Plan
Move City Council approve Resolution No. 5437 Southeast Chandler Area Plan amendment,
PLH20-0033, located south of the southwest corner of Gilbert and Ocotillo roads, as recommended by
Planning and Zoning Commission.
Rezoning
Move City Council introduce and tentatively adopt Ordinance No. 4960 approving PLH20-0034 La Paglia
High School Seminary and Professional Offices, Rezoning from Agricultural District (AG-1) to Planned Area
Development (PAD) for professional offices and institutional/educational uses located south of the
southwest corner of Gilbert and Ocotillo roads, subject to the conditions as recommended by Planning and
Zoning Commission.
Preliminary Development Plan 
Move City Council approve Preliminary Development Plan PLH20-0034 La Paglia High School Seminary
and Professional Offices, for professional offices and institutional/educational uses located south of the
southwest corner of Gilbert and Ocotillo roads, subject to the conditions as recommended by Planning and
Zoning Commission.

 

 
Council Focus Area(s):

 

7. Introduction of Ordinance No. 4961, PLH20-0023, PLT20-0037 Pecos and McQueen Retail (Staff
requests Continuance to the February 25, 2021, Council Meeting)

  Move City Council continue PLH20-0023 Pecos and McQueen Retail, located at the southwest corner of
Pecos and McQueen roads, to the February 25, 2021, City Council meeting, as recommended by Planning
and Zoning Commission.

 

 
Council Focus Area(s):

 

8. Final Adoption of Ordinance No. 4954, PLH20-0028 Hudson Crossings
  Move City Council adopt Ordinance No.4954 approving PLH20-0028 Hudson Crossings, Rezoning from

PAD multi-family to PAD single family for a single family development, located east of the northeast corner
of McQueen Road and the Loop 202 Santan Freeway subject to the conditions as recommended by
Planning and Zoning Commission.

 

 
Council Focus Area(s):

 

Page 5 of 9 Council Study Session



           

9. Final Adoption of Ordinance No. 4955, PLH20-0048 Valerio at Ocotillo and Residence Inn
Expansion

  Move City Council adopt Ordinance No. 4955 approving PLH20-0048 Valerio at Ocotillo and Residence
Inn Expansion, Rezoning from Planned Area Development for Medium Density Residential (PAD/MF-1) to
PAD for Commercial, located east of the southeast corner of Queen Creek and Price roads subject to the
conditions as recommended by the Planning and Zoning Commission.

 

 
Council Focus Area(s):

 

10. Final Adoption of Ordinance No. 4959, PLH20-0049 1st Pet Veterinary Centers
  Move City Council adopt Ordinance No. 4959 approving PLH20-0049 1st Pet Veterinary Centers,

Rezoning from Planned Area Development (PAD) to Planned Area Development Amended, adding
veterinary clinic and like uses, located at 1257 W. Warner Road (West of the Southwest corner of Alma
School and Warner Roads), subject to the conditions as recommended by the Planning and Zoning
Commission.

 

 
Council Focus Area(s):

 

Management Services
 
 

11. New License Series 10, Beer and Wine Store Liquor License, for Tawa Inc., dba 99 Ranch Market
#53

  Move for recommendation to the State Department of Liquor Licenses and Control for approval of the
State Liquor Job No. 130676, a Series 10, Beer and Wine Store, for Kevin Arnold Kramber, Agent, Tawa
Inc., dba 99 Ranch Market #53, located at 1920 W. Chandler Boulevard, and approval of the City of
Chandler, Series 10, Beer and Wine Store Liquor License No. 300317 L10

 

 
Council Focus Area(s):

 

Page 6 of 9 Council Study Session



Public Works and Utilities
 
 

12. Professional Services Agreement with Wilson Engineers, LLC, for the Airport Water Reclamation
Facility Membrane Pre-Design Services

  Move City Council award Professional Services Agreement No. WW1901.202 to Wilson Engineers, LLC,
for the Airport Water Reclamation Facility Membrane Pre-Design Services, in an amount not to exceed
$198,560.

 

 
Council Focus Area(s):

 

13. Agreement with Metering Services, Inc., for Small Water Meter Installation, Repair, and Consulting
Services

  Move City Council approve Agreement No. PW1-936-4262 with Metering Services, Inc., for small water
meter installation, repair, and consulting services, in an amount not to exceed $490,820.   

 

 
Council Focus Area(s):

 

14. Agreement No. PW0-890-4209, Amendment No. 1, with Core and Main, LP, for Water Meters
  Move City Council approve Agreement No. PW0-890-4209, Amendment No. 1, with Core and Main, LP,

for water meters, increasing the contract limit in the amount of $2,509,180, for a revised amount not to
exceed $5,509,180, for a two-year period, September 1, 2020, through August 31, 2022.   

 

 
Council Focus Area(s):

 

15. Construction Contract with Cactus Asphalt, a Division of Cactus Transport, Inc., for the Alley
Rehabilitation PM10 Dust Emissions Project

  Move City Council award Construction Contract No. ST1909.401 to Cactus Asphalt, a Division of Cactus
Transport, Inc., for the Alley Rehabilitation PM10 Dust Emissions Project, in an amount not to exceed
$2,077,524.50.

 

 
Council Focus Area(s):

 

Page 7 of 9 Council Study Session



           

16. Construction Contract with Archer Western Construction, LLC, for the Chandler Boulevard
Waterline Replacement (Chippewa Place to Meadows Drive)

  Move City Council award Construction Contract No. WA2006.401 to Archer Western Construction, LLC,
for the Chandler Boulevard Waterline Replacement (Chippewa Place to Meadows Drive), in an amount
not to exceed $1,202,980.

 

 
Council Focus Area(s):

 

17. Professional Services Agreement with Wilson Engineers, LLC, for the Chandler Boulevard
Waterline Replacement (Chippewa Place to Meadows Drive)

  Move City Council award Professional Services Agreement No. WA2006.451 to Wilson Engineers, LLC,
for the Chandler Boulevard Waterline Replacement (Chippewa Place to Meadows Drive), in an amount
not to exceed $105,730.

 

 
Council Focus Area(s):

 

18. Report of City Manager Emergency Authorization of Project Agreement with Garney Companies,
Inc., Pursuant to Job Order Contract for the Lone Butte Effluent Pipeline Repair

  Move City Council accept the report of the City Manager emergency authorization of Project Agreement
No. WW2103.402 with Garney Companies, Inc., pursuant to Job Order Contract No. JOC1914.401, for
the Lone Butte Effluent Pipeline Repair, in an amount not to exceed $111,220.02.

 

 
Council Focus Area(s):

 

19. Professional Services Agreement with Tristar Engineering and Management, Inc., for the Alley
Rehabilitation PM10 Dust Emissions Project Construction Management Services

  Move City Council award Professional Services Agreement No. ST1909.451 to Tristar Engineering and
Management, Inc., for the Alley Rehabilitation PM10 Dust Emissions Project Construction Management
Services, in an amount not to exceed $226,618.88.

 

 
Council Focus Area(s):

 

20. Final Adoption of Ordinance No. 4953 Granting an Irrigation Easement to Salt River Project
Agricultural Improvement and Power District

  Move City Council approve final adoption of Ordinance No. 4953 granting an irrigation easement to Salt
River Project Agricultural Improvement and Power District at the northwest corner of Arizona Avenue and
Queen Creek Road, at no cost, to formalize an existing United States Government undefined irrigation
easement at this location.

 

 
Council Focus Area(s):

 

21. Final Adoption of Ordinance No. 4956 Granting Three (3) Irrigation Easements to Roosevelt Water
Conservation District

  Move City Council approve final adoption of Ordinance No. 4956 granting three (3) irrigation easements to
the Roosevelt Water Conservation District (RWCD) within portions of Chandler Heights Road on either
side of the Cooper Road intersection, at no cost, to accommodate the Cooper Road Improvement Project,
from Alamosa Drive to Riggs Road.

 

 

Page 8 of 9 Council Study Session



 
Council Focus Area(s):

 

22. Final Adoption of Ordinance No. 4948 Adopting Updated Versions of Public Works Design and
Construction Standards 

  Move City Council approve final adoption of Ordinance No. 4948 adopting updated versions of previously
adopted Public Works design and construction standards and amending Chapter 43, Section 43-5,
Subsections 43-4.5.A, 43-4.5.B, 43-4.5.C, 43-4.5.D, 43-4.5.E, 43-4.5.G, and 43-4.5.I of the Code of the
City of Chandler, relating to the adoption of these updated design and construction standards.

 

 
Council Focus Area(s):

 

Informational
 

23. Study Session Minutes of the January 6, 2021, Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting 
 

Council Focus Area(s):
 

24. Regular Meeting Minutes of the January 6, 2021, Planning and Zoning Commission
 

Council Focus Area(s):
 

Adjourn
 

Page 9 of 9 Council Study Session



ITEM  1 

City Council Memorandum      City Clerk's Office  Memo No. 21-004
       

Date: February 8, 2021
To: Mayor  and Council
From: Dana DeLong, City Clerk 
Subject: January 2021 Council Minutes

Proposed Motion:
Move to approve the Council meeting minutes of the Study Session and Special Meeting of January 25,
2021, and the Regular Meeting of January 28, 2021.

Background/Discussion 
Attached for approval are the City Council minutes for the meetings held on January 25, and January
28, 2021.
 

Attachments
January 25, 2021, Special Meeting Minutes 
January 25, 2021, Study Session Meeting Minutes 
January 28, 2021, Regular Meeting Minutes 



CITY OF CHANDLER COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
Special Meeting

Monday, January 25, 2021

MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF THE HONORABLE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF CHANDLER, ARIZONA, held on Monday, January 25, 2021, in the Council Chambers, 
Council Conference Room, 88 E. Chicago Street, Chandler, Arizona

THE MEETING WAS CALLED TO ORDER BY MAYOR KEVIN HARTKE AT 4:30 P.M.

The following members were present: 

*Kevin Hartke Mayor
Mark Stewart Vice-Mayor
OD Harris
René Lopez Councilmember
Terry Roe Councilmember
Christine Ellis Councilmember
Matt Orlando Councilmember

*Mayor Hartke attended telephonically

Staff present:  John Knudson, Public Works and Utilities Director; Chris Connor, Utility Regulatory 
Affairs Manager; Gregg Capps, Utility Resource Manager; Jenny Winkler, Assistant City Attorney

1. Contracts--A.R.S. §§38-431.03(A)(3) and (A)(4) - Discussion or consultation with the City 
Attorney for legal advice and in order to consider its position and instruct its attorneys 
regarding the public body�s position regarding contracts that are the subject of 
negotiations relating to the North Agua Fria Underground Storage Project and reclaimed 
water infrastructure.  

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO MOVED TO HOLD AN EXECUTIVE SESSION MEETING IMMEDIATELY 
FOLLOWING THE SPECIAL MEETING; SECONDED BY COUNCILMEMBER LOPEZ.

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. (7-0)

ADJOURNMENT:  The Special Meeting was adjourned at approximately 4:30 p.m.



Chandler City Council Special Meeting Minutes
Monday, January 25, 2021 Page 2

ATTEST:  __________________________ ______________________________
City Clerk                                                   Mayor

Approval Date of Minutes:  February 11, 2021

CERTIFICATION

I hereby certify that the foregoing minutes are a true and correct copy of the minutes of the 
Special Meeting of the City Council of Chandler, Arizona, held on the 25th day of January, 2021.  I 
further certify that the meeting was duly called and held and that a quorum was present.

DATED this _______  day of February, 2021.

__________________________
City Clerk



CITY OF CHANDLER COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
Study Session

Monday, January 25, 2021

MINUTES OF THE STUDY SESSION OF THE HONORABLE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
CHANDLER, ARIZONA, held in the Council Chambers, 88 E. Chicago Street, Chandler, Arizona, on 
Monday, January 25, 2021.

THE MEETING WAS CALLED TO ORDER BY VICE MAYOR MARK STEWART AT 6:02 P.M.

The following members were present:
*Kevin Hartke Mayor 
Mark Stewart Vice Mayor
OD Harris Councilmember
René Lopez Councilmember 
Terry Roe Councilmember
Christine Ellis Councilmember
Matt Orlando Councilmember

*Mayor Hartke attended the meeting telephonically. 

Also in attendance: Marsha Reed City Manager
Joshua Wright Assistant City Manager 
Debra Stapleton Assistant City Manager
Kelly Schwab City Attorney
Dana DeLong City Clerk

SCHEDULED PUBLIC APPEARANCES

VICE MAYOR STEWART invited Councilmember Roe to join him for the recognitions.

1. Service Recognitions 

Development Services
Forrest Gittus �20 Years

Management Services
Christopher Sikora �15 Years

Police Department
Cathie Gura �25 Years
CONSENT AGENDA DISCUSSION



Chandler City Council Study Session Minutes
Monday, January 25, 2021 Page 2 of 8

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO had questions regarding Consent Agenda Item No. 5.

5. Construction Contract No. PR1905.401 with Nickle Contracting, LLC, for Lantana Ranch Park Phase I 
Improvements

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO asked about the parking for this site. 

ANDY BASS, Community Services Director, said staff has worked with the residents and HOA and have had 
meetings to discuss the parking. Mr. Bass  said they are interested in having a limited amount of parking and 
staff is now working with the Transportation section to develop a few parking scenarios and would submit that 
to the HOA for consideration. Mr. Bass said staff would continue to work with residents to find a solution to 
serve the park and the residents of the neighborhood. 

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO said they did try other options and this was the next best available option. 

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO had questions regarding Consent Agenda Item No. 9.

9. Adoption of Resolution No. 5432, Introduction of Ordinance No. 4954, Preliminary Development Plan, 
and Preliminary Plat Approval, PLH20-0066/PLH20-0028/PLT20-0032 Hudson Crossings

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO asked if this was outside the 65 decibel ring for noise since it is in the Airpark 
area as he did not see the noise contour map. 

SUSAN FIALA, Senior Planner, said yes it is outside of that contour and all housing products is required to be 
built to meet noise attenuation. 

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO asked what decibel that was required.

MS. FIALA said 45. 

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO asked if there have been other options for this area that might be better for 
freeway type of activity. 

MS. FIALA said this property is designed as neighborhoods in the General Plan and Airpark Area Plan. Ms. Fiala 
said they are requesting an amendment from high density residential to a single family low medium density 
residential. Ms. Fiala said Willis Road is not an arterial road and there is residential surrounding this property on 
the west and east side. Ms. Fiala said it would not be conducive for employment or commercial usage and 
single family would be the most appropriate land use. 

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO asked if this area would all be housing and there would not be any commercial 
along the freeway. 

MS. FIALA said they could not predict what projects would come forward, but it is designated as residential. 

KEVIN MAYO, Planning Administrator, said the freeway is the line of demarcation and the area is mostly built 
out east of McQueen. To the west is predominately larger lot single family. South of the 202 is where the 



Chandler City Council Study Session Minutes
Monday, January 25, 2021 Page 3 of 8

Airpark Area Plan begins and they are not looking to bring employment to areas designated as residential in 
the area. 

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO said anything to the west of McQueen is commercial and east of McQueen is 
residential. 

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO had questions regarding Consent Agenda Item No.11.

11. Adoption of Resolution No. 5433, Introduction of Ordinance No. 4955, and Preliminary Development 
Plan, PLH20-0047/PLH20-0048 Valerio at Ocotillo and Residence Inn Expansion

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO asked when the third addition would be built. 

MS. FIALA said the applicant is expecting it to be built within a year, but it would depend on COVID-19 impacts 
as well. 

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO had questions regarding Consent Agenda Item No. 13.

13. Introduction of Ordinance No. 4958, Preliminary Development Plan and Preliminary Plat, PLH19-
0063/PLT19-0055 Elux at McQueen

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO asked if any residents have had concerns on this project.

LAUREN SCHUMANN, Senior Planner, said there was a neighborhood meeting that was held and five residents 
attended. Ms. Schumann said she did receive one phone call and was concerned with the traffic conditions and 
the resident was provided with the traffic analysis. Ms. Schumann said to relieve some traffic tension there 
would be a full intersection at McQueen and Armstrong. 

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO asked if the resident was satisfied with the information.

MS. SCHUMANN said yes, the resident has not asked any additional questions. 

VICE MAYOR STEWART asked what the property to the west was zoned.

MS. SCHUMANN said the current property is envisioned as high density residential. Across the street is zoned 
as agricultural and is anticipated to be light industrial. Ms. Schumann said staff is in the process of updating the 
Airpark Area Plan and they have discussed the possibilities to allow that area to be used for offices. 

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO had questions regarding Consent Agenda Item No. 14.

14. Preliminary Plat, PLT20-0033 Queen Creek Commerce Center

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO asked for more information about a flex building.

MS. SCHUMANN said properties zoned planned area development that allows for a mix of uses. The flex allows 
for multiple uses, the majority being industrial, manufacturing, and research in development, but because of 
the flex more than 10% of the space could be used as office as well. 



Chandler City Council Study Session Minutes
Monday, January 25, 2021 Page 4 of 8

CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS

1. January 2021 Council Minutes
Move to approve the Council meeting minutes of the Regular Meeting of January 14, 2021 and the 
Special Meeting of January 14, 2021.

2. Board and Commission Appointments.
Move City Council approve the appointments to the Historic Preservation Commission.

3. Purchase of Fitness Equipment for Tumbleweed Recreation Center
Move City Council approve the purchase of fitness equipment, from Life Fitness, LLC, utilizing 
Sourcewell Contract No. 081120-LFF, in the amount of $94,838.42.

4. Professional Services Agreement with Environmental Planning Group, LLC, for Lantana Ranch Park Phase 
I Improvements Post Design Services
Move City Council award Professional Services Agreement No. PR1905.270 to Environmental Planning 
Group, LLC, for the Lantana Ranch Park Phase I Improvements Post-Design Services, in an amount not 
to exceed $38,184.

5. Construction Contract No. PR1905.401 with Nickle Contracting, LLC, for Lantana Ranch Park Phase I 
Improvements
Move City Council award Construction Contract No. PR1905.401 to Nickle Contracting, LLC, for the 
Lantana Ranch Park Phase I Improvements, in an amount not to exceed $3,372,663.20.

6. Professional Services Agreement with Dibble CM, LLC, for Lantana Ranch Park Phase I Improvements 
Construction Management Services
Move City Council award Professional Services Agreement No. PR1905.451 to Dibble CM, LLC, for the 
Lantana Ranch Park Phase I Improvements Construction Management Services, in an amount not to 
exceed $169,150.

7. Agreement No. CS0-670-4172, Amendment No. 1, with Ewing Irrigation and Landscape Supply, Inc., for 
Irrigation Supplies
Move City Council approve Agreement No. CS0-670-4172, Amendment No. 1, with Ewing Irrigation and 
Landscape Supply, Inc., for irrigation supplies, in an amount not to exceed $350,000, for one year, April 
1, 2021, through March 31, 2022.

8. Replat, PLT20-0031, Chandler Crossing Amended
Move City Council approve Replat PLT20-0031, Chandler Crossing, located at the northeast corner of 
Arizona Avenue and Chandler Heights Road, Amended as recommended by Development Services 
Staff.

9. Adoption of Resolution No. 5432, Introduction of Ordinance No. 4954, Preliminary Development Plan, 
and Preliminary Plat Approval, PLH20-0066/PLH20-0028/PLT20-0032 Hudson Crossings
Area Plan



Chandler City Council Study Session Minutes
Monday, January 25, 2021 Page 5 of 8

Move City Council adopt Resolution No. 5432 Chandler Airpark Area Plan amendment, PLH20-0066, 
located east of the northeast corner of McQueen Road and the Loop 202 Santan Freeway as 
recommended by Planning and Zoning Commission.
Rezoning
Move City Council introduce and tentatively adopt Ordinance No.4954 approving PLH20-0028 Hudson 
Crossings, Rezoning from PAD multi-family to PAD single family for a single family development, 
located east of the northeast corner of McQueen Road and the Loop 202 Santan Freeway subject to the 
conditions as recommended by Planning and Zoning Commission.
Preliminary Development Plan
Move City Council approve Preliminary Development Plan PLH20-0028 Hudson Crossings for 
subdivision layout and building architecture, located east of the northeast corner of McQueen Road and 
the Loop 202 Santan Freeway subject to the conditions as recommended by Planning and Zoning 
Commission.
Preliminary Plat
Move City Council approve Preliminary Plat PLT20-0032 Hudson Crossings, located east of the 
northeast corner of McQueen Road and the Loop 202 Santan Freeway subject to the condition 
recommended by Planning and Zoning Commission.

10. Preliminary Plat, PLT20-0029/ and Final Plat, PLT20-0030 Lotus Project
Move City Council approve Preliminary Plat, PLT20-0029 and Final Plat, PLT20-0030 Lotus Project 
located at the southwest corner of Roosevelt Avenue and Frye Road (north side of the Loop 202 Santan 
Freeway and approximately 1/4 of a mile west of Kyrene Road) as recommended by Planning and 
Zoning Commission and Planning staff.

11. Adoption of Resolution No. 5433, Introduction of Ordinance No. 4955, and Preliminary Development 
Plan, PLH20-0047/PLH20-0048 Valerio at Ocotillo and Residence Inn Expansion
Area Plan
Move City Council adopt Resolution No.5433 Downtown Ocotillo Area Plan amendment, PLH20-0047, 
located east of the southeast corner of Queen Creek and Price roads as recommended by the Planning 
and Zoning Commission.
Rezoning
Move City Council introduce and tentatively adopt Ordinance No. 4955 approving PLH20-0048 Valerio 
at Ocotillo and Residence Inn Expansion, Rezoning from Planned Area Development for Medium 
Density Residential (PAD/MF-1) to PAD for Commercial, located east of the southeast corner of Queen 
Creek and Price roads subject to the conditions as recommended by the Planning and Zoning 
Commission.
Preliminary Development Plan
Move City Council approve Preliminary Development Plan PLH20-0048 Valerio at Ocotillo and 
Residence Inn Expansion for site layout and building architecture, located east of the southeast corner 
of Queen Creek and Price roads subject to the conditions as recommended by the Planning and Zoning 
Commission.

12. Introduction and Tentative Adoption of Ordinance No. 4959, PLH20-0049 1st Pet Veterinary Centers
Move City Council introduce and tentatively adopt Ordinance No. 4959 approving PLH20-0049 1st Pet 
Veterinary Centers, Rezoning from Planned Area Development (PAD) to Planned Area Development 
Amended, adding veterinary clinic and like uses, located at 1257 W. Warner Road (West of the 



Chandler City Council Study Session Minutes
Monday, January 25, 2021 Page 6 of 8

Southwest corner of Alma School and Warner Roads), subject to the conditions as recommended by the 
Planning and Zoning Commission.

13. Introduction of Ordinance No. 4958, Preliminary Development Plan and Preliminary Plat, PLH19-
0063/PLT19-0055 Elux at McQueen
Rezoning
Move City Council introduce and tentatively adopt Ordinance No. 4958 approving PLH19-0063 Elux at 
McQueen, Rezoning from AG-1 to PAD for multi-family residential located at the southeast corner of 
McQueen Road and the Loop 202 Santan Freeway, subject to the conditions as recommended by the 
Planning and Zoning Commission.
Preliminary Development Plan
Move City Council approve Preliminary Development Plan PLH19-0063 Elux at McQueen for site layout 
and building architecture located at the southeast corner of McQueen Road and the Loop 202 Santan 
Freeway, subject to the conditions as recommended by the Planning and Zoning Commission.
Preliminary Plat
Move City Council approve Preliminary Plat PLT19-0055 Elux at McQueen located at the southeast 
corner of McQueen Road and the Loop 202 Santan Freeway, subject to the condition recommended by 
the Planning and Zoning Commission.

14. Preliminary Plat, PLT20-0033 Queen Creek Commerce Center
Move City Council approve Preliminary Plat PLT20-0033 Queen Creek Commerce Center located at the 
southwest corner of Queen Creek Road and Hamilton Street, as recommended by Planning and Zoning 
Commission.

15. Purchase of Cisco Smartnet
Move City Council approve the utilization of 1GPA's Contract No. 16-11PV-05, for the purchase of Cisco 
Smartnet, from NTT America Solutions, Inc., in the amount of $123,971.

16. Agreement No. IT9-208-4034, Amendment No. 1, with CCG Systems, Inc., dba FASTER Asset Solutions 
for the Fleet Management System
Move that City Council approve Agreement No. IT9-208-4034, Amendment No.1, with CCG Systems 
Inc., dba FASTER Asset Solutions, for the fleet management system, in the amount of $93,352, for the 
period of one year, beginning September 30, 2020, through September 29, 2021.

17. Claims Report for the Quarter Ending December 31, 2020
Move to accept the claims report for the quarter ending December 31, 2020, which is on file in the City 
Clerk�s office.

18. New License Series 10, Beer and Wine Store Liquor License application, for Quiktrip Corporation, dba 
Quiktrip #450
Move for recommendation to the State Department of Liquor Licenses and Control for approval of the 
State Liquor Job No. 126582, a Series 10, Beer and Wine Store, for Perry Charles Huellmantel, Agent, 
Quiktrip Corporation, dba Quiktrip #450, located at 175 N. McQueen Road, and approval of the City of 
Chandler, Series 10, Beer and Wine Store Liquor License No. 300221 L10.

19. License Series 10, Beer and Wine Store Liquor License application, for MRK Family LLC, dba 7-Eleven 
#27215E



Chandler City Council Study Session Minutes
Monday, January 25, 2021 Page 7 of 8

Move for recommendation to the State Department of Liquor Licenses and Control for approval of the 
State Liquor Job no.125538, Series 10, Beer and Wine Store Liquor License, for Myo Aung Yacoob, 
Agent, MRK Family LLC, dba 7-Eleven #27215E, located at 2025 W. Warner Road, and approval of the 
City of Chandler Series 10, Beer and Wine Store Liquor License No. 300274 L10.

20. New License Series 12, Restaurant Liquor License application, for AZPG Ray LLC, dba AZ Pho and Grill
Move for recommendation to the State Department of Liquor Licenses and Control for approval of the 
State Liquor Job No. 128161, a Series 12, Restaurant Liquor License, for Thanh Trang Nguyen, Agent, 
AZPG Ray LLC, dba AZ Pho and Grill, located at 885 N. 54th Street, Suite 5, and approval of the City of 
Chandler, Series 12, Restaurant Liquor License No. 300264 L12.

21. Agreement No. PD8-968-3913, Amendment No. 2, with ACT Towing, LLC, dba All City Towing, for Police 
Towing
Move City Council approve Agreement No. PD8-968-3913, Amendment No. 2, with ACT Towing dba All 
City Towing, for police towing, for the period of January 1, 2021, through December 31, 2022

22. Agreement No. PW0-745-4183, Amendment No. 1, with M.R. Tanner Development and Construction, 
Inc., for Street Repaving, Surface Seals, and Repair Services
Move City Council approve Agreement No. PW0-745-4183, Amendment No. 1, with M.R. Tanner 
Development and Construction, Inc., for street repaving, surface seals, and repair services, in an amount 
not to exceed $7,600,000, for a one-year term, May 1, 2021, through April 30, 2022.

23. Purchase of Hot Mix Asphalt Materials
Move City Council approve the purchase of hot mix asphalt materials from Vulcan Materials Company, 
utilizing City of Tempe Contract No. T19-143-01, in an amount not to exceed $150,000.

24. Introduction of Ordinance No. 4953 Granting an Irrigation Easement to Salt River Project Agricultural 
Improvement and Power District
Move City Council introduce and tentatively adopt Ordinance No. 4953 granting an irrigation easement 
to Salt River Project Agricultural Improvement and Power District at the northwest corner of Arizona 
Avenue and Queen Creek Road, at no cost, to formalize an existing United States Government 
undefined irrigation easement at this location.

25. Introduction of Ordinance No. 4956 Granting Three (3) Irrigation Easements to Roosevelt Water 
Conservation District
Move City Council introduce and tentatively adopt Ordinance No. 4956 granting three (3) irrigation 
easements to the Roosevelt Water Conservation District (RWCD) within portions of Chandler Heights 
Road on either side of the Cooper Road intersection, at no cost, to accommodate the Cooper Road 
Improvement Project, from Alamosa Drive to Riggs Road.

26. Purchase of an XBroom Street Sweeper
Move City Council approve the purchase of an XBroom Street Sweeper from Nescon, LLC, utilizing 
Maricopa County Contract No. 190170-S, in the amount of $293,185.26.

27. Introduction of Ordinance No. 4948 Adopting Updated Versions of Previously Adopted Public Works 
Design and Construction Standards



Chandler City Council Study Session Minutes
Monday, January 25, 2021 Page 8 of 8

Move City Council introduce and tentatively adopt Ordinance No. 4948 adopting updated versions of 
previously adopted Public Works design and construction standards and amending Chapter 43, Section 
43-5, Subsections 43-4.5.A, 43-4.5.B, 43-4.5.C, 43-4.5.D, 43-4.5.E, 43-4.5.G, and 43-4.5.I of the Code of
the City of Chandler, relating to the adoption of these updated design and construction standards.

INFORMATIONAL 

28. Regular Meeting Minutes of the November 18, 2020, Planning and Zoning Commission

29. Study Session Minutes of the November 18, 2020, Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting

ADJOURNMENT:  The meeting adjourned at 6:25 p.m.

ATTEST:  _______________________ ______________________________
City Clerk                                                   Mayor

Approval Date of Minutes:  February 11, 2021

CERTIFICATION

I hereby certify that the foregoing minutes are a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Study Session of 
the City Council of Chandler, Arizona, held on the 25th day of January 2021.  I further certify that the meeting 
was duly called and held and that a quorum was present.

DATED this _______ day of February, 2021.

__________________________
City Clerk



CITY OF CHANDLER COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
Regular Meeting

Thursday, January 28, 2021

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE HONORABLE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF CHANDLER, ARIZONA, held in the City of Chandler Council Chambers, 88 E. Chicago St., Chandler, 
Arizona, on Thursday, January 28, 2021.

THE MEETING WAS CALLED TO ORDER BY VICE MAYOR MARK STEWART AT 6:00 P.M.

The following members answered roll call:
*Kevin Hartke Mayor
René Lopez Vice Mayor
Mark Stewart Councilmember
OD Harris Councilmember
Christine Ellis Councilmember
Terry Roe Councilmember
Matt Orlando Councilmember

*Mayor Hartke attended the meeting telephonically.

Also in attendance: Marsha Reed          City Manager
Debra Stapleton Assistant City Manager
Kelly Schwab City Attorney
Dana DeLong City Clerk

INVOCATION:  The invocation was given by Pratibha Somaiya, Bhaktivedanta Cultural Center.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Councilmember Ellis led the Pledge of Allegiance.

SCHEDULED PUBLIC APPEARANCES:

1. Citizen Bond Exploratory Committee Update �Chairman Boyd Dunn

BOYD DUNN, Citizen Bond Exploratory Committee Chairman, congratulated Councilmembers Ellis and 
Councilmember Harris on beginning their term on Council. Chairman Dunn said Citizen Bond Exploratory 
Committee and Subcommittees were formed by Council the previous year regarding a possible bond election 
to address City infrastructure needs. The last bond authorization occurred 13 years ago and the Council at the 
time appointed 38 citizens on six committees to make recommendations on 10 separate authorizations. 
Chairman Dunn said this time Council increased that number to 49 citizens serving on eight committees to 
provide recommendations. Chairman Dunn said the Committee and Subcommittees have worked very well.  
CHAIRMAN DUNN presented the following Power Point presentation. 

∑ Citizen Bond Exploratory Committee



CHANDLER CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
Thursday, January 28, 2021 Page 2 of 32

o Steering Committee and Subcommittees have met nearly 60 times since beginning in August
o Great attendance, enthusiasm and participation from all 49 members
o City planning and studies completed recently have offered valuable information for committee 

members
o City staff supported Citizen Bond Exploratory Committee by offering information, explaining 

operational needs, making presentations and addressing questions
∑ Citizen Bond Exploratory Committee

o Staff began the public education process in November to inform residents about the work of the 
bond committee

o Encouraged comments to be submitted through the City�s website
o Meeting agendas, copies of presentations, and meeting minutes are all available for residents to 

view on the City�s website at chandleraz.gov/bondelection
∑ Citizen Bond Exploratory Committee

o All Subcommittees submitted recommendations in November and December
o Finance Subcommittee and Steering Committee are been working to evaluate all 

recommendations
o Working towards final proposal to city Council  that would not increase property taxes for either 

the primary or secondary rates
o Proposed projects must fit within capital funding and needed ongoing operations and 

maintenance projections 
∑ Citizen Bond Exploratory Committee

o Steering Committee reviewed funding options for all projects
o In depth discussions on types of projects typically supported by voters
o Reviewed successes and failures of other Valley Cities and their bond elections
o Received presentations from City�s Financial Advisor, Bill Davis from Piper Sandler and the City�s 

Bond Council, Tim Stratton from Gust Rosenfeld 
∑ Citizen Bond Exploratory Committee

o On December 18, 2020 the Steering Committee unanimously voted to not include Utilities as a 
question in the upcoming bond election 

ß Historically ETRO Bonds are used to fund utility projects
o On January 15, 2021 the Steering Committee unanimously voted to not include Airport or 

Information Technology as questions in the upcoming bond election
ß Projects from these areas will be funded with either remaining bond authorization, cash, 

or a future bond election 
∑ Citizen Bond Exploratory Committee

o Next Steps
ß Steering Committee will vote to approve the bond questions as presented by Bond 

Council
ß Plan to present all project details with Final Report to City Council on February 25, 2021
ß Steering Committee will provide a final executive summary to the City Council in 

February 2021 for consideration of potential projects that could be funded through a 
future bond election 

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO asked how many citizens have submitted comments to the Committee.



CHANDLER CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
Thursday, January 28, 2021 Page 3 of 32

CHAIRMAN DUNN said he did not have an exact number from the website, but there were participants in the 
audience including former Councilmembers.  Chairman Dunn said there were some key areas that citizens have 
recommended as well as improvements for existing amenities.

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO asked if there were any items that fell off the list. 

CHAIRMAN DUNN said there was a request to build a detention center for Chandler, but there would be 
significant operational cost. 

DAWN LANG, Management Services Director, said it would be $3.3 million in ongoing cost. 

CHAIRMAN DUNN said they looked closely at the partnership with the Gilbert facility, which seems to be going 
well. Chairman Dunn said they found it would be more important to expand the lab facility and could 
potentially serve communities outside of Chandler as well. Chairman Dunn said they did not want to present 
any items to Council that would require an increase in property tax. 

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO asked if the items they chose not to go forward with would be included in the 
report.

CHAIRMAN DUNN said yes, and they would have explanations as to why projects were chosen or not. 

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO asked if the Airport and Information Technology projects would also be included 
in the report.

CHAIRMAN DUNN said yes, it would be explained in the report. 

COUNCILMEMER ORLANDO thanked Chairman Dunn for his service as Chairman. 

COUNCILMEMBER HARRIS thanked Chairman Dunn for his work as Chairman and taking the time to determine 
projects that would be best for Chandler.

CHAIRMAN DUNN said it had been a pleasure serving and that the last bond authorization was done when he 
was Mayor, and he said this was important for the City. Chairman Dunn said the Committee has been very 
excited to serve. 

VICE MAYOR STEWART asked what the next steps would be. 

CHAIRMAN DUNN said he would come back to Council in February, and the Committee is currently working on 
their final report for Council. 

CONSENT AGENDA �DISCUSSION
None.

CONSENT AGENDA �MOTION AND VOTE



CHANDLER CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
Thursday, January 28, 2021 Page 4 of 32

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO MOVED TO APPROVE THE CONSENT AGENDA OF THE JANUARY 28, 2021, CITY 
COUNCIL MEETING, WITH THE EXCEPTION OF ITEM NO. 13 WHICH WOULD BE CONTINUED TO THE 
FEBRUARY 25, 2021, COUNCIL MEETING; SECONDED BY COUNCILMEMBER LOPEZ.

MOTION TO APPROVE THE CONSENT AGENDA CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY (7-0).

CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS

1. January 2021 Council Minutes 
Move to approve the Council meeting minutes of the Regular Meeting of January 14, 2021 and the 
Special Meeting of January 14, 2021.

2. Board and Commission Appointments.
Move City Council approve the appointments to the Historic Preservation Commission.

BACKGROUND FROM COUNCIL MEMO:
Historic Preservation Commission
Appoint Cheryl Bell
Appoint Erika Finbraaten
Appoint Kevin Weight

3. Purchase of Fitness Equipment for Tumbleweed Recreation Center
Move City Council approve the purchase of fitness equipment, from Life Fitness, LLC, utilizing 
Sourcewell Contract No. 081120-LFF, in the amount of $94,838.42.

BACKGROUND FROM COUNCIL MEMO
Twelve pieces of cardio equipment are being purchased at Tumbleweed Recreation Center (TRC)  
as recommended in the cardio and strength equipment replacement plan.  The pieces of equipment 

being purchased include five treadmills, three power mills, two upper body ADA pieces, and two zero impact 
running motion machines.  The pieces of equipment being purchased are a part of the Life Fitness, Octane 
Fitness, and SciFit cardio commercial series. The new pieces  equipment will replace models that have 
high usage hours and require frequent repairs. The TRC will also receive a trade-in credit of $6,700 for the 
twelve pieces of equipment that are being replaced.  The expected delivery date is early April 2021. 

4. Professional Services Agreement with Environmental Planning Group, LLC, for Lantana Ranch Park 
Phase I Improvements Post Design Services

Move City Council award Professional Services Agreement No. PR1905.270 to Environmental 
Planning Group, LLC, for the Lantana Ranch Park Phase I Improvements Post-Design Services, in an 

amount not to exceed $38,184.

BACKGROUND FROM COUNCIL MEMO
This project is for Phase I improvements to Lantana Ranch Park, located at the southeast corner of 
Queen Creek and McQueen roads to provide open space turf areas, lighted multi-use courts, shaded 
aviation-themed playground, outdoor fitness equipment, lighted walkways, and park amenities. The 
project scope of work includes any design clarifications or modifications with the designer of record for 
seamless and continued coordination with utilities, other agencies, bidders, the contractor and the 
construction management firm before and during construction of this project. The scope also includes 



CHANDLER CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
Thursday, January 28, 2021 Page 5 of 32

attendance at construction meetings, review of shop drawings and submittals, environmental services, 
and preparation of final as-built drawings. The contract completion time is 180 calendar days following 
Notice to Proceed.

A related Construction Contract with Nickle Contracting, LLC, and a related Professional Services 
Agreement with Dibble CM, LLC, for the Lantana Ranch Park Phase I Improvements, are also 
scheduled for this City Council meeting. 

5. Construction Contract No. PR1905.401 with Nickle Contracting, LLC, for Lantana Ranch Park Phase
I Improvements
Move City Council award Construction Contract No. PR1905.401 to Nickle Contracting, LLC, for the 
Lantana Ranch Park Phase I Improvements, in an amount not to exceed $3,372,663.20.

BACKGROUND FROM COUNCIL MEMO
On January 30, 2020, Community Services Department staff facilitated a public meeting to receive input 
from Chandler citizens regarding the design of the park. On November 17, 2020, staff conducted a 
follow-up meeting with the Lantana Ranch Home Owners Association to discuss parking options for the 
new park. On March 3, 2020, the City's Parks and Recreation Board unanimously approved the 
conceptual design for the park.  All feedback received during the public outreach process has been 
supportive of the new park design. This project is for Phase I improvements to Lantana Ranch Park, 
located at the southeast corner of Queen Creek and McQueen roads, to provide open space turf areas, 
lighted multi-use courts, shaded aviation-themed playground, outdoor fitness equipment, lighted 
walkways, and park amenities.

The project scope of work consists of construction of removals, grading, concrete sidewalks, curbing, 
gutters, storm drainage, lighting, fencing, irrigation, trees, shrubs, turf, signage, playground surface and 
equipment, exercise equipment, multi-court surfaces and equipment, and other park amenities, 
including seating, trash receptacles, bike racks, dog waste stations, picnic tables, ramada, drinking 
fountain, and flagpole. The construction contract time is 150 calendar days following Notice to Proceed.
A related Professional Services Agreement with Dibble CM, LLC, and a related Professional 

Services Agreement with Environmental Planning Group, LLC, for the Lantana Ranch Park Phase I 
Improvements, are also scheduled for this City Council meeting. 

6. Professional Services Agreement with Dibble CM, LLC, for Lantana Ranch Park Phase I Improvements 
Construction Management Services

Move City Council award Professional Services Agreement No. PR1905.451 to Dibble CM, LLC, for 
the Lantana Ranch Park Phase I Improvements Construction Management Services, in an amount 
not to exceed $169,150.

BACKGROUND FROM COUNCIL MEMO
This project is for Phase I improvements to Lantana Ranch Park, located at the southeast corner of 
Queen Creek and McQueen roads to provide open space turf areas, lighted multi-use courts, shaded 
aviation-themed playground, outdoor fitness equipment, lighted walkways, and park amenities. The 
project scope of work includes pre-construction assistance, contractor oversight, construction 
administration, construction inspection, utility coordination, schedule review, review of progress 
payments, response to shop drawings and submittals for design compliance, materials testing quality 



CHANDLER CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
Thursday, January 28, 2021 Page 6 of 32

assurance, and project close-out. The contract completion time is 210 calendar days following Notice to 
Proceed.

A related Construction Contract with Nickle Contracting, LLC, and a related Professional Services 
Agreement with Environmental Planning Group, LLC, for the Lantana Ranch Park Phase I 
Improvements, are also scheduled for this City Council meeting.

7. Agreement No. CS0-670-4172, Amendment No. 1, with Ewing Irrigation and Landscape Supply, Inc., for 
Irrigation Supplies

Move City Council approve Agreement No. CS0-670-4172, Amendment No. 1, with Ewing Irrigation 
and Landscape Supply, Inc., for irrigation supplies, in an amount not to exceed $350,000, for one 
year, April 1, 2021, through March 31, 2022.

BACKGROUND FROM COUNCIL MEMO
Since 1990, the Parks Division has utilized a centralized irrigation system to control area lighting and 

irrigation in Chandler parks.  The existing system is 30 years old and has become unreliable with frequent 
communication problems and component failures.  It is also becoming difficult to find parts or obtain 
support for the existing system.

The Parks Division's goal is to convert all the old controllers to a new system within two years.  Last 
year, Baseline irrigation equipment was installed at 23 parks. The new system offers several advantages 
over the existing, outdated system.  The new technology focuses on conserving water and provides cloud 
storage services. This feature allows staff to access the system from anywhere through a phone, tablet, or 
desktop.  Baseline also has several local representatives, which will reduce the lead time on parts and service. 
The cities of Scottsdale and Avondale and the Town of Gilbert have also converted over to the Baseline 
system. 

This contract will allow staff to purchase Baseline irrigation equipment for the remaining parks that 
have the old irrigation system. Attached is a map showing the locations where the new equipment will be 
installed.

8. Replat, PLT20-0031, Chandler Crossing Amended
Move City Council approve Replat PLT20-0031, Chandler Crossing, located at the northeast corner 
of Arizona Avenue and Chandler Heights Road, Amended as recommended by Development 
Services Staff.

BACKGROUND FROM COUNCIL MEMO
16.27 acre commercial site with 4 lots. Zoned PAD. The previously approved plat created four 
commercial lots. This replat makes minor adjustments to several lot lines, affecting a total of four lots. 
The site has already been developed and no lots are being added or removed. 

9. Adoption of Resolution No. 5432, Introduction of Ordinance No. 4954, Preliminary Development 
Plan, and Preliminary Plat Approval, PLH20-0066/PLH20-0028/PLT20-0032 Hudson Crossings
Area Plan
Move City Council adopt Resolution No. 5432 Chandler Airpark Area Plan amendment, PLH20- 0066, 

located east of the northeast corner of McQueen Road and the Loop 202 Santan Freeway as recommended 
by Planning and Zoning Commission.



CHANDLER CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
Thursday, January 28, 2021 Page 7 of 32

Rezoning
Move City Council introduce and tentatively adopt Ordinance No.4954 approving PLH20-0028 
Hudson Crossings, Rezoning from PAD multi-family to PAD single family for a single family 
development, located east of the northeast corner of McQueen Road and the Loop 202 Santan 
Freeway subject to the conditions as recommended by Planning and Zoning Commission.
Preliminary Development Plan
Move City Council approve Preliminary Development Plan PLH20-0028 Hudson Crossings for 
subdivision layout and building architecture, located east of the northeast corner of McQueen Road and 
the Loop 202 Santan Freeway subject to the conditions as recommended by Planning and Zoning 
Commission.
Preliminary Plat
Move City Council approve Preliminary Plat PLT20-0032 Hudson Crossings, located east of the 
northeast corner of McQueen Road and the Loop 202 Santan Freeway subject to the condition 
recommended by Planning and Zoning Commission.

BACKGROUND FROM COUNCIL MEMO
Site is approximately 6.39 net acres. Site was zoned in 2007 as Planned Area Development (PAD) for 
multi-family (MF-3 standards), along with Area Plan Amendment on two acres of the 6.39 acre site from 
Special Use Commercial to High Density Residential 2007 approval included a stipulation requiring 
Preliminary Development Plan approval that was never submitted

Surrounding Land Use Data

North Willis Rd. then City Water Treatment 
Facility South Loop 202 Santan Freeway

East Consolidated Canal West Single family residential 
(under construction)

General Plan and Area Plan Designations
Existing Proposed

General Plan Neighborhoods No change
(Chandler Airpark Area Plan 
(CAAP)

High Density Residential (12.1- 18 
du/ac)

Low-Medium Density Residential 
(3.6-8 du/ac)

Proposed Development
Gated single family subdivision

# of Lots 43 single family lots
Density 6.73 dwelling units per acre

Building Setbacks (min.)
Front - 10 ft. to livable, 20 ft. to garage 
Sides - 5 ft.
Rear - 20 ft. to livable, 10 ft. to patio (plans 3 and 4)

Lot Size Min. 3,200 sq. ft., 40 ft. by 80 ft.
Lot Coverage (max.) 55 percent
Building Height (max.) 30 ft. to midpoint of peak

Building Architecture Desert Contemporary, Modern Spanish, Mid-Century, Modern 
Prairie



CHANDLER CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
Thursday, January 28, 2021 Page 8 of 32

Parking Spaces Two car garages per home
11 visitor parking spaces 

Amenities Airport-themed tot lot and ramada

Review and Recommendation
Planning staff finds the proposal is consistent with the General Plan designation of Neighborhoods and 
the proposed amendment to the Chandler Airpark Area Plan. The proposed density of 6.73 du/acre is 
lower than the existing site's multi-family zoning, which permits a density of up to 18 du/acre. The 
proposed density is also compatible with the 35 lot single family subdivision, located to the west, which 
is being developed at a density of 5.83 du/acre. 

The subdivision is proposed as a gated community with unique site constraints including single vehicular 
access to an arterial road (McQueen Road) and located at the termination of a dead-end street (Willis 
Road). Due to the infill nature of the site, the Residential Development Standards (RDS) for subdivision 
layout are not applicable. However, the RDS guidelines remain applicable to the architectural design of 
the homes. The proposed single family residential subdivision meets the intent of development 
standards and residential design guidelines. 

Staff finds the proposal to be consistent with the goals of the General Plan and the CAAP, as amended, 
and recommends approval subject to conditions.

Traffic Analysis
A Traffic Impact Study is not required for this size of residential development, as it is expected to 
generate less than 100 trips in an hour. Transportation Engineering staff reviewed and confirmed that 
both McQueen Road and Wills Road have ample capacity to accommodate the additional traffic 
generated by this proposed development. 

Public / Neighborhood Notification
This request was noticed in accordance with the requirements of the Chandler Zoning Code. A virtual 
neighborhood meeting was held on October 28, 2020. Two residents attended virtually and asked 
questions regarding construction of a sound wall and vehicular turns from Willis Rd. onto McQueen Rd. 
and heading west on the Loop 202 Santan Freeway. No opposition to the project was stated. As of 
writing this memo, Planning staff is not aware of opposition to the request.

Airport Commission Conflict Evaluation
Airport Commission meeting November 18, 2020. 
Motion to find a conflict with existing or planned airport operations. 
In Favor: 5       Opposed: 0         Absent: 2 (Siegel, Kruse)    

The Airport Commission reviewed the request in accordance with the Airport Conflicts Evaluation 
Process. The Airport Planning Administrator has issued a conflict evaluation report indicating that the 
Airport Commission determined that the proposed development does constitute a conflict with existing 
or planned airport operations. A copy of the report detailing the Airport Commission's findings is 
attached to this memo. The Airport Commission's recommended mitigation measures to address the 
operational conflicts are included as zoning stipulations.



CHANDLER CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
Thursday, January 28, 2021 Page 9 of 32

Planning and Zoning Commission Vote Report
Planning and Zoning Commission meeting January 6, 2021. 
Motion to Approve. 
In Favor: 6       Opposed: 0       Absent: 1 (Heumann)

Recommended Conditions of Approval
Rezoning 
Planning and Zoning Commission recommends the City Council approve rezoning from PAD multi-family 
to PAD single family, subject to the following conditions: 

1. Development shall be in substantial conformance with the Development Booklet, entitled "Hudson 
Crossings" and kept on file in the City of Chandler Planning Division, in File No. PLH20-0028, modified 
by such conditions included at the time the Booklet was approved by the Chandler City Council and/or 
as thereafter amended, modified or supplemented by the Chandler City Council.

2. Completion of the construction of all required off-site street improvements including but not limited 
to paving, landscaping, curb, gutter and sidewalks, median improvements and street lighting to 
achieve conformance with City codes, standard details, and design manuals.

3. Right-of-way dedications to achieve full half-widths, including turn lanes and deceleration lanes, per 
the standards of the Chandler Transportation Plan.

4. Minimum setbacks shall be as provided below and further detailed in the Development Booklet:
Front Building Setback (min.) 10 feet to livable, 20 feet to garage
Side Building Setback (min.) 5 feet

Rear Building Setback (min.) 20 feet to livable, 10 feet to patio (plans 3 and 
4)

5. The following stipulations shall be the responsibilities of the sub-divider/homebuilder/developer and 
shall not be construed as a guarantee of disclosure by the City of Chandler:

a. Prior to any lot reservation or purchase agreement, any and all prospective homebuyers shall 
be given a separate disclosure statement, for their signature, fully acknowledging that this 
subdivision lies within the Chandler Municipal Airport Impact Overlay District, as specified in 
the Chandler Zoning Code.  The disclosure statement shall acknowledge the proximity of this 
subdivision to the Chandler Airport and that an avigational easement exists and/or is required 
on the property, and further, shall acknowledge that the property is subject to aircraft noise 
and overflight activity.  This document signed by the homebuyer shall be recorded with 
Maricopa County Recorder's Office upon sale of the property.

b. The subdivider/homebuilder/developer shall also display, in a conspicuous place within the 
sales office, a map illustrating the location of the subdivision within the Airport Impact Overlay 
District, as well as the noise contours and overflight patterns, as identified and depicted in the 
document entitled Chandler Municipal Airport, F. A. R. Part 150, Noise Compatibility Study, 
Noise Compatibility Program, Exhibit 6A (Potential Airport Influence Area), as adopted by the 
Chandler City Council (Resolution No. 2950, 11-5-98).  Such map shall be a minimum size of 
24" x 36".

c. Compliance with this condition shall be demonstrated by the 
subdivider/homebuilder/developer by submittal of a signed affidavit and photograph that 
acknowledges this disclosure and map display prior to beginning any sales activity.  Failure to 
comply with this condition will result in revocation of the Administrative Use Permit for the 
temporary sales office. All requirements as set forth in this condition are the obligation of the 
subdivider/homebuilder/developer and shall not be construed as a guarantee of disclosure by 



CHANDLER CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
Thursday, January 28, 2021 Page 10 of 32

the City of Chandler.
d. The above referenced information shall also be included within the Subdivision Public Report 

to be filed with the State of Arizona Department of Real Estate, as required by Arizona Revised 
Statute 28-8486 and Arizona Revised Statute 28-8464.

e. The subdivider/homebuilder/developer shall provide the City with an avigational easement 
over the subject property in accordance with Section 3004 of the City of Chandler Zoning 
Code.

f. All homes and buildings shall be designed and built to achieve an interior noise level not to 
exceed 45 decibels (Ldn) from aircraft noise. A professional acoustical consultant, architect or 
engineer shall certify that the project's construction plans are in conformance with this 
condition.

g. The Final Plat shall contain the following statement on the cover sheet in a prominent location 
and in large text: "This property is located within the Chandler Municipal Airport Impact 
Overlay District and is subject to aircraft noise and overflight activity, and is encumbered by an 
avigational easement to the City of Chandler."

6. Prior to the time of making any lot reservations or subsequent sales agreements, the 
subdivider/homebuilder/lot developer shall provide a written disclosure statement, for the signature 
of each buyer, acknowledging that the subdivision is located adjacent to or nearby a heliport at the 
Chandler Municipal Airport that may cause adverse noise, odors, and other externalities. The "Public 
Subdivision Report", "Purchase Contracts", CC&R's, and the individual lot property deeds shall include 
a disclosure statement outlining that the site is adjacent to or nearby a heliport, and the disclosure 
shall state that such uses are legal and should be expected to continue indefinitely. The disclosure 
shall be presented to prospective homebuyers on a separate, single form for them to read and sign 
prior to or simultaneously with executing a purchase agreement. This responsibility for notice rests 
with the subdivider/homebuilder/lot developer and shall not be construed as an absolute guarantee 
by the City of Chandler for receiving such notice.

7. The development shall provide sound attenuation measures in accordance with ADOT standard details 
and requirements excepting any decibel reductions or sound attenuation credits for the use of a 
rubberized asphalt paving surface.  Any noise mitigation, if required, is the responsibility of the 
development.

8. Prior to the time of making any lot reservations or subsequent sales agreements, the 
subdivider/homebuilder/lot developer shall provide a written disclosure statement, for the signature 
of each buyer, acknowledging that the subdivision is located adjacent to or nearby a City of Chandler 
wastewater treatment facility that may cause adverse noise, odors, and other externalities. The "Public 
Subdivision Report", "Purchase Contracts", CC&R's, and the individual lot property deeds shall include 
a disclosure statement outlining that the site is adjacent to or nearby a wastewater treatment facility, 
and the disclosure shall state that such uses are legal and should be expected to continue indefinitely. 
The disclosure shall be presented to prospective homebuyers on a separate, single form for them to 
read and sign prior to or simultaneously with executing a purchase agreement.  This responsibility for 
notice rests with the homebuilder/lot developer and shall not be construed as an absolute guarantee 
by the City of Chandler for receiving such notice.

9. Homebuilder will advise all prospective homebuyers of the information on future City facilities 
contained in the City Facilities map found at www.chandleraz.gov/infomap, or available from the City's 
Communication and Public Affairs Department.  The homebuilder shall post a copy of the City 
Facilities map in the sales office showing the location of future and existing City facilities.



CHANDLER CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
Thursday, January 28, 2021 Page 11 of 32

Preliminary Development Plan 
Planning and Zoning Commission recommends City Council approve the Preliminary Development Plan, 
subject to the following conditions: 

1. Development shall be in substantial conformance with the Development Booklet, entitled "Hudson 
Crossings" and kept on file in the City of Chandler Planning Division, in File No. PLH20-0028, modified 
by such conditions included at the time the Booklet was approved by the Chandler City Council and/or 
as thereafter amended, modified or supplemented by the Chandler City Council.

2. The site shall be maintained in a clean and orderly manner.
3. The landscaping in all open-spaces shall be maintained by the property owner or property owners' 

association, and shall be maintained at a level consistent with or better than at the time of planting. 
4. The landscaping in all rights-of-way shall be maintained by the adjacent property owner or property 

owners' association.
5. Landscaping plans (including for open spaces, rights-of-way, and street medians) and perimeter walls 

shall be approved by the Planning Administrator.
6. The covenants, conditions and restrictions (CC & R's) to be filed and recorded with the subdivision 

shall mandate the installation of front yard landscaping within 180 days from the date of occupancy 
with the homeowners' association responsible for monitoring and enforcement of this requirement.

7. The same elevation style and color scheme combination shall not be built adjacent to or directly 
across the street from one another.

8. Sign packages, including free-standing signs as well as wall-mounted signs, shall be designed in 
coordination with landscape plans, planting materials, storm water retention requirements, and utility 
pedestals, so as not to create problems with sign visibility or prompt the removal of required 
landscape materials.

9. Preliminary Development Plan approval does not constitute Final Development Plan approval; 
compliance with the details required by all applicable codes and conditions of the City of Chandler 
and this Preliminary Development Plan shall apply.

10. At least one roadway-style sign shall be installed in a prominent location identifying the presence of 
low flying aircraft.

11. The roadway easement located north of Lots 34-43 shall be improved with a decomposed granite 
drive, a paved sidewalk and landscaping.

Preliminary Plat 
Planning and Zoning Commission recommends the City Council approve the Preliminary Plat, subject to 
the following condition: 
1. Approval by the City Engineer and Planning Administrator with regard to the details of all submittals 
required by code or condition.

10. Preliminary Plat, PLT20-0029/ and Final Plat, PLT20-0030 Lotus Project
Move City Council approve Preliminary Plat, PLT20-0029 and Final Plat, PLT20-0030 Lotus Project 
located at the southwest corner of Roosevelt Avenue and Frye Road (north side of the Loop 202 Santan 

Freeway and approximately 1/4 of a mile west of Kyrene Road) as recommended by Planning and Zoning 
Commission and Planning staff.

BACKGROUND FROM COUNCIL MEMO:



CHANDLER CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
Thursday, January 28, 2021 Page 12 of 32

Site is 53.33 acres in size. Zoned Planned Area Development District (PAD) for Light Industrial in 2018. 
Four flex industrial buildings were built under Phase I and three additional buildings will be built for 
Phase II.

All four existing buildings in Phase I and the undeveloped area for Phase II are located on one parcel.  
The current property owner is seeking to divide the parcel into seven (7) separate lots, one for each 
building, to be sold and owned individually. The preliminary plat and final plat outline the lots, tracts, 
easements, and rights-of-way to be conveyed or dedicated as part of developing the site in substantial 
conformance with the Council-approved rezoning. The City Council approved the zoning on April 12, 
2018.

Planning and Zoning Commission Vote Report
Planning and Zoning Commission meeting January 6, 2020.
Motion to Approve.
In Favor: 6 Opposed: 0 Absent: 1 (Heumann)      

Recommended Conditions of Approval
Approval by the City Engineer and Planning Administrator with regard to the details of all submittals 
required by code or condition.

11. Adoption of Resolution No. 5433, Introduction of Ordinance No. 4955, and Preliminary Development 
Plan, PLH20-0047/PLH20-0048 Valerio at Ocotillo and Residence Inn Expansion

Area Plan
Move City Council adopt Resolution No.5433 Downtown Ocotillo Area Plan amendment, PLH20- 0047, 

located east of the southeast corner of Queen Creek and Price roads as recommended by the Planning 
and Zoning Commission.

Rezoning
Move City Council introduce and tentatively adopt Ordinance No. 4955 approving PLH20-0048 Valerio 

at Ocotillo and Residence Inn Expansion, Rezoning from Planned Area Development for Medium Density 
Residential (PAD/MF-1) to PAD for Commercial, located east of the southeast corner of Queen Creek and 
Price roads subject to the conditions as recommended by the Planning and Zoning Commission.

Preliminary Development Plan
Move City Council approve Preliminary Development Plan PLH20-0048 Valerio at Ocotillo and 
Residence Inn Expansion for site layout and building architecture, located east of the southeast corner 

of Queen Creek and Price roads subject to the conditions as recommended by the Planning and Zoning 
Commission.

BACKGROUND FROM COUNCIL MEMO:
The proposed modifications cover an area of approximately 0.61 acres. Downtown Ocotillo Area. Plan 
and zoning approved by City Council on February 22, 2007. Residence Inn zoned as part of the larger 
Downtown Ocotillo development. Valerio at Ocotillo rezoned to PAD/MF-1 in 2018. Downtown Ocotillo 
includes a mix of uses including retail, restaurant, a four-story residential condominium, and a four-
story hotel

Surrounding Land Use Data:
North Agriculture   (proposed office) South Lake then Multi-family and office



CHANDLER CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
Thursday, January 28, 2021 Page 13 of 32

East Commercial retail and multi-family West Lake then office

General Plan and Area Plan Designations:

Proposed Development

Residence Inn Existing Proposed
Site Area 4.27 acres 4.88 acres
Building Area 107,025 sq. ft. 147,780 sq. ft.
Units/rooms 142 201
Height 59 feet 6 inches top of parapet 60 feet 2 inches top of parapet
Parking Required 142 spaces 201 spaces
Parking Provided 152 spaces 186 spaces
Setback to residential 85 feet required 30 feet

Review and Recommendation
Planning staff finds the proposal is consistent with the General Plan and the Downtown Ocotillo Area 
Plan.  The proposed modifications to .61 acres of each site and the hotel expansion are compatible with 
the overall Downtown Ocotillo Master Planned development. The proposal complies with applicable 
residential and commercial development standards. The proposal essentially involves two parts: 
replacing six lots at Valerio at Ocotillo development (approved as "Ocotillo Patio Villas" in 2018) with 
parking, and allowing a reduced setback from a new Residence Inn building. 

Six residential lots that were located on the southern end of Valerio at Ocotillo will be removed and 
replaced with additional parking for the new Residence Inn building.  The revised property line between 
the Valerio and Residence Inn developments will be closer to the remaining residential lots. A portion of 
the site where the six lots are removed will be landscaped and effectively increase common open space 
for the residential development. A pedestrian gate and pathway from this development to the hotel site 
is to be maintained per the original approval. To ensure the installation of the gate and pathway, staff 
recommends this element as a stipulation. 

The second component of the request is construction of one additional, four-story hotel building 
adjacent to the Valerio at Ocotillo development. The new Residence Inn building continues the Santa 
Barbara architecture style utilizing same color and materials as the existing hotel. Several waivers are 
requested to reduce parking, reduce the width of the dissimilar land use buffer along the north 
property line, and remove the parking lot diamond requirement. 

The parking reduction is supported as cross-parking/access easements exist throughout Downtown 
Ocotillo and allow hotel customers to park in the commercial retail lots.  The diamonds in the lot are 

Existing Proposed
General Plan Employment No change
Downtown Ocotillo Area Plan Multi-family Residential (.61 acres) Commercial (.61 acres)

Valerio at Ocotillo Existing/Approved Proposed
Site Area 5.2 acres 4.59 acres
# of Units 32 26
Density 6.15 du/acre 5.66 du/acre
Visitor parking 8 spaces 9 spaces



CHANDLER CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
Thursday, January 28, 2021 Page 14 of 32

supported. However, staff recommends that the landscape buffer be increased from five feet to ten feet 
to allow for sufficient space for plant growth and survival. The date palms existing in the parking lot 
should either remain or be replaced with date palms to continue the Downtown Ocotillo landscape 
theme.  Staff recommends these revisions as stipulations. Staff finds the proposal to be consistent with 
the goals of the General Plan and the Downtown Ocotillo Area Plan, as amended, and recommends 
approval subject to conditions.

Public / Neighborhood Notification
This request was noticed in accordance with the requirements of the Chandler Zoning Code. A 
Neighborhood Meeting sign was posted on the site. A virtual neighborhood meeting was held on 
November 19, 2020. Two residents registered for the event virtually and asked questions regarding 
traffic, parking, hotel amenities and construction timing. No opposition to the request was voiced. 
Positive feedback to the applicant was given by the attendees. Planning staff received one phone call 
asking about the number of total rooms and parking proposed for the hotel expansion. There is no 
known opposition to the request.

Planning and Zoning Commission Vote Report
Planning and Zoning Commission meeting January 6, 2021.
Motion to Approve.
In Favor:  6    Opposed: 0       Absent: 1  (Heumann)

Recommended Conditions of Approval
Rezoning
Planning and Zoning Commission recommends the City Council approve rezoning from Planned Area 
Development for Medium Density Residential (PAD/MF-1) to PAD for Commercial, subject to the 
following conditions:
1. Development shall be in substantial conformance with the Development Booklet, entitled "Valerio at 

Ocotillo and Residence Inn Expansion" and kept on file in the City of Chandler Planning Division, in 
File No. PLH20-0048, modified by such conditions included at the time the Booklet was approved by 
the Chandler City Council and/or as thereafter amended, modified or supplemented by the 
Chandler City Council.

2. The minimum building setback for the hotel building shall be no less than 30 ft. from the north 
property line.

Preliminary Development Plan
Planning and Zoning Commission recommends the City Council approve the Preliminary Development 
Plan, subject to the following conditions:
1. Development shall be in substantial conformance with the Development Booklet, entitled "Valerio at 

Ocotillo and Residence Inn Expansion" and kept on file in the City of Chandler Planning Division, in 
File No. PLH20-0048, modified by such conditions included at the time the Booklet was approved by 
the Chandler City Council and/or as thereafter amended, modified or supplemented by the 
Chandler City Council.

2. The site shall be maintained in a clean and orderly manner.
3. The landscaping in all open-spaces shall be maintained by the property owner or property owners' 

association, and shall be maintained at a level consistent with or better than at the time of planting. 
4. Landscaping plans (including for open spaces, rights-of-way, and street medians) and perimeter 

walls shall be approved by the Planning Administrator.



CHANDLER CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
Thursday, January 28, 2021 Page 15 of 32

5. A pedestrian pathway and pedestrian gate shall be installed along the common property line to 
connect the multi-family development and hotel development allowing for shared parking and 
pedestrian access for multi-family guests.

6. The landscape strip along the north property line of the hotel shall be no less than ten feet in width.
7. Existing date palms located within the parking lot shall be maintained or replaced with new date 

palms.
8. Preliminary Development Plan approval does not constitute Final Development Plan approval; 

compliance with the details required by all applicable codes and conditions of the City of Chandler 
and this Preliminary Development Plan shall apply.

12. Introduction and Tentative Adoption of Ordinance No. 4959, PLH20-0049 1st Pet Veterinary 
Centers
Move City Council introduce and tentatively adopt Ordinance No. 4959 approving PLH20-0049 1st Pet 
Veterinary Centers, Rezoning from Planned Area Development (PAD) to Planned Area Development 
Amended, adding veterinary clinic and like uses, located at 1257 W. Warner Road (West of the 
Southwest corner of Alma School and Warner Roads), subject to the conditions as recommended by the 
Planning and Zoning Commission.

BACKGROUND FROM COUNCIL MEMO:
Site was rezoned from Neighborhood Commercial (C-1) to Planned Commercial Office (PCO) in 1980. 
Site was rezoned again from Planned Commercial Office (PCO) to Planned Area Development (PAD) for 
PCO uses along with Preliminary Development Plan (PDP) for signage in 2016 to allow more flexibility 
with signage. The applicant currently operates a veterinary clinic on the adjacent parcel and seeks to 
expand to the subject site.

Surrounding Land Use Data
North Warner Rd., Single-family Residential 

- College Park
South Single-family residential - Comanche Court

East Veterinary Clinic (1st Pet Veterinary 
Centers)

West Single-family residential - Brooks Crossing

General Plan and Area Plan Designations:

P
r
oposed Development

Unit and Lot Size Lot size: 1.23 acres
Building A (existing): 5,349.5 Square feet
Building B (existing): 5,359.5 Square feet

Parking Required 72
Parking Provided 75

Review and Recommendation

Existing Proposed
General Plan Neighborhoods Neighborhoods



CHANDLER CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
Thursday, January 28, 2021 Page 16 of 32

In 1980, The Warner Professional Center (subject site) was originally envisioned as a 6-acre office center. 
The site did not fully develop, leaving only the 1.23 acres it occupies today. In 1994, the adjacent 1.3 
acre property to the east that was originally envisioned as an extension to the office center was rezoned 
from PCO to PAD for an Animal Hospital. Due to no construction after the approval, the property 
reverted back to PCO in 1995. The applicant returned in 1999 to rezone the adjacent 1.3 acre property 
to PAD for an Animal Hospital and subsequently developed a 7,500 square foot building. The remainder 
of the undeveloped office center to the south was rezoned for 12 single family residential lots in June of 
1997, now known as Comanche Court neighborhood.

Today, 1st Pet Veterinary Centers, the adjacent business on the 1.3 acre property with the 7,500 square 
foot animal hospital, is looking to expand its veterinary clinic. The subject property is currently zoned 
PAD for PCO uses, which does not allow a veterinary clinic by right. Staff finds a veterinary clinic to be 
compatible with the PCO uses and the veterinary clinic it is adjacent to. The site meets the parking 
standards for a veterinary clinic. Although the veterinary clinic currently only plans on using building 
"A", the full site would be able to support a veterinary clinic if it chooses to use building "B" in the 
future. The site is able to do so by providing 75 parking spots while both buildings together parked at 
150 square feet per parking space require only 72 parking spaces. For this reason, staff supports 
expanding the allowed uses to include veterinary clinics as well as medical and dental offices and similar 
uses that require the same amount of parking.  All equipment, storage of animals and services will be 
required to be wholly contained within the building. Any outdoor animal uses will require an additional 
use permit approval from City Council.

Planning staff finds the proposal to be consistent with the goals of the General Plan, and Planning and 
Zoning Commission recommends approval subject to conditions.

Public / Neighborhood Notification
This request was noticed in accordance with the requirements of the Chandler Land Use and Zoning 
Code. Due to COVID-19, the applicant hosted the required neighborhood meeting online as a 
video/phone conference on November 23, 2020 at 6:00pm. There were two participants at the 
neighborhood meeting. Both participants who live adjacent to the site indicated concerns regarding 
traffic noise, security lights being visible from the house, and the landscaping that was no longer there 
which led to the noise being more noticeable. In response, the veterinary clinic is looking into a solution 
for the light issue and landscaping. Another concern was parking on Comanche Drive. The clinic is 
hopeful that expanding the current veterinary facility general practice function to the new proposed 
location will help alleviate parking on Comanche Drive. The final concern was the location of the 
smoking area being near the adjoining wall of the properties and residents asked if it could be moved. 
Staff added conditions 2 - 5 to ensure missing landscaping is installed, exterior light sources are not 
visible, and the smoking area is moved away from residential properties.  The applicant is in agreement 
with all of the conditions. At this time, staff has not received any further questions or complaints 
regarding the request.

Planning and Zoning Commission Vote Report
Planning and Zoning Commission meeting January 6, 2021.
Motion to Approve.
In Favor: 6  Opposed: 0  Absent: 1 (Heumann)

Recommended Conditions of Approval



CHANDLER CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
Thursday, January 28, 2021 Page 17 of 32

Planning staff finds the request is in compliance with the General Plan and the Planning & Zoning 
Commission recommends approval of Rezoning from PAD to PAD Amended to allow PCO and 
Veterinary Clinic uses, subject to the following conditions:
1. The following uses shall be permitted:  uses permitted in the Planned Commercial Office District, 

Veterinary Clinic, medical offices, dental offices and like uses. 
2. Landscaping shall be in compliance with current Commercial Design Standards.
3. The landscaping in all open-spaces shall be maintained by the property owner or property owners' 

association, and shall be maintained at a level consistent with or better than at the time of planting.
4. All exterior light sources shall be averted away from adjacent residential properties.
5. The designated outdoor smoking area shall be setback a minimum of fifty (50) feet from adjacent 

residential properties.
6. Compliance with original conditions adopted by the City Council as Ordinance No. 4723 in case 

DVR16-0021, except as modified by condition herein.

13. Introduction of Ordinance No. 4958, Preliminary Development Plan and Preliminary Plat, PLH19-
0063/PLT19-0055 Elux at McQueen
Rezoning
Move City Council introduce and tentatively adopt Ordinance No. 4958 approving PLH19-0063 Elux 
at McQueen, Rezoning from AG-1 to PAD for multi-family residential located at the southeast corner 

of McQueen Road and the Loop 202 Santan Freeway, subject to the conditions as recommended by the 
Planning and Zoning Commission.

Preliminary Development Plan
Move City Council approve Preliminary Development Plan PLH19-0063 Elux at McQueen for site layout 

and building architecture located at the southeast corner of McQueen Road and the Loop 202
Santan Freeway, subject to the conditions as recommended by the Planning and Zoning Commission.
Preliminary Plat
Move City Council approve Preliminary Plat PLT19-0055 Elux at McQueen located at the southeast 
corner of McQueen Road and the Loop 202 Santan Freeway, subject to the condition recommended 

by the Planning and Zoning Commission.

BACKGROUND FROM COUNCIL MEMO:
Approximately 12.87 net acres. Subject site zoned AG-1 and undeveloped. General Plan designates the 
site as Neighborhoods and within a Growth Area. Chandler Airpark Area Plan (CAAP) designates the site 
as High Density Residential (HDR) 12.1-18 units per acre (du/ac). Project consist of 162 units totaling 
12.59 du/ac

Surrounding Land Use Data
North Loop 202 Santan Freeway, then 

single-family residential
South Single-family residential (6.7 du/ac)

East Multi-family (17.94 du/ac) West McQueen Road, then vacant agricultural

General Plan and Area Plan Designations:

Prop

Existing Proposed
General Plan Neighborhoods & Growth Area No change
Chandler Airpark Area Plan High Density Residential (HDR) 12.1-18 du/ac No change



CHANDLER CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
Thursday, January 28, 2021 Page 18 of 32

osed Development

Proposed
Land Use

∑ Multi-family dwelling units
∑ 162 Units
∑ 12.59 dwelling units per acre (du/ac)

Building
Design

Height
∑ 17' 6" single-story buildings
∑ 27' 6" two-story buildings; max 30 feet
∑ As measured to top of highest point of roof

Roof Design and Material ∑ Gable roofs and flat parapets
∑ Concrete roof tiles

Façade Materials
∑ Modern architectural style
∑ Stucco
∑ Tile cladding

Building Accents

∑ Four different sizes of tempered glazed windows
∑ Metal trim/fascia 
∑ Tile cladding
∑ Canopy at front-door and rear patios

Building Access ∑ Direct ground-floor walk-up access to each unit

Site Design & 
Open Space

∑ Detached and attached single-family-like rental units
∑ 108 1-story units
∑ 54 2-story units
∑ Private gated yards for each unit, 192-248 sq. ft. typ.
∑ Pool, ramadas, pickle ball court, indoor community gym, dog park, and 1-story 

club house
∑ 2.88 acres of shared open space
∑ Full signalized access along McQueen Road with secondary access from Senate 

Street to the east; the development will be gated

Parking
∑ 300 parking spaces required
∑ 327 parking spaces provided including private garages, covered and uncovered 

spaces, and guest parking

Review and Recommendation
Planning staff finds the proposal is consistent with the General Plan and more specifically consistent 
with the 1998 Chandler Airpark Area Plan (CAAP) designation of High-Density Residential. Densities up 
to 18 dwelling units per acre can be considered for properties adjacent to arterial streets, freeways, 
and/or employment corridors. The subject site abuts the Loop 202 Santan freeway and existing multi-
family to the east. The proposed single unit detached and attached units offer a transition between low-
medium density single-family residential to the south and the freeway to the north while aligning with 
the vision of the CAAP. Although the proposal is for multi-family residential, its design and function are 
similar to single-family residential.

Staff finds the proposal to be consistent with the goals of the General Plan and the CAAP and 
recommends approval subject to conditions.



CHANDLER CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
Thursday, January 28, 2021 Page 19 of 32

Economic Analysis 
An economic and fiscal impact analysis was conducted based on project details provided by the 
applicant and staff assumptions. The analysis determined the project will generate a positive net fiscal 
impact for the City. Net income to the City resulting from the project is estimated at approximately 
$843,336 over 10 years. This total includes revenues from property taxes, building permit and plan 
review fees, transaction privilege tax on construction, real property rental tax, state shared revenues, 
and local spending by residents.

Traffic Analysis
The applicant for the proposed development has worked with City staff regarding access to the site via 
McQueen Road. As surrounding properties developed to the east and south, traffic circulation was 
considered. Senate Street, a public street, was constructed during the development of the Horizon 
subdivision to the south, allowing full access to the southeast corner of the subject site. The applicant 
provided a Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) to the City's Transportation Engineer detailing traffic patterns of 
the proposed residential. The counts returning to the site via the recommended route (Senate Street) 
raised concerns about residents making unprotected u-turns at Germann Road or the entry to the 
Horizon subdivision to access what was previously planned to be a right-in/right-out only access on 
McQueen Road.  The solution for this development and the larger area, including future office uses 
west of McQueen Road, is signalizing Armstrong Way at McQueen Road.  As such, a traffic signal 
allowing full movement on McQueen Road is proposed and supported by staff in order to reduce traffic 
on Senate Street and to facilitate traffic circulation for future industrial properties on the west side of 
McQueen Road.  The TIA has been reviewed and accepted by the City's Transportation Engineer.

The proposal exceeds the parking requirements of the City Zoning Code by providing twenty-seven 
additional spaces. Further, the site layout does not include any tandem parking spaces. Tandem parking 
spaces may cause a heavier demand to be placed on guest parking spaces by the residents. Avoiding 
the use of tandem parking spaces further ensures that the number of provided spaces will adequately 
accommodate the proposed units.

Public / Neighborhood Notification
This request was noticed in accordance with the requirements of the Chandler Land Use and Zoning 
Code. To comply with CDC social distancing guidelines, the applicant hosted a digital neighborhood 
meeting via Zoom on September 30, 2020. Five (5) households attended the virtual meeting and had 
general questions about the proposal and buffer between the multi-family and the existing subdivision 
to the south. No opposition was expressed. Planning staff has received one phone call from a Horizon 
resident, whose home fronts Senate Street, with traffic concerns from the proposed development. Staff 
stated Senate Street was built for access to the subject site and a majority of proposed traffic from the 
new development will use the McQueen Road entry. As of writing this memo, Planning staff has not 
received any opposition regarding the request.

Airport Commission Conflict Evaluation
Airport Commission meeting November 18, 2020.
Motion to find conflict with existing or planned airport operations.
In Favor: 5 Opposed: 0 Absent: 2 (Siegel, Kruse)  



CHANDLER CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
Thursday, January 28, 2021 Page 20 of 32

The Airport Commission reviewed the request in accordance with the Airport Conflicts Evaluation 
Process. The Airport Planning Administrator has issued a conflicts evaluation report indicating that the 
Airport Commission determined that the proposed development does constitute a conflict with existing 
or planned airport operations. A copy of the Airport Planning Administrator's report detailing the 
Airport Commission's findings is attached to this memo. The Airport Commission's recommended 
mitigation measures to address the operational conflict are included as stipulations of the rezoning.

Planning and Zoning Commission Vote Report
Planning and Zoning Commission meeting January 6, 2020.
Motion to Approve.
In Favor: 6 Opposed: 0 Absent: 1 (Heumann)

Recommended Conditions of Approval
Rezoning
Planning and Zoning Commission recommends the City Council approve rezoning from AG-1 to PAD 
multi-family residential, subject to the following conditions:

1. Development shall be in substantial conformance with the Development Booklet, entitled "Elux at 
McQueen" and kept on file in the City of Chandler Planning Division, in File No. PLH19-0063, 
modified by such conditions included at the time the Booklet was approved by the Chandler City 
Council and/or as thereafter amended, modified or supplemented by the Chandler City Council.

2. The multi-family apartment manager shall display, in a conspicuous place within the rental office, a 
map illustrating the location of the development Elux at McQueen in the context of the Chandler 
Airpark Area Plan. The map shall identify the Airport Impact Overlay District, the noise contours and 
over flight patterns as depicted in Exhibit 6A in the FAR Part 150 Noise Compatibility Study 
document as adopted by Chandler City Council (Resolution No. 2590, 11-5-98), and the noise 
contours as identified in the Chandler Airpark Area Plan. Such map or aerial photo shall be a 
minimum size of 24" x 36". Compliance with this condition shall be demonstrated by the property 
owner or multifamily apartment manager submitting to the Zoning Administrator of a signed 
affidavit and photograph that acknowledges such map is on display prior to beginning any rental 
activity.

3. Prior to execution of any lease, prospective apartment tenants shall be given written disclosure in 
their lease and in a separately signed disclosure statement acknowledging that this apartment 
community is located proximate to the Chandler Municipal Airport that includes a heliport, aircraft 
engine testing facility, and an aircraft storage facility, that an avigational easement exists on the 
property, the property lies within the Chandler Municipal Airport Impact Overlay District, and that 
the property is subject to aircraft noise and over flight activity. The requirement for such disclosure 
shall be confirmed in an avigation notice covenant that runs with the land and is recorded with the 
Maricopa County Recorder prior to issuance of the first building permit for this development.

4. The developer shall provide the city with an avigational easement over the subject property in 
accordance with Section 3004 of the City of Chandler Zoning Code.

5. Prior to building permit issuance for any structures the developer shall provide a DETERMINATION 
OF NO HAZARD TO AVIATION approval as issued by the FAA after filing an FAA Form 7460, Notice 
of Proposed Construction or Alteration.

6. The Final Plat shall contain the following statement on the cover sheet in a prominent location and 
in large text: "This property is located within the Chandler Municipal Airport Impact Overlay District 



CHANDLER CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
Thursday, January 28, 2021 Page 21 of 32

and is subject to aircraft noise and frequent over flight activity, and is encumbered by an avigational 
easement to the City of Chandler."

7. All leases at Elux at McQueen shall provide that all questions, concerns, or complaints any tenant 
may have about the Chandler Municipal Airport or the operation of aircraft landing at, taking off 
from, or operating at or on Chandler Municipal Airport shall be directed solely to the manager of 
Elux at McQueen development and not to the Chandler Municipal Airport, the City of Chandler, the
FAA, any aircraft owner, or any pilot. All leases shall also provide that it shall be within the sole and 
absolute discretion of the manager of Elux at McQueen (and not the tenant) to determine (after the 
manager's due consideration of all airport related acknowledgments and disclosures that are 
required by the Zoning Stipulations and consideration of all information known to Elux at 
McQueen's Manager) whether or not, when, and how to communicate any tenants question, 
concern, or complain to the manager of the Chandler Municipal Airport.

8. All apartment buildings shall be designed and built to achieve an interior noise level not to exceed 
45 decibels (Ldn) from aircraft noise.  A professional acoustical consultant, architect or engineer 
shall certify that the project's construction plans are in conformance with this condition.

9. In the event the multi-family residential is platted to allow unit ownership, prior to the time of 
making any lot reservations or subsequent sales agreements, the 
subdivider/homebuilder/developer shall provide a written disclosure statement, for the signature of 
each buyer, acknowledging that this subdivision lies within the Chandler Municipal Airport Impact 
Overlay District, as specified in the Chandler Zoning Code.  The disclosure statement shall 
acknowledge the proximity of this subdivision to the Chandler Airport and that an avigational 
easement exists and/or is required on the property, and further, shall acknowledge that the property 
is subject to aircraft noise and overflight activity and other externalities.  This document signed by 
the homebuyer shall be recorded with Maricopa County Recorder's Office upon sale of the property. 
The "Public Subdivision Report", "Purchase Contracts", CC&R's, and the individual lot/unit property 
deeds shall include a disclosure statement outlining that the site is adjacent to or nearby an existing 
municipal airport, and the disclosure shall state that such uses are legal and should be expected to 
continue indefinitely. This responsibility for notice rests with the subdivider/homebuilder/developer 
and shall not be construed as an absolute guarantee by the City of Chandler for receiving such 
notice.

10. Multi-family dwelling units shall be permitted up to a maximum density of 12.6 dwelling units per 
acre.

11. The developer shall be responsible for the design and installation of a traffic signal at the 
intersection of McQueen Road and Armstrong Way during the initial phase of construction.

12. Completion of the construction of all required off-site street improvements including but not 
limited to paving, landscaping, curb, gutter and sidewalks, median improvements and street lighting 
to achieve conformance with City codes, standard details, and design manuals.

13. The developer shall be required to install landscaping in the arterial street median(s) adjoining this 
project. In the event that the landscaping already exists within such median(s) the developer shall be 
required to upgrade such landscaping to meet current City Standards. 

14. Right-of-way dedications to achieve full half-widths, including turn lanes and deceleration lanes, per 
the standards of the Chandler Transportation Plan.

15. Minimum setbacks shall be as provided below and further detailed in the development booklet:

Property Line Location    Minimum Building Setback
McQueen Road    50'
North Property Line     10'



CHANDLER CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
Thursday, January 28, 2021 Page 22 of 32

East Property Line    10'
South Property Line    35'

Preliminary Development Plan
Planning and Zoning Commission recommends City Council approve the Preliminary Development Plan, 
subject to the following conditions:
1. Development shall be in substantial conformance with the Development Booklet, entitled, "Elux at 

McQueen" and kept on file in the City of Chandler Planning Division, in File No. PLH19-0063, 
modified by such conditions included at the time the Booklet was approved by the Chandler City 
Council and/or as thereafter amended, modified or supplemented by Chandler City Council. 

2. Landscaping plans (including for open spaces, retention, rights-of-way, and street medians) shall be 
approved by the Planning Administrator. 

3. All mechanical equipment, including HVAC, utility meters, etc. shall be screened from view by 
material(s) that are architecturally integrated and consistent with the proposed buildings. 

4. Signage shall substantially be as shown within the submitted Development Booklet and shall follow 
all applicable criteria of the City of Chandler Sign Code. 

5. Preliminary Development Plan approval does not constitute Final Development Plan approval; 
compliance with the details required by all applicable codes and conditions of the City of Chandler 
and this Preliminary Development Plan shall apply.

6. The site shall be maintained in a clean and orderly manner. 
7. The landscaping in all open-spaces shall be maintained by the property owner or property owners' 

association, and shall be maintained at a level consistent with or better than at the time of planting.  
8. The landscaping in all rights-of-way shall be maintained by the adjacent property owner or property 

owners' association.
9. Roadway-style signs shall be installed at multiple locations as depicted in the development booklet 

that identify the presence of low flying aircraft.

Preliminary Plat
Planning and Zoning Commission recommends the City Council approve the Preliminary Plat, subject to 
the following condition:
1. Approval by the City Engineer and Planning Administrator with regard to the details of all submittals 

required by code or condition.

14. Preliminary Plat, PLT20-0033 Queen Creek Commerce Center
Move City Council approve Preliminary Plat PLT20-0033 Queen Creek Commerce Center located at 
the southwest corner of Queen Creek Road and Hamilton Street, as recommended by Planning and 

Zoning Commission.

BACKGROUND FROM COUNCIL MEMO:
Subject Site 33.64 acres. Zoned Planned Area Development District (PAD) for 
office/warehouse/industrial; 2013. Development Services staff are presently reviewing building plans for 
two flex industrial buildings on the site. The preliminary plat outlines the lots, tracts, easements, and 
rights-of-way to be conveyed or dedicated as part of developing the site in substantial conformance 
with the Council-approved rezoning. The zoning was approved by the City Council on November 7, 
2013.

Planning and Zoning Commission Vote Report



CHANDLER CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
Thursday, January 28, 2021 Page 23 of 32

Planning and Zoning Commission meeting January 6, 2020.
Motion to Approve.
In Favor: 6 Opposed: 0 Absent: 1 (Heumann)

Recommended Conditions of Approval
1. Approval by the City Engineer and Planning Administrator with regard to the details of all 

submittals required by code or condition.

15. Purchase of Cisco Smartnet
Move City Council approve the utilization of 1GPA's Contract No. 16-11PV-05, for the purchase of 
Cisco Smartnet, from NTT America Solutions, Inc., in the amount of $123,971.

BACKGROUND FROM COUNCIL MEMO:
The City of Chandler utilizes Cisco infrastructure to support various networking needs throughout every 
department within the City.  In order to keep this infrastructure under support, IT recommends the 
purchase of Cisco SmartNet maintenance and support extensions in accordance with lifecycle 
management best practices.  This purchase will ensure that critical infrastructure remains under support 
for both physical hardware issues and available software and security updates as needed during its 
lifecycle.

16. Agreement No. IT9-208-4034, Amendment No. 1, with CCG Systems, Inc., dba FASTER Asset 
Solutions for the Fleet Management System
Move that City Council approve Agreement No. IT9-208-4034, Amendment No.1, with CCG Systems 
Inc., dba FASTER Asset Solutions, for the fleet management system, in the amount of $93,352, for 
the period of one year, beginning September 30, 2020, through September 29, 2021.

BACKGROUND FROM COUNCIL MEMO:
In FY 19/20, City Council approved an agreement with CCG Systems Inc., dba FASTER Asset Solutions, 
for a comprehensive fleet management solution. Currently, the project implementation is underway 
with a target completion date in 2021. 

The fleet management solution will digitally transform existing business operations for managing the 
City's fleet and equipment assets.  The FASTER comprehensive fleet management system meets Fleet 
Services needs for fleet management activities including, but not limited to: maintenance, operations, 
fuel, analytics, diagnostics, inventory parts and asset management to streamline operational workflows 
and improve overall efficiency and management of the City-wide fleet, inventory, equipment, and fuel 
costs. This purchase is for the annual renewal for the FASTER fleet management system support and 
maintenance.

17. Claims Report for the Quarter Ending December 31, 2020
Move to accept the claims report for the quarter ending December 31, 2020, which is on file in the 
City Clerk�s office.

BACKGROUND FROM COUNCIL MEMO:
The claims report represents all Accounts Payable payments for the quarter ending December 31, 2020, 
and is attached and on file in the City Clerk's office per Section 3-6 of the City Code: The City 



CHANDLER CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
Thursday, January 28, 2021 Page 24 of 32

Manager/designee shall advise the City Council of all claims and demands paid, together with the name 
of the vendors or payees, dates paid and amounts.

18. New License Series 10, Beer and Wine Store Liquor License application, for Quiktrip Corporation, 
dba Quiktrip #450
Move for recommendation to the State Department of Liquor Licenses and Control for approval of 
the State Liquor Job No. 126582, a Series 10, Beer and Wine Store, for Perry Charles Huellmantel, 
Agent, Quiktrip Corporation, dba Quiktrip #450, located at 175 N. McQueen Road, and approval of 
the City of Chandler, Series 10, Beer and Wine Store Liquor License No. 300221 L10.

BACKGROUND FROM COUNCIL MEMO:
The following application for a liquor license was posted for hearing on January 28, 2021. The Police 
Department reports no objections to the issuance of this license, and no written protests pursuant to 
A.R.S. 4-201(B) have been received. With a Series 10, Beer and Wine Store Liquor License, the business 
may sell beer and wine only for off-premise consumption.

19. License Series 10, Beer and Wine Store Liquor License application, for MRK Family LLC, dba 7- Eleven 
#27215E

Move for recommendation to the State Department of Liquor Licenses and Control for approval of 
the State Liquor Job no.125538, Series 10, Beer and Wine Store Liquor License, for Myo Aung 
Yacoob, Agent, MRK Family LLC, dba 7-Eleven #27215E, located at 2025 W. Warner Road, and 
approval of the City of Chandler Series 10, Beer and Wine Store Liquor License No. 300274 L10.

BACKGROUND FROM COUNCIL MEMO:
This application for a liquor license was posted for hearing on January 28, 2021. The Police Department 
reports no objections to the issuance of this license, and no written protests pursuant to A.R.S. 4-201(B) 
have been received. With a Series 10, Beer and Wine Store Liquor License, the business may sell beer 
and wine only for off-premise consumption.

20. New License Series 12, Restaurant Liquor License application, for AZPG Ray LLC, dba AZ Pho and 
Grill
Move for recommendation to the State Department of Liquor Licenses and Control for approval of 
the State Liquor Job No. 128161, a Series 12, Restaurant Liquor License, for Thanh Trang Nguyen, 
Agent, AZPG Ray LLC, dba AZ Pho and Grill, located at 885 N. 54th Street, Suite 5, and approval of 
the City of Chandler, Series 12, Restaurant Liquor License No. 300264 L12.

BACKGROUND FROM COUNCIL MEMO:
The following application for a liquor license was posted for hearing on January 28, 2021. The Police 
Department reports no objections to the issuance of this license, and no written protests pursuant to 
A.R.S. 4-201(B) have been received. With a Series 12, Restaurant Liquor License, the business may sell all 
liquors for on-premise consumption only, with a minimum of 40% of the gross receipts from the sale of 
food.

21. Agreement No. PD8-968-3913, Amendment No. 2, with ACT Towing, LLC, dba All City Towing, for 
Police Towing
Move City Council approve Agreement No. PD8-968-3913, Amendment No. 2, with ACT Towing dba 
All City Towing, for police towing, for the period of January 1, 2021, through December 31, 2022.



CHANDLER CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
Thursday, January 28, 2021 Page 25 of 32

BACKGROUND FROM COUNCIL MEMO:
In December 1995, the City began utilizing a contract for towing services.  Contract towing service has 
proven to be a successful alternative to the previous rotation program.  Some benefits provided by 
contract service include lower cost to the citizens, fewer customer complaints, and a streamlined 
workload for the Police Department.  The Police Department utilizes the contract for vehicle towing, 
storage, and impounding services including removal of wrecked vehicles, vehicles abandoned on city 
streets, vehicles left unattended in the way of traffic, vehicles towed for evidentiary purposes, vehicles 
impounded, and vehicles towed due to an arrested driver.

22. Agreement No. PW0-745-4183, Amendment No. 1, with M.R. Tanner Development and Construction, 
Inc., for Street Repaving, Surface Seals, and Repair Services

Move City Council approve Agreement No. PW0-745-4183, Amendment No. 1, with M.R. Tanner 
Development and Construction, Inc., for street repaving, surface seals, and repair services, in an 
amount not to exceed $7,600,000, for a one-year term, May 1, 2021, through April 30, 2022.

BACKGROUND FROM COUNCIL MEMO:
The City's Transportation Division has an established pavement management restoration and repaving 
program that addresses the preventative maintenance and rehabilitation needs for the City-maintained 
roadway sections. Left untreated, the life expectancy of a newly constructed or re-paved roadway is 
between 20 and 30 years and is dependent upon a variety of factors, including quality of construction, 
traffic loads, types of traffic, weather, oxidation, and exposure to sun. The Transportation Division's 
pavement management restoration and repaving program includes asphalt repaving, surface seals, and 
repair work on roadway sections that are in need of various preventative maintenance based on a 
recent roadway assessment of the City's Pavement Quality Index. This agreement will be used to 
rehabilitate an estimated 101 lane miles of roadway in Chandler.

23. Purchase of Hot Mix Asphalt Materials
Move City Council approve the purchase of hot mix asphalt materials from Vulcan Materials 
Company, utilizing City of Tempe Contract No. T19-143-01, in an amount not to exceed $150,000.

BACKGROUND FROM COUNCIL MEMO:
The Streets Division is responsible for maintenance of the City's street and alley infrastructure. Current 
maintenance programs include milling and patching of asphalt, repair and replacement of curb and 
gutter, sidewalk repair, and alley grading. Hot mix asphalt material is used in the repair and 
maintenance of City streets and is an essential material to have readily available. The Streets Division 
will utilize this contract to purchase hot mix asphalt material to repair street defects and condition 
deficiencies.

24. Introduction of Ordinance No. 4953 Granting an Irrigation Easement to Salt River Project Agricultural 
Improvement and Power District

Move City Council introduce and tentatively adopt Ordinance No. 4953 granting an irrigation 
easement to Salt River Project Agricultural Improvement and Power District at the northwest corner 

of Arizona Avenue and Queen Creek Road, at no cost, to formalize an existing United States Government 
undefined irrigation easement at this location.

BACKGROUND FROM COUNCIL MEMO:



CHANDLER CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
Thursday, January 28, 2021 Page 26 of 32

SRP, on behalf of the United States of America (USA), is requesting the City grant an irrigation easement 
over the west side of Arizona Avenue at the northwest corner of Arizona Avenue and Queen Creek 
Road. The USA has an existing easement in this area that was granted on August 29, 1923, by Quit 
Claim Deed. However, the width of the easement was not defined at the time. SRP has requested the 
City grant an irrigation easement to formalize the size of the previously granted easement. The 
easement will be granted to SRP at no cost. The new easement will be twenty feet wide and include a 
total area of approximately 12,225 square feet. Staff has reviewed and approved the easement and legal 
description for the requested easement.

25. Introduction of Ordinance No. 4956 Granting Three (3) Irrigation Easements to Roosevelt Water 
Conservation District
Move City Council introduce and tentatively adopt Ordinance No. 4956 granting three (3) irrigation 
easements to the Roosevelt Water Conservation District (RWCD) within portions of Chandler 
Heights Road on either side of the Cooper Road intersection, at no cost, to accommodate the Cooper 

Road Improvement Project, from Alamosa Drive to Riggs Road.

BACKGROUND FROM COUNCIL MEMO:
To accommodate the construction of the City's Cooper Road Improvement Project from Alamosa Drive 
to Riggs Road, the City must grant three (3) irrigation easements to the Roosevelt Water Conservation 
District so that RWCD facilities can cross Chandler Heights Road at three (3) locations on either side of 
Cooper Road. Granting the easements to RWCD would be at no cost as they are required by a City of 
Chandler project. Staff has reviewed and approved the easement and legal description for the 
requested easement.

26. Purchase of an XBroom Street Sweeper
Move City Council approve the purchase of an XBroom Street Sweeper from Nescon, LLC, utilizing 
Maricopa County Contract No. 190170-S, in the amount of $293,185.26.

BACKGROUND FROM COUNCIL MEMO:
The City's Transportation Division is responsible for street sweeping 2,081 lane miles of City-owned 
residential and arterial roadways. Street sweeping provides cleanup when there is a spill in the roadway, 
traffic accident, or special event to maintain the cleanliness of the streets and help reduce particulate 
matter (PM-10) in the region's air quality. This effort supports effective mobility and a healthy, 
attractive, and safe community. The replacement sweeper will meet the City's obligations in regard to 
Maricopa County PM-10 air quality measures. The City's Fleet Advisory Committee has recommended 
replacement of this street sweeper due to its age, maintenance history, and projected cost to operate. 
Replacement cost for this street sweeper is included in the FY 2020/2021 capital improvement budget.

27. Introduction of Ordinance No. 4948 Adopting Updated Versions of Previously Adopted Public Works 
Design and Construction Standards

Move City Council introduce and tentatively adopt Ordinance No. 4948 adopting updated versions 
of previously adopted Public Works design and construction standards and amending Chapter 43, 
Section 43-5, Subsections 43-4.5.A, 43-4.5.B, 43-4.5.C, 43-4.5.D, 43-4.5.E, 43-4.5.G, and 43-4.5.I of 
the Code of the City of Chandler, relating to the adoption of these updated design and construction 

standards.

BACKGROUND FROM COUNCIL MEMO:



CHANDLER CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
Thursday, January 28, 2021 Page 27 of 32

The City maintains and publishes Engineering Standard Details and Specifications and Technical Design 
Manuals (TDM), which have been created to guide developers and City staff on the design and 
construction of the City's infrastructure.  These documents are adopted by the City Council and updated 
on a regular basis, with the most recent update occurring in January 2020. In addition to various "clean 
up" revisions and clarifications, this update includes revised City fiber optic communication cable and 
conduit standards, revisions to the Traffic Barricade Manual for a new on-line application submittal 
process, and continued updates for Americans with Disabilities Act compliance.

The Engineering Design Standards Committee, with representation from multiple City departments, 
reviews proposed changes to the design standards and makes recommendations for annual updates.  
This process also involves reviewing the Maricopa Association of Governments (MAG) Specifications 
and Standards and their annually-proposed revisions to determine if City standards could be removed 
in favor of MAG standards. A key goal of this process is simplification and uniformity of codes across 
the region for contractors and developers who do business in multiple jurisdictions, while maintaining 
Chandler's high safety and aesthetic standards. This Ordinance would amend the following design 
standards:

January 2020 Standard Details and Specifications Manual
January 2020 Technical Design Manual No. 1 & 2, Water & Wastewater System Design
January 2020 Technical Design Manual No. 3, Drainage Policies and Standards
January 2020 Technical Design Manual No. 4, Street Access and Design Control
January 2020 Technical Design Manual No. 5, Traffic Signal Design
January 2016 Technical Design Manual No. 7, Traffic Barricade Design
Adopt the 2021 revisions to the MAG Uniform Standard Specifications and Details with certain 
modifications

The revisions were provided to representatives of the development industry, including the Home 
Builders Association of Central Arizona (HBACA), the Arizona Multihousing Association (AMA), utility 
providers, and engineering design consultants.  Comments received were incorporated into these 
revisions, where appropriate. The complete set of current and revised Standard Details and 
Specifications is available for review on the City Unified Development Manual (UDM) website and on file 
with the City Clerk.  A detailed summary of the changes is also attached.

BRIEFING:

28. Councilmember Orlando Requests a Briefing on COVID-19 Vaccinations 

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO thanked Chief Dwiggins and the Fire Department for all they have done to keep 
the community safe during the COVID-19 pandemic. 

THOMAS DWIGGINS, Fire Chief, presented the following Power Point presentation. 

∑ Vaccine Distribution Phases
o 1A

ß Healthcare Workers
ß EMS Workers
ß Long-term Care Faciliites



CHANDLER CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
Thursday, January 28, 2021 Page 28 of 32

o 1B
ß Education and Childcare Providers
ß Law Enforcement
ß Age 75 and Older
ß Adults in Congregate Settings
ß Other Essential Workers

o 1C
ß Age 65 and Older
ß Adults with High Risk Medical Conditions

o 2
ß Any Remaining Phase 1 Populations
ß Additional High Risk Populations
ß General Populations

o 3
ß Any Remaining Phase 1 or 2 Populations
ß General Population

∑ Phase Populations
o 1A

ß 376,216 Healthcare, EMS, Skilled Nursing Facilities, Assisted Living
o 1B

ß 1,325,357 Education, Law Enforcement, Adults 75+, Food Occupations, Transportation, 
State and Local Government, Other Essential Workers

o 1C
ß 3,543,088 Adults with Underlying Medical Conditions, Adults 65+

∑ Point of Dispensary Locations
o C �County

ß 1826 W. McDowell Phoenix
ß 14300 W. Granite Valley Dr. Sun City of Chandler
ß 2500 W. Utopia Phoenix
ß 2626 E. Pecos Chandler
ß 13677 W. McDowell Goodyear

o S �State
ß State Farm Stadium Glendale
ß Phoenix Municipal Stadium Phoenix 

∑ Pharmacy Vaccination Sites
o For 75 years and Older Only

ß Albertson�s 4970 S. Alma School Chandler
ß Albertson�s 325 S. Power Mesa
ß Safeway 23565 N. Scottsdale Scottsdale
ß Safeway 3132 E. Camelback Phoenix
ß Safeway 340 E. McDowell Phoenix
ß Safeway 14175 W. Indian School Goodyear

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO asked if there is a supply issue that is limiting the number of locations that have 
the vaccine. 



CHANDLER CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
Thursday, January 28, 2021 Page 29 of 32

CHIEF DWIGGINS said that he picked the closest locations, but there are more. The County is receiving 169,000 
vaccines per week. The County and the State cannot guarantee how many vaccines they can get so the 
appointments are only open to book one to two weeks at a time. Chief Dwiggins said they had put in a request 
for 300,000 to the federal government, however it was denied. There are new sites coming available, but the 
supply is the same. 

COUNCILMEMBER ELLIS asked if the 169,000 per week was total for the first and second shot or if it was 
169,000 of each. 

CHIEF DWIGGINS said that is the total for both and total across manufacturers. 

COUNCILMEMBER LOPEZ asked if Pfizer was two shots and Moderna was one. 

CHIEF DWIGGINS said they are both two shots. Moderna is much easier to store than the Pfizer one. The Pfizer 
shot has a 21 day window until the second shot and Moderna is 28 days. The first injection gives 50% immunity 
and then once the booster is given which gives 96% immunity. He said it does not have to be right on the 21 or 
28 day and that there is a bit of a window to get the second shot, but the focus is ensuring those who had the 
first shot are able to get the second. 

COUNCILMEMBER LOPEZ asked when group 1C would open.

CHIEF DWIGGINS said they would move on after a while of the window being open, but the vaccine would still 
be open for 1A and 1B. 

COUNCILMEMBER ELLIS said people are concerned because of the side effects of the shot and asked what they 
are seeing. 

CHIEF DWIGGINS said they have staff on site to provide a medical evaluation and treat any allergic reactions. 
Chief Dwiggins said they are seeing localized pain from the shot. They have not yet seen a full body systemic 
response and nothing has happened where the physicians at the County and hospitals have told them to watch 
for certain signs or symptoms. 

COUNCILMEMBER HARRIS asked if after someone is vaccinated twice should they still wear masks and if they 
could still get COVID-19. 

CHIEF DWIGGINS said he did not know, and those decisions would come. Chief Dwiggins said he did not know 
what the County would determine, but they are still recommending masks. It is possible to get the virus and be 
asymptomatic even after having the vaccine so the question is still out there as to whether or not someone 
would still shed the virus. 

COUNCILMEMBER HARRIS asked if data is being tracked to see how many people have been vaccinated and if 
shots would be set aside for the elderly population.

CHIEF DWIGGINS said when someone receives the vaccine there are data points that are captured and it is 
being sent to the State. There has been talk about releasing a dashboard for the vaccine, but it has not been 
created yet. Chief Dwiggins said it would be helpful to see age groups and the percentage of the population 
vaccinated by zip code, but that information is not currently available. Chief Dwiggins said they are working 



CHANDLER CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
Thursday, January 28, 2021 Page 30 of 32

with other City departments to find ways to help those who may be unable to get to the vaccinate sites. Chief 
Dwiggins said they have identified it is an issue, but they are still in discussion with the County.

VICE MAYOR STEWART said the more information they could provide the community the safer everyone feels 
and said Chief Dwiggins has done a great job communicating what is happening.  

CHIEF DWIGGINS continued the Power Point presentation. 
∑ Vaccine Registration Websites

o State 
ß Podvaccine.azdhs.gov
ß Help Line 602-542-1000

o County
ß Maricopa.gov/5659/Phase-1B

o Pharmacy
ß Mhealthcheckin.com

∑ City Support
o Southeast Dignity POD
o CUSD Immunization Clinic
o City of Chandler Immunization Clinic
o Vaccine Communication 

∑ City of Chandler Vaccination Statistics
o 150 COC Employees Vaccinated at SE POD
o 327 COC Employees Vaccinated by CFD
o 477 Total COC Employees Vaccinated

COUNCILMEMBER LOPEZ thanked Chief Dwiggins and Team Chandler for all of their work. 

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO thanked the Police Department as well. Councilmember Orlando appreciated all 
the public safety workers do. 

INFORMATIONAL:

29. Regular Meeting Minutes of the November 18, 2020, Planning and Zoning Commission 

30. Study Session Minutes of the November 18, 2020, Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting  

UNSCHEDULED PUBLIC APPEARANCES 
None. 

CURRENT EVENTS 

1. Mayor's Announcements

VICE MAYOR STEWART welcomed Councilmember Ellis and Councilmember Harris and looked forward to what 
they would do together as a Council. Vice Mayor Stewart said there was COVID-19 information on the City�s 
website and more information would be available regarding the vaccine. Vice Mayor Stewart encouraged 
everyone to continue to stay safe. 



CHANDLER CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
Thursday, January 28, 2021 Page 31 of 32

2. Council's Announcements

COUNCILMEMBER HARRIS announced Chandler High School football won the State Championship and 
Hamilton High School was the runner up. Councilmember Harris said he would be donating a bible from the 
Council inauguration on January 14, 2021, since it was a historical day, especially having the first black woman 
on Council. 

COUNCILMEMBER HARRIS said his friend was 32 years old and passed away from COVID-19 in less than 7 
days. Councilmember Harris shared comments from his family: Daniel�s dream was his treasure and the love he 
shared cannot be measured. Daniel was a visionary, intelligent, beautiful expression. 

COUNCILMEMBER LOPEZ said the International Film Festival was held throughout the City and there were 30 
countries that were represented. The feature film winner was Angie: Lost Girls which was a film to raise 
awareness regarding sex trafficking. Councilmember Lopez said a night of hope would be held virtually on 
Sunday. 

COUNCILMEMBER ROE said the Chandler Arts Commission is looking for a neighborhood that would like to 
incorporate public art within their neighborhood. Some projects may be a mural, seating, and utility box wraps. 

COUNCILMEMBER ELLIS said February is Black History Month and encouraged those to participate throughout 
the month. Councilmember Ellis encouraged residents to visit the City�s website to see all events that would be 
held. 

COUNCILMEMBER ELLIS announced the Love Chandler challenge to enter a drawing through social media for 
visiting Chandler parks. 

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO wished the Mayor a quick recovery. 

3. City Manager's Announcements

None. 

ADJOURNMENT:  The meeting was adjourned at 7:06 p.m.

ATTEST:  __________________________ ______________________________
City Clerk                                                   Mayor

Approval Date of Minutes:  February 11, 2021

CERTIFICATION



CHANDLER CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
Thursday, January 28, 2021 Page 32 of 32

I hereby certify that the foregoing minutes are a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Regular Meeting 
of the City Council of Chandler, Arizona, held on the 28th day of January, 2021. I further certify that the 
meeting was duly called and held and that a quorum was present.

DATED this _______ day of February, 2021.

___________________________
City Clerk



ITEM  2 

City Council Memorandum      Development Services  Memo No. DS21-103
       

Date: February 8, 2021
To: Mayor  and Council
Thru: Marsha Reed, City Manager

Joshua H. Wright, Assistant City Manager
Derek D. Horn, Development Services Director
Louis Kneip, Development Engineering Manager
Ryan Peters, Governmental Relations & Policy Manager

From: Dennis Aust, Development Project Administrator
Subject: Adoption of Resolution No. 5434, authorizing a wireless license agreement between the City of

Chandler and CCTMO for the existing Monopalm Tower at Police Property and Evidence Yard.

Proposed Motion:
Move to approve Resolution No. 5434, authorizing the Mayor to execute the license agreement between the City
of Chandler and T-Mobile West Tower, LLC, by and through CCTMO, LLC, for the existing Monopalm macro cell
site currently located at the Police Property and Evidence Yard at 576 W. Pecos Road, and authorizing the City
Manager or designee to execute other documents as needed to give effect to the agreement.

Background:
Chapter 46 of the Chandler City Code sets forth the City’s requirements for encroachment permits for use of the
City’s rights-of-way and public property, as well as the licensing requirements for telecommunications
companies. On November 24, 2003, the City Council granted Voice Stream PCS III Corporation, a subsidiary of
T-Mobile USA, Inc., a use agreement and encroachment permit to house facilities to provide wireless
telecommunication services at the City’s Police Property and Evidence Yard.

The Council consented to the transfer of the agreement to T-Mobile USA, Inc., on October 26, 2006,
via Resolution No. 4013 after restructuring occurred to reduce the total number of T-Mobile subsidiaries. On
January 24, 2013, via Resolution No. 4664, the Council again consented to the transfer of the agreement from
T-Mobile to T-Mobile West Tower, LLC, as another corporate restructuring move.

This Resolution No. 5434 grants a five-year license agreement, with three additional five-year extension periods, 
to CCTMO for non-exclusive use of the site pursuant to Chapter 46 and State law. This agreement also requires
the company to adhere to requirements set by Chapter 35 of the City Code related to Wireless Communications
Facilities. The City’s Police, Fire, and Development Services departments have reviewed and are satisfied with
the requirements specified in the proposed agreement and have found no interference issues that would present
a problem to the City’s emergency communications system.

Financial Implications:
The licensee will pay permit, inspection, and pavement damage fees, as applicable.  CCTMO will also pay



The licensee will pay permit, inspection, and pavement damage fees, as applicable.  CCTMO will also pay
$1,665.63 in rent per month for the site, up from the current $1,412.97 per month. For each additional third-party
permitted to collocate at the site, the licensee will pay an additional $365.93 per month.  Provisions for annual
rent increases of 2.5% of the total due are detailed in the agreement. A 2.75% transaction privilege tax also
applies to any non-interstate telecommunication services.
 

Attachments
Resolution No. 5434 
Wireless License Agreement 
Map 
Site Photos 



RESOLUTION NO. 5434 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CHANDLER, 
ARIZONA, APPROVING A WIRELESS LICENSE AGREEMENT WITH T-
MOBILE WEST TOWER LLC, A DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY 
COMPANY, BY AND THROUGH CCTMO LLC, A DELAWARE LIMITED 
LIABILITY COMPANY, FOR OPERATION OF A WIRELESS 
TELECOMMUNICATIONS FACILITY ON CITY PROPERTY. 

 
WHEREAS, on October 23, 2003, the Chandler City Council approved Ordinance No. 3487, 
authorizing the City to enter a wireless telecommunications use agreement with VoiceStream PCS 
III Corporation, to operate a wireless communications facility on City property adjacent to the 
police department property and evidence building at 576 W. Pecos Road; and  
 
WHEREAS, T-Mobile West Tower LLC is the successor in interest to that wireless 
telecommunications use agreement with VoiceStream PCS III Corporation, which has expired; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the Council believes that it is in the City’s best interest to execute a new License 
Agreement to continue operation of a wireless communications facility at the site.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona, 
as follows: 
 
Section 1. Approves the License Agreement between the City of Chandler and T-Mobile West 

Tower LLC, a Delaware limited liability company by and through CCTMO LLC, 
a Delaware limited liability company in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A and 
incorporated herein by reference. 

 
Section 2. Authorizes the Mayor of the City of Chandler to execute the Agreement on behalf 

of the City of Chandler 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona, this _____ day 
of _________________, 2021. 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________   _____________________________ 
CITY CLERK      MAYOR 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  RESOLUTION NO. 5434 
  Page 2 
 

CERTIFICATION 
 
I HEREBY CERTIFY that the above and foregoing Resolution No. 5434 was duly passed and 
adopted by the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona, at a regular meeting held on the 
_____ day of _____________, 2021 and that a quorum was present thereat. 
 
       ______________________________ 
       CITY CLERK 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
______________________________ 
CITY ATTORNEY 
 













































































RESOLUTION NO. 5434 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CHANDLER, 
ARIZONA, APPROVING A WIRELESS LICENSE AGREEMENT WITH T-
MOBILE WEST TOWER LLC, A DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY 
COMPANY, BY AND THROUGH CCTMO LLC, A DELAWARE LIMITED 
LIABILITY COMPANY, FOR OPERATION OF A WIRELESS 
TELECOMMUNICATIONS FACILITY ON CITY PROPERTY. 

 
WHEREAS, on October 23, 2003, the Chandler City Council approved Ordinance No. 3487, 
authorizing the City to enter a wireless telecommunications use agreement with VoiceStream PCS 
III Corporation, to operate a wireless communications facility on City property adjacent to the 
police department property and evidence building at 576 W. Pecos Road; and  
 
WHEREAS, T-Mobile West Tower LLC is the successor in interest to that wireless 
telecommunications use agreement with VoiceStream PCS III Corporation, which has expired; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the Council believes that it is in the City’s best interest to execute a new License 
Agreement to continue operation of a wireless communications facility at the site.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona, 
as follows: 
 
Section 1. Approves the License Agreement between the City of Chandler and T-Mobile West 

Tower LLC, a Delaware limited liability company by and through CCTMO LLC, 
a Delaware limited liability company in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A and 
incorporated herein by reference. 

 
Section 2. Authorizes the Mayor of the City of Chandler to execute the Agreement on behalf 

of the City of Chandler 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona, this _____ day 
of _________________, 2021. 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________   _____________________________ 
CITY CLERK      MAYOR 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  RESOLUTION NO. 5434 
  Page 2 
 

CERTIFICATION 
 
I HEREBY CERTIFY that the above and foregoing Resolution No. 5434 was duly passed and 
adopted by the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona, at a regular meeting held on the 
_____ day of _____________, 2021 and that a quorum was present thereat. 
 
       ______________________________ 
       CITY CLERK 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
______________________________ 
CITY ATTORNEY 
 



ELLIOT RD

WARNER RD

RAY RD

CHANDLER BL

PECOS RD

GERMANN RD

QUEEN CREEK RD

OCOTILLO RD

CHANDLER HEIGHTS RD

RIGGS RD

HUNT HWVAL VISTA DR

LINDSAY RD

GILBERT RD

COOPER RD

MCQUEEN RD

ARIZONA AV

ALMA SCHOOL RD

DOBSON RD

PRICE RD

MCCLINTOCK DR

RURAL RD

KYRENE RD

56TH ST

MONOPALM AT PD EVIDENCE YARD
RESOLUTION NO. 5434

°
NTS

!(

PECOS RD

HA
RT

FO
RD

 ST

IO
WA

 ST

NE
BR

AS
KA

 ST

!( EXISTING SITE LOCATION

MEMO NO. DS21-103

F:\ENGINEER\GENSERV\_ArcMap_Shared\Map Requests\Development Services\DS21-103 MONOPALM AT PD EVIDENCE YARD\DS21-103.mxd 1/13/2021 MARICELAH







ITEM  3 

City Council Memorandum      Development Services  Memo No. DS21-102
       

Date: February 8, 2021
To: Mayor  and Council
Thru: Marsha Reed, City Manager

Joshua H. Wright, Assistant City Manager
Derek D. Horn, Development Services Director
Louis Kneip, Development Engineering Manager
Ryan Peters, Governmental Relations & Policy Manager

From: Dennis Aust, Development Project Administrator
Subject: Approval of Resolution No. 5435, authorizing a wireless license agreement between the City of

Chandler and Cellco Partnership, dba Verizon Wireless, for the existing PHO Rubenstein site.

Proposed Motion:
Move to approve Resolution No. 5435, authorizing the Mayor to execute the wireless license agreement
between the City of Chandler and Cellco Partnership, dba Verizon Wireless, for the existing PHO Rubenstein
macro cell site, located at the east side of Cooper Road and south of Buchanan Street, and authorizing the City
Manager or designee to execute other documents as needed to give effect to the agreement.

Background:
Chapter 46 of the Chandler City Code sets forth the City’s requirements for encroachment permits for use of the
City’s rights-of-way and public property, as well as the licensing requirements for telecommunications
companies. Cellco Partnership, doing business as Verizon Wireless, is a wireless telecommunications company
with wireless antennas and facilities already installed at a site designated as PHO Rubenstein. The macro cell
site is located in the right-of-way on the east side of Cooper Road south of Buchanan Street. Verizon’s facilities
are located on Salt River Project (SRP) property, which is located on a utility easement in City right-of-way. This
existing site came under Chandler jurisdiction with the transfer of right-of-way of Cooper Road to the City of
Chandler from the Town of Gilbert through the adoption of Ordinance No. 4822, which was approved by City
Council on June 14, 2018. The right-of-way was annexed to meet the terms of a 1987 Intergovernmental
Agreement between the City of Chandler and the Town of Gilbert which specifies roadway ownership and
maintenance responsibilities as the two municipalities develop.

Resolution No. 5435 grants a ten-year license with one ten-year, non-exclusive use agreement to Cellco
Partnership at the site pursuant to Chapter 46 and is consistent with State law. This agreement also requires the
company to adhere to requirements set by Chapter 35 related to Wireless Communications Facilities. The City’s
Police, Fire, and Development Services departments have reviewed and are satisfied with the requirements
specified in the Agreement and have found no interference issues that would present a problem to the City’s
emergency communications system.



 

Financial Implications:
The City has received a $3,000 application fee to cover the cost of processing this application. The company will
pay permit, inspection, and pavement damage fees, if applicable.  Cellco Partnership will also pay the City
$1,001.94 per month for use of the right-of-way, with provisions for rate increases of 3.5% annually detailed in
the agreement. A 2.75% transaction privilege tax also applies to any non-interstate telecommunication services.
Cellco Partnership will also pay $31,122.56 in arrearages for right-of-way use from the time of right-of-way
transfer in 2018 escalated from the 2018 monthly rate of $935.32. 

Attachments
Resolution No. 5435 
Wireless Agreement, Exhibit A to Resolution No. 5435 
Map 
Site Photo 









PHO Rubenstein Site 

 

Macro Cell Agreement Form March 2019 Page 1 of 34                 
Final PHO Rubenstein Site Version 6 Dated 10-21-2020 

 
 

 
 

WIRELESS AGREEMENT 
 BETWEEN CELLCO PARTNERSHIP D/B/A VERIZON WIRELESS AND THE CITY OF CHANDLER 

FOR THE PHO RUBENSTEIN SITE 
 

City of Chandler Document No.____________ 
City Council Meeting Date: _______________ 

 
This Wireless Agreement ("Agreement") is entered into this ____ day of _________________, 2020 (the 

“Effective Date”), by and between the City of Chandler, Arizona, an Arizona municipal corporation (“City”), and Cellco 
Partnership, a Delaware general partnership, d/b/a Verizon Wireless (“Company”). City and Company may be referred to 
individually as “Party” and collectively as “Parties”. 

 
           RECITALS 

 
A. Company provides wireless communication services through the use of Wireless Facilities (hereinafter defined); 
and 

 
B. City is authorized to grant use agreements operate and maintain Wireless Facilities within the City boundaries 
under the Charter and Chandler City Code, and by virtue of federal and state statutes, by the City’s police powers, by its 
authority over its public rights-of-way and highways as defined in Chapter 46 of the Chandler City Code, and by other City 
powers and authority; and 

 
C. Company has applied to the City for permission to operate and maintain the Wireless Facilities within the City of 
Chandler and located within City Right-of-Way as described on the attached Exhibit “A” at a site known as the “PHO 
Rubenstein site” (the "Site") and attached to a SRP transmission pole located on the east side of Cooper Road and north 
of the Galveston Street alignment as depicted in Exhibit “B”; and 
  
D. Company has agreed to provide information required by and comply with the terms and conditions set forth in this 
Agreement and other requirements as City may establish from time to time. 
 
        AGREEMENT  

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, City hereby grants to Company this Wireless Agreement to operate and maintain Wireless 
Facilities at the Site within City Right-of-Way under the following terms and conditions. 
 
SECTION 1.  DEFINITIONS   
 
For the purposes of this Agreement, the following words, terms, phrases, and their derivations are given the meaning 
stated in this Agreement.  When not inconsistent with the context, words used in the present tense include the future 
tense, words in the plural number include the singular number, and words in the singular number include the plural 
number.  The word "shall" is always mandatory and not merely directory. 
 
“ACC” means the Arizona Corporation Commission. 
 
“Agreement” means this non-exclusive revocable authorization granted by the City to Company to operate and maintain 
Wireless Facilities on the Site. 
 
“Agreement Activities” is ascribed the meaning in section 2.1.5. 



PHO Rubenstein Site 

 

Macro Cell Agreement Form March 2019 Page 2 of 34                 
Final PHO Rubenstein Site Version 6 Dated 10-21-2020 

 
 

“Antenna” means communications equipment that transmits or receives electromagnetic radio frequency signals and that is 
used in providing wireless services. 
 
“A.R.S.” means Arizona Revised Statutes, as amended. 
 
“Base Use Fee” means the amount Company must pay City each month of this Agreement for use of City Right-of-way. 
  
“C.C.C.” means Chandler City Code, as amended. 
 
“C.F.R.” means Code of Federal Regulations, as amended. 
 
“City” means the City of Chandler, an Arizona municipal corporation. 
 
“City Council” means the Council of the City of Chandler. 
 
“City Manager” means the Chandler City Manager or the City Manager’s designee. 
 
“Collocate”, “collocating”, or “collocation” refer to the use of Company’s Facilities by another company. 
  
“Communications Equipment” means any and all electronic equipment at the Wireless Facility location that processes and 
transports information from the antennas to the Company’s network. 
 
“Company” means Cellco Partnership, a Delaware general partnership, d/b/a Verizon Wireless and related affiliates, 
subsidiaries, persons, or entities to which this Agreement is granted. 
 
 “Company’s Improvements” means all improvements installed by the Company, including, but not limited to: all elements of 
the Wireless Facility, all screening elements, any landscaping plants or materials, and any other elements provided by the 
Company in the approved Agreement. 
    
“Competing Users” means entities that own the water pipes, cables and wires, pavement, and other facilities that may be 
located within the Right-of-way.  Competing Users include without limitation, the City, the State of Arizona and its political 
subdivisions, the public, and all manner of utility companies and other existing or future users of the Use Area. 
 
"Critical Infrastructure Information" has the same meaning prescribed in A.R.S. § 41-1801, as amended. 
 
"Day" means a calendar day, except a Saturday, Sunday, or a holiday prescribed in A.R.S. § 1-301. 
 
“Encroachment Permit” means a permit issued pursuant to Chapter 46 of the Chandler City Code that allows the Company to 
perform work in the Right-of-Way and to install and operate improvements in the Right-of-Way. 
 
“Environmental Laws” means all federal, state, and local laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, statutes, and judicial 
decisions, as amended from time to time, which in any way relate to or regulate human health, safety, industrial hygiene, 
environmental conditions, protection of the environment, prevention or cleanup of pollution, or contamination of the air, 
soil, surface water, or ground water.  
 
“Facility” or “Facilities” means Company’s plant, equipment, and property, including but not limited to boxes, poles, wires, 
pipe, conduits, pedestals, antenna, and other appurtenances, in order to provide the services described in this 
Agreement. 
 
“FCC” means the Federal Communications Commission. 
 
“FCC OET Bulletin 65” means the FCC’s Office of Engineering & Technology Bulletin 65 that includes the FCC Radio 
Frequency Exposure Guidelines. 
 
“FCC Rules” means all applicable radio frequency emissions laws and regulations. 
 



PHO Rubenstein Site 

 

Macro Cell Agreement Form March 2019 Page 3 of 34                 
Final PHO Rubenstein Site Version 6 Dated 10-21-2020 

 
 

“Fiscal Year” means a 12 month period that begins on July 1 and ends the following June 30. 
 
“Franchise” has the same meaning prescribed in the Arizona Constitution, article 13, §§ 4 and 6. 
 
“Hazardous Substances” means those substances defined as toxic or hazardous substances, pollutants, or wastes by 
Environmental Law or the following substances:  gasoline, kerosene, or other petroleum products, toxic pesticides or 
herbicides, volatile solvents, materials containing asbestos or formaldehyde, or radioactive materials. 
 
“In-lieu Company” means a single, third party company, using the Site or Company’s Facility, or part thereof, to provide 
services in lieu of such services being provided by Company. 
 
“Ordinary Permit Use Fee” means the City’s encroachment permit application, review, and other fees related to the issuance 
of the permit.   
 
“Other Facilities” means facilities owned and operated by parties other than City or Company, which facilities occupy 
Public Property under authority of a City encroachment permit, Agreement, or franchise. 
 
“Pre-existing Environmental Condition” means the presence, emission, disposal, discharge, or release of any Hazardous 
Substance at, in, on, under or about the Wireless Facilities and Site, however caused, existing on the Effective Date, 
whether the nature and extent of the contamination is known or unknown. 
 
“Proprietary Information means any document or material clearly identified by Company as confidential and includes, but is not 
limited to, any customer lists, financial information, technical information, or other information plainly identified as confidential by 
Company and pertains to Company’s services provided to its customers. 
 
"Public Property" means the surface of and the space above and below of real property, which is owned, operated and 
maintained by the city. Public Property does not include Right-of-Way. 
  
“RF” means radio frequency. 
 
“RF Letter” means a letter attesting to the Company’s compliance with FCC RF exposure guidelines from the Company’s 
senior internal engineer. 
 
“Right-of-Way” means the area on, below or above a public roadway, highway, street, sidewalk, alley, or utility easement. 
Right-of-Way does not include a Federal Interstate Highway, a state highway or state route under the jurisdiction of the 
Department of Transportation, a private easement, property that is owned by a special taxing district, or a utility easement that 
does not authorize the deployment sought by the Company. 
 
"Section" means any section, subsection, or provision of this Agreement. 
 
“Site” means the Use Area for the Wireless Equipment and the pole to which the antenna and other wireless facilities are 
attached. 
 
“Site Documents” means the depiction of the Agreement area, schematic plans and map showing location of the installation of 
the Facility in the Right-of-Way, including but not limited to the title report of the use area, vicinity map, site plan, elevations, 
technical specifications and the cubic feet of the non-antenna wireless equipment. 
  
 “Supplemental Parcel Agreement” means an agreement authorizing the Company to use property outside of the Public 
Property or Right-of-Way. 
 
“SRP” means Salt River Project and its subsidiaries and affiliates. 
 
 "Telecommunications” has the same meaning prescribed in A.R.S. § 9-1401, as amended. 
 
 "Telecommunications Company” has the same meaning prescribed in A.R.S. § 9-1401, as amended. 
 



PHO Rubenstein Site 

 

Macro Cell Agreement Form March 2019 Page 4 of 34                 
Final PHO Rubenstein Site Version 6 Dated 10-21-2020 

 
 

 "Telecommunications Service" has the same meaning prescribed in A.R.S. § 9-1401, as amended. 
   
“Third Party Areas” means the portions of the Public Property subject to Third Party Limitations. 
 
“Third Party Limitations” means some or part of the Public Property that may contain limited dedications or regulatory use 
restrictions imposed by a third party. 
  
“U.S.C.” means United States Code, as amended. 
 
“Use Area” means the real property used by Company where the Wireless Facilities are located. 
 
“Violation Use Fee” means the types of fees that the City has available to remedy certain breaches of the Agreement by 
Company. 
 
“Wireless Facility” means equipment at a fixed location that enables wireless communications between user equipment and a 
communications network, including both of the following: (i) Equipment associated with wireless communications; and (ii) 
Radio transceivers, antennas, coaxial or fiber-optic cables, regular and backup power supplies and comparable equipment, 
regardless of technological configuration. Wireless Facility includes Small Wireless Facilities, but does not include the 
structure or improvements on, under or within which the equipment is collocated, wireline backhaul facilities, coaxial or fiber-
optic that is between wireless support structures or utility poles or coaxial or fiber-optic cable that is otherwise not immediately 
adjacent to, or directly associated with, an antenna. In addition, Wireless Facility does not include Wi-Fi radio equipment 
described in Section 9-506, Subsection I or microcell equipment described in Section 9-584, Subsection E. 
  
“Wireless Facilities Site Permit”, also referred to herein as “Site Permit”, means the permit authorizing the installation of 
Wireless Facilities at a specific site in the City’s Right-of-Way. 
 
“Wireless Infrastructure Company” as defined in A.R.S. §9-591(23) means any person that is authorized to provide 
telecommunications service in this state and that builds or installs wireless communications transmission equipment, wireless 
facilities, utility poles or monopoles but that is not a wireless service company. Wireless Infrastructure Company does not 
include a special taxing district. 
 
 “Wireless Services” as defined in A.R.S. §9-591(25) means any services that are provided to the public and that use licensed 
or unlicensed spectrum, whether at a fixed location or mobile, using wireless facilities. 
 
“Wireless Services Company” as defined in A.R.S. §9-591(26) means a person that provides wireless services. Wireless 
Services Company does not include a special taxing district. 
 
“Wireless Support Structure” as defined in A.R.S. §9-591(27) means: (i) a freestanding structure, such as a monopole; (ii) a 
tower, either guyed or self-supporting; (iii) a sign or billboard; or (iv) any other existing or proposed structure designed to 
support or capable of supporting small wireless facilities. Wireless Support Structure does not include a utility pole. 
 
“Zoning Code” means Chapter 35 of City Code. 
 
SECTION 2.  PERMISSION GRANTED  
 
2.1 Grant. 
 

2.1.1 Subject to the provisions of this Agreement, and to the City Code, City grants Company the nonexclusive 
revocable permission to operate and maintain its Wireless Facilities within the City Right-of-Way. This Agreement does not 
grant Company the right and privilege to operate and maintain its Wireless Facilities on Public Property. Subject to the terms 
and conditions of this Agreement and any additional applicable permits later issued for the Site, for use of the PHO Rubenstein 
Site as more fully set forth herein.  The uses of any other Public Property and installation or construction of any other antennae 
and other equipment locations at this Site are subject to approval by the City through additional Encroachment Permit review by 
City staff.  If Company desires to change the components of any of the Wireless Facilities in a manner that changes its primary 
purpose, written approval of such change must be obtained by the City Manager who can refer the matter to the City Council if 



PHO Rubenstein Site 

 

Macro Cell Agreement Form March 2019 Page 5 of 34                 
Final PHO Rubenstein Site Version 6 Dated 10-21-2020 

 
 

required by ordinance, provided that such consent by either may not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. The installation and 
construction of a fiber optics or telecommunications network, or cable Wireless Facilities is not authorized by this agreement. 

 
2.1.2 Company may not install, maintain, construct, or operate Wireless Facilities in the Right-of-Way or provide 

services by means of such Wireless Facilities unless a Company first obtains and maintains in good standing at all applicable 
times of the following: (i) A  City license for video services as provided by Title 9, Chapter 5, Article 7, Arizona Revised Statutes,  
or (ii) a City license for telecommunications services as provided by Title 9, Chapter 5, Article 1.1, Arizona Revised Statutes for 
facilities located in the Right-of-Way that connect the Company’s Wireless Facilities to Company’s interstate network. Company 
must demonstrate compliance with this section when Company submits to the City an application for a wireless agreement. As 
of the Effective Date, Company represents and warrants that Company complies with this condition. Company must notify City 
as provided in this Agreement of any changes to Company’s compliance with this condition. 
 

2.1.3 Subject to obtaining the permission of the affected property owner, this Agreement also authorizes Company 
to operate and maintain its Wireless Facilities on structures owned by third parties located on Public Property, such as an 
electric utility company, provided, however, any installation on private property within or on the City’s right-of-way, easements or 
other Public Property must comply with Chapters 46 and 47 and any other applicable sections of the City Code.  Upon request, 
Company must promptly furnish to the City documentation of such permission from such other affected property owner.  By 
executing this Agreement, the City does not waive any rights that it may have against any public utility or other property owner 
to require prior approval from the City for such uses of their property or facilities, or that revenues received by any public utility 
or other property owner from Company, by virtue of Company’s use of their property or facilities, be included in the computation 
of franchise or Agreement fees owed by such parties to the City.   

 
2.1.4 Except for those Facilities specifically permitted on the PHO Rubenstein Site, no component or part of 

Company’s Wireless Facilities may be installed, constructed, located on, or attached to any property within the City by 
Company until Company has, for those Facilities to be located on Public Property or other Right-of-Way; obtained 
encroachment permits pursuant to Chapter 46 of the City Code.  Additionally, Company must comply with all other provisions of 
the City Code, including Chapter 35 regarding zoning and other relevant City regulations.  

 
2.1.5 The Site may be used by Company for the transmission and reception of radio communication signals 

and for the construction, installation, operation, maintenance and repair of related support Facilities (such as tower and 
base, antennas, microwave dishes, equipment shelters and/or cabinets) but only for the provision of what is commonly 
known as cellular telephone service (whether or not technically referred to as Personal Communications Service, or some 
other term) by the use of "personal wireless service facilities" (as such phrase is defined in §704 of the Federal 
Telecommunications Act of 1996, Pub. L. No. 104-104, 110 Stat. 56 (1996), partially codified at 47 U.S.C. § 
332(c)(7)(C)(2), hereinafter "1996 Act Section 704") and not for any other purpose.  Company must, at its expense, 
comply with all present and future federal, state, and local laws, ordinances, rules and regulations (including but not 
limited to laws and ordinances relating to health, safety, radio frequency emissions, and radiation) in connection with the 
use of (and operations, maintenance, construction and/or installations at) the Site.  
 

2.1.6 Any privilege claimed under this Agreement and Encroachment Permit by Company in any public street or 
other Public Property must be subordinate to any prior or subsequent lawful occupancy or use thereof by the City or any other 
governmental entity, and must be subordinate to any prior lawful occupancy or use thereof by any other person, and must be 
subordinate to any prior easements therein, provided, however, that nothing herein may extinguish or otherwise interfere with 
property rights established independently of this Agreement. 

 
2.2 Description of the Wireless Facilities.     Company’s Wireless Facilities consists of improvements, personal property 
and Facilities necessary to operate its communications Wireless Facilities, including, without limitation, equipment that may be 
mounted on City owned poles or poles privately owned by other parties that may be on Public Property, and may include 
equipment buildings with perimeter screen walls in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 35 of the Chandler City Code, 
and related cables and utility lines (collectively the “Wireless Facilities”) as described in Exhibit A.  
 
SECTION 3.  SCOPE  
 
3.1 Agreement.    Company agrees to comply with the provisions of Chapter 46 of the City Code.   
 
3.2 Specific Authorization.  This Agreement solely authorizes Company to operate and maintain Wireless Facilities to provide 



PHO Rubenstein Site 

 

Macro Cell Agreement Form March 2019 Page 6 of 34                 
Final PHO Rubenstein Site Version 6 Dated 10-21-2020 

 
 

Wireless Services in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. 
 
3.3 Compliance with Laws.   
 

3.3.1 Company must comply with all applicable laws, including, but not limited to, the City Code, in the exercise and 
performance of its rights and obligations under this Agreement.  There is hereby reserved to the City the power to amend any 
section of the City Code so as to require additional or greater standards of construction, operation, and maintenance or 
otherwise pursuant to  City’s lawful police powers or as provided in the Agreement. 

 
3.3.2 If it is necessary for Company to comply with any law or regulation of the FCC or the ACC to engage in the 

business activities anticipated by this Agreement, Company must comply with such laws or regulations as a condition precedent 
to exercising any rights granted by this Agreement.  Provided, however, no such law or regulation of the FCC or ACC may 
enlarge or modify any of the rights or duties granted by this Agreement without a written modification to this Agreement. 

 
3.3.3 Upon request Company must provide to the City copies of any communications and reports submitted by 

Company to the FCC or any other federal or state regulatory commission or agency having jurisdiction in respect to any matters 
directly affecting enforcement of this Agreement. 

 
3.3.4 Upon request Company must provide the City with regular reports, as reasonably needed, to establish 

Company’s compliance with the various requirements and other provisions of this Agreement. 
 
3.4  Interference and Emergency. 
 

3.4.1. Company must receive approval by the City’s Police and Fire Departments that Company’s Wireless Facilities 
will not interfere with the City’s public safety communications Wireless Facilities.  Company agrees that all Wireless Equipment 
it operates within the City must strictly comply with the FCC's radio frequency emission regulations.  In the event City incurs 
radio frequency interference with respect to its satellite, City communication Wireless Facilities, television or telephone 
equipment that is presumably caused by Company’s operations, then City will give notice to Company via on-call assistance 
and in writing.  Within ten (10) days following Company’s receipt of such notice, Company must conduct engineering field tests 
to determine if such interference is being caused by Wireless Equipment operated by Company.  City may conduct engineering 
field tests using City’s own engineer to determine if such interference is caused by Company’s Wireless Equipment.  City’s 
engineer and Company’s engineer will use their best efforts to determine the cause of said interference, but if the two cannot 
agree on the cause thereof, a neutral third party engineer will be appointed by City and Company to determine the cause of the 
interference.  If it is determined that such interference results from any of Company’s Wireless Equipment, Company must 
within five business days remedy such interference.   

 
3.4.2. Company must continuously and without interruption, operate so that its Facilities are not deemed abandoned 

pursuant to 35-2209 of City Code. 
 

3.4.3. Subject to the applicable provisions of the Chandler City Charter, City Code and Arizona Revised Statutes, 
City may, in the event of a public emergency, sever, disrupt, dig-up, or otherwise remove Company’s Facilities if the action is 
deemed reasonably necessary by the City Manager, Fire Chief, Police Chief, Public Works Director, or Development Services 
Director.  Notice will be given to Company at (800) 621-2622.  A public emergency must be any condition which, in the opinion 
of any of the officials named, poses an immediate threat to the lives or property of City residents, caused by any natural or man-
made disaster, including, but not limited to, storms, floods, fire, accidents, explosions, major water main breaks, or  hazardous 
material spills. 
 
3.5 Reservation to City.    The City reserves every right and power, which is required to be herein reserved or provided by 
any ordinance or the Charter of the City, and Company, by its execution of this Agreement, agrees to be bound thereby and to 
comply with any action or requirements of City in its reasonable exercise of such rights or power, heretofore or hereafter 
enacted or established.  Neither the granting of any Agreement nor any provision hereof may constitute a waiver or bar to the 
exercise of any governmental right or power of the City. 
 
SECTION 4.  FEES AND CHARGES 
 
4.1 Application Fee.    Company must pay all fees and charges in connection with Company’s performance under this 



PHO Rubenstein Site 

 

Macro Cell Agreement Form March 2019 Page 7 of 34                 
Final PHO Rubenstein Site Version 6 Dated 10-21-2020 

 
 

Agreement. Company agrees to pay City, a fee in the amount indicated on the City fee schedule as of the date of submittal prior 
to submittal for approval of this Agreement to the City Council. Company has paid City a one-time payment for the Agreement 
Application Fee in the amount of $3,000.00.  
 
4.2 Encroachment Permit Fees.    Company must pay any and all fees as required for processing any Encroachment 
Permits independently of this Agreement as indicated on the City fee schedule as adopted by the City Council and applicable to 
such permits and construction prior to the issuance of such a permit.   

 
4.3 Use Fee and Other Payments.    
 

4.3.1 For the use of the Site, as of the Effective Date, Company must pay City the sum of $1,001.94 (calendar year 
2020) per month as use fee for the PHO Rubenstein Site (the “Base Fee”). However, the initial payments of the Base Fee must 
be made within 90 days of the Effective Date and subsequent payments must be made on the first (1st) day of each month 
thereafter. The Base Fee for any fractional month at the beginning or at the end of the Term or Renewal Term will be prorated. 
  

4.3.2 In addition to the Base Fee, for the use of the PHO Rubenstein Site for the period between Company’s 
application for this Agreement in May 2018 and the Effective Date, Company must pay City the sum of $935.32 per month for 
the remainder of calendar year 2018 and $968.06 per month for calendar year 2019 and $1001.94 per month in calendar year 
2020 as fees for the current use of the PHO Rubenstein Site (the “Current Use Fee”). The City waives any accrued and 
accruing interest and penalties due and owing for Company’s failure to make timely payments for Company’s current use of the 
Site. Company’s payment of the Current Use Fee must be made within 90 days of the Effective Date.  
 

4.3.3 The City waives the applicable fees due and owing for Company’s unpermitted use of the PHO Rubenstein 
Site for the period that ends April 2018 and begins on the original unpermitted installation date (collectively “Unpermitted Use 
Period”). The City also waives any accrued and accruing interest and penalties due and owing for Company’s failure to make 
timely payments during the Unpermitted Use Period. 
 

4.3.4 Beginning on the annual anniversary of the Effective Date, and on each annual anniversary thereafter, the 
Base Fee will increase by 3.5%.  
 

4.3.5 In addition to the Base Fee and Current Use Fee, Company must pay to City any transaction privilege, sales, 
excise, rental and other taxes (except income taxes) imposed now or hereinafter imposed by any governmental authority upon 
rentals and all other amounts to be paid by Company pursuant to this Agreement. 

 
4.3.6 All fees and costs must be paid to City at the following address or to such other persons or at such other 

places as City may designate in writing. All payments must be in lawful money of the United States of America. 
 
  City of Chandler, Development Services  
  Mail Stop 405, P.O. Box 4008  
  Chandler, AZ 85244-4008 
  Attention: Development Services Administrator  

 
4.3.7 City will send invoices to Company at the following address: 

 
Cellco Partnership, 
d/b/a Verizon Wireless 
180 Washington Valley Road  
Bedminster, New Jersey 07921  
Attention: Network Real Estate 
Site: PHO Rubenstein 
 

SECTION 5.  TERM OF AGREEMENT 
 
5.1  Term.    The term of this  Agreement shall be as follows: 
 



PHO Rubenstein Site 

 

Macro Cell Agreement Form March 2019 Page 8 of 34                 
Final PHO Rubenstein Site Version 6 Dated 10-21-2020 

 
 

 5.1.1  Original Term.  The original term of this Agreement shall be for a period of ten (10) years commencing on the 
Effective Date. 
 
 5.1.2  Extension.  The term of this Agreement may be extended for one (1) additional ten (10) year period subject to 
consent by City and Company, which either may withhold in its sole and absolute discretion as provided in Exhibit F. Both City 
and Company will be deemed to have elected to extend unless City or Company, respectively, gives notice to the contrary to 
the other at least one hundred eighty (180) days prior to the end of the original term or the current extension. The second term 
will begin ten (10) years plus one (1) day after the initial effective date. All of the terms and conditions of this Agreement must be 
in effect during the Term and extension of the Term.  
 
5.2  Hold Over.    In any circumstance whereby Company remains in possession or occupancy of the Site after the 
expiration of this Agreement (as extended, if applicable), such holding over will not be deemed to operate as a renewal or 
extension of this Agreement. Instead, the hold over may only create a use right from month to month that may be terminated at 
any time by City upon thirty (30) days’ notice to Company or upon sixty (60) days’ notice to City. If Company remains in 
possession of the Site at the termination or expiration of the initial term or any extension thereof without a written agreement 
with City to do so, such holding over will be construed to be a tenancy at sufferance from month to month at one and one-half (1 
1/2) times the amount of the Use Fee (defined in Section 4.3) in effect at the time of the hold over and Company will be subject 
to the same terms and conditions of this Agreement. 
 
SECTION 6.  ACCEPTANCE 
 
6.1 Written Acceptance.    Company’s execution of this Agreement constitutes its acceptance of the Agreement as granted 
and its agreement to be bound by and to comply with this Agreement.   Company’s signature must be acknowledged by 
Company before a notary public.  
 
6.2 Validity of Agreement.    Company must acknowledge, as a condition of acceptance of this Agreement, that Company 
was represented throughout the negotiations of the Agreement by its own attorneys and had opportunity to consult with its own 
attorneys about its rights and obligations regarding same.  Company has reviewed City’s  authority to execute and enforce this 
Agreement, and has reviewed all applicable law, both federal and state, and, after considering same, Company acknowledges 
and accepts the right and authority of City to execute this Agreement, to issue this Agreement and to enforce the terms herein. 
Both parties agree it shall not now or at any time hereafter contest or challenge the other party’s authority under applicable 
federal, state and local law to enter into and enforce this Agreement in any city, state or federal court. 
 
SECTION 7.  ENCROACHMENT PERMIT – PHO RUBENSTEIN SITE   

 
7.1 Site.   City has jurisdictional authority over the Right-of-Way where the SRP pole is located and the Use Area as depicted 
in attached Exhibit A.  
 
7.2 Ingress, Egress and Utility Access.    Under this Agreement, Company, its employees, agents, subcontractors, 
lenders, invitees and guests shall have pedestrian and vehicular access to the Site without notice to CITY twenty-four (24) 
hours a day, seven (7) days a week, at no charge.  This Agreement grants access to perform work where no excavation is 
involved and where previously permitted structures and facilities exist.  If excavation is required for utilities, plans must be 
submitted to City Staff for approval which will not be unreasonably withheld. Company must submit engineered plans and 
drawings through the standard Encroachment Permit application process showing the exact location of Company’s activities 
and the plans for installation to City Staff for approval prior to installation.  
 
7.3 Use of Site.    The Site must be used solely for the operation of wireless communication services utilizing radio 
communication Facilities (“Company Facilities”).  Company must not use the Site for any other purpose without the written 
consent of City.  The Site shall be used only for lawful purposes, and only in accordance with all applicable building, fire and 
zoning codes, and applicable local public park ordinances and regulations. 

 
7.4 City Cooperation.    City agrees to cooperate with Company, at Company’s expense, in making application for and 
obtaining all Agreements and any and all other necessary approvals that may be required for Company’s intended use of the 
Site. However, nothing herein shall be deemed to constitute a contractual obligation of City, as a municipality, to issue a 
required Agreement where the officer, agent or employee of City responsible for the issuance of such Agreement deems the 
issuance of such an Agreement to be inappropriate.  This Agreement is not intended to supersede, modify or waive City Code 



PHO Rubenstein Site 

 

Macro Cell Agreement Form March 2019 Page 9 of 34                 
Final PHO Rubenstein Site Version 6 Dated 10-21-2020 

 
 

or Zoning Code requirements applicable to the construction of wireless communication facilities except to the extent they relate 
to an encroachment permit for the PHO Rubenstein Site. 

 
7.5 Tests and Construction.    Company may enter the Right-of-Way following the full execution of this Agreement to enter 
upon the Site for the purpose of making appropriate engineering and boundary surveys, inspections, soil test borings, and other 
reasonably necessary tests for construction of Company’s Facilities, except as otherwise limited by Section 7.3.  Company 
must indemnify and hold City harmless against liability, loss, cost, damage or expense that may arise out of any personal injury 
or property damage resulting from Company’s entry upon the Site, except to the extent caused by City’s negligence or willful 
misconduct. Company must coordinate with the Development Services Department to avoid interfering with any City operations 
while conducting any such tests or construction. 

 
7.6 Company Construction/Improvements.  
 

7.6.1  Company must submit plans and specifications for all the Facilities to be constructed or installed for prior 
review and approval by the Development Services Department.  Such approval is separate from, but may be obtained 
concurrent with, development approvals (building permits, encroachment permits, special use permits, etc.) required and issued 
by the Development Services Department.  All of Company’s construction and installation work must be performed at 
Company’s sole cost and expense and in a good and workmanlike manner. 

 
7.6.2 The construction plans and specifications must include fully dimensioned site plans that are drawn to scale 

and show, as applicable, antenna, equipment shelter, the proposed changes in the landscape, the proposed type and height of 
fencing, if any, the proposed type of construction material for all structures, including fencing or screening, and any other details 
requested by City or required to obtain development approvals. 

 
7.6.3 Company Facilities must remain Company’s personal property and not fixtures, and title to the same shall be 

held by Company.  Company shall remove all Company Facilities at its sole expense on or before the expiration or earlier 
termination of this Agreement and shall repair any damage to the Site caused by such removal, and restore the Site to the 
condition it was in at the time of removal reasonable wear and tear and casualty excepted. If this removal includes the removal 
of a City owned structure such as a ball field light, a replacement structure approved by the Development Services Department 
will be constructed. 

 
7.6.4 Any portion of Company’s Facilities, or any of Company’s personal property, equipment, or improvements on 

the Site that is not removed on or before ninety (90) days following the termination of this Agreement, may be removed by City 
and all expenses of such removal and site restoration charged to Company.  

 
7.6.5 Company must make no alterations or additional improvements to or upon the Site without first obtaining 

written approval of the Development Services Department.  
 
7.7 Utilities.    Company must be liable for and must pay throughout the term of this Agreement, all charges for all utility 
service furnished to the Site for all Company purposes related to the operation and maintenance of Company’s Facilities.  
 
7.8 Maintenance and Repair.    Company must keep their building, fencing or screen walls, if any, and other Facilities in 
good repair and in a neat and clean condition and must maintain and preserve any landscaping within and around any fenced 
area in accordance with City zoning code.   
 
7.9 Hazardous Substances.    Company’s activities upon or about the Use Area are subject to the following regarding any 
hazardous or toxic substances, waste or materials or any substance now or hereafter subject to regulation under the 
Comprehensive Environmental Response Compensation and Liability Act, 42 U.S.C. §§ 9601, et seq., the Arizona Hazardous 
Waste Management Act, A.R.S. §§ 49-901, et seq., the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, 42 U.S.C. §§ 6901, et seq., 
the Toxic Substances Control Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 2601, et seq., or any other federal, state, county, or local law pertaining to 
hazardous substances, waste or toxic substances and their reporting requirements (collectively “Toxic Substances”): 

 
 7.9.1 No Warranties. Company understands the hazards presented to persons, property, and the environment by 
dealing with Toxic Substances. City makes no warranties as to whether the Use Area contains actual or presumed asbestos or 
other Toxic Substances. 
 



PHO Rubenstein Site 

 

Macro Cell Agreement Form March 2019 Page 10 of 34                 
Final PHO Rubenstein Site Version 6 Dated 10-21-2020 

 
 

 7.9.2 Discovery. Within twenty-four (24) hours after discovery by Company of any Toxic Substances, Company must 
report such Toxic Substances to City in writing. Within fourteen (14) days thereafter, Company must provide City with a written report 
of the nature and extent of such toxic substances found by Company. 
 
 7.9.3 Disturbance of Toxic Substances.  Prior to undertaking any construction or other significant work, Company 
must cause the Use Area to be inspected to prevent disturbance of potential asbestos or other Toxic Substances. Prior to any 
work of any description that bears a material risk of disturbing potential asbestos or other Toxic Substances, Company must 
cause Company’s contractor or other person performing such work to give to City notice by the method described in this 
Agreement to the effect that the person will inspect for Toxic Substances, will not disturb Toxic Substances, and will indemnify, 
defend and hold City harmless against any disturbance in Toxic Substances in the course of the Company’s or other person’s 
work. Company must cause any on-site or off-site storage, inspection, treatment, transportation, disposal, handling, or other 
work involving Toxic Substances by Company in connection with the Use Area to be performed by persons, equipment, 
Facilities and other resources who are at all times properly and lawfully trained, authorized, licensed, permitted and otherwise 
qualified to perform such services. Company must promptly deliver to City copies of all reports or other information regarding 
Toxic Substances. 
 
SECTION 8.  LETTER OF CREDIT.  
  
8.1 Amount; Purpose.  Within thirty (30) Days after the Effective Date of this Agreement, Company must deposit 
with the City an irrevocable letter of credit in the amount of one hundred thousand dollars ($100,000) (replenish able as 
specified in Section 8.3 below) issued by a federally insured commercial lending institution.  The form and substance of 
said letter of credit will be used to assure (a) the faithful performance by Company of all provisions of this Agreement; 
(b) compliance with all orders, permits, and directions of any Department of the City having jurisdiction over Company’s 
acts or defaults under this Agreement; and (c) Company’s payment of any penalties, liquidated damages, claims, liens, 
and taxes due to the City that arise by reason of the construction, operation, or maintenance of the Wireless Facilities, 
including cost of removal or abandonment of any of Company’s property. 
 
8.2 Drawing on Letter of Credit.  The letter of credit may be drawn upon by the City by presentation of a draft at 
sight on the lending institution, accompanied by a written certificate signed by the City Manager certifying that Company 
has been found to have failed to comply with this Agreement, stating the nature of noncompliance, and stating the amount 
being drawn.  The rights reserved to the City with respect to the letter of credit are in addition to all other rights of the City, 
whether reserved by this Agreement or authorized by law, and no action proceeding against a letter of credit will affect 
any other right the City may have. 
 
8.3 Replenishing.  The letter of credit shall be structured in such a manner so that if the City at any time draws upon 
the letter of credit, upon notice to Company by the issuing lending institution, Company must immediately increase the 
amount of available credit by the amount necessary to replenish that portion of the available credit exhausted by the 
honoring of the City's draft; provided, however the maximum amount available to be drawn on this letter of credit for any 
one event may not exceed one hundred thousand dollars ($100,000).  The intent of this Section is to make available to 
the City at all times a letter of credit in the amount of one hundred thousand dollars ($100,000). 
 
SECTION 9.  INSTALLATION, CONSTRUCTION & OPERATION OF THE WIRELESS FACILITIES 
 
9.1 Damage to Right-of-Way.    Whenever the installation, removal, or relocation of any of Company’s Wireless Facilities is 
required under this Agreement, and such installation, removal or relocation cause damage to the Right-of-Way, Company, at its 
sole cost and expense, must promptly repair and return Right-of-Way in which the Wireless Facilities components are located to 
a safe and satisfactory condition in accordance with applicable laws, reasonably satisfactory to the Development Services 
Director or designee.  If Company does not repair the Site as just described, City will have the option, upon fifteen (15) days 
prior written notice to Company, to perform or cause to be performed such reasonable and necessary work on behalf of 
Company and to charge Company for the proposed costs to be incurred or the actual costs incurred by City at City’s standard 
rates, plus an administrative fee of fifteen percent (15%).  Upon the receipt of a demand for payment by City, Company must, 
within thirty (30) days, reimburse City for such costs.  For any pavement cuts by Company, Company agrees to restore the 
pavement and to reimburse City for all costs arising from the reduction in the service life of any public road, in accordance with 
the provisions of Chapter 46 of the City Code and the fees established by City pursuant thereto.  Company agrees to pay within 
thirty (30) days from the date of issuance of an invoice from City.  Provided, however, in the event Company failure creates a 
dangerous condition for which immediate repair or corrective action is necessary for health or safety reasons, no prior notice 



PHO Rubenstein Site 

 

Macro Cell Agreement Form March 2019 Page 11 of 34                 
Final PHO Rubenstein Site Version 6 Dated 10-21-2020 

 
 

need be provided to Company, but City may at City’s option, immediately repair and restore the site to a safe condition and 
charge Company as provided above.   
 
9.2 Damage to Facilities of Others.    Company must construct, install, locate and relocate its Wireless Facilities in such a 
manner that it causes no disruption of other services or damage to the other facilities.  If Company damages any City facility, 
Company must pay to City, the full costs of all repairs incurred by CITY to repair such damage, together with an administrative 
fee of fifteen percent (15%).  If Company damages any facility owned by an entity other than City, Company must, at the option 
of the entity whose facility was damaged, either repair and restore such facility to its condition before such damage or reimburse 
that entity the full cost incurred for repairs and restoration and also for other damages as proved by such other entity. 
 
SECTION 10.  TERMINATION 
 
10.1 Termination. This Agreement may be terminated without further liability on thirty (30) days prior written notice as 
follows: (i) by either party upon a default of any covenant or term hereof by the other party, which default is not cured within 
sixty (60) days of receipt of written notice of default, provided that the grace period for any monetary default is ten (10) days 
from receipt of written notice of default; or (ii) by Company if it does not obtain or maintain any Agreement, permit, or other 
approval necessary for the construction and operation of the Site; or (iii) by Company if Company determines that the Site is 
not appropriate for its operations for economic or technological reason, including without limitation, signal interference; or (iv) 
Company’s Insolvency as described in this section. 
 
10.2 Rights at Termination. The following provisions will apply at the expiration of the term of this Agreement:  
  

10.2.1 Surviving Obligations.  Expiration or termination of this Agreement does not terminate Company’s 
obligations existing or arising prior to or simultaneous with, or attributable to, the termination or events leading to or 
occurring before termination. 

 
10.2.2 Delivery of Possession.  Company must cease using the Site. Company must without demand, peaceably 
and quietly quit and deliver up the Use Area to the City thoroughly cleaned, in good repair with the Use Area 
maintained and repaired and in as good order and condition, reasonable use and wear excepted, as the Use Area is 
now or in such better condition as the Use Area may hereafter be placed. 

 
10.2.3 Confirmation of Termination.  Upon expiration or termination of this Agreement for any reason, Company 
must provide to City upon demand recordable disclaimers covering the Use Area executed and acknowledged by 
Company and by all persons claiming through this Agreement or Company any interest in or right to use the Use 
Area. 

 
10.2.4 Removal of Improvements.  Company must remove all Facilities and restore the Use Area to its prior 
condition, or to a condition matching City’s surrounding land and improvements, as directed by City, at Company’s 
expense within 30 days of termination of this Agreement. Without limitation, such work shall include revegetation and 
appropriate irrigation Wireless Facilities for revegetated areas. 

  
10.2.5 Prior Improvements.  This section also applies to any improvements that Company may have made to the 
Site. 
 

10.3 Company’s  Insolvency.    Company’s insolvency will be deemed an event of default.  “Insolvency” means:  (a) the 
making by Company of any general assignment or general arrangement for the benefit of creditors; (b) the filing by or against 
Company of a petition to have Company adjudged a bankrupt or a petition for reorganization or arrangement under any law 
relating to bankruptcy (unless, in the case of a petition filed against Company, the same is dismissed within sixty (60) days); or 
(c) the appointment of a trustee or receiver to take possession of substantially all of Company’s assets located at the Site or of 
Company’s interest in this Agreement, where possession is not restored to Company within thirty (30) days. 

 
SECTION 11.  INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE 
  
11.1 Insurance Responsibility.  During the entire term of this Agreement, Company must insure its property and activities 
at and about the Site and must provide insurance and indemnification as follows. Company must procure and maintain, and 
must cause its contractors to procure and maintain substantially the same coverage with substantially the same limits as 



PHO Rubenstein Site 

 

Macro Cell Agreement Form March 2019 Page 12 of 34                 
Final PHO Rubenstein Site Version 6 Dated 10-21-2020 

 
 

required of Company, as provided in Section F below, until all their respective obligations have been discharged, insurance 
against claims for injury to persons or damage to property which may arise from or in connection with Company’s obligations 
under this Agreement and Company’s activities on the Site, including but not limited to the installation, construction, relocation, 
removal, repair, operation, and maintenance of the Wireless Facilities and Communications Equipment by Company, its agents, 
representatives, employees, or contractors. The insurance requirements herein in no way limit the indemnity covenants 
contained in this Agreement.  The City in no way warrants that the limits contained herein are sufficient to protect Company 
from liabilities that might arise out of this Agreement by Company, its agents, representatives, employees or contractors, and 
Company is free to purchase such additional insurance as may be determined necessary. 
  
11.2 Minimum Scope and Limits of Insurance.  Company must provide coverage with limits of liability not less than 
stated below.   
 

11.2.1 Commercial General Liability – Occurrence Form. Policy must also include coverage for products 
completed operations, independent contractors, personal injury, property damage, and advertising injury. 
   

Products – Completed Operations Aggregate  $10,000,000 
  Each Occurrence     $10,000,000 
 
The policy must be endorsed to include the following additional insured language: "The City of Chandler, its agents, 
representatives, officers, directors, officials, employees, and volunteers shall be included as an additional insured with 
respect to liability arising out of the activities performed by the Company."  This endorsement may not contain an 
exclusion or limitation of completed operations coverage as regards the additional insured except with respect to the 
stated aggregate limits of liability. The policy may not exclude the explosion/collapse/underground (“xcu”) hazard. 
 
11.2.2  Automobile Liability. Bodily Injury and Property Damage for any owned, hired, and non-owned vehicles used 
in the performance of work under this Agreement. 
 
  Combined Single Limit (CSL)    $1,000,000 
 
The policy must contain an “MCS-90” endorsement providing for clean-up of pollution conditions arising from 
transported product, if the work performed under the Agreement requires the transportation of any Hazardous 
Substances by motor vehicle.  The policy must also be endorsed to include the following additional insured language:  
"The City of Chandler its agents, representatives, officers, directors, officials, employees, and volunteers shall be 
included as an additional insured with respect to liability arising out of the activities performed by Company, including 
automobiles owned, leased, hired, or borrowed by Company ".    

 
11.2.3 Worker's Compensation and Employers' Liability. 

  Workers' Compensation      Statutory 
   
  Employers' Liability  
  Each Accident       $100,000 
  Disease – Each Employee     $100,000 
  Disease – Policy Limit      $500,000 
 

Policy must contain a waiver of subrogation against the City of Chandler. 
 
11.2.4 Pollution Liability. 

 
  Per Occurrence       $10,000,000 
  Annual Aggregate       $10,000,000 
  

The policy must be endorsed to include the following additional insured language: "The City of Chandler its 
agents, representatives, officers, directors, officials, employees, and volunteers shall be included as an additional 
insured with respect to liability arising out of the activities performed by Company." The policy must include 
coverage for cleanup of sudden or accidental pollution conditions arising from the Wireless Facilities and 
Communications Equipment, as defined in the Agreement;  cleanup of new conditions arising from Company's 



PHO Rubenstein Site 

 

Macro Cell Agreement Form March 2019 Page 13 of 34                 
Final PHO Rubenstein Site Version 6 Dated 10-21-2020 

 
 

operations and use of the Site under this Agreement; and third-party claims for on and off-site bodily injury and 
property damage. Company warrants that any retroactive date under the policy shall precede the effective date of 
this Agreement; and that either continuous coverage will be maintained or an extended discovery period will be 
exercised for a period of two (2) years beginning at the time work under this Agreement is completed. 
   

 
11.2.5 Telecommunications, Media & Technology Errors & Omissions including Network Security & Privacy 

Liability Insurance (Cyber). 
 

Per Claim and Aggregate $10,000,000 
  

 The policy must cover professional misconduct or lack of ordinary skill for those positions defined in the Scope of 
Services of this Agreement. In the event that the professional liability insurance required by this Agreement is 
written on a claims-made basis, Agreement warrants that any retroactive date under the policy shall precede the 
effective date of this Agreement; and that either continuous coverage will be maintained or an extended discovery 
period will be exercised for a period of two (2) years beginning at the Effective Date of this Agreement. If such 
insurance is maintained on an occurrence form basis, Company must maintain such insurance for an additional 
period of one (1) year following termination or expiration of this Agreement. If such insurance is maintained on a 
claims-made basis, Company must maintain such insurance for an additional period of three (3) years following 
termination or expiration of this Agreement. If Company contends that any of the insurance it maintains pursuant 
to other sections of this clause satisfies this requirement (or otherwise insures the risks described in this section), 
Company must provide proof of same. The insurance must provide coverage for the following risks: (i) Liability 
arising from theft, dissemination and / or use of confidential information (a defined term including but not limited to 
bank account, credit card account, personal information such as name, address, social security numbers, etc. 
information) stored or transmitted in electronic form; (ii) Network security liability arising from the unauthorized 
access to, use of or tampering with the System including hacker attacks, inability of an authorized third party, to 
gain access to your services including denial of service, unless caused by a mechanical or electrical failure; (iii) 
Liability arising from the introduction of a computer virus into, or otherwise causing damage to, a customer’s or 
third person’s computer, the System, network or similar computer related property and the data, software, and 
programs thereon.  

 
11.3 Additional Insurance Requirements. The policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following 
provisions: Company’s insurance coverage must be primary insurance and non-contributory with respect to the 
obligations that Company has undertaken under this Agreement. The policies must contain a severability of interest 
clause and waiver of subrogation against the City, its officers, officials, agents, volunteers, and employees, for losses 
arising from work performed by the Company under this Agreement. 
 
11.4 Notice of Cancellation.  Upon receipt of notice from its insurer(s), Company must provide thirty (30) days prior 
written notice of cancellation to the City.  Such notice must be sent directly to the addresses listed below and must be sent 
by first class mail. 
 

City of Chandler 
Attention:  Development Services Department 
P.O. Box 4008, Mail Stop 405 
Chandler, Arizona 85244-4008    
Phone:  (480) 782-3000     
Email: tuf@chandleraz.gov 

 
With a copy to:  Office of the City Attorney        

    Attention: Risk Management 
    175 South Arizona Avenue 
    P.O. Box 4008 Mail Stop 602 
    Chandler, Arizona  85244-4008 
    Phone: (480) 782-4640 
    Fax: (480) 782-4652 
    Email: legal.notices@chandleraz.gov 



PHO Rubenstein Site 

 

Macro Cell Agreement Form March 2019 Page 14 of 34                 
Final PHO Rubenstein Site Version 6 Dated 10-21-2020 

 
 

 
11.5 Acceptability of Insurers.  Insurance is to be placed with insurers duly licensed or approved unlicensed 
companies in the State of Arizona and with an "A.M. Best" rating of not less than A-VII.  City in no way warrants that the 
above-required minimum insurer rating is sufficient to protect Company from potential insurer insolvency. 
 
11.6 Verification of Coverage.  Company must furnish City with certificates of insurance (ACORD form or equivalent 
approved by City) as required by this Agreement.  The certificates for each insurance policy are to be signed by a person 
authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf. All certificates and endorsements are to be received and 
approved by City before work commences.  Each insurance policy required by this Agreement must be in effect at or prior 
to commencement of work under this Agreement and remain in effect for the duration of the Agreement.  Failure to 
maintain the insurance policies as required by this Agreement or to provide evidence of renewal is a material breach of 
this Agreement. All certificates required by this Agreement must be sent directly to the City of Chandler Development 
Services Department with a copy to Risk Management as the addresses listed in Section 11.4.  The Agreement number 
and description are to be noted on the certificate of insurance.  At City’s request, Company must make certified copies of 
all insurance policies required by this Agreement available for City’s review through a representative and at Company’s 
most proximate location. 
 
11.7 Contractors.  Company must require all contractors and subcontractors to obtain and maintain substantially the 
same coverage with substantially the same limits as required of Company and must name the City of Chandler its agents, 
representatives, officers, directors, officials, employees, and volunteers as an additional insured. Notwithstanding the 
above, contractor’s limits of liability must not be less than $1,000,000 per occurrence, $2,000,000 aggregate. 
 
11.8  Approval. Any modification or variation from the insurance requirements in this Agreement must have prior 
approval from the Office of the City Attorney, whose decision will be final.  Such action will not require a formal contract 
amendment, but may be made by administrative action. 
 
11.9 Indemnity.  In addition to all other indemnities and other obligations hereunder, to the fullest extent permitted by law, 
throughout the term of this Agreement or any and all Permits and until all obligations and performances under or related to this 
Agreement are satisfied and all matters described in this paragraph are completely resolved, Company and all other persons 
using, acting, working or claiming through or for Company (if they or their subcontractor, employee or other person or entity 
hired or directed by them participated in any way in causing the claim in question) shall jointly and severally indemnify, defend 
and hold harmless City and all other parties required to be named as additional insureds under this Section 11 (“Additional 
Insureds”) for, from and against any and all claims or harm related to Company’s use of the Site or the rights granted to 
Company with respect to the Site or Company’s exercise of its rights under this Agreement (the “Indemnity”). Without 
limitation, the Indemnity shall include and apply to any and all allegations, demands, judgments, assessments, taxes, 
impositions, expenses, proceedings, liabilities, obligations, suits, actions, claims (including without limitation claims of personal 
injury, bodily injury, sickness, disease, death, property damage, destruction, loss of use, financial harm, or other impairment), 
damages, losses, expenses, penalties, fines or other matters (together with all reasonable attorney fees, court costs, and the 
cost of appellate proceedings and all other costs and expenses of litigation or resolving the claim) that may arise in any 
manner out of Company’s use of the Site or other property pursuant to this Agreement or any and all Permits, or any actions, 
acts, errors, mistakes or omissions relating to work or services in the performance of or related to this Agreement by 
Company, including without limitation any injury or damages or cause of action claimed or caused by any employees, 
contractors, subcontractors, tenants, subtenants, agents or other persons upon or using the Site or surrounding areas related 
to Company’s exercise of its rights under this Agreement, except to the extent caused by City or any other Additional Insured 
or anyone for whose mistakes, errors, omissions or negligence City may be liable. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the 
Indemnity does not apply to: (i) Claims arising from the sole negligence or intentionally wrongful acts of City; or (ii) Claims that 
the law prohibits from being imposed upon the indemnitor. 
 
11.10 Risk of Loss.  Company assumes the risk of any and all loss, damage or claims related to Company’s use of the Site 
or other property of City, Company or third parties throughout the term of this Agreement and the term(s) of any and all 
Permits. Company must be responsible for any and all damage to its property and equipment related to this Agreement unless 
caused by the negligence of the City or its agents or contractors. 
 
11.11 Insurance to be Provided by Others.  Company must cause its contractors or other persons occupying, working on 
or about, or using the Site pursuant to this Agreement to be covered by their own or Company’s insurance as required by this 
Agreement. The required policy limits for commercial general liability insurance provided by such persons must be $1,000,000 



PHO Rubenstein Site 

 

Macro Cell Agreement Form March 2019 Page 15 of 34                 
Final PHO Rubenstein Site Version 6 Dated 10-21-2020 

 
 

for each occurrence, $1,000,000 for products and completed operations annual aggregate, and $2,000,000 general aggregate 
limit per policy year. This paragraph does not apply to persons who do not actually perform physical labor at the Site (such as 
Company’s consulting design engineers). 
 
SECTION 12.  ASSIGNABILITY AND TRANSFERABILITY 
 
12.1 Assignability.  This Agreements and all permits are not assignable by Company (and any assignment shall be void 
and vest no rights in the purported assignee) unless the assignment is made in strict compliance with the following. 
 
12.2  Assignments Affected.  Every assignment of any of Company’s interest in the Right-of-way, any Agreement, any 
Permit, or any of Company’s rights or interests hereunder is prohibited unless Company first receives from City notice of City’s 
consent to the assignment, City’s consent to such assignment not to be unreasonably withheld, conditioned, or delayed. All 
references in this Agreement to assignments by Company or to assignees shall be deemed also to apply to all of the following 
transactions, circumstances and conditions and to all persons claiming pursuant to such transactions, circumstances and 
conditions: (i) Any voluntary or involuntary assignment, conveyance or transfer of Company’s right to use the Right-of-way 
under this Agreement or any interest or rights of City under this Agreement, in whole or in part; (ii) Any voluntary or involuntary 
pledge, lien, mortgage, security interest, judgment, claim or demand, whether arising from any contract, any agreement, any 
work of construction, repair, restoration, maintenance or removal, or otherwise affecting Company’s rights to use the Right-of-
way (collectively “Liens”); (iii) Any assignment by Company of any interest in any Agreement or Permit for the benefit of 
creditors, voluntary or involuntary; (iv) A Company Insolvency; (v) The occurrence of any of the foregoing by operation of law or 
otherwise; (vi) The occurrence of any of the foregoing with respect to any assignee or other successor to Company. 
 
12.3 Pre-approved Assignments.  Subject to certain conditions hereafter stated, City hereby consents to certain 
assignments (the “Pre-approved Assignments”). Only the following assignments are Pre-approved Assignments: 
 

12.3.1 Complete Assignment of Agreement and Permits. Company’s complete assignment of all of Company’s 
rights and Interests in the Right-of-way and approved  Agreements, and issued Permits to a single assignee who meets all of 
the following requirements, as determined by City in City’s reasonable discretion (a “Qualified Operator”): (i) The assignee has 
experience, management, credit standing and financial capacity and other resources equal to or greater than Company’s and 
adequate to successfully perform the obligations set forth herein; (ii) The assignee is experienced in the management and 
operation of similar projects; (iii) The assignee assumes all of Company’s obligations herein; (iv) The assignee has a net worth 
of not less than Fifty Million and No/100 Dollars ($50,000,000.00). 

 
12.3.2 Stock Transfers.  The transfer of publicly traded stock, regardless of quantity. 
 
12.3.3 Merger.  The merger or consolidation of Company with another entity that is a Qualified Operator. 
 
12.3.4 Common Ownership Transfer.  Company’s complete assignment of all of Company’s rights and interests in 

the Right-of-way and approved Agreements to a single assignee who is and remains a majority owned subsidiary of Company’s 
owner as of the date of the Agreement (or a majority owned subsidiary of a majority owned subsidiary of Company’s owner as 
of the date of the Agreement), or a majority owned subsidiary of Company. 

 
12.4 Limitations on Assignments.  City’s consent to any assignment, including without limitation, Pre-approved 
Assignments, is not effective until the following conditions are satisfied: (i) Except for the sale of stock, Company must provide 
to City a summary of the transaction assigning its interests; and (ii) Each assignee must execute an assumption of any and all 
Agreements and Permits to be assigned in  the form attached as Exhibit E; and (iii) Each Pre-approved Assignment must 
satisfy all other requirements of this Agreement pertaining to assignments. 
 
12.5 Assignment Remedies.  Any assignment without City’s consent shall be void and shall not result in the assignee 
obtaining any rights or interests.  City may, in its sole discretion and in addition to all other remedies available to City under this 
Agreement or otherwise, and in any combination, terminate any and all Agreements and Permits; collect Base Fee from the 
assignee and/or declare the assignment to be void, all without prejudicing any other right or remedy of City this Agreement. No 
cure or grace periods may apply to assignments prohibited under this Agreement or to enforcement of any provision under this 
Agreement against an assignee who did not receive City's consent. 
 



PHO Rubenstein Site 

 

Macro Cell Agreement Form March 2019 Page 16 of 34                 
Final PHO Rubenstein Site Version 6 Dated 10-21-2020 

 
 

12.6 Effect of Assignment.  Prior to any assignment, each assignee must execute an assumption of each Agreement and 
Permit in the form attached hereto as Exhibit E. No action or inaction by City shall be deemed a waiver of the prohibition on 
assignments or any other provision herein, or the acceptance of the assignee, Company or occupant as Company, or a release 
of Company from the further performance by Company of the provisions of this Agreement, any agreement or any permit. 
Consent by City to an assignment shall not relieve Company from obtaining City’s consent to any further assignment. No 
assignment may release Company from any liability hereunder. 
 
12.7 Enforceability after Assignment.  No consent by City may be deemed to be a novation. City’s consent to any 
assignment does not in any way expand or modify the terms set forth this Agreement or waive, diminish or modify any of City’s 
rights or remedies under any agreement or any permit. The terms set forth in this Agreement will be enforceable against 
Company and each successor, partial or total, and regardless of the method of succession, to Company’s interest hereunder.  
Each successor having actual or constructive notice of this Agreement, any agreement or permit will be deemed to have agreed 
to the preceding sentence. 
 
12.8 Grounds for Refusal.  Except for the Preapproved Assignments, no assignment of any agreement or permit by 
Company is contemplated or bargained for. Without limitation, City has the right to impose upon any consent to assignment 
such conditions and requirements as City may deem appropriate. 
 
12.9 Consent to Assignments Company must attach to each Pre-approved Assignment a copy of Company’s notice to 
City of the Pre-approved Assignment and other required documents, Company must attach to each other assignment, a copy of 
City's notice to Company of City's consent to the assignment. This Agreement will continue to be enforceable according to its 
terms in spite of any provisions of any documents relating to an assignment. 
 
12.10 Assignment Fee.  Company must pay to City in advance the sum of Five Hundred Dollars ($500) as a nonrefundable 
fee for legal, administrative and other expenses related to every Pre-approved Assignment of an Agreement (including any 
related Site Permits (other than the sale of publicly traded stock) or to any request for a consent to assignment, whether or not 
City grants such request. 
 
SECTION 13.  USE AREA 
 
13.1 Authority to Use Right-of-Way.  Upon approval of this Agreement, City grants to Company permission to install 
Wireless Facilities in the Right-of-Way upon issuance of all required Permits as set forth below. 
 
13.2 Limitations.  Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the Use Area includes and is limited to only certain 
area that Company is permitted to use and occupy as depicted in Exhibit B. The Use Area will be clearly defined by the 
Boundary Plan in the Preliminary Drawings or Construction Drawings. 

 
13.3 Use Area Boundary.   The Use Area excludes other parts of the Public Property and all other land. Company 
must not occupy or use any other portion of the Public Property or adjoining lands. An approved Agreement or an issued 
Permit does not allow any use of land outside the Use Area. If any portion of Company’s work, improvement, or 
equipment is to be located on other land, such work, improvements, and equipment are prohibited unless Company first 
obtains from the owner of said land (including City, if applicable) an agreement allowing such work, improvements, or 
equipment (a “Supplemental Parcel Agreement”). 
 
13.4 Power and Telephone Service.  Nothing herein grants permission for any portion of the power, telephone or 
other service routes, if any. Use of the Public Property or utility easements for these purposes, if any, is governed by other 
City laws, rules, and policies, and by the Agreement or franchise between City and electrical, telephone, and other service 
Companies. Any proposed service entrance section, electrical meter pedestal, vault or other equipment and any 
associated conduits required by power, telephone, or other service Companies to be constructed by the Company to 
provide such services to the Site must be clearly indicated on the Site Construction Drawings to coordinate with and avoid 
conflicts with other users. 
 
13.5 Rights in Adjacent Land.  Company's interests granted by this Agreement are expressly limited to the real 
property defined as the “Use Area” in an issued Permit. Without limitation, in the event any public right-of-way or other 
public or private property at or adjacent to the Use Area is owned, dedicated, abandoned, or otherwise acquired, used, 
improved, or disposed of by City, such property will not accrue to Company but will be City’s only.  



PHO Rubenstein Site 

 

Macro Cell Agreement Form March 2019 Page 17 of 34                 
Final PHO Rubenstein Site Version 6 Dated 10-21-2020 

 
 

 
13.6 Variation in Area.  In the event the Use Area consists of more or less than any stated area, Company's 
obligations hereunder will not be increased or decreased. 
 
13.7 Condition of Title.  Company must not amend, modify, terminate, or otherwise change the Site Documents or 
create new Site Documents without the City’s written approval.  
 

13.7.1  Title. City does not warrant title or rights to use the Use Area or any other property. 
 

13.7.2 Indemnity. Company must  pay, indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the City and its agents and 
representatives of, from and against any and all claims, demands, damages, expenses, interest or penalties of any kind or 
nature whatsoever, including reasonable attorneys', arbitrators' and experts' fees and court costs that arise from or relate 
to Company’s failure to comply with the Site Documents except to the extent caused by City’s negligence or willful 
misconduct. 
 
13.8 Condition of Use Area.  The Use Area is made available in an “as is” condition without any express or implied 
warranties of any kind, including without limitation any warranties or representations as to their condition or fitness for any 
use or particular purpose. 
 
13.9 No Real Property Interest.  Notwithstanding any provision hereof to the contrary, and notwithstanding any 
negotiation, correspondence, course of performance or dealing, or other statements or acts by or between the parties, 
Company's rights herein are limited to use and occupation of the Use Area for the Permitted Uses. Company's rights in 
the Use Area are limited to the specific rights created herein as an approved Agreement. 
 
13.10 Reserved Right and Competing Users and Activities.  Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, City 
specifically reserves to itself and excludes from any issued Permit a non-exclusive delegable right (the “Reserved Right”) 
over the entire Use Area for all manner of real and personal improvements and for streets, sidewalks, trails, landscaping, 
utilities, and every other land use of every description, provided the foregoing does not unreasonably interfere with 
Company’s use of the Use Area. Without limitation: 
 

13.10.1 Competing Users.  Company accepts the risk that City and others (the “Competing Users”) may now or 
in the future install their facilities in the Use Area in locations that make unoccupied parts of the Public Property 
unavailable for Company’s use.  
 

13.10.2 Competing Activities.  Company accepts the risk that there may now or in the future exist upon the Use 
Area all manner of work and improvements upon the Use Area (the “Competing Activities”). The Competing Activities 
include without limitation any and all laying construction, erection, installation, use, operation, repair, replacement, 
removal, relocation, raising, lowering, widening, realigning or other dealing with any or all of the following, whether above, 
upon or below the surface of the Use Area and whether occasioned by existing or proposed uses of the Public Property or 
existing or proposed uses of adjoining or nearby land: (i) All manner of streets, alleys, sidewalks, trails, ways, traffic 
control devices, subways, tunnels, trains and gates of every description, and all manner of other transportation facilities 
and their appurtenances; (ii) All manner of pipes, wires, cables, conduits, sewers, pumps, valves, switches, conductors, 
connectors, poles, supports, access points and guy wires of every description, and all manner of other utility facilities and 
their appurtenances; (iii) All manner of canals, drains, bridges, viaducts, overpasses, underpasses, culverts, markings, 
balconies, porches, overhangs and other encroachments of every description and all manner of other facilities and their 
appurtenances: (iv) All other uses of the Public Property that City may permit from time to time. 
 
13.11 City’s Rights Cumulative.  All of City’s Reserved Rights under various provisions of this Agreement and any and 
all issued Permits will be cumulative to each other. 
 
13.12 Use Priorities.  This Agreement does not grant to Company or establish for Company any exclusive rights or 
priority in favor of Company to use the Use Area. Company must not obstruct or interfere with or prevent any Competing 
User from using the Use Area. City agrees that Competing Users may not obstruct or interfere with or prevent Company 
from using the Use Area.  
 



PHO Rubenstein Site 

 

Macro Cell Agreement Form March 2019 Page 18 of 34                 
Final PHO Rubenstein Site Version 6 Dated 10-21-2020 

 
 

13.13 Regulation.  City reserves the full authority to regulate use of the Use Area and to resolve competing demands 
and preferences regarding use of the Use Area and to require Company to cooperate and participate in implementing 
such resolutions. Without limitation, City may take any or all of the following into account in regulating use of the Use 
Area: (i) all timing, public, operational, financial and other factors affecting existing and future proposals, needs and plans 
for Competing Activities; and (ii) all other factors City may consider relevant, whether or not mentioned in this Agreement 
and any and all issued Permits; (iii) differing regulatory regimes or laws applicable to claimed rights, public benefits, 
community needs and all other factors relating to Competing Users and Competing Activities. 
 
13.14 Communications Equipment Relocation.  Upon ninety (90) days’ notice from City and in connection with the 
relocation of the associated SRP transmission pole, Company may temporarily or permanently relocate or otherwise 
modify the Communications Equipment (the “Relocation Work”) as follows: (i) Company must perform the Relocation 
Work at its own expense when required by the City Manager; and  (ii) The Relocation Work includes all work determined 
by City to be necessary to accommodate Competing Activities, including without limitation temporarily or permanently 
removing, protecting, supporting, disconnecting, or relocating any portion of the Communications Equipment; and (iii) City 
may perform any part of the Relocation Work that has not been performed within the allotted time. Company must 
reimburse City for its actual costs in performing any Relocation Work. City has no obligation to move Company’s, City’s or 
others’ facilities, but may assist Company to find a new location and to expedite the approval process; and (iv) City 
reserves the right to use any of Company’s Facilities that are abandoned in place or that are not relocated on City’s 
request; and (v) all Relocation Work is subject to and must comply with this Agreement; and (vi) if City and Company 
cannot mutually agree on an alternate location, this Agreement will terminate as set forth in section 15.1; and (vii)  
Communication Equipment  relocated to an acceptable location must be reflected by an amendment to this Agreement and 
subject to City Council approval. 
 
13.15 Interference/Disruption by Competing Users.  Neither City, nor any agent, contractor, or employee of City will 
be liable to Company, its customers nor third parties for any service disruption or for any harm caused them or the 
Communications Equipment due to Competing Users or Competing Activities.  

. 
 
13.16 Emergency Disruption by City.  City may remove, alter, tear out, relocate or damage portions of the 
Communications Equipment in the case of fire, disaster, or other emergencies as the City Manager deems such action to 
be reasonably necessary under the circumstances. City will make reasonable efforts to contact the Company’s Network 
Operations Center at (800) 621-2622.  In such event, neither City, nor any agent, contractor or employee of City may be 
liable to Company or its customers or third parties for any harm so caused to them or the Communications Equipment. 
When practical, City may consult with Company in advance to assess the necessity of such actions and to minimize 
damage or disruption of operation of the Communications Equipment to the extent reasonably practical under the 
circumstances. City will inform Company after such action is taken. The terms and condition for Relocation Work apply for 
Company’s repair for the emergency disruption of Company’s Wireless Facilities. 
 
13.17 Public Safety.  If the Communications Equipment or any other Company equipment, improvements, or activities 
present any immediate hazard or impediment to the public, to City, to City’s equipment or facilities, to other improvements 
or activities within or outside of the Use Area, or to City’s ability to safely and conveniently operate the Public Property or 
perform City’s utility, public safety, or other public health, safety, and welfare functions, Company must immediately 
remedy the hazard, comply with City requests to secure the Public Property, and otherwise cooperate with City at no 
expense to City to remove any such hazard or impediment. Company’s work crews must report to the Use Area within 
four (4) hours of any request by City under this section. The City may impose violation use fees and civil sanctions as 
provided in C.C.C. chapter 46 for Company’s failure to comply with this section, this Agreement, or City Code. 
 
13.18 Third Party Permission.  Company’s Wireless Facilities must not be located on Third Party Areas without the 
third party’s written permission.  This Agreement may be suspended for Company’s failure to obtain the third party’s 
written permission to use Third Party Areas. 
 
SECTION 14.  PROPRIETARY INFORMATION 
 
14.1 Notice to Company.   If City receives a request to disclose information identified by Company as Proprietary 
Information, City will notify Company of such request as provided in section 19.15 to permit Company at Company’s cost 



PHO Rubenstein Site 

 

Macro Cell Agreement Form March 2019 Page 19 of 34                 
Final PHO Rubenstein Site Version 6 Dated 10-21-2020 

 
 

a reasonable opportunity to prevent the disclosure of the requested information.  If the City does not receive a court order 
to prevent disclosure within five business days from the date of the notice, the City will disclose the requested information.  
 
14.2 Public Records Law.  Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement, Company acknowledges and understands 
that City is a political subdivision of the State of Arizona and is subject to the disclosure requirements of Arizona’s Public 
Records Laws (A.R.S. § 39-121 et. seq.). 
 
SECTION 15.   ABANDONMENT 
 
15.1 Abandonment; Removal of Facilities.  In the event that the use of a substantial part of any of the Wireless 
Facilities is discontinued for any reason for a continuous period of two (2) years for reasons other than Force Majeure, or 
in the event such Wireless Facilities or property has been installed in any Public Property without complying with the 
requirements of this Agreement, or this Agreement has terminated or been revoked, Company must promptly, upon being 
given 60  days’ notice from the City, begin removal of such Wireless Facilities and related appurtenances from the Public 
Property other than such underground facilities which the City may permit to be abandoned in place.  In the event of such 
removal, Company must promptly restore the Public Property or other area from which such property has been removed 
to a condition satisfactory to the City subject to the City’s customary practice to review upon request of Company.  As a 
minimum, Company must restore the Public Property to a condition as existed prior to the removal of the structure or 
property. 
 
15.2 Permanent Abandonment.  The Wireless Facilities and any other property of Company remaining on the Public 
Property without the consent of the City 180 days after the revocation of this Agreement will be at the option of the City 
considered permanently abandoned.   Any Company property permitted to be abandoned in place will be abandoned 
consistent with C.C.C. §§ 46-2.9, 46-8.12(K), the Utility Permit Manual, Transportation and Development Policy TDP-275, 
and any other applicable law. 
 
SECTION 16.  AGREEMENT REVOCATION 
 
16.1  Revocation for Nonuse.  Not later than 24 months after the date that the City issues a wireless agreement under 
C.C.C. chapter 46, or an amended video service agreement under C.C.C. chapter 46, Company must offer and provide 
wireless services unless the Company cannot meet the requirement for reasons beyond the Company’s  control as provided in 
Section 19.22. If Company fails to comply with this section, the City may revoke this Agreement. 
 
16.2 Revocation for Cause. In addition to C.C.C. chapter 46 and subject to Section 16.4 below, this Agreement may, 
after public hearing and notice and an opportunity to cure pursuant to Section 16.3 below, be revoked, altered, or 
suspended by the City as it deems necessary on any of the following grounds:  (i) failure to file and maintain any faithful 
letters of credit, insurance coverage or pay Agreement fees as required under this Agreement;  (ii)  failure to comply with 
applicable law regarding the operation of the Wireless Facilities, this Agreement, or the appropriate regulatory authority;  
(iii) violation of material terms of this Agreement;  (iv)  fraud by Company, in its conduct or relations under the Agreement; 
(v) willful or grossly negligent repeated violations of this Agreement;  (vi) failure to comply with any federal, state, local or 
administrative order, law, permit regulation or consent decree as such may apply to Company’s activities, as 
contemplated in this Agreement; and (vii) permanent or temporary suspension for a period greater than 180 calendar days 
by the United States or the State of Arizona for any authorizations for Company to own, operate, maintain, or construct a 
Wireless Facilities. 
 
16.3 Cure Period.  If any of the foregoing events occur, Company will be given a period of 60 days after receipt of a 
written notice of default from the City to cure the default before the hearing described in Section 16.4.  The provisions of 
Section 16.4 apply: (i) if Company fails to cure the event of default within the 60 day period; or (ii) when an event of a 
default cannot be cured within the 60 day period and Company fails to begin and diligently pursue the cure. 

 
16.4 City Determination; Public Hearing.  If Company fails to remedy its default as provided for in Section 16.2, City 
will notify Company of that determination and will state the major causes and reasons supporting the determination.  
Company will be granted ten days to respond to the determination.  The City will consider the response of Company, if 
any, and may then terminate, postpone for a period, or proceed with the revocation, alteration, or suspension process.  If 
the City proceeds with the revocation, alteration, or suspension process, or reactivates a postponed proceeding, a written 
statement of revocation, alteration, or suspension will be served upon Company stating the principal reasons for such 



PHO Rubenstein Site 

 

Macro Cell Agreement Form March 2019 Page 20 of 34                 
Final PHO Rubenstein Site Version 6 Dated 10-21-2020 

 
 

action and a copy of the statement must be sent by certified U.S. mail, return receipt requested, to Company as provided 
in Section 19.15.  The City Council may take final action on the revocation, alteration, or suspension of this Agreement 
after the public hearing. 

 
16.5 Removal of Facilities.  Upon revocation of this Agreement, the City may declare a forfeiture, whereupon all 
rights and privileges of Company under this Agreement will immediately be divested without a further act upon the part of 
Company, and Company must remove its structures or property from the Public Property and restore the Public Property 
to the condition as existed prior to the removal of the structure or property.  Upon Company’s failure to do so within six 
months of revocation, the City may perform the work and collect the City’s cost from Company. At the City’s option, 
Company may abandon structures or property in place as provided in this Agreement.  At a minimum, the Public Property 
must be restored to a condition as existed before the removal of the structures or property. 
 
SECTION 17. RADIO FREQUENCY REQUIREMENTS; CITY EMPLOYEE SAFETY 
 
17.1  RF Compliance Requirements.  Company must document, report, and confirm its compliance with FCC Radio 
Frequency Exposure Guidelines (FCC OET Bulletin 65) and all other applicable radio frequency emissions laws and 
regulations in effect from time to time (collectively, the “FCC Rules”). Company must cause its senior internal engineer 
responsible for compliance with the FCC Rules to deliver to City a written letter (the “RF Letter”), as follows: (i) The RF 
Letter must attest that Company’s operation of the Communications Equipment is in compliance with the FCC Rules. A 
statement from Company declaring exemption from reporting to FCC is not acceptable to comply with the requirements of 
this paragraph; and (ii) Company must maintain records of radio frequency measurements and Communications 
Equipment performance in accordance with the FCC Rules; and (iii) Company must show its compliance with the FCC 
Rules.  
 
17.2 Prior Notice for Work Near Wireless Facilities. Prior to performing any work on the Site, the City’s employee 
will contact the Network Operations Center (the NOC”) whose information must be located on the ground level 
Communications Equipment or on the pole.  The City’s employee will identify himself or herself as an employee of City 
and will request deactivate the RF signals at the Site for a specified period.  Upon completion of the work, the City’s 
employee will contact the NOC to inform Company that the Site may activate the RF signals. 
 
17.3 Kill Switch. Company must provide access to a “kill switch” for the Wireless Facilities and Communication 
Equipment located at the Site for use by the City's employees, agents, or representatives.  
 
SECTION 18. VIOLATION USE FEES AND PUBLIC SAFETY VIOLATIONS.  
 
18.1 Violation Use Fee.  Company agrees to pay Violation Use Fees as provided in C.C.C. chapter 46 when 
Company breaches the terms of this Agreement and fails to cure the breach after the applicable notice and cure period. 
The City may elect to draw upon the letter of credit required in Section 8 to collect the Violation Use Fees. For continuing 
violations within a 24-hour period, each calendar day is considered a separate period for purposes of recovery of Violation 
Use Fees. Company’s payment of Violation Use Fees does not excuse Company’s breach of this Agreement or limit the 
City’s legal or equitable remedies.  
 
18.2 Enforcement of Violation Use Fees. The City Manager may issue a warning for Company’s first violation under 
this section. The City Manager will issue notice to the Company as listed in Section 19.15. If City determines that 
Company is liable for Violation Use Fee, the City assesses the Violation Use Fee by setting forth the nature of the 
violation and the amount of the assessment. Within ten days of the notice of violation date, Company may appeal the 
violation as provided in C.C.C. chapter 46 or must pay the Violation Use Fee.  

 
18.3 Public Safety Violations; Civil Sanctions. In addition to imposing a Violation Use Fee, as provided in C.C.C. 
chapter 46 the City Manager may issue notices of violation of this Agreement and may take those measures necessary to 
promote, preserve, and protect public health, safety, and welfare within the public right-of-way. The City Manager may 
issue a warning for Company’s first violation under this section. The City Manager will issue notice to the Company as 
listed in Section 19.15, and Company’s violation may result in a civil sanction as provided in C.C.C. chapter 46. For 
continuing violations within a 24-hour period, each calendar day is considered a separate period for civil sanctions. 
 
18.4 Civil Action for Violations. These remedies are cumulative and the City may proceed under one or more 



PHO Rubenstein Site 

 

Macro Cell Agreement Form March 2019 Page 21 of 34                 
Final PHO Rubenstein Site Version 6 Dated 10-21-2020 

 
 

remedies. Any party who causes, permits, facilitates, or aids or abets any violation of any provision of this section or who 
fails to perform any act or duty required by this section is subject to a civil sanction as provided in C.C.C. chapter 46.  
 
SECTION 19.  GENERAL CONDITIONS. 
 
19.1 Agreement Administrator and Enforcement.  In all matters of Agreement administration, the City Manager has 
authority to determine Company’s compliance with the terms and provisions of the Agreement, and in the event of non-
compliance, to exercise any or all of the remedies provided in this Agreement and to the full extent provided by law.  
 
19.2 Right of Inspection of Construction.  The City may inspect all construction or installation work performed 
subject to the provisions of this Agreement and to make such tests as it deems necessary to ensure compliance with the 
terms of this Agreement and other pertinent provisions of law. 
 
19.3 Right of Intervention.  The City may intervene in any suit or proceeding related to or arising out of this 
Agreement to which Company is party, and Company may not oppose such intervention by the City. 
 
19.6 Compliance With Laws.  Company must comply with all federal, state, and City ordinances, resolutions, rules, 
and regulations related to the rights and duties granted Company under this Agreement. 

 
19.7 No Recourse.  Company has no recourse whatsoever against the City or its officials, boards, commissions, 
agents, or employees for any loss, costs, expense, or damage arising out of any provision, requirement, enforcement, or 
defect in this Agreement.  

 
19.8 Non-Enforcement by the City.  Company will not be relieved of its obligation to comply with any of the 
provisions of this Agreement by reason of the City’s failure to insist upon or to seek compliance with any term and 
condition. 

 
19.9 Agreement Documents.  Company must submit to the City the letter of credit and insurance certificates as 
required by the Agreement within 30 days of the Effective Date. The Agreement granted is not legally operative until all of 
Company’s requirements in this Section are completed. In the event Company does not timely satisfy these, this 
Agreement will be deemed null and void unless Company’s time period to comply is extended by the Council.   
 
19.10 Survival of Warranties.  Company’s representations and warranties made as part of the grant of this Agreement 
or any permit issued under this Agreement survive termination or revocation of this Agreement. 
 
19.11 Right of Cancellation.  Company acknowledges that this Agreement is subject to cancellation by the City under 
A.R.S. § 38-511. 

 
19.12 Covenant Against Contingent Fees.  Company warrants that no person has been employed or retained to 
solicit or secure this Agreement upon an agreement or understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or 
contingent fee; and that no member of the City Council or any employee of the City has any interest, financially or 
otherwise, in this Agreement.  For breach or violation of this warranty, the City has the right to annul this Agreement 
without liability, or at its discretion to deduct from the Agreement price or consideration, the full amount of such 
commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee. 

 
19.13 Independent Contractor.  Any provision in this Agreement that may appear to give the City the right to direct 
Company or Company the right to direct the City as to the details of accomplishing the work or to exercise a measure of 
control over the work means that the party will follow the wishes of the other party as to the results of the work only.   

 
19.14 Governing Law; Jurisdiction.  Arizona law governs this Agreement, both as to interpretation and performance.  
Any action at law, suit in equity, or judicial proceeding to enforce this Agreement must be instituted in Maricopa County, 
Arizona courts. 

 
19.15 Delivery, Procedure of Notices and Communications.  All notices, consent, or other communication under this 
Agreement must be in writing and: (i) delivered in person; or (ii) deposited in the United States mail, postage prepaid, 
registered or certified mail, return receipt requested;  or (iii) deposited with any commercial air courier or express service 



PHO Rubenstein Site 

 

Macro Cell Agreement Form March 2019 Page 22 of 34                 
Final PHO Rubenstein Site Version 6 Dated 10-21-2020 

 
 

and addressed as follows: 
 
To City:     To Company: 
 
City of Chandler    Cellco Partnership, 
P.O. Box 4008, Mail Stop 405  d/b/a Verizon Wireless 
Chandler, Arizona 85244-4008   180 Washington Valley Road 
Attention:  Development Services Bedminster, New Jersey 07921 
Phone:  (480) 782-3000   Attention: Network Real Estate Site: PHO Rubenstein 
e-mail: tuf@chandleraz.gov  Phone: 800 264-6620 
      
  
With a copy to:        
 
City of Chandler     
Office of the City Attorney     
P.O. Box 4008, Mail Stop 602    
Chandler, Arizona 85224-4008   
 
Notice will be deemed received at the time it is personally served, on the second day after its deposit with any commercial 
air courier or express service or, if mailed, three (3) calendar days after the notice is deposited in the United States mail 
as above provided.  Any time period stated in a notice will be computed from the time the notice is deemed received 
unless noted otherwise.  Any party may change its mailing address, phone number, email address or the person to 
receive notice by notifying the other party as provided in this Section.  Notices sent by electronic mail must also be sent by 
regular mail to the recipient at the above address.  This requirement for duplicate notice is not intended to change the 
effective date of the notice sent by electronic mail. 
 
19.16 Organization/Employment Disclaimer.  This Agreement is not intended to constitute, create, give rise to, or 
otherwise recognize a joint venture, agreement, or relationship, partnership, or formal business organization of any kind, 
and the rights and obligations of the Parties will be only those expressly set forth in this Agreement.   

 
19.17 Entire Agreement; Amendment; Waivers.  This Agreement, and the below listed exhibits which are 
incorporated herein by this reference and are attached and/or on file at the City and available for inspection, constitute 
the entire agreement between the City and Company with respect to the transactions contemplated therein and 
supersede all prior negotiations, communications, discussions and correspondence, whether written or oral, concerning 
the subject matter hereof.  No supplement, modification, or amendment of any term of this Agreement will be deemed 
binding or effective unless executed in writing by the Parties.  No waiver of any of the provisions of this Agreement will be 
deemed, or will constitute, a waiver of any other provisions, whether or not similar, nor will any waiver constitute a 
continuing waiver.  No waiver is binding unless expressly executed in writing by the Party making the waiver. 

 
Exhibit “A” – Site Drawings 
Exhibit “B” – Use Area or Legal Description 
Exhibit “C” – Chandler Department Approval Form 
Exhibit “D” – Form Letter of Credit 
Exhibit “E” – Assumption Wireless Use Agreement 
Exhibit “F” – Extension of Wireless Use Agreement 

 
19.18 Right of Parties.  Nothing in this Agreement, whether express or implied, is intended to confer any right or 
remedies under or by reason of this Agreement on any persons other than the Parties to this Agreement and their 
respective successors and permitted assigns, nor is anything in this Agreement intended to relieve or discharge any 
obligation or liability of any person who is not a party to this Agreement, nor will any provisions in this Agreement give any 
persons not a party to this Agreement any right of subrogation or action over or against any Party to this Agreement. 
 
19.19 Construction.  This Agreement is the result of negotiations between the Parties, none of whom has acted under 
any duress or compulsion, whether legal, economic or otherwise.  Accordingly, the terms and provisions of this 
Agreement will be construed in accordance with their usual and customary meanings.  The Parties hereby waive the 



PHO Rubenstein Site 

 

Macro Cell Agreement Form March 2019 Page 23 of 34                 
Final PHO Rubenstein Site Version 6 Dated 10-21-2020 

 
 

application of any rule of law that otherwise would be applicable in connection with the construction of this Agreement that 
ambiguous or conflicting terms or provisions should be construed against the party who (or whose attorney) prepared the 
executed Agreement or any earlier draft of the same.  Unless the context of this Agreement otherwise clearly requires, 
references to the plural include the singular and the singular the plural.  The words "hereof,” "herein," "hereunder" and 
similar terms in this Agreement refer to this Agreement as a whole and not to any particular provision of this Agreement.  
All references to "Sections" herein refer to the sections and paragraphs of this Agreement unless specifically stated 
otherwise.  The section and other headings contained in this Agreement are inserted for convenience of reference only, 
and they neither form a part of this Agreement nor are they to be used in the construction or interpretation of this 
Agreement. 
 
19.20 Severability.  If any covenant, condition, term, or provision of this Agreement is held to be illegal, or if the 
application of this Agreement to any person or in any circumstances to any extent be judicially determined to be invalid or 
unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement or the application of such covenant, condition, term, or provision to 
persons or in circumstances other than those to which it is held invalid or unenforceable, must not be affected, and each 
covenant, term, and condition of this Agreement is valid and enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law. 
 
19.21 Cooperation and Further Documentation.  Each of the Parties agree to provide the other with such additional 
and other duly executed documents as are reasonably requested to fulfill the intent of this Agreement. 
 
19.22 Force Majeure.  For the purpose of any of the provisions of this Agreement, neither Company nor the City, as the 
case may be, will be considered in breach of or in default of their obligations under this Agreement as a result of the 
enforced delay in performance of such obligations due to unforeseeable causes beyond its control and without its fault or 
negligence, including, but not limited to: acts of God, acts of the public enemy, acts of the Federal Government, acts of 
the Salt River Project, acts of Maricopa County, acts of the State of Arizona or any of its departments, acts of any railroad, 
fire, floods, epidemics, strikes, lock outs, freight embargoes, and unusually severe weather; it being the purpose and 
intent of this provision that in the occurrence of any such enforced delay, the time for performance of Company’s and the 
City’s obligations, as the case may be, will be extended for the period of the enforced delay, provided that the party 
seeking the benefit of this provision will have notified the other party in writing of the cause or causes, and requested an 
extension for the period of the enforced delay.  If notice by the party claiming such extension is sent to the other party 
more than 30 days after commencement of the cause, the period of delay will be deemed to commence 30 days prior to 
the giving of such notice. 
 
19.23 On-Call Assistance. Company must be available to staff employees of any City department having jurisdiction over 
Company’s activities twenty-four (24) hours a day, seven (7) days a week, regarding problems or complaints resulting from 
the installation, operation, maintenance, or removal of its Wireless Facilities.  City may contact by telephone the control 
center operator at telephone number (800) 621-2622 regarding such problems or complaints. In the event of a public 
emergency, pursuant to Sections 13.16 and 13.17, the emergency contact can be reached at (800) 621-2622. 
 

19.24 Legal Worker Requirements. A.R.S. § 41-4401 prohibits the City from awarding a contract to any party who fails, or 
whose contractors fail, to comply with A.R.S. § 23-214(A) in connection with this Agreement. Therefore, Company and each 
contractor it uses warrant their compliance with all federal immigration laws and regulations that relate to their employees and 
their compliance with§ 23-214, subsection A in connection with this Agreement. A breach of this warranty will be deemed a 
material breach of this Agreement and may be subject to penalties up to and including revocation of the Agreement. City retains 
the legal right to inspect the papers of Company’s or contractor’s employees who provide services under this Agreement to 
ensure that Company and its contractors comply with this warranty. 
 
19.25  Lawful Presence Requirement. A.R.S. §§ 1-501 and 1-502 prohibit the City from awarding a contract to any natural 
person who cannot establish that such person is lawfully present in the United States. To establish lawful presence, a person 
must produce qualifying identification and sign a City-provided affidavit affirming that the identification provided is genuine. This 
requirement will be imposed at the time of contract award. This requirement does not apply to business organizations such as 
corporations, partnerships, or limited liability companies. 
 
19.26 Written Acceptance.  Company’s execution of this Agreement constitutes Company’s acceptance of this Agreement 
as granted and its agreement to be bound by and to comply with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.  Company’s 
signature must be acknowledged by Company before a notary public. 
 





PHO Rubenstein Site 

 

Macro Cell Agreement Form March 2019 Page 25 of 34                 
Final PHO Rubenstein Site Version 6 Dated 10-21-2020 

 
 

 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
SITE DRAWINGS 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  



TITLE SH
EET

PH
O

_R
U

B
EN

STEIN

TO
W

N
 O

F G
ILB

ER
T

C
O

O
PER

 R
D

 &
 B

U
C

H
A

N
A

N
 ST

C
H

A
N

D
LER

, A
Z 85255

PC
S M

O
D

IFIC
A

TIO
N

S

6/4/2018 6:15 P
M

dennisa
Approved as Redlined



SITE PLA
N

6/4/2018 6:15 P
M

dennisa
Approved as Redlined



TO
W

ER
 ELEV

A
TIO

N
A

N
D

 TM
A

C
O

N
FIG

U
R

A
TIO

N

6/4/2018 6:15 P
M

dennisa
Callout
Add shrouds to the bottom of the existing antennas to cover the bottom fed coax cables. Pain the shrouds to match the existing antennas.

dennisa
Callout
Proposed equipment should be mounted behind the existing antennas and should not protrude above or below the antennas.

dennisa
Approved as Redlined



EQ
U

IPM
EN

T D
ETA

ILS

6/4/2018 6:15 P
M

dennisa
Approved as Redlined



R
F D

A
TA

 A
N

D
A

N
TEN

N
A

IN
FO

R
M

A
TIO

N

6/4/2018 6:15 P
M

dennisa
Approved as Redlined



TM
A

 SPEC
IFIC

A
TIO

N
S

6/4/2018 6:15 P
M

dennisa
Approved as Redlined



PHO Rubenstein Site 

 

Macro Cell Agreement Form March 2019 Page 26 of 34                 
Final PHO Rubenstein Site Version 6 Dated 10-21-2020 

 
 

 
EXHIBIT “B” 

USE AREA OR LEGAL DESCRIPTION  
(If not already included as part of Exhibit A) 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  







PHO Rubenstein Site 

 

Macro Cell Agreement Form March 2019 Page 29 of 34                 
Final PHO Rubenstein Site Version 6 Dated 10-21-2020 

 
 

INSTRUCTIONS: DEPARTMENT APPROVAL FORM FOR WIRELESS COMMUNICATION FACILITIES IN RIGHT-OF-
WAY 
 
Section I.  Department Where Site is to be Located 
Requires signature of Department Director or his/her designee of the Department whose manages the facility or public 
land/right-of-way where the wireless facility/structure is to be located.  For example, if the facility is desired to be located in 
the following areas, the corresponding signature is required: 
 
City Property    Department Contact 
Community Services/Parks  Mickey Ohland, Park Development and Operation Manager 

480-782-2743, mickey.ohland@chandleraz.gov 
175 S. Arizona Ave., 4th Floor 

 
Fire Station    Keith Hargis, Assistant Fire Chief 

480-782-2161, keith.hargis@chandleraz.gov 
     151 E. Boston St.  
 
Water/Wastewater Treatment Facility  John Knudson, Public Works Director 

480-782-3590, john.knudson@chandleraz.gov 
1475 E Pecos Rd. 

 
Public Right-of-Way   Dennis Aust, Development Project Administrator 

480-782-3315, dennis.aust@chandleraz.gov 
     215 E. Buffalo St.  
 
Police Department   William Edel, Police Tech Manager 

480-782-4153, william.edel@chandleraz.gov 
250 E Chicago St. 
 

The Company and the City Department should agree that the facilities can locate on the property under discussion without 
disrupting City operations.  This may require an on-site tour to determine if there is an acceptable location.  Some general 
discussions of aesthetics/screening should also take place, as well as if there are any benefits the Department might 
receive such as collocation opportunities.  Once a site has been agreed upon, then proceed to get signature for Section II.  
Fees for use for that site will be determined through the Use Agreement process once all signatures for the “Chandler 
Department Approvals for Wireless Communication Facilities” form have been received and submitted to the City at 
Development Services Dept., 215 E. Buffalo St., Chandler, AZ  85225, (480) 782-3315. 
 
Section II.  Development Services: Company should be familiar with Chandler City Code Chapter 35, XXII, Section 35-
2209 regarding requirements for Wireless Communications Facilities and show that their plans are in accordance with City 
Code. 
 
Planning/Zoning Contact: Development Services Department, 215 E. Buffalo St., One-Stop Shop Front Counter, 480-782-3000 or  
Susan Fiala, City Planner, Planning Division, (480) 782-3067, Susan.Fiala@chandleraz.gov 
 
Real Estate Contact: Erich Kuntze, Real Estate Coordinator, (480) 782-3397, erich.kuntze@chandleraz.gov 
 
Section III.  Police/Fire Departments: Company’s technical staff should confer with the City’s public safety communication 
staff to assure that all wireless communications equipment it will operate within the City is in compliance with the FCC's radio 
frequency emission regulations and that the frequencies used will not interfere with the City’s emergency communication 
Wireless Facilities for either the Police or Fire Departments.  There will be more detail language for the Company to agree 
regarding interference issues when applying for the Public Property Use Agreement. 
 
Contact (both Fire & Police Clearance is Required): 
Fire Department     Police Department, Communications Division 
Fire Department Assistant Chief    Police Tech Manager   
Keith Hargis, keith.hargis@chandleraz.gov  William Edel, william.edel@chandleraz.gov 



PHO Rubenstein Site 

 

Macro Cell Agreement Form March 2019 Page 30 of 34                 
Final PHO Rubenstein Site Version 6 Dated 10-21-2020 

 
 

151 E. Boston St., 480-782-2161    250 E. Boston St., 480-782-4153 
EXHIBIT “D” 

STANDARDS FOR LETTERS OF CREDIT 
 

In addition to any other requirements imposed upon a letter of credit (the “Letter of Credit”) issued pursuant to this 
Agreement, the Letter of Credit must meet and be governed by the following additional standards and requirements: 
 
1. Letter of Credit Requirements.  The Letter of Credit shall be printed on Bank Safety Paper. The following terms and 

no others shall be stated on the face of the Letter of Credit: 
 

1.1 The Letter of Credit is clean, unconditional, and irrevocable.  
1.2 The Letter of Credit is payable to CITY upon presentation of CITY’S draft. 
1.3 CITY may make partial draws upon the Letter of Credit.  
1.4 The Letter of Credit is for payment solely upon presentation of a sight draft and a copy of the Letter of Credit. 
1.5 Within ten (10) days after CITY’S draft on the Letter of Credit is honored, CITY must make the original of the 

Letter of Credit available to the issuer in Maricopa County, Arizona upon which the issuer may endorse its payments. 
1.6 The issuer specifies a telefax number, email address, and street address at which CITY may present drafts 

on the Letter of Credit. 
1.7 The Letter of Credit is valid until a specified date. 
1.8 The Letter of Credit will be automatically renewed for successive one (1) year periods, unless at least one 

hundred twenty (120) days prior to expiration the issuer notifies CITY in writing, by either registered or certified mail, that 
issuer elects not to renew the Letter of Credit for the additional period. In the event of such notification, any then unused 
portion of the Letter of Credit shall be available by draft on or before the then current expiration date. 

1.9 The Letter of Credit is otherwise subject to the most recent edition of the Uniform Customs and Practices for 
Documentary Credits, published by the International Chamber of Commerce. 

1.10 The Letter of Credit need not be transferable. 
 
2. Approved Forms.  The form of the Letter of Credit and of drafts upon the Letter of Credit shall be as follows: 
  

2.1 Except as approved in writing by City’s Development Services Department, the form of the Letter of Credit 
shall be in the form set out below. 

2.2 Except as approved in writing by City’s Development Services Department, the form of drafts upon the Letter 
of Credit shall be in the form set out below. 
 
3. Issuer Requirements.  The issuer of the Letter of Credit shall meet all of the following requirements: 
 

3.1 The issuer shall be a federally insured financial institution with offices in Maricopa County, Arizona, at which 
drafts upon the Letter of Credit may be presented. 

3.2 The issuer shall be a member of the New York Clearing House Association or a commercial bank or trust 
Company satisfactory to CITY.  

3.3 The issuer shall have a net worth of not less than $1 billion. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



PHO Rubenstein Site 

 

Macro Cell Agreement Form March 2019 Page 31 of 34                 
Final PHO Rubenstein Site Version 6 Dated 10-21-2020 

 
 

 
FORM OF LETTER OF CREDIT 

   Date ___________________, 20__ 
         Letter of Credit No.:______________ 
         Site Location: ___________________ 

Development Services Department                   Site Address: ___________________ 
City of Chandler 
P.O. Box 4008 
Mail Stop 405 
Chandler, AZ  85244-4008 
 
Dear Sir or Madam: 
 
We hereby establish our clean, unconditional and irrevocable Letter of Credit in your favor at the request and for the account 
of ___________________________________________________ in the aggregate amount of 
_____________________________________ ($________________), available upon presentation of your draft in the form 
attached hereto as Schedule 1. 
 
We will honor each draft presented to us in compliance with the terms of this Letter of Credit. Partial draws are permitted. 
Each draft must be accompanied by a copy of this Letter of Credit. Within ten (10) days after we honor your draft, you must 
make the original of this Letter of Credit available to us in Maricopa County, Arizona upon which we may endorse our 
payment. Drafts may be presented by any of the following means: 

1. By telefax to (_____) _____-__________. 
2. By email to _____________________________________________________. 
3. By hand or overnight courier service delivery to: 
4. [This address must be in Maricopa County, Arizona.] 

  _________________________ 
  _________________________ 
  _________________________ 

5. By hand or overnight courier service delivery to: 
[This address need not be in Maricopa County, Arizona] 

 _________________________ 
 _________________________ 
 _________________________ 

This Letter of Credit is valid until _______________________, 20____ and shall thereafter be automatically renewed for 
successive one (1) year periods, unless at least one hundred twenty (120) days prior to expiration we notify you in writing, by 
either registered or certified mail, that we elect not to renew the Letter of Credit for such additional period. In the event of such 
notification, any then unused portion of the Letter of Credit shall be available upon your presenting to us your draft on or 
before the then current expiration date. 
 
This Letter of Credit is subject to the UCP600. This Letter of Credit is not assignable. 
 

_____________ [bank name] _____, a _______________  
By ___________ [bank officer’s signature] _____________ 

     ___________ [bank officer’s name printed] ___________ 
Its __________ [bank officer’s title] __________________ 

    Phone:  ___ [bank officer’s phone number] _________ 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
  



PHO Rubenstein Site 

 

Macro Cell Agreement Form March 2019 Page 32 of 34                 
Final PHO Rubenstein Site Version 6 Dated 10-21-2020 

 
 

 
Form of Draft on Letter of Credit 

 
To:   _____________________ 
 
 _____________________ 
 
 _____________________ 
 
 From: Development Services Department 
 City of Chandler 
 P.O. Box 4008 
 Mail Stop 405 
 Chandler, AZ  85244-4008 
 
 
Date:  ___________________, 20_____ 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Pursuant to your Credit No. ___________________, the City of Chandler hereby demands cash payment in the amount of 
________________________________________________ ($________________). 
 
Please make your payment to the City of Chandler in the form of a wire deposit to: 
 
    _____________________ 
    _____________________ 
    _____________________ 
    _____________________ 
 
If such deposit cannot be accomplished immediately for any reason, please make your payment in the form of a cashier’s 
check issued by your institution and delivered to me at the address listed above. 
 
I certify that I am the Development Services Director of the City of Chandler.   
 
If there is any imperfection or defect in this draft or its presentation, please inform me immediately at (480) 782-3410 so that I 
can correct it. Also, please immediately notify the City Attorney at (480) 782-4656.   
 
Thank you.   
 
 
_____________________________________________ 
City of Chandler, Development Services Director 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



PHO Rubenstein Site 

 

Macro Cell Agreement Form March 2019 Page 33 of 34                 
Final PHO Rubenstein Site Version 6 Dated 10-21-2020 

 
 

EXHIBIT “E”  
ASSUMPTION OF WIRELESS USE AGREEMENT 

 
Regarding ______________________________ 
 
This assumption is made pursuant to paragraph 12.1.5 of that certain Wireless Use Agreement (the “Agreement”) 
between City of Chandler, an Arizona municipal corporation (“CITY”) and __________________________, a 
_________________________ (“Company”) dated ________________, 20____.  
 
__________________________, a __________________________ (“Assignee”), having acquired the rights of the 
Company under the Agreement, hereby assumes the Agreement, agrees to be bound thereby, and obligates itself to 
perform the terms and conditions of the Agreement, all in favor of CITY. The person signing this document on behalf of 
Assignee warrants to CITY his authority to do so. 
 
Dated: ______________________, 20_______ 
 
 
 
ASSIGNEE:  _________________________________,  
 a _______________________________ 
 
By:        
 Its:       
 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF _________________ ) 
     ) ss. 
COUNTY OF _______________ ) 
 
 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ____ day of ______________, 20__, by 
___________, _____________ of _____________, a _______________. 
 
 
 
 
 
        
 Notary Public 
My Commission Expires: 
 
_____________________________ 
Date 
 
  



PHO Rubenstein Site 

 

Macro Cell Agreement Form March 2019 Page 34 of 34                 
Final PHO Rubenstein Site Version 6 Dated 10-21-2020 

 
 

 
EXHIBIT “F” 

EXTENSION OF WIRELESS USE AGREEMENT 
 
Regarding:           
 
This extension is made pursuant to paragraph 5.1 of that certain Wireless Use Agreement (the “Agreement”) between City 
of Chandler, an Arizona municipal corporation (“CITY”) and __________________________, a 
_________________________ (“Company”) dated ________________, 20____.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
COMPANY:  _________________________________,  
 a _______________________________ 
 
By: _____________________________        
Its: _____________________________  
 
 
CITY OF CHANDLER  
 a municipal corporation 
 
By: ____________________________________        
Its: Development Services Director or Designee 
 
APRROVE AS TO FORM: 
___________________________ 
 City Attorney  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



ELLIOT RD

WARNER RD

RAY RD

CHANDLER BL

PECOS RD

GERMANN RD

QUEEN CREEK RD

OCOTILLO RD

CHANDLER HEIGHTS RD

RIGGS RD

HUNT HWVAL VISTA DR

LINDSAY RD

GILBERT RD

COOPER RD

MCQUEEN RD

ARIZONA AV

ALMA SCHOOL RD

DOBSON RD

PRICE RD

MCCLINTOCK DR

RURAL RD

KYRENE RD

56TH ST

PHO RUBENSTEIN IN ROW
RESOLUTION NO. 5435

°
NTS

!

SAN TAN ST

GALVESTON ST

SO
HO

 LN

LAREDO PL

SO
HO

 PL

MONTEREY ST

EU
CA

LY
PT

US
 PL

BUCHANAN ST

GILBERT

CO
OP

ER
 RD ! EXISTING SITE LOCATION         

MEMO NO. DS21-102

F:\ENGINEER\GENSERV\_ArcMap_Shared\Map Requests\Development Services\DS21-102 PHO RUBENSTEIN IN ROW\DS21-102.mxd 1/13/2021 MARICELAH

OUTSIDE CITY LIMITS





ITEM  4 

City Council Memorandum      Development Services  Memo No. DS21-104
       

Date: February 8, 2021
To: Mayor  and Council
Thru: Marsha Reed, City Manager

Joshua H. Wright, Assistant City Manager
Derek D. Horn, Development Services Director

From: Dana Alvidrez, City Traffic Engineer
Subject: REACT Loop 101 Integrated Corridor Management Pilot Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA)

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 5436 authorizing an Intergovernmental Agreement
(IGA) between Maricopa County and the City of Chandler regarding the Regional Emergency Action
Coordinating Team (REACT) Integrated Corridor Management (ICM) Pilot Project for the Loop 101
Price Freeway.

Background/Discussion:
This Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) would allow Maricopa County’s REACT Team to respond to
events on or near the Loop 101 Price Freeway. This effort is part of a region-wide pilot project for
integrated corridor management (ICM) intended to ensure efficient and timely response to these
incidents that have large, area-wide traffic impacts.
 
During events that require the closure of at least two hours of the Loop 101 freeway or a freeway ramp,
forcing traffic to divert onto adjacent arterial roadways, REACT coordinates with state and local public
safety and the City's Traffic Management Center (TMC) staff to establish detour routes and support
diversion of traffic onto these routes and back on the freeway upstream of the closure. This resource
will benefit the City and its residents by improving the safety and security at incident scenes and
minimizing congestion affecting the traveling public.

The City’s main role in this project will be to work with Maricopa County's Department of Transportation
(MCDOT) to develop preapproved detour routes for major incidents on Loop 101. The City is also
agreeing to allow REACT teams in the City’s right-of-way and assigning two main contacts (one from
the Police Department and one from the TMC) to act as liaisons with REACT.
 
This agreement represents a three-year pilot project funded entirely with federal Congestion Mitigation
and Air Quality (CMAQ) funds (no local funds are required). The IGA is scheduled to be voted
on by the Maricopa County Board of Supervisors on February 24, 2021.

Financial Implications:
N/A 



Attachments
REACT Agreement 
Resolution No. 5436 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 549E1 EF0-478C-4F53-AD48-4FB3E33C63C7 

INTERGOVERNMENTA L AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN MARICOPA COUNTY AND 

THE CITY OF CHANDLER 

REACT INTEGRATED CORRIDOR MANAGEMENT (ICM) PILOT 

(TE067) 

MAG#: MMA21-810 

Fed Aid #: XXX 

CFDA #: XXX 

TRACS #: XXX 

(C-64-21- __ -X-00) 

This Intergovernmental Agreement (Agreement) is between the County of Maricopa, 
a political subdivision of the State of Arizona (County), and the City of Chandler an 
Arizona municipal corporation (City). The County and the City are collectively 
referred to as the Parties or individually as a Party. 

STATUTORY AUTHORIZATION 

1. The County is authorized, pursuant to A.RS. Section 11-251 and Sections 28-
6701 et. seq., to lay out, maintain, control and manage public roads within the
County.

2. Public agencies are authorized, pursuant to A.RS. Section 11-951 et. seq., to
enter into Intergovernmental Agreements for the provision of services or for joint
or cooperative action.

3. The City is authorized, pursuant to A.RS. Section 9-240 and Sections 9-276 et.
seq., to lay out and establish, regulate and improve streets within the City and to
enter into this Agreement.

BACKGROUND 

4. The Pilot for Arterial Traffic Incident Management Program for Integrated Corridor
Management (ICM), referred herein as the Project, will support the expansion of
the Maricopa County Department of Transportation (MC DOT) Regional
Emergency Action Coordinating Team (REACT) to support ICM along the entire
Loop 101(L101) corridor that runs through the cities of Phoenix, Glendale, Peoria,
Scottsdale, Tempe, Mesa, and Chandler.

1 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 549E1 EF0-478C-4F53-AD48-4FB3E33C63C7 

5. REACT provides emergency arterial incident management support for partnering 
agencies when an incident requires a closure of a roadway for at least two hours. 
REACT also coordinates with the Arizona Department of Transportation (ADOT) 
Incident Response Unit (IRU), which is ADOT's freeway incident response team 
and the Arizona Department of Public Service (AZDPS), to support arterial traffic 
management during events that require closure of a freeway or freeway ramp 
(Project). 

PURPOSE OF THE AGREEMENT 

6. The purposes of this Agreement are to identify the roles and responsibilities of 
the Parties with respect to the Project. 

TERMS OF THE AGREEMENT 

7. The Parties will: 

7 .1 Proceed in a manner consistent with the provisions set forth within this 
Agreement. 

7.2 Assign staff who will be responsible to develop, coordinate, monitor 
and evaluate the joint effort to provide emergency traffic incident 
management that establishes preapproved detour routes for major 
incidents on the L 101. 

7.3 Carry out the Parties' cooperative efforts under this Agreement in a 
manner consistent with REACT operations including, but not limited to: 

i. The provision of any REACT service identified in this Agreement 
will be contingent upon the availability of REACT responder staff. 
REACT staff will endeavor to respond to 75% of calls for service 
as resources permit. 

ii. To provide support for Emergency Traffic Incident Management 
through REACT response when requested to support ICM 
applications. 

iii. Provide ICM and incident management support along identified 
alternate routes. Other response requests will not be supported by 
REACT. 

iv. Adopt standard operation procedures following the Unified 
Command and National Incident Management Systems (NIMS) 
structure of command for the management of incidents. 

v. Participate in multi-jurisdictional drills and exercises, table tops, 
on-scene and off-scene training programs, pre-incident planning, 
post-incident critiques (debriefs) and other activities to enhance 
safe and effective emergency operations and mutual aid when 
practical and feasible to do so at the respective Party's own cost. 

2 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 549E1 EF0-478C-4F53-AD48-4FB3E33C63C7 

vi. Follow the requirements, guidelines and processes for traffic 
incident management consistent with the MUTCD and ICM 
Operations Plan and develop a REACT ICM Operations Handbook 
consistent with ICM Operations Plan. 

vii. Annually re-evaluate the REACT operations to ensure the 
response meets ICM operation goals, and determine if additional 
services are needed/required. 

8. The County will: 

8.1 Receive and administer the project federal-aid funding during the 
duration of the Project. 

8.2 Utilize the funding attributable to service in the City to procure 
equipment and supplies and, if needed, recruit additional responders 
whose primary responsibility will be to support emergency traffic 
management in the City. 

8.3 Retain ownership of the equipment and supplies acquired with the 
funding. 

8.4 Develop a REACT ICM Operation Handbook in accordance with the 
Loop 101 Mobility Project ICM Operations Plan. The Handbook will 
document REACT Operational Parameters that will outline the specific 
roles and responsibilities involved in the pilot project implementation. 
These will include: 

i. Operational Concept 

ii. Corridors by agency 

iii. Communication protocol 

iv. Staff, equipment and technology resources required. 

8.5 Provide traffic incident management services to the City in accordance 
with REACT ICM Operations Handbook for the duration of the Project 
that establish preapproved detour routes for major incidents on L 101. 

8.6 Monitor and document emergency traffic management services 
provided to the City and provide the data to the City on a quarterly 
basis or other time period mutually agreed to by the Parties. 

8.7 Provide online and in-person training on TIM and ICM that includes 
ATSSA Traffic control Technician, National Incident Management 
Training (NIMS) courses ICS 100 Introduction to Incident Command, 
ICS 200 ICS for Single Resource and Initial Action Incidents, IS 700 
National Incident Management System Develop REACT. 

3 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 549E1 EF0-478C-4F53-AD48-4FB3E33C63C7 

8.8 Administer, through MCDOT, the Project development through a staff 
Project Manager with REACT administration experience. The 
deployment of this Project will be done in coordination with the 
deployment of the Loop 101 Mobility Project, which involves an 
overlapping group of stakeholders who will be developing ICM plans 
and supporting the procurement, testing, and deployment of other 
equipment, systems, and processes for ICM on the Loop 101 that 
relate to the Project. 

8.9 Issue invoices to the City for the procurement, development, and 
deployment of the Project as milestones and deliverables, as set forth 
in the approved Design Concept Report (DCR), are completed. 

9. The City will: 

9.1 Assign staff who will be responsible to develop, coordinate, monitor 
and evaluate the joint effort to provide emergency traffic incident 
management that establishes preapproved detour routes for major 
incidents on L 101. 

9.2 Allow MC DOT REACT responses within the City's right of way. 

9.3 Provide operational support in accordance with the L 101 Mobility 
Project Operational Plan. 

9.4 Assign a member of its police department in the rank of traffic sergeant 
or sitting lieutenant and a member of the Traffic Management Center to 
act as liaison with the REACT Incident Management Specialist. 

9.5 Pay the City's pro rata share of the reasonable Project costs within 60 
calendar days of the City's receipt of an invoice from the County. 

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

10. To the extent permitted by law, each Party will indemnify, defend, and save the 
other Party harmless, including any of the Party's departments, agencies, 
officers, employees, elected officials, or agents, from and against all loss, 
expense, damage, or claim of any nature whatsoever, which is caused by any 
activity, condition, or event arising out of the negligent or willful act, error, or 
omission by the indemnifying Party under this Agreement. By entering into this 
Agreement, each Party indemnifies the other against all liability, losses, and 
damages of any nature for or on account of any injuries, or death of persons, or 
damages to, or destruction of property arising out of or in any way connected 
with this Agreement, except such injury or damage that is caused or contributed 
to by the negligent or willful act, error, or omission of the other Party. The 
damages, which are the subject of this indemnity, shall include but are not limited 

4 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 549E1 EF0-478C-4F53-AD48-4FB3E33C63C7 

to the damages incurred by any Party, its departments, agencies, officers, 
employees, elected officials, or agents. In the event of an action, the damages, 
which are the subject of this indemnity, shall include costs, expenses of litigation, 
and reasonable attorney's fees. 

11. This Agreement is effective as of the date it is approved by the Parties' 
governing bodies (Effective Date) and remain in full force and effect until the first 
to occur of the following: (i) all stipulations, responsibilities, and conditions under 
this Agreement have been satisfied; or (ii) five years from the Effective Date. This 
Agreement may be amended upon written agreement by the Parties. 

12. This Agreement shall be subject to the provisions of A.RS. Section 38-511. 

13. The Parties warrant that they are in compliance with A.R.S. Section 41-4401 and 
further acknowledge that: 

13.1 Any contractor or subcontractor who is contracted by a Party to perform 
work on the Project must warrant their compliance with all federal 
immigration laws and regulations that relate to their employees and their 
compliance with A.RS. Section 23-214(A), and must keep a record of the 
verification for the duration of the employee's employment or at least three 
(3) years, whichever is longer. 

13.2 Any breach of the warranty will be deemed a material breach of this 
Agreement of which breaching party may be liable for penalties including 
termination of this Agreement. 

13.3 The Parties retain the legal right to inspect the papers of any contractor or 
subcontractor employee who works on the Project to ensure that the 
contractor or subcontractor complies with the warranty above and that the 
contractor agrees to make all papers and employment records of said 
employee available during normal working hours in order to facilitate such 
an inspection. 

13.4 Nothing in this Agreement shall make any contractor or subcontractor an 
agent or employee of the Parties to this Agreement. 

14. Any contractor or subcontractor who engages in for-profit activity and has 1 0 or 
more employees, if the value of the contract is a minimum of $1,000,000, must 
certify it is not currently engaged in, and agrees for the duration of this 
Agreement to not engage in, a boycott of goods or services from Israel. This 
certification does not apply to a boycott prohibited by 50 U.S.C. § 4842 or a 
regulation issued pursuant to 50 U.S.C. § 4842. 

15. Each Party to this Agreement warrants that neither it nor any contractor or 

5 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 549E1 EF0-478C-4F53-AD48-4FB3E33C63C7 

vendor under contract with the Party to provide goods or services toward the 
accomplishment of the objectives of this Agreement is suspended or debarred by 
any federal agency which has provided funding that will be used in the Project 
described in this Agreement. 

16. Each of the following constitute a material breach of this Agreement and an event 
of default ("Default'') hereunder: A Party's failure to observe or perform any of the 
material covenants, conditions, or provisions of this Agreement to be observed or 
performed by that Party ("Defaulting Party''), where such failure shall continue for 
a period of thirty (30) days after the Defaulting Party receives written notice of 
such failure from the non-defaulting Party provided, however, that such failure 
shall not be a Default if the Defaulting Party has commenced to cure the Default 
within such thirty (30) day period and thereafter is diligently pursuing such cure to 
completion, but the total aggregate cure period shall not exceed ninety (90) days 
unless the Parties agree in writing that additional time is reasonably necessary 
under such circumstances to cure such default. In the event a Defaulting Party 
fails to perform any of its material obligations under this Agreement and is in 
Default pursuant to this Section, the non-defaulting Party, at its option, may 
terminate this Agreement. Further, upon the occurrence of any Default and at 
any time thereafter, the non-defaulting Party may, but will not be required to, 
exercise any remedies now or hereafter available to it at law or in equity. 

17. All notices required under this Agreement to be given in writing shall be sent to: 

County: 

Maricopa County Department of Transportation 
Attn: Intergovernmental Relations Branch 
2901 W. Durango Street 
Phoenix, Arizona 85009 

City: 

City of Chandler 
City Manager 
175 S Arizona Avenue 
Chandler, Arizona 85225 

All notices required or permitted by this Agreement or applicable law must be in 
writing and may be delivered in person (by hand or courier) or may be sent by 
regular, certified or registered mail or U.S. Postal Service Express Mail, with 
postage prepaid, and will be deemed sufficiently given if served in a manner 
specified in this paragraph. Either Party may by written notice to the other specify 
a different address for notice. Any notice sent by registered or certified mail, 
return receipt requested, will be deemed given on the date of delivery shown on 
the receipt card, or if no delivery date is shown, the postmark thereon. If sent by 

6 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 549E1 EF0-478C-4F53-AD48-4FB3E33C63C7 

regular mail, the notice will be deemed given 72 hours after the notice is 
addressed as required in this paragraph and mailed with postage prepaid. 
Notices delivered by United States Express Mail or overnight courier that 
guarantee next day delivery will be deemed given 24 hours after delivery of the 
notice to the Postal Service or courier. 

18. This Agreement does not imply authority to perform any tasks, or accept any 
responsibility, not expressly stated in this Agreement. 

19. Any funding provided for in this Agreement, other than in the current fiscal year, 
is contingent upon being budgeted and appropriated by the governing bodies of 
the Parties in such fiscal year. This Agreement may be terminated by any Party 
at the end of any fiscal year due to non-appropriation of funds. 

20. This Agreement is binding upon, and will inure to the benefit of, the Parties and 
their respective successors and assignees. Neither Party may assign its interest 
in this Agreement without the prior written consent of the other Party. 

21. This Agreement and all exhibits attached to this Agreement set forth all of the 
covenants, promises, agreements, conditions, and understandings related to the 
Project between the Parties to this Agreement, and there are no covenants, 
promises, agreements, conditions, or understandings, either oral or written, 
between the Parties related to the Project, other than as set forth in this 
Agreement, and those agreements which are executed contemporaneously with 
this Agreement. This Agreement shall be construed as a whole and in 
accordance with its fair meaning and without regard to any presumption or other 
rul~ requiring construction against the party drafting this Agreement. This 
Agreement cannot be modified or changed except by a written instrument 
executed by all of the Parties hereto. 

22. Each Party has reviewed this Agreement and has had the opportunity to have it 
reviewed by legal counsel. 

23. The waiver by any Party of any right granted to it under this Agreement is not a 
waiver of any other right granted under this Agreement, nor may any waiver be 
deemed to be a waiver of a subsequent right obtained by reason of the 
continuation of any matter previously waived. 

24. Wherever possible, each provision of this Agreement shall be interpreted in such 
a manner as to be valid under applicable law, but if any provision is found invalid 
or prohibited under the law, such provision shall be ineffective to the extent of 
such prohibition or invalidation but will not invalidate the remainder of such 
provision or the remaining provisions. 

25. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, all covenants, agreements, 
representations, and warranties set forth in this Agreement or in any certificate or 

7 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 549E1 EF0-478C-4F53-AD48-4FB3E33C63C7 

instrument executed or delivered pursuant to this Agreement shall survive the 
expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement for a period of one (1) year. 

26. Nothing contained in this Agreement creates any partnership, joint venture, or 
other agreement between the Parties hereto. Except as expressly provided in 
this Agreement, no term or provision of this Agreement is intended or shall be for 
the benefit of any person or entity not a party to this Agreement, and no such 
other person or entity may have any right or cause of action under this 
Agreement. 

27. Section or other headings contained in this Agreement are for reference 
purposes only and do not affect in any way the meaning or interpretation of this 
Agreement. 

28. This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which 
shall be deemed an original but all of which together constitute the same 
instrument. Faxed, copied and scanned signatures are acceptable as original 
signatures. 

29. The Parties will execute and/or deliver to each other such other instruments and 
documents as may be reasonably necessary to fulfill the covenants and 
obligations to be performed by such Party pursuant to this Agreement. 

30. The venue for any claim arising out of or in any way related to this Agreement 
shall be Maricopa County, Arizona. 

31. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Arizona. 

End of Agreement - Signature Page Follows 

8 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 549E1 EF0-478C-4F53-AD48-4FB3E33C63C7 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement. 

MARICOPA COUNTY 

Recommended by: 

G,;;~~~ 1/6/2021 

Jennifer Toth, P.E. Date 
Transportation Director 

Approved and Accepted by: 

Chairman Date 
Board of Supervisors 

Attest by: 

Clerk of the Board Date 

APPROVAL OF DEPUTY COUNTY ATTORNEY 

The foregoing Agreement has been reviewed pursuant to A.RS. §11-952, as amended , 
by the undersigned Deputy County Attorney, who has determined that it is in proper 
form and within the powers and authority granted to the Board of Supervisors under the 
laws of the State of Arizona. 

G
OocuSlgnod by: 

cµ .,,,_,tj~ 
QBQ782D9E1CE48E 

1/12/2021 

Deputy County Attorney Date 

9 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 549E1 EF0-478C-4F53-AD48-4FB3E33C63C7 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement. 

CITY OF CHANDLER 

Recommended by: 

City Manager Date 

Approved and Accepted by: 

Mayor Date 

Attest by: 

Clerk of the Council Date 

APPROVAL OF CITY ATTORNEY 

The foregoing Agreement has been reviewed pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952, as 
amended , by undersigned Counsel, who has determined that it is in proper form and 
within the powers and authority granted to the City under the laws of the State of 
Arizona. 

City Attorney 

10 





ITEM  5 

 

City Council Memorandum      Development Services  Memo No. 21-009
       

Date: February 8, 2021
To: Mayor  and Council
Thru: Marsha Reed, City Manager

Joshua H. Wright, Assistant City Manager
Derek D. Horn, Development Services Director

From: Susan Fiala, Senior Planner
Subject: ANX20-0002 Annexation and Initial City Zoning, South of the Southwest Corner of Gilbert and

Ocotillo roads
 

Request: Annexation of 1.71 acres and Initial City Zoning
Location: South of the southwest corner of Gilbert and Ocotillo roads
Applicant: Randolph Carter, Sketch Architecture Company

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council introduce and tentatively adopt Ordinance No. 4962 approving Annexation and Initial
City Zoning ANX20-0002, South of the Southwest Corner of Gilbert and Ocotillo roads, as
recommended by Planning staff. 

Background Data:
Located south of the southwest corner of Gilbert and Ocotillo roads
Zoned Rural-43 (RU-43) within Maricopa County 
Approximately 1.71 acres
Council Public Hearing held on October 15, 2020
An Area Plan Amendment, Rezoning, and Preliminary Development Plan also are on this City Council
Agenda

Surrounding Land Use Data:

North Unincorporated Maricopa County
(Arizona Olympian Gymnastics) South Commercial (Dollar Self storage)

East Gilbert Road, then new CUSD high
school (under construction) West Canal, then City of Chandler

water reclamation facilities

General Plan and Area Plan Designations:
  Existing Proposed
General Plan Neighborhoods No change



Southeast
Chandler Area
Plan

Envisioned Community/Regional Open
Space and Recreational Opportunities Traditional Suburban Character

Utility Service
Existing municipal water service, wastewater service, and reclaimed water are available in Gilbert Road.
 

Staff Comments
Staff circulated this request among City departments and received no negative comments relative to
the property’s annexation.

In accordance with Arizona Revised Statutes, the subject site, upon annexation, will be zoned AG-1
within the City of Chandler, which provides for land uses no greater in intensity than those permitted
within the RU-43 zoning district of Maricopa County.

A request for Area Plan Amendment, Rezoning and Preliminary Development Plan approval for
professional offices and institutional/educational uses (PLH20-0033 and PLH20-0034) accompanies
this request as a subsequent item on this Council agenda.

Construction began in November 2020 for improvements to Gilbert Road, from Ocotillo Road to
Chandler Heights Road, to narrow the existing median islands in the area to provide three travel lanes
in each direction with bike lanes.
 

Attachments
Ordinance No. 4962 
Exhibit A, Annexation Map and Legal Description 



 

ORDINANCE NO. 4962 

 

   AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CHANDLER, 

ARIZONA, EXTENDING AND INCREASING THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF 

THE CITY PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF ARIZONA REVISED 

STATUTES TITLE 9, CHAPTER 4, ARTICLE 7, BY ANNEXING THERETO 

TERRITORY LOCATED SOUTH OF THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF 

GILBERT AND OCOTILLO ROADS. 

 

WHEREAS, a petition has been presented to the City Council of the City of Chandler signed by the 

property owners of at least one-half of the value of the real and personal property as would be 

subject to taxation by the City in the event of annexation and by more than one-half of the property 

owners within the territory and land hereinafter described as shown by the last assessment of said 

property, asking that the property be annexed to the City of Chandler; and 

 

WHEREAS, the territory proposed for annexation is contiguous to the City of Chandler and not 

now embraced within its limits; and 

 

WHEREAS, a blank petition was filed on September 21, 2020, with the Maricopa County Recorder,  

the 30-day waiting period ended on October 20, 2020, a Public Hearing was held on October 15, 

2020, after proper notice was given, and the petition was circulated thereafter and signed; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to comply with the petition and extend the corporate limits of 

the City to include the proposed territory; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the petition sets forth a true and correct description of all the exterior boundaries of the 

entire area proposed to be annexed by the City and had attached thereto at all times an accurate map 

of the territory proposed to be annexed; and, 

  

WHEREAS, no additions or alterations increasing or decreasing the territory sought to be annexed 

have been made after the petition had been signed by any owner of real and/or personal property in 

the territory; and, 

 

WHEREAS, proper and sufficient certification and proof of the foregoing facts are now on file in 

the Office of the City Clerk, together with the original petition; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City may elect to provide regular fire department services to a newly annexed area 

under A.R.S. § 48-813(A). 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona, as 

follows: 

 

 Section 1. That the following described territory is annexed to the City of Chandler and that the 

present corporate limits are extended and increased to include the following 

described territory contiguous to the present City limits: 

 



Ordinance No. 4962 

Page 2 of 3 
 

See Attached Exhibit ‘A’ Annexation Map and Legal Description 

 

Section 2. Pursuant to A.R.S. § 48-813(A), the City will provide fire department services to 

the property depicted in Exhibit A as is generally provided to other residents 

within the city.  The services shall take effect on the first day of July following 

the date on which this annexation becomes final as set forth in Section 6 below, 

without further action by the City Council. 

 

Section 3. The existing zoning of the territory annexed is Rural-43 (RU-43) in Maricopa 

County, and the territory upon annexation is hereby zoned Agricultural (AG-1) 

District within the City of Chandler, which provides for densities and uses no 

greater than those permitted within the RU-43 District of Maricopa County.  

 

Section 4. The Clerk is hereby instructed to file and record a copy of this Ordinance, 

together with an accurate map of the annexed territory, certified by the Mayor, in 

the Office of the County Recorder of Maricopa County, Arizona. 

 

Section 5. The Development Services Department of the City of Chandler is hereby directed to 

enter such changes and amendments as may be necessary upon the Zoning Map of 

the Zoning Code in compliance with this ordinance. 

 

Section 6. This ordinance shall take effect, and the annexation of the subject property shall 

become final, 30 days after this Ordinance is adopted. 

 

INTRODUCED AND TENTATIVELY APPROVED by the City Council of the City of 

Chandler, Arizona, this _____ day of ___________ 2021. 

 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________________   __________________________________ 

CITY CLERK      MAYOR  

 

 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona this _____ day 

of _____________________, 2021. 

 

ATTEST: 

 

__________________________________   __________________________________ 

CITY CLERK      MAYOR 

 

 

 

 



Ordinance No. 4962 

Page 3 of 3 
 

CERTIFICATION 

 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the above and foregoing Ordinance No. 4962 was duly passed and 

adopted by the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona, at a regular meeting held on the 

_____ day of _____________________, 2021, and that a quorum was present thereat. 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       CITY CLERK 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

____________________________ 

CITY ATTORNEY      

 

 

Published: 

 



Exhibit A

4
A n n e x a t i o n   M a p

Unincorporated Area
Incorporated Area

South of the Southwest Corner
of Gilbert and Ocotillo roads

0 250 500 750 1,000125
Feet

Proposed Annexation

City of Chandler 1/19/2021

Gi
lbe

rt 
Rd

.

2s6esec18

2s6esec19

2s5esec13

2s5esec24
Ocotillo Rd.

Proposed Annexation

Ordinance No. 4962



STANDAGE & ASSOCIATES, LTD.           
CONSULTING ENGINEERS 

 

 
409 S. EL DORADO ▪ MESA, ARIZONA  85202 ▪ P  (480) 892-8090 

engineering@standageeng.com 

WILLIAM H. STANDAGE, PE, RLS 
ANNEXATION EXHIBIT ‘A’ – METES & BOUNDS 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
LDS SEMINARY AT LA PLAGLIA HIGH SCHOOL 

    

 
ANNEXATION EXHIBIT ‘A’  

 
‘Metes & Bounds’ Legal Description 

 
 
August 24, 2020      Proj. No.  200300 
    
                                                 
That portion of the South half of the Southeast quarter of the Northeast quarter of 
Section 24, Township 2 South, Range 5 East of the Gila and Salt River Base and 
Meridian, Maricopa County, Arizona, described as follows: 
 
COMMENCING at the East quarter corner of said Section 24; 
 
Thence North 00 degrees 01 minutes 31 seconds West 447.97 feet along the East line 
of said Section 24; 
 
Thence South 89 degrees 26 minutes 25 seconds West 62.38 feet parallel to the North 
line of said South half of the Southeast quarter of the Northeast quarter to a found rebar on the 
West right-of-way line of Gilbert Road, said point being the POINT OF BEGINNING; 
 
Thence South 89 degrees 26 minutes 25 seconds West 390.12 feet to a point 
10.00 feet Southeast, as measured at right angles, to the East right-of-way line of the 
Eastern Canal, as described in instrument recorded in Book 191 of Deeds, page 386, 
records of Maricopa County, Arizona; 
 
Thence North 25 degrees 31 minutes 04 seconds East 238.24 feet parallel to and 10.00 
feet Southeast of the East right-of-way line of said Eastern Canal; 
 
Thence North 89 degrees 26 minutes 25 seconds East 308.82 feet along the North line 
of said South half of the Southeast quarter of the Northeast quarter to a set rebar on the West 
right-of-way line of said Gilbert Road; 
 
Thence Southwesterly 65.40 feet along a 1735.00 foot radius curve, concave Southeasterly and 
having a chord bearing of South 6 degrees 32 minutes 24 seconds West and chord length of 
65.39 feet, and along the West right-of-way line of said Gilbert road to a set rebar at a Point of 
Compound Curvature; 
 
Thence Southwesterly 149.92 feet along a 1865.00 foot radius curve, concave Southeasterly 
and having a chord bearing of South 5 degrees 19 minutes 01 seconds West and chord length 
of 149.88 feet, and along the West right-of-way line of said Gilbert road to the POINT OF 
BEGINNING; 
 
Above described parcel contains 1.711 Acres (74,538 square feet) more or less. 
 
 
 

krism
8/24/20



Exhibit A

4
A n n e x a t i o n   M a p

Unincorporated Area
Incorporated Area

South of the Southwest Corner
of Gilbert and Ocotillo roads

0 250 500 750 1,000125
Feet

Proposed Annexation

City of Chandler 1/19/2021

Gi
lbe

rt 
Rd

.

2s6esec18

2s6esec19

2s5esec13

2s5esec24
Ocotillo Rd.

Proposed Annexation

Ordinance No. 4962



STANDAGE & ASSOCIATES, LTD.           
CONSULTING ENGINEERS 

 

 
409 S. EL DORADO ▪ MESA, ARIZONA  85202 ▪ P  (480) 892-8090 

engineering@standageeng.com 

WILLIAM H. STANDAGE, PE, RLS 
ANNEXATION EXHIBIT ‘A’ – METES & BOUNDS 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
LDS SEMINARY AT LA PLAGLIA HIGH SCHOOL 

    

 
ANNEXATION EXHIBIT ‘A’  

 
‘Metes & Bounds’ Legal Description 

 
 
August 24, 2020      Proj. No.  200300 
    
                                                 
That portion of the South half of the Southeast quarter of the Northeast quarter of 
Section 24, Township 2 South, Range 5 East of the Gila and Salt River Base and 
Meridian, Maricopa County, Arizona, described as follows: 
 
COMMENCING at the East quarter corner of said Section 24; 
 
Thence North 00 degrees 01 minutes 31 seconds West 447.97 feet along the East line 
of said Section 24; 
 
Thence South 89 degrees 26 minutes 25 seconds West 62.38 feet parallel to the North 
line of said South half of the Southeast quarter of the Northeast quarter to a found rebar on the 
West right-of-way line of Gilbert Road, said point being the POINT OF BEGINNING; 
 
Thence South 89 degrees 26 minutes 25 seconds West 390.12 feet to a point 
10.00 feet Southeast, as measured at right angles, to the East right-of-way line of the 
Eastern Canal, as described in instrument recorded in Book 191 of Deeds, page 386, 
records of Maricopa County, Arizona; 
 
Thence North 25 degrees 31 minutes 04 seconds East 238.24 feet parallel to and 10.00 
feet Southeast of the East right-of-way line of said Eastern Canal; 
 
Thence North 89 degrees 26 minutes 25 seconds East 308.82 feet along the North line 
of said South half of the Southeast quarter of the Northeast quarter to a set rebar on the West 
right-of-way line of said Gilbert Road; 
 
Thence Southwesterly 65.40 feet along a 1735.00 foot radius curve, concave Southeasterly and 
having a chord bearing of South 6 degrees 32 minutes 24 seconds West and chord length of 
65.39 feet, and along the West right-of-way line of said Gilbert road to a set rebar at a Point of 
Compound Curvature; 
 
Thence Southwesterly 149.92 feet along a 1865.00 foot radius curve, concave Southeasterly 
and having a chord bearing of South 5 degrees 19 minutes 01 seconds West and chord length 
of 149.88 feet, and along the West right-of-way line of said Gilbert road to the POINT OF 
BEGINNING; 
 
Above described parcel contains 1.711 Acres (74,538 square feet) more or less. 
 
 
 

krism
8/24/20



ITEM  6 

City Council Memorandum      Development Services  Memo No. 21-010
       

Date: February 8, 2021
To: Mayor  and Council
Thru: Marsha Reed, City Manager

Joshua H. Wright, Assistant City Manager
Derek D. Horn, Development Services Director

From: Susan Fiala, Senior Planner
Subject: PLH20-0033, PLH20-0034 Chandler La Paglia High School Seminary and Professional Offices
Request: Area Plan Amendment to the Southeast Chandler Area Plan from Envisioned Community/Regional

Open Space and Recreational Opportunities to Traditional Suburban Character
Rezoning from Agricultural District (AG-1) to Planned Area Development (PAD) for professional
offices and institutional/educational uses
Preliminary Development Plan

Location: South of the southwest corner of Gilbert and Ocotillo roads
Applicant: Randolph Carter, Sketch Architecture Company

Proposed Motion:
Area Plan
Move City Council approve Resolution No. 5437 Southeast Chandler Area Plan amendment,
PLH20-0033, located south of the southwest corner of Gilbert and Ocotillo roads, as recommended by
Planning and Zoning Commission.
Rezoning
Move City Council introduce and tentatively adopt Ordinance No. 4960 approving PLH20-0034 La
Paglia High School Seminary and Professional Offices, Rezoning from Agricultural District (AG-1) to
Planned Area Development (PAD) for professional offices and institutional/educational uses located
south of the southwest corner of Gilbert and Ocotillo roads, subject to the conditions as recommended
by Planning and Zoning Commission.
Preliminary Development Plan 
Move City Council approve Preliminary Development Plan PLH20-0034 La Paglia High School
Seminary and Professional Offices, for professional offices and institutional/educational uses located
south of the southwest corner of Gilbert and Ocotillo roads, subject to the conditions as recommended
by Planning and Zoning Commission.

Background Data:
Site is approximately 1.7 net acres.
Annexation request is scheduled for the February 11, 2021, City Council meeting to request Initial
City zoning of Agricultural District (AG-1). Annexation public hearing held on October 15, 2020.
Site is currently vacant.

Surrounding Land Use Data:



North Commercial (Unincorporated -
Arizona Olympian Gymnastics) South Commercial (Dollar Self Storage)

East
Gilbert Rd. then new Chandler
Unified School District high
school

West RWCD Canal

General Plan and Area Plan Designations:
  Existing Proposed
General Plan Neighborhoods No Change
Southeast Chandler
Area Plan

Envisioned Community/Regional Open Space and
Recreational Opportunities

Traditional Suburban
Character

Proposed Development
Seminary  
Building Area 3,681 sq. ft. (+ 1,329 sq. ft. future expansion) Total of 5,010

sq. ft.
Building Height (max.) 22 ft.
Parking Required 25 spaces total (includes future expansion)
Parking Provided 27 spaces total
   
Future commercial offices/medical
offices  

Building Area 6,336 sq. ft.
Building Height (max.) 30 ft.
Parking Required 43 additional spaces (1 space per 150 sq. ft.)
Parking Provided 70 total shared spaces

Review and Recommendation
Planning staff finds the proposal is consistent with the General Plan designation of Neighborhoods and
the amendment to the Southeast Chandler Area Plan (SECAP).  The Envisioned Community/Regional
Open Space and Recreational Opportunities land use designation was identified at a time when the
City owned property along the RWCD canal; however, the City property was sold and a regional open
space and recreational area is no longer planned.  A Traditional Suburban Character land use allows
single story buildings along arterial streets, including for commercial and institutional/educational
developments.

The request for rezoning to PAD provides for a limited list of permitted land uses which include the
seminary (institutional/educational), general office, professional office, which generate low-traffic
including but not limited to insurance, counseling, assisted living, real estate and title companies.
Prohibited uses include medical and dental offices, retail of any kind, call centers, cleaners, barbers,
personal services, animal boarding and similar businesses.   

The site layout and building architecture is in conformance with the SECAP design guidelines for
commercial/non-residential land uses. Architectural design of the future professional office building
requires a new PDP application to evaluate building architecture. Signage for the future phase may
require a PDP if the development prefers to modify the requirements of the Sign Code for PAD zoned
properties. The seminary proposes one wall-mounted sign.

Staff finds the proposal to be consistent with the goals of the General Plan and the SECAP, as



amended, and recommends approval subject to conditions.

Traffic Analysis
Gilbert Road is currently undergoing improvements from Ocotillo to Chandler Heights roads.
Improvements consist of re-striping, narrowing medians to allow for three lanes in the northbound and
southbound direction, and modifications to the medians for turning movements.  Traffic signals are
proposed at two locations including the intersections of Gilbert and Brooks Farm road and the
alignment of the existing driveway of the Olympian Gymnastics with the new entrance to the new high
school. Pedestrian crossings will be designated at both traffic signals. The applicant states that the
students will be transported by shuttle between the new high school and the new seminary. 

Public / Neighborhood Notification
This request was noticed in accordance with the requirements of the Chandler Zoning Code.
A Neighborhood Meeting sign was posted on the property.
A virtual neighborhood meeting was held on December 3, 2020. Three residents attended
virtually to obtain project information. No questions were asked. No opposition to request was
stated. An attendee commented the project is a nice fit.
As of writing this memo, Planning staff is not aware of opposition to the request.

Planning and Zoning Commission Vote Report
Planning and Zoning Commission meeting January 20, 2021.
Motion to Approve.

In Favor:  7     Opposed: 0

Commission discussed the proposed permitted land uses and recommended that medical and dental
office uses be prohibited uses due to traffic and circulation patterns  both on site and off site.
Stipulations No. 2 and No. 3 are revised to address Commission's direction.

Recommended Conditions of Approval
Rezoning
Planning and Zoning Commission recommends the City Council approve rezoning from Agricultural
District (AG-1) to PAD for professional offices and institutional/educational uses, subject to the following
conditions: 

Development shall be in substantial conformance with the Development Booklet, entitled
“Chandler La Paglia High School Seminary and Professional Offices” and kept on file in the City
of Chandler Planning Division, in File No. PLH20-0034, modified by such conditions included at
the time the Booklet was approved by the Chandler City Council and/or as thereafter amended,
modified or supplemented by the Chandler City Council.

1.

The following uses shall be permitted:2.

Institutional uses including church, seminary, nursing home, and educational entity.
Commercial Office uses including general office, professional office, insurance, counseling, real
estate and title companies.
Other similar institutional and/or office uses not listed here may be permitted upon determination
by the Planning Administrator that it will not generate a greater or more intense traffic impact on
the area.

The following uses shall be prohibited: medical and dental offices, retail, call centers, dry
cleaners, personal services (e.g., barber, nail and beauty salons, tattoo, day spa), animal daycare
and boarding, bakery, bars, drive-through and restaurants.

3.

Completion of the construction of all required off-site street improvements including but not limited4.



to paving, landscaping, curb, gutter and sidewalks, median improvements and street lighting to
achieve conformance with City codes, standard details, and design manuals.
Right-of-way dedications to achieve full half-widths, including turn lanes and deceleration lanes,
per the standards of the Chandler Transportation Plan.

5.

Prior to the time of making any lot reservations or subsequent sales agreements, the
subdivider/homebuilder/lot developer shall provide a written disclosure statement, for the
signature of each buyer, acknowledging that the subdivision is located adjacent to or nearby a
City of Chandler water facility/recharge ponds that may cause adverse noise, odors, and other
externalities. The “Public Subdivision Report”, “Purchase Contracts”, CC&R’s, and the individual
lot property deeds shall include a disclosure statement outlining that the site is adjacent to or
nearby a wastewater treatment facility, and the disclosure shall state that such uses are legal and
should be expected to continue indefinitely. The disclosure shall be presented to prospective
homebuyers on a separate, single form for them to read and sign prior to or simultaneously with
executing a purchase agreement.  This responsibility for notice rests with the homebuilder/lot
developer and shall not be construed as an absolute guarantee by the City of Chandler for
receiving such notice.

6.

Preliminary Development Plan
Planning and Zoning Commission recommends the City Council approve the Preliminary Development
Plan, subject to the following conditions: 

Development shall be in substantial conformance with the Development Booklet, entitled
“Chandler La Paglia High School Seminary and Professional Offices” and kept on file in the City
of Chandler Planning Division, in File No. PLH20-0034, modified by such conditions included at
the time the Booklet was approved by the Chandler City Council and/or as thereafter amended,
modified or supplemented by the Chandler City Council.

1.

A separate Preliminary Development Plan approval shall be required for the future building
(Phase 2).

2.

The site shall be maintained in a clean and orderly manner.3.
The landscaping in all open-spaces shall be maintained by the property owner or property
owners' association, and shall be maintained at a level consistent with or better than at the time of
planting. 

4.

The landscaping in all rights-of-way shall be maintained by the adjacent property owner or
property owners' association.

5.

Landscaping plans (including for open spaces, rights-of-way, and street medians) and perimeter
walls shall be approved by the Planning Administrator.

6.

Sign packages, including free-standing signs as well as wall-mounted signs, shall be designed in
coordination with landscape plans, planting materials, storm water retention requirements, and
utility pedestals, so as not to create problems with sign visibility or prompt the removal of required
landscape materials.

7.

Preliminary Development Plan approval does not constitute Final Development Plan approval;
compliance with the details required by all applicable codes and conditions of the City of Chandler
and this Preliminary Development Plan shall apply.

8.

Attachments
Resolution No. 5437 
Ordinance No. 4960 
Vicinity Maps 
Development Booklet, Attachment A 



RESOLUTION NO. 5437 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CHANDLER, 
ARIZONA, ADOPTING AN AMENDMENT TO THE “SOUTHEAST 
CHANDLER AREA PLAN” FROM ENVISIONED COMMUNITY/ 
REGIONAL OPEN SPACE AND RECREATIONAL OPPORTUNITIES TO 
TRADITIONAL SUBURBAN CHARACTER, ON PROPERTY LOCATED 
SOUTH OF THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF GILBERT AND OCOTILLO 
ROADS.  

WHEREAS, the property owner is seeking approval of a rezoning request, pending approval of 
an Area Plan amendment, for a particular development proposal located south of the southwest 
corner of Gilbert and Ocotillo roads; and 

WHEREAS, the Chandler General Plan adopted by the City Council on August 30, 2016, 
encourages the preparation of neighborhood plans/Area Plans that address distinct characteristics 
and support unique land use planning for each area; and 

WHEREAS, an existing area plan, the “Southeast Chandler Area Plan,” has been adopted for the 
area bounded by Arizona Avenue, Val Vista Drive, Ocotillo Road, and Hunt Highway;  and 

WHEREAS, the applicant prepared this amendment to the existing Southeast Chandler Area 
Plan; and 

WHEREAS, such an amendment, covering a portion of the adopted Area Plan including a map, 
has been prepared by the applicant for consideration by the City Council after having received 
public input from the Planning and Zoning Commission and property owners at a previous public 
hearing. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona 
as follows: 

Section 1. That the attached amended map exhibit, “Chandler La Paglia High School 
Seminary and Professional Offices - Area Plan Amendment – PLH20-0034” is 
hereby adopted as the guideline for future rezoning and development for the 
area described within it.  

  



Resolution No. 5437 
Page 2 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona, this ______ 
day of _____________________, 2021.  

ATTEST: 

___________________________________            ____________________________________ 
CITY CLERK                      MAYOR 
 

CERTIFICATION 
I HEREBY CERTIFY that the above and foregoing Resolution No, 5437 was duly passed and 
adopted by the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona, at a regular meeting was held on 
the _________ day of _______________________, 2021, and that a quorum was present thereat. 
 
 
                  ___________________________________ 
        CITY CLERK 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
__________________________________   
CITY ATTORNEY  
 
 

 

 

 



Resolution No. 5437 
Page 3 

 
Chandler La Paglia High School Seminary and Professional Offices –  

AREA PLAN AMENDMENT – PLH20-0034 
 

 

 
Envisioned Community /Regional Open 
Space and Recreational Opportunities 

Traditional Suburban Character 



ORDINANCE NO.  4960 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF CHANDLER, ARIZONA, AMENDING 
THE ZONING CODE AND MAP ATTACHED THERETO, BY REZONING 
PARCELS FROM AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT (AG-1) TO PLANNED AREA 
DEVELOPMENT (PAD) FOR PROFESSIONAL OFFICES AND 
INSTITUTIONAL/EDUCATIONAL USES AS REPRESENTED IN CASE 
PLH20-0034 (CHANDLER LA PAGLIA HIGH SCHOOL SEMINARY AND 
PROFESSIONAL OFFICES) LOCATED SOUTH OF THE SOUTHWEST 
CORNER OF GILBERT AND OCOTILLO ROADS WITHIN THE 
CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF CHANDLER, ARIZONA; 
PROVIDING FOR THE REPEAL OF CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; AND 
PROVIDING FOR PENALTIES. 

 
WHEREAS, the application for rezoning certain property within the corporate limits of 
Chandler, Arizona, has been filed in accordance with Article XXVI of the Chandler Zoning 
Code; and 
 
WHEREAS, the application has been published in a local newspaper with general circulation in 
the City of Chandler, giving fifteen (15) days’ notice of time, place and date of public hearing; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, a notice of such hearing was posted on the property at least seven (7) days prior to 
said public hearing; and 
 
WHEREAS, a public hearing was held by the Planning and Zoning Commission as required by 
the Zoning Code. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona, 
as follows: 
 
Section 1. Legal Description of Property: 
  As described in EXHIBIT ‘A’ 
 

Said property is hereby rezoned from Agricultural District (AG-1) to Planned Area 
Development (PAD) for Professional Offices and Institutional/Educational Uses, subject 
to the following conditions: 

 
1. Development shall be in substantial conformance with the Development 

Booklet, entitled “Chandler La Paglia High School Seminary and Professional 
Offices” and kept on file in the City of Chandler Planning Division, in File 
No. PLH20-0034, modified by such conditions included at the time the 
Booklet was approved by the Chandler City Council and/or as thereafter 
amended, modified or supplemented by the Chandler City Council. 

 



Ordinance No. 4960 
Page 2 

2. The following uses shall be permitted:  
Institutional uses including church, seminary, nursing home, and 
educational entity.  
 
Commercial Office uses including general office, professional office, 
medical office, dental, insurance, counseling, real estate and title 
companies. 

 
Other similar institutional and/or office uses not listed here may be 
permitted upon determination by the Planning Administrator that it will 
not generate a greater or more intense traffic impact on the area. 

 
3. The following uses shall be prohibited: retail, call centers, dry cleaners, 

personal services (e.g., barber, nail and beauty salons, tattoo, day spa), animal 
daycare and boarding, bakery, bars, drive-through and restaurants.  
 

4. Completion of the construction of all required off-site street improvements 
including but not limited to paving, landscaping, curb, gutter and sidewalks, 
median improvements and street lighting to achieve conformance with City 
codes, standard details, and design manuals. 
 

5. Right-of-way dedications to achieve full half-widths, including turn lanes and 
deceleration lanes, per the standards of the Chandler Transportation Plan. 

6. Prior to the time of making any lot reservations or subsequent sales 
agreements, the subdivider/homebuilder/lot developer shall provide a written 
disclosure statement, for the signature of each buyer, acknowledging that the 
subdivision is located adjacent to or nearby a City of Chandler water 
facility/recharge ponds that may cause adverse noise, odors, and other 
externalities. The “Public Subdivision Report”, “Purchase Contracts”, 
CC&R’s, and the individual lot property deeds shall include a disclosure 
statement outlining that the site is adjacent to or nearby a wastewater 
treatment facility, and the disclosure shall state that such uses are legal and 
should be expected to continue indefinitely. The disclosure shall be presented 
to prospective homebuyers on a separate, single form for them to read and 
sign prior to or simultaneously with executing a purchase agreement.  This 
responsibility for notice rests with the homebuilder/lot developer and shall not 
be construed as an absolute guarantee by the City of Chandler for receiving 
such notice. 

 
Section 2. The Planning Division of the City of Chandler is hereby directed to enter such 

changes and amendments as may be necessary upon the Zoning Map of said 
Zoning Code in compliance with this Ordinance.  

 
Section 3. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this 

Ordinance, or any parts hereof, are hereby repealed. 
 



Ordinance No. 4960 
Page 3 

Section 4. In any case, where any building, structure, or land is used in violation of this 
Ordinance, the Planning Division of the City of Chandler may institute an 
injunction or any other appropriate action in proceeding to prevent the use of such 
building, structure, or land.  

 
Section 5. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion of this Ordinance is 

for any reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional by the decision of any court 
of competent jurisdiction, then this entire ordinance is invalid and shall have no 
force or effect. 

 
Section 6. A violation of this Ordinance shall be a Class 1 misdemeanor subject to the 

enforcement and penalty provisions set forth in Section 1-8.3 of the Chandler City 
Code.  Each day a violation continues, or the failure to perform any act or duty 
required by this Ordinance or the Zoning Code, shall constitute a separate offense. 

 
INTRODUCED AND TENTATIVELY APPROVED by the City Council of the City of 
Chandler, Arizona, this ____ day of ______________, 2021. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
CITY CLERK      MAYOR 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona, this _____ day 
of _______________, 2021. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________  _______________________________ 
CITY CLERK      MAYOR 

 
CERTIFICATION 

 
I HEREBY CERTIFY that the above and foregoing Ordinance No. 4960 was duly passed and 
adopted by the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona, at a regular meeting held on the 
____ day of _____________, 2021, and that a quorum was present thereat. 
 
      __________________________ 
       CITY CLERK 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
      
CITY ATTORNEY  
 
Published 



Ordinance No. 4960 
Page 4 

EXHIBIT ‘A’ 
Legal Description 

 

 



S G
ILB

ER
T R

D

E OCOTILLO RD

E LYNX PL

E BROOKS FARM RD

E ZION WY

S L
IN

DL
 D

R

S N
OR

MA
N 

W
Y

E ALOE DR

E GLACIER PL

E ALOE PL

E MEAD DR

E HORSESHOE DR

E BLUE RIDGE PL

S RINCON DR

S 1
38

TH
 ST

E MEAD PL

S A
DO

BE
 D

R

E KAIBAB PL

E CANYON WY

S B
UC

KS
KIN

 W
Y

S F
OU

R 
PE

AK
S 

WY

E YELLOWSTONE PL

E BLUE RIDGE WY

E HORSESHOE PL

S M
ILL

ER
 D

R

E GRAND CANYON DR

S D
RA

GO
ON

 D
R

S T
ER

ES
A D

R

S N
EU

MA
N 

PL

E ZION WY

E BLUE RIDGE PL

E HORSESHOE DR

E LYNX PL

E CANYON WY

S RINCON DR

S MILLER DR

S DRAGOON DR

S B
UC

KS
KIN

 W
Y

E MEAD DR

S L
IN

DL
 D

R

E GRAND CANYON DR

E ALOE PL

City of Chandler Planning Division

Project Site
Gi

lbe
rt 

Rd
.

Proposed Project Details
AREA PLAN AMENDMENT/REZONE/PDP
1.7 Acres
Professional Offices and Institutional/Educational Uses

chandleraz.gov/planning
For more information visit:

Ocotillo Rd.

https://gis.chandleraz.gov/planning

PLH20-0033/PLH20-0034 La Paglia High School Seminary and Professional Offices ´

^

PAD
Brooks Ranch

PAD

PAD
Layton Lakes

CO
UN

TY

PAD

PAD
Fonte Al Sole

AG-1

School

PAD

PAD
Reids Ranch

PAD
Sunrise

Meadows
Estates

PAD
Bellaza

PAD
La Esquina

PAD
Artesian Ranch

PAD
Quail Springs

AG-1



S G
ILB

ER
T R

D

E OCOTILLO RD

E LYNX PL

E BROOKS FARM RD

E ZION WY

S L
IN

DL
 D

R

S N
OR

MA
N 

W
Y

E ALOE DR

E GLACIER PL

E ALOE PL

E MEAD DR

E HORSESHOE DR

E BLUE RIDGE PL

S RINCON DR

S 1
38

TH
 ST

E MEAD PL

S A
DO

BE
 D

R

E KAIBAB PL

E CANYON WY

S B
UC

KS
KIN

 W
Y

S F
OU

R 
PE

AK
S 

WY

E YELLOWSTONE PL

E BLUE RIDGE WY

E HORSESHOE PL

S M
ILL

ER
 D

R

E GRAND CANYON DR

S D
RA

GO
ON

 D
R

S T
ER

ES
A D

R

S N
EU

MA
N 

PL

E ZION WY

E BLUE RIDGE PL

E HORSESHOE DR

E LYNX PL

E CANYON WY

S RINCON DR

S MILLER DR

S DRAGOON DR

S B
UC

KS
KIN

 W
Y

E MEAD DR

S L
IN

DL
 D

R

E GRAND CANYON DR

E ALOE PL

City of Chandler Planning Division

Project Site
Gi

lbe
rt 

Rd
.

Proposed Project Details
AREA PLAN AMENDMENT/REZONE/PDP
1.7 Acres
Professional Offices and Institutional/Educational Uses

chandleraz.gov/planning
For more information visit:

Ocotillo Rd.

https://gis.chandleraz.gov/planning

PLH20-0033/PLH20-0034 La Paglia High School Seminary and Professional Offices ´

^

PAD
Brooks Ranch

PAD

PAD
Layton Lakes

CO
UN

TY

PAD

PAD
Fonte Al Sole

AG-1

School

PAD

PAD
Reids Ranch

PAD
Sunrise

Meadows
Estates

PAD
Bellaza

PAD
La Esquina

PAD
Artesian Ranch

PAD
Quail Springs

AG-1



Chandler La Paglia HS Seminary – Area Plan Amendment, Rezone, and PDP Narrative 
Page 1 of 27 

 

 

  

 

 

Narrative 
Area Plan Amendment 

Rezoning and 
Preliminary Development Plan  

Gilbert Road - 2100’ South of Ocotillo West Side 
 

PLH20-0033 & PLH20-0034 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Chandler La Paglia High School 
Seminary  

and Professional Offices  
 
 

 

 



Chandler La Paglia HS Seminary – Area Plan Amendment, Rezone, and PDP Narrative 
Page 2 of 27 

 

Table of Contents 

Introduction 3 

Future Land Use 4 

Project Information 4 

Land Use Compatibility 5 

Building Character & Historical Photos 6 

Exhibit A – Aerial Photo 8 

Exhibit B – Site Plan Seminary 9 

Exhibit C – Site Plan Seminary & Offices 10 

Exhibit D – Colored Site Details 11 

Exhibit E – Colored Site Details 12 

Exhibit F – Colored Landscape Plan Seminary 13 

Exhibit G – B&W Landscape Plan Seminary 14 

Exhibit H – Colored Landscape Plan Seminary & Offices 15 

Exhibit I – B&W Landscape Plan Seminary & Offices 16 

Exhibit J – Colored Exterior Elevations Seminary 17 

Exhibit K – Colored Exterior Elevations Seminary  18 

Exhibit L – Colored Exterior Elevations Seminary  19 

                   With Future Addition  

Exhibit M – Colored Exterior Elevations Seminary 20 

                   With Future Addition 

Exhibit N – Floor Plan – 2 Classroom 21 

Exhibit O – Floor Plan – 3 Classroom 22 

Exhibit P – B&W Exterior Elevations Seminary – 2 Classroom 23 

Exhibit Q – B&W Exterior Elevations Seminary – 2 Classroom 24 

Exhibit R – B&W Exterior Elevations Seminary – 3 Classroom 25 

Exhibit S – B&W Exterior Elevations Seminary – 3 Classroom 26  

Exhibit T – Color Board 27 

  



Chandler La Paglia HS Seminary – Area Plan Amendment, Rezone, and PDP Narrative 
Page 3 of 27 

 

Introduction: 
 
Our request is annexation into City of Chandler and change the zoning from RU-43 (Maricopa 
Co. Zoning) to PAD and Preliminary Development Plan approval. 
 
The property (303-44-020M) for the proposed Chandler La Paglia High School Seminary and Professional Offices 
is located on Gilbert Road approximately 2100’ south of Ocotillo Rd. on Gilbert Rd. The project will include a +/-
5,010 sf seminary religious school and +/-6,722 sf professional office building (developed by others) behind the 
seminary.  These offices are intended to be doctors, dentists, counselors, and the like.  This is NOT intended for 
retail use.   
 
Existing Land Use: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
The site is vacant and has historically been used for agriculture.  It is in Maricopa County; zoned RU-43.  
  
West:  Canal and overflow ponds – City of Chandler (AG-1) 
North:  Privately owned business – Maricopa County (RU-43 Zoning) 
East:  Gilbert Road and new High School (AG-1) 
South:  Dollar Self-Storage – City of Chandler (PAD) 
 
Request rezone to a Planned Area Development (PAD):  The request is to rezone to Planned Area Development 
(PAD) for a seminary and professional offices.  Other uses will be low traffic generating including, offices, medical, 
dental, insurance, counseling, assisted living, real estate offices, title companies.  Prohibited uses include retail 
sales (of any kind), call centers, cleaners, barbers/hair and nail salons, animal boarding, and similar uses.    
 
First phase of the project is the seminary building and the development of the .72 acres.  It is intended as part of 

phase one to include perimeter landscaping, wall along the canal, asphalt fire lane, and dust control on the office 

site.  (See Exhibits B, F, and G) 

Second phase will include the office site development, parking, interior landscaping, lighting, etc. which will be 

permitted separately.  (See Exhibits C, H, and I) 

Waivers: Phase 2 will require an amendment to the PAD zoning if uses are changed and require more parking 

than shown on this PAD. 

 

North 

 

SITE 

Future La Paglia High School-AG-1 



Chandler La Paglia HS Seminary – Area Plan Amendment, Rezone, and PDP Narrative 
Page 4 of 27 

 

Future Land Use: 
 
The Church of Jesus Christ of Latter-Day Saints is proposing a new seminary building to be built to service the 
students of the new La Paglia High School and a one acre lot ,behind the seminary, for medical, professional 
offices, or other similar uses.  The back development will be designed and built by others and will require site plan 
approval if it deviates from this proposal layout.  Parcel A (Seminary) = .72 acres and Parcel B (Offices) = .99 acres. 
 

Project Information: 
 
Site Design:  The site has been designed with the seminary as the predominate use on this site located facing 
Gilbert Road with parking and access drive located on the north side of the site.  As per the Chandler Southeast 
Area Plan, the majority of the parking is located behind the seminary building to minimize the  intrusion of parking 
along the streetscape.  The parking visible from the street will have 42” high decorative screen walls and enhanced 
landscaping.  (See Exhibits E and F) 
 
Seminary Hours of operation:   7am to 5pm M-F (occasionally on Saturday) 
     
Seminary Employees: 5 teachers + 1 administrative assistant 
 
Number of Students: 30 students per Classroom x 3 classrooms (at full build-out) = 90 per hour 
 90 students per class hour x 6 hours = 540 (at maximum capacity) 
 
Method of Transportation: Students attending seminary classes will walk or be bussed to class by the 

seminary.  No student is permitted to drive to seminary for regular classes.  
Parent conferences and other occasional meetings may be held during the 
week. 

 
Parking:  The design of the site parking is consistent with the area plan statement: “should not dominate the 
commercial site in areas adjacent to any street.  Parking should be concentrated in areas away from the street, 
behind front pad buildings…”   Joint access, parking, and retention agreements will allow joint used. 
 

Required Parking: 
Seminary Parking (Phase 1):    5,010 sf / 200 sf  = 25 spaces  
Medical Office Parking (Phase 2):   6,336 sf / 150 sf  = 43 spaces 
Total Required Parking:  11,246 sf 68 spaces 
 
Provided Parking: 
Seminary Parking (Phase 1):  28 spaces 
Medical Office Parking (Phase 2):  42 spaces 
Total Provided Parking:  70 spaces 

 
Retention will be located south of the seminary building and will be utilized for on-site retention and the total 
development will be a combination of underground and traditional site retention. 
 
Refuse and barrel enclosures shall harmonize with the building design and will be split face masonry. 
 
Landscaping has been thoughtfully designed utilizing several existing trees and integrating them into the 
development.  48 inch and 36 inch box trees along with the relocated existing trees will be used to create a 
“established” look to the development per Area Plan. (See Exhibits F, G, H, and I) 
 
The north property line will require a “dissimilar use” landscape buffer which includes evergreen trees 7’-0” 
minimum in height and enhanced shrubbery.  A six-foot decorative wall will be provided adjacent to the canal (on 
the west).  Existing decorative walls along the north property line and to the south the development has been 
previously built on the property line. 

 

  



Chandler La Paglia HS Seminary – Area Plan Amendment, Rezone, and PDP Narrative 
Page 5 of 27 

 

Land Use Compatibility with the General Plan and the Southeast Chandler 
Area Plan and submitted area plan Amendment: 
 
Area Plan:  Currently the Area Plan designates this area as “Community/Regional Open Space”.  The 
adjacent properties have been previously developed into commercial uses with the southern property, 
Dollar Self Storage, having amended the area plan to “Traditional Suburban Character.  “Low profile 
development should characterize the area – single story buildings along arterial street, including 
commercial developments, should be encouraged.”  The proposed development of a seminary building, 
and a professional office building would be compatible with the character designations of the area plan 
that is being submitted for amendment.  The development, when completed, will create a stepped 
hierarchy with the seminary in the front along Gilbert Road.  With parking located on the north and ample 
retention/open space to the south, this will create a dimensional view.  The road view will be one of a 
deep low density development consistent with “broad vistas and an open feeling…” as written in the 
Southeast Chandler Area Plan and consistent with “accomplished through deeper setbacks for new 
development along roadways” from the same document.  The offices have been moved to the very back 
of the site, creating these opportunities. 
 
Current Area Plan: 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Existing Land Use:     Proposed Land Use: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Site 

Traditional Suburban 

Character 

Rural Agrarian 

Character 

Envisioned Community / 

Regional Open Space and 

Recreational Opportunities. 

 

Site 

 

susanfi
Polygon

susanfi
Polygon



Chandler La Paglia HS Seminary – Area Plan Amendment, Rezone, and PDP Narrative 
Page 6 of 27 

 

General Plan designation of Neighborhoods:  “This category allows a range of residential densities 
and a variety of non-residential uses such as commercial, institutional, public facilities, and commercial 
offices based upon location…”.  
 
 
. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The site is compatible with the General Plan and meets the criteria for “Traditional Suburban Character” 
of the Chandler Southeast Area Plan that is being submitted for amendment.  The site is sandwiched 
between a self-storage to the south and a gymnastic school “Arizona Olympian Gymnastics”.  To the 
west are the evaporation ponds.  To the east is the new Chandler “La Paglia” High school.  These 
schools represent the essence of the Area Plan.  On the practical side, Gilbert Road is a busy arterial 
and the seminary building and offices will be a low use with the seminary parking for the teachers with no 
student parking.  The medical and/or offices to the west of the seminary (designed by others) will be 
oriented to uses compatible with education, counseling, and for the most part, student medical needs 
feeding off the school.  No retail will be permitted.  These represent very low traffic uses and reflect the 
suburban feeling of the area.  Enhancing the suburban feel, the building is set 50 feet back from Gilbert 
Road giving generous space for landscaping.  Parking will be predominately in the west side behind the 
seminary building, again helping the project have a very suburban feel. 
 

Building Character & Historic Photos 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Adherence to the Building Architecture in the Chandler Southeast Area Plan:  As stated in the Area 
Plan, Section B-Commercial Guidelines, “…the architectural style chosen for a project should achieve a 
reflection of the rural/agrarian character and be of a quality design.  The architectural style of the 
seminary building is consistent with historical architectural materials and form in the original Chandler 
architectural vernacular.  Simple straight-line buildings simple pitched roofs or low-slope, durable 
materials (brick) were often used as shown in the following photos.  The architecture provides a 
historical/traditional presence and the feeling of solidity with perceived “thick” walls.  Windows are inset 
and not flush.  As shown in the following photographs, historic materials included brick, tile, pre-cast 
(shown as columns).  The seminary building will utilize similar materials.  The form will be sympathetic 
with the following photos in a simplified form.  
  

 

SITE 

G
ilb

e
rt

 R
d

. 

 



Chandler La Paglia HS Seminary – Area Plan Amendment, Rezone, and PDP Narrative 
Page 7 of 27 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
As seen in the preceding photos, the materials are consistent with the Building Guidelines of the 
Southeast Chandler Area Plan.  
 
The development will use these materials (see Attached Exhibits): 

1. Concrete roof tiles 
2. Brick 
3. Traditional style windows (white) 
4. Metal or aluminum accents 
5. Pre-cast elements (columns and plinths as shown in bottom photo) 
6. EIFS or stucco  

 
The professional offices (by others) occurring behind the seminary building will have a more modern take 
of the traditional architecture of the seminary building and will use the same materials as outlined above.  
The shapes are simple and reflect the vernacular of traditional western architecture with a modern feel, 
utilizing the same design materials as the seminary. 
 
We respectfully request the approval of the Area Plan Amendment, Preliminary Development Plan and 
rezone to PAD.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

  

 



Exhibit A Chandler La Paglia HS Seminary – Area Plan Amendment, Rezone, and 
PDP Narrative Page 8 of 27 



32 

A 

C 

G 

X32 

31 30 

EXISTING 
CANAL& 

"AG-1" ZONING 

(!) 

" 

29 28 27 26 

DECOMPOSED 
GRANITE AREA­
SEE LANDSCAPE 

DRAWINGS 

25 24 23 22 21 20 19 

FUTURE COMMERCIAL OFFICES {PARCEL "B") SITE AREA 
± 43,039 SF/± .99 AC 

18 

EXISTING 
ADJACENT 

"RU-43" ZONING 

17 

N 89° 14' 42" E 308.16' 

16 15 14 13 

SEMINARY (PARCEL "A") SITE AREA 
±31,477 SF/±.72 AC 

� EXISTING 6'-0'
l
HIGH DECORATIVE CMU WALL TO REMAIN 

------------------------

DECOMPOSED 
GRANITE AREA ­
SEE LANDSCAPE 

DRAWINGS 

ASPHALT­
PAVED 

EMERGENCY 
VEHICLE 
ACCESS 

ROAD 

_,.__ _ _..__

DECOMPOSED 
GRANITE AREA­
SEE LANDSCAPE 

DRAWINGS 

ASPHALT-PAVED 
EMERGENCY 

VEHICLE 
ACCESS ROAD 

is 
35' 

DECOMPOSED 
GRANITE AREA -
SEE LANDSCAPE 

DRAWINGS 

20' 

---------------------------

� 

9'-0" 

9'-0" 18'-0" 

ii ii f------l-!,-:::;:::1,i..,.�:'"'""""..,;.-..,.,..,.i1,---J,••""""'4----1-h-l----lc...:,.,,L'.'1_-----k-

l110._0 .. 1 
,o·-0· t _ - - - -□�:::�

)
- - -s�,: J 

50'-0" 

_________ J 
B.S.L. 

1 1 I
-----------------------------------------------------

�
---�----------

I I � 
__________________________ EXISTING 6'-0" HIGH DECORATIVE CMUWALL TO REMAIN __ 

L__.1_ ______ _ 

VICINITY MAP 

SITE 

E. BROOKS 
FARM RD. 

N 

-@-
0 5 10 20 
�-

SCALE: 1" = 20'-0" 

E. OCOTILLO RD. 

E. CHANDLER HTS. RD. 

40 

SITE PLAN NOTES 

1. ALL SITE IMPROVEMENTS, INCLUDING SITE CLEANUP, 
MUST BE COMPLETED PRIOR TO CERTIFICAT E OF 
OCCUPANCY FOR ANY BUILDING WITHIN A PHASE. 

2. ALL ROOF-MOUNTED MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT 
SHALL BE FULLY SCREENED BY PARAPET WALLS EQUAL 
TO, OR GREATER THAN, THE HIGHEST POINT ON THE 
MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT. 

3. SOLID MASONRY WALLS AND GATES EQUAL TO, OR 
GREATER THAN, THE HIGHEST POINT ON THE 
MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT SHALL SCREEN ALL 
GROUND-MOUNTED MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT. 

4. ALL EXTERNAL LIGHTING SHALL BE LOCATED AND 
DESIGNED TO PREVENT RAYS FROM BEING DIRECTED 
OFF OF THE PROPERTY UPON WHICH THE LIGHTING IS 
LOCATED. 

5. THE FIRE DEPARTMENT DOUBLE CHECK ASSEMBLY 
SHALL BE PAINTED TO MATCH THE ADJACENT WALL 
COLOR. 

6. SIGNS REQUIRE SEPARATE PERMIT. 

7. THERE SHALL BE NO OBSTRUCTION OF SITE 
SIGNAGE BY LANDSCAPE PLANT MATERIAL, AND THAT 
SUCH MUST BE RELOCATED/CORRECTED BEFORE THE 
FIELD INSPECTION WILL ACCEPT/PASS THE SIGN IN THE 
FIELD OR ISSUE A CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY FOR 
THE PROJECT. 

8. ALL TRANSFORMER BOXES, METER PANELS AND 
ELECTRICAL EQUIPMENT, BACKFLOW DEVICES OR ANY 
OTHER UTILITY EQUIPMENT NOT ABLE TO BE OR 
REQUIRED TO BE SCREENED BY LANDSCAPING OR 
WALLS, SHALL BE PAINTED TO MATCH BUILDING COLOR 

9. ALL WALLS OVER 7'-0" IN HEIGHT, SITE LIGHTING, 
SIGNAGE, RAMADAS AND SHADE STRUCTURES 
REQUIRE SEPARATE SUBMITTAL AND PERMITS. 

N 89° 27' 01" E 390.12' 

EXISTING 
SELF-STORAGE 
"PAD" ZONING 

PROJECT INFORMATION 

PROJECT: 

PROJECT OWNER: 

CONTACT: 

A.P.N. 

GROSS SITE AREA (PARCELS "A" & "B") : 

SEMINARY (PARCEL "A") SITE AREA: 

COMMERCIAL (PARCEL "B") SITE AREA: 

EXISTING ZONING: 

CHANDLER AZ. SR SEMINARY 
EAST BROOKS FARM & GILBERT ROAD 
CHANDLER, ARIZONA 85249 

THE CHURCH OF JESUS CHRIST OF LATTER-DAY SAINTS, 
A UTAH CORPORATION SOLE 
50 EAST NORTH TEMPLE 
SALT LAKE CITY, UTAH 84601 

RANDOLPH L. CARTER, NCARB, AIA 
SKETCH ARCHITECTURE COMPANY 
2454 EAST SOUTHERN AVENUE, SUITE 110 
MESA, ARIZONA 85204 
(480) 668-8015 FAX (480) 668-8032 

303-44-020M 

± 74,516 SF/± 1.71 AC 

±31,477 SF/± .72 AC 

± 43,039 SF/± .99 AC 

RU-43 

PROPOSED ZONING (PARCELS "A" & "B"): PAD 

PROPOSED LAND USE (PARCEL "A"): SEMINARY 

PROPOSED LAND USE (PARCEL "B"): FUTURE COMMERCIAL OFFICES/ MEDICAL 

BUILDING AREAS : 

BUILDING HEIGHTS: 

SITE COVERAGE (PARCEL "A"): 

SITE COVERAGE (PARCEL "B") : 

SEMINARY 3,681 SF 
SEMINARY (FUTURE EXPANSION) 1,329 SF 
FUTURE COMMERCIAL OFFICES/ MEDICAL 6 336 SF 
TOTAL 11,346 SF 

SEMINARY= 22'-0' & FUTURE COMMERCIAL OFFICES/ MEDICAL= 30'-0" 

± 15.9% (5,010 SF SEMINARY/ 31,477 SF PARCEL) 

± 6.79% (6,336 SF FUTURE COMMERCIAL OFFICES/ MEDICAL/ 43,039 SF PARCEL) 

LANDSCAPE COVERAGE (PARCELS "A" & "B": ± 42% (31,274 SF PROVIDED/ 74,516 SF TOTAL BOTH PARCELS) 

PARKING REQUIRED: 

PARKING PROVIDED: 

SEMINARY 5,010 SF/ 200 = 25 SPACES 

25 STANDARD PARKING SPACES 
1 ACCESSIBLE PARKING SPACES 
1 VAN-ACCESSIBLE PARKING SPACES 
27 PARKING SPACES 

ARCHITECTURAL SITE PLAN - SEMINARY 

12 11 

I 

r ! , 
fig ,,

, 

,, 

r MDV 
1ST IN 

J'VE WY 

I ' 

EXISTING 
DRIVEWAY 

10 

I 

I 

I<( 

1� 
I I--

I� ..J 
I 

1: 
iz 

I� 
a) 

!�
i� 

A 

I 
C 

D 

I 

ii 
I 

I£ti 

�1 I 

I 

I 
IJJ I 

;1 Cl 

G 

I 

I 
NEW 

�1 
HIGH SCHOOL 
"AG-1" ZONING 

::, I I 

�I 
I 

II-- I 

�I 
I 

I 

I 
K 

I 

I 

I M 

0 

p 

s 

T 

u 

SAC Project Number 
2020-07 

ARCHITECTURAL 
SITE PLAN - V 

SEMINARY 

w 

S0101 X Chandler La Paglia HS Seminary – Area Plan Amendment, Rezone, and 
PDP Narrative Page 9 of 27

Exhibit B 

Dream_2
Rectangle



32 

A 

C 

D 

G 

1. 
·1
'1 
Ii 
h��"'
'I 
!1 

•I
!! 

'1 !, 
ii M 

1! I,,, 
•! 
1, N 

,: .! ,. ,! 

II 0 

;. 

Ii,, 
11 
!I
!, 
!t
ii 

Q !1 
h 
!',! 
ii 
.. R 

Ii 
!o 

!i,,
•! s 

h _,

iiIi
I" 
,1 
!, 
ii 

T 

,,�� 
•! u )! 
'I 
'1 !, 
"! 

11 V 

�� 
ii •! Ii 
�i w 

,i 

!',i 
•! 
I' X ,! X32 
11 
1! 

32 

31 

EXISTING 
CANAL& 

"AG-1" ZONING 

30 

,__ 
"' 

29 

0 
,__ 

'<" 
(!) 

'<" 
() 

VICINITY MAP 

SI TE 

E. BROOKS 
FARM RD. 

N 

-@-
0 5 10 20 
�-

SCALE: 1" = 20'-0" 

28 

E. OCOTILLO RD. 

E. CHANDLER HTS. RD. 

40 

27 26 25 24 23 22 21 20 19 18 

EXISTING 
ADJACENT 

"RU-43" ZONING 

17 16 15 14 

FUTURE COMMERCIAL OFFICES (PARCEL •B") SITE AREA SEMINARY (PARCEL •A") SITE AREA 
± 43,039 SF/± .99 AC ± 31,477 SF/± .72 AC 

N 89° 14' 42" E 308.16' ------------ --------------------
EXI ING 6'-0 HIGH DECORATIVE CMLI WALL TO REMAIN 

/------------- ------------------- ---------------------------

I 

I 

I 

I 

/ 

I 

I 

25'-11" 

19' 

;/,e, 
/ Cl) 
, e-

L__J---- --1/ �
"' " 

� 

i 
,� 

� " 
� 

� 
g; 

) 
� 

9' 

25'-0�' 

;1 

Ir 
ii 
z 

ii 
ii 
�1 z 

/I 
I 

-------- --
,,/_ Q. SP. AT 9'-0" EA.= 72'-0" 

5 EQ. SP. AT 9'-0" EA.= 45'-0" 

I 
I 
I 
I DASHED) SD103 I 
'--------------" 

75'-9" 

_ _ ___ _ _ EXISTING 6'-0" HIGH DECORATIVE CMU WALL TO REMAIN � 

SITE PLAN NOTES 

1. ALL SITE IMPROVEMENTS, INCLUDING SITE CLEANUP, 
MUST BE COMPLETED PRIOR TO CERTIFICATE OF 
OCCUPANCY FOR ANY BUILDING WITHIN A PHASE. 

2. ALL ROOF-MOUNTED MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT 
SHALL BE FULLY SCREENED BY PARAPET WALLS EQUAL 
TO, OR GREATER THAN, THE HIGHEST POINT ON THE 
MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT. 

3. SOLID MASONRY WALLS AND GATES EQUAL TO, OR 
GREATER THAN, THE HIGHEST POINT ON THE 
MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT SHALL SCREEN ALL 
GROUND-MOUNTED MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT. 

4. ALL EXTERNAL LIGHTING SHALL BE LOCATED AND 
DESIGNED TO PREVENT RAYS FROM BEING DIRECTED 
OFF OF THE PROPERTY UPON WHICH THE LIGHTING IS 
LOCATED . 

5. THE FIRE DEPARTMENT DOUBLE CHECK ASSEMBLY 
SHALL BE PAINTED TO MATCH THE ADJACENT WALL 
COLOR. 

6. SIGNS REQUIRE SEPARATE PERMIT. 

7. THERE SHALL BE NO OBSTRUCTION OF SITE 
SIGNAGE BY LANDSCAPE PLANT MATERIAL, AND THAT 
SUCH MUST BE RELOCATED/CORRECTED BEFORE THE 
FIELD INSPECTION WILL ACCEPT/PASS THE SIGN IN THE 
FIELD OR ISSUE A CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY FOR 
THE PROJECT. 

N 89" 27' 01" E 390.12' 

EXISTING 
SELF-STORAGE 
"PAD" ZONING 

PROJECT INFORMATION 

PROJECT: 

PROJECT OWNER : 

CONTACT: 

A.P.N. 

GROSS SITE AREA (PARCELS "A" & "B"): 

SEMINARY (PARCEL "A") SITE AREA: 

COMMERCIAL {PARCEL "B") SITE AREA: 

EXISTING ZONING: 

CHANDLER AZ. SR SEMINARY 
EAST BROOKS FARM & GILBERT ROAD 
CHANDLER, ARIZONA 85249 

THE CHURCH OF JESUS CHRIST OF LATTER-DAY SAINTS, 
A UTAH CORPORATION SOLE 
50 EAST NORTH TEMPLE 
SALT LAKE CITY, UTAH 84601 

RANDOLPH L. CARTER, NCARB, AIA 
SKETCH ARCHITECTURE COMPANY 
2454 EAST SOUTHERN AVENUE, SUITE 110 
MESA, ARIZONA 85204 
(480) 668-8015 FAX (480) 668-<1032 

303-44--020M 

± 74,516 SF/± 1.71 AC 

±31,477 SF/± .72 AC 

± 43,039 SF/ ± .99 AC 

RU-43 

PROPOSED ZONING (PARCELS "A" & "B"): PAD 

PROPOSED LAND USE {PARCEL "A"): SEMINARY 

PROPOSED LAND USE {PARCEL "B") : 

BUILDING AREAS: 

FUTURE COMMERCIAL OFFICES/ MEDICAL 

SEMINARY 3,681 SF 
SEMINARY (FUTURE EXPANSION) 1,329 SF 
FUTURE COMMERCIAL OFFICES/ MEDICAL 6 336 SF 
TOTAL 11,346 SF 

50'-o• 
B.S.L. 

8. ALL TRANSFORMER BOXES, METER PANELS AND 
ELECTRICAL EQUIPMENT, BACKFLOW DEVICES OR ANY 
OTHER UTILITY EQUIPMENT NOT ABLE TO BE OR 
REQUIRED TO BE SCREENED BY LANDSCAPING OR 
WALLS, SHALL BE PAINTED TO MATCH BUILDING COLOR BUILDING HEIGHTS: 

SITE COVERAGE {PARCEL "A") : 

SEMINARY= 22'-0" & FUTURE COMMERCIAL OFFICES/ MEDICAL= 30'-0" 

± 15.9% (5,010 SF SEMINARY/ 31,477 SF PARCEL) 

13 

9. ALL WALLS OVER 7'-0" IN HEIGHT, SITE LIGHTING, 
SIGNAGE, RAMADAS AND SHADE STRUCTURES 
REQUIRE SEPARATE SUBMITTAL AND PERMITS. SITE COVERAGE {PARCEL "B") : ± 6.79% (6,336 SF FUTURE COMMERCIAL OFFICES/ MEDICAL/ 43,039 SF PARCEL) 

LANDSCAPE COVERAGE (PARCELS "A" & "B": ± 42% (31,274 SF PROVIDED/ 74,516 SF TOTAL BOTH PARCELS) 

PARKING REQUIRED: 

PARKING PROVIDED: 

SEMINARY 5,010 SF/ 200 • 25 SPACES 
FUTURE COMMERCIAL OFFICES/ MEDICAL 6 336 SF/ 150 = 43 SPACES 
68 SHARED PARKING SPACES 

66 STANDARD PARKING SPACES 
2 ACCESSIBLE PARKING SPACES 
2 VAN-ACCESSIBLE PARKING SPACES 
70 SHARED PARKING SPACES 

ARCHITECTURAL SITE PLAN - SEMINARY & FUTURE COMMERCIAL OFFICES 
1"=20'-0" 

31 30 29 28 27 26 25 24 23 22 21 20 19 18 17 16 15 14 13 

12 

I 

r!
lfg 

,, 

I 

EXISTING 
DRIVEWAY 

12 

11 

,/ , 

11 

10 

I<( 

1� 
I I-

;f 
I 

1: 
iz 

I� a) 

i� 
i� 

10 

I 

I 

ii 
cr1 

�1 
W1 

;; 

�1 
::, I 

�I 
I- I 

r1 

A 

I 
I 

I 
C 

D ) 

I 
I 

I G 

I 

I 
NEW 

HIGH SCHOOL 
"AG-1" ZONING 

I 
I 

I 

I 
I 
I 

I M 

0 

s 

T 

u 
SAC Project Number 

2020-07 

ARCHITECTURAL 
SITE PLAN - V 

SEMINARY& 
FUTURE 

COMMERCIAL 
OFFICES 

w 

SD101A X Chandler La Paglia HS Seminary - Area Plan Amendment, Rezone, and PDP 
Narrative Page 10 of 27

Exhibit C 

Dream_2
Rectangle



A 

C 

D 

G 

11 
j. J 

I! ji 
,! ,, I! K 
ii 

ii 
,i 

Ii l,
j� 

11 ii M 
ti 
I! 

ii 
i! N 

ii 
n 
!! 
•! 0 

ii ,, 
n p 
!! 

ii 
ii 
I· a .! 

ji
,1
ll J;J; R 
!I

ii ,, 

I: s 
u 
11 
Ii 
Ii T 

l! 
ii ,, 
ii 
�i u 

ii 
ii 
ii V !, 
jl 

!I 
!, 
:1 w 
ii " �� 
;; 
1! 
t� X 

32 31 30 29 28 

14'-0" 

3'-4" 3'-0" 3'-0" 

8X8X16 SPLIT-FACE CMU 
TYP. (SOLID SPLIT-FACE 
CMLI CAP)-(2) COATS 
PRIMED & PAINTED DE6125 
"CARVED WOOD" 

CONCRETE CURB - SEE 
ARCHITECTURAL SITE 
PLAN SHEET S0101 

-6-
1 

N 

5'-6" 6'-0" 

4" WIDE WHITE 
PAINTED STRIPES AT 

45' ANGLE 2'-0" 0.C. 

SLOPES WITHIN 
ACCESSIBLE 

PARKING STALLS 
AND AISLES TO BE 

"' 

0 0 0 

[J 

SWINGING GATES: METAL DECK 
WELDED TO TS 2X2X1/4 WELDED 
FRAME & DlAGONAl BRACE AT 
INSIDE FACE OF GATES (SHOWN 
DASHED)-(2) COATS PRIMED & 
PAINTED DE6042 "BEAR IN MIND" 

PLAN 

6'-0" 

3'-6" 4'-0" 3'-6" 

7'-0" 

29'-0" 

27 26 25 

3'-4" 

6'-0" 5'-6" 

24 23 

WEST ELEVATION 

EAST ELEVATION 

ACCESSIBLE PARKING SIGN & 
POST CENTERED ON PARKING 
SPACE· SEE 3/SD102 

CONCRETE SIDEWALK· 
SEE ARCHITECTURAL SITE 
PLAN & CIVIL DRAWINGS 

/ 

CONCRETE EXPANSION 
JOINT OR CONTROL 
JOINT· SEE 4/SD103 

lljjjjil--------'�-t--- CONCRETE CURB & 

PROVIDE DETECTABLE 
WARNING TEXTURE - SEE 
CIVIL DRAWINGS 

PAINTED EMBLEM ON 
ASPHALT PAVING 
(TYPICAL) AT ALL 

ACCESSIBLE PARKING 

7 
STALLS PER CITY 

REQUIREMENTS 

l�

3'-6" 4'-0" 3'-6" 

11'-0" 

RAMP 

4" WIDE WHITE 
PAINTED STRIPES 

22 21 20 

8X8X16 SPLIT-FACE CMU 
TYP. (SOLID SPLIT-FACE 
CMU CAP) -(2) COATS 
PRIMED & PAINTED OE6125 
"CARVED WOOD"- - - --

8X8X16 SPLIT-FACE CMU 
TYP. (SOLID SPLIT-FACE 
CMU CAP) -(2) COATS 
PRIMED & PAINTED DE6125 
"CARVED WOOD"- - - - -

19 18 17 16 

SWINGING GATES: METAL DECK WELDED TO 
TS 2X2X1/4 WELDED FRAME & DIAGONAL 
BRACE AT INSIDE FACE OF GATES (SHOWN 
DASHED)-(2) COATS PRIMED & PAINTED 
DE6042 "BEAR IN MIND" 

NORTH ELEVATION 

SOUTH ELEVATION 

15 14 

EQUAL 

13 

1'-35/8" 
STONE SIGN 

WIDTH 
(VERIFY) 

12 11 10 

CONTRACTOR TO VERIFY AND 
PROVIDE EXACT CORRECT 
ADDRESS NUMERALS PRIOR 
TO SIGN FABRICATION & 
INSTALLATION 

EQUAL 

;:­....,:!:!:: 
�ffi 

2:. 

/ 
� 'ffH CIHI![JRCIHI OIF' ',,r 

JlE:§U�, CHRliS'T I E 
ffi :, • Oil' JLA'f'f_ER-,DAY SAJIW,S ► 

. : SlE�KNARY /". 
., 

4'-75/8" 
STONE SIGN WIDTH 

(VERIFY) 

2:. 

LADDER 
REINFORCING 
AT 16" O.C. TYP. 

8x4x16 SPLIT FACE 
CMU PRIMED & 
PAINTED DE6125 
"CARVED WOOD" ALL 
SIDES (SPLIT FACE 
SIDE TO THE OUTSIDE 
OF ENCLOSURE) 

30 BAR0 LAP 

1 1/2" DIA. SCHED. 
80 PVC DRAINAGE 
HOLES AT 8'-0" 0.C. 

FINISH GRADE 

(3) #5 BARS 
CONT. 

9 "' 

8x4x16 SOLID SPLIT 
FACE CAP PRIMED & 
PAINTED DE6125 
"CARVED WOOD" ALL 
SIDES - CMU TO BE 
SET IN EPOXY 
MORTAR TYP. 

® �-:,��SE ENCLOSURE WALL SECTION

d•1 
I 
I 

ELEVATION/ SECTION 

1/4" STEEL CAP PLATE WELDED 
TO TOP OF STEEL TUBE POST 
WITH EDGES ROUNDED AND 
GROUND SMOOTH· (2) COATS EA. 
OF PRIMER & PAINTED DE6042 
"BEAR IN MIND" 

12" X 18" ACCESSIBLE RESERVED 
PARKING SIGNAGE PER EXACT CITY 
OF CHANDLER STANDARD DETAIL 

12" X 6" VAN ACCESSIBLE RESERVED 
PARKING SIGNAGE PER EXACT CITY OF 
CHANDLER STANDARD DETAIL 

2"X12" GALVANIZED STEEL TUBE 
POST· (2) COATS EA. OF PRIMER 
& PAINTED DE6042 "BEAR IN MIND" 

LANDSCAPE AREA 

2"X12" GALVANIZED STEEL TUBE 
POST - (2) COATS EA. OF PRIMER 
& PAINTED DE6042 "BEAR IN MIND" 

#4 X 3" SMOOTH ANCHOR BARS 
WELDED TO TUBE EACH SIDE 

CONCRETE BASE FOOTING 

CENTER POST ON STALL 

/ 
SIGN POST 

I � FOOTING SHOWN DASHED 

l

- - --+(- ...:..J � 12"0 CONCRETE POST 

� \,
�--

�LANDSCAPE AREA 

PLAN � CONCRETE CURB 

1/4" STEEL PLATE CLIP TO 
ACCEPT CANE BOLT IN 
OPEN POSITION 

SWINGING GATES: METAL DECK 
WELDED TO TS 2X2X1/4" WELDED 
FRAME & DIAGONAL BRACE - (2) 
COATS EA. OF PRIMER & PAINT 

3/4" 0 GALVANIZED STEEL 
ROD CANE BOLT 

1/4" STEEL PLATE CLIP TO ACCEPT 
CANE BOLT 

1" I.D. STEEL PIPE SLEEVES CAST 
4" INTO CONCRETE FOOTING 

12" OR 24" (SEE PLAN) X 10" DEEP 
THICKENED CONCRETE SLAB 
FOOTING (CLASS "A") 

"".,..___� 

® �
1
;�-�SE ENCLOSURE GATE & CANE BOLT

0 

[o 

"' +-- - - -
&,+-- - - -

1/4" STEEL PLATE WELDED TO TOP 
OF PIPE BOLLARD WITH EDGES 
ROUNDED AND GROUND SMOOTH 
(2) COATS EA. OF PRIMER & PAINT 
DE6042 "BEAR IN MIND" 

6" H. REFLECTIVE ENGINEER'S 
TAPE ALL AROUND (3M HIGH 
DENSITY YELLOW PRESSURE 
SENSITIVE OR APPR. EQUIVALENT) 

I>-- - - - - -- 6" 1.D. STANDARD SCHEDULE 40 
GALVANIZED STEEL PIPE FILLED 
WITH CONCRETE. FINISH WITH (2) 
COATS EA. OF PRIMER & PAINT -
DE6042 "BEAR IN MIND" 

1- ....:::c� - 6" CONCRETE PAVING 
OVER 6" COMPACTED ABC BASE 

,----- - -CONCRETE PIER FOOTING 
(CLASS "A") WI 1" TAPERED 
CROWN ALL AROUND TOP 

PREPARED SOIL BASE 
6"0 O.D. STANDARD PIPE JAMB POSTS 

• (2) COATS EA. OF PRIMER & PAINT 
DE6042 "BEAR IN MIND" 

1/4" STEEL PLATE WELDED TO TOP OF 
PIPE BOLLARD WITH EDGES ROUNDED 
AND GROUND SMOOTH - (2) COATS EA. OF 
PRIMER & PAINT DE6042 "BEAR IN MIND" 

1/2" X 1" SOLID STEEL BARS AT TOP & 
BOTTOM TYP. CONTINUOUS WELDED 
ALL SIDES TO 6" PIPE (GRIND ALL 
EDGES SMOOTH)· (2) COATS EA. OF 
PRIMER & PAINT DE6042 "BEAR IN MIND" 

TS 2"X8"X1/4" WI 1/4" PLATE WELDED 
JOINT CAPPED ENDS (GRIND ALL EDGES 
SMOOTH)· (2) COATS EA. OF PRIMER & 
PAINT DE6042 "BEAR IN MIND" 

6"X6"X1/4" PLATE EACH SIDE WELDED TO 
TS FLANGE & TS GATE FRAME (GRIND ALL 
EDGES SMOOTH) - (2) COATS EA. OF 
PRIMER & PAINT DE6042 "BEAR IN MIND" 

SWINGING GATES: METAL DECK WELDED 
TO TS 2X2X1/4" WELDED FRAME & 
DIAGONAL BRACE· (2) COATS EA. OF 
PRIMER & PAINT DE6042 "BEAR IN MIND" 

6"0 O.D. STANDARD PIPE JAMB POSTS· 
(2) COATS EA. OF PRIMER & PAINT DE6042 

TS 2"X8"X1/4" WI 1/4" PLATE WELDED 
JOINT CAPPED ENDS (GRIND ALL EDGES 
SMOOTH)· (2) COATS EA. OF PRIMER & 
PAINT DE6042 "BEAR IN MIND" 

6"X6"X1/4" PLATE EACH SIDE WELDED TO 
TS FLANGE & TS GATE FRAME (GRIND ALL 
EDGES SMOOTH) - (2) COATS EA. OF 
PRIMER & PAINT DE6042 "BEAR IN MIND" 

SWINGING GATES: METAL DECK WELDED 
TO TS 2X2X1/4" WELDED FRAME & 
DIAGONAL BRACE· (2) COATS EA. OF 
PRIMER & PAINT DE6042 "BEAR IN MIND" 

6"0 I.D. STANDARD PIPE PIVOT JAMB 
SLEEVES - (2) COATS EA. OF PRIMER & 
PAINT, INSTALL GREASE ZERKS & 
SYNTHETIC GREASE AT ALL FRICTION 
CONTACT POINTS TYP. 
6"X6"X1/4" PLATE EACH SIDE WELDED TO 
TS FLANGE & TS GATE FRAME (GRIND ALL 
EDGES SMOOTH)· (2) COATS EA. OF 
PRIMER & PAINT DE6042 "BEAR IN MIND" 
SWINGING GATES: METAL DECK WELDED 
TO TS 2X2X1/4" WELDED FRAME & 
DIAGONAL BRACE· (2) COATS EA. OF 
PRIMER & PAINT DE6042 "BEAR IN MIND" 

TS 2"X8"X1/4" WI 1/4" PLATE WELDED 
JOINT CAPPED ENDS (GRIND ALL EDGES 
SMOOTH)· (2) COATS EA. OF PRIMER & 
PAINT DE6042 "BEAR IN MIND" 

1/2" X 1" SOLID STEEL BARS AT TOP & 
BOTTOM TYP. CONTINUOUS WELDED 
ALL SIDES TO 6" PIPE (GRIND ALL 
EDGES SMOOTH) - (2) COATS EA. OF 
PRIMER & PAINT DE6042 "BEAR IN MIND" 

0 ��CESSIBLE PARKING SPACE & RAMP 0 ��CESSIBLE PARKING SIGN & POST 0 �!:,.; BOLLARD CD �,;:,,_�
SE ENCLOSURE GATES

>, 
A 

C 

"' 
C. 

E B 
0 
0 

Q) 

C 

u 

D 

u 

<( 

G 

>- '" 
0:: 

.., 
en 

<( 
I- <Xl 

z <( 

<( 
z 

z 
0 

en -- >- <( 

� 
<( ti 0 L!J er. ...J 

w z 
I- <( 

Cl) I- I 
<( 0 

...J ci 

0:: 
IJ.. <( 

0 
0 IY 

Cl) I- f--
IY en L!J 

ii:: CD

N 
...J 

I 
I 

<( en f--

0 

0:: 
en (f) 

LJJ ., 
---, 0

w IJ.. <( 
0 

0 IY 
I ::; 

0 
(.) 

IY 
<( 

0::: u. 
=> (f) 

z I 0 
(.) 0 

<( LJJ CD 
I f--

I I-
<( 

() 
L!J 

M 

0 

s 

T 

u SAC Project Number 
2020-07 

SITE DETAILS 

V 

w 

S0102 X 

I! 
11-�----.-----,.----..... -----,,----..------,-----,-----,...----.-----,----..... ----.-----,.----..... -----,,----..------,-----,-----,...----.-----,----..... ----..-----,.-----,------,-----,------,-----,-------r------.-----t--

32 31 30 29 28 27 26 25 24 23 22 10 

Chandler La Paglia HS Seminary – Area Plan Amendment, Rezone, and PDP Narrative  
Page 11 of 27 

Exhibit D



1, 
1, 
I! 
ii,, 
11 

A 

C 

D 

G 

:, 
1! K ,, 
l!!,
ii 
l! 
lj 
'I 
I' 
,! M 

ii 
11 
I! 
'( N l, 
!',!
�, 

11 °'· 
II,, 
11 
ii 
'Il. ,, 
11 
!' a 

d 
!I
!I �� R 

n,, 
Ii 
,, 

!I 

ji s 

1' 

ii Ii 
ii T o, 
l! 
ii 
fi 
!L
!i
Ii 
n ,, V 

ii 
!I
!, 
H w 

!l

32 31 30 29 

EQ. 

28 27 26 25 24 

8X8X16 SPLIT-FACE CMU W/ (2) COATS PRIMED 
& PAINTED DE6125 "CARVED WOOD" 
(SPLIT-FACE TO BE ON EAST SURFACE OF 
WALL FACING PROJECT SIDE) 

23 22 

ELEVATION 
FINISH GRADE 

0 ��.�
T PROPERTY LINE WALL

SEE SITE PLAN EQ. BRICK ROWLOCK & 
SOLDIER COURSES 
INTERSTATE BRICK 
"CLIFTON" SOLID 
COLOR REVERSE FACE 

SIGNAGE FOR FUTURE 
PROFESSIONAL OFFICES 
AT EAST WALL ONLY 

SEE SITE PLAN 
(CONCRETE STEM -1 ") 

I/ 
BRICK VENEER 

6,8,16 SOLIDCMU 
� !]!1 

w o::, 
INTEGRAL COLOR w 2. 

PLAN 

® ��
1

�_KING SCREEN WALLS

FIELD BRICK INTERSTATE 
BRICK "CEDAR" 

NORTH ELEVATION 

38'-8" • BRICK WAINSCOT 

BRICK VENEER (38'-7" - CONCRETE STEM WALL) 

6x8x16 SOLID CMU 
INTEGRAL COLOR SIM. 

4" CONG SLAB I� 
OVER 4" 

12Z'--- --+- - - - -J-- -,J--+ COMPACTED ABC - - - -t- -- - --+- -- - ---t- - -� 

PLAN 

21 20 19 18 17 16 

5'-2" 

15 14 

PROVIDE (2) COATS ASPHALT 
EMULSION AT END PORTIONS 
OF PIPE SET INTO CONCRETE 
BELOW SLAB SURFACE 

13 

1'-2" 10" 1'-2" 10" 1'-2" 

w DIA. 

EXPANSION MATERIAL 
SPACED 30' MAXIMUM 
APART

� r 
R=1/8"TYP 

-"'4 'I 
EXPANSION JOINT (EJ) 

GROOVED, SAW­
CUT OR PLASTIC 
INSERTS

� 
11" 

·1 �t
CONTRACTION JOINT (CJ) 

w DIA 

L = 1.25W MAXIMUM 
SPACE OF JOINT -

2"0 SCHEDULE 40 (2 
3/8" 0.0. X .154) GALV. 
STEEL PIPE (2) COATS 
PRIMED & PAINTED 
DE6042 "BEAR IN MINO" 

UNLESS NOTED ON PLANS 

TYP JOINT PATTERN 

0 �T
I
S
DEWALK JOINT DETAILS

BRICK ROWLOCK & SOLDIRE 
COURSES INTERSTATE BRICK 
"CLIFTON" SOLID COLOR 
REVERSE FACE 

FACE OF 
BUILDING 

TOP OF SLAB 

] 

BRICK ROWLOCK COURSE 
INTERSTATE BRICK 
"CLIFTON" SOLID COLOR 
REVERSE FACE 

WEST ELEVATION 

FACE OF 
BUILDING 

_--,--- BRICK SOLDIER 
COURSE 
INTERSTATE BRICK 
"CLIFTON" SOLID 
COLOR REVERSE 
FACE 

BASE 
INTERSTATE 
BRICK "CLIFTON" 

12 11 10 

LIGHT FIXTURE, SEE 
ELECTRICAL (DOUBLE HEAD 
WHERE INDICATED) 

- - - - - - 8" ADJACENT TO THE BUILDING, 
30" IN PARKING PLANTER ISLANDS 

��mfil� 11:ll11�11\ll'rr:111�IT 

POLE, COVER AND 
ANCHOR BOLTS 

COORDINATE CLEARANCE 
BETWEEN GROUT AND HINGED 
BASE WITH MANUFACTURER 

NON-SHRINK GROUT 

LANDSCAPE AREA 
FINISH GRADE 

1'-6" DIAMETER x 4'-0" 
LONG CONCRETE BASE 

(4) #5 RE-BARS 

3/4" CONDUIT 24" BELOW 
GRADE MIN. 

UNDISTURBED OR 
COMPACTED EARTH 

#3 TIES AT 12" O.C. 

□ 
COMPACTED 
AGGREGATE BASE 

0 ���-KING AREA LIGHT STANDARD

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I <1<l o 

I 

PLAN SECTION 

FILED BRICK 

#5 IN 
GROUTED 
CELL 

6X8X16 CMU 
INTEGRAL 
COLOR 

BRICK ROWLOCK 

#5 IN 8" CONT. GROUTED 
BOND BEAM 

LADDER REINFORCEMENT 
AT 16" O.C. 

BRICK SOLDIER 
COURSE 

FIELD BRICK 

6X8X16 CMU 
INTEGRAL COLOR 

#5 AT 24" O.C. IN GROUTED 
CELL, 30 BAR DIA. LAP TYP. 

2" SCHEDULE 80 PVC 
PIPE WEEP HOLES AT 
8'-0"O.C. 

4" CONG SLAB OVER 
4" COMPACTED ABC 

#5 AT 24" O.C. 

1 -1,sJ!::::=f=='f-- #5 CONT. AT TOP AND 
BOTTOM OF STEM 

(2) #5 CONT. 

1'-10" 

SAC Project Number 
2020-07 

SITE DETAILS 

S0103 

A 

C 

D 

G 

H 

M 

0 

s 

u 

V 

X Ii x 
0 ��?.HANICAL ENCLOSURE CD �;

0

?HANICAL ENCLOSURE WALL SECTION 
h-----.... ----.----.... ---...... -----.----..----...------.----.----.... ----.------.----.----...----..... ----.----..-----.------.----.----.,...---..... -----,----..----...----.... ----.----.... ---...... ----------..------1---

32 31 30 29 28 27 26 25 24 23 22 21 20 19 18 17 16 15 14 13 12 11 10 

Chandler La Paglia HS Seminary – Area Plan Amendment, Rezone, and PDP Narrative 
Page 12 of 27 

Exhibit E



ii•; 
!j 
1, 
IIu

A 

B 

C 

D 

E 

G 

H 

!! K 

!s
!li-

iE 
H L 
i! 
!I
!I M 

it 

u-
1! N il :i­
ii 
!t 0 

ii-
i! 
ii p 
H 
'I 

32 31 30 29 28 27 26 

BOLLDER SCHEDULE: 
@ 4'x4'.J' OEEI" i!EI.ECT GRACE GRANl'TE !!Ul<FACE BOUI.OIR rBURY 12'! 

@ J'.J'xJQ' O&P SEW:T GRACE GRANl'TE euRFACE BO� /BURY 12") 
@ 2·,2•,c1e• Ol!!P &EI.ECT GRAOE GRANl'TE euRFAGE B� (BURY t,') 

25 

PLANT SCHEDULE: (FOR THIS SHl!!T ONLY! 

24 23 

l!-
H a 
'i 11-
11 

EXISTING TREE aALVACiEO MEeQUl'TE TRI!! JIROM ON Sl'TE 6 TOTAL 
or 4B' BOX NATIVE MEeQUl'TE 

EXISTING TREE TO REMAIN 

'J R EXISTING !!!+RUB TO REMAIN 
!: 
Ii- CERCIOIUMFLORID.JM'OM.' J6'BOX MULTl·TRLNK t>TOTAL 

• 

• 

22 21 20 19 18 

CALLISTEMON VR'IINALIS 'LITTLE JOHN' & GALLON 
LITTLE JOHN BOTTLE BRUSH FULL. PAST CAN 
CA.eelA STURTII & GALLON 

17 16 15 14 13 

�y 

16 TOTAL 

11 TOTAL 

Phase 1 Prellmlnary 
Landscape Plan 

""'ill_l_ Scale 1:2a, 
�Jl I 

20 10 0 20
GRAPHIC SCALE I\JORTH 

12 11 10 

' 

12 I 

' 

I 
' 

I 
' 

I 
®'
I 

I 

C' �! 
cr1 
.... 

ffi/ 
al' 

:J/ 
(!), 

12 �! 
ol 
!El 
,-;;, 

�I 
2" 

I 

GREEN O!eERT CA.eelA FULL. PAST CAN !t Ol!S!RT MJ!iEUM PALO VEROE �· HT. 4.&' el'. I 112' CAL. 
PLAN KEY NOTES: 

!J s P1erACH1A CH. 'REC F'UeH' 24• Box MINR'IUM 4 TOTAL CD EXISTING e10B11ALtc: ® EX1er1NG BRITTLE BUSH ro REMAIN 
'i 

REO PUSH PIST A.CHIA g• HT., 4.&' el'. 1-112' CAL. � TECOMA er ANS V. ORANGE JUBILI!! & GALLON IJ TOTAL 
ORANGE JUBILEE FULL, PAST CAN 

phillip r. ryan 
landscape architect p.c. 
landsrape architecture & planning 
4916 s. quiet way 

gilbert, arizona 85298 
(480) 899-5813 fax (480) 963-3674 

I 

I 
I 

I I 
I 

I 

I 

0 ACACIA RliOOL.ENe 1'.C.' & GALLON eJ TOTAL •11- (!) J' HIGH OECORATIVE SCREEN WALL @ EXISTING AGAVE PLANTS TO REMAIN 
i 

CHITALPA TA&HlaNelS 24' BOX MINR'IUM 11 TOTAL 
I: T CHITALPA e· HT. 4.s· el'., 1114' CAL @ EXISTING MAIIONRY WALL @ EXISTING CONCRm CURB AT F'ROPliRTY LINE TO OEeERT CARPiT RIOOLENe FULL. PAST CAN ' 

REMAIN ji CAEeAI.PINIA MEXICANA e; GALLON 6 TOTAL 
0 EXISTING e1!!600 mm TO REMAIN 0 MUHLENBERGIA CAPILLARIS 'REGAL MIST' & GALLON J4 TOTAL 

PINK MUHLY FULL. PAST CAN 11
1

_ -
MEXICAN BIRO o;. PARAOl!iE TREE FORM 

@ FUTURE BUILOING LINE , ACACIA MULGA 24' BOX MINIMUM 22 TOTAL @ FIRE HYORANT EREMOPHYLU GLABRA & GALLON 46 TOTAL 

>, 

8 
' � 
� 

; It 

Cl) en !;I 

u. 1- N 
z l8 

>- <( <( en 15
o:::'. >- !:,! 
- <{ Q'. ....._ ci < 
Z n: rt: 

w � - 1- 0 
� 1- z

UJ ::i 5 
(/)��d 0 z 
IV' 1- Q'. � LL� t- ir: 
Cl)�ffi( 

u � f 
Nenci§ 
<C ::J .. en o 

o:::'. � <5
UJ IL Q'. 

0 � 
.....J :i::: <( 
0() u.. 

c:: � 
Z::J o 
......,.:i::: 0 
....._u ffi 
IW f-
(.)� � 

� OUTBACK !UNRll!E FULL. PAST CAN ii u MULGA TREE e• HT, 4' SP. 1112' CAL. @ BIKE RACK 1
( @ SIGHT VISIBILITY LINE rNO OBJECTS GREATER & GALLON lJ TOTAL j._ CAESALPINIA PULCHERRR'IA 

THAN 24' IN HT.! @ LNOERG!i!OLNO STORM 11/ATER TANK F'ER CIVIL 

SAC ProJect Number 
2020..07 

• 
LANTANA &EI.LOolllANA 'TP.' I a.ALLON ee TOTAL 
TRAILING PURPLE LANT ANA FULL. PAST CAN !! REO BIRO o;. PARAOl!iE 

"�-" d o-
& GALLON J2 TOTAL 
FULL, PAST CAN G OECOMPOSIO GRANl'TE 112' SCRSENEO 24,11& er. 

,i V Q LEUCOPHYLLUM LANGMANIAE G) aALvAa.10 MWJl'TE mm JIROM ON-SITE 'l -.;, RIO BRAVO eAGE @ RETENTION B�N F'!R CIVIL owa.e. 11 @ NOT U!iEOI GALLON 22 TOTAL 
FULL, PAST CAN

APACHE BROIIN 2' OEEP 

m GRANl'TE COBBLE 4'-B' OIA 1es er. " 
!�- J YUCCA PARvfOLIA 

fa' MOUNOING TO GRACES SHOIIN " 
y�� 

� � ll w � EXISTING BUSH BOUGANVILLEA TO REMAIN 
® & GALLON J6 TOTAL 

FULL, PAST CAN 

SANT A FE GOLO 
i! • :::±:! BRITTONIANA CALIFORNICA 

[2J OECOMPOSIO GRANl'TE 112' MINl.e 21,9W er. @ EXISTING BUSH MORNING GLORY TO REMAIN 
ig ORANAGE PIPS PER CIVIL CWGS. 

ii-
. 

APACHE BROIIN 2' OEEI" @ OECORATIVE WALL PER ARCH1.....iii:a=.-- - - - - - - --+-� 

A 

B 

C 

D 

E 

G 

H 

K 

M 

0 

p 

Q 

R 

s 

T 

X Ii X Chandler La Paglia HS Seminary - Area Plan Amendment, Rezone, and PDP Narrative 
Ex h ·1 bit F L -1

j! __J---------------------.----..----..---:-:---.---::--.---::--.--:::::--r----:::--r----:::---r-�
P

;.
ag::!:

e
::,..:.

1 
:::.
3

�
o
;-
f 

:.
2  

.:,--;;--:---;:;--r--;;--r---;;--r-;-;--r---;;-r---:;--r---:;--r-;--r--;-i_-:_-:_�:_:_f_:_::_-;_:_:_j_:__:_3__=-:__i::_,j°i:-T-;
  

-132 31 30 29 28 21 26 25 24 23 22 21 20 19 1s 11 
I 

16 
I 

1s 14 13 12 11 10 

7



32 31 30 29 28 27 26 25 24 23 22 21 20 19 18 17 16 15 14 13 12 11 10 

A 

BOULDER SCHEDULE: 
@ -4'"4'"3' C&P SILECT GAACS GRANITI! � eoJLCSli /!lURY 12'J 
@ 3'"3'"3al' C&P 1111.e::r GII/IACE GRANITE 6URJIAC! � leuR'r' 12') 

@) 2'"2xl&' C&P eEl.leT GRACE GRANITI! SU�AC! � lei.RY 6'J 

phillip r. ryan 
landscape architect p.c. 
lardscape architecture & planning 
4916 s_ quiet way 

gilbert, arizona 85298 

(480) 800-5813 fax (480) 963-3674 

C 

D 

12 I 

I 

I / 
' / 

®-1/

I 
I 

I 
I 

G I 

h 
ii 
ii 
11 

H 

,A ,. 
Ii K 

u 
n l 

l'1i

II M 

I(_ 
!I 

ii N 

d ,.•I 
if IJ 
!• 

0 
r' 
•iIr 
It 
I¾ pif 

U a 

n 
Ii

PLANT SCHEDULE: (,=o,11 TMIUHl!ET ONLY) 

EXl&TING TR& 

&ALvAGIO l"l&QJITI! TRII FliOM ON &ITI 6 TOT Al. 
or -4&' eox NATIVI MISGIJITE 
TO REMAIN 

u R EXl&TING IIHRUB TO REMAIN 
8 CAU.l&TIMON \IIMINAU& 'Lim.I JOMN' & GAi.i.ON 

SEMINARY 

16 TOTAL 

Phase 1 Prelininary 
Landscape Plan 

r1 Scale 1,2� 

M:�) i 
20 10 0 20 

GRAPHIC SCALE NORT� 

77 
11,1• 

• LITTLI JOMN BOTTLE elUM 

:,-:,�� 
CAN 

CIRC101U'1111.0RICU'I 'OM.' 36' E!OXMULTl•TRUI.K 6 TOTAi. ., _, ii TOTAi. 
11

0ESIRT M\JSSl'1 PAI.O V!IU (a,' HT. '4i' eP. I In' CAL EB �":: = CAe&IA IW., PA&T CAN PLAN KEY NOTES: 
ii 

s Pl&TACHIA CH. 'REC f'\aeH' 2-4' BOXMNl'1111 -4 TOTAL r.:-... TICOMA &TAN& V. 0RANGE JUBILl!I & GAi.i.ON 13 TOTAi. (D EXl&TNG &IOSIIALK @ l!Xl&TING BRITTLE eueH TO REMAIN 

n 
RE0 F".eH Pl&TACHIA I' HT. '4i' eP. 1-112' CAL u 0RANGE JI.ell.a FW., PA&T CAN 

CD 3' HIGH CECOIRATIVI &c:R&N WALL @ l!Xl&TING A&VI FUNT& TO 119'1AN 

I 
I 
I 

I 
I 
I 

I 
I 

I 

I 
I 

I 

I 

I 
I 

It CHITALPA TA&H1CSll&I& 2,· eoxMINl'\U'I n TOTAi. 
Q 

ACACIA� •o.c:.• & GAU.GIN &3 TOTAL 
n 

T CHITALPA &' HT. '4i' eP. I 1/-4' CAL CEEERT CARF'ST � FW., PA&T CAN @ EXl&TING MA&ONRY WALL @ l!Xl&TING CONCRffl Cl/Re AT PROPERTY LINE TO '' c:.AEeAI.PNIA MEXICANA I& GA..ON 6 TOTAi. 
'+' MUH�IA CAPILLARI& 'RmAI. Ml&T' & GAi.i.ON � TOTAi. REMAN 

U MIXICAN BIRO C:. PAII/IACISI TR& l'ORM � fOIIIK MUHLY FW., PA&T CAN G) EXl&TING &IE600 Tim& TO 119'1AIN 
� MURI eu1L01NG LINI ij 

ACACIA MJl4A 2-4' eox MINl'\U'I 22 TOTAL @ �IRE H'!'ORANT 
� 

!i u l"l,UA -r,;s &' HT. ,4' eP. I In' CAI.. 0 :=�� � CAN 
o4& TOTAi. 

@ BICI RACX !• @ &IGHT Vl&IBILITY LINI INO OBJECT& GRIATIR •• c:.AEeAI.PNIA F'I.LCHERRl'IA & C'aAI.LQll1 13 TOTAi. 0 LANTANA SIU.OWIANA 'TJO.' I GAU.GIN && TOTAi. !WAN 2-4' IN HTJ @ UN� &'10RM WATER TANI: !"ER CI\II L ii RE0 BIRO c:, PAII/IAC181 TRAILING l"URPLI LANTANA IW., PA&T CAN cia:;&. ,t v � LIUCOFHYU.il1 1.ANQMANIAE & C'aAI.LQll1 32 TOTAL �7 
112' � 2, n& &, G) e.\LVAGEO l'GQJITE TREE& FliOM ON·&ITI! 

@ ii � RIO BRAVO 1>AG1 l'ULL, PA&T CAN � 0!CG!'IFOSl!0 GRANITI! 
APACHE eROIIN 2, CIIIP · @ NOT Ul!l0 

11 �TION BA&IN !"ER CIVIL CILIG&. 
n, + 'l1JCCA PARvll'OI.IA I GAU.GIN 22 TOTAL 

�-. , GRANl1E c:oeeL! -''•&' OIA. 18& &.F. @ MO'JIIOING TO GRA0Ef, eMOil.ll1 

SAC Project Number 
2020-07 

I, R!O 'l1JCCA l'ULL, PA&T CAN � 
e.ANTA 111! GOL0 @ EXl&TNG eueH ealJGANVUIA TO REMAN 11 w RUIWA BRmONIANA CAl.1'0RNICA & � 36 TOTAi. @ ORAINAGE PIPI !"ER CML CILIG&. 

It 0 RU!LLIA l'ULL, PA&T CAN I>>>>>> I 0ICOr'1!"0flE0 GRANITI! �li:� eROIIN r.-�- @ EXl&TNG eueH MORNNG GI.ORY TO REMAN 
@ OICORATIVI WALL m ----���- - -- - -----l--"l"'-....: __ _

A 

C 

D 

G 

H 

K 

M 

N 

0 

a 

R 

s 

T 

u 

X Ii X Exhibit G L-1 
!r J-----.----.----.---r----.-----.-----r--,----r----.-----r�:---r---:::--,-----::--,--::---,--::-:....

P
�
ag

�
e
=-=-

1
4:....

o
.:.:

f
r

2
:..:

1

-::----r-::;---r--;:;---r�:--r-::--r�---r--;-,----;;-T�-,-;---tF::;::::::::i:==:;;:::�==;;:::::=t=t-;"-,-;-l-i� - 32 31 30 29 28 ZT 26 25 24 23 22 21 20 19 18 17 16 15 14 13 12 11 10 

' 

I 
I 

I 
' I 

ii (/) 

13 

EXl&TIIIG TR& 

-

I 
I 

I 

1 1 

i 
B 

" ~ • ' f 
f 
j 
! 
l 
I 
• • E 

Chandler La Paglia HS Seminary – Area Plan Amendment, Rezone, and PDP Narrative 
Page 14 of 27 

Dream_2
Rectangle



Conceptual Landscape Plan 
(See Exhibit F for plant pallet and notes) 

, 
'' 

' ' 

,­,, 
---�--

___ ,,-, ®-__ I

///

@- i 2
j 

' ' ' '

. .  

' 
' 
' 

',,,,_ ®-----l
' ............ 

I .... : ··-' :· ;_ . , .
I , . -14 . . '.T-
l.. , .. .· .. · ... 
. . ' : ·  : -

..... ,·. :.· 

Prellmlnary 
Landscape Plan 

&<:ale 1:2� 

20 10 0 

GRAPHIC SCALE 

20 

NO�TH 

Chandler La Paglia HS Seminary - Area Plan Amendment, Rezone, and PDP Narrative 
Page 15 of 27

12 

C 

� 
,_ 

� 
12 �

t 

I& 

Exhibit H 



Conceptual Landscape Plan 

-- -- ···· --
- ----

,/ 
s"ss------

Prellmlnary 
Landscape Plan 

&<:ale 1:2� 
■ ■-

■ ■ ■ ----

20 10 0 20 

GRAPHIC SCALE 

Chandler La Paglia HS Seminary - Area Plan Amendment, Rezone, and PDP Narrative 
Page 16 of 27 

18 

II 

Exhibit I 



32 31 30 29 28 27 26 25 24 23 22 21 20 19 18 17 16 15 14 13 12 11 10 

KEYNOTES 
A 

>, 
A 

0 FLAT CONCRETE TILE ROOFING - EAGLE ROOFING "297 SLATE RANGE" 

0 PREFINISHED METAL RAKE & FASCIA - "BONE WHITE" HYNAR 5000 "' 

0 EXTERIOR INSULATION & FINISH SYSTEM (E.I.F.S. WATER-MANAGED 
Cl. 

DRAINAGE TYPE)- $ENERGY FINE-TEXTURE "3068 BIRCH" E B 

0 METAL FLASHING AT ROOF TO WALL - FINISH TO MATCH BRICK COLOR 
0 

0 BRICK VENEER RUNNING BOND FIELD - INTERSTATE BRICK "CEDAR" 

C © BRICK VENEER STACK BOND ACCENT - INTERSTATE BRICK "CEDAR" C 

T.0. ����
a
� "' 0 BRICK VENEER SOLDIER COURSE - INTERSTATE BRICK "CUFTOW (LAID 

" 
WITH SOLID COLOR BRICK REVERSE FACE OUTWARD) u 

© BRICK VENEER BASE - INTERSTATE BRICK "CLIFTON" 
., 

D D 

0 BRICK VENEER PILASTER - INTERSTATE BRICK "CLIFTON" 

@ BRICK VENEER ROWLOCK COURSE - INTERSTATE BRICK "CLIFTON" (LAID u 

·T.o. ;���
9

� � 
WITH SOLID COLOR BRICK REVERSE FACE OUTWARD) 

@ PRECAST CONCRETE WINDOW SILL E 

@ PREFINISHED ALUMINUM STOREFRONT DOORS & FRAME - "BONE 
WHITE" HYNAR 5000 & CLEAR DUAL-PANE INSULATED GLAZING 

@ PREFINISHED ALUMINUM STOREFRONT DOOR, SIDELIGHT & FRAME -
"BONE WHITE" HYNAR 5000 & CLEAR DUAL-PANE INSULATED GLAZING 

+10'-0" 
� T.O. PLATE @ PREFINISHED ALUMINUM STOREFRONT WINDOW - "BONE WHITE" 

HYNAR 5000 & CLEAR DUAL-PANE INSULATED GLAZING 

G @ METAL GABLE VENT WITH FINISH TO MATCH BRICK COLOR G 
@ STONE BUILDING & ADDRESS SIGNAGE - "BAR GRAY" GRANITE 

>-@ ELECTRICAL SERVICE ENTRANCE SECTION - PRIMED & PAINTED TO a, 

0:: 
" MATCH "CEDAR" FIELD BRICK (/) 

H •4'--0"� @ MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT ENCLOSURE <( 
I- <X) 

H T.O.WALL z <l'. 

@ FINISH GRADE � z 

z 
0 

(/) 
-- >- <l'. 

0'-0" 
� � 

<( 
ci Cl w F.F.E. 

Cl:'. ...J 

w 
0 , w z 

!1
I- <l'. 

19 Cf) I- I 

h <( t) 

jl J _J ci 

0:: 
u.

<l'. 
0 

1: 0 D:'. 

Cf) 
I- >-,I D:'. 

,, (/) w 

11 K a:: al K 

N 
...J 

1! I c3 

i§ 
<( 

(.) I 
!' (/) 

>-

!I 0 

0:: 
(/) if) 

ll 
L L32 EAST EXTERIOR ELEVATION w "' 

--, 0 

!j 1/4"=1'-0" 
w u. <l'. 

0 el 0 D:'. 

!i _J I :;; 
M (.) D:'. M 'I 0 

<l'. 
Cl'. LL 

h ::::) if) 

z I "' 
!
! 

0 
(.) 0 l

l <( w D:'. 

N al N l, I >-
I' I I- if) 

,l <l'. ,. 
() 

w 

!l ,, 0 0 

�� 
T.O. ;7��

S

� � !I
n r p p ,! 

II 
ll 

,, 
1! 

T.O. ;���
g

� � I' Q ,! 
,, 
h 
ii 

R !I ,� +10'-0" 
� 

!I 
T.O. PLATE 

;, s s 1, 
ij 
!· 

;I11 �, T T o, 
!! 
ii,,
!i

u u ii SAC Project Number 
2020-07 

!l 19 EAST & SOUTH 

'I V EXTERIOR V 

ll ELEVATIONS 

!I
!, 
�! w w 

!l

Ii 
1: X 

X32 SOUTH EXTERIOR ELEVATION A201 X 

11 
!1 1/4"=1'-0" 

32 31 30 29 28 27 26 25 24 23 22 21 20 19 18 17 16 15 14 13 12 11 10 

Chandler La Paglia HS Seminary – Area Plan Amendment, Rezone, and PDP Narrative Page 
17 of 27 Exhibit J



32 31 30 29 28 27 26 25 24 23 22 21 20 19 18 17 16 15 14 13 12 11 10 

KEYNOTES 
A >- A 

0 FLAT CONCRETE TILE ROOFING - EAGLE ROOFING 7.97 SLATE RANGE" 

0 PREFINISHEO METAL RAKE & FASCIA- "BONE WHITE" HYNAR 5000 ., 
0 EXTERIOR INSULATION & FINISH SYSTEM (E.I.F.S. WATER-MANAGED 

a. 

DRAINAGE TYPE)- SENERGY FINE-TEXTURE "3068 BIRCW E B 

© METAL FLASHING AT ROOF TO WALL - FINISH TO MATCH BRICK COLOR 
0 

© BRICK VENEER RUNNING BOND FIELD- INTERSTATE BRICK "CEDAR" " 
C © BRICK VENEER STACK BOND ACCENT - INTERSTATE BRICK "CEDAR" C 

$ ;��:!�OGE 0 BRICK VENEER SOLDIER COURSE - INTERSTATE BRICK "CLIFTON" (LAID 
:, 

WITH SOLID COLOR BRICK REVERSE FACE OUTWARD) " 

D 
© BRICK VENEER BASE - INTERSTATE BRICK "CLIFTON" 

D 

® BRICK VENEER PILASTER- INTERSTATE BRICK "CLIFTON" 

@ BRICK VENEER ROWLOCK COURSE- INTERSTATE BRICK "CLIFTON" (LAID " 
WITH SOLID COLOR BRICK REVERSE FACE OUTWARD) 

@ PRECAST CONCRETE WINDOW SIU E 

@ PREFINISHED ALUMINUM STOREFRONT DOORS & FRAME - ·BONE 
WHITE· HYNAR 5000 & CLEAR DUAL-PANE INSULATED GLAZING 

@ PREFINISHED ALUMINUM STOREFRONT DOOR, SIDELIGHT & FRAME -
·BONE WHITE" HYNAR 5000 & CLEAR DUAL-PANE INSULATED GLAZING 

$
+10'-0" 

T.O. PLATE 
@ PREFINISHED ALUMINUM STOREFRONT WINDOW - "BONE WHITE" 

HYNAR 5000 & CLEAR DUAL-PANE INSULATED GLAZING 

G @ METAL GABLE VENT - FINISH TO MATCH BRICK COLOR G 
@ STONE BUILDING & ADDRESS SIGNAGE - "BAR GRAY" GRANITE 

>-@ ELECTRICAL SERVICE ENTRANCE SECTION - PRIMED & PAINTED TO m 

0:: ..,MATCH "CEDAR" FIELD BRICK 
(/) 

H $;���ALL @ MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT ENCLOSURE <( 
I- "'

H 
z < 

@ FINISH GRADE <( 
z 

z
0 

(/) 

- � < 

$
0'-0" 

� Ii 
Cl w F.F.E. er: _J 

w 
0 , w 

!1
I- < 

19 Cf) � 
I 

h 
{) 

jl 
J -' ci 

0:: ls 
< 
0 

1: 
ll'. 

Cf) t:i 
f-,I ll'. 

,, w 
11 K a:: m K 

N 
_J 

1! I (9 
i§ 

<( 
u I 

!' (/) 
f-

!I
::::, 

:::i 0 

0:: 
(/) (/) 

ll 
L 

L32 WEST EXTERIOR ELEVATION w ..
-, 0 

!j 1/4"=1'-0· 
w IL 

< 

el 0 ll'. 

!i _J I ::;; 

M 

0 
u ll'. M 

'I < 
0:: IL 

h :::i (/) 

z I " 
!
! 

0 u 0 

l
l <( w ll'. 

N m N l, I f-
I' I I- (/) ,l < ,. 

(.) 
w 

!l ,, 0 0 
�� 

$ ;��:-��OGE !I
n r p p ,! 
II 
ll 

,, 
1! 

$ ;��:
-
��OGE I' Q ,! 

,, 
h 
ii 

R !I ,� 
$

+10'-0" 

!I 
T.O. PLATE 

;, 
s s 1, 

ij 
!-

;I11 �, T o, 
!! 
ii,,
!i

u u ii SAC Project Number 
2020-07 

!l 19 WEST&NORTH 

'I V EXTERIOR V 

ll ELEVATIONS 

!I
!, 
�! w w 
!l

Ii 
1: X 

X32 NORTH EXTERIOR ELEVATION A202 X 

11 
!1 1/4"=1'-0" 

32 31 30 29 28 27 26 25 24 23 22 21 20 19 18 17 16 15 14 13 12 11 10 

Chandler La Paglia HS Seminary – Area Plan Amendment, Rezone, and PDP Narrative Page 
18 of 27 Exhibit K



1. 
11 ji
!' I 

A 

C 

D 

G 

H 

,I ,, 
ii 

K 

n 

32 31 

19 

30 29 28 27 26 25 

II L L32 EAST EXTERIOR ELEVATION -WITH FUTURE ADDITION 

24 23 22 21 20 19 18 17 16 15 14 13 12 11 10 

+10'-0" 
� T.O. PLATE 

0'-0"
� 

F.F.E. 

j, 114"=1'-0" Ii--+----�-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------< 
gl 
Ii M 

ii 
ii,, 
I! N l, 
!',! ,. 
!I 

11 °£� 
Ii ,, 
11 p 

:I 
h 
u 
11 Q 
-! 
Ii!·
!I
l.li R 
"! i; 
Ii,,
ii s ii 
1· 

ii
I!
H 
!I,, 
II 
n 

u 

Ii Ii 
ii V 

jl 
!I
!, ., 

ii 
w 

,! 
i!
I� 
t� X 

X32 

19 19 

SOUTH EXTERIOR ELEVATION -WITH FUTURE ADDITION 

+21'-8" 
� T.O. RIDGE 

+10'-0" 
� T.0. PLATE 

KEYNOTES 

0 FLAT CONCRETE TILE ROOFING- EAGLE ROOFING "297 SLATE RANGE" 

0 PREFINISHED METAL RAKE & FASCIA - " BONE WHITE" HYNAR 5000 

0 EXTERIOR INSULATION & FINISH SYSTEM (E.I.F.S. WATE R -MANAGED 
DRAINAGE TYPE) - SENERGY FINE-TEXTURE "3068 BIRCH" 

0 METAL FLASHING AT ROOF TO WALL- FINISH TO MATCH BRICK COLOR 

0 BRICK VENEER RUNNING BOND FIELD- INTERSTATE BRICK "CEDAR" 

© BRICK VENEER STACK BONO ACCENT- INTERSTATE BRICK "CEDAR" 

0 BRICK VENEER SOLDIER COURSE - INTERSTATE BRICK "CLIFTON" (LAID 
WITH SOLID COLOR BRICK REVERSE FACE OUTWARD) 

0 BRICK VENEER BASE- INTERSTATE BRICK "CLIFTON" 

© BRICK VENEER PILASTER- INTERSTATE BRICK "CLIFTON" 

@ BRICK VENEER ROWLOCK COURSE- INTERSTATE BRICK "CLIFTON" (LAID 
WITH SOLID COLOR BRICK REVERSE FACE OUTWARD) 

@ PRECAST CONCRETE WINDOW SILL 

@ �
R

H�;��
l

����:;�:
l
�

U

c�:;���:������itus�;E��c;;l��
NE 

@ �B
R

i:�
N

��l��-
A

��:����o�
T

i�c;:����i�:N:\����;E� ���G 

@ ����
l
��o��� �

L

L���g�At��:i;�is�
T

J��g��l��
NE WHITE" 

@ METAL GA BLE VENT WITH FINISH TO MATCH BRICK COLOR 

@ STONE BUILDING & ADDRESS SIGNAGE - " BAR GRAY" GRANITE 

@ 
�����

R�
��6;i

�
:i�L� 

E
B
N

R�:
NCE SECTION - PRIMED & PAINTED TO 

@ MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT ENCLOSURE 

@ FINISH GRADE 

SAC Project Number 
2020-07 

EAST & SOUTH 

EXTERIOR 

ELEVATIONS 

WITH FUTURE 

ADDITION 

A203 

A 

C 

D 

G 

M 

0 

V 

w 

X 

1,1 
h --+----+-1-14_•=_1 ·-_o·_...,. ____ .,... ___ --.----..------,-----,------,--,----,-----,----...,.----..------,-----..------.----..------,-----,------,--,----,-----,----...,.----..------,-----+------.-----,------,-----,-------fo-----,-----+-

32 31 30 29 28 27 26 25 24 23 22 21 20 19 18 17 16 15 14 13 12 11 10 

Chandler La Paglia HS Seminary – Area Plan Amendment, Rezone, and PDP Narrative Page 
19 of 27 Exhibit L



32 31 30 29 28 27 26 25 24 23 22 21 20 19 18 17 16 15 14 13 12 11 10 

KEYNOTES 
A ,.. A 0 FLAT CONCRETE TILE ROOFING - EAGLE ROOFING "297 SLATE RANGE" 

C: 

0 PREFINISHED METAL RAKE & FASCIA - "BONE WHITE" HYNAR 5000 "' 
0 EXTERIOR INSULATION & FINISH SYSTEM (E.I.F.S. WATER

-
MANAGED 

C. 

DRAINAGE TYPE)- SENERGY FINE-TEXTURE "3068 BIRCW E 8 

0 METAL FLASHING AT ROOF TO WALL - FINISH TO MATCH BRICK COLOR 

0 BRICK VENEER RUNNING BOND FIELD - INTERSTATE BRICK "CEDAR" 
<l) 

C © BRICK VENEER STACK BONO ACCENT - INTERSTATE BRICK "CEDAR" C 

$ ;��:-�·l□GE 
0 BRICK VENEER SOLD IER COURSE - INTERSTATE BRICK "CLIFTON" (LAID 

::, 

WITH SOLID COLOR BRICK REVERSE FACE OUTWARD) 0 

D 
0 BRICK VENEER BASE - INTERSTATE BRICK "CLIFTON" 

D 

© BRICK VENEER PILASTER- INTERSTATE BRICK "CLIFTON" 

@ BRICK VENEER ROWLOCK COURSE - INTERSTATE BRICK "CLIFTON" (LAID 0 

W ITH SOLID COLOR BRICK REVERSE FACE OUTWARD) 

@ PRECAST CONCRETE WINDOW SILL 

@ PREFINISHED ALUMINUM STOREFRONT DOORS & FRAME - "BONE 
WHITE" HYNAR 5000 & CLEAR DUAL-PANE INSULATED GLAZING 

@ PREFINISHED ALUMINUM STOREFRONT DOOR, SIDELIGHT & FRAME -
"BONE WHITE" HYNAR 5000 & CLEAR DUAL-PANE INSULATED GLAZING 

$ +10'-0" 
T.O. PLATE 

@ PREFINISHED ALUMINUM STOREFRONT WINDOW - "BONE WHITE" 
HYNAR 5000 & CLEAR DUAL-PANE INSULATED GLAZING 

G 
@ METAL GABLE VENT - F INISH TO MATCH BRICK COLOR 

G 

@ STONE BU ILDING & ADDRESS SIGNAGE - "BAR GRAY" GRANITE >-@ ELECTRICAL SERVICE ENTRANCE SECTION - PRIMED & PAINTED TO "' 
a::: 

" MATCH "CEDAR" FIELD BRICK 
(/) 

H $ 
;���ALL @ MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT ENCLOSURE <( 

I- 00 
H 

z "" 
@ F IN ISH GRADE 4'. 

z 

z 
0 

(/) N 

cc -- >- ""
$

0'-0" 
� 

<( 
ci Cl UJ ....... F.F.E. er: _J 

w 
0 

I, 
LU z 

I- ""
Cf) 

I 

ti 19 I- () <( I! ...J 0

ii a::: LL "" 
'1 0 

11 
0 Cl'. 

Cf) 
I- f-

Cl'. i, (/) 

I, K 

N 
ci: � K 

ii I CJ 01 

<( 
() I 

•1 
(/) 

f-

!i :::, 

Ii 
:) 0 

a::: 
(/) (/) 

ll 
L L32 WEST EXTERIOR ELEVATION WITH FUTURE ADDITION LU "" 

-, 0 
1/4"=1'-0" 

w 
"" 

Ii LL 0 
ii 0 Cl'. 

!i _J I 
Cl'. M 

0
() "" M 

ti Cl:'. u. 

11 
:) (/) 

z I 0 

ii () 0 

<( LU Cl'. 

·i N "' N l, I f-

!' I I- "" ,! UJ 

(.) 
ii 

!I 
0 0 

c. $ +21'-8" 

II T.O. RIDGE 

,, 

11 p 
i!
ii
ii 
,1 $ 

;�:-�·IDGE !' Q ,! 
,j 
!·
11 
ii �� R 
'! l, $ +10'-0" ,, 
Ii 

T.O. PLATE 

,, 
11 s s l, 
I• 
1' 11
Ii 
ii T T o, 
l! 
ii,, 
11 u u 

11 SAC Project Number 

!! 
2020-07 

19 19 WEST & NORTH 

ii EXTERIOR ,, V V 

ii ELEVATIONS 

WITH FUTURE 

!I ADDITION 
!, 

;1 w w 

!l

l, 

A204 !I
X X32 NORTH EXTERIOR ELEVATION WITH FUTURE ADDITION X 

H 1/4"=1'-0" 

32 31 30 29 28 27 26 25 24 23 22 21 20 19 18 17 16 15 14 13 12 11 10 

Exhibit M
Chandler La Paglia HS Seminary – Area Plan Amendment, Rezone, and PDP Narrative Page 

20 of 27 



32 31 30 29 28 27 26 

A 

C 

G 

32 31 30 29 28 27 26 

25 24 23 22 21 

D 

CLASSROOM 

CLASSROOM 

20 

--l-
1 

I 
T 
I 
I 
I 
I 

I 
I 
I 
I 

J_ 
I 
I 

-t 

19 18 

OFFICE 

OFFICE 

75'.JJ" 

(FUTURE BUILDING EXPANSION) 

17 16 15 

D 

STORAGE 

RECEPTION 

14 

OFFICE 

LOBBY 

13 

I 
I 
I 
I I 

□�tn
I I 

L-------------------------------------------------� 

L---------------------------------------------------� 

25 24 23 22 21 20 19 18 17 16 15 14 13 

12 11 10 

□ 

0 

-@-

12 11 10 

SAC Projad N�mber 
2020-07 

FLOOR PLAN 

A101 

A 

C 

D 

G 

M 

0 

u 

V 

w 

X 
Chandler La Paglia HS Seminary – Area Plan Amendment, Rezone, and PDP Narrative Page 

21 of 27 

Exhibit N



32 31 30 29 28 27 26 25 24 23 22 21 20 19 18 

C 
75 ' -9" 

OFFICE 

G 

CLASSROOM 

CLASSROOM 

OFFICE 

CLASSROOM 

□ 

n 

32 30 29 28 27 26 25 24 23 22 21 20 19 18 

17 16 15 14 13 

□ 

STORAGE OFFICE 

RECEPTION LOBBY 

HALL 

STORAGE 

HALL 

OFFICE OFFICE 

17 16 15 14 13 

12 11 

□ 

0 

-@-

12 11 10 

SAC Project Number 
2020-07 

FLOOR PLAN 

WITH 

FUTURE 

ADDITION 

A102 

A 

C 

G 

M 

0 

s 

V 

w Exhibit O
Chandler La Paglia HS Seminary – Area Plan Amendment, Rezone, and PDP Narrative Page 

22 of 27 



A 

C 

G 

Ii Ii 
i! 
!; ,l il K 

!! 
il 
II 

32 

!I ' L32 

31 30 29 28 

EAST EXTERIOR ELEVATION

27 26 25 24 

19 

23 22 21 20 19 16 17 16 15 14 13 12 11 10 

- - - - - -- - - - - - - - - - - - T.O.���:� � 

I, 
I! !!---+---�-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------< 
., 
�! M 

ll
'I !, 
j, N 

il 

Ii ,1 0 
,; 
!! 'i 
Ii p 

I! 
I! 

Ii a ,! 
!I

!! 
jl R 
ri 
!j-
u s 
i! 

ii i, 
i! T 

!j
i, 
'I 

11 " 
Ii 
1l 
II V 

Ii ;! I· d w 

i! •' 
i! 
a� 

II 
I 

II 

II 
II 

�

r '1" 

Ill 
I 
I 

II 

I 

� 

8 

111 l ,,,.,, 1·111" IT 11" 11

1111 
II 

11 Ill II 
II 

I II 
II 

I I 

_,, 11,1,11 I 11111 

11111 1 111 �_; -, •"'" . Ill 

14 11 

,, x 
X32 SOUTH EXTERIOR ELEVATION 

·,,, ,rn T
i'
,' II 

II 
II 1111 

1111 II Ill

II 
II 

II 

1 1 1,11 f 1 1, 11111 

1111111 Ill !II 

2 

11"11 ·,, IT 1'1' 1( ,·,· ,r,r · 11 111'1 r,'1' ,.,. ,l
II II I II 

I I I II I II II I 
II II II IT 

II II 
11 11 II II 11 I I I 11 

II 
II I II 

1111 II I II I II I II 
II II II 

II II 
II I 

1111 I 1• 11"" 111111 I 11111111 1111 illl I I 1111 

1111 1111111111 --;-:,'/ .. ,:--,::, 11111111 111 11 1111 

14 11 5 7 � 

1 

'111 '1' ·,,,·,· ,,, ,r ,.,. 1 " 11, ff ·,,, I II·, II T ' ','( 111'1 r,r ,r
Ill 

II II II II 11 11 11 11 
1111 I I II 

II II I 11 I Ill 
II

Ill II Ill I I 1111 11 II I I II 
I I I 
I Ill 

II II 1111 II 
I II 

I 
I II 

I II II II 1111 II 
' 

11111111 1 111111 11 11111111111 I Ill I 11 Ill I II 1111 11 1111111111 

111111 111 '" I I 
= 

□ 
.·,,;.:•···" -;�-,�- 1111111 11111111 '':'',',',,'··· 1111 11111 

= 

14 11 13 14 11 

Ti'1' 11" ,r,r, ,rn rn' 11" 
II 

I I I  
II 

II 
II 

I II] 1111 II 
II II 

II II
II 

II 
II 
II 

1111111111 111111111111 1111 

111111 Ill 11111 

2 

11'1' 11" II 

II 

II 

II 

11 

1 1  11 

6 

·,,,

IL

1111 
1 

II 
I 

T.O.���:� � 

I T.O. �:��
g

� � 

I 
I 

T.0.;��� 

EE§ 
==Ec 
E§§ 

!lml
�� � 

�cb �

KEYNOTES 

0 FLAT CONCRETE TILE ROOFING· EAGLE ROOFING "297 SLATE RANGE"' 

0 PREFINISHED METAL RAKE & FASCIA- "BONE WHITE" HYNAR 5000 

0 ��:!�:�E�
T

���:��
l
�l�:;�����.l��-B�:;i�;

MANAGED 

0 METAL FLASHING AT ROOF TO WALL - FINISH TO MATCH BRICK COLOR 

0 BRICK VENEER RUNNING BONO FIELD - INTERSTATE BRICK "CEDAR" 

© BRICK VENEER STACK BOND ACCENT - INTERSTATE BRICK "CEDAR" 

0 ���\6�7i�����:����s�N:;i:6��A�g� "CLIFTON" (LAID 

© BRICK VENEER BASE - INTERSTATE BRICK "CLIFTON" 

0 BRICK VENEER PILASTER· INTERSTATE BRICK "CLIFTON" 

@) �������i����I�� ��::�� ���:����A��fK "CLIFTON" (LAID 

@ PRECAST CONCRETE WINDOW SILL 

@ ����,���R
AL

�:
1

���::������:��tusL!ie���
NE 

@) ::i:�
N

:�1��-
A

��:����
0�C����:N:1

1���;E� ���G

e ����1; 1�� �L

L��g�!_���:�iS
N

U
T

i��g��l��
E WHITE" 

@ METAL GABLE VENT WITH FINISH TO MATCH BRICK COLOR 

® STONE BUILDING & ADDRESS SIGNAGE - "BAR GRAV" GRANITE 

® 
�;�

1:!
��;:

.R
��L� ����

NCE SECTION - PRIMED & PAINTED TO 

® MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT ENCLOSURE 

@ FINISH GRADE 

I 

I 
§ 

I 
'" 

I :, i 

" f 
'" 

·-
Ii= 

� !

SAC Project Number 
2020-07 

EAST &SOUTH 
EXTERIOR 

ELEVATIONS 

A201 
I! 1/4"=1"-0" 
••- 4---------------------------------..---------.----------------,------------------------------------.---------------,--------------------+----... --------------------..... -----,.---""" 

32 31 30 29 28 27 26 25 24 23 22 21 20 19 16 17 16 15 14 13 12 11 10 

A 

B 

C 

D 

E 

G 

M 

0 

s 

T 

u 

V 

w 

X 

Chandler La Paglia HS Seminary – Area Plan Amendment, Rezone, and PDP Narrative Page 
23 of 27 

Exhibit P



11 
'1I,
!',i

Ii .,�i 
ii 

A

C 

G 

!j
I, 

32 

L32 

31 30 29 28 

WEST EXTERIOR ELEVATION 

27 26 25 24 23 " 21 20 19 18 17 16 15 14 13 12 11 10 

19 

'l---+---�-1_,4_•._1•_.,_· ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

1: 
lj M ,, 
!! 
'II,
j, N 

ii ,. 

ii �i 0
f,1i, 
1, p 

11
I! a 
!I

II 
ii R 
'!!,
,, 
ii s 
1! 

ii 
!1
I! 

!I
Ii 
ii u 
!, 
I! 
'! 

!! 
i! 
!i 
!! w 

11 
I! 

§§§
=== 
§§§
1� 
�� 

II I 

I "'

Ill Ill Ill 1111 I

II 

11111 

II II 

I ·I II Ill 1111 II 

Ii l ,u ,� 1Y1 11/ iM,f rY,u LI 1,Y,Y \1rl,1 LI .u ,w ir,Y rY I I� .IJ.l . ,,u ,1 

II 

II 

'""" I '" ''"' "" """"''" 

I I I 

Ill 111 1111 1111111 1111 Ill 111 

I

11 14 18 11 14 11 14 

II 
1111 'rt 

1111 I 

"" ,,,[ ""' 

111111 11111

II II II 

11 1111 II 

II ll 

II !Ill 

1111111 I 

11111 1111111 II ::-:';'.-;·-, .• ,; 11111 Ill 

11 14 

!i x l---,
X
�

3
�

2
��

N
�

O
�

R
=

T
=
H
�

EX
�

T
=

E
=

R
=

1

�
o

=

R
�

E
=
L
�

E
�

V
�

A
=

T
�
I O

�
N
�-------------------------------------------------------------l

KEYNOTES 

0 FLAT CONCRETE TILE ROOFING· EAGLE ROOFING "297 SLATE RANGE"' 

0 PREFINISHED METAL RAKE & FASCIA - "BONE WHITE" HYNAR 5000 

0 �:�: �
U
Er

T
���::c!�

l
�l�:����.

I
�� ��;i�:

MANAGED 

0 METAL FLASHING AT ROOF TO WALL - FINISH TO MATCH BRICK COLOR 

0 BRICK VENEER RUNNING BONO FIELD - INTERSTATE BRICK "CEDAR" 

© BRICK VENEER STACK BOND ACCENT - INTERSTATE BRICK "CEDAR" 

0 ����\6��������:�����st::�:6��A��� "
CLI

F
TON" (lA

I
D 

© BRICK VENEER BASE - INTERSTATE BRICK "CLIFTON" 

0 BRICK VENEER PILASTER- INTERSTATE BRICK "CLIFTON" 

@) �%�\���������� ��:�� ���:��
A
���K "CLIFTON" (LAID 

@ PRECAST CONCRETE WINDOW SILL 

@ ����,���:��,:��t���������s�t!ie����
NE 

@) �i:�
N

:�1��-
A

��:����
0

�c=���:N:����;E� ���G 
e ����1; 1�� �

L

L��g�!_��:;��:u
T

t.Z��g��l��
E 

�
ITE" 

@ METAL GABLE VENT· FINISH TO MATCH BRICK COLOR 

® STONE BUILDING & ADDRESS SIGNAGE - "BAR GRAY" GRANITE 

® 
�'

;-
�1:!g;�;:

.R
��L� ����

NCE SECTION - PRIMED & PAINTED TO 

® MECHANICAL EQU IPMENT ENCLOSURE 

@ FINISH GRADE 

SAC Protoct Numbor 2020-07 
WEST&NORTH 

EXTERIOR 

ELEVATIONS 

A202 

A 

C 

G 

M 

0

s 

V 

w 

X 

ii 1W==1'-0" 
••- ➔-----1...;;.'-'..;...-----�------------�--------�-------�---�--------�------------�--------�-----------�--------�--------+----�--------�---�---...L---��---f-

32 31 30 29 28 27 26 25 24 23 22 21 20 19 18 17 16 15 14 13 12 11 10 

Exhibit QChandler La Paglia HS Seminary – Area Plan Amendment, Rezone, and PDP Narrative Page 
24 of 27 



11 
'1 I, 
!',i

Ii .,
�i 

ii 

A 

C 

G 

!j
I, 

32 

L32 

31 30 29 28 27 26 25 24 23 22 21 20 19 18 17 16 15 14 13 12 11 10 

II II II 1111 II II I II �5I2_ 3 4 2 -- - -5t---- - - ---- - - ---- - - --T.0.���:��•

��i111��
1
�
1

:
$
::

i

:

l��
l
�l :;�1:

1

���
1
�:
1

1�,1��fi'i: i
:
:�fl�

l

:
$
:

i
:

1

����1��
11
i1�:

1

i11��ii�ll���$
1

:

i:���

:

�;
1
:

1����i��it�
11

1:'���l�l i�f�
1

'.����ail�t

:

:iii
:
:�lf�1$1

11i����Js����1

1

:�'--

�,�· II 

I 

II II 

II II II

1111 

1111111 

II II I II 
1111 111111 I 11 I I _,__,,. 

II 

II 

II 

II II II 

II 1 111 

1111 

1111 

II I I I

I I 

1111111 

Ill 
= 

II II 

11111111 

11111111 

II 

Ill 

1111 

IIII 

14 11 12 7 

II 

1111111 111 Ill 1111111 

123 

11111 1111 1111 

15 

11111 

9 5 

II 

1111 
= 

t:::::� 

12 

Ill 
I= 

'Ill 
I= 

5 9 

1111 11111111 1111111 

1111111 1111111 Ill 

Ill 

1111 

10 5 

1111 1111111 

E A ST EXTER IOR ELEVATION - WITH FUTURE ADD ITION 
'l--+---�-1_14_•._1•_.o_· --------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------<
I: 
lj M,, 
!! 
'II,
j, N 

ii,.
ii �i 0 
f 
,1 i, 
1, p 

11 
I! a 
!I 
II 
ii R
'!!,,,
ii s 
1! 

ii 
!1 T 
I! 

!I
Ii 
ii u 
!, 
I! 
'! 

!! 
i! 
!i
!! w 

11 
I! 

II 

II 

II 

II II 

II II 

II II 

Ill 

8 

II 
I 

I 

I I 
I 

Ill Ill Ill 

"" "" 

2 

1 

II II II I 
II II II I I III I  .Ill II 

' 
II II II 

I Ill ·Ill 11111 

� 11111 I 1111 

14 11 6 

II 

II 

II 

111111 111 11 

,1111 

.,_; .. ; '.-·>·· 

14 11 

2 

II I III 1111 II II II" II 

II' 

10 15 

1111� II II � �-

1,1 11111111 ,ll11 111 11 11111111 Ill 111111 Ill 11 II I 111111111 1 1  11111

111 111,1111 11111 111 I ll ,·,q1I 111 1111 1111 

14 11 5 

1 

1111 II II II I II II II II T.O.���:� � 

1111 ' 
II I I II "II I I I I I I II II II I I I  1 11 I II II II 

T.O. �:��
g

� � I II II II I II I I 
- 11 11 11 II I II II II II II II II I �- II I 1111 I I I 

II I 11111 11 1111111 11 11111 I 1111 II I 11 1111111 111 T.0.;��:� 

==ec 
��§ =Sec 
§§§

111111 1111 1 1111111 Ill 1111 11111 11111 1111 II [!11[ 
�E 

�

7 � 8 2 ' �d) � 

!i x l---,X�3�2��S �O�U�T =H� E=x�T
=E=

R
=

1�o
=

R �E=
L

=E =
v�A

=T �IO�N�-�w�1T
=H�F

=u�T=u�R�E=
A�D

=D�IT�IO�N�-----------------------------------------------------l

KEYN OTES 
0 FLAT CONCRETE TILE ROOFING· EAGLE ROOFING "297 SLATE RANGE"' 

0 PREFINISHED METAL RAKE & FASCIA - "BONE WHITE" HYNAR 5000 

0 �:�: �U

Er
T

���::c!�
l

�l�:����.
I
�� ��;i�:

MANAGED 

0 METAL FLASHING AT ROOF TO WALL - FINISH TO MATCH BRICK COLOR 

0 BRICK VENEER RUNNING BOND FIELD - INTERSTATE BRICK "CEDAR" 

© BRICK VENEER STACK BOND ACCENT - INTERSTATE BRICK "CEDAR" 

0 ����\6��������:�����st::�:6��A��� "
CLI

F
TON" (lA

I
D 

© BRICK VENEER BASE - INTERSTATE BRICK "CLIFTON" 

0 BRICK VENEER PILASTER- INTERSTATE BRICK "CLIFTON" 

@) �%�\���������� ��:�� ���:��
A
���K "CLIF TON" (LAID 

@ PRECAST CONCRETE WINDOW SILL 

@ ����,���:��1
:��t���������s�t!ie����

NE 

@) �i:�
N

:�1��-
A

��:����
0

�c=���:N:����;E� ���G 
e ����

1

;
1
�� �

L

L��g�!_��:;��:u
T

t.Z��g��l��
E WHI

TE" 

@ METAL GABLE VENT WITH FINISH TO MATCH BRICK COLOR 

® STONE BUILDING & ADDRESS SIGNAGE- "BAR GRAY" GRANITE 

® 
�';-��g;�;:

.R
��L� ����

NCE SECTION - PRIMED & PAINTED TO 

® MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT ENCLOSURE 

@ FINISH GRADE 

I A 

I 
§ B 

I 
.,

I C 
:, i 
" f., 

D ·-
Ii= 

� 
E 

G 

M 

0 

s 

T 

u 
SAC Protoct Numbor 

2020-07 

EAST&SOUTH 
EXTERIOR V ELEVATIONS 

WITH FUTURE 
ADDITION 

w 

A203 X 

ii 1W==1'-0" 
••- ➔-----1...;;.'-'..;...----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+---------------------...L--------f-

32 31 30 29 28 27 26 25 24 23 22 21 20 19 18 17 16 15 14 13 12 11 10 

Chandler La Paglia HS Seminary – Area Plan Amendment, Rezone, and PDP Narrative Page 
25 of 27 

Exhibit R



11 
'1 I, 
!',i

Ii.,�i 
ii 

A 

C 

G 

!j
I, 

32 

L32 

31 30 29 28 

-+-21'-8" 
T.O. RIDGE 

+10'.0" 
T.O. PLATE 

+4'-0" 
T.0.WALL 

11111111 Ill I 

o·-o· 
F.F.E. 

���7 5 10 

27 26 25 24 23 " 21 20 19 

2 II II 1111 II �� · · · 1111 11 11 111111 II 

II 

�� 

1111111 11 11111 1111 I 11 11111 1111111 111111 11111 Ill 1111 I 11 Ill 1111 

� =�

11111 11111111 Ill 1111 Ill II 1111 11111111 1111111 1111 Ill Ill 1111 

6 � 7 s 

WEST EXTERIOR ELEVATION WITH FUTURE ADDITION 

18 

��, 

1111 

1111 

17 16 15 14 13 12 11 10 

1 

1111 II I I II 1111 II 11 I II I II II II II 
1111 II I II II II II 
II 11111 I II II 

I 1 11 , II II 
1,1 II I 1111 II I I II II II II II II II II �-1 I 1111 II I II I II II II II �� 11111 I II II 

11 I II I I I  

111 11111 I Ill Ill I 1111111111 I 11111 111111111 

�§ �

11111 1111111 1111 111111 Ill Ill II 11111111 1111111 1111 Ill Ill 

6 2 6 � 

'l---+---�-'-'4-•._,. __ ,_. ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
1: 
lj M ,, 
!! 
'II,
j, N 

ii 
,. 

ii �i 0
f 
,1 i, 
1, p 

11
I! a 
!I

II 
ii R 
'!!,
,, 

ii s 
1! 

ii 
!1 T 

I! 

!I
Ii 
ii u 
!, 
I! '! 
!! 
i! 
!i 
!! w 

11 
I! 

$ ;��:-��OGE 

$ ;�:-��□GE 

$;��TE 

�-

Ill 

���'. 
'

=== 
=== 
§§§
=== 
§§§
1� 
�� 

�� 

1'/1'1' I 
II 

1 I II 
II 

II I II II Ljl I 
,,i 11

u ,Ti',I II II 

1T1'i 'r1'1' 1'1' lull '1'/1'1' 1T1'i II 
11 11 I II I I II 
11 11 II II II II 

II 1111 I I I 11111 II II II II 
1111 I I II 

I "' Ill 111 111 11111 

Ill Ill Ill 1111 I 

6 2 

1 

1i'1' ll
u T llu 

IT '111 llulll'1' ll
u 1'1 Ill 'II '1'/1'/ 11'11 1T1 111'/ 'I 

II II II II II II I II II 
II II II II I II 

II I II 'I 
I II II I II I II Ill I II II II II II I II I II 

II II II 

""" """' I "' "' Ii"'"" """'

I I I 

1 1111 1111111th , .. - ,  ..... :' "'.•.; Ill I 111 1111 1111111 

11 14 18 

�"' 111
1 1 I� ! i',1 1i i',1 

II 
II I II II 

'II 
II IIII

II I I II II 
II 

""""' ""

---

I .. '·'·":•,-.:·- 1111 

11 14 

'•' llull 1'1'/1'1' 
11111 
I 

I 
I II I 

I II II 

""""' "'

Ill 111 

� 7 5 

11',' Tl 11111 '1'/1'1 II I 
II 

II 
II II 

I II II
I II 

II 
II I II

"' '"' "" ,,,1 

.iJ 111111 

11 14 

'1'1' II 1'1'111'/1 ' 1'/1'1' 1'/1'1' II 'II II '111 11111 1'/1'1' I II I 
II II II II II II II II 

II II II II II I II II II II II II II Ill I II II II II II II II II 
1111 11 I II I I  II I I ' 

II 

""' ""' '""' II !Ill ""'

1111111 I 

11111 1 1111 1111111 II ::-: •;· --;·-, .• ,; 11111 Ill 

2 ,, 14 6 � 

!i x l---,X�3�2��N�O
�R=T=H�

EX
�

T
=

E
= R=

1
�o=R� E

=L�
E
�V�A

=

T
�I O

�N�w�1 T
=H�FU�T

=u�R=

E
�

A
=D=D=

1
T�I O

=N�----------------------------------------------------t

KEYNOTES 

0 FLAT CONCRETE TILE ROOFING· EAGLE ROOFING "297 SLATE RANGE"' 

0 PREFINISHED METAL RAKE & FASCIA· "BONE WHITE" HYNAR 5000 

0 �:�: �U
Er

T
���::c!�

l
�l�:����.

I
�� ��;i�:

MANAGED 

0 METAL FLASHING AT ROOF TO WALL· FINISH TO MATCH BRICK COLOR 

0 BRICK VE NEER RUNNING BOND FIELD - INTERSTATE BRICK "CEDAR" 

© BRICK VENEER STACK BOND ACCENT - INTERSTATE BRICK "CEDAR" 

0 ����\6��������:�����st::�:6��A��� "CLI
F

T
ON

" (l
AI

D 

© BRICK VENEER BASE - INTERSTATE BRICK "CLIFTON" 

0 BRICK VENEER PILASTER- INTERSTATE BRICK "CLIFTON" 

@) �%�\���������� ��:�� ���:��A���K "CLIFTON" (LAID 

@ PRECAST CONCRETE WINDOW SILL 

@ ����,���:��1
:��t���������s�t!ie����

NE 

@) �i:�
N
:�1��-

A
��:����

0
�c=���:N:����;E� ���G

e ����1; 1�� �
L
L��g�!_��:;��:u

T
t.Z��g��l��

E WHI
T
E" 

@ METAL GABLE VENT· FINISH TO MATCH BRICK COLOR 

® STONE BUILDING & ADDRESS SIGNAGE- "BAR GRAY" GRANITE 

® 
�';-��g;�;:

.R
��L� ����

NCE SECTION - PRIMED & PAINTED TO 

® MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT ENCLOSURE 

@ FINISH GRADE 

I A 

I 
§ B 

I 
'" 

I C :, i 

" f'" 
D ·-

I i= 

� !
E 

G 

M 

0 

s 

T 

u 
SAC Protoct Numbor 

2020-07 

WEST&NORTH 

EXTERIOR V 
ELEVATIONS 

WITH FUTURE 

ADDITION 

w 

A204 X 

ii 1W==1'-0" 
••- ➔-----1...;;.'-'..;...-----�------------�--------�-------�---�--------�------------�--------�-----------�--------�--------+----�--------�---�---...L---��---f-

32 31 30 29 28 27 26 25 24 23 22 21 20 19 18 17 16 15 14 13 12 ,, 10 

Exhibit SChandler La Paglia HS Seminary – Area Plan Amendment, Rezone, and PDP Narrative Page 
26 of 27 



Exhibit TChandler La Paglia HS Seminary – Area Plan Amendment, Rezone, and PDP Narrative Page 
27 of 27 



ITEM  7 

City Council Memorandum      Development Services  Memo No. 21-011
       

Date: February 8, 2021
To: Mayor  and Council
Thru: Marsha Reed, City Manager

Joshua H. Wright, Assistant City Manager
Derek D. Horn, Development Services Director

From: Susan Fiala, Senior Planner
Subject: PLH20-0023/PLT20-0037 Pecos and McQueen Retail
Request: Rezoning from Agricultural District (AG-1) to Planned Area Development (PAD) for Neighborhood

Commercial (C-1) uses
Preliminary Development Plan
Preliminary Plat

Location: Southwest corner of Pecos and McQueen roads
Applicant: Reese Anderson, Pew and Lake

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council continue PLH20-0023 Pecos and McQueen Retail, located at the southwest corner
of Pecos and McQueen roads, to the February 25, 2021, City Council meeting, as recommended by
Planning and Zoning Commission.

Background Data:
At the January 20, 2021, Planning and Zoning Commission meeting, Commission continued the case to
their February 17, 2021, meeting for the purpose of holding a Design Review Committee meeting to
address concerns regarding the proposed drive-through pads.  

Surrounding Land Use Data:
N/A

Review and Recommendation
Planning and Zoning Commission recommends the City Council continue PLH20-0023/PLT20-0037
Pecos and McQueen Retail to the February 25, 2021, City Council meeting.

Planning and Zoning Commission Vote Report
N/A

Recommended Conditions of Approval
N/A

Attachments



Vicinity Maps 



E PECOS RD

S M
CQ

UE
EN

 R
D

E GERONIMO PL

E GUNSTOCK RD

E MORELOS ST

S J
ES

SE
 P

L

S B
ED

FO
RD

 PL

E BROWNING PL

S J
ES

SE
 S

T

S C
RO

SS
CR

EE
K P

L

S W
ILL

IAM
S P

L

E SPRINGFIELD PL

E DERRINGER WYS B
ED

FO
RD

 D
R

S M
ON

TE
 VI

ST
A S

T E SARAGOSA ST

E LONGHORN CR

S B
ED

FO
RD

 D
R

City of Chandler Planning Division

Mc
Qu

ee
n R

d.

Proposed Project Details
Rezone/PDP/Pre-Plat
3.5 Acres
Neighborhood Commercial Center

chandleraz.gov/planning
For more information visit:

Pecos Rd.

https://gis.chandleraz.gov/planning

PAD
Monterey Vista

PAD
Nantucket Village

Unit 1

PLH20-0023/PLT20-0037 Pecos and McQueen Retail ´

^

C-2

SF-33
Ranchos de Chandler

Unit 2

PAD

AG-1

PAD
Maracay

at
Pecos Unit 1

PAD
Willis Ranch

Unit II

PAD

Project Site



E PECOS RD

S M
CQ

UE
EN

 R
D

E GERONIMO PL

E GUNSTOCK RD

E MORELOS ST

S J
ES

SE
 P

L

S B
ED

FO
RD

 PL

E BROWNING PL

S J
ES

SE
 S

T

S C
RO

SS
CR

EE
K P

L

S W
ILL

IAM
S P

L

E SPRINGFIELD PL

E DERRINGER WYS B
ED

FO
RD

 D
R

S M
ON

TE
 VI

ST
A S

T E SARAGOSA ST

E LONGHORN CR

S B
ED

FO
RD

 D
R

City of Chandler Planning Division

Mc
Qu

ee
n R

d.

Proposed Project Details
Rezone/PDP/Pre-Plat
3.5 Acres
Neighborhood Commercial Center

chandleraz.gov/planning
For more information visit:

Pecos Rd.

https://gis.chandleraz.gov/planning

PAD
Monterey Vista

PAD
Nantucket Village

Unit 1

PLH20-0023/PLT20-0037 Pecos and McQueen Retail ´

^

C-2

SF-33
Ranchos de Chandler

Unit 2

PAD

AG-1

PAD
Maracay

at
Pecos Unit 1

PAD
Willis Ranch

Unit II

PAD

Project Site



ITEM  8 

City Council Memorandum      Development Services  Memo No. 21-003
       

Date: February 8, 2021
To: Mayor  and Council
Thru: Marsha Reed, City Manager

Josh Wright, Assistant City Manager
Derek Horn, Development Services Director
 

From: Susan Fiala, Senior Planner
Subject: PLH20-0028 Hudson Crossings

 
Request: Rezoning from Planned Area Development (PAD) for multi-family residential to PAD for single-family

residential
 

Location: East of the northeast corner of McQueen Road and the Loop 202 Santan Freeway
Applicant: Brennan Ray, Burch & Cracchiolo, P.A.

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council adopt Ordinance No.4954 approving PLH20-0028 Hudson Crossings, Rezoning
from PAD multi-family to PAD single family for a single family development, located east of the
northeast corner of McQueen Road and the Loop 202 Santan Freeway subject to the conditions as
recommended by Planning and Zoning Commission.

Background Data:
Site is approximately 6.39 net acres
Site was zoned in 2007 as Planned Area Development (PAD) for multi-family (MF-3 standards),
along with Area Plan Amendment on two acres of the 6.39 acre site from Special Use
Commercial to High Density Residential 2007 approval included a stipulation requiring Preliminary
Development Plan approval that was never submitted

Ordinance introduced and tentatively adopted on January 28, 2021.

Surrounding Land Use Data:

North  Willis Rd. then City Water
Treatment Facility South  Loop 202 Santan Freeway

East  Consolidated Canal West  Single family residential
(under construction)

General Plan and Area Plan Designations:
  Existing Proposed



General Plan  Neighborhoods  No change
(Chandler Airpark Area Plan
(CAAP)

 High Density Residential
(12.1- 18 du/ac)

 Low-Medium Density Residential
(3.6-8 du/ac)

Proposed Development
   Gated single family subdivision
# of Lots  43 single family lots
 Density  6.73 dwelling units per acre

 Building Setbacks (min.)
Front - 10 ft. to livable, 20 ft. to garage 
Sides - 5 ft.
Rear - 20 ft. to livable, 10 ft. to patio (plans 3 and 4)

 Lot Size  Min. 3,200 sq. ft., 40 ft. by 80 ft.
 Lot Coverage (max.)  55 percent
 Building Height (max.)  30 ft. to midpoint of peak

 Building Architecture  Desert Contemporary, Modern Spanish, Mid-Century, Modern
Prairie

 Parking Spaces   Two car garages per home
 11 visitor parking spaces 

 Amenities  Airport-themed tot lot and ramada

Review and Recommendation
Planning staff finds the proposal is consistent with the General Plan designation of Neighborhoods and
the proposed amendment to the Chandler Airpark Area Plan. The proposed density of 6.73 du/acre is
lower than the existing site’s multi-family zoning, which permits a density of up to 18 du/acre. The
proposed density is also compatible with the 35 lot single family subdivision, located to the west, which
is being developed at a density of 5.83 du/acre.

The subdivision is proposed as a gated community with unique site constraints including single
vehicular access to an arterial road (McQueen Road) and located at the termination of a dead-end
street (Willis Road). Due to the infill nature of the site, the Residential Development Standards (RDS)
for subdivision layout are not applicable. However, the RDS guidelines remain applicable to the
architectural design of the homes. The proposed single family residential subdivision meets the intent
of development standards and residential design guidelines.

Staff finds the proposal to be consistent with the goals of the General Plan and the CAAP, as amended,
and recommends approval subject to conditions.

Traffic Analysis
A Traffic Impact Study is not required for this size of residential development, as it is expected to
generate less than 100 trips in an hour. Transportation Engineering staff reviewed and confirmed that
both McQueen Road and Wills Road have ample capacity to accommodate the additional traffic
generated by this proposed development.

Public / Neighborhood Notification
This request was noticed in accordance with the requirements of the Chandler Zoning Code.



This request was noticed in accordance with the requirements of the Chandler Zoning Code.
A virtual neighborhood meeting was held on October 28, 2020. Two residents attended virtually
and asked questions regarding construction of a sound wall and vehicular turns from Willis Rd.
onto McQueen Rd. and heading west on the Loop 202 Santan Freeway. No opposition to the
project was stated.
As of writing this memo, Planning staff is not aware of opposition to the request.

Airport Commission Conflict Evaluation
Airport Commission meeting November 18, 2020.
Motion to find a conflict with existing or planned airport operations.

In Favor: 5       Opposed: 0         Absent: 2 (Siegel, Kruse)   

The Airport Commission reviewed the request in accordance with the Airport Conflicts Evaluation
Process. The Airport Planning Administrator has issued a conflict evaluation report indicating that the
Airport Commission determined that the proposed development does constitute a conflict with existing
or planned airport operations. A copy of the report detailing the Airport Commission’s findings is
attached to this memo. The Airport Commission's recommended mitigation measures to address the
operational conflicts are included as zoning stipulations.

Planning and Zoning Commission Vote Report
Planning and Zoning Commission meeting January 6, 2021.
Motion to Approve.

In Favor: 6       Opposed: 0       Absent: 1 (Heumann)

Recommended Conditions of Approval
Rezoning
Planning and Zoning Commission recommends the City Council approve rezoning from PAD
multi-family to PAD single family, subject to the following conditions:

1. Development shall be in substantial conformance with the Development Booklet, entitled
“Hudson Crossings” and kept on file in the City of Chandler Planning Division, in File No.
PLH20-0028, modified by such conditions included at the time the Booklet was approved by the
Chandler City Council and/or as thereafter amended, modified or supplemented by the Chandler
City Council.
2. Completion of the construction of all required off-site street improvements including but not
limited to paving, landscaping, curb, gutter and sidewalks, median improvements and street
lighting to achieve conformance with City codes, standard details, and design manuals.
3. Right-of-way dedications to achieve full half-widths, including turn lanes and deceleration
lanes, per the standards of the Chandler Transportation Plan.
4. Minimum setbacks shall be as provided below and further detailed in the Development Booklet:

Front Building Setback (min.)  10 feet to livable, 20 feet to garage
Side Building Setback (min.)  5 feet
 Rear Building Setback (min.)  20 feet to livable, 10 feet to patio (plans 3 and 4)

 

5. The following stipulations shall be the responsibilities of the sub-divider/homebuilder/developer
and shall not be construed as a guarantee of disclosure by the City of Chandler:

a. Prior to any lot reservation or purchase agreement, any and all prospective homebuyers shall



be given a separate disclosure statement, for their signature, fully acknowledging that this
subdivision lies within the Chandler Municipal Airport Impact Overlay District, as specified in the
Chandler Zoning Code.  The disclosure statement shall acknowledge the proximity of this
subdivision to the Chandler Airport and that an avigational easement exists and/or is required on
the property, and further, shall acknowledge that the property is subject to aircraft noise and
overflight activity.  This document signed by the homebuyer shall be recorded with Maricopa
County Recorder’s Office upon sale of the property.
b. The subdivider/homebuilder/developer shall also display, in a conspicuous place within the
sales office, a map illustrating the location of the subdivision within the Airport Impact Overlay
District, as well as the noise contours and overflight patterns, as identified and depicted in the
document entitled Chandler Municipal Airport, F. A. R. Part 150, Noise Compatibility Study, Noise
Compatibility Program, Exhibit 6A (Potential Airport Influence Area), as adopted by the Chandler
City Council (Resolution No. 2950, 11-5-98).  Such map shall be a minimum size of 24” x 36”.
c. Compliance with this condition shall be demonstrated by the subdivider/homebuilder/developer
by submittal of a signed affidavit and photograph that acknowledges this disclosure and map
display prior to beginning any sales activity.  Failure to comply with this condition will result in
revocation of the Administrative Use Permit for the temporary sales office. All requirements as set
forth in this condition are the obligation of the subdivider/homebuilder/developer and shall not be
construed as a guarantee of disclosure by the City of Chandler.
d. The above referenced information shall also be included within the Subdivision Public Report
to be filed with the State of Arizona Department of Real Estate, as required by Arizona Revised
Statute 28-8486 and Arizona Revised Statute 28-8464.
e. The subdivider/homebuilder/developer shall provide the City with an avigational easement over
the subject property in accordance with Section 3004 of the City of Chandler Zoning Code.
f. All homes and buildings shall be designed and built to achieve an interior noise level not to
exceed 45 decibels (Ldn) from aircraft noise. A professional acoustical consultant, architect or
engineer shall certify that the project’s construction plans are in conformance with this condition.
g. The Final Plat shall contain the following statement on the cover sheet in a prominent location
and in large text:  “This property is located within the Chandler Municipal Airport Impact Overlay
District and is subject to aircraft noise and overflight activity, and is encumbered by an avigational
easement to the City of Chandler.”

6. Prior to the time of making any lot reservations or subsequent sales agreements, the
subdivider/homebuilder/lot developer shall provide a written disclosure statement, for the
signature of each buyer, acknowledging that the subdivision is located adjacent to or nearby a
heliport at the Chandler Municipal Airport that may cause adverse noise, odors, and other
externalities. The “Public Subdivision Report”, “Purchase Contracts”, CC&R’s, and the individual
lot property deeds shall include a disclosure statement outlining that the site is adjacent to or
nearby a heliport, and the disclosure shall state that such uses are legal and should be expected
to continue indefinitely. The disclosure shall be presented to prospective homebuyers on a
separate, single form for them to read and sign prior to or simultaneously with executing a
purchase agreement. This responsibility for notice rests with the subdivider/homebuilder/lot
developer and shall not be construed as an absolute guarantee by the City of Chandler for
receiving such notice.
7. The development shall provide sound attenuation measures in accordance with ADOT
standard details and requirements excepting any decibel reductions or sound attenuation credits
for the use of a rubberized asphalt paving surface.  Any noise mitigation, if required, is the
responsibility of the development.
8. Prior to the time of making any lot reservations or subsequent sales agreements, the
subdivider/homebuilder/lot developer shall provide a written disclosure statement, for the
signature of each buyer, acknowledging that the subdivision is located adjacent to or nearby a
City of Chandler wastewater treatment facility that may cause adverse noise, odors, and other
externalities. The “Public Subdivision Report”, “Purchase Contracts”, CC&R’s, and the individual



lot property deeds shall include a disclosure statement outlining that the site is adjacent to or
nearby a wastewater treatment facility, and the disclosure shall state that such uses are legal and
should be expected to continue indefinitely. The disclosure shall be presented to prospective
homebuyers on a separate, single form for them to read and sign prior to or simultaneously with
executing a purchase agreement.  This responsibility for notice rests with the homebuilder/lot
developer and shall not be construed as an absolute guarantee by the City of Chandler for
receiving such notice.
9. Homebuilder will advise all prospective homebuyers of the information on future City facilities
contained in the City Facilities map found at www.chandleraz.gov/infomap, or available from the
City's Communication and Public Affairs Department.  The homebuilder shall post a copy of the
City Facilities map in the sales office showing the location of future and existing City facilities.

Attachments
Ordinance No. 4954 
Vicinity Maps 
Airport Conflict 
Development Booklet, Attachment A 



ORDINANCE NO.  4954 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF CHANDLER, ARIZONA, AMENDING 
THE ZONING CODE AND MAP ATTACHED THERETO, BY REZONING 
PARCELS FROM PLANNED AREA DEVELOPMENT (PAD) FOR MULTI-
FAMILY TO PLANNED AREA DEVELOPMENT (PAD) FOR SINGLE-
FAMILY AS REPRESENTED IN CASE PLH20-0028 (HUDSON CROSSINGS) 
LOCATED EAST OF THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF MCQUEEN ROAD 
AND THE SANTAN 202 FREEWAY WITHIN THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF 
THE CITY OF CHANDLER, ARIZONA; PROVIDING FOR THE REPEAL OF 
CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; AND PROVIDING FOR PENALTIES. 

 
WHEREAS, the application for rezoning certain property within the corporate limits of Chandler, 
Arizona, has been filed in accordance with Article XXVI of the Chandler Zoning Code; and 
 
WHEREAS, the application has been published in a local newspaper with general circulation in 
the City of Chandler, giving fifteen (15) days’ notice of time, place and date of public hearing; and 
 
WHEREAS, a notice of such hearing was posted on the property at least seven (7) days prior to 
said public hearing; and 
 
WHEREAS, a public hearing was held by the Planning and Zoning Commission as required by 
the Zoning Code. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona, 
as follows: 
 
Section 1. Legal Description of Property: 
  As described in EXHIBIT ‘A’   
 

Said property is hereby rezoned from Planned Area Development (PAD) for multi-family 
to Planned Area Development (PAD) for single-family, subject to the following 
conditions: 
 
1. Development shall be in substantial conformance with the Development 

Booklet, entitled “Hudson Crossings” and kept on file in the City of Chandler 
Planning Division, in File No. PLH20-0028, modified by such conditions 
included at the time the Booklet was approved by the Chandler City Council 
and/or as thereafter amended, modified or supplemented by the Chandler City 
Council. 

 
2. Completion of the construction of all required off-site street improvements 

including but not limited to paving, landscaping, curb, gutter and sidewalks, 
median improvements and street lighting to achieve conformance with City 
codes, standard details, and design manuals. 

 



Ordinance No. 4954 
Page 2 

3. Right-of-way dedications to achieve full half-widths, including turn lanes and 
deceleration lanes, per the standards of the Chandler Transportation Plan. 

 
4. Minimum setbacks shall be as provided below and further detailed in the 

Development Booklet: 
 

Building Setbacks (min) 
 

 Front  
 Sides 
 Rear 

10 ft. to livable, 20 ft. to garage  
5 ft.  
20 ft. to livable, 10 ft. to patio (plans 3 and 4) 

 
5. The following stipulations shall be the responsibilities of the sub-

divider/homebuilder/developer and shall not be construed as a guarantee of 
disclosure by the City of Chandler:  

 
a) Prior to any lot reservation or purchase agreement, any and all prospective 

homebuyers shall be given a separate disclosure statement, for their 
signature, fully acknowledging that this subdivision lies within the Chandler 
Municipal Airport Impact Overlay District, as specified in the Chandler 
Zoning Code.  The disclosure statement shall acknowledge the proximity of 
this subdivision to the Chandler Airport and that an avigational easement 
exists and/or is required on the property, and further, shall acknowledge that 
the property is subject to aircraft noise and overflight activity.  This 
document signed by the homebuyer shall be recorded with Maricopa 
County Recorder’s Office upon sale of the property. 

 
b) The subdivider/homebuilder/developer shall also display, in a conspicuous 

place within the sales office, a map illustrating the location of the 
subdivision within the Airport Impact Overlay District, as well as the noise 
contours and overflight patterns, as identified and depicted in the document 
entitled Chandler Municipal Airport, F. A. R. Part 150, Noise Compatibility 
Study, Noise Compatibility Program, Exhibit 6A (Potential Airport 
Influence Area), as adopted by the Chandler City Council (Resolution No. 
2950, 11-5-98).  Such map shall be a minimum size of 24” x 36”. 

 
c) Compliance with this condition shall be demonstrated by the 

subdivider/homebuilder/developer by submittal of a signed affidavit and 
photograph that acknowledges this disclosure and map display prior to 
beginning any sales activity.  Failure to comply with this condition will 
result in revocation of the Administrative Use Permit for the temporary sales 
office. All requirements as set forth in this condition are the obligation of 
the subdivider/homebuilder/developer and shall not be construed as a 
guarantee of disclosure by the City of Chandler. 

 



Ordinance No. 4954 
Page 3 

d) The above referenced information shall also be included within the 
Subdivision Public Report to be filed with the State of Arizona Department 
of Real Estate, as required by Arizona Revised Statute 28-8486 and Arizona 
Revised Statute 28-8464. 

 
e) The subdivider/homebuilder/developer shall provide the City with an 

avigational easement over the subject property in accordance with Section 
3004 of the City of Chandler Zoning Code. 

 
f) All homes and buildings shall be designed and built to achieve an interior 

noise level not to exceed 45 decibels (Ldn) from aircraft noise. A 
professional acoustical consultant, architect or engineer shall certify that the 
project’s construction plans are in conformance with this condition. 

 
g) The Final Plat shall contain the following statement on the cover sheet in a 

prominent location and in large text: “This property is located within the 
Chandler Municipal Airport Impact Overlay District and is subject to 
aircraft noise and overflight activity, and is encumbered by an avigational 
easement to the City of Chandler.” 

 
6. Prior to the time of making any lot reservations or subsequent sales agreements, 

the subdivider/homebuilder/lot developer shall provide a written disclosure 
statement, for the signature of each buyer, acknowledging that the subdivision 
is located adjacent to or nearby a heliport at the Chandler Municipal Airport 
that may cause adverse noise, odors, and other externalities. The “Public 
Subdivision Report”, “Purchase Contracts”, CC&R’s, and the individual lot 
property deeds shall include a disclosure statement outlining that the site is 
adjacent to or nearby a heliport, and the disclosure shall state that such uses are 
legal and should be expected to continue indefinitely. The disclosure shall be 
presented to prospective homebuyers on a separate, single form for them to read 
and sign prior to or simultaneously with executing a purchase agreement. This 
responsibility for notice rests with the subdivider/homebuilder/lot developer 
and shall not be construed as an absolute guarantee by the City of Chandler for 
receiving such notice. 

 
7. The development shall provide sound attenuation measures in accordance with 

ADOT standard details and requirements excepting any decibel reductions or 
sound attenuation credits for the use of a rubberized asphalt paving surface.  
Any noise mitigation, if required, is the responsibility of the development. 

 
8. Prior to the time of making any lot reservations or subsequent sales agreements, 

the subdivider/homebuilder/lot developer shall provide a written disclosure 
statement, for the signature of each buyer, acknowledging that the subdivision 
is located adjacent to or nearby a City of Chandler wastewater treatment facility 
that may cause adverse noise, odors, and other externalities. The “Public 
Subdivision Report”, “Purchase Contracts”, CC&R’s, and the individual lot 



Ordinance No. 4954 
Page 4 

property deeds shall include a disclosure statement outlining that the site is 
adjacent to or nearby a wastewater treatment facility, and the disclosure shall 
state that such uses are legal and should be expected to continue indefinitely. 
The disclosure shall be presented to prospective homebuyers on a separate, 
single form for them to read and sign prior to or simultaneously with executing 
a purchase agreement.  This responsibility for notice rests with the 
homebuilder/lot developer and shall not be construed as an absolute guarantee 
by the City of Chandler for receiving such notice. 

 
9. Homebuilder will advise all prospective homebuyers of the information on 

future City facilities contained in the City Facilities map found at 
www.chandleraz.gov/infomap, or available from the City's Communication and 
Public Affairs Department.  The homebuilder shall post a copy of the City 
Facilities map in the sales office showing the location of future and existing 
City facilities. 

 
Section 2. The Planning Division of the City of Chandler is hereby directed to enter such 

changes and amendments as may be necessary upon the Zoning Map of said Zoning 
Code in compliance with this Ordinance.  

 
Section 3. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this 

Ordinance, or any parts hereof, are hereby repealed. 
 
Section 4. In any case, where any building, structure, or land is used in violation of this 

Ordinance, the Planning Division of the City of Chandler may institute an 
injunction or any other appropriate action in proceeding to prevent the use of such 
building, structure, or land.  

 
Section 5. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion of this Ordinance is 

for any reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional by the decision of any court of 
competent jurisdiction, then this entire ordinance is invalid and shall have no force 
or effect. 

 
Section 6. A violation of this Ordinance shall be a Class 1 misdemeanor subject to the 

enforcement and penalty provisions set forth in Section 1-8.3 of the Chandler City 
Code.  Each day a violation continues, or the failure to perform any act or duty 
required by this Ordinance or the Zoning Code, shall constitute a separate offense. 

 
  



Ordinance No. 4954 
Page 5 

INTRODUCED AND TENTATIVELY APPROVED by the City Council of the City of Chandler, 
Arizona, this ____ day of ______________, 2021. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
CITY CLERK      MAYOR 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona, this _____ day 
of _______________, 2021. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________  _______________________________ 
CITY CLERK      MAYOR 
 

CERTIFICATION 
 
I HEREBY CERTIFY that the above and foregoing Ordinance No. 4954 was duly passed and 
adopted by the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona, at a regular meeting held on the 
____ day of _____________, 2021, and that a quorum was present thereat. 
 
      __________________________ 
       CITY CLERK 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
      
CITY ATTORNEY  
 
Published: 
 

 
 
 
 

 
  



Ordinance No. 4954 
Page 6 

EXHIBIT ‘A’ 
Legal Description 

 

 



E WILLIS RD

S M
CQ

UE
EN

 R
D

E SANTAN - SR202L FW

S S
EN

AT
E 

ST

S B
ED

FO
RD

 PL

S H
UD

SO
N 

DR

E LONGHORN PL

E MARLIN DR

E SABINO DR

E SPRUCE DR

E THOMPSON WY

E CHAPMAN DR

E WEATHERBY WY

E MULBERRY DR

E ARMSTRONG WY

S O
XF

OR
D 

LN

E WILDHORSE DR

S A
MB

ER
 S

T

S J
ES

SE
 P

L

E ARMSTRONG WY

E WILLIS RD
S J

ES
SE

 P
L

E WEATHERBY WY

E ARMSTRONG WY

E THOMPSON WY

S S
EN

AT
E 

ST

S J
ES

SE
 P

L

City of Chandler Planning Division

Project Site
Mc

Qu
ee

n R
d.

Proposed Project Details
Area Plan Amendment/Rezone/PDP/Pre-Plat
6.39 Acres
43 Lots
Single Family Subdivision

chandleraz.gov/planning
For more information visit:

Santan/202 Fwy.

https://gis.chandleraz.gov/planning

PLH20-0066/PLH20-0028/PLT20-0032 Hudson Crossings ´

^

PAD
La Paloma

PAD

COUNTY

COUNTY

PAD

AG-1

PA
D

PAD
Willis
Gated

Community

PAD
San Valencia

PAD

PAD
Las Casitas

Del Sur

PAD
Horizon

AG-1

AG-1

PAD

SF-33 AG-1

AG-1

PA
D

AG-1 AG-1

CO
UN

TY

AG
-1

AG-1

COUNTY

PA
D

SF
-33



E WILLIS RD

S M
CQ

UE
EN

 R
D

E SANTAN - SR202L FW

S S
EN

AT
E 

ST

S B
ED

FO
RD

 PL

S H
UD

SO
N 

DR

E LONGHORN PL

E MARLIN DR

E SABINO DR

E SPRUCE DR

E THOMPSON WY

E CHAPMAN DR

E WEATHERBY WY

E MULBERRY DR

E ARMSTRONG WY

S O
XF

OR
D 

LN

E WILDHORSE DR

S A
MB

ER
 S

T

S J
ES

SE
 P

L

E ARMSTRONG WY

E WILLIS RD
S J

ES
SE

 P
L

E WEATHERBY WY

E ARMSTRONG WY

E THOMPSON WY

S S
EN

AT
E 

ST

S J
ES

SE
 P

L

City of Chandler Planning Division

Project Site
Mc

Qu
ee

n R
d.

Proposed Project Details
Area Plan Amendment/Rezone/PDP/Pre-Plat
6.39 Acres
43 Lots
Single Family Subdivision

chandleraz.gov/planning
For more information visit:

Santan/202 Fwy.

https://gis.chandleraz.gov/planning

PLH20-0066/PLH20-0028/PLT20-0032 Hudson Crossings ´

^

PAD
La Paloma

PAD

COUNTY

COUNTY

PAD

AG-1

PA
D

PAD
Willis
Gated

Community

PAD
San Valencia

PAD

PAD
Las Casitas

Del Sur

PAD
Horizon

AG-1

AG-1

PAD

SF-33 AG-1

AG-1

PA
D

AG-1 AG-1

CO
UN

TY

AG
-1

AG-1

COUNTY

PA
D

SF
-33

























A RESIDENTIAL PURSUITS INVESTMENT

HUDSON CROSSINGSHUDSON CROSSINGS

DECEMBER 2020

Area Plan Amendment, 
Rezoning with Preliminary Development Plan, Preliminary Plat



i

HUDSON CROSSINGS anderson

 Brett Anderson, ASLA, LEED AP
 815 N. 1st Ave, Suite 3
Phoenix, Arizona 85003

 P: (480) 313-8683
brett@anderson.design

Chris Brown
7600 E. Doubletree Ranch Road Suite 130

Scottsdale, AZ 85258
P: (602) 478-0662

cbrown@arcadiacapitalLLC.com

DEVELOPER:     

PROJECT TEAM:     

PROJECT INFORMATION:     

 
Jeff A. Giles

Jeff Giles
5010 E. Shea Blvd, Suite 110

Scottsdale, AZ 85254
 P: (602) 395-9310

jgiles@clouseaz.com

Project Location:

Request:

Gross Area

Net Area:

Maximum Proposed Dwelling Units:

Maximum Proposed Density:

Open Space:

Chandler, Arizona 85286

Approval of Area Plan Amenmdment, Rezoning Preliminary 
Development Plan (PDP) & Preliminary Plat (PPT) 

Planned Area Development (PAD) Vacant

7.13 Ac.

6.39 Ac. 

43 Lots.

6.73 Du./Ac. 

2.36 Ac. 

 
Debra Falese

2943 Pulllman St, Suite A
Santa Ana, CA 92705

 P: (949) 379-2786
mroa@woodleyarch.com

anderson



ii  

HUDSON CROSSINGS anderson 

TABLE OF CONTENTS:  
Introduction  3 
Background  3 
Area Plan Amendment  3 
Planned Area Development & Preliminary Development Plan   4 
Residential Development Standards  5 
Housing Product  6 
Proposed Development Standards  7 
Parking & Refuse  8 
Preliminary Plat  8 
Preliminary Grading and Drainage  8 
Conclusion  8 

 

LIST OF EXHIBITS:  
Exhibit A: Vicinity Map   9 
Exhibit B: Area Plan Amendment (Existing & Proposed) 10 
Exhibit C: Existing & Proposed Zoning Plan 11 
Exhibit D: Development Plan  12 
Exhibit E: Landscape Plans  13 
Exhibit F: Open Space Plan  16 
Exhibit G: Amenity Plan  17 
Exhibit H: Pedestrian Circulation Plan  18 
Exhibit I: Wall Plan  19 
Exhibit J: Details  20 
Exhibit K: Lot Fit Diagrams  25 
Exhibit L: Floor & Roof Plans  29 
Exhibit M: Typical Front Yard Plans  39 
Exhibit N: Concept Elevations  41 
Exhibit O: Color Schemes & Materials  61 
Exhibit P: Street Sections  63 
Exhibit Q: Parking Location Plan  64 
Exhibit R: Preliminary Plat  65 
Exhibit S: Preliminary Grading & Drainage Plan  67 



HUDSON CROSSINGS anderson 

3 3 

 

  

 

Introduction 
Residential Pursuits Investments, LLC (RPI) is excited to bring Hudson Crossings, a new single-family 
residential development located east of the southeast corner of McQueen Road and Willis Road (the “Site”).  
The Site is approximately 7.13 gross (6.39± net) acres. Hudson Crossings is a gated community that offers 
future residents a sense of community and opportunities to interact together as families and as a 
neighborhood. Hudson Crossings will contain 43 lots at a density of approximately 6.73 du/net acre.  As is 
discussed in greater detail below, RPI is requesting: 

• An amendment to the Airpark Area Plan changing the designation from High-Density Residential 
(12.1-18 du/ac) to Low-Medium Density Residential (3.6-8 du/ac); 

• The Site be rezoned to Planned Area Development (PAD) for Single-Family Residential; 
• Preliminary Development Plan (PDP) approval; and  
• Preliminary Plat approval. 

Hudson Crossings makes good land use on this challenging, infill Site adjacent to the Loop 202 Freeway 
and the City’s water treatment facility.  The proposed development will be compatible with neighboring 
developments and will provide an attractive presence in the area. 

Background 
Under the City of Chandler’s General Plan, the Site is designated as Neighborhoods and is zoned PAD Single-
Family Residential.  Additionally, the Site is designated under the City’s Airpark Area Plan as High Density 
Residential (12.1-18 du/ac). The HDR designation has existed on the Site since the Airpark Area Plan was 
adopted in 1998.  Hudson Crossings meets the objectives of the City’s General Plan and demonstrates 
compatibility between new development and existing neighborhoods by incorporating a compatible lot 
size and product type. 

Area Plan Amendment 
As previously discussed, RPI requests an amendment to the Airpark Area Plan to reduce the density 
permitted on the Site, from HDR to LMDR. Much of the immediate area is established also with a variety of 
single-family residential densities. Hudson Crossings incorporates a different product type of a similar but 
varied density to the surrounding area, which creates a diverse housing market.  The proposed amendment 
is in keeping with the residential developments in the area and along Willis Road.   

 



HUDSON CROSSINGS anderson 

4 4 

 

  

Planned Area Development and Preliminary Development Plan 
RPI’s proposed PAD and PDP is for a quality single-family subdivision that is compatible with the City’s 
General Plan, proposed Area Plan Amendment, and the surrounding area. Hudson Crossings will contain 
43 lots that are a minimum of 40 ft. x 80 ft. (3,200 square feet). (See Exhibit D: Development Plan and 
Exhibit E: Landscape Plans).  The sole point of access to the Site is from Willis Road.  Willis Road is 
proposed to terminate at the entrance; however RPI is providing a 5-foot sidewalk from where Willis Road 
ends to the Paseo Trail for residents and passers-by to access the trail system.  Emergency fire access is 
provided along the Site’s western boundary.  Hudson Crossings also provides a minimum 30-foot open 
space buffer along the south edge of the Site.  
The development will contain approximately 2.36 acres of open space, which is approximately 36.93%. 
(See Exhibit F: Open Space Plan).  The open space has been dispersed throughout the Site to provide 
efficient retention as well as visual relief across the development.  A 1.09 acre amenity area is centrally 
located. (See Exhibit G: Amenity Plan).  This amenity area will be easily accessible to all of the residents, 
supporting recreational activity and social interaction. As a major component of the community’s identity, 
the amenity area will complement the architectural style of the homes, and the landscape accents will 
incorporate desert material and natural colors. The amenity area will feature open space turf, play features, 
and a shaded seating area. The five-foot attached sidewalks throughout the community to encourage 
pedestrian connectivity. (See Exhibit H: Pedestrian Circulation Plan).  

The interior and exterior landscape theming of Hudson Crossings will feature Modern and Contemporary 
design elements and motifs that continue to establish the community’s theming (See Exhibit E: Landscape 
Plans). The design of the perimeter walls reflects the quality and character of the community. Also, the 
community mailbox cluster matching the specific theme wall design will be located for convenient access 
to all residents near the amenity area. (See Exhibit I: Wall Plan and Exhibit J: Wall Details). The entrance 
will include an entry monument sign with wrought iron pin steel lettering. (See Exhibit J: Details). 

 
 



HUDSON CROSSINGS anderson 

5 5 

 

  

 

Residential Development Standards 
The City’s Residential Development Standards (RDS) are not applicable to the Site given its in-fill character.  
Because of the nature of the Site, the RDS allows the City Council to depart from the guidelines of the RDS 
if a Site is an in-fill proposal involving a small or irregularly shaped parcel, located within a developed 
residential neighborhood and immediately contiguous to existing land uses and physical barriers such as 
streets, canals, etc.  The Site meets this consideration. Notwithstanding the inapplicability of the RDS, 
Hudson Crossings has been developed to meet the spirit and intent of the RDS. 

Subdivision Diversity Elements: 
Sense of neighborhood arrival - Monument entry with development name & enhanced landscape 
Distinctive project themes - Specialized fencing & accent wall details 
Irregularly shaped retention areas - Single rectangular basin not used & maximum 4:1 slopes 
Retention areas useable & accessible - Easy access to ramada & tot-lot amenity area 
Landscaped parkway - 8'-0" landscaped tract along Willis Road 
Staggers or other visual breaks - Walls include columns & pilasters that relieve linear perimeters 
Cul-de-Sacs with a diversity feature - Includes access to common open space 

 
Architectural Diversity Elements: 
Four-sided architecture - Continued materials on all sides of the building visible from the arterial streets 
Variety of roofing - Concrete slate or "S" roof tiling included with 12 color schemes 
Durable exterior materials and finishes - Brick, masonry, stone, and stucco facades are used 
"Box-on-box" (two story) Includes single story element - Rear elevations, second story plane changes, 
 and multiple roofs with different ridge orientations (such as patios) 
Standard covered rear patios - All floor plans 
Minimum of three significant architectural style differences - Desert Contemporary, Modern Spanish,  
Mid-Century Modern, and Modern Prairie 
Prohibits the same front elevations - Adjoining homes or across the street are to be alternate elevations 

Standard feature access facade material - Stone or brick veneers and wood tiles are included on at  
least one elevation for all floor plans 
Distinctive architectural details - Such as covered front porches, entry doors with glass panels, stucco  
trim, metal awnings, and low wall and gate feature for side patio entry 
Defined front yard outdoor living spaces - Front porches on at least one elevation for each floor plan 
Break up of main ridgeline on roof slopes - Elevations include a variety of ridgelines, and dimensions  
of roof slopes 
Variety of front yard landscape packages - 24" Box or 15gal accent trees, upright or foundation shrubs  
(1 and 5 gal.), and groundcovers are included within the front yard packages 

 



HUDSON CROSSINGS anderson 

6 6 

 

  

 

Housing Product 
The architecture and character of Hudson Crossings will provide diversity throughout the community and 
the surrounding area. The architectural character is influenced with modern-contemporary characteristics 
through the use of contrasting gray and brown color tones, vertical sidings, and building accents. The 
proposed elevations include differing architectural styles found across the Southwest from Texas to 
Southern California and fuses them together with a Southwest twist. This genre involves a composite of 
Desert Contemporary, Modern Spanish, Mid-Century, and Modern Prairie themes. Identifiable elements 
and characteristics of the different styles include the following: 

• Gabled roofing that accentuates concrete 'S' and horizontal roof tiling 

• Various shading effects through second story dimension changes, and patio overhangs 

• Building accents such as brick, decorative tile and stone 

• Refined modern forms and geometry 

• Emphasis on balanced vertical and horizontal lines 

• Asymmetry 

• Incorporation of indoor/outdoor spaces 

• An eclectic application of natural materials such as metal, stone and concrete 
 

The proposed homes emphasize sustainability and create a pedestrian-friendly street scene. The available 
floor plans offer two-story homes with two-car parking driveways and two- car garages. The front 
elevations offer a combination of front-loaded garages, front livable architecture, porches, recessed entries, 
and side entries which all assist in providing desirable building articulation between the front setbacks and 
living spaces. Some key product features include: 

• Functional and open floor plans 

• Covered patios create outdoor living area 

• Two-car garages provide ample parking and storage 

• Modern Desert architectural style reflecting the theme of the community 

• Flexible living spaces provide alternative living arrangements for different buyer profile 



HUDSON CROSSINGS anderson 

7 7 

 

  

 

Proposed Development Standards 
The following development standards are proposed for Hudson Crossings: 

 

Single Family Detached  

STANDARDS 
(SETBACKS SHOWN ARE MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS) 

Lot area, min (sq. ft.) 3,200 sf. per lot 
Lot dimension, min. (ft.) 40’ x 80’ 
Lot coverage, max. (%)  60% (1 Story); 50% (2 Story) 
SETBACKS 
(SETBACKS SHOWN ARE MEASURED FROM PROPERTY LINE TO 
BUILDING FOUNDATION, UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED) 

 

Front Setbacks (ft.) Minimum 20' to garage 
Minimum 10' to livable space 

Side Setbacks, min. (ft.) (1) 5’  

Rear Setbacks, min. (ft.) Minimum 20' to living area 

*Rear patios encroach into the setback up to 10' to be 
10' (maximum) from property line - Plans 3 & 4 

* See Exhibit K: Residential Architecture - Lot Fit Diagrams for 
clarification 

BUILDING STANDARDS  

Building height, max (ft.) 2-stories, 30’ (to midpoint of peak) 

NOTES:  

(1) A minimum of a ten-foot (10’) wide landscape tract shall be installed along the sides of lots siding onto residential streets that are not 
being accessed from that street. The tract shall be located between the street right-of-way and the side lot line of the adjacent lot. 
(2) Encroachments into building setbacks include, architectural embellishments, bay windows, fireplaces, roof overhangs, and those 
allowed by city ‘Zoning Code’ or ‘Building Code’. 
(3) Two-foot (2’) encroachments are allowed on corner lot Sight Visibility Triangles. 

(See Exhibit K: Lot Fit Diagrams, Exhibit L: Floor & Roof Plans, 

and Exhibit N: Concept Elevations) 
 
 
 
 
 



8 

HUDSON CROSSINGS anderson 

 

  

 
 
 

Parking & Refuse 
Hudson Crossings incorporates planning and design elements that provide proper parking and access 
management. Ample parking is available throughout the development through parallel parking along the 
internal streets, as well as two garage spaces per unit and driveway parking. The need for guest parking is 
anticipated to be a minimum of one guest space per every two lots, which is being provided on the private 
street tract. Utilizing various parking options, including on-street parking, will help create an active street 
scene and encourage interaction in a pedestrian friendly environment. In addition to providing adequate 
parking, the layout of the community gives residents the ability to properly locate their trash receptacles 
allowing waste management services to collect them. 

(See Exhibit P: Street Sections and Exhibit Q: Parking Location Plan). 

Preliminary Plat 
See Exhibit R: Preliminary Plat. 

Preliminary Grading and Drainage 
There are no off-site flows that historically pass through the project site. The adjacent off-site streets and 
internal on-site streets will convey storm water to multiple surface retention basins. (See Exhibit S: 
Preliminary Grading & Drainage Plan). 
 

Conclusion 
Hudson Crossings will be a sustainable and appropriate development on this challenging, in-fill Site. The 
proposed Area Plan Amendment, PAD, and PDP meet the goals of the General Plan and the Area Plan by 
providing additional housing choices in the area that will provide additional support to the existing and 
planned retail and employment uses in the area. The layout of Hudson Crossings provides principles of 
traditional neighborhoods, by placing the amenities at the center of the community and providing a housing 
product that provides a transition for the existing developments in the area. We request your approval.  



HUDSON CROSSINGS

9

anderson

Ex
hibit


 

A
: V

IC
IN

ITY
 M

A
P

N



HUDSON CROSSINGS

10

anderson

Ex
hibit


 

B:
  A

RE
A

 P
LA

N
 A

M
EN

D
M

EN
T 

N

´
Chandler Airpark Area Plan

Land Use Plan

Un
io

n 
Pa

ci
fic

 R
ai

lro
ad

Santan/202 Fwy.

Germann Rd.

Ryan Rd.

Ocotillo Rd.

Ar
iz

on
a 

Av
e.

M
cQ

ue
en

 R
d.

Co
op

er
 R

d.

G
ilb

er
t R

d.

Appleby Rd.

Pecos Rd.

#*

kj

Queen Creek Rd.

ANO-3 70ldn+

ANO-2 60ldn-70ldn

ANO-1 55ldn-60ldn

Co
ns

ol
id

at
ed

Can
al

0 2,500 5,0001,250
Feet

LEGEND
RR (0-1.5 D.U. Per Acre)
322 Acres
LDR (1.6-3.5 D.U. Per Acre)
1,063 Acres
LMDR (3.6-8 D.U. Per Acre)
264 Acres
MDR (8.1-12 D.U. Per Acre)
234 Acres
HDR (12.1-18 D.U. Per Acre)
129 Acres
Neighborhood Commercial
72 Acres
Community Commercial
60 Acres
Regional Commercial
243 Acres
Special Use Commercial
93 Acres
Commercial/Office/Business Park
847 Acres
Light Industrial
517 Acres
Industrial
272 Acres

Light Rail Corridor Overlay Planned Area,
Public Assembly Areas
(Potential Mixed Use) 250 Acres

Transitional Overlay Zone
(To Any Commercial Use) 220 Acres

Parks and Open Space
532 Acres

Public/Semi-Public Facilities
497 Acres

Aerospace Industry (FBO)
219 Acres

Commercial/Office/Business Park (Taxiway 
Access) 430 Acres

kj
#*

Future Transit Center
Potential Future Transit Railyard

ANO-1 55ldn-60ldn Noise Contour

ANO-2 60ldn-70ldn Noise Contour

ANO-3 70ldn+ Noise Contour

Map Scale 1:10,000

PROJECT LOCATION

PROPOSED PROPOSED 

EXISTINGEXISTING

´
Chandler Airpark Area Plan

Land Use Plan

Un
io

n 
Pa

ci
fic

 R
ai

lro
ad

Santan/202 Fwy.

Germann Rd.

Ryan Rd.

Ocotillo Rd.

Ar
iz

on
a 

Av
e.

M
cQ

ue
en

 R
d.

Co
op

er
 R

d.

G
ilb

er
t R

d.

Appleby Rd.

Pecos Rd.

#*

kj

Queen Creek Rd.

ANO-3 70ldn+

ANO-2 60ldn-70ldn

ANO-1 55ldn-60ldn

Co
ns

ol
id

at
ed

Can
al

0 2,500 5,0001,250
Feet

LEGEND
RR (0-1.5 D.U. Per Acre)
322 Acres
LDR (1.6-3.5 D.U. Per Acre)
1,063 Acres
LMDR (3.6-8 D.U. Per Acre)
264 Acres
MDR (8.1-12 D.U. Per Acre)
234 Acres
HDR (12.1-18 D.U. Per Acre)
129 Acres
Neighborhood Commercial
72 Acres
Community Commercial
60 Acres
Regional Commercial
243 Acres
Special Use Commercial
93 Acres
Commercial/Office/Business Park
847 Acres
Light Industrial
517 Acres
Industrial
272 Acres

Light Rail Corridor Overlay Planned Area,
Public Assembly Areas
(Potential Mixed Use) 250 Acres

Transitional Overlay Zone
(To Any Commercial Use) 220 Acres

Parks and Open Space
532 Acres

Public/Semi-Public Facilities
497 Acres

Aerospace Industry (FBO)
219 Acres

Commercial/Office/Business Park (Taxiway 
Access) 430 Acres

kj
#*

Future Transit Center
Potential Future Transit Railyard

ANO-1 55ldn-60ldn Noise Contour

ANO-2 60ldn-70ldn Noise Contour

ANO-3 70ldn+ Noise Contour

Map Scale 1:10,000

´
Chandler Airpark Area Plan

Land Use Plan

U
ni

on
 P

ac
ifi

c 
R

ai
lro

ad

Santan/202 Fwy.

Germann Rd.

Ryan Rd.

Ocotillo Rd.

A
riz

on
a 

A
ve

.

M
cQ

ue
en

 R
d.

C
oo

pe
r R

d.

G
ilb

er
t R

d.

Appleby Rd.

Pecos Rd.

#*

kj

Queen Creek Rd.

ANO-3 70ldn+

ANO-2 60ldn-70ldn

ANO-1 55ldn-60ldn

Co
ns

ol
id

at
ed

Can
al

0 2,500 5,0001,250
Feet

LEGEND
RR (0-1.5 D.U. Per Acre)
322 Acres
LDR (1.6-3.5 D.U. Per Acre)
1,063 Acres
LMDR (3.6-8 D.U. Per Acre)
264 Acres
MDR (8.1-12 D.U. Per Acre)
234 Acres
HDR (12.1-18 D.U. Per Acre)
129 Acres
Neighborhood Commercial
72 Acres
Community Commercial
60 Acres
Regional Commercial
243 Acres
Special Use Commercial
93 Acres
Commercial/Office/Business Park
847 Acres
Light Industrial
517 Acres
Industrial
272 Acres

Light Rail Corridor Overlay Planned Area,
Public Assembly Areas
(Potential Mixed Use) 250 Acres

Transitional Overlay Zone
(To Any Commercial Use) 220 Acres

Parks and Open Space
532 Acres

Public/Semi-Public Facilities
497 Acres

Aerospace Industry (FBO)
219 Acres

Commercial/Office/Business Park (Taxiway 
Access) 430 Acres

kj
#*

Future Transit Center
Potential Future Transit Railyard

ANO-1 55ldn-60ldn Noise Contour

ANO-2 60ldn-70ldn Noise Contour

ANO-3 70ldn+ Noise Contour

Map Scale 1:10,000

PROJECT LOCATION

´
Chandler Airpark Area Plan

Land Use Plan

U
ni

on
 P

ac
ifi

c 
R

ai
lro

ad

Santan/202 Fwy.

Germann Rd.

Ryan Rd.

Ocotillo Rd.

A
riz

on
a 

A
ve

.

M
cQ

ue
en

 R
d.

C
oo

pe
r R

d.

G
ilb

er
t R

d.

Appleby Rd.

Pecos Rd.

#*

kj

Queen Creek Rd.

ANO-3 70ldn+

ANO-2 60ldn-70ldn

ANO-1 55ldn-60ldn

Co
ns

ol
id

at
ed

Can
al

0 2,500 5,0001,250
Feet

LEGEND
RR (0-1.5 D.U. Per Acre)
322 Acres
LDR (1.6-3.5 D.U. Per Acre)
1,063 Acres
LMDR (3.6-8 D.U. Per Acre)
264 Acres
MDR (8.1-12 D.U. Per Acre)
234 Acres
HDR (12.1-18 D.U. Per Acre)
129 Acres
Neighborhood Commercial
72 Acres
Community Commercial
60 Acres
Regional Commercial
243 Acres
Special Use Commercial
93 Acres
Commercial/Office/Business Park
847 Acres
Light Industrial
517 Acres
Industrial
272 Acres

Light Rail Corridor Overlay Planned Area,
Public Assembly Areas
(Potential Mixed Use) 250 Acres

Transitional Overlay Zone
(To Any Commercial Use) 220 Acres

Parks and Open Space
532 Acres

Public/Semi-Public Facilities
497 Acres

Aerospace Industry (FBO)
219 Acres

Commercial/Office/Business Park (Taxiway 
Access) 430 Acres

kj
#*

Future Transit Center
Potential Future Transit Railyard

ANO-1 55ldn-60ldn Noise Contour

ANO-2 60ldn-70ldn Noise Contour

ANO-3 70ldn+ Noise Contour

Map Scale 1:10,000

´
Chandler Airpark Area Plan

Land Use Plan

U
ni

on
 P

ac
ifi

c 
R

ai
lro

ad

Santan/202 Fwy.

Germann Rd.

Ryan Rd.

Ocotillo Rd.

A
riz

on
a 

A
ve

.

M
cQ

ue
en

 R
d.

C
oo

pe
r R

d.

G
ilb

er
t R

d.

Appleby Rd.

Pecos Rd.

#*

kj

Queen Creek Rd.

ANO-3 70ldn+

ANO-2 60ldn-70ldn

ANO-1 55ldn-60ldn

Co
ns

ol
id

at
ed

Can
al

0 2,500 5,0001,250
Feet

LEGEND
RR (0-1.5 D.U. Per Acre)
322 Acres
LDR (1.6-3.5 D.U. Per Acre)
1,063 Acres
LMDR (3.6-8 D.U. Per Acre)
264 Acres
MDR (8.1-12 D.U. Per Acre)
234 Acres
HDR (12.1-18 D.U. Per Acre)
129 Acres
Neighborhood Commercial
72 Acres
Community Commercial
60 Acres
Regional Commercial
243 Acres
Special Use Commercial
93 Acres
Commercial/Office/Business Park
847 Acres
Light Industrial
517 Acres
Industrial
272 Acres

Light Rail Corridor Overlay Planned Area,
Public Assembly Areas
(Potential Mixed Use) 250 Acres

Transitional Overlay Zone
(To Any Commercial Use) 220 Acres

Parks and Open Space
532 Acres

Public/Semi-Public Facilities
497 Acres

Aerospace Industry (FBO)
219 Acres

Commercial/Office/Business Park (Taxiway 
Access) 430 Acres

kj
#*

Future Transit Center
Potential Future Transit Railyard

ANO-1 55ldn-60ldn Noise Contour

ANO-2 60ldn-70ldn Noise Contour

ANO-3 70ldn+ Noise Contour

Map Scale 1:10,000

HDR

LMDR



HUDSON CROSSINGS

11

anderson

Ex
hibit


 

C
: E

XI
ST

IN
G

 &
 P

RO
PO

SE
D

 Z
O

N
IN

G
 P

LA
N

NPROPOSEDPROPOSED

EXISTINGEXISTING

LEGEND:                                                              



HUDSON CROSSINGS

12

anderson

Ex
hibit


 

D
: D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

PL
A

N

NPLAN SCALE 1:40



HUDSON CROSSINGS

13

anderson

Ex
hibit


 

E:
 O

V
ER

A
LL

 L
A

N
D

SC
A

PE
 P

LA
N

NPLAN SCALE 1:40



LA
N

D
SC

A
PE

 P
LA

N
S

HUDSON CROSSINGS

14

anderson

NPLAN SCALE 1:20 N

1226

1227

R R R R R R R

CaCaCa
Ca

Ca
CaCaCa

CaCaCa

No
No

No
No

No
No No

No

Ca

Ep
Ep

Ca

No

No

No

No

Ch

Ch
Ch

Ep

Ep

Ep

B
B

B
BEpEpEpEpEp

EpEpEpEpEpEp

No No No No NoNo No No

EpEpEpEp

EpEpEpEp

EpEpEpEp

EpEpEpEp

Ep EpEpEpEpEp

EpEpEpEpEpEp
Ep

Ep

Ep

Ep

Ep

Ep

No No NoNo

CaCa

Ep Ep Ep Ep

Ep Ep Ep Ep Ep

Ep Ep

Ep
Ep Ep Ep Ep Ep

Ep Ep Ep Ep Ep

Ep Ep Ep Ep

Ep Ep Ep Ep Ep

No
No

No
No

No
No

No

Ca
Ca

Ca Ca

Ca

Ca
Ca

Ca

Ca
Ca

Ca

Ca

Ca
Ca

Ca

Ca

Ca CaCa

Ts
Ts

Ts
Ca

Ca
Ca Ca Ca

CaCaCaCa

Ts
Ts

Ts
Ts

Ts

No
No

No No No

No
No

No

No

No No No

No
No

No Ts

Ts

Ts
Ts

B

B
B

No

No

No

Ep
Ep

Ep
Ep

Ep
Ep

Ep
Ep

Ep
Ep

Ep
Ep

Ep
Ep

Ep
Ep

Ep
Ep

Ep
Ep Ep

Ep

Ca Ca CaCa
Ca

EpEpEpEpEpEp
Ep

EpEpEp
EpEpEp

No

No

No
Ts

Ts

Ts

Ts

No

No
No

No
No

Ts

Ts
Ts

No
Ts

Ca Ca
Ca

No
No

No

No

No Ts
Ts

Ts
Ts

Ts
Ts

Ts
No

No

No

Ts

Ts

Ts

Ts

No

Ts

No

Ts
Ts

Ca

Ca Ca Ca

Ca

No

No

Ts

No

Ts

No
Ts

TsNo

No

Ts TsNo
No

No

No

No

Ca

Ca

Ca
CaCa

Ts
TsTs

No No No CaCa

Ts
Ts

Ts
No

TsTs

Ts

Ts

Ts

Ts

Ts

Ts

Ts

Ts

No

No

No

Ca Ca

Ca

Ca
Ca

Ca

Ca

Ca

Ca
Ca

Ca
Ca

No

No

No
No

No

Ca

Ca

No

No

No

Ts
Ts

Ts Ts
Ts

No

No

Ts

No

4:1 MAXIMUM

4:1 MAXIMUM

8'
-0

" P
U

E

P L A N T   M A T E R I A L S   L E G E N D

Pistacia lentiscus
Mastic

No
Nerium oleander 'Little Red'
Oleander 'Little Red' 5 gal.

Medium Shrubs Size Quantity

Small Shrubs Size Quantity

P
Lantana montevidensis
Purple Trailing Lantana 1 gal.

Groundcovers Size Quantity

M
C

Myrtus communis 'compacta'
Dwarf Myrtle 5 gal.

Cacti/ Accents Size Quantity

Bouteloua gracilis
Blond Ambition 5 gal

Yucca pallida
Pale Leaf Yucca 5 gal

Trees Install Caliper Qty.

1/2" Screened Decomposed Granite
Apache Brown, 2" Depth in All Landscape Areas

No
Symbol

Turf
Mid-Iron Sod

Inerts Quantity

Ep
* Eremophila prostrata 'Outback Sunrise'
Outback Sunrise Eremophila 1 gal

6' Min.
15 gal.

Extra Large Shrubs Install Size Quantity

6" Concrete Header
Standard Color & Finish

Pistacia X 'Red Push'
Red Push Pistache

24" Box

Ulmus parvifolia
'Allee' Elm

24" Box

Quercus virginiana 
'Cathedral' Oak

24" Box

Ab

Muhlenbergia capillaris 
'Regal Mist' 5 gal.

Aloe barbadensis
Medicinal Aloe 5 Gal.

Hesperaloe sp. Pink Parade
Pink Parade Hesperaloe 3 gal.

Ch
Agave bovicornuta
Cow's Horn 5 gal.

R
Ruellia brittoniana
Ruellia 5 gal.

Dodonea viscosa
Hopbush 5 gal.

Teucrium chamaedrys 
Germander 5 gal.

* Muhlenbergia rigida 'Nashville'
Purple Muhly 1 gal.

Tecoma alata 'Orange Jubilee'
Orange Jubilee 15 gal.

Ts
Tecoma sp. 'Sparky
Sparky 5 gal.

Bougainvillea 'Oo-La-La'
Oo-La-La Bougainvillea 5 galB

Caeselpinia pulcherrima
Red Bird of Paradise 5 gal.

Parkinsonia hyb.
'Desert Museum' Palo Verde

24" Box

P
* Lantana montevidensis
Purple Trailing Lantana 1 gal.

TREES SHALL BE LOCATED TO AVOID CONFLICT WITH UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AND LIGHT POLES.

*   -    PLANT MATERIAL APPROVED FOR USE WITHIN SRP ROW PER THE "COMPLETE GROUND    
COVER PLANT LIST" AND THE "COMPLETE TREE LIST" AS PROVIDED BY SRP.

BRADLEY & TERRI WOOD
APN 303-29-020

EXISTING POWER POLE
TO BE REMOVED,

UNDERGROUND UTILITIES

33
'-0

"
RO

W
33

'-0
"

RO
W

8'
-0

" P
U

E

EXISTING 8" S/L
EXISTING 12" W/L
EXISTING 8" RC/W

22'-0"
EMERGENCY
ACCESS

T R A C T " B "

43
'-0

"

1234567891011

12 13

14

15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22

ENTRY SIGNAGE5'-0" SIDEWALK



HUDSON CROSSINGS

15

anderson

NPLAN SCALE 1:20

LA
N

D
SC

A
PE

 P
LA

N
S

1228

1229

12
32

12
30

12
31

No

No

No

No

No No

NoNo

EpEpEpEpEpEp

No No No No No No No No No NoNo No No

EpEpEpEpEpEpEpEp EpEpEpEpEpEp
EpEpEpEp

EpEpEpEpEpEp

Ep

Ep

EpEpEp

EpEpEp

EpEpEpEpEpEp

EpEpEpEpEpEp

EpEp

Ep

Ep

Ep

No

No

No

No

No

No No

No

No

B
B

B
B

B
B

B
B

B

Ch

ChChEp
Ep

Ep

Ep

CaCaCaCaCa

Ep Ep Ep Ep

Ts
Ts

Ts
Ca

Ca

Ca
Ca

Ca Ca

Ca

Ca

Ca Ca
Ts

Ts Ts

No
No

NoNoNoNo
No

Ca
Ca

Ca

Ca
Ca

Ca
CaCa

Ca
Ca

CaCaCa
Ca

Ca
CaNo No

No
No

No No

Ca

Ca
Ca

Ca

Ca
Ca

Ca
Ca

Ca

Ca

Ca

Ca

Ca

Ca

No
No

No

No

No
No

No

Ts

No
No

No

No

CaCaCa

Ts
Ts

Ts
Ts

Ts
No No NoCaCa

Ts
Ts

Ts
No

Ca
Ca

No No No

CaCa

Ts

TsNoNo

Ca
Ca Ca Ca

Ca
Ts

Ca

Ca

Ca

Ts
TsTs

No
Ts

Ts
Ts

Ts

Ts

Ts
Ts

Ts

Ts

Ts

Ts

No

No

No
Ca

Ca Ca

Ca

CaCa

Ca

Ca

Ca Ca

Ca

No

No

No

No

No

Ca

Ca

No

No

No

Ts
Ts

Ts Ts

Ts

No
No No

Ts

Ts

Ts

Ts Ts

No

Ca

Ca

Ca

Ca

Ca Ca CaTs Ca

Ts

Ts

Ts
Ts

No

No

No No

No

No

No

No

Ca

Ts

Ts
Ts

Ts
Ts

Ts

Ts

Ts

Ts

Ts

Ca

Ca

Ca

Ca

Ep
Ep

Ep
Ep

Ep
Ep

Ep
Ep

Ep
Ep

No No No No No No NoNo No NoNo No NoNoNo

4:1 MAXIMUM

P L A N T   M A T E R I A L S   L E G E N D

Pistacia lentiscus
Mastic

No
Nerium oleander 'Little Red'
Oleander 'Little Red' 5 gal.

Medium Shrubs Size Quantity

Small Shrubs Size Quantity

P
Lantana montevidensis
Purple Trailing Lantana 1 gal.

Groundcovers Size Quantity

M
C

Myrtus communis 'compacta'
Dwarf Myrtle 5 gal.

Cacti/ Accents Size Quantity

Bouteloua gracilis
Blond Ambition 5 gal

Yucca pallida
Pale Leaf Yucca 5 gal

Trees Install Caliper Qty.

1/2" Screened Decomposed Granite
Apache Brown, 2" Depth in All Landscape Areas

No
Symbol

Turf
Mid-Iron Sod

Inerts Quantity

Ep
* Eremophila prostrata 'Outback Sunrise'
Outback Sunrise Eremophila 1 gal

6' Min.
15 gal.

Extra Large Shrubs Install Size Quantity

6" Concrete Header
Standard Color & Finish

Pistacia X 'Red Push'
Red Push Pistache

24" Box

Ulmus parvifolia
'Allee' Elm

24" Box

Quercus virginiana 
'Cathedral' Oak

24" Box

Ab

Muhlenbergia capillaris 
'Regal Mist' 5 gal.

Aloe barbadensis
Medicinal Aloe 5 Gal.

Hesperaloe sp. Pink Parade
Pink Parade Hesperaloe 3 gal.

Ch
Agave bovicornuta
Cow's Horn 5 gal.

R
Ruellia brittoniana
Ruellia 5 gal.

Dodonea viscosa
Hopbush 5 gal.

Teucrium chamaedrys 
Germander 5 gal.

* Muhlenbergia rigida 'Nashville'
Purple Muhly 1 gal.

Tecoma alata 'Orange Jubilee'
Orange Jubilee 15 gal.

Ts
Tecoma sp. 'Sparky
Sparky 5 gal.

Bougainvillea 'Oo-La-La'
Oo-La-La Bougainvillea 5 galB

Caeselpinia pulcherrima
Red Bird of Paradise 5 gal.

Parkinsonia hyb.
'Desert Museum' Palo Verde

24" Box

P
* Lantana montevidensis
Purple Trailing Lantana 1 gal.

TREES SHALL BE LOCATED TO AVOID CONFLICT WITH UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AND LIGHT POLES.

*   -    PLANT MATERIAL APPROVED FOR USE WITHIN SRP ROW PER THE "COMPLETE GROUND    
COVER PLANT LIST" AND THE "COMPLETE TREE LIST" AS PROVIDED BY SRP.

LIMIT OF STREET
IMPROVEMENT

T R A C T " C "

CONSOLIDATED
CANAL ROW

14
'-0

"

33
'-0

"
RO

W
33

'-0
"

RO
W

8'
-0

" P
U

E

43
'-0

"

23 24 25 26 27 28 29
30

31 32 33

34353637383940414243

5'-0" CONCRETE
SIDEWALK TO CANAL

LANDSCAPED AREA WITH D/G
DRIVEWAY TO CANAL BANK

ROADWAY EASEMENT DEDICATED TO
CITY OF CHANDLER NORTH OF GATE



HUDSON CROSSINGS

16

anderson

Ex
hibit


 

F:
 O

PE
N

 S
PA

C
E 

PL
A

N

NPLAN SCALE 1:40



HUDSON CROSSINGS

17

anderson

Ex
hibit


 

G
: A

M
EN

ITY
 P

LA
N

NPLAN SCALE 1:10



HUDSON CROSSINGS

18

anderson

Ex
hibit


 

H:
 P

ED
ES

TR
IA

N
 C

IR
C

UL
A

TIO
N

 P
LA

N
 

NPLAN SCALE 1:40



HUDSON CROSSINGS

19

anderson

Ex
hibit


 

I: 
W

A
LL

 P
LA

N

NPLAN SCALE 1:40



HUDSON CROSSINGS

20

anderson

Ex
hibit


 

J:
 D

ET
A

IL
S 



HUDSON CROSSINGS

21

anderson

EX
HI

BI
T 

J:
 D

ET
A

IL
S 



HUDSON CROSSINGS

22

anderson

 E
XH

IB
IT 

J:
 D

ET
A

IL
S 



HUDSON CROSSINGS

23

anderson

EX
HI

BI
T 

J:
 D

ET
A

IL
S 



HUDSON CROSSINGS

24

anderson

PLAY STRUCTURE DESIGN INTENT
CONTRACTOR TO SUBMIT SHOP DRAWINGS FOR
APPROVAL BY LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT PRIOR TO
STARING CONSTRUCTION.

SCALE:       1/4"=1'-0"17 Amenity Area

AVIATION COMPASS DESIGN INTENT
CONTRACTOR TO SUBMIT SHOP DRAWINGS FOR
APPROVAL BY LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT PRIOR TO
STARING CONSTRUCTION.

7'-0" (TYP.)

7'-0" (TYP.)

1'-6"
2'-2"

6"
1'-6"

6'-0"
1'-10"

6"

5'-0" (TYP).

4'-6
"

3'-10"

CONCRETE SCORING PATTERN

CONCRETE SCORING PATTERN

RAMADA STRUCTURE

14
'-0

"

14'-0"

SCALE:       1/4"=1'-0"19 Play Structure

SCALE:       1/4"=1'-0"18 Concrete Scoring Pattern

PLAY STRUCTURE

PLAY STRUCTURE

5'-0" CONCRETE SIDEWALK

ADA ACCESS RAMP

WOOD CHIPS

CONCRETE HEADER

CONCRETE PAD

EX
HI

BI
T 

J:
 D

ET
A

IL
S

NPLAN SCALE 1:40



HUDSON CROSSINGS

25

anderson

PLAN 1 

EX
HI

BI
T 

K:
 L

O
T 

FI
T 

D
IA

G
RA

M
S



HUDSON CROSSINGS

26

anderson

PLAN 2 

EX
HI

BI
T 

K:
 L

O
T 

FI
T 

D
IA

G
RA

M
S



HUDSON CROSSINGS

27

anderson

PLAN 3 

EX
HI

BI
T 

K:
 L

O
T 

FI
T 

D
IA

G
RA

M
S



HUDSON CROSSINGS

28

anderson

PLAN 4 

EX
HI

BI
T 

K:
 L

O
T 

FI
T 

D
IA

G
RA

M
S



HUDSON CROSSINGS

29

anderson

PLAN 1 

EX
HI

BI
T 

L:
 F

LO
O

R 
&

 R
O

O
F 

PL
A

N
S



HUDSON CROSSINGS

30

anderson

PLAN 2 

EX
HI

BI
T 

L:
 F

LO
O

R 
&

 R
O

O
F 

PL
A

N
S



HUDSON CROSSINGS

31

anderson

PLAN 3

EX
HI

BI
T 

L:
 F

LO
O

R 
&

 R
O

O
F 

PL
A

N
S 



HUDSON CROSSINGS

32

anderson

PLAN 4

EX
HI

BI
T 

L:
 F

LO
O

R 
&

 R
O

O
F 

PL
A

N
S 



HUDSON CROSSINGS

33

anderson

PLAN 4X

EX
HI

BI
T 

L:
 F

LO
O

R 
&

 R
O

O
F 

PL
A

N
S 



EX
HI

BI
T 

L:
 F

LO
O

R 
&

 R
O

O
F 

PL
A

N
S

HUDSON CROSSINGS

34

anderson

PLAN 1

LOT COVERAGE 
FIRST FLOOR                             21%
SECOND FLOOR                        32%



EX
HI

BI
T 

L:
 F

LO
O

R 
&

 R
O

O
F 

PL
A

N
S

HUDSON CROSSINGS

35

anderson

PLAN 2

LOT COVERAGE 
FIRST FLOOR                             22%
SECOND FLOOR                        35%



EX
HI

BI
T 

L:
 F

LO
O

R 
&

 R
O

O
F 

PL
A

N
S

HUDSON CROSSINGS

36

anderson

PLAN 3

LOT COVERAGE 
FIRST FLOOR                             26%
SECOND FLOOR                        43%



EX
HI

BI
T 

L:
 F

LO
O

R 
&

 R
O

O
F 

PL
A

N
S

HUDSON CROSSINGS

37

anderson

PLAN 4

LOT COVERAGE 
FIRST FLOOR                             28%
SECOND FLOOR                        44%



HUDSON CROSSINGS

38

anderson

EX
HI

BI
T 

L:
 F

LO
O

R 
&

 R
O

O
F 

PL
A

N
S

PLAN 4X OPT. SECOND FLOOR

LOT COVERAGE 
FIRST FLOOR                             28%
SECOND FLOOR                        40%



HUDSON CROSSINGS

39

anderson

EX
HI

BI
T 

M
: T

YP
IC

A
L 

FR
O

N
T 

YA
RD

 S

PLAN 1 & 2

SCALE:       NTS1 Typical Front Yard Landscape - Plan 1

AELECTRONIC
IRRIGATION

CONTROLLER

1" ELECTRONIC
IRRIGATION

VALVE AT POINT
OF CONNECTION

FROM HOME

2

2

2

2

2

21

11

1

PROPERTY LINE2-2" PVC SLEEVES
MAIN LINE FROM HOME

AC
UNIT

TRASH TRASH

AC
UNIT

SCALE:       NTS2 Typical Front Yard Landscape - Plan 2

Trees

Shrubs

Symbol Description

MS

1

Trees

Shrubs

Symbol Description

MS

1

2

Conceptual Lot Plant Legend

24" BOX STREET TREE

15 GAL ACCENT TREE

A

2

2

2

2

2

2

5 GAL. FOUNDATION SHRUB

1 GAL. FOUNDATION SHRUB

1 GAL. GROUNDCOVER 1

5 GAL. UPRIGHT SHRUB

5 GAL. FOUNDATION SHRUB

5 GAL. ACCENT SHRUB

5 GAL. ACCENT SHRUB 1

1 GAL. GROUNDCOVER 1

5 GAL. UPRIGHT SHRUB

1 GAL. GROUNDCOVER 2

CONCRETE 

1

1

1

1

PROPERTY LINE 2-2" PVC SLEEVES
MAIN LINE FROM HOME

ELECTRONIC
IRRIGATION
CONTROLLER

1" ELECTRONIC
IRRIGATION
VALVE AT POINT
OF CONNECTION
FROM HOME



HUDSON CROSSINGS

40

anderson

EX
HI

BI
T 

M
: T

YP
IC

A
L 

FR
O

N
T 

YA
RD

S

SCALE:       NTS3 Typical Front Yard Landscape - Plan 3

A ELECTRONIC
IRRIGATION
CONTROLLER

1" ELECTRONIC
IRRIGATION
VALVE AT POINT
OF CONNECTION
FROM HOME

2

2

PROPERTY LINE2-2" PVC SLEEVES
MAIN LINE FROM HOME

2

2

MS

MS

TRASH

AC
UNIT

2 2

SCALE:       NTS4 Typical Front Yard Landscape - Plan 4

Trees

Shrubs

Symbol Description

MS

1

Trees

Shrubs

Symbol Description

MS

1

2

Conceptual Lot Plant Legend

24" BOX STREET TREE

15 GAL ACCENT TREE

A ELECTRONIC
IRRIGATION
CONTROLLER

1" ELECTRONIC
IRRIGATION
VALVE AT POINT
OF CONNECTION
FROM HOME22 22

5 GAL. FOUNDATION SHRUB

1 GAL. FOUNDATION SHRUB

1 GAL. GROUNDCOVER 1

5 GAL. UPRIGHT SHRUB

5 GAL. FOUNDATION SHRUB

5 GAL. ACCENT SHRUB

5 GAL. ACCENT SHRUB 1

1 GAL. GROUNDCOVER 1

5 GAL. UPRIGHT SHRUB

1 GAL. GROUNDCOVER 2

PROPERTY LINE 2-2" PVC SLEEVES
MAIN LINE FROM HOME

CONCRETE 

AC
UNIT

TRASH

PLAN 3 & 4



EX
HI

BI
T 

N
: C

O
N

C
EP

T 
EL

EV
A

TIO
N

S

HUDSON CROSSINGS

41

anderson

CONCRETE ROOF TILE

STUCCO

STUCCO TRIM

STONE VENEER

CONCRETE ROOF TILE

STUCCO

STUCCO TRIM

STONE VENEER

ENTRY DOOR W/ GLASS 
PANELS

CONCRETE ROOF TILE CONCRETE ROOF TILE

CONCRETE ‘S’ ROOF TILE

STUCCO STUCCO

CEMENTITIOUS SIDING

STUCCO

STUCCO TRIM

STONE VENEER

BRICK VENEER

STONE VENEER

ENTRY DOOR W/ GLASS 
PANEL

ENTRY DOOR W/ GLASS 
PANEL

ENTRY DOOR W/ GLASS 
PANEL

WOOD TILE 

STUCCO TRIM 



EX
HI

BI
T 

N
: C

O
N

C
EP

T 
EL

EV
A

TIO
N

S

HUDSON CROSSINGS

42

anderson

CEMENTITIOUS GABLE-END SIDING

CONCRETE ‘S’ ROOF TILE

CEMENTITIOUS SIDING

STUCCO

STUCCO TRIM

STONE VENEER

CONCRETE ROOF TILE

STUCCO

STUCCO TRIM

STONE VENEER

ENTRY DOOR W/ GLASS 
PANELS

CONCRETE ROOF TILE CONCRETE ROOF TILE

CONCRETE ‘S’ ROOF TILE

STUCCO STUCCO

CEMENTITIOUS SIDING

STUCCO

STUCCO TRIM

STONE VENEER

BRICK VENEER

STONE VENEER

ENTRY DOOR W/ GLASS 
PANEL

ENTRY DOOR W/ GLASS 
PANEL

ENTRY DOOR W/ GLASS 
PANEL

WOOD TILE 

STUCCO TRIM 



EX
HI

BI
T 

N
: C

O
N

C
EP

T 
EL

EV
A

TIO
N

S

HUDSON CROSSINGS

43

anderson

CEMENTITIOUS GABLE-END SIDING

CONCRETE ROOF TILE

STUCCO

STUCCO TRIM

STONE VENEER

WOOD TILE 

CONCRETE ROOF TILE

STUCCO

STUCCO TRIM

STONE VENEER

ENTRY DOOR W/ GLASS 
PANELS

CONCRETE ROOF TILE CONCRETE ROOF TILE

CONCRETE ‘S’ ROOF TILE

STUCCO STUCCO

CEMENTITIOUS SIDING

STUCCO

STUCCO TRIM

STONE VENEER

BRICK VENEER

STONE VENEER

ENTRY DOOR W/ GLASS 
PANEL

ENTRY DOOR W/ GLASS 
PANEL

ENTRY DOOR W/ GLASS 
PANEL

WOOD TILE 

STUCCO TRIM 



EX
HI

BI
T 

N
: C

O
N

C
EP

T 
EL

EV
A

TIO
N

S

HUDSON CROSSINGS

44

anderson

CONCRETE ROOF TILE

STUCCO

BRICK VENEER

STUCCO TRIM 

CONCRETE ROOF TILE

STUCCO

STUCCO TRIM

STONE VENEER

ENTRY DOOR W/ GLASS 
PANELS

CONCRETE ROOF TILE CONCRETE ROOF TILE

CONCRETE ‘S’ ROOF TILE

STUCCO STUCCO

CEMENTITIOUS SIDING

STUCCO

STUCCO TRIM

STONE VENEER

BRICK VENEER

STONE VENEER

ENTRY DOOR W/ GLASS 
PANEL

ENTRY DOOR W/ GLASS 
PANEL

ENTRY DOOR W/ GLASS 
PANEL

WOOD TILE 

STUCCO TRIM 



EX
HI

BI
T 

N
: C

O
N

C
EP

T 
EL

EV
A

TIO
N

S

HUDSON CROSSINGS

45

anderson

CONCRETE ROOF TILE

STUCCO

STUCCO TRIM

STONE VENEER

CONCRETE ROOF TILE

STUCCO

STONE VENEER

ENTRY DOOR W/ GLASS 
PANELS

CONCRETE ROOF TILE CONCRETE ROOF TILE

CONCRETE ‘S’ ROOF TILE

STUCCO STUCCO

CEMENTITIOUS SIDING

STUCCO

STUCCO TRIM

STONE VENEER

BRICK VENEER

STONE VENEER

ENTRY DOOR W/ GLASS 
PANEL

ENTRY DOOR W/ GLASS 
PANEL

ENTRY DOOR W/ GLASS 
PANEL

WOOD TILE 

STUCCO TRIM 



EX
HI

BI
T 

N
: C

O
N

C
EP

T 
EL

EV
A

TIO
N

S

HUDSON CROSSINGS

46

anderson

CEMENTITIOUS GABLE-END SIDING

CONCRETE ‘S’ ROOF TILE

CEMENTITIOUS SIDING

STUCCO

STUCCO TRIM

STONE VENEER

CEMENTITIOUS SIDING

CONCRETE ROOF TILE

STUCCO

STONE VENEER

ENTRY DOOR W/ GLASS 
PANELS

CONCRETE ROOF TILE CONCRETE ROOF TILE

CONCRETE ‘S’ ROOF TILE

STUCCO STUCCO

CEMENTITIOUS SIDING

STUCCO

STUCCO TRIM

STONE VENEER

BRICK VENEER

STONE VENEER

ENTRY DOOR W/ GLASS 
PANEL

ENTRY DOOR W/ GLASS 
PANEL

ENTRY DOOR W/ GLASS 
PANEL

WOOD TILE 

STUCCO TRIM 



EX
HI

BI
T 

N
: C

O
N

C
EP

T 
EL

EV
A

TIO
N

S

HUDSON CROSSINGS

47

anderson

CONCRETE ROOF TILE

STUCCO

STUCCO TRIM

STONE VENEER

WOOD TILE 

CONCRETE ROOF TILE

STUCCO

STONE VENEER

ENTRY DOOR W/ GLASS 
PANELS

CONCRETE ROOF TILE CONCRETE ROOF TILE

CONCRETE ‘S’ ROOF TILE

STUCCO STUCCO

CEMENTITIOUS SIDING

STUCCO

STUCCO TRIM

STONE VENEER

BRICK VENEER

STONE VENEER

ENTRY DOOR W/ GLASS 
PANEL

ENTRY DOOR W/ GLASS 
PANEL

ENTRY DOOR W/ GLASS 
PANEL

WOOD TILE 

STUCCO TRIM 



EX
HI

BI
T 

N
: C

O
N

C
EP

T 
EL

EV
A

TIO
N

S

HUDSON CROSSINGS

48

anderson

CONCRETE ROOF TILE

STUCCO

BRICK VENEER

STUCCO TRIM 

CONCRETE ROOF TILE

STUCCO

STONE VENEER

ENTRY DOOR W/ GLASS 
PANELS

CONCRETE ROOF TILE CONCRETE ROOF TILE

CONCRETE ‘S’ ROOF TILE

STUCCO STUCCO

CEMENTITIOUS SIDING

STUCCO

STUCCO TRIM

STONE VENEER

BRICK VENEER

STONE VENEER

ENTRY DOOR W/ GLASS 
PANEL

ENTRY DOOR W/ GLASS 
PANEL

ENTRY DOOR W/ GLASS 
PANEL

WOOD TILE 

STUCCO TRIM 



EX
HI

BI
T 

N
: C

O
N

C
EP

T 
EL

EV
A

TIO
N

S

HUDSON CROSSINGS

49

anderson

CONCRETE ROOF TILE

STUCCO

STONE VENEER

CONCRETE ROOF TILE

STUCCO

STONE VENEER

METAL AWNING

ENTRY DOOR W/ GLASS 
PANELS

CONCRETE ROOF TILE CONCRETE ROOF TILE

CONCRETE ‘S’ ROOF TILE

STUCCO STUCCO

CEMENTITIOUS SIDING

STUCCO

STUCCO TRIM

STONE VENEER

BRICK VENEER

STONE VENEER

ENTRY DOOR W/ GLASS 
PANEL

ENTRY DOOR W/ GLASS 
PANEL

ENTRY DOOR W/ GLASS 
PANEL

WOOD TILE 

STONE VENEER



EX
HI

BI
T 

N
: C

O
N

C
EP

T 
EL

EV
A

TIO
N

S

HUDSON CROSSINGS

50

anderson

CEMENTITIOUS GABLE-END SIDING

CONCRETE ‘S’ ROOF TILE

CEMENTITIOUS SIDING

STUCCO

STUCCO TRIM

STONE VENEER

CONCRETE ROOF TILE

STUCCO

STONE VENEER

METAL AWNING

ENTRY DOOR W/ GLASS 
PANELS

CONCRETE ROOF TILE CONCRETE ROOF TILE

CONCRETE ‘S’ ROOF TILE

STUCCO STUCCO

CEMENTITIOUS SIDING

STUCCO

STUCCO TRIM

STONE VENEER

BRICK VENEER

STONE VENEER

ENTRY DOOR W/ GLASS 
PANEL

ENTRY DOOR W/ GLASS 
PANEL

ENTRY DOOR W/ GLASS 
PANEL

WOOD TILE 



EX
HI

BI
T 

N
: C

O
N

C
EP

T 
EL

EV
A

TIO
N

S

HUDSON CROSSINGS

51

anderson

CONCRETE ROOF TILE

STUCCO

STONE VENEER

WOOD TILE 

CONCRETE ROOF TILE

STUCCO

STONE VENEER

METAL AWNING

ENTRY DOOR W/ GLASS 
PANELS

CONCRETE ROOF TILE CONCRETE ROOF TILE

CONCRETE ‘S’ ROOF TILE

STUCCO STUCCO

CEMENTITIOUS SIDING

STUCCO

STUCCO TRIM

STONE VENEER

BRICK VENEER

STONE VENEER

ENTRY DOOR W/ GLASS 
PANEL

ENTRY DOOR W/ GLASS 
PANEL

ENTRY DOOR W/ GLASS 
PANEL

WOOD TILE 



EX
HI

BI
T 

N
: C

O
N

C
EP

T 
EL

EV
A

TIO
N

S

HUDSON CROSSINGS

52

anderson

CONCRETE ROOF TILE

STUCCO

BRICK VENEER

CONCRETE ROOF TILE

STUCCO

STONE VENEER

METAL AWNING

ENTRY DOOR W/ GLASS 
PANELS

CONCRETE ROOF TILE CONCRETE ROOF TILE

CONCRETE ‘S’ ROOF TILE

STUCCO STUCCO

CEMENTITIOUS SIDING

STUCCO

STUCCO TRIM

STONE VENEER

BRICK VENEER

STONE VENEER

ENTRY DOOR W/ GLASS 
PANEL

ENTRY DOOR W/ GLASS 
PANEL

ENTRY DOOR W/ GLASS 
PANEL

WOOD TILE 



EX
HI

BI
T 

N
: C

O
N

C
EP

T 
EL

EV
A

TIO
N

S

HUDSON CROSSINGS

53

anderson

CONCRETE ROOF TILE

STUCCO

STONE VENEER

ENTRY DOOR W/ GLASS 
PANEL

CONCRETE ROOF TILE

STUCCO

STONE VENEER

CONCRETE ROOF TILE

CONCRETE ROOF TILE

CONCRETE ‘S’ ROOF TILE

STUCCO
STUCCO

CEMENTITIOUS SIDING

STUCCO

STUCCO TRIM

STONE VENEER

BRICK VENEER

STONE VENEER

WOOD TILE 



EX
HI

BI
T 

N
: C

O
N

C
EP

T 
EL

EV
A

TIO
N

S

HUDSON CROSSINGS

54

anderson

CEMENTITIOUS GABLE-END SIDING

CONCRETE ‘S’ ROOF TILE

STUCCO

STUCCO TRIM

STONE VENEER

ENTRY DOOR W/ GLASS 
PANEL

CEMENTITIOUS VERTICAL SIDING

CONCRETE ROOF TILE

STUCCO

STONE VENEER

CONCRETE ROOF TILE

CONCRETE ROOF TILE

CONCRETE ‘S’ ROOF TILE

STUCCO
STUCCO

CEMENTITIOUS SIDING

STUCCO

STUCCO TRIM

STONE VENEER

BRICK VENEER

STONE VENEER

WOOD TILE 



EX
HI

BI
T 

N
: C

O
N

C
EP

T 
EL

EV
A

TIO
N

S

HUDSON CROSSINGS

55

anderson

CEMENTITIOUS GABLE-END SIDING

CONCRETE ROOF TILE

STUCCO

STONE VENEER

WOOD TILE 

ENTRY DOOR W/ GLASS 
PANEL

CONCRETE ROOF TILE

STUCCO

STONE VENEER

CONCRETE ROOF TILE

CONCRETE ROOF TILE

CONCRETE ‘S’ ROOF TILE

STUCCO
STUCCO

CEMENTITIOUS SIDING

STUCCO

STUCCO TRIM

STONE VENEER

BRICK VENEER

STONE VENEER

WOOD TILE 



EX
HI

BI
T 

N
: C

O
N

C
EP

T 
EL

EV
A

TIO
N

S

HUDSON CROSSINGS

56

anderson

CONCRETE ROOF TILE

STUCCO

BRICK VENEER

ENTRY DOOR W/ GLASS 
PANEL

CONCRETE ROOF TILE

STUCCO

STONE VENEER

CONCRETE ROOF TILE

CONCRETE ROOF TILE

CONCRETE ‘S’ ROOF TILE

STUCCO
STUCCO

CEMENTITIOUS SIDING

STUCCO

STUCCO TRIM

STONE VENEER

BRICK VENEER

STONE VENEER

WOOD TILE 



EX
HI

BI
T 

N
: C

O
N

C
EP

T 
EL

EV
A

TIO
N

S

HUDSON CROSSINGS

57

anderson

OPTIONAL SECOND FLOOR

CONCRETE ROOF TILE

STUCCO

STONE VENEER

ENTRY DOOR W/ GLASS 
PANEL

CONCRETE ROOF TILE

STUCCO

STONE VENEER

CONCRETE ROOF TILE

CONCRETE ROOF TILE

CONCRETE ‘S’ ROOF TILE

STUCCO
STUCCO

CEMENTITIOUS SIDING

STUCCO

STUCCO TRIM

STONE VENEER

BRICK VENEER

STONE VENEER

WOOD TILE 



EX
HI

BI
T 

N
: C

O
N

C
EP

T 
EL

EV
A

TIO
N

S

HUDSON CROSSINGS

58

anderson

OPTIONAL SECOND FLOOR

CONCRETE ‘S’ ROOF TILE

STUCCO

STUCCO TRIM

ENTRY DOOR W/ GLASS 
PANEL

STONE VENEER

CEMENTITIOUS GABLE-END SIDING

CEMENTITIOUS SIDING

CONCRETE ROOF TILE

STUCCO

STONE VENEER

CONCRETE ROOF TILE

CONCRETE ROOF TILE

CONCRETE ‘S’ ROOF TILE

STUCCO
STUCCO

CEMENTITIOUS SIDING

STUCCO

STUCCO TRIM

STONE VENEER

BRICK VENEER

STONE VENEER

WOOD TILE 



EX
HI

BI
T 

N
: C

O
N

C
EP

T 
EL

EV
A

TIO
N

S

HUDSON CROSSINGS

59

anderson

OPTIONAL SECOND FLOOR

CEMENTITIOUS GABLE-END SIDING

STUCCO

WOOD TILE 

ENTRY DOOR W/ GLASS 
PANEL

STONE VENEER

CONCRETE ‘S’ ROOF TILE

CONCRETE ROOF TILE

STUCCO

STONE VENEER

CONCRETE ROOF TILE

CONCRETE ROOF TILE

CONCRETE ‘S’ ROOF TILE

STUCCO
STUCCO

CEMENTITIOUS SIDING

STUCCO

STUCCO TRIM

STONE VENEER

BRICK VENEER

STONE VENEER

WOOD TILE 



EX
HI

BI
T 

N
: C

O
N

C
EP

T 
EL

EV
A

TIO
N

S

HUDSON CROSSINGS

60

anderson

OPTIONAL SECOND FLOOR

CONCRETE ROOF TILE

STUCCO

ENTRY DOOR W/ GLASS 
PANEL

BRICK VENEER

CONCRETE ROOF TILE

STUCCO

STONE VENEER

CONCRETE ROOF TILE

CONCRETE ROOF TILE

CONCRETE ‘S’ ROOF TILE

STUCCO
STUCCO

CEMENTITIOUS SIDING

STUCCO

STUCCO TRIM

STONE VENEER

BRICK VENEER

STONE VENEER

WOOD TILE 



HUDSON CROSSINGS

61

anderson

EX
HI

BI
T 

O
: C

O
LO

R 
SC

EH
EM

ES
 &

 M
A

TE
RI

A
LS



HUDSON CROSSINGS

62

anderson

EX
HI

BI
T 

O
: C

O
LO

R 
SC

EH
EM

ES
 &

 M
A

TE
RI

A
LS

HUDSON CROSSING  | CHANDLER ARIZONA
ARCADIA COMMUNITIES 

Garage Door: Wayne Dalton

Paint: Sherwin Williams

Original Date |03.17.20

SCHEME | 1 SCHEME | 2 SCHEME | 3
EELLEEVVAATTIIOONN  AA                                                                                        

DDEESSEERRTT  CCOONNTTEEMMPPOORRAARRYY

Roof: Boral Roof

Wood Tile: Dal Tile

Schluter: Schluter Systems

Stone: El Dorado Stone

Stone: Creative Mines

SSTTOONNEE  | EL DORADO STONE         
VANTAGE 30 |DRYSTACK

White Elm                                  
Vantage 30                                                            

White Elm                                                   
Vantage 30                                                            

Craft Split                    
Timberwolf

MATERIALS 

TTRRIIMM SW 7038                                                              
Tony Taupe

SW 6106                                  
Kilim Beige

SW 7008                                             
Alabaster

FFAASSCCIIAA  ||  GGAARRAAGGEE  DDOOOORR SW 7040                                                          
Smokehouse

Color Changes  |12.10.20

SW 6013                                               
Bitter Chocolate

SSTTUUCCCCOO  IIII SW 9174                                     
Moth Wing

SW 9108                                                       
Double Latte

SW 6061                                                      
Tanbark

RROOOOFF | SAXONY 900 SLATE                        1FJCS5360                              
Stone Mountain Dark

1FJCS3233                                                                                                                                                          
Brown Blend

1FJCS0330                                                           
Appalachian Blend

Grout: Solomon Colors, Inc Brick:Endicott

TTRRIIMM  AATT  SSTTOONNEE  |                                        
STUCCO OVER FOAM

SW 7042                                                     
Shoji White

SW 7042                                                     
Shoji White

SW 7658                                                                
Gray Clouds

EENNTTRRYY  DDOOOORR SW 6076                                                 
Turkish Coffee

SW 2848                                                          
Roycoft Pewter

SW 6062                                               
Rugged Brown

EELLEEVVAATTIIOONN  BB                                                                                      
MMOODDEERRNN  SSPPAANNIISSHH SCHEME | 4 SCHEME |5 SCHEME | 6

RROOOOFF | MISSION "S"                                                                   1MSCS1132                              
Charcoal Brown Blend

1MSCS6464                                                                                                                                                       
California Mission Blend

1MSCS0431                                                          
Apple Bark

SW 6076                                                 
Turkish Coffee

EENNTTRRYY  DDOOOORR SW 7740                                             
Messenger Bag

SW 7622                                                         
Homburg Gray

SW 7048                                                                                                                         
Urbane Bronze

SSTTOONNEE  | EL DORADO STONE         
CUT COARSE STONE |DRYSTACK

Madrona                                                        
Cut Coarse Stone                                                           

Oyster                                                       
Cut Coarse Stone                                                           

Seashell                                                      
Cut Coarse Stone                                                           

TTRRIIMM  AATT  SSTTOONNEE  |                                        
STUCCO OVER FOAM

SW 7507                                                           
Stone Lion

SW 7532                                                
Urban Putty

SW 7555                                                             
Patience

Wall Tile Grout: Laticrete    

FFAASSCCIIAA SW 7041                                                        
Van Dyke Brown

SW 7027                                                       
Well-Bred Brown

SSTTUUCCCCOO SW 7541                                      
Grecian Ivory

SW 7012                                                        
Creamy

SW 7527                                                   
Nantucket Dune

TTRRIIMM SW 7507                                                           
Stone Lion

SW 7535                                 
Sandy Ridge

SW 7514                                            
Foothills

VVEERRTTIICCAALL  SSIIDDIINNGG  ||                                                                            
TTRRIIMM  AATT  VVEERRTTIICCAALL  SSIIDDIINNGG

SW 7040                                                          
Smokehouse

SW 2839                                          
Roycroft Copper Red

Add Gable-End Siding  |09.21.20
Add Stucco II A Elev. |08.27.20

SSTTUUCCCCOO  II SW 7036                                       
Accessible Beige

SW 6108                                                           
Latte

SW 7044                                                      
Amazing Gray

SW 7535                                 
Sandy Ridge

SW 7514                                            
Foothills

HUDSON CROSSING  | CHANDLER ARIZONA
ARCADIA COMMUNITIES 

 Add Gable-End Siding  |09.21.20

SW 9165                                     
Gossamer Veil 

SW 0037                                                
Morris Room Grey

SW 7008                                                        
Alabaster

PPAAIINNTTEEDD  BBLLOOCCKK||CREATIVE MINES LOFT 
CRAFT PAINTGRADE BLOCK  ||                                                        
STACKED BOND

SW 9165                                     
Gossamer Veil 

SW 6140                                    
Moderate White

SW 7008                                                        
Alabaster

1FJCS0024                                                                                                                                                         
Desert Sage

1FJCS5360                              
Stone Mountain Dark

SSTTUUCCCCOO

Original Date |03.17.20

EELLEEVVAATTIIOONN  CC                                                                                    
MMIIDD--CCEENNTTUURRYY  MMOODDEERRNN SCHEME | 7 SCHEME | 8

1FJCS5354                              
Stone Mountain Blend

FFAASSCCIIAA  SW 7020                                                                 
Black Fox

SW 7675                                               
Sealskin

SW 6076                                                                  
Turkish Coffee

BBRRIICCKK  GGRROOUUTT SGS 94H                                                                    
Iron Black

SGS 85H                                                                   
Dark Chocolate

SGS 85H                                                                   
Dark Chocolate

EENNTTRRYY  DDOOOORR SW 6223                                           
Still Water

SW 9182                                                
Rojo Marrón

SW 7748                                                                                                                      
Green Earth

BBRRIICCKK  || ENDICOTT BRICK         
THOMPSON BUILDING MATERIALS                                          
TTRRIIMM  AATT  BBRRIICCKK                                                                                

Manganese                             
Ironspot                                                                             

SW7048|Urbane Bronze        

Sienna                                                                   
Ironspot                   

SW7510|Chateau Brown

Manganese Brown                           
Ironspot                                     

SW 7020|Black Fox

EELLEEVVAATTIIOONN  DD                                                                                      
MMOODDEERRNN  PPRRAAIIRRIIEE SCHEME |10 SCHEME |11 SCHEME |12

RROOOOFF | SAXONY 900 SLATE           1FJCS0330                                        
Appalachian Blend

1FJCS5360                              
Stone Mountain Dark

SSTTUUCCCCOO SW 7050                                   
Useful Gray

SW 7506                                    
Loggia

SW 7017                                    
Dorian Gray

TTRRIIMM SW 7060                                                      
Attitude Gray

SW 7508                                                    
Tavern Taupe

SW 6076                                                                  
Turkish Coffee

1FJCS5354                              
Stone Mountain Blend

SSIIDDIINNGG SW7068                                
Grizzle Gray

SW6068                               
Brevity Borwn

SW 6076                                                                  
Turkish Coffee

FFAASSCCIIAA  ||  GGAABBLLEE--EENNDD  SSIIDDIINNGG SW 7069                                                                    
Iron Ore

SW 7047                                         
Porpoise

SW 7048                                                 
Urbane Bronze

SW 7046                                                    
Anonymous

Color Changes  |12.10.20

Add Stucco II A Elev. |08.27.20

EENNTTRRYY  DDOOOORR SW 0018                                          
Teal Stencil

SW 0040                                         
Roycroft Adobe

SW 6207                                                        
Retreat

SCHEME |9

RROOOOFF | SAXONY 900 SLATE                        

WWAALLLL  TTIILLEE  | DAL TILE                                                                         
SSCCHHLLUUTTEERR  ||QUADEC                                               
WWAALLLL  TTIILLEE  GGRROOUUTT                                                                                                                                                                    
TTRRIIMM  AATT  WWAALLLL  TTIILLEE

Willowgrove FP98                     
Stone Grey  (TSSG)                                            

60 Dusty Gray                                                                                                                  
SW 7017|Dorian Gray                                                     

Blackwood FP99                    
Bronze (TSOB)                                        

35 Mocha                                                                                                                                                      
SW 7020|Black Fox

Timberland FP99 7                  
Beige (TSB)                                       
35 Mocha                                                                                                                                                                    

SW 9091|Half-Calf

TTRRIIMM SW 7068                              
Grizzle Gray

SW 0037                                                
Morris Room Grey



HUDSON CROSSINGS

63

anderson

EX
HI

BI
T 

P:
 S

TR
EE

T 
SE

C
TIO

N
S

TYPICAL INTERIOR STREET

43’ OVERALL PRIVATE TRACT LOOKING EAST OR WEST

SECTION

PLAN VIEW

LANDSCAPED AREA WITH D/G DRIVEWAY TO CANAL BANK



HUDSON CROSSINGS

64

anderson

EX
HI

BI
T 

Q
: P

A
RK

IN
G

 P
LA

N

N



HUDSON CROSSINGS

65

anderson

EX
HI

BI
T 

R:
 P

RE
LI

M
IN

A
RY

 P
LA

T



HUDSON CROSSINGS

66

anderson

EX
HI

BI
T 

R:
 P

RE
LI

M
IN

A
RY

 P
LA

T



HUDSON CROSSINGS

67

anderson

EX
HI

BI
T 

S:
 P

RE
LI

M
IN

A
RY

 G
RA

D
IN

G
 &

 D
RA

IN
A

G
E 

PL
A

N



ITEM  9 

City Council Memorandum      Development Services  Memo No. 21-004
       

Date: February 8, 2021
To: Mayor  and Council
Thru: Marsha Reed, City Manager

Joshua H. Wright, Assistant City Manager
Derek D. Horn, Development Services Director                                                                                     
                                 

From: Susan Fiala, Senior Planner
Subject: PLH20-0048 Valerio at Ocotillo and Residence Inn Expansion
Request: Rezoning from Planned Area Development (PAD) for Medium Density Residential (PAD/MF-1) to

PAD for Commercial
 

Location: East of the southeast corner of Queen Creek and Price roads
Applicant: Adam Baugh, Withey Morris, PLC

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council adopt Ordinance No. 4955 approving PLH20-0048 Valerio at Ocotillo and Residence
Inn Expansion, Rezoning from Planned Area Development for Medium Density Residential (PAD/MF-1)
to PAD for Commercial, located east of the southeast corner of Queen Creek and Price roads subject to
the conditions as recommended by the Planning and Zoning Commission.

Background Data:
The proposed modifications cover an area of approximately 0.61 acres
Downtown Ocotillo Area Plan and zoning approved by City Council on February 22, 2007
Residence Inn zoned as part of the larger Downtown Ocotillo development
Valerio at Ocotillo rezoned to PAD/MF-1 in 2018
Downtown Ocotillo includes a mix of uses including retail, restaurant, a four-story residential
condominium, and a four-story hotel 

Ordinance introduced and tentatively adopted on January 28, 2021.

Surrounding Land Use Data:

North  Agriculture   (proposed office) South  Lake then Multi-family and
office

East  Commercial retail and
multi-family West  Lake then office

General Plan and Area Plan Designations:
  Existing Proposed



General Plan  Employment  No change
Downtown Ocotillo Area Plan  Multi-family Residential (.61 acres)  Commercial (.61 acres)

Proposed Development
Valerio at Ocotillo Existing/Approved Proposed
Site Area 5.2 acres 4.59 acres
# of Units 32 26
Density 6.15 du/acre 5.66 du/acre
Visitor parking 8 spaces 9 spaces
  
Residence Inn Existing Proposed
Site Area 4.27 acres 4.88 acres
Building Area 107,025 sq. ft. 147,780 sq. ft.
Units/rooms 142 201
Height 59 feet 6 inches top of parapet 60 feet 2 inches top of parapet
Parking Required 142 spaces 201 spaces
Parking Provided 152 spaces 186 spaces
Setback to residential 85 feet required 30 feet

Review and Recommendation
Planning staff finds the proposal is consistent with the General Plan and the Downtown Ocotillo Area
Plan.  The proposed modifications to .61 acres of each site and the hotel expansion are compatible with
the overall Downtown Ocotillo Master Planned development. The proposal complies with applicable
residential and commercial development standards.

The proposal essentially involves two parts: replacing six lots at Valerio at Ocotillo development
(approved as “Ocotillo Patio Villas” in 2018) with parking, and allowing a reduced setback from a new
Residence Inn building.

Six residential lots that were located on the southern end of Valerio at Ocotillo will be removed and
replaced with additional parking for the new Residence Inn building.  The revised property line between
the Valerio and Residence Inn developments will be closer to the remaining residential lots. A portion of
the site where the six lots are removed will be landscaped and effectively increase common open
space for the residential development. A pedestrian gate and pathway from this development to the
hotel site is to be maintained per the original approval. To ensure the installation of the gate and
pathway, staff recommends this element as a stipulation.

The second component of the request is construction of one additional, four-story hotel building
adjacent to the Valerio at Ocotillo development. The new Residence Inn building continues the Santa
Barbara architecture style utilizing same color and materials as the existing hotel. Several waivers are
requested to reduce parking, reduce the width of the dissimilar land use buffer along the north property
line, and remove the parking lot diamond requirement.

The parking reduction is supported as cross-parking/access easements exist throughout Downtown
Ocotillo and allow hotel customers to park in the commercial retail lots.  The diamonds in the lot are
supported. However, staff recommends that the landscape buffer be increased from five feet to ten feet
to allow for sufficient space for plant growth and survival. The date palms existing in the parking lot
should either remain or be replaced with date palms to continue the Downtown Ocotillo landscape
theme.  Staff recommends these revisions as stipulations.



Staff finds the proposal to be consistent with the goals of the General Plan and the Downtown Ocotillo
Area Plan, as amended, and recommends approval subject to conditions.

Public / Neighborhood Notification
This request was noticed in accordance with the requirements of the Chandler Zoning Code.
A Neighborhood Meeting sign was posted on the site.
A virtual neighborhood meeting was held on November 19, 2020. Two residents registered for
the event virtually and asked questions regarding traffic, parking, hotel amenities and construction
timing. No opposition to the request was voiced. Positive feedback to the applicant was given by
the attendees.
Planning staff received one phone call asking about the number of total rooms and parking
proposed for the hotel expansion. There is no known opposition to the request.

Planning and Zoning Commission Vote Report
Planning and Zoning Commission meeting January 6, 2021.
Motion to Approve.

In Favor:  6    Opposed: 0       Absent: 1  (Heumann)

Recommended Conditions of Approval
Rezoning
Planning and Zoning Commission recommends the City Council approve rezoning from Planned Area
Development for Medium Density Residential (PAD/MF-1) to PAD for Commercial, subject to the
following conditions: 

1. Development shall be in substantial conformance with the Development Booklet, entitled
“Valerio at Ocotillo and Residence Inn Expansion” and kept on file in the City of Chandler
Planning Division, in File No. PLH20-0048, modified by such conditions included at the time the
Booklet was approved by the Chandler City Council and/or as thereafter amended, modified or
supplemented by the Chandler City Council.
2. The minimum building setback for the hotel building shall be no less than 30 ft. from the north
property line.

Attachments
Ordinance No. 4955 
Vicinity Maps 
Development Booklet, Attachment A 



ORDINANCE NO.  4955 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF CHANDLER, ARIZONA, AMENDING 
THE ZONING CODE AND MAP ATTACHED THERETO, BY REZONING 
PARCELS FROM PLANNED AREA DEVELOPMENT FOR MEDIUM 
DENSITY RESIDENTIAL (PAD/MF-1) TO  PLANNED AREA 
DEVELOPMENT (PAD) FOR COMMERCIAL AS REPRESENTED IN CASE 
PLH20-0048 (VALERIO AT OCOTILLO AND RESIDENCE INN 
EXPANSION) LOCATED EAST OF THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF QUEEN 
CREEK ROAD AND PRICE ROAD WITHIN THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF 
THE CITY OF CHANDLER, ARIZONA; PROVIDING FOR THE REPEAL OF 
CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; AND PROVIDING FOR PENALTIES. 

 
WHEREAS, the application for rezoning certain property within the corporate limits of 
Chandler, Arizona, has been filed in accordance with Article XXVI of the Chandler Zoning 
Code; and 
 
WHEREAS, the application has been published in a local newspaper with general circulation in 
the City of Chandler, giving fifteen (15) days’ notice of time, place and date of public hearing; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, a notice of such hearing was posted on the property at least seven (7) days prior to 
said public hearing; and 
 
WHEREAS, a public hearing was held by the Planning and Zoning Commission as required by 
the Zoning Code. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona, 
as follows: 
 
Section 1. Legal Description of Property: 
  As described in EXHIBIT ‘A’   
 

Said property is hereby rezoned from Planned Area Development for Medium Density 
Residential (PAD/MF-1) to Planned Area Development (PAD) for Commercial (PAD), 
subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. Development shall be in substantial conformance with the Development 

Booklet, entitled “Valerio at Ocotillo and Residence Inn Expansion” and kept 
on file in the City of Chandler Planning Division, in File No. PLH20-0048, 
modified by such conditions included at the time the Booklet was approved by 
the Chandler City Council and/or as thereafter amended, modified or 
supplemented by the Chandler City Council. 

 
2. The hotel’s minimum building setback shall be no less than 30 ft. from the 

north property line.  



Ordinance No. 4955 
Page 2 

 
 
 
Section 2. The Planning Division of the City of Chandler is hereby directed to enter such 

changes and amendments as may be necessary upon the Zoning Map of said 
Zoning Code in compliance with this Ordinance.  

 
Section 3. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this 

Ordinance, or any parts hereof, are hereby repealed. 
 
Section 4. In any case, where any building, structure, or land is used in violation of this 

Ordinance, the Planning Division of the City of Chandler may institute an 
injunction or any other appropriate action in proceeding to prevent the use of such 
building, structure, or land.  

 
Section 5. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion of this Ordinance is 

for any reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional by the decision of any court 
of competent jurisdiction, then this entire ordinance is invalid and shall have no 
force or effect. 

 
Section 6. A violation of this Ordinance shall be a Class 1 misdemeanor subject to the 

enforcement and penalty provisions set forth in Section 1-8.3 of the Chandler City 
Code.  Each day a violation continues, or the failure to perform any act or duty 
required by this Ordinance or the Zoning Code, shall constitute a separate offense. 

 
INTRODUCED AND TENTATIVELY APPROVED by the City Council of the City of 
Chandler, Arizona, this ____ day of ______________, 2021. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
CITY CLERK      MAYOR 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona, this _____ day 
of _______________, 2021. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________  _______________________________ 
CITY CLERK      MAYOR 
 
  



Ordinance No. 4955 
Page 3 

CERTIFICATION 
 
I HEREBY CERTIFY that the above and foregoing Ordinance No. 4955 was duly passed and 
adopted by the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona, at a regular meeting held on the 
____ day of _____________, 2021, and that a quorum was present thereat. 
 
      __________________________ 
       CITY CLERK 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
      
CITY ATTORNEY  
 
Published: 
 

 
 
 
 

 
  



Ordinance No. 4955 
Page 4 

EXHIBIT ‘A’ 
 

 
 
 
 



Ordinance No. 4955 
Page 5 

 



Ordinance No. 4955 
Page 6 

 



Ordinance No. 4955 
Page 7 

 



S D
OB

SO
N 

RD

S P
RI

CE
 R

D

W QUEEN CREEK RD

W MARKET PL

W MOCKINGBIRD DR

S E
LL

IS
 S

T

W EDGEWATER WY

NW
 JA

CA
RA

ND
A P

W
W ROCKROSE PL

S L
AG

UN
A D

R

S L
OS

 AL
TO

S P
L

W HAWK WY

W INDIGO DR

W NON-DEDICATED

S W
AT

ER
FR

ON
T D

R

S IVY WY

W GOLDFINCH WY

S HOLLYHOCK PL

S A
RR

OY
O 

DR

W ASTER PL

S C
AS

CA
DE

 PL

S NON-DEDICATED

S ACACIA DR

W SUNRISE PL

W HOPE CR

W MOCKINGBIRD DR

S I
VY

 W
Y

City of Chandler Planning Division

Project Site

Pr
ice

 R
d.

Proposed Project Details
Area Plan Amendment/Rezone/PDP
Site plan changes and expand hotel
Valerio at Ocotillo- 4.59 acres
Residence Inn- 4.88 acres

chandleraz.gov/planning
For more information visit:

https://gis.chandleraz.gov/planning

PLH20-0047/PLH20-0048 Valerio at Ocotillo and Residence Inn Expansion ´

^

Queen Creek Rd.

PAD

PAD
The Cays at Downtown

Ocotillo

AG-1
PCO/PAD

AG-1

PAD

PADPAD

PAD
Ocotillo Bay Apartments

PAD
Clemente Ranch

PCO/PAD

PAD
The Waters at Ocotillo

PAD
Arista at Ocotillo PAD

Almeria at Ocotillo

PAD
Sienna at Ocotillo

PAD
Corona Del Mar

PAD
Waters at Ocotillo

PAD
Harbour Club

 at Ocotillo

PAD
Waters at Ocotillo

PADPAD



S D
OB

SO
N 

RD

S P
RI

CE
 R

D

W QUEEN CREEK RD

W MARKET PL

W MOCKINGBIRD DR

S E
LL

IS
 S

T

W EDGEWATER WY

NW
 JA

CA
RA

ND
A P

W
W ROCKROSE PL

S L
AG

UN
A D

R

S L
OS

 AL
TO

S P
L

W HAWK WY

W INDIGO DR

W NON-DEDICATED

S W
AT

ER
FR

ON
T D

R

S IVY WY

W GOLDFINCH WY

S HOLLYHOCK PL

S A
RR

OY
O 

DR

W ASTER PL

S C
AS

CA
DE

 PL

S NON-DEDICATED

S ACACIA DR

W SUNRISE PL

W HOPE CR

W MOCKINGBIRD DR

S I
VY

 W
Y

City of Chandler Planning Division

Project Site

Pr
ice

 R
d.

Proposed Project Details
Area Plan Amendment/Rezone/PDP
Site plan changes and expand hotel
Valerio at Ocotillo- 4.59 acres
Residence Inn- 4.88 acres

chandleraz.gov/planning
For more information visit:

https://gis.chandleraz.gov/planning

PLH20-0047/PLH20-0048 Valerio at Ocotillo and Residence Inn Expansion ´

^

Queen Creek Rd.

PAD

PAD
The Cays at Downtown

Ocotillo

AG-1
PCO/PAD

AG-1

PAD

PADPAD

PAD
Ocotillo Bay Apartments

PAD
Clemente Ranch

PCO/PAD

PAD
The Waters at Ocotillo

PAD
Arista at Ocotillo PAD

Almeria at Ocotillo

PAD
Sienna at Ocotillo

PAD
Corona Del Mar

PAD
Waters at Ocotillo

PAD
Harbour Club

 at Ocotillo

PAD
Waters at Ocotillo

PADPAD



AREA PLAN AMENDMENT, REZONING AND 
PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

 
THE VALERIO AT OCOTILLO & RESIDENCE INN 

EXPANSION 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
2ND SUBMITTAL: DECEMBER 2, 2020 
1ST SUBMITTAL: SEPTEMBER 2020 
          WITHEY MORRIS, PLC 

ADAM BAUGH 
2525 E. ARIZONA BILTMORE CR., A-212 

PHOENIX, AZ 85016 
602.230.0600  



 
PAGE 2 OF 11 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
I. INTRODUCTION .......................................................................................................... 4 

a. PROJECT BACKGROUND ......................................................................................... 4 
b. PROJECT OVERVIEW .............................................................................................. 4 

i. SUMMARY OF REQUESTS ............................................................................ 5 
ii. RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES ................................................... 5 

c. GENERAL PLAN CONFORMANCE .............................................................................. 5 
d. AREA PLAN AMENDMENT ........................................................................................ 5 

II. PAD ............................................................................................................................ 5 
III. PDP ........................................................................................................................... 5 

INTENT ................................................................................................................. 6 
1. THE VALERIO AT OCOTILLO .............................................................................. 6 

a. SITE DESIGN ........................................................................................ 6 
b. ARCHITECTURAL CHARACTER ................................................................ 6 

i. BUILDING MASSING AND ARTICULATION....................................... 6 
ii. BUILDING MATERIALS ................................................................ 6 
iii. UNIT DESIGN ............................................................................ 6 

c. LANDSCAPING AND OPEN SPACE ........................................................... 6 
d. DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS .................................................................. 7 

i. SETBACKS ................................................................................ 7 
ii. HEIGHT .................................................................................... 7 
iii. PARKING .................................................................................. 7 
iv. DEVIATIONS .............................................................................. 8 

e. MULTI-FAMILY DESIGN STANDARDS ........................................................ 8 
i. COMMON FACILITIES, OPEN SPACE AND AMENITIES ...................... 8 
ii. SPECIFIC DESIGN ATTENTION AREAS .......................................... 8 
iii. ENERGY CONSERVATION ........................................................... 8 
iv. CONDOMINIUMS ........................................................................ 9 
v. LANDSCAPING .......................................................................... 9 
vi. SECURITY ................................................................................ 9 

2. THE RESIDENCE INN ......................................................................................... 9 
a. SITE DESIGN ........................................................................................ 9 
b. ARCHITECTURAL CHARACTER ................................................................ 9 
c. LANDSCAPING AND OPEN SPACE ......................................................... 10 
d. DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS ................................................................ 10 

i. DEVIATIONS .......................................................................................... 10 
IV. SUMMARY .............................................................................................................. 11 
 
 

LIST OF EXHIBITS 

Overall Exhibits 
Tab A - Aerial Map 
Tab B - Area Plan Map (Current and Proposed) 
Tab C - Exhibit A1.1       Overall Site Rendering 

Exhibit A1.2       Overall Black and White Site Plan 
 



 
PAGE 3 OF 11 

Tab D - Valerio Exhibits 
Exhibit A1.3       Valerio Black and White Site Plan 
Exhibit A1.4       Valerio Southern Area Close Up 
Exhibit A2          Valerio Landscape Plan 
Exhibit A3          Valerio Aerial Perspective 
 
Tab E – Residence Inn Exhibits 
Exhibit A4 Overall Residence Inn Existing Site Plan & Addition Site Plan 
Exhibit A4.1 Overall Residence Inn Addition Site Plan 
Exhibit A5        Residence Inn Landscape Plan 
Exhibit A6         Residence Inn Aerial Perspective 
Exhibit A7         Residence Inn Exterior Color Elevations 
Exhibit A8         Residence Inn Exterior B&W Elevations 
Exhibit A9 Residence Inn Color and Materials 
Exhibit A10 Residence Inn Wall Details 
Exhibit A11        Residence Inn Floor Plans 
Exhibit A12        Residence Inn G&D Plan 
 
 
  



 
PAGE 4 OF 11 

The Valerio at Ocotillo & Residence Inn Expansion 
PLH20-0047 AND PLH20-0048 

 
 

 
I. INTRODUCTION 
 
a. PROJECT BACKGROUND 
 
The subject property is located in Downtown Ocotillo, generally south of Queen Creek 
Road on Market Street (the “Property”). See Aerial Map at Tab A. The Property is 
currently zoned by two separate PAD/PDPs for both hotel and residential uses. The 
residential use, Ocotillo Patio Villas (now called “Valerio”), is on the north portion and is 
subject to DVR18-0022.  The Residence Inn Hotel in on the south portion and is governed 
by the Downtown Ocotillo PAD (case DVR06-0051) and the hotel plans administratively 
approved in 2016. 
 
Most recently in 2019, the Chandler City Council approved a PAD, PDP, and Area Plan 
Amendment to permit a 32-unit residential development now called Valerio at Ocotillo 
(DVR18-0022). The Property is currently zoned PAD (Planned Area Development) for 
multi-family uses.   
 
The Owners of Valerio also own the Residence Inn hotel property directly south and have 
decided to expand the Residence Inn project and add a new building.  The net effect is a 
reduction in lots and reconfiguring of the proposed Valerio residential development next 
door.  
 
The purpose of this PAD, PDP, and Area Plan Amendment is to update the Valerio 
residential development plan and rezone about .61 acres from PAD for multi-family to 
PAD for commercial to allow commercial parking for the hotel expansion building. This 
PDP is intended to provide a single set of standards and guidelines for the Valerio and 
Residence Inn. These changes will create new economic growth, increased tax revenue, 
and provide a useful transition to the adjacent area. 
 
b. PROJECT OVERVIEW 
 
The change in the Valerio development plan reduces the residential density in Valerio by 
removing six (6) lots, which results in an overall change in residential density from 
approximately 5.7 du/acre to 5.23 du/acre.  The lots being removed will be converted into 
additional parking for the hotel expansion building. Notably, the lot and floor plan layout 
for the most southerly lot (Unit 24) were modified administratively, as approved by 
Chandler staff on July 6, 2020, allowing for the re-configuration of Valerio at its southern 
boundary.  
 

   
 

    
      

  



 
PAGE 5 OF 11 

 
Concurrent with the hotel expansion, Valerio has been replatted to reflect the new 
condominium boundaries and layout of Unit 24. This change to the residential 
development plan will reduce the overall parking and trash demand in the residential 
community and provide an increased landscape buffer for enjoyment of Valerio residents. 
The community will still reflect the Santa Barbara style, painted white with red barrel tile 
roofs to complement the character and image of the Downtown Ocotillo area.  
 

i. SUMMARY OF REQUESTS 
 

This application requests an Area Plan Amendment, a zoning amendment to the 
Planned Area Development (PAD), and a Preliminary Development Plan (PDP).   

 
ii. RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES 

 
This Property is within the Downtown Ocotillo area which is a mix of retail, hotel, 
and multi-family uses.  The Property is currently developed with a hotel at the south 
consisting of two (2) buildings, and a residential community at the north, which has 
commenced construction.  To the West is a lake and office buildings.  To the North 
is vacant agricultural land intended for future industrial and office uses.  To the 
east are the Downtown Ocotillo shops buildings.   

 
c. GENERAL PLAN CONFORMANCE 
 
This request is in conformance with the City of Chandler General Plan adopted in 2016. 
The General Plan designates the Property as Employment which allows “a compatible 
mix of supporting commercial uses and residential densities as an integral component.”  
Given its location within a mixed-use setting (Downtown Ocotillo), residential uses are 
complementary to the retail, hotel, and multi-family uses in the area. 
 
d. AREA PLAN AMENDMENT 
 
The area plan amendment concerns only the area to be converted into a parking lot to 
serve the hotel expansion, totaling about .61 acres.  The subject area was previously 
designated as commercial in the Ocotillo Area Plan before it was changed to residential 
in 2018 via Case No. DVR18-0022.  This application proposes an Area Plan amendment 
to change the designation back to commercial for the parking lot which represents only 
.61 acres. See Area Plan Exhibits at Tab B. 

 
II. PAD 
 
PERMITTED USES: All uses permitted in the MF-1 District (Valerio); and C-2 Commercial 
District (Residence Inn) in the City of Chandler Zoning Ordinance as well as 
condominiums by right. 

 
III. PDP 



 
PAGE 6 OF 11 

 
The intent of this document is to set forth a cohesive, single PDP document, for the Valerio 
at Ocotillo and the Residence Inn. While several sections, particularly related to design 
standards, are largely restated from prior approvals, this document also sets forth and 
establishes several additional development standards for the Valerio at Ocotillo and the 
Residence Inn, as further noted below. This PDP is divided into two (2) parts: Section 1, 
The Valerio at Ocotillo; and, Section 2, The Residence Inn Expansion. Section 1 
addresses the reconfigured Valerio residential development plan and Section 2 pertains 
to the hotel expansion, building architecture and site layout. 
 
1. The Valerio at Ocotillo PDP 
 
a. SITE DESIGN 
Residential building heights, building setbacks, landscape setbacks and development 
standards will comply with the Council approved Ocotillo Patio Villas PAD (DVR18-0022) 
as restated below, the City of Chandler Zoning Code and the Multifamily Design 
Guidelines, except as modified in Ocotillo Patio Villas PAD (DVR18-022) or by this 
PAD/PDP.  
 
b. VALERIO ARCHITECTURE DESIGN AND THEME  

 
i. BUILDING MASSING AND ARTICULATION 

The Valerio reflects the Santa Barbara style, painted white with red barrel tile 
roofs, arched windows, and inset garages to complement the character and 
image of the Downtown Ocotillo area. Most of the villas have private entry court 
yards and inset garage doors with flanking traditionally styled wall lights.   A 
combination of hip, gable end and circular turret roofs will add character and 
diversity to the streetscape. 
 

ii. BUILDING MATERIALS 
Stucco walls, concrete roof tile in a color to emulate clay, along with brick lintels 
and window surrounds add character appropriate to the Santa Barbara styled 
architecture.  Expansive windows will provide an abundance of light into the 
villas and capture scenic waterfront views. 
 

iii. UNIT DESIGN 
Although this will be a condominium community, the villas provide many design 
elements found in single family homes. The floor plans encapsulate the current 
features popular with buyers today.  These features include open, spacious 
great rooms, split bedroom plans, grand en-suite master baths with large walk-
in-closets, and optional 3rd bedrooms in lieu of flex spaces which can function 
as dining rooms or dens.   

 
c. LANDSCAPING & OPEN SPACE 

 
[LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK] 



 
PAGE 7 OF 11 

The landscape character will continue the lush landscape exemplified in the Ocotillo area 
developments. Evergreen trees such as Mondel pine, Southern Live Oak, fruitless olives 
and stately date palms will dominate the vertical element, together with deciduous 
varieties such as Fan West Ash will provide a hint of fall color to the project.  
 
With the use of the lake water for landscape irrigation, the turf area shall be maximized, 
per the requirements of the Ocotillo Association. The proposed shrubs and groundcovers 
will provide color and seasonal interest throughout the year. Perimeter walls and entry 
gates will match the existing character of the Downtown Ocotillo area, providing a sense 
of security for the residents and uniformity to the area.  

 

d. DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS  
 
Residential development within the Property shall conform to the standards set forth in 
the MF-1 District of the Chandler Zoning Ordinance and the standards set forth in this 
PDP. If there is a conflict, the development standards in this PDP shall apply.    
 
Below is a summary of the development standards for Valerio. See Table 1 for a summary 
of the residential development plan modifications. 

i. SETBACKS 
The proposed landscape and building minimum setbacks are as follows:  
 
Front Yard Setback (Queen Creek Road)     25 feet 
Side Yard Waterfront Setback from water’s edge.   25 feet 
Side Yard East Setback (Private Drive)     10 feet 
Rear Yard Setback (Adjacent to Hotel)    5 feet 
 

ii. HEIGHT 
The maximum building heights in the proposed development follow the 
Chandler Zoning Ordinance MF-1 standards by not exceeding a building height 
of twenty-five (25') feet.  
 
 

iii. PARKING  
The proposed parking meets the Chandler Zoning Ordinance requirements.  
Every villa is provided with a two-car garage.  Signs will be posted on-site 
stating that parking in front of garages is prohibited unless the space has the 
required 20-foot depth per the Chandler Zoning Ordinance. There are 9 
additional uncovered parking spaces.  Additionally, convenient guest parking is 
allowed off-site via a cross parking and access easement with the commercial 
property at Downtown Ocotillo. 
 

 
[LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK] 

 



 
PAGE 8 OF 11 

 
TABLE 1 – VALERIO MODIFICATIONS 

DEVELOPMENT 
STANDARD 

EXISTING PROPOSED 

# OF UNITS 32 26 
DENSITY (DU/AC) 5.7 5.23 
REAR YARD SETBACK 10’ 5’ 
VISITOR PARKING 8 SPACES 9 SPACES 

 
 

iv. DEVIATIONS  
 
This PAD/PDP restates below the prior deviations already approved in Ocotillo 
Patio Villas PAD (DVR18-0022). 
 
Chandler Zoning Ordinance 35-803. - Height and area regulations.  Front 
yard setback reduction from 50 feet to 25 feet, for R/W greater than 99-foot. 
Chandler Zoning Ordinance 35-1902 (7)(c). - Site development plan design 
standards Swimming Pool Length.  Swimming pool minimum length 
reduction from sixty feet to thirty-five feet minimum. 
 
City of Chandler Standard Detail C-228. Modification of the typical driveway 
access to a private gated community to the layout as shown in the PDP booklet.  
 
The following additional deviation is requested: 
 
Chandler Zoning Ordinance 35-803. - Height and area regulations.  Rear 
yard setback reduction from 10 feet to 5 feet for a dwelling. 
 

e. MULTI-FAMILY DESIGN STANDARDS 
 

i. COMMON FACILITIES, OPEN SPACE, AND AMENITIES 
Although platted as condominium units, the development proposal is more akin 
to patio homes with private rear yards.  The private yards area in lieu of 
amenities traditionally found with apartment home communities. The 
development is connected to the surrounding area by walking paths. 
 

ii. SPECIFIC DESIGN ATTENTION AREAS 
The design of all courtyards and pedestrian areas shall relate to "human scale." 
Large unvaried building facades shall be avoided. Lighting is provided for both 
convenience and security. Living units and windows are arranged to provide 
privacy. Parking is in a location that is convenient to the occupants of the 
homes. 

iii. ENERGY CONSERVATION 



 
PAGE 9 OF 11 

The development shall shade the south and west sides of buildings by 
overhangs and/or trees and provide shade trees on the south and west side of 
the development. Required shading at the above locations have been provided 
through recessed patios, recessed windows, and the use of landscape. 

 
iv. CONDOMINIUMS: Since the patio homes are not physically connected, there is 

sufficient soundproofing between dwelling units.  There is adequate storage. 
Dwelling units will have distinctive entryways to avoid the monotony frequently 
found where a row of doors line a corridor.  
 

v. LANDSCAPING 
The amount of landscaping is of sufficient intensity to create a pleasant and 
comfortable living environment with the amount of plant material dependent on 
the size of the vegetation as well as the shape and size of the areas to be 
landscaped. A dynamic landscape setback is provided along the streetscape 
and perimeter edges.  

vi. SECURITY 
All of the open spaces are observable to minimize the opportunity for unruly 
conduct and to create the feeling of "ownership" by the occupants of the 
projects. 

 

2. The Residence Inn PDP 
 

a. SITE DESIGN 
 

Downtown Ocotillo features distinctive landscaping, a unique lakeside open area, and 
Santa Barbara influenced architecture and signage. There are tree-lined boulevards, 
above which are views of the towers of Downtown Ocotillo, and important pedestrian 
paths and connections. The mixed-use nature of Downtown Ocotillo creates opportunities 
for hotel guests to enjoy not only hotel amenities, but also the shopping and dining 
amenities within the larger Downtown Ocotillo area, as the hotel and retail amenities are 
integrally connected. The addition of a new hotel building will only help to invigorate and 
activate the area, which will provide many benefits as described herein. 
 
b. ARCHITECTURAL CHARACTER 

 
Just like the rest of Downtown Ocotillo, the Residence Inn fully embraces Santa Barbara 
style architecture. The most distinctive exterior features of Santa Barbara are red clay tile 
roofing and smooth white stucco walls. Every building, architectural pedestrian feature, 
and monument sign in Downtown Ocotillo embraces this style.  
 
Another important element of Santa Barbara style is the connection between interior and 
exterior space. In Santa Barbara style architecture, exterior space is a large programmatic 
function of the building. Downtown Ocotillo has taken this element and incorporated it into 



 
PAGE 10 OF 11 

many of the buildings. The hotel buildings achieve this by activating gathering areas that 
enhance the lakeside experience. 
 
 
c. LANDSCAPING & OPEN SPACE 
 
The landscape character will continue the lush landscape exemplified in the Ocotillo area 
developments. Evergreen trees such as Mondel pine, Southern Live Oak, fruitless olives 
and stately date palms will dominate the vertical element, together with deciduous 
varieties such as Fan West Ash will provide a hint of fall color to the project.  
 
With the use of the lake water for landscape irrigation, the turf area shall be maximized, 
per the requirements of the Ocotillo Association. The proposed shrubs and groundcovers 
will provide color and seasonal interest throughout the year. Perimeter walls and entry 
gates will match the existing character of the Downtown Ocotillo area, providing a sense 
of security for the residents and uniformity to the area. A series of 25’ to 30’ tall fan palm 
trees (Washingtonia robusta) will also be provided along the building foundations of 
structures that exceed 45’ in height. 

 

d. DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS  
 
Hotel development shall conform to the standards set forth in the C-2 District of the 
Chandler Zoning Ordinance and the standards set forth in this PAD/PDP. If there is a 
conflict, the development standards in this PAD/PDP shall apply.   Refer to Table 2 for a 
summary of development standard modifications for the hotel addition. 

 
Table 2 – Residence Inn Development Standard Modifications for 

Hotel Addition 
Development 
Standard 

Existing Proposed 

Building Area 107,025 SF 147,780 SF 
Total Units 142 201 
Building Height 59’-6” to top of parapet* 60’-2” to top of parapet 
Parking Required 142 Spaces 201 Spaces 
Parking Provided 152 Spaces 186 Spaces 
Commercial Building 
Setback from 
Residential 

Commercial buildings 
shall be no closer than 
twenty-five (25) feet, 
plus one (1) additional 
foot for each foot of 
height of the 
commercial building, 
from the residential 
property line 

30’ 



 
PAGE 11 OF 11 

*A mid-rise overlay was approved via Case No. DVR06-0051 for six (6) stories of 
height. 

 
i. DEVIATIONS  

 
Chandler Zoning Ordinance 35-1902.8.a.1 – Additional requirements for 
shopping centers, office and commercial complexes.  Reduce commercial 
building setback to 30 feet from residential property line. 

 

Chandler Zoning Ordinance 35-1804.3 – Commercial parking schedule.  
Reduce hotel parking requirement from 201 spaces to 186 spaces on-site. Note 
that additional parking is available off-site via a cross parking and access 
easement with the commercial property at Downtown Ocotillo. 

 

Chandler Zoning Ordinance 35-1903.6.b.3 – Landscaping Buffers.  Reduce 
landscape strip on northern perimeter of the hotel to five (5) feet. 
 
Chandler Zoning Ordinance 35-1903.6.b.2 and b.3 – Landscaping 
diamonds and buffers. Remove landscape diamond requirement for 
consistency with overall development and reduce landscape strip on northern 
perimeter of the hotel to five (5) feet. 

 

Summary 
The modified residential community is a better land plan because it provides more open 
space and reduced density.  Additionally, it adds room for new commercial parking to 
better accommodate the Residence Inn Hotel expansion.  The proposal includes Santa 
Barbara design architecture which characterizes this area and makes meaningful use of 
an otherwise vacant property.  The proposed site plan provides connectivity to the 
surrounding development, is walkable, and is nicely situated on the lakefront.  Overall, 
the building architecture for both the Residence Inn and Valerio will remain consistent 
with the Downtown Ocotillo Master Plan area and the overall vision remains unchanged. 
 
 
 



TAB A





TAB B





TAB C



EXHIBIT A1.1 - OVERALL SITE RENDERING 



EXHIBIT A1.2 - OVERALL B&W SITE PLAN 



TAB D



OVERALL SITE DATA
PROJECT NAME:
PROJECT ADDRESS:

THE VALERIO AT OCOTILLO

SITE AREA:

ZONING:
PROPOSED PAD

APN: 303-54-989
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: LOTS 2 AND 3 OF DOWNTOWN OCOTILLO LOTS 1 THRU 11 AND TRACT A, ACCORDING TO BOOK OF 981 OF MAPS, PAGE 25, RECORDS OF MARICOPA COUNTY, ARIZONA. 
PROPOSED USE: RESIDENTIAL (CONDO)
DENSITY: 5.23 DU / AC

BUILDING DATA

TOTAL PARCEL: 

 2777 W QUEEN CREEK 
RD CHANDLER, AZ 85248

 199,278 SF  /  4.57  NET ACRES 

216,492 SF / 4.97 GROSS  ACRES

EXISTING PAD

UNIT TYPE Units
TWO BEDROOM UNITS 3 12% 1,706 SQ FT
THREE BEDROOM UNITS 23 88% 1,318 - 2,130 SQ FT
TOTAL 26 49,884                  

BUILDING HEIGHT
MAX ALLOWED 35 FEET
MAX PROPOSED 20 FEET

PARKING DATA
PARKING REQUIRED:

23 (3) BEDROOM UNITS (23 X 2.25): 52 P.S.
3 (2) BEDROOM UNITS (3 X 2): 6 P.S.

TOTAL PARKING REQUIRED 58 P.S.

PARKING PROVIDED:
26 UNITS W/ 2 CAR GARAGE 52 P.S.

7 P.S.GUEST PARKING
   REGULAR PARKING SPACE
    ADA  ACCESSIBLE

TOTAL PARKING PROVIDED 61 P.S.

GROSS LIVABLE AREA

2 P.S.

EXHIBIT A1.3 - OVERALL VALERIO SITE PLAN 



D
W

E

T

UP

PERMEABLE ACCESS DRIVE

PRIVATE DRIVE

GATERETAINING WALL

PROPOSED NEW 
PROPERTY BOUNDARY

ADJACENT PROPERTY 
ZONING USE: PAD
PROPERTY TYPE: 

COMMERCIAL (HOTEL)

.

.

21' - 0"

RAMADA

EXISTING UNITS TO REMAIN

8

5

6

11

8

11

11

11

12

11

12

7

EASEMENT FOR POWER DISTRIBUTION

BUILDING SETBACK25' - 0"

BUILDING SETBACK

25' - 0"

PROPOSED 
MONUMENT SIGN

POOL POOL
EQUIP.

POOL ENCLOSURE

FIRE PIT

GRILL

FIRE PIT

WATER FEATURE

FH

FH

FH

TRANSFORMER 
REFER TO 

ME1.1

5' - 0" 9' - 0" 5' - 0" 9' - 0" 5' - 0" 11' - 0" 9' - 0"

HANDICAP SYMBOL PER 
CITY STANDARD C-612

HANDICAP SYMBOL PER 
CITY STANDARD C-612

HANDICAP SIGN PER CITY 
STANDARD C-611

WHEEL STOP PER CIVIL 
C2.2

14
' - 

10
"

14
' - 

0"

14
' - 

0"

14' - 0" 14' - 0"

LOT 1
4.279 ACRES
186,410 SF

26
' - 

0"
5' 

- 6
"

12
' - 

0"

24
' - 

0"

26' - 0"

SES BACKUP 
LANE

SITE LIGHTING PER ME1.1

BENCH

BENCH

BENCH

BENCH

FLAG

BR
EE

ZE
W

AY

BREEZEWAY

ADA RAMP PER 
CIVIL DRAWINGS

ADA RAMP PER 
CIVIL 

DRAWINGS

9

12

MECHANICAL

STORAGE

LOBBY

26' - 0"5' - 0"

202' - 11 3/16"

61' - 3 1/4"

12

12

6

23' - 4"

22' - 1 3/8"

NEW PROPERTY 
BOUNDARY

20' - 0"

20' - 0"
20' - 0"

30' FOOT HOTEL 
SETBACK

5 ' - 0"

CONDO SETBACK

ORIGINAL PROPERTY 
BOUNDARY

156.0°

102.0°

12

HOTEL
28,485 SF

30' - 0"

5' - 0"

12' - 9"

8

2

5' - 0"

36' - 9"

ORIGINAL PROPERTY 
BOUNDARY

AV
ER

AG
E 

SE
TB

AC
K 

FR
OM

 

PR
OP

ER
TY

 L
IN

E 

24
'-9

"
26

' -
 0

"

9' 
- 0

"
9' 

- 0
"

19' - 0"

9' 
- 0

"

19' - 0"

25' - 0"

NORTH0' 10 20 40 80'FULL SITE PLAN

RESIDENCE INN AT OCOTILLO
PRELIMINARIY PLAN REVIEW
CHANDLER, ARIZONA

1" = 20'-0"1 SITE PLAN -FULL SITE PLAN

EXHIBIT A1.4 - VALERIO SOUTHERN AREA CLOSE UP

10

7

11

7

2

10

12

11

7

4

11

11

6

11

11

11

8

D

D

D

D

EXISTING SITE

SP1

179001

...

..

.. ... .. . ..08 26 20

1

R
ES

ID
EN

C
E 

IN
N

 A
T 

O
C

O
TI

LL
O

PROJECT DATA

NEW SITE / BUILDING ADDITION

8

5

6

18
15 12

11

19

15

6

13

11

7

8

11

11

11

2

6 LOTS REMOVED FOR HOTEL EXPANSION PARKING  

FLOOR PLAN REMODELED 



EXHIBIT A2 - VALERIO LANDSCAPE PLAN



EXHIBIT A3 - VALERIO AERIAL PERSPECTIVE



TAB E



EXHIBIT A4 - OVERALL RESIDENCE INN EXISTING SITE PLAN & ADDITION SITE PLAN

10

7

11

7

2

10

12

11

7

4

11

11

6

11

11

11

8

D

D

D

D

EXISTING SITE

SP1

179001

...

..

.. ... .. . ..08 26 20

1

R
ES

ID
EN

C
E 

IN
N

 A
T 

O
C

O
TI

LL
O

PROJECT DATA

NEW SITE / BUILDING ADDITION

8

5

6

18
15 12

11

19

15

6

13

11

7

8

11

11

11

2

D
W

E

T

UP

PERMEABLE ACCESS DRIVE

PRIVATE DRIVE

GATERETAINING WALL

PROPOSED NEW 
PROPERTY BOUNDARY

ADJACENT PROPERTY 
ZONING USE: PAD
PROPERTY TYPE: 

COMMERCIAL (HOTEL)

.

.

21' - 0"

RAMADA

EXISTING UNITS TO REMAIN

8

5

6

11

8

11

11

11

12

11

12

7

EASEMENT FOR POWER DISTRIBUTION

BUILDING SETBACK25' - 0"

BUILDING SETBACK

25' - 0"

PROPOSED 
MONUMENT SIGN

POOL POOL
EQUIP.

POOL ENCLOSURE

FIRE PIT

GRILL

FIRE PIT

WATER FEATURE

FH

FH

FH

TRANSFORMER 
REFER TO 

ME1.1

5' - 0" 9' - 0" 5' - 0" 9' - 0" 5' - 0" 11' - 0" 9' - 0"

HANDICAP SYMBOL PER 
CITY STANDARD C-612

HANDICAP SYMBOL PER 
CITY STANDARD C-612

HANDICAP SIGN PER CITY 
STANDARD C-611

WHEEL STOP PER CIVIL 
C2.2

14
' - 

10
"

14
' - 

0"

14
' - 

0"

14' - 0" 14' - 0"

LOT 1
4.279 ACRES
186,410 SF

26
' - 

0"
5' 

- 6
"

12
' - 

0"

24
' - 

0"

26' - 0"

SES BACKUP 
LANE

SITE LIGHTING PER ME1.1

BENCH

BENCH

BENCH

BENCH

FLAG

BR
EE

ZE
W

AY

BREEZEWAY

ADA RAMP PER 
CIVIL DRAWINGS

ADA RAMP PER 
CIVIL 

DRAWINGS

9

12

MECHANICAL

STORAGE

LOBBY

26' - 0"5' - 0"

202' - 11 3/16"

61' - 3 1/4"

12

12

6

23' - 4"

22' - 1 3/8"

NEW PROPERTY 
BOUNDARY

20' - 0"

20' - 0"
20' - 0"

30' FOOT HOTEL 
SETBACK

5 ' - 0"

CONDO SETBACK

ORIGINAL PROPERTY 
BOUNDARY

156.0°

102.0°

12

HOTEL
28,485 SF

30' - 0"

5' - 0"

12' - 9"

8

2

5' - 0"

36' - 9"

ORIGINAL PROPERTY 
BOUNDARY

AV
ER

AG
E 

SE
TB

AC
K 

FR
OM

 

PR
OP

ER
TY

 L
IN

E 

24
'-9

"
26

' -
 0

"

9' 
- 0

"
9' 

- 0
"

19' - 0"

9' 
- 0

"

19' - 0"

25' - 0"

NORTH0' 10 20 40 80'FULL SITE PLAN

RESIDENCE INN AT OCOTILLO
PRELIMINARIY PLAN REVIEW
CHANDLER, ARIZONA

1" = 20'-0"1 SITE PLAN -FULL SITE PLAN



D
W

UP

E

T

PERMEABLE ACCESS DRIVE

PRIVATE DRIVE

GATERETAINING WALL

NEW PROPERTY 
BOUNDARY

ADJACENT PROPERTY 
ZONING USE: PAD
PROPERTY TYPE: 

COMMERCIAL (HOTEL)

.

.

21' - 0"

RAMADA

EXISTING UNITS TO REMAIN

8

5

6

11

8

11

11

11

12

11

12

7

EASEMENT FOR POWER DISTRIBUTION

BUILDING SETBACK25' - 0"

BUILDING SETBACK

25' - 0"

PROPOSED 
MONUMENT SIGN

EXISTING BRIDGE

POOL POOL
EQUIP.

POOL ENCLOSURE

FIRE PIT

GRILL

FIRE PIT

WATER FEATURE

FH

FH

FH

TRANSFORMER 
REFER TO 

ME1.1

5' - 0" 9' - 0" 5' - 0" 9' - 0" 5' - 0" 11' - 0" 9' - 0"

HANDICAP SYMBOL PER 
CITY STANDARD C-612

HANDICAP SYMBOL PER 
CITY STANDARD C-612

HANDICAP SIGN PER CITY 
STANDARD C-611

WHEEL STOP PER CIVIL 
C2.2

14
' - 

10
"

14
' - 

0"

14
' - 

0"

14' - 0" 14' - 0"

LOT 1
4.279 ACRES
186,410 SF

26
' - 

0"
5' 

- 6
"

12
' - 

0"

24
' - 

0"

26' - 0"

SES BACKUP 
LANE

SITE LIGHTING PER ME1.1

BENCH

BENCH

BENCH

BENCH

FLAG

BR
EE

ZE
W

AY

BREEZEWAY

ADA RAMP PER 
CIVIL DRAWINGS

ADA RAMP PER 
CIVIL 

DRAWINGS

9

12

MECHANICAL

STORAGE

LOBBY

26' - 0"5' - 0"

202' - 11 3/16"

61' - 3 1/4"

12

23' - 4"

22' - 1 3/8"

PROPOSED NEW 
PROPERTY BOUNDARY

20' - 0"

20' - 0"
20' - 0"

30' FOOT HOTEL 
SETBACK

5 ' - 0"

5' SETBACK

ORIGINAL PROPERTY 
BOUNDARY

156.0°
102.0°

12

HOTEL
28,485 SF

30' - 0"

5' - 0"

12' - 9"

8

2

ORIGINAL PROPERTY 
BOUNDARY

5' - 0"

36' - 9"

AV
ER

AG
E 

SE
TB

AC
K 

FR
OM

 

PR
OP

ER
TY

 L
IN

E 

24
'-9

"
26

' -
 0

"

9' 
- 0

"
9' 

- 0
"

19' - 0"

9' 
- 0

"

19' - 0"

25' - 0"

9' 
- 0

"
9' 

- 0
"

19' - 0"

ROOM TYPE

STUDIO

STUDIO CONNECTOR

1ST LEVEL 2ND LEVEL 3RD LEVEL 4TH LEVEL

TOTAL

2

3

5

14

2

6

15

6 6

TOTAL

8

12

23

5915 15

ROOM TYPE MATRIX - ADDITION

2 2

ONE BEDROOM 4 4 4 4 16

DOUBLE QUEEN STUDIO

3 3 3

BUILDING INFORMATION - ADDITION

NUMBER OF LEVELS: 4 LEVELS

NUMBER OF GUESTROOMS: 59 GUESTROOMS

BUILDING SQUARE FOOTAGE:

1 ST LEVEL: 10,146 SF (EXT. FACE OF STUD)
2 ND LEVEL: 10,203 SF (EXT. FACE OF STUD)
3 RD LEVEL: 10,203 SF (EXT. FACE OF STUD)
4 TH LEVEL: 10,203 SF (EXT. FACE OF STUD)

TOTAL  BUILDING AREA: 40,755 SF 

BUILDING HEIGHTS:

TOP OF ROOF DECK: 45'-6"

TOP OF HIGHEST PARAPET: 60'-2"

NEW HOTEL PARKING: 32 SPACES

NEW HOTEL GUESTROOMS: 59 GUESTROOMS
EXISTING HOTEL GUESTROOMS: 142 GUESTROOMS
TOTAL HOTEL GUESTROOMS: 201 GUESTROOMS

NEW HOTEL PARKING: 32 SPACES
EXISTING HOTEL PARKING: 152 SPACES
HOTEL TOTAL PARKING: 186 SPACES

PARKING REQUIREMENTS:

HOTEL: ONE SPACE PER ROOM
REQUIRED: 201
PROVIDED: 186

** ORDINANCE REQUIRES ONCE SPACE PER 100 SF OF BANQUET, RESTAURANT OR MEETING 
NOT INTENDED SOLELY FOR GUEST OR EMPLOYEE USE. NO FUNCTIONS WITHIN HOTEL ARE 
INTENDED FOR NON-GUEST USE **

LOT COVERAGE PERCENTAGES:

NEW TOTAL SITE AREA: 213,495 S.F. (100% TOTAL SITE)
BUILDING: 38,631 S.F. (18.1% TOTAL SITE)
LANDSCAPE: 89,402 S.F. (41.9% TOTAL SITE)
PARKING: 85,462 S.F. (40% TOTAL SITE)
LANDSCAPE IN PARKING: 13,406 S.F. (15.7% PARKING AREA)

BUILDING INFORMATION - TOTAL SITE

BUILDING INFORMATION - EXISTING

NUMBER OF LEVELS: 4 LEVELS

NUMBER OF GUEST UNITS: 142 GUEST UNITS (INCLUDING 7 ADA UNITS)

BUILDING SQUARE FOOTAGE:

1 ST LEVEL: 28,485 SF (EXT. FACE OF STUD)
2 ND LEVEL: 26,180 SF (EXT. FACE OF STUD)
3 RD LEVEL: 26,180 SF (EXT. FACE OF STUD)
4 TH LEVEL: 26,180 SF (EXT. FACE OF STUD)

TOTAL  BUILDING AREA: 107,025 SF 

BUILDING HEIGHTS:

TOP OF ROOF DECK: 45'-6"

TOP OF HIGHEST PARAPET: 59'-6"

EXISTING HOTEL PARKING: 152 SPACES

NORTH0' 10 20 40 80'ADDITION SITE PLAN

RESIDENCE INN AT OCOTILLO
CHANDLER, ARIZONA

EXHIBIT A4.1 - OVERALL RESIDENCE INN EXPANSION SITE PLAN 

D
W

UP

E

T

PERMEABLE ACCESS DRIVE

PRIVATE DRIVE

GATERETAINING WALL

NEW PROPERTY 
BOUNDARY

ADJACENT PROPERTY 
ZONING USE: PAD
PROPERTY TYPE: 

COMMERCIAL (HOTEL)

.

.

21' - 0"

RAMADA

EXISTING UNITS TO REMAIN

8

5

6

11

8

11

11

11

12

11

12

7

EASEMENT FOR POWER DISTRIBUTION

BUILDING SETBACK25' - 0"

BUILDING SETBACK

25' - 0"

PROPOSED 
MONUMENT SIGN

EXISTING BRIDGE

POOL POOL
EQUIP.

POOL ENCLOSURE

FIRE PIT

GRILL

FIRE PIT

WATER FEATURE

FH

FH

FH

TRANSFORMER 
REFER TO 

ME1.1

5' - 0" 9' - 0" 5' - 0" 9' - 0" 5' - 0" 11' - 0" 9' - 0"

HANDICAP SYMBOL PER 
CITY STANDARD C-612

HANDICAP SYMBOL PER 
CITY STANDARD C-612

HANDICAP SIGN PER CITY 
STANDARD C-611

WHEEL STOP PER CIVIL 
C2.2

14
' - 

10
"

14
' - 

0"

14
' - 

0"

14' - 0" 14' - 0"

LOT 1
4.279 ACRES
186,410 SF

26
' - 

0"
5' 

- 6
"

12
' - 

0"

24
' - 

0"

26' - 0"

SES BACKUP 
LANE

SITE LIGHTING PER ME1.1

BENCH

BENCH

BENCH

BENCH

FLAG

BR
EE

ZE
W

AY

BREEZEWAY

ADA RAMP PER 
CIVIL DRAWINGS

ADA RAMP PER 
CIVIL 

DRAWINGS

9

12

MECHANICAL

STORAGE

LOBBY

26' - 0"5' - 0"

202' - 11 3/16"

61' - 3 1/4"

12

23' - 4"

22' - 1 3/8"

PROPOSED NEW 
PROPERTY BOUNDARY

20' - 0"

20' - 0"
20' - 0"

30' FOOT HOTEL 
SETBACK

5 ' - 0"

5' SETBACK

ORIGINAL PROPERTY 
BOUNDARY

156.0°
102.0°

12

HOTEL
28,485 SF

30' - 0"

5' - 0"

12' - 9"

8

2

ORIGINAL PROPERTY 
BOUNDARY

5' - 0"

36' - 9"

AV
ER

AG
E 

SE
TB

AC
K 

FR
OM

 

PR
OP

ER
TY

 L
IN

E 

24
'-9

"
26

' -
 0

"

9' 
- 0

"
9' 

- 0
"

19' - 0"

9' 
- 0

"

19' - 0"

25' - 0"

9' 
- 0

"
9' 

- 0
"

19' - 0"

ROOM TYPE

STUDIO

STUDIO CONNECTOR

1ST LEVEL 2ND LEVEL 3RD LEVEL 4TH LEVEL

TOTAL

2

3

5

14

2

6

15

6 6

TOTAL

8

12

23

5915 15

ROOM TYPE MATRIX - ADDITION

2 2

ONE BEDROOM 4 4 4 4 16

DOUBLE QUEEN STUDIO

3 3 3

BUILDING INFORMATION - ADDITION

NUMBER OF LEVELS: 4 LEVELS

NUMBER OF GUESTROOMS: 59 GUESTROOMS

BUILDING SQUARE FOOTAGE:

1 ST LEVEL: 10,146 SF (EXT. FACE OF STUD)
2 ND LEVEL: 10,203 SF (EXT. FACE OF STUD)
3 RD LEVEL: 10,203 SF (EXT. FACE OF STUD)
4 TH LEVEL: 10,203 SF (EXT. FACE OF STUD)

TOTAL  BUILDING AREA: 40,755 SF 

BUILDING HEIGHTS:

TOP OF ROOF DECK: 45'-6"

TOP OF HIGHEST PARAPET: 60'-2"

NEW HOTEL PARKING: 32 SPACES

NEW HOTEL GUESTROOMS: 59 GUESTROOMS
EXISTING HOTEL GUESTROOMS: 142 GUESTROOMS
TOTAL HOTEL GUESTROOMS: 201 GUESTROOMS

NEW HOTEL PARKING: 32 SPACES
EXISTING HOTEL PARKING: 152 SPACES
HOTEL TOTAL PARKING: 186 SPACES

PARKING REQUIREMENTS:

HOTEL: ONE SPACE PER ROOM
REQUIRED: 201
PROVIDED: 186

** ORDINANCE REQUIRES ONCE SPACE PER 100 SF OF BANQUET, RESTAURANT OR MEETING 
NOT INTENDED SOLELY FOR GUEST OR EMPLOYEE USE. NO FUNCTIONS WITHIN HOTEL ARE 
INTENDED FOR NON-GUEST USE **

LOT COVERAGE PERCENTAGES:

NEW TOTAL SITE AREA: 213,495 S.F. (100% TOTAL SITE)
BUILDING: 38,631 S.F. (18.1% TOTAL SITE)
LANDSCAPE: 89,402 S.F. (41.9% TOTAL SITE)
PARKING: 85,462 S.F. (40% TOTAL SITE)
LANDSCAPE IN PARKING: 13,406 S.F. (15.7% PARKING AREA)

BUILDING INFORMATION - TOTAL SITE

BUILDING INFORMATION - EXISTING

NUMBER OF LEVELS: 4 LEVELS

NUMBER OF GUEST UNITS: 142 GUEST UNITS (INCLUDING 7 ADA UNITS)

BUILDING SQUARE FOOTAGE:

1 ST LEVEL: 28,485 SF (EXT. FACE OF STUD)
2 ND LEVEL: 26,180 SF (EXT. FACE OF STUD)
3 RD LEVEL: 26,180 SF (EXT. FACE OF STUD)
4 TH LEVEL: 26,180 SF (EXT. FACE OF STUD)

TOTAL  BUILDING AREA: 107,025 SF 

BUILDING HEIGHTS:

TOP OF ROOF DECK: 45'-6"

TOP OF HIGHEST PARAPET: 59'-6"

EXISTING HOTEL PARKING: 152 SPACES

NORTH0' 10 20 40 80'ADDITION SITE PLAN

RESIDENCE INN AT OCOTILLO
CHANDLER, ARIZONA



EXHIBIT A5 - RESIDENCE INN LANDSCAPE PLAN



EXHIBIT A6 - RESIDENCE INN AERIAL PERSPECTIVE



EXHIBIT A7 - RESIDENCE INN EXTERIOR COLOR ELEVATIONS



EXHIBIT A7 - RESIDENCE INN EXTERIOR COLOR ELEVATIONSEXHIBIT A7 - RESIDENCE INN EXTERIOR COLOR ELEVATIONS



EXHIBIT A8 - RESIDENCE INN EXTERIOR B&W ELEVATIONS



EXHIBIT A8 - RESIDENCE INN EXTERIOR B&W ELEVATIONS



Residence Inn at Ocotillo - Chandler, AZ

Field Stucco
Western 1-Kote
Dryvit #310 China White (S1)

Concrete Roof Tile
Eagle Roofing Products
3125 Terracotta (R1)

Canvas Awning
Sunbrella Marine Grade
Cherry Red (A1)

Decorative Metal Railings
Hooks and Lattice
Glossy Black (R2)

Ceramic Tile Accent
Dal-Tile
Royal Blue (T1)

EXHIBIT A9 - RESIDENCE INN EXTERIOR MATERIALS



EXHIBIT A10 - DIVIDING WALL BETWEEN VALERIO & RESIDENCE INN

6’ HIGH CMU WALL WITH STUCCO FINISH BOTH SIDES PAINTED WHITE



EXHIBIT A11 - RESIDENCE INN FLOOR PLANS - BUILDING ADDITION 



EXHIBIT A11 - RESIDENCE INN FLOOR PLANS - BUILDING ADDITION 



EXHIBIT A12 - RESIDENCE INN G&D PLAN

D

D

GD1

179001

...

..

.. ... .. . ..08 08 20

1

R
ES

ID
EN

C
E 

IN
N

 A
T 

O
C

O
TI

LL
O

CONSTRUCTION NOTES

STORM DRAIN CONSTRUCTION NOTES

DRAINAGE STATEMENT



ITEM  10 

City Council Memorandum      Development Services  Memo No. 21-06
       

Date: February 8, 2021
To: Mayor  and Council
Thru: Marsha Reed, City Manager

Joshua H. Wright, Assistant City Manager
Derek D. Horn, Development Services Director 

From: Zachary Werdean, Associate Planner
Subject: PLH20-0049 1st Pet Veterinary Centers
Request: Amend the Planned Area Development (PAD) zoning by adding veterinary clinic as a permitted use

to the Planned Commercial Office (PCO) uses currently allowed
Location: 1257 W. Warner Road (West of the southwest corner of Alma School and Warner Roads)
Applicant: BDA Architecture, LLC

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council adopt Ordinance No. 4959 approving PLH20-0049 1st Pet Veterinary Centers,
Rezoning from Planned Area Development (PAD) to Planned Area Development Amended, adding
veterinary clinic and like uses, located at 1257 W. Warner Road (West of the Southwest corner of Alma
School and Warner Roads), subject to the conditions as recommended by the Planning and Zoning
Commission.

Background Data:
Site was rezoned from Neighborhood Commercial (C-1) to Planned Commercial Office (PCO) in
1980.
Site was rezoned again from Planned Commercial Office (PCO) to Planned Area Development
(PAD) for PCO uses along with Preliminary Development Plan (PDP) for signage in 2016 to allow
more flexibility with signage.
The applicant currently operates a veterinary clinic on the adjacent parcel and seeks to expand to
the subject site.

Ordinance introduced and tentatively adopted on January 28, 2021.

Surrounding Land Use Data:

North Warner Rd., Single-family
Residential - College Park South Single-family residential -

Comanche Court

East Veterinary Clinic (1st Pet
Veterinary Centers) West Single-family residential - Brooks

Crossing

General Plan and Area Plan Designations:
  Existing Proposed



General Plan Neighborhoods Neighborhoods

Proposed Development
Unit and Lot Size  Lot size: 1.23 acres

 Building A (existing): 5,349.5 Square feet
 Building B (existing): 5,359.5 Square feet

Parking Required 72
Parking Provided 75

Review and Recommendation
In 1980, The Warner Professional Center (subject site) was originally envisioned as a 6-acre office
center. The site did not fully develop, leaving only the 1.23 acres it occupies today. In 1994, the
adjacent 1.3 acre property to the east that was originally envisioned as an extension to the office center
was rezoned from PCO to PAD for an Animal Hospital. Due to no construction after the approval, the
property reverted back to PCO in 1995. The applicant returned in 1999 to rezone the adjacent 1.3 acre
property to PAD for an Animal Hospital and  subsequently developed a 7,500 square foot building. The
remainder of the undeveloped office center to the south was rezoned for 12 single family residential
lots in June of 1997, now known as Comanche Court neighborhood.
 
Today, 1st Pet Veterinary Centers, the adjacent business on the 1.3 acre property with the 7,500
square foot animal hospital, is looking to expand its veterinary clinic. The subject property is currently
zoned PAD for PCO uses, which does not allow a veterinary clinic by right. Staff finds a veterinary clinic
to be compatible with the PCO uses and the veterinary clinic it is adjacent to. The site meets the
parking standards for a veterinary clinic. Although the veterinary clinic currently only plans on using
building “A”, the full site would be able to support a veterinary clinic if it chooses to use building “B” in
the future. The site is able to do so by providing 75 parking spots while both buildings together parked
at 150 square feet per parking space require only 72 parking spaces. For this reason, staff
supports expanding the allowed uses to include veterinary clinics as well as medical and dental offices
and similar uses that require the same amount of parking.  All equipment, storage of animals and
services will be required to be wholly contained within the building. Any outdoor animal uses will require
an additional use permit approval from City Council.
 
Planning staff finds the proposal to be consistent with the goals of the General Plan, and Planning and
Zoning Commission recommends approval subject to conditions.

Public / Neighborhood Notification
This request was noticed in accordance with the requirements of the Chandler Land Use and
Zoning Code.
Due to COVID-19, the applicant hosted the required neighborhood meeting online as a
video/phone conference on November 23, 2020 at 6:00pm.
There were two participants at the neighborhood meeting. Both participants who live adjacent to
the site indicated concerns regarding traffic noise, security lights being visible from the house,
and the landscaping that was no longer there which led to the noise being more noticeable. In
response, the veterinary clinic is looking into a solution for the light issue and landscaping.
Another concern was parking on Comanche Drive. The clinic is hopeful that expanding the
current veterinary facility general practice function to the new proposed location will help alleviate
parking on Comanche Drive. The final concern was the location of the smoking area being near
the adjoining wall of the properties and residents asked if it could be moved. Staff added
conditions 2 - 5 to ensure missing landscaping is installed, exterior light sources are not visible,
and the smoking area is moved away from residential properties.  The applicant is in agreement
with all of the conditions. 



At this time, staff has not received any further questions or complaints regarding the request.

Planning and Zoning Commission Vote Report
Planning and Zoning Commission meeting January 6, 2021.
Motion to Approve.

In Favor: 6  Opposed: 0  Absent: 1 (Heumann)

Recommended Conditions of Approval
Planning staff finds the request is in compliance with the General Plan and the Planning & Zoning
Commission recommends approval of Rezoning from PAD to PAD Amended to allow PCO and
Veterinary Clinic uses, subject to the following conditions: 

The following uses shall be permitted:  uses permitted in the Planned Commercial Office District,
Veterinary Clinic, medical offices, dental offices and like uses. 

1.

Landscaping shall be in compliance with current Commercial Design Standards.2.
The landscaping in all open-spaces shall be maintained by the property owner or property
owners' association, and shall be maintained at a level consistent with or better than at the time of
planting.

3.

All exterior light sources shall be averted away from adjacent residential properties.4.
The designated outdoor smoking area shall be setback a minimum of fifty (50) feet from adjacent
residential properties.

5.

Compliance with original conditions adopted by the City Council as Ordinance No. 4723 in case
DVR16-0021, except as modified by condition herein.

6.

 

Attachments
Ordinance 4959 with Exhibit A 
Vicinity Maps 
Narrative 
Site Plan 
Ordinance No. 4723 



 
  

ORDINANCE NO.  4959 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF CHANDLER, ARIZONA, AMENDING 
THE ZONING CODE AND MAP ATTACHED THERETO, BY REZONING A 
PARCEL FROM PLANNED AREA DEVELOPMENT (PAD) FOR PLANNED 
COMMERCIAL OFFICE (PCO) TO PLANNED AREA DEVELOPMENT 
(PAD) AMENDED IN CASE PLH20-0049 (1ST PET VETERINARY 
CENTERS) LOCATED WEST OF THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF ALMA 
SCHOOL AND WARNER ROADS, WITHIN THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF 
THE CITY OF CHANDLER, ARIZONA; PROVIDING FOR THE REPEAL OF 
CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; AND PROVIDING FOR PENALTIES. 

 
WHEREAS, an application for rezoning certain property within the corporate limits of Chandler, 
Arizona, has been filed in accordance with Article XXVI of the Chandler Zoning Code; and 
 
WHEREAS, the application has been published in a local newspaper with general circulation in 
the City of Chandler, giving fifteen (15) days’ notice of time, place, and date of public hearing; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, a notice of such hearing was posted on the property at least seven (7) days prior to 
the public hearing; and 
 
WHEREAS, a public hearing was held by the Planning and Zoning Commission as required by 
the Zoning Code. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona, 
as follows: 
 
Section 1. Legal Description of Property:  
   

EXHIBIT ‘A’ 
 
Said parcel is hereby rezoned from Planned Area Development (PAD) to 
Planned Area Development (PAD) Amended, subject to the following 
conditions: 

 
1. The following uses shall be permitted:  uses permitted in the Planned Commercial 

Office District, veterinary clinic, medical offices, dental offices, and like uses. 
 

2. Landscaping shall be in compliance with current Commercial Design Standards. 
 

3. The landscaping in all open-spaces shall be maintained by the property owner or 
property owners' association, and shall be maintained at a level consistent with or 
better than at the time of planting.   

 



Ordinance No. 4959 
Page 2 of 3 

 
4. All exterior light sources shall be averted away from adjacent residential 

properties. 
 

5. The designated outdoor smoking area shall be setback a minimum of fifty (50) 
feet from adjacent residential properties. 
 

6. Compliance with original conditions adopted by the City Council as Ordinance 
No. 4723 in case DVR16-0021, except as modified by condition herein. 

 
 
Section 2. The Planning Division of the City of Chandler is hereby directed to enter such 

changes and amendments as may be necessary upon the Zoning Map of said 
Zoning Code in compliance with this Ordinance.  

 
Section 3. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this 

Ordinance, or any parts hereof, are hereby repealed. 
 
Section 4. In any case, where any building, structure, or land is used in violation of this 

Ordinance, the Planning Division of the City of Chandler may institute an 
injunction or any other appropriate action in proceeding to prevent the use of such 
building, structure, or land.  

 
Section 5. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion of this Ordinance is 

for any reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional by the decision of any court 
of competent jurisdiction, then this entire ordinance is invalid and shall have no 
force or effect. 

 
Section 6. A violation of this Ordinance shall be a Class 1 misdemeanor subject to the 

enforcement and penalty provisions set forth in Section 1-8.3 of the Chandler City 
Code.  Each day a violation continues, or the failure to perform any act or duty 
required by this Ordinance or the Zoning Code, shall constitute a separate offense. 

 
 
INTRODUCED AND TENTATIVELY APPROVED by the City Council of the City of 
Chandler, Arizona, this 28th day of January, 2021. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________  _______________________________ 
CITY CLERK      MAYOR 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance No. 4959 
Page 3 of 3 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona, this 11th day 
of February, 2021. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________  _______________________________ 
CITY CLERK      MAYOR 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CERTIFICATION 
 
I HEREBY CERTIFY that the above and foregoing Ordinance No. 4959 was duly passed and 
adopted by the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona, at a regular meeting held on the 
____ day of _____________, 2020, and that a quorum was present thereat. 
 
      __________________________ 
       CITY CLERK 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
      
CITY ATTORNEY 
 
Published: 
 
 





W WARNER RD

N A
LM

A S
CH

OO
L R

D

W STOTTLER DR

N 
CE

NT
RA

L D
R

N 
CO

MA
NC

HE
 D

R

W COLT RD

N A
RR

OWHE
AD

 DR

W TEMPLE ST

W LOS ARBOLES PL

W HIGHLAND ST

W ESTRELLA DR

N APACHE DR

W EL MONTE PL

W BROOKS ST

W MARIPOSA ST

N 
VE

RA
NO

 W
Y

W BROOKS CT

N VERANO CT

W ESTRELLA DR

N COMANCHE DR

W ESTRELLA DR

N V
ER

AN
O 

WY

City of Chandler Planning Division

Al
ma

 S
ch

oo
l R

d.

Project Details
1257 W. Warner Rd.
Request to amend PAD zoning
to allow PCO and veterinary uses

chandleraz.gov/planning
For more information visit:

https://gis.chandleraz.gov/planning

PLH20-0049 1st Pet Veterinary Services ´

^

Warner Rd.

C-1

C-2

MF-3
C-2

Project Site

SF-8.5
College Park PAD

PCO

C-2

SF-8.5

PAD

SF-8.5
Brooks Crossing

MF-2
College

Park
Woods

SF-18
PAD

Contintental
Terrace

PAD



W WARNER RD

N A
LM

A S
CH

OO
L R

D

W STOTTLER DR

N 
CE

NT
RA

L D
R

N 
CO

MA
NC

HE
 D

R

W COLT RD

N A
RR

OWHE
AD

 DR

W TEMPLE ST

W LOS ARBOLES PL

W HIGHLAND ST

W ESTRELLA DR

N APACHE DR

W EL MONTE PL

W BROOKS ST

W MARIPOSA ST

N 
VE

RA
NO

 W
Y

W BROOKS CT

N VERANO CT

W ESTRELLA DR

N COMANCHE DR

W ESTRELLA DR

N V
ER

AN
O 

WY

City of Chandler Planning Division

Al
ma

 S
ch

oo
l R

d.

Project Details
1257 W. Warner Rd.
Request to amend PAD zoning
to allow PCO and veterinary uses

chandleraz.gov/planning
For more information visit:

https://gis.chandleraz.gov/planning

PLH20-0049 1st Pet Veterinary Services ´

^

Warner Rd.

C-1

C-2

MF-3
C-2

Project Site

SF-8.5
College Park PAD

PCO

C-2

SF-8.5

PAD

SF-8.5
Brooks Crossing

MF-2
College

Park
Woods

SF-18
PAD

Contintental
Terrace

PAD



 

 

 

               

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

BDA Architecture, P.C. 

Building Design for 

Animals, LLC 

901 Lamberton Pl NE 

Albuquerque, NM 87107 

 

(505) 858-0180 

(505) 585-0111 Fax 

info@bdaarc.com 

 

September 17, 2020 

 

Development Services Department 
Planning Division 
215 E. Buffalo St.  
Chandler, AZ 85225 
 
Re: 1257 W. Warner Road Rezoning - Narrative 
 
To Whom it may concern, 
 
Our client is requesting a zoning change from PAD for PCO uses to PAD for PCO and 
Veterinary Clinic uses.  The property is 1.23 acres and contains 2 buildings connected by 
covered walkways.  The site is fully landscaped with a variety of trees and shrubs.  There 
are 75 parking spaces (24 covered) on the site Each building is 5,349.5 square feet for a 
total building area of 10,791 square feet. The current buildings materials consist of fluted 
concrete masonry block and stucco with a standing seam metal roof.  Both Building “A” 
and Building “B” are occupied by office space.  Building “B” will remain office space and 
there will be no changes to the existing hours of operation or number of employees.  
Building “A” will change from an office space to a veterinary clinic.  The hours of operation 
for the new veterinary clinic will be Monday through Sunday from 8:00am until 9:00pm.  
The veterinary clinic will employ 45 people, although there will no more than 15 
employees working at one time.  There will be approximately 13 veterinary clients in the 
building at one time.  The requested zoning change will be for the entire site including 
both building A and building B.  Please don’t hesitate to contact me if any additional 
information is needed. 
 
Sincerely,  
 
 
 
Colin Campbell 
Project Manager 
 
 



N89-15-39E
170.00

N8N83-34-41W78.61

N
00

-4
4-

21
W

20
6.

20

N89-15-39E
238.00

N
00

-4
4-

21
W

22
6.

00

BUILDING ADDRESS:
1257 W. WARNER RD. BUILDING A
CHANDLER, AS, 85224

BUILDING INFORMATION:

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:
LOT 1, COMANCHE COURT, ACCORDING TO BOOK 483
OF MAPS, PAGE 17, RECORDS OF MARICOPA COUNTY, AZ

APN #
302-97-736

CURRENT ZONING:
PAD FOR PCO USES.

A1 ARCHITECTURAL SITE PLAN


PROPERTY LINE

EXISTING
BUILDING

EXISTING
BUILDING

EXISTING
MONUMENT
SIGN EXISTING

PLANTER

PROPERTY LINE

EXISTING
PARTIAL HEIGHT
WALL

EXISTING
ASPHALT
PARKING

EXISTING
ASPHALT
PARKING

EXISTING
ASPHALT
PARKING

EXISTING
ASPHALT
PARKING

EXISTING
LIGHT POLE

EXISTING
LIGHT POLE

EXISTING
DUMPSTER ENCLOSURE

EXISTING
DUMPSTER ENCLOSURE

EXISTING
HANDICAP PARKING

EXISTING
MECHANICAL

EXISTING
SIDEWALK

EXISTING
LANDSCAPE
AREA

EXISTING
LANDSCAPE
AREA

EXISTING
SIDEWALK

EXISTING
SIDEWALK

EXISTING
COVERED
SIDEWALK

EXISTING
COVERED
SIDEWALK

EXISTING
11 PARKING
STALLS

EXISTING
10 PARKING
STALLS

EXISTING
14 PARKING
STALLS

EX
IS

TI
N

G
12

 P
AR

KI
N

G
ST

AL
LS

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 C

O
VE

R
ED

17
 P

AR
KI

N
G

ST
AL

LS

EX
IS

TI
N

G
4 

PA
R

KI
N

G
ST

AL
LS

BUILDING A
5349.5 SF

BUILDING B
5349.5 SF

W. WARNER RD

EXISTING
PARTIAL HEIGHT

WALL

8' PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 C

O
VE

R
ED

7 
PA

R
KI

N
G

ST
AL

LS

EXISTING
LANDSCAPE
AREA
























































































































































B
ui

ld
in

g 
D

es
ig

n 
fo

r
A

ni
m

al
s,

 L
LC

B
D

A
 A

rc
hi

te
ct

ur
e,

 P
.C

.

90
1 

La
m

be
rt

on
 P

l. 
N

E
Em

ai
l: 

 in
fo

@
bd

aa
rc

.c
om

A
lb

uq
ue

rq
ue

, N
M

  8
71

07
Fa

x:
   

(5
05

) 8
58

-0
11

1
Ph

on
e:

 (5
05

) 8
58

-0
18

0

1S
T 

PE
T 

VE
TE

R
IN

A
R

Y 
C

EN
TE

R





























































A
R

C
H

IT
EC

TU
R

A
L 

SI
TE

 P
LA

N



AS101


























NORTH







ITEM  11 

City Council Memorandum      Management Services  Memo No. 21-039
       

Date: February 8, 2021
To: Mayor  and Council
Thru: Marsha Reed, City Manager

Dawn Lang, Management Services Director
From: Danielle Wells, Revenue and Tax Manager
Subject: New License Series 10, Beer and Wine Store Liquor License application for Kevin Arnold Kramber,

Agent, Tawa Inc., dba 99 Ranch Market #53

Proposed Motion:
Move for recommendation to the State Department of Liquor Licenses and Control for approval of the
State Liquor Job No. 130676, a Series 10, Beer and Wine Store, for Kevin Arnold Kramber, Agent,
Tawa Inc., dba 99 Ranch Market #53, located at 1920 W. Chandler Boulevard, and approval of the City
of Chandler, Series 10, Beer and Wine Store Liquor License No. 300317 L10

Discussion:
This application for a liquor license was posted for hearing on February 11, 2021.

The Police Department reports no objections to the issuance of this license, and no written protests
pursuant to A.R.S. 4-201(B) have been received. With a Series 10, Beer and Wine Store Liquor
License, the business may sell beer and wine only for off-premise consumption.

Attachments
A-Map 
B-Floor Plan 







 



ITEM  12 

City Council Memorandum      Public Works & Utilities  Memo No. CP21-056
       

Date: February 8, 2021
To: Mayor  and Council
Thru: Marsha Reed, City Manager

Joshua H. Wright, Assistant City Manager
John Knudson, Public Works and Utilities Director
Andrew Goh, Capital Projects Manager

From: Gina Ishida-Raybourn, Utilities Engineering Manager 
Subject: Professional Services Agreement No. WW1901.202, with Wilson Engineers, LLC, for the Airport Water

Reclamation Facility Membrane Pre-Design Services, in an Amount Not to Exceed $198,560

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council award Professional Services Agreement No. WW1901.202 to Wilson Engineers,
LLC, for the Airport Water Reclamation Facility Membrane Pre-Design Services, in an amount not to
exceed $198,560.

Background/Discussion:
The City receives and treats wastewater from over 260,000 residents. Wastewater is treated to produce
A+ quality reclaimed water, which is delivered through the City’s reclaimed water distribution system for
several beneficial uses including irrigation of golf courses, parks, and neighborhood common areas,
industrial cooling water supply and recharge of the aquifer for gaining groundwater storage credits.  As
demand for reclaimed water increases, staff has been considering alternatives to supplement the
reclaimed water supply. A feasibility study was recently completed to evaluate a concept to utilize the
Salt River Project (SRP) canal adjacent to the Airport Water Reclamation Facility (AWRF), located at
905 E. Queen Creek Road, to deliver a small volume of Chandler's Salt River and Colorado River water
supplies to a new treatment facility located at the AWRF site to supplement current reclaimed water
supplies. This added supply will meet growing demands, allow for annual storage and recovery of SRP
water, increase underground recharge, and enhance the wildlife habitats at Veterans Oasis Park. Using
advanced membrane treatment technology, this new process could treat up to 7 million gallons per day.
The system would be designed and constructed at the AWRF and utilize the existing reclaimed water
infrastructure for distribution.

The project scope of work consists of evaluating water quality parameters and permitting assistance for
the design of the advanced membrane treatment system to be used as part of this process. The
contract completion time is 210 calendar days following Notice to Proceed. Additional contracts
associated with this project for the remainder of the design, construction, and construction
management will be brought forward at future City Council meetings.

Evaluation:
The selection process was conducted in accordance with City policy and procedure and State law. Staff



The selection process was conducted in accordance with City policy and procedure and State law. Staff
recommends approval of this agreement with Wilson Engineers, LLC, based on qualifications, relevant
firm experience, team experience, project understanding, and project approach.

Fiscal Impact
Account No. Fund Name Program Name Dollar

Amount
CIP Funded
Y/N

610.3910.6817.6WW189 Reclaimed Water
Reserve Fund

Effluent Reuse Storage
& Recovery W

$198,560.00 Y

Attachments
Location Map 
Agreement 



ELLIOT RD

WARNER RD

RAY RD

CHANDLER BL

PECOS RD

GERMANN RD

QUEEN CREEK RD

OCOTILLO RD

CHANDLER HEIGHTS RD

RIGGS RD

HUNT HWVAL VISTA DR

LINDSAY RD

GILBERT RD

COOPER RD

MCQUEEN RD

ARIZONA AV

ALMA SCHOOL RD

DOBSON RD

PRICE RD

MCCLINTOCK DR

RURAL RD

KYRENE RD

56TH ST

AIRPORT WATER RECLAMATION
FACILITY MEMBRANE

PROJECT NO. WW1901.202

°
NTS

QUEEN CREEK RD

MC
QU

EE
N R

D

APPLEBY RD

JADE DR

AIR
PO

RT
 BL

JES
SE

 ST

SE
NA

TE
 PL

SP
RIN

GS
 DR

APPLEBY RD

SP
RIN

GS
 DR

PROJECT SITE

MEMO NO. CP21-056

F:\ENGINEER\GENSERV\_ArcMap_Shared\Map Requests\Capital Projects\CP21-056 OCOTILLO WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY MEMBRANE\CP21-056.mxd 11/13/2020 MARICELAH



c.� CHANDLER
V/j\•ar1zona 

Community of Innovation 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Design Services 

AIRPORT WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY MEMBRANE PRE-DESIGN 

Project No. WW1901.202 

Council Date: February 11, 2021 Item No. :

THIS AGREEMENT ("Agreement") is made and entered into on the __ day of _____ _J 

2020 ("Effective Date"), by and between City of Chandler, an Arizona municipal corporation, 

("City") , and Wilson Engineers, LLC, an Arizona limited liability company, ("Consultant") (City 

and Consultant may individually be referred to as 11Party" and collectively referred to as 
11

Parties"). 

RECITALS 
A. City proposes to engage Consultant to provide Select Agreement Type for AIRPORT

WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY MEMBRANE PRE-DESIGN project as more fully described in

Exhibit "A", which is attached to and made a part of this Agreement by this reference.

B. Consultant is ready, willing, and able to provide the services described in Exhibit "A" for

the compensation and fees set forth and as described in Exhibit "B", which is attached to
and made a part of this Agreement by this reference.

C. City desires to contract with Consultant to provide these services under the terms and

conditions set forth in this Agreement.

AGREEMENT 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual promises contained in this 

Agreement, City and Consultant agree as follows: 

SECTION !--CONSULTANT'S SERVICES 

Consultant must perform the services described in Exhibit "A" to City's satisfaction within 

the terms and conditions of this Agreement and within the care and skill that a person who 

provides similar services in Chandler, Arizona exercises under similar conditions. All work or 

services furnished by Consultant under this Agreement must be performed in a skilled and 

workmanlike manner. All fixtures, furnishings, and equipment furnished by Consultant as 

part of the work or services under this Agreement must be new, or the latest model, and of 

the most suitable grade and quality for the intended purpose of the work or service. 

City of Chandler Professional Services Agreement 

Public Works & Utilities Department, Capital Projects Division 

Project Name: AIRPORT WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY MEMBRANE PRE-DESIGN 

Project No.: WW1901.202 

Rev. 10/16/2020 

Page 1 



SECTION 11--PERIOD OF SERVICE 

Consultant must perform the services described in Exhibit "A" for the term of 

this Agreement. Unless amended in writing by the Parties, the Agreement term 

expires 210 calendar days after the Notice to Proceed (NTP) Date. 

SECTION 111--PAYMENT OF COMPENSATION AND FEES 

Unless amended in writing by the Parties, Consultant's compensation and fees as more fully 

described in Exhibit "B" for performance of the services approved and accepted by City 

under this Agreement must not exceed $198,560 for the full term of the Agreement. 

Consultant may not increase any compensation or fees under this Agreement without the 

City's prior written consent. Consultant must submit monthly requests for payment of 

services approved and accepted during the previous billing period and must include, as 

applicable, detailed invoices and receipts, a narrative description of the tasks accomplished 

during the billing period, a list of any deliverables submitted, and any subconsultant's or 

supplier's actual requests for payment plus similar narrative and listing of their work. 

Consultant must submit an Application and Certification for Payment Sheet with the 

monthly request for payment to: Capita1Projects.Payables@chandleraz.gov. Payment for 

those services negotiated as a lump sum will be made in accordance with the percentage of 

the work completed during the preceding billing period. Services negotiated as a not-to­

exceed fee will be paid in accordance with the work effort expended on the service during 

the preceding month. All requests for payment must be submitted to City for review and 

approval. City will make payment for approved and accepted services within 30 calendar 

days of City's receipt of the request for payment. Consultant bears all responsibility and 

liability for any and all tax obligations that result from Consultant's performance under this 

Agreement. 

SECTION IV--CITY'S OBLIGATIONS 

As part of Consultant's services under this Agreement, City will provide furnished items, 

services, or obligations as detailed in Exhibit "D".

SECTION V--GENERAL CONDITIONS 

5.1 Notices. Unless otherwise provided herein, demands under this Agreement must be in 

writing and will be deemed to have been duly given and received either (a) on the date of 

service if personally served on the party to whom notice is to be given, or (b) on the third 

day after the date of the postmark of deposit by first class United States mail, registered or 

certified, postage prepaid and properly addressed as follows: 

To City: City of Chandler 

Public Works & Utilities Department 

Attn: City Engineer 

P.O. Box 4008, Mail Stop 407 

Chandler, AZ 85244-4008 

City of Chandler Professional Services Agreement 

Public Works & Utilities Department, Capital Projects Division 

Project Name: AIRPORT WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY MEMBRANE PRE-DESIGN 

Project No.: WW1901.202 

Rev. 10/16/2020 

Page 2 



With a Copy to: Project Manager 

City of Chandler 

Public Works & Utilities Department 

P.O. Box 4008, Mail Stop 407 

Chandler AZ 85244-4008 

To Consultant: Mr. Uday Gandhe 

Wilson Engineers, LLC 

1620 W. Fountainhead Pkwy., Ste. 501 

Tempe, AZ 85282 

5.2 Records/Audit. Records of Consultant's direct personnel payroll, reimbursable expenses 

pertaining to this Agreement and records of accounts between City and Consultant must be 

kept on the basis of generally accepted accounting principles and must be made available 

to City and its auditors for up to three years following City's final acceptance of the services 

under this Agreement. City, its authorized representative, or any federal agency, reserves 

the right to audit Consultant's records to verify the accuracy and appropriateness of all cost 

and pricing data, including data used to negotiate this Agreement and any amendments. 

City reserves the right to decrease the total amount of Agreement price or payments made 

under this Agreement or request reimbursement from Consultant following final contract 

payment on this Agreement if, upon audit of Consultant's records, the audit discloses 

Consultant has provided false, misleading, or inaccurate cost and pricing data. Consultant 

will include a similar provision in all of its contracts with subconsultants who provide 

services under the Agreement to ensure that City, its authorized representative, or the 

appropriate federal agency, has access to the subconsultants' records to verify the accuracy 

of all cost and pricing data. City reserves the right to decrease Contract price or payments 

made on this Agreement or request reimbursement from Consultant following final 

payment on this Agreement if the above provision is not included in subconsultant 

agreements, and one or more subconsultants refuse to allow City to audit their records to 

verify the accuracy and appropriateness of all cost and pricing data. If, following an audit of 

this Agreement, the audit discloses Consultant has provided false, misleading, or inaccurate 

cost and pricing data, and the cost discrepancies exceed 1 % of the total Agreement billings, 

Consultant will be liable for reimbursement of the reasonable, actual cost of the audit. 

5.3 Alteration in Character of Work. Whenever an alteration in the character of work results 

in a ,substantial change in this Agreement, thereby materially increasing or decreasing the 

scope of services, cost of performance, or Project schedule, the work will be performed as 

directed by City. However, before any modified work is started, a written amendment must 

be approved and executed by City and Consultant. Such amendment must not be effective 

until approved by City. Additions to, modifications, or deletions from this Agreement as 

provided herein may be made, and the compensation to be paid to Consultant may 

accordingly be adjusted by mutual agreement of the Parties. It is distinctly understood and 

agreed that no claim for extra services or materials furnished by Consultant will be allowed 

by City except as provided herein, nor must Consultant do any work or furnish any 

materials not covered by this Agreement unless such work is first authorized in writing. Any 

such work or materials furnished by Consultant without prior written authorization will be 

at Consultant's own risk, cost, and expense, and Consultant hereby agrees that without 

City of Chandler Professional Services Agreement 

Public Works & Utilities Department, Capital Projects Division 

Project Name: AIRPORT WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY MEMBRANE PRE-DESIGN 

Project No.: WW1901.202 

Rev. 10/16/2020 

Page 3 



written authorization Consultant will make no claim for compensation for such work or 

materials furnished. 

5.4 Termination. City and Consultant hereby agree to the full performance of the covenants 

contained herein, except that City reserves the right, at its discretion and without cause, to 

terminate or abandon any service provided for in this Agreement, or abandon any portion 

of the Project for which services have been performed by Consultant. In the event City 

abandons or suspends the services, or any part of the services as provided in this 

Agreement, City will notify Consultant in writing and immediately after receiving such notice, 

Consultant must discontinue advancing the work specified under this Agreement. Upon 

such termination, abandonment, or suspension, Consultant must deliver to City all 

drawings, plans, specifications, special provisions, estimates and other work entirely or 

partially completed, together with all unused materials supplied by City. Consultant must 

appraise the work Consultant has completed and submit Consultant's appraisal to City for 

evaluation. City may inspect Consultant's work to appraise the work completed. Consultant 

will receive compensation in full for services performed to the date of such termination. The 

fee will be paid in accordance with Section Ill of this Agreement, and as mutually agreed 

upon by Consultant and City. If there is no mutual agreement on payment, the final 

determination will be made in accordance with the "Disputes" provision in this Agreement. 

However, in no event may the fee exceed the fee set forth in Section Ill of this Agreement 

nor as amended in accordance with Section "Alteration in Character of Work." City will make 

the final payment within 60 days after Consultant has delivered the last of the partially 

completed items and the Parties agree on the final fee. If City is found to have improperly 

terminated the Agreement for cause or default, the termination will be converted to a 

termination for convenience in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement. 

5.5 Indemnification. To the extent permitted by law, the Consultant ("lndemnitor") must 

indemnify, save and hold harmless City and its officers, officials, agents and employees 

("lndemnitee") from any and all claims, actions, liabilities, damages, losses or expenses 

(including court costs, attorneys' fees and costs of claim processing, investigation and 

litigation) ("Claims") caused or alleged to be caused, in whole or in part, by the wrongful, 

negligent or willful acts, or errors or omissions of Consultant or any of its owners, officers, 

directors, agents, employees, or subconsultants in connection with this Agreement. This 

indemnity includes any claim or amount arising out of or recovered under workers' 

compensation law or on account of the failure of Consultant to conform to any federal, 

state or local law, statute, ordinance, rule, regulation or court decree. Consultant must 

indemnify lndemnitee from and against any and all Claims, except those arising solely from 

lndemnitee's own negligent or willful acts or omissions. Consultant is responsible for 

primary loss investigation, defense and judgment costs where this indemnification applies. 

In consideration of the award of this Agreement, Consultant agrees to waive all rights of 

subrogation against lndemnitee for losses arising from or related to this Agreement. The 

obligations of Consultant under this provision survive the termination or expiration of this 

Agreement. 

5.6 Insurance Requirements. Consultant must procure insurance under the terms and 

conditions and for the amounts of coverage set forth in Exhibit "C" against claims that may 

arise from or relate to performance of the work under this Agreement by Consultant and its 

City of Chandler Professional Services Agreement 

Public Works & Utilities Department, Capital Projects Division 

Project Name: AIRPORT WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY MEMBRANE PRE-DESIGN 

Project No.: WW1901.202 

Rev. 10/16/2020 

Page4 



agents, representatives, employees, and subconsultants. Consultant and any subconsultant 

must maintain this insurance until all of their obligations have been discharged, including 

any warranty periods under this Agreement. These insurance requirements are minimum 

requirements for this Agreement and in no way limit the indemnity covenants contained in 

this Agreement. City in no way warrants that the minimum limits stated in Exhibit "C" are 

sufficient to protect Consultant from liabilities that might arise out of the performance of 

the work under this Agreement by Consultant, Consultant's agents, representatives, 

employees, or subconsultants. Consultant is free to purchase such additional insurance as 

may be determined necessary. 

5.7 Cooperation and Further Documentation. Consultant agrees to provide City such other 

duly executed documents as may be reasonably requested by City to implement the intent 

of this Agreement. 

5.8 Successors and Assigns. City and Consultant each bind itself, its partners, successors, 

assigns, and legal representatives to the other party to this Agreement and to the partners, 

successors, assigns, and legal representatives of such other party in respect to all covenants 

of this Agreement. Neither City nor Consultant may assign, sublet, or transfer its interest in 

this Agreement without the written consent of the other party. In no event may any 

contractual relation be created between any third party and City. 

5.9 Disputes. In any dispute arising out of an interpretation of this Agreement or the duties 

required not disposed of by agreement between Consultant and City, the final 

determination at the administrative level will be made by City Engineer. 

5.1 O Completeness and Accuracy of Consultant's Work. Consultant must be responsible for 

the completeness and accuracy of Consultant's services, data, and other work prepared or 

compiled under Consultant's obligation under this Agreement and must correct, at 

Consultant's expense, all willful or negligent errors, omissions, or acts that may be 

discovered. Correction of errors disclosed and determined to exist during any construction of 

the project on architectural or engineering drawings and specifications must be accomplished by 

Consultant. The cost of the design necessary to correct those errors attributable to Consultant 

and any damage incurred by City as a result of additional construction costs caused by such 

engineering or architectural errors will be chargeable to Consultant and will not be considered a 

cost of the Work. The fact that City has accepted or approved Consultant's work will in no 

way relieve Consultant of any of Consultant's responsibilities. 

5.11 Reporting. Written monthly reports, along with updated work schedules, will be made by 

Consultant in the format prescribed by City. These reports will be delivered to City per schedule. 

When requested by City, Consultant will attend Council meetings and provide finished 

documents including correspondence for Council action, supporting charts, graphs, drawings 

and colored slides of same. 

5.12 Withholding Payment. City reserves the right to withhold funds from Consultant's 

payments up to the amount equal to the claims City may have against Consultant until such 

time that a settlement on those claims has been reached. 

City of Chandler Professional Services Agreement 

Public Works & Utilities Department, Capital Projects Division 

Project Name: AIRPORT WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY MEMBRANE PRE-DESIGN 

Project No.: WW1901.202 

Rev. 10/16/2020 

Page 5 



5.13 City's Right of Cancellation. The Parties acknowledge that this Agreement is subject to 

cancellation by City under the provisions of Section 38-511, Arizona Revised Statutes (A.R.S.). 

5.14 Independent Consultant. For this Agreement Consultant constitutes an independent 

contractor. Any provisions in this Agreement that may appear to give City the right to direct 

Consultant as to the details of accomplishing the work or to exercise a measure of control 

over the work means that Consultant must follow the wishes of City as to the results of the 

work only. These results must comply with all applicable laws and ordinances. 

5.15 Project Staffing. Prior to the start of any work under this Agreement, Consultant must 

submit to City detailed resumes of key personnel that will be involved in performing 

services prescribed in the Agreement. City hereby acknowledges its acceptance of such 

personnel to perform services under this Agreement. At any time hereafter that Consultant 

desires to change key personnel while performing under the Agreement, Consultant must 

submit the qualifications of the new personnel to City for prior approval. Key personnel 

include, but are not limited to, principals-in-charge, project manager, and project 

Consultant. Consultant will maintain an adequate and competent staff of qualified persons, 

as may be determined by City, throughout the performance of this Agreement to ensure 

acceptable and timely completion of the Scope of Services. If City objects, with reasonable 

cause, to any of Consultant's staff, Consultant must take prompt corrective action 

acceptable to City and, if required, remove such personnel from the Project and replace 

with new personnel agreed to by City. 

5.16 Consultants or Subconsultants. Prior to beginning the work, Consultant must furnish 

City for approval the names of consultants or subconsultants to be used under this 

Agreement. Any subsequent changes are subject to City's written prior approval. 

5.17 Force Majeure. If either party is delayed or prevented from the performance of any act 

required under this Agreement by reason of acts of God or other cause beyond the control 

and without fault of the Party (financial inability excepted), performance of that act may be 

excused, but only for the period of the delay, if the Party provides written notice to the 

other Party within ten days of such act. The time for performance of the act may be 

extended for a period equivalent to the period of delay from the date written notice is 

received by the other Party. 

5.18 Compliance with Federal Laws. Consultant understands and acknowledges the 

applicability of the Americans with Disabilities Act, the Immigration Reform and Control Act 

of 1986 and the Drug Free Workplace Act of 1989 to it. Consultant agrees to comply with 

these laws in performing this Agreement and to permit City to verify such compliance. 

5.19 No Israel Boycott. By entering into this Agreement, Consultant certifies that Consultant 

is not currently engaged in, and agrees for the duration of the Agreement, not to engage in 

a boycott of Israel as defined by state statute. 

5.20 Legal Worker Requirements. A.R.S. § 41-4401 prohibits City from awarding a contract to 

any consultant who fails, or whose subconsultants fail, to comply with A.R.S. § 23-214(A). 

Therefore, Consultant agrees Consultant and each subconsultant it uses warrants their 

City of Chandler Professional Services Agreement 

Public Works & Utilities Department, Capital Projects Division 

Project Name: AIRPORT WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY MEMBRANE PRE-DESIGN 

Project No,: WW1901,202 

Rev. 10/16/2020 

Page 6 



compliance with all federal immigration laws and regulations that relate to their employees 

and their compliance with § 23-214, subsection A. A breach of this warranty will be deemed 

a material breach of the Agreement and may be subject to penalties up to and including 

termination of the Agreement. City retains the legal right to inspect the papers of any 

Consultant's or subconsultant's employee who provides services under this Agreement to 

ensure that Consultant and subconsultants comply with the warranty under this provision. 

5.21 Lawful Presence Requirement. A.R.S. §§ 1-501 and 1-502 prohibit City from awarding a 

contract to any natural person who cannot establish that such person is lawfully present in 

the United States. To establish lawful presence, a person must produce qualifying 

identification and sign a City-provided affidavit affirming that the identification provided is 

genuine. This requirement will be imposed at the time of contract award. This requirement 

does not apply to business organizations such as corporations, partnerships, or limited 

liability companies. 

5.22 Covenant Against Contingent Fees. Consultant warrants that no person has been 

employed or retained to solicit or secure this Agreement upon an agreement or 

understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee, and that no 

member of the Chandler City Council, or any City employee has any interest, financially, or 

otherwise, in Consultant's firm. For breach or violation of this warrant, City may annul this 

Agreement without liability or, at its discretion, to deduct from the Agreement price or 

consideration, the full amount of such commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent 

fee. 

5.23 Non-Waiver Provision. The failure of either Party to enforce any of the provisions of 

this Agreement or to require performance of the other Party of any of the provisions hereof 

must not be construed to be a waiver of such provisions, nor must it affect the validity of 

this Agreement or any part thereof, or the right of either Party to thereafter enforce each 

and every provision. 

5.24 Disclosure of Information Adverse to City's Interests. To evaluate and avoid potential 

conflicts of interest, Consultant must provide written notice to City, as set forth in this 

Section, of any work or services performed by Consultant for third parties that may involve 

or be associated with any real property or personal property owned or leased by City. Such 

notice must be given 7 business days prior to commencement of the services by Consultant 

for a third party, or 7 business days prior to an adverse action as defined below. Written 

notice and disclosure must be sent in accordance with Section 6.7 above. An adverse action 

under this Agreement includes, but is not limited to: (a) using data as defined in the 

Agreement acquired in connection with this Agreement to assist a third party in pursuing 

administrative or judicial action against City; or (b) testifying or providing evidence on behalf 

of any person in connection with an administrative or judicial action against City; or (c) using 

data to produce income for Consultant or its employees independently of performing the 

services under this Agreement, without the prior written consent of City. Consultant 

represents that except for those persons, entities, and projects identified to City, the 

services performed by Consultant under this Agreement are not expected to create an 

interest with any person, entity, or third party project that is or may be adverse to City's 

interests. Consultant's failure to provide a written notice and disclosure of the information 

City of Chandler Professional Services Agreement 

Public Works & Utilities Department, Capital Projects Division 

Project Name: AIRPORT WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY MEMBRANE PRE-DESIGN 

Project No.: WW1901.202 

Rev. 10/16/2020 

Page 7 



as set forth in this Section constitute a material breach of this Agreement. 

5.25 Data Confidentiality and Data Security. As used in the Agreement, "data" means all 

information, whether written or verbal, including plans, photographs, studies, 

investigations, audits, analyses, samples, reports, calculations, internal memos, meeting 

minutes, data field notes, work product, proposals, correspondence and any other similar 

documents or information prepared by, obtained by, or transmitted to Consultant or its 

subconsultants in the performance of this Agreement. The Parties agree that all data, 

regardless of form, including originals, images, and reproductions, prepared by, obtained 

by, or transmitted to Consultant or its subconsultants in connection with Consultant's or its 

subconsultant's performance of this Agreement is confidential and proprietary information 

belonging to City. Except as specifically provided in this Agreement, Consultant or its 

subconsultants must not divulge data to any third party without City's prior written consent. 

Consultant or its subconsultants must not use the data for any purposes except to perform 

the services required under this Agreement. These prohibitions do not apply to the 

following data provided to Consultant or its subconsultants have first given the required 

notice to City: (a) data which was known to Consultant or its subconsultants prior to its 

performance under this Consultant or its subconsultants by a third party, who to the best of 

Consultant's or its subconsultants' knowledge and belief, had the legal right to make such 

disclosure and Consultant or its subconsultants are not otherwise required to hold such 

data in confidence; or (c) data which is required to be disclosed by virtue of law, regulation, 

or court order, to which Consultant or its subconsultants are subject. In the event 

Consultant or its subconsultants are required or requested to disclose data to a third party, 

or any other information to which Consultant or its subconsultants became privy as a result 

of any other contract with City, Consultant must first notify City as set forth in this Section of 

the request or demand for the data. Consultant or its subconsultants must give City 

sufficient facts so that City can be given an opportunity to first give its consent or take such 

action that City may deem appropriate to protect such data or other information from 

disclosure. All data must continue to be subject to the confidentiality agreements of this 

Agreement. Consultant or its subconsultants assume all liability to maintain the 

confidentiality of the data in its possession and agrees to compensate City if any of the 

provisions of this Section are violated by Consultant, its employees, agents or 

subconsultants. Solely for the purposes of seeking injunctive relief, it is agreed that a breach 

of this Section must be deemed to cause irreparable harm that justifies injunctive relief in 

court. Consultant agrees that the requirements of this Section must be incorporated into all 

subagreements entered into by Consultant. A violation of this Section may result in 

immediate termination of this Agreement without notice. 

5.26 Personal Identifying Information-Data Security. Personal identifying information, 

financial account information, or restricted City information, whether electronic format or 

hard copy, must be secured and protected at all times by Consultant or its subconsultants. 

At a minimum, Consultant or its subconsultants must encrypt or password-protect 

electronic files. This includes data saved to laptop computers, computerized devices, or 

removable storage devices. When personal identifying information, financial account 

information, or restricted City information, regardless of its format, is no longer necessary, 

the information must be redacted or destroyed through appropriate and secure methods 

that ensure the information cannot be viewed, accessed, or reconstructed. In the event that 

City of Chandler Professional Services Agreement 

Public Works & Utilities Department, Capital Projects Division 

Project Name: AIRPORT WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY MEMBRANE PRE-DESIGN 

Project No.: WW1901.202 

Rev. 10/16/2020 

Page 8 



data collected or obtained by Consultant or its subconsultants in connection with this 

Agreement is believed to have been compromised, Consultant or its subconsultants must 

immediately notify City contact. Consultant agrees to reimburse City for any costs incurred 

by City to investigate potential breaches of this data and, where applicable, the cost of 

notifying individuals who may be impacted by the breach. Consultant agrees that the 

requirements of this Section must be incorporated into all subcontracts entered into by 

Consultant. It is further agreed that a violation of this Section must be deemed to cause 

irreparable harm that justifies injunctive relief in court. A violation of this Section may result 

in immediate termination of this Agreement without notice. The obligations of Consultant 

or its subconsultants under this Section must survive the termination of this Agreement. 

5.27 jurisdiction and Venue. This Agreement is made under, and must be construed in 

accordance with and governed by the laws of the State of Arizona without regard to the 

conflicts or choice of law provisions thereof. Any action to enforce any provision of this 

Agreement or to obtain any remedy with respect hereto must be brought in the courts 

located in Maricopa County, Arizona, and for this purpose, each Party hereby expressly and 

irrevocably consents to the jurisdiction and venue of such court. 

5.28 Survival. All warranties, representations, and indemnifications by Consultant must 

survive the completion or termination of this Agreement. 

5.29 Modification. Except as expressly provided herein to the contrary, no supplement, 

modification, or amendment of any term of this Agreement will be deemed binding or 

effective unless in writing and signed by the Parties. 

5.30 Severability. If any provision of this Agreement or the application to any person or 

circumstance may be invalid, illegal or unenforceable to any extent, the remainder of this 

Agreement and the application will not be affected and will be enforceable to the fullest 

extent permitted by law. 

5.31 Integration. This Agreement contains the full agreement of the Parties. Any prior or 

contemporaneous written or oral agreement between the Parties regarding the subject 

matter is merged and superseded. 

5.32 Time is of the Essence. Time of each of the terms, covenants, and conditions of this 

Agreement is hereby expressly made of the essence. 

5.33 Date of Performance. If the date of performance of any obligation or the last day of any 

time period provided for should fall on a Saturday, Sunday, or holiday for City, the 

obligation will be due and owing, and the time period will expire, on the first day after which 

is not a Saturday, Sunday or legal City holiday. Except as may otherwise be set forth in this 

Agreement, any performance provided for herein will be timely made if completed no later 

than 5:00 p.m. (Chandler time) on the day of performance. 

5.34 Third Party Beneficiary. Nothing under this Agreement will be construed to give any 

rights or benefits in the Agreement to anyone other than City and Consultant, and all duties 

and responsibilities undertaken pursuant to this Agreement will be for the sole and 

City of Chandler Professional Services Agreement 

Public Works & Utilities Department, Capital Projects Division 

Project Name: AIRPORT WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY MEMBRANE PRE-DESIGN 

Project No.: WW1901.202 

Rev. 10/16/2020 

Page 9 



exclusive benefit of City and Consultant and not for the benefit of any other party. 

5.35 Conflict in Language. All work performed must conform to all applicable City of 

Chandler codes, ordinances, and requirements as outlined in this Agreement. If there is a 

conflict in interpretation between provisions in this Agreement and those in Exhibit "A", the 

provisions in this Agreement prevail. 

5.36 Document/Information Release. Documents and materials released to Consultant, 

which are identified by City as sensitive and confidential, are City's property. The 

document/material must be issued by and returned to City upon completion of the services 

under this Agreement. Consultant secondary distribution, disclosure, copying, or 

duplication in any manner is prohibited without City's prior written approval. The 

document/material must be kept secure at all times. This directive applies to all City 

documents, whether in photographic, printed, or electronic data format. 

5.37 Exhibits. The following exhibits are made a part of this Agreement and are 

incorporated by reference: 

Exhibit A - Scope of Services / Schedule 

Exhibit B - Compensation and Fees 

Exhibit C - Insurance Requirements 

Exhibit D - Special Conditions 

Exhibit E - Federal Requirements (if applicable) 

5.38 Special Conditions. As part of the services Consultant provides under this Agreement, 

Consultant agrees to comply with and fully perform the special terms and conditions set 

forth in Exhibit "D", which is attached to and made a part of this Agreement. 

5.39 Non-Discrimination and Anti-Harassment Laws. Consultant must comply with all 

applicable City, state, and federal non-discrimination and anti-harassment laws, rules, and 

regulations. 

5.40 Licenses and Permits. Beginning with the Effective Date and for the full term of this 

Agreement, Consultant must maintain all applicable City, state, and federal licenses and 

permits required to fully perform Consultant's services under this Agreement. 

5.41 Warranties. Consultant must furnish a one-year warranty on all work and services 

performed under this Agreement. Consultant must furnish, or cause to be furnished, a two­

year warranty on all fixtures, furnishings, and equipment furnished by Consultant, 

subconsultants or suppliers under this Agreement. Any defects in design, workmanship, or 

materials that do not comply with this Agreement must be corrected by Consultant 

(including, but not limited to, all parts and labor) at Consultant's sole cost and expense. All 

written warranties and redlines for as-built conditions must be delivered to City on or 

before City's final acceptance of Consultant's services under this Agreement. 

5.42 Cooperative Purchasing Agreement (S.A.V.E. - Strategic Alliance for Volume 

Expenditures). In addition to City of Chandler and with the approval of Consultant, this 

City of Chandler Professional Services Agreement 

Public Works & Utilities Department, Capital Projects Division 

Project Name: AIRPORT WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY MEMBRANE PRE-DESIGN 

Project No.: WW1901.202 

Rev. 10/16/2020 

Page 10 



Agreement may be extended for use by other municipalities, school districts, and 

government agencies of the State. Any such usage by other entities must be in accordance 

with the ordinance, charter, or procurement rules and regulations of the respective political 

entity. 

5.43 Budget Approval into Next Fiscal Year. This Agreement will commence on the Effective 

Date and continue in full force and effect until it is terminated or expires in accordance with 

the provisions of this Agreement. The Parties recognize that the continuation of this 

Agreement after the close of the City's fiscal year, which ends on June 30 of each year, is 

subject to the City Council's approval of a budget that includes an appropriation for this 

item as an expenditure. The City does not represent that this budget item will be actually 

adopted. This determination is solely made by the City Council. 

SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW 

City of Chandler Professional Services Agreement 

Public Works & Utilities Department, Capital Projects Division 

Project Name: AIRPORT WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY MEMBRANE PRE-DESIGN 

Project No.: WW1901.202 

Rev. 10/16/2020 

Page 11 



This Agreement will be in full force and effect only when it has been approved and executed 

by the duly authorized City officials. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement as of the Effective Date. 

"CITY" 

CITY OF CHANDLER 

MAYOR 

Recommended By: 

Andrew Goh, P.E. 

Capital Projects Manager 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

City Attorney 

ATTEST: 

City Clerk Seal 

-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-•-"
"CONSULTANT" 

Wilson Engineers, LLC 

�--
Signature 

Title 

\)� . 1��@) (O)'/faJ" --e�1-1�. c.,m 
Email 

City of Chandler Professional Services Agreement 

Public Works & Utilities Department, Capital Projects Division 

Project Name: AIRPORT WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY MEMBRANE PRE-DESIGN 

Project No.: WW1901.202 

Rev. 10/16/2020 

Page 12 



EXHIBIT "A" 

SCOPE OF SERVICES/SCHEDULE 

City of Chandler Professional Services Agreement- Exhibit "A" 

Public Works & Utilities Department, Capital Projects Division 

Project Name: AIRPORT WATER RECLAMATION FAc;ILITY MEMBRANE PRE-DESIGN 

Project No.: WW1901.202 

Rev. 9/16/2020 

Page A-1 









EXHIBIT "B" 

COMPENSATION AND FEES 

City of Chandler Professional Services Agreement- Exhibit "B" 

Public Works & Utilities Department, Capital Projects Division 

Project Name: AIRPORT WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY MEMBRANE PRE-DESIGN 

Project No,: WW1901.202 

Rev. 9/16/2020 

Page B-1 







1. General.

EXHIBIT "C" 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

1.1 At the same time as execution of this Agreement, Consultant must furnish City a certificate 
of insurance on a standard insurance industry ACORD form. The ACORD form must be 
issued by an insurance company authorized to transact business in the State of Arizona 
possessing a current AM. Best, Inc. rating of A-7, or better and legally authorized to do 
business in the State of Arizona with policies and forms satisfactory to City. Provided, 
however, the AM. Best rating requirement will not be deemed to apply to required 
Workers' Compensation coverage. 

1.2 Consultant and any of its subconsultants must procure and maintain, until all of their 
obligations have been discharged, including any warranty periods under this Agreement 
are satisfied, the insurances set forth below. 

1.3 The insurance requirements set forth below are minimum requirements for this 
Agreement and in no way limit the indemnity covenants contained in this Agreement. 

1.4 City in no way warrants that the minimum insurance limits contained in this Agreement are 
sufficient to protect Consultant from liabilities that might arise out of the performance of 
the Agreement services under this Agreement by Consultant, its agents, representatives, 
employees, subconsultants, and Consultant is free to purchase any additional insurance as 
may be determined necessary. 

1.5 Failure to demand evidence of full compliance with the insurance requirements in this 
Agreement or failure to identify any insurance deficiency will not relieve Consultant from, 
nor will it be considered a waiver of its obligation to maintain the required insurance at all 
times during the performance of this Agreement. 

1.6 Use of subconsultants: If any work is subcontracted in any way, Consultant must execute a 
written contract with subconsultant containing the same Indemnification Clause and 
Insurance Requirements as City requires of Consultant in this Agreement. Consultant is 
responsible for executing the Agreement with the subconsultant and obtaining Certificates 
of Insurance and verifying the insurance requirements. 

2. Minimum Scope and Limits of Insurance. Consultant must provide coverage with limits of
liability not less than those stated below.

2.1 Professional Liability. If the Agreement is the subject of any professional services or work 
performed by Consultant, or if Consultant engages in any professional services or work 
adjunct or residual to performing the work under this Agreement, Consultant must 
maintain Professional Liability insurance covering errors and omissions arising out of the 
work or services performed by Consultant, or anyone employed by Consultant, or anyone 
whose acts, mistakes, errors and omissions Consultant is legally liable, with a liability limit 
of $1,000,000 each claim and $2,000,000 all claims. In the event the Professional Liability 

City of Chandler Professional Services Agreement- Exhibit "C" 

Public Works & Utilities Department, Capital Projects Division 

Project Name: AIRPORT WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY MEMBRANE PRE-DESIGN 

Project No.: WW1901.202 

Rev. 9/16/2020 

Page C-1 



insurance policy is written on a "claims made" basis, coverage must extend for 3 years past 

completion and acceptance of the work or services, and Consultant, or its selected Design 

Professional will submit Certificates of Insurance as evidence the required coverage is in 

effect. The Design Professional must annually submit Certificates of Insurance citing that 

the applicable coverage is in force and contains the required provisions for a 3 year period. 

2.2 Commercial General Liability-Occurrence Form. Consultant must maintain "occurrence" form 

Commercial General Liability insurance with a limit of not less than $2,000,000 for each 

occurrence, $4,000,000 aggregate. Said insurance must also include coverage for products 

and completed operations, independent contractors, personal injury and advertising injury. 

If any Excess insurance is utilized to fulfill the requirements of this paragraph, the Excess 

insurance must be "follow form" equal or broader in coverage scope than underlying 

insurance. 

2.3 Automobile Liability-Any Auto or Owned, Hired and Non-Owned Vehicles 

Vehicle Liability: Consultant must maintain Business/Automobile Liability insurance with a 

limit of $1,000,000 each accident on Consultant owned, hired, and non-owned vehicles 

assigned to or used in the performance of Consultant's work or services under this 

Agreement. If any Excess or Umbrella insurance is utilized to fulfill the requirements of this 

paragraph, the Excess or Umbrella insurance must be "follow form" equal or broader in 

coverage scope than underlying insurance. 

2.4 Workers Compensation and Employers Liability Insurance: Consultant must maintain Workers 

Compensation insurance to cover obligations imposed by federal and state statutes having 

jurisdiction of Consultant employees engaged in the performance of work or services 

under this Agreement and must also maintain Employers' Liability insurance of not less 

than $1,000,000 for each accident and $1,000,000 disease for each employee. 

3. Additional Policy Provisions Required.

3.1 Self-Insured Retentions or Deductibles. Any self-insured retentions and deductibles must be 

declared and approved by City. If not approved, City may require that the insurer reduce 

or eliminate any deductible or self-insured retentions with respect to City, its officers, 

officials, agents, employees, and volunteers. 

3.1.1. Consultant's insurance must contain broad form contractual liability coverage. 

3.1.2. Consultant's insurance coverage must be primary insurance with respect to City, its 

officers, officials, agents, and employees. . Any insurance or self-insurance 

maintained by City, its officers, officials, agents, and employees will be in excess of 

the coverage provided by Consultant and must not contribute to it. 

3.1.3. Consultant's insurance must apply separately to each insured against whom claim is 

made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer's liability. 

City of Chandler Professional Services Agreement - Exhibit "C" 

Public Works & Utilities Department, Capital Projects Division 

Project Name: AIRPORT WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY MEMBRANE PRE-DESIGN 

Project No.: WW1901.202 

Rev. 9/16/2020 

Page C-2 



3.1.4. Coverage provided by Consultant must not be limited to the liability assumed under 

the indemnification provisions of this Agreement. 

3.1.5. The policies must contain a severability of interest clause and waiver of subrogation 

against City, its officers, officials, agents, and employees, for losses arising from 

Work performed by Consultant for City. 

3.1.6. Consultant, its successors and or assigns, are required to maintain Commercial 

General Liability insurance as specified in this Agreement for a minimum period of 3 

years following completion and acceptance of the Work. Consultant must submit a 

Certificate of Insurance evidencing Commercial General Liability insurance during 

this 3 year period containing all the Agreement insurance requirements, including 

naming City of Chandler, its agents, representatives, officers, directors, officials and 

employees as Additional Insured as required. 

3.1. 7. If a Certificate of Insurance is submitted as verification of coverage, City will 

reasonably rely upon the Certificate of Insurance as evidence of coverage but this 

acceptance and reliance will not waive or alter in any way the insurance 

requirements or obligations of this Agreement. 

3.2. Insurance Cancellation During Term of Contract/Agreement. 

3.2.1. If any of the required policies expire during the life of this Agreement, Consultant 

must forward renewal or replacement Certificates to City within 1 O days after the 

renewal date containing all the required insurance provisions. 

3.2.2. Each insurance policy required by the insurance provisions of this Agreement must 

provide the required coverage and must not be suspended, voided or canceled 

except after thirty (30) days prior written notice has been given to City, except when 

cancellation is for non-payment of premium, then ten (10) days prior notice may be 

given. Such notice must be sent directly to Chandler Law-Risk Management 

Department, Post Office Box 4008, Mailstop 628, Chandler, Arizona 85225. If any 

insurance company refuses to provide the required notice, Consultant or its 

insurance broker must notify City of any cancellation, suspension, non-renewal of 

any insurance within seven (7) days of receipt of insurers' notification to that effect. 

3.3 City as Additional Insured. The policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the 

following provisions: 

3.3.1. The Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability policies are to contain, or 

be endorsed to contain, the following provisions: City, its officers, officials, agents, 

and employees are additional insureds with respect to liability arising out of 

activities performed by, or on behalf of, Consultant including City's general 

supervision of Consultant; Products and Completed operations of Consultant; and 

automobiles owned, leased, hired, or borrowed by Consultant. 

City of Chandler Professional Services Agreement - Exhibit "C" 
Public Works & Utilities Department, Capital Projects Division 
Project Name: AIRPORT WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY MEMBRANE PRE-DESIGN 
Project No.: WW1901.202 
Rev. 9/16/2020 

Page C-3 



3.3.2. City, its officers, officials, agents, and employees must be additional insureds to the 

full limits of liability purchased by Consultant even if those limits of liability are in 

excess of those required by this Agreement. 

City of Chandler Professional Services Agreement- Exhibit "C" 

Public Works & Utilities Department, Capital Projects Division 

Project Name: AIRPORT WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY MEMBRANE PRE-DESIGN 

Project No.: WW1901.202 

Rev. 9/16/2020 

Page C-4 



EXHIBIT "D" 

SPECIAL CONDITIONS 

Standard Details and Specifications. Consultant must be familiar with City's latest revision of 

the MAG Specifications and MAG Standard Details as amended by City. City's current 

amendment to the MAG Specifications, part of City's Unified Development Manual, may be found 

and downloaded from City's website at http://www.chandleraz.gov/udm. 

City Ownership of Project Documents. All work products (electronically or manually 

generated) including, but not limited to: plans, specifications, cost estimates, field notes, 

tracings, studies, investigations, design analyses, original drawings, original mylars, 

Computer Aided Drafting and Design (CADD) file diskettes which reflect all final drawings, 

and other related documents which are prepared in the performance of this Agreement 

(collectively referred to as "Documents") are to be and remain the property of City and are 

to be delivered to the Project Manager before the final payment is made to Consultant. In 

the event these Documents are altered, modified or adapted without the written consent of 

Consultant, which consent Consultant must not unreasonably withhold, City agrees to hold 

Consultant harmless to the extent permitted by law from the legal liability arising out of 

City1s alteration, modification or adaptation of the Documents. 

Re-use of Documents. The parties agree the documents, drawings, specifications and 

designs, although the property of City, are prepared for this specific project and are not 

intended nor represented by Consultant to be suitable for re-use for any other project. Any 

re-use without written verification or adaptation by Consultant for the specific purpose 

intended will be at City's sole risk and without liability or legal exposure to Consultant. 

Patent Fees and Royalties. Consultant must pay all license fees and royalties and assume all 

costs incidental to the use, in the performance of the work or the incorporation in the work 

of any invention, design, process, product, or device which is the subject of patent rights or 

copyrights held by others. If a particular invention, design, process, product, or device is 

specified in the Agreement for use in the performance of the work and if, to the actual 

knowledge of City, its use is subject to patent rights or copyrights calling for the payment of 

any license fee or royalty to others, the existence of such rights will be disclosed by City in 

the Agreement. Consultant must defend, indemnify and hold harmless City and anyone 

directly or indirectly employed by City from and against all claims, damages, losses, and 

expenses (including attorneys' fees) arising out of any infringement of patent rights or 

copyrights incidental to the use in the performance of the work, or resulting from the 

incorporation in the work of any invention, design, process, product, or device not specified 

in the Agreement, and must defend all such claims in connection with any alleged 

infringement of such rights. 

License to City for Reasonable Use. With this Agreement, Consultant and its subconsultants 

hereby grant a license to City, its agents, employees, and representatives for an indefinite 

period of time to reasonably use, make copies, and distribute as appropriate the 

Documents, works or deliverables developed or created as a result of the Project and this 

Agreement. This license also includes the making of derivative works. 

City of Chandler Professional Services Agreement - Affidavit of Lawful Presence 
Public Works & Utilities Department, Capital Projects Division 
Project Name: AIRPORT WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY MEMBRANE PRE-DESIGN 
Project No.: WW1901 .202 
Rev. 11/1/19 

Page AFF-1 



Documents to Bear Seal. Consultant and its subconsultants must endorse by professional 

seal all plans, works, and deliverables prepared by each for this Agreement as required by 

state law. 

City of Chandler Professional Services Agreement-Affidavit of Lawful Presence 

Public Works & Utilities Department, Capital Projects Division 

Project Name: AIRPORT WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY MEMBRANE PRE-DESIGN 

Project No.: WW1901.202 

Rev. 11/1/19 

Page AFF-2 



ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?

INSR ADDL SUBR
LTR INSD WVD

PRODUCER CONTACT
NAME:

FAXPHONE
(A/C, No):(A/C, No, Ext):

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

INSURER A :

INSURED INSURER B :

INSURER C :

INSURER D :

INSURER E :

INSURER F :

POLICY NUMBER
POLICY EFF POLICY EXP

TYPE OF INSURANCE LIMITS(MM/DD/YYYY) (MM/DD/YYYY)

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

EACH OCCURRENCE $
DAMAGE TO RENTEDCLAIMS-MADE OCCUR $PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

MED EXP (Any one person) $

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $
PRO-POLICY LOC PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGGJECT

OTHER: $
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

$(Ea accident)

ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) $
OWNED SCHEDULED

BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $AUTOS ONLY AUTOS

HIRED NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE
$AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY (Per accident)

$

OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE

CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $

DED RETENTION $

PER OTH-
STATUTE ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $
If yes, describe under

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMITDESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

Y / N

N / A
(Mandatory in NH)

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.ACORD 25 (2016/03)

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

$

$

$

$

$

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

WILSO-1 OP ID: JM

11/18/2020

Prof. Underwriters of Arizona

Professional Underwriters of
Arizona, Inc.
P.O. Box 5419
Scottsdale, AZ 85261-5419
Prof. Underwriters of Arizona

480-483-0440 480-948-7752
jeff@prounderwriters.com

RLI Insurance Company

Wilson Engineers, LLC
1620 W. Fountainhead Pkwy.
Ste 501
Tempe, AZ 85282

A X 2,000,000

X X X PSB0001272 01/01/2020 01/01/2021 1,000,000

X 10,000

X 2,000,000

4,000,000

X 4,000,000

1,000,000A

X X X PSA0001073 01/01/2020 01/01/2021

X X
X Blkt AI X

XA

X PSW0001259 01/01/2020 01/01/2021 1,000,000

1,000,000

1,000,000

A X RDP0041543 11/08/2020 11/08/2021 Per Claim 1,000,000
Architect/Engineer Ann. Agg. 2,000,000

RE: Airport Water Reclamation Facility Membrane Pre-Design, Project No.     
WW1901.202                                                                  
City of Chandler, its agents, representatives, officers, directors,         
officials and employees are additional insured as indicated. Coverages      
afforded are primary and non-contributory basis. Waiver of          (Cont'd)

CITYC01

City of Chandler
PW-Contract Admin
Attn: Paula Brown
POB 4008
Chandler, AZ 85244-4008

480-483-0440

13056

Blkt AI & WOS

Contractual Liab.

Blkt WOS

Professional Liab.



Date

HOLDER CODE   

INSURED'S NAME

PAGE

NOTEPAD:
subrogation and severability of interests included.                       

Attached:                                                                 

PPB304 02 12                                                              
PPA300 03 13                                                              
WC000313

CITYC01 2

Wilson Engineers, LLC 11/18/2020

WILSO-1
OP ID: JM



Policy Number: RLI Insurance Company
Named Insured:

PPB 304 02 12 Page 1 of 1

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

RLIPack® FOR PROFESSIONALS
BLANKET ADDITIONAL INSURED ENDORSEMENT

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

BUSINESSOWNERS COVERAGE FORM - SECTION II – LIABILITY

1. C. WHO IS AN INSURED is amended to include as
an additional insured any person or organization that
you agree in a contract or agreement requiring
insurance to include as an additional insured on this
policy, but only with respect to liability for "bodily
injury", "property damage" or "personal and
advertising injury" caused in whole or in part by you
or those acting on your behalf:

a. In the performance of your ongoing operations;

b. In connection with premises owned by or rented
to you; or

c. In connection with “your work” and included
within the “product-completed operations
hazard”.

2. The insurance provided to the additional insured by
this endorsement is limited as follows:

a. This insurance does not apply on any basis to
any person or organization for which coverage
as an additional insured specifically is added by
another endorsement to this policy.

b. This insurance does not apply to the rendering
of or failure to render any "professional
services".

c. This endorsement does not increase any of the
limits of insurance stated in D. Liability And
Medical Expenses Limits of Insurance.

3. The following is added to SECTION III H.2. Other
Insurance – COMMON POLICY CONDITIONS
(BUT APPLICABLE ONLY TO SECTION II –
LIABILITY)
However, if you specifically agree in a contract or
agreement that the insurance provided to an

additional insured under this policy must apply on a
primary basis, or a primary and non-contributory
basis, this insurance is primary to other insurance
that is available to such additional insured which
covers such additional insured as a named insured,
and we will not share with that other insurance,
provided that:

a. The "bodily injury" or "property damage" for
which coverage is sought occurs after you have
entered into that contract or agreement; or

b. The "personal and advertising injury" for which
coverage is sought arises out of an offense
committed after you have entered into that
contract or agreement.

4. The following is added to SECTION III K. 2.
Transfer of Rights of Recovery Against Others to
Us – COMMON POLICY CONDITIONS (BUT
APPLICABLE TO ONLY TO SECTION II –
LIABILITY)
We waive any rights of recovery we may have
against any person or organization because of
payments we make for "bodily injury", "property
damage" or "personal and advertising injury" arising
out of "your work" performed by you, or on your
behalf, under a contract or agreement with that
person or organization. We waive these rights only
where you have agreed to do so as part of a
contract or agreement with such person or
organization entered into by you before the "bodily
injury" or "property damage" occurs, or the "personal
and advertising injury" offense is committed.

ALL OTHER TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THIS POLICY REMAIN UNCHANGED.

PSB0001272
Wilson Engineers, LLC



Policy Number:            RLI Insurance Company 
Named Insured: 

PPA 300 03 13  Page 1 of 5 

 
 

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY. 
 

RLIPack® BUSINESS AUTO ENHANCEMENT 
 

 
SCHEDULE OF COVERAGES ADDRESSED BY THIS ENDORSEMENT 

 
 
A. Broad Form Named Insured  
B. Employees As Insureds 
C. Blanket Additional Insured 
D. Blanket Waiver Of Subrogation 
E. Employee Hired Autos 
F. Fellow Employee Coverage 
G. Auto Loan Lease Gap Coverage 
H. Glass Repair – Waiver Of Deductible 
I. Personal Effects Coverage 
J. Hired Auto Physical Damage Coverage 
K. Hired Auto Physical Damage – Loss Of Use 
L. Hired Car – Worldwide Coverage 
M. Temporary Transportation Expenses 
N. Amended Bodily Injury Definition – Mental Anguish 
O. Airbag Coverage 
P. Amended Insured Contract Definition – Railroad Easement 
Q. Coverage Extensions – Audio, Visual And Data Electronic Equipment Not Designed Solely For The 

Production Of Sound 
R. Notice Of And Knowledge Of Occurrence 
S. Unintentional Errors Or Omissions 
T. Towing Coverage 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

PSA0001073
Wilson Engineers, LLC



PPA 300 03 13  Page 2 of 5 

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 

BUSINESS AUTO COVERAGE FORM  

A. Broad Form Named Insured  
The following is added to the SECTION II – 
COVERED AUTOS LIABILITY COVERAGE, Para-
graph A.1. Who Is An Insured Provision: 

Any business entity newly acquired or formed by you 
during the policy period, provided you own fifty 
percent (50%) or more of the business entity and the 
business entity is not separately insured for Bus-
iness Auto Coverage. Coverage is extended up to a 
maximum of one hundred eighty (180) days 
following the acquisition or formation of the business 
entity.  

This provision does not apply to any person or 
organization for which coverage is excluded by 
endorsement. 

B. Employees As Insureds 
The following is added to the SECTION II – 
COVERED AUTOS LIABILITY COVERAGE, Para-
graph A.1. Who Is An Insured Provision: 

Any “employee” of yours is an “insured” while using 
a covered “auto” you don't own, hire or borrow in 
your business or your personal affairs. 

C. Blanket Additional Insured 
The following is added to the SECTION II – 
COVERED AUTOS LIABILITY COVERAGE, Para-
graph A.1. Who Is An Insured Provision: 

Any person or organization that you are required to 
include as an additional insured on this coverage 
form in a contract or agreement that is executed by 
you before the “bodily injury” or “property damage” 
occurs is an “insured” for liability coverage, but only 
for damages to which this insurance applies and 
only to the extent that person or organization 
qualifies as an “insured” under the Who Is An 
Insured provision contained in SECTION II – 
COVERED AUTOS LIABILITY COVERAGE. 

The insurance provided to the additional insured will 
be on a primary and non-contributory basis to the 
additional insured’s own business auto coverage if 
you are required to do so in a contract or agreement 
that is executed by you before the “bodily injury” or 
“property damage” occurs. 

D. Blanket Waiver Of Subrogation 
The following is added to the SECTION IV – BUSI-
NESS AUTO CONDITIONS, A. Loss Conditions, 
5. Transfer Of Rights Of Recovery Against 
Others To Us: 

We waive any right of recovery we may have against 
any person or organization to the extent required of 
you by a contract executed prior to any “accident” or 

“loss”, provided that the “accident” or “loss” arises 
out of the operations contemplated by such contract. 
The waiver applies only to the person or 
organization designated in such contract. 

E. Employee Hired Autos 
1. The following is added to the SECTION II – 

COVERED AUTOS LIABILITY COVERAGE, 
Paragraph A.1. Who Is An Insured Provision:  

An “employee” of yours is an “insured” while 
operating an “auto” hired or rented under a 
contract or agreement in that “employee's” 
name, with your permission, while performing 
duties related to the conduct of your business. 

2. Changes In General Conditions: 

Paragraph 5.b. of the Other Insurance Con-
dition in the BUSINESS AUTO CONDITIONS is 
deleted and replaced with the following:  

b. For Hired Auto Physical Damage Coverage, 
the following are deemed to be covered 
“autos” you own: 

(1) Any covered “auto” you lease, hire, rent 
or borrow; and 

(2) Any covered “auto” hired or rented by 
your “employee” under a contract in that 
individual “employee's” name, with your 
permission, while performing duties 
related to the conduct of your business. 
However, any “auto” that is leased, 
hired, rented or borrowed with a driver is 
not a covered “auto”. 

F. Fellow Employee Coverage 
SECTION II – COVERED AUTOS LIABILITY 
COVERAGE, Exclusion B.5. does not apply if you 
have workers compensation insurance in-force 
covering all of your employees.   

G. Auto Loan Lease Gap Coverage 
SECTION III – PHYSICAL DAMAGE COVERAGE, 
C. Limit Of Insurance, is amended by the addition 
of the following: 

In the event of a total “loss” to a covered “auto” 
shown in the Schedule of Declarations, we will pay 
any unpaid amount due on the lease or loan for a 
covered “auto”, less:  

1. The amount paid under the PHYSICAL 
DAMAGE COVERAGE section of the policy; 
and 

2. Any:  

a. Overdue lease/loan payments at the time of 
the “loss”; 



PPA 300 03 13  Page 3 of 5 

b. Financial penalties imposed under a lease 
for excessive use, abnormal wear and tear 
or high mileage. 

c. Security deposits not returned by the lessor; 

d. Costs for extended warranties, Credit Life 
Insurance, Health, Accident or Disability 
Insurance purchased with the loan or lease; 
and 

e. Carry-over balances from previous loans or 
leases. 

H. Glass Repair – Waiver Of Deductible 
SECTION III – PHYSICAL DAMAGE COVERAGE, 
D. Deductible is amended by adding the following: 

No deductible for a covered “auto” will apply to glass 
damage if the glass is repaired rather than replaced.  

I. Personal Effects Coverage 
The following is added to SECTION III – PHYSICAL 
DAMAGE COVERAGE, A. Coverage, 4. Coverage 
Extensions: 

c. Personal Effects Coverage 

In the event of a total theft loss of your covered 
“auto” we will pay up to $400 for “loss” to 
wearing apparel and other personal effects 
which are: 

(1) Owned by an “insured”; and 

(2) In or on your covered “auto”; 

No deductible applies to Personal Effects 
Coverage. 

J. Hired Auto Physical Damage Coverage 
The following is added to SECTION III – PHYSICAL 
DAMAGE COVERAGE, A. Coverage, 4. Coverage 
Extensions: 

d. Hired Auto Physical Damage Coverage 

If hired “autos” are covered “autos” for Liability 
Coverage and this policy also provides Physical 
Damage Coverage for an owned “auto”, then the 
Physical Damage Coverage is extended to 
“autos” that you hire, rent or borrow subject to 
the following: 

(1) The most we will pay for “loss” in any one 
“accident” to a hired, rented or borrowed 
“auto” is the lesser of: 

(a) $60,000 

(b) The actual cash value of the damaged 
or stolen property as of the time of the 
“loss”; or 

(c) The cost of repairing or replacing the 
damaged or stolen property with other 
property of like kind and quality. 

(2) An adjustment for depreciation and physical 
condition will be made in the event of a total 
“loss”. 

(3) If a repair or replacement results in better 
than like kind or quality, we will not pay for 
the betterment. 

(4) A deductible equal to the highest Physical 
Damage deductible applicable to any owned 
auto will apply. 

(5) This Coverage Extension will not apply to: 

(a) Any “auto” that is hired, rented or 
borrowed with a driver; or 

(b) Any “auto” that is hired, rented or 
borrowed from your “employee”. 

K. Hired Auto Physical Damage – Loss Of Use 
The following is added to SECTION II – COVERED 
AUTOS LIABILITY COVERAGE, A.2. Coverage 
Extensions: 

e. We will pay sums which you legally must pay to 
the lessor of a covered “auto” which you have 
leased without a driver for thirty (30) days or less 
for the lessor’s loss of use of the covered “auto”, 
provided:  

(1) This insurance provides comprehensive, 
specified causes of loss or collision covered 
on the covered “auto”; 

(2) The loss of use results from the covered 
“auto” being damaged in an “accident” while 
you are leasing it. 

We will pay up to a maximum limit of $1,500 for 
this covered extension. 

L. Hired Car – Worldwide Coverage 
The following is added to SECTION II – COVERED 
AUTOS LIABILITY COVERAGE, A.2. Coverage 
Extensions: 

f. Hired Car – Worldwide Coverage 
(1) We will pay all sums an “insured” legally 

must pay as damages because of “bodily 
injury” or “property damage” to which this 
insurance applies, caused by an “accident” 
which occurs outside of the United States of 
America, the territories and possessions of 
the United States of America, Puerto Rico 
and Canada resulting from the maintenance, 
or use of any covered “auto” of the private 
passenger type you lease, hire, rent or 
borrow without a driver for thirty (30) days or 
less. 

(2) With respect to any claim made or “suit” 
instituted outside the United States of 
America, the territories and possessions of 
the United States of America, Puerto Rico, 
and Canada: 



PPA 300 03 13  Page 4 of 5 

(a) You shall undertake the investigation, 
settlement and defense of such claims 
and “suits” and keep us advised of all 
proceedings and actions. 

(b) You will not make any settlement 
without our consent. 

(c) We will reimburse you: 

(i) For the amount of damages be-
cause of liability imposed upon you 
by law on account of “bodily injury” 
or “property damage” to which this 
insurance applies, and 

(ii) For all reasonable expenses 
incurred with our consent in 
connection with the investigation, 
settlement or defense of such 
claims or “suits”. Reimbursement for 
expenses will be part of the Limit of 
Insurance for liability coverage 
shown in the Business Auto 
Coverage Declarations, and not in 
addition to such limits.   

(3) The limit of Insurance for Liability Coverage 
shown in the Business Auto Coverage 
Declarations is the most we will reimburse 
you for the sum of all damages imposed on 
you, as set forth in paragraph 2.c. above, 
and all expenses incurred by you arising out 
of any single “accident” or “loss”. 

(4) You must maintain the greater of the follow-
ing primary auto liability insurance limits: 

(a) Compulsory admitted insurance with 
limits required to be in force to satisfy 
the legal requirements of the jurisdiction 
where the accident occurs; or 

(b) Insurance limits required by law and 
issued by a government entity or by an 
insurer licensed or permitted by law to 
do business in the jurisdiction where the 
“accident” occurs; or 

(c) Auto liability insurance limits of at least 
$300,000 combined single limit or 
$100,000 per person/$300,000 per acci-
dent Bodily Injury, $100,000 Property 
Damage. 

If you fail to comply with the above, this 
insurance is not invalidated. However, in the 
event of a “loss”, we will pay only to the 
extent that we would have been liable had 
you so complied.  

(5) The insurance provided by this coverage 
extension is excess over any other collec-
tible insurance available to you whether on a 
primary, excess contingent or any other 
basis. 

M. Temporary Transportation Expenses 

SECTION III – PHYSICAL DAMAGE COVERAGE, 
A.4. Coverage Extensions, subparagraph a. 
Transportation Expenses is deleted and replaced 
by the following: 

a. Transportation Expenses 

(1) We will pay up to a maximum of $1,500 for 
temporary transportation expense incurred 
by you because of Physical Damage to a 
covered “auto”. 

(2) We will pay only for those covered “autos” 
for which you carry Comprehensive, Colli-
sion or Specified Case of Loss Coverage.  

(3) We will pay only for those expenses incurred 
by you during the period of time that begins 
twenty-four (24) hours after the covered 
“loss” and ends at the time when the 
covered “auto” can be reasonable repaired 
or replaced. 

(4) This coverage does not apply while there 
are spare or reserve “autos” available to you 
for your operations. 

N. Amended Bodily Injury Definition – Mental 
Anguish 

The following is added to SECTION V – 
DEFINITIONS, Definition C.: 

“Bodily injury” also includes mental anguish, but only 
when the mental anguish arises from other bodily 
injury, sickness or disease. 

O. Airbag Coverage 

The following is added to SECTION III – PHYSICAL 
DAMAGE COVERAGE B. Exclusions 3.a.: 

However, this exclusion will not apply to accidental 
discharge of an airbag due to mechanical or 
electrical breakdown. 

P. Amended Insured Contract Definition – Railroad 
Easement 

SECTION V – DEFINITIONS paragraph H. “Insured 
contact” is modified as follows: 

1. Paragraph H.3. is replaced by the following: 

3. Any easement or license agreement. 

2. Paragraph H.6.a. is deleted. 

Q. Coverage Extensions – Audio, Visual And Data 
Electronic Equipment Not Designed Solely For 
The Production Of Sound  

SECTION III – PHYSICAL DAMAGE COVERAGE 
B. Exclusions, exception paragraph a. to exclusion 
4.c. and 4.d. is deleted and replaced with the 
following: 



PPA 300 03 13  Page 5 of 5 

a. Equipment and accessories used with such 
equipment, except for tapes, records, discs or 
other electronic media device, provided such 
equipment is permanently installed in the 
covered “auto” at the time of the “loss” or is 
removable from the housing unit which is 
permanently installed in the covered “auto” at 
the time of the “loss”, and such equipment is 
designed to be solely operated by use of the 
power from the “autos” electrical system, in or 
upon the covered “autos”; or  

R. Notice Of And Knowledge Of Occurrence 
SECTION IV – BUSINESS AUTO CONDITIONS, 
A.2. Duties In The Event Of Accident, Claim Suit 
Or Loss, subparagraph a. is deleted and replaced 
with the following: 

a. In the event of “accident”, claim, “suit” or “loss”, 
you must give us or our authorized repre-
sentative prompt notice of the “accident” or 
“loss” including: 

(1) How, when and where the “accident” or 
“loss” occurred; 

(2) The “insured’s” name and address; and 

(3) To the extent possible, the names and 
addresses of any injured person and 
witnesses. 

Your duty to give us or our authorized 
representative prompt notice of the “accident” or 
“loss” applies only when the “accident” or “loss” 
is known to: 

(1) You, if you are an individual; 

(2) A partner if you are a partnership; or 

(3) An executive officer or insurance manager, if 
you are a corporation. 

S. Unintentional Errors Or Omissions 
SECTION IV – BUSINESS AUTO CONDITIONS, B. 
General Conditions; 2. Concealment Misrepre-
sentation Or Fraud is amended by adding the 
following: 

The unintentional omission of, or unintentional error 
in, any information given by you shall not prejudice 
your rights under this insurance. However this pro-
vision does not affect our right to collect additional 
premium or exercise our right of cancellation or 
nonrenewal. 

T. Towing Coverage 
SECTION III – PHYSICAL DAMAGE COVERAGE, 
A.2. Towing, is deleted and replaced by the 
following: 

2. We will pay up to $750 for towing and labor 
costs incurred each time a covered “auto” is 
disabled due to a covered cause of loss. 
However: 
a. All labor must be performed at the place of 

disablement; and 
b. If the covered auto is a private passenger 

type no deductible applies; and 
c. If the covered auto is not of the private 

passenger type our obligation to pay will be 
reduced by a $250 deductible per 
disablement. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ALL OTHER TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THIS POLICY REMAIN UNCHANGED. 
 



 1983 National Council on Compensation Insurance. 

WORKERS COMPENSATION AND EMPLOYERS LIABILITY INSURANCE POLICY WC 00 03 13 

(Ed. 4-84) 

WAIVER OF OUR RIGHT TO RECOVER FROM OTHERS ENDORSEMENT 

We have the right to recover our payments from anyone liable for an injury covered by this policy. We will not enforce 
our right against the person or organization named in the Schedule. (This agreement applies only to the extent that 
you perform work under a written contract that requires you to obtain this agreement from us.) 

This agreement shall not operate directly or indirectly to benefit anyone not named in the Schedule. 

Schedule 

This endorsement changes the policy to which it is attached and is effective on the date issued unless otherwise stated. 

(The information below is required only when this endorsement is issued subsequent to preparation of the policy.)

Endorsement Effective Policy No. Endorsement No. 
Insured Premium
 
Insurance Company Countersigned by ___________________________________________  
 

WC 00 03 13
(Ed. 4-84)  

Any person or organization that you have agreed with in a written contract to provide this agreement.

Wilson Engineers, LLC
PSW0001259

 01-01-2020

RLI Insurance Company



ITEM  13 

City Council Memorandum      Public Works & Utilities  Memo No. UA21-026
       

Date: February 8, 2021
To: Mayor  and Council
Thru: Marsha Reed, City Manager

Joshua H. Wright, Assistant City Manager
John Knudson, Public Works and Utilities Director

From: Gregg Capps, Water Resource Manager
Subject: Agreement No. PW1-936-4262, with Metering Services, Inc., for Small Water Meter Installation,

Repair, and Consulting Services

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council approve Agreement No. PW1-936-4262 with Metering Services, Inc., for small water
meter installation, repair, and consulting services, in an amount not to exceed $490,820.   

Background/Discussion:
The City maintains approximately 86,500 water meters. These meters record water use from
residential, landscape, multi-family, commercial, government, school, medical and industrial water
users. The life expectancy of a water meter based on industry standards is 15 years. Meters greater
than 15 years old have a higher tendency to read inaccurately, resulting in incorrect billing or
equipment failure. Staff routinely replace or repair failed meters to ensure customers are billed
accurately. Due to the increasing number of meters that have reached the age for replacement,
contractor assistance is required for meter installation.

As part of this agreement, the contractor will remove approximately 8,300 meters that have exceeded
their life expectancy and replace them with meters compatible with the existing meter reading system
and inventory. Included with the installation of these meters (ranging in size from 5/8-inch to 2-inch) are
various replacements of lids and boxes to ensure compliance with standard detail specifications. The
term on this agreement is 270 calendar days following Notice to Proceed.

A related agreement with Core & Main, LP, for the purchase of water meters, is also
scheduled for this City Council meeting.

Evaluation:
On November 6, 2020, City staff issued Request for Proposal No. PW1-936-4262 for small water meter
installation, repair, and consulting services. Notification was sent to all registered vendors. Two (2)
proposals were received from the following offerors: 

Hernandez Companies, Inc.1.
Metering Services, Inc.2.

The Evaluation Committee evaluated the proposals and recommends award to Metering Services, Inc.,
which submitted the most advantageous offer to the City in accordance with the evaluation criteria.



Fiscal Impact
Account No. Fund Name Program Name Dollar Amount CIP Funded Y/N
601.3820.6710.6WA673 Water Bond Water Meter Replacements $490,820 Y

Attachments
Agreement 













































ITEM  14 

City Council Memorandum      Public Works & Utilities  Memo No. UA21-028
       

Date: February 8, 2021
To: Mayor  and Council
Thru: Marsha Reed, City Manager

Joshua H. Wright, Assistant City Manager
John Knudson, Public Works and Utilities Director

From: Gregg Capps, Water Resource Manager
Subject: Agreement No. PW0-890-4209, Amendment No. 1, with Core and Main, LP, for Water Meters

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council approve Agreement No. PW0-890-4209, Amendment No. 1, with Core and Main, LP,
for water meters, increasing the contract limit in the amount of $2,509,180, for a revised amount not to
exceed $5,509,180, for a two-year period, September 1, 2020, through August 31, 2022.   

Background/Discussion:
The City maintains approximately 86,500 water meters. These meters record water use from
residential, landscape, multi-family, commercial, government, school, medical and industrial water
users. Staff routinely replace or repair failed meters to ensure customers are billed accurately. In
addition to meter maintenance and replacement, staff installs meters for new customers connecting to
the City’s distribution system. This agreement authorizes the purchase of meters, registers, and meter
parts compatible with the existing meter reading system, utility billing system, and inventory.

The life expectancy of a meter based on industry standards is 15 years. Meters greater than 15 years
old have a higher tendency to read inaccurately, resulting in incorrect billing or equipment failure.
Though staff routinely replaces or repairs failed meters, the increasing number of meters due for
replacement requires additional meters to be purchased with this amendment. Included with the
replacement of these meters (ranging in size from 5/8-inch to 2-inch) are various replacements of lids
and boxes to ensure compliance with standard detail specifications.
 
This Amendment will increase spending limit for the City’s water meter purchase agreement with Core
and Main, LP, from $3,000,000 to $5,509,180 to purchase an additional 8,300 meters and 7,300 lids.
Use of the City's existing meter purchase agreement provides the most cost-effective method to
acquire the meter and meter-related parts needed for this project.

A related agreement with Metering Services, Inc., for the installation of 8,300 replacement meters, is
also scheduled for this City Council meeting.

 



Evaluation:
On August 27, 2020, City Council approved Agreement No. PW0-890-4209 with Core and Main, LP, for
Water Meters, for a two-year term, with the option of up to one (1) two-year extension. This amendment
will add funds to the current term of the agreement for the Small Water Meter Installation, Repair, and
Consulting Services project. The Contractor has agreed to the same terms, conditions, and pricing.

Fiscal Impact
Account No. Fund Name Program Name Dollar Amount CIP Funded Y/N
605.3800.5330.0.0 Water

Operating
Meter/Meter Related Parts $79,650 N

601.3820.6710.6WA673Water Bond Water Meter
Replacements

$2,429,530 Y

Attachments
Amendment 







ITEM  15 

City Council Memorandum      Public Works & Utilities  Memo No. CP21-079
       

Date: February 8, 2021
To: Mayor  and Council
Thru: Marsha Reed, City Manager

Joshua H. Wright, Assistant City Manager
John Knudson, Public Works and Utilities Director
Kevin Lair, Transportation Manager
Andrew Goh, Capital Projects Manager

From: Daniel Haskins, Engineer
Subject: Construction Contract No. ST1909.401 with Cactus Asphalt, a Division of Cactus Transport, Inc., for

the Alley Rehabilitation PM10 Dust Emissions Project

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council award Construction Contract No. ST1909.401 to Cactus Asphalt, a Division of
Cactus Transport, Inc., for the Alley Rehabilitation PM10 Dust Emissions Project, in an amount not to
exceed $2,077,524.50.

Background/Discussion:
The Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) has developed ambient air quality trends for particle
pollution, also called particulate matter. PM10 describes inhalable particles with diameters that are
generally ten micrometers and smaller. In 2007, Maricopa County approved a regional PM10 reduction
plan imposed by the EPA. The City continues to perform alleyway rehabilitation to adhere to this
regional plan.

The project scope of work consists of removing and replacing the top four to six inches of alley roadway
surface material with crushed and compacted asphalt millings materials. The new alley roadway
surface will be sprayed with an asphalt sealer to rejuvenate the binder in the millings.  This project will
reduce dust by providing an asphalt driving surface on approximately 15.7 miles of alleyways. The
construction contract time is 150 days following Notice to Proceed.

A related Professional Services Agreement with Tristar Engineering and Management, Inc., for the Alley
Rehabilitation PM10 Dust Emissions Project, is also scheduled for this City Council meeting.

Evaluation:
Three (3) bids were opened on September 30, 2020. The bid results were as follows:
  
Contractor Bid Total
Cactus Asphalt, a Division of Cactus Transport, Inc.  $2,077,524.50
Nesbitt Contracting Co., Inc. $2,148,174.70
The Fishel Construction Company $2,217,715.50



                                         

Financial Implications:
This project is funded by 94.3% federal funds and 5.7% local funds.

Fiscal Impact
Account No. Fund Name Program

Name
Dollar
Amount

CIP Funded
Y/N

417.3310.6513.6ST248 Capital Grants Street
Repaving

$1,959,106.00 Y

411.3310.6513.6ST248 Streets General Obligation
Bonds

Street
Repaving

$118,418.50 Y

Attachments
Location Map 
Contract 



ELLIOT RD

WARNER RD

RAY RD

CHANDLER BL

PECOS RD

GERMANN RD

QUEEN CREEK RD

OCOTILLO RD

CHANDLER HEIGHTS RD

RIGGS RD

HUNT HWVAL VISTA DR

LINDSAY RD

GILBERT RD

COOPER RD

MCQUEEN RD

ARIZONA AV

ALMA SCHOOL RD

DOBSON RD

PRICE RD

MCCLINTOCK DR

RURAL RD

KYRENE RD

56TH ST SR202

I10

SR
10

1

ALLEY REHABILITATION
PM-10 DUST EMISSIONS
PROJECT NO. ST1909.401

FED NO. CHN-0(245)D
ADOT NO. T024001C

°
NTS

MEMO NO. CP21-079
ALLEY REHABILITATION PM10

F:\ENGINEER\GENSERV\_ArcMap_Shared\Map Requests\Capital Projects\ST1909.451 ALLEY REHABILITATION PM10 DUST EMISSIONS\ST1909.401.mxd 1/4/2021 MARICELAH



Rev. 11/15/19  Page i 

CITY OF CHANDLER, ARIZONA 
PUBLIC WORKS & UTILITIES DEPARTMENT 

CAPITAL PROJECTS DIVISION 

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT 

ALLEY REHABILITATION PM10 DUST EMISSIONS 
City Project No.: ST1909.401; 

Federal No.: CHN-0(245)D; 
ADOT No.: T024001C 

MAYOR 
Kevin Hartke 

VICE MAYOR 
Mark Stewart 

COUNCIL 

Matt Orlando     OD Harris
Christine Ellis     René Lopez     Terry Roe

__________________________________________________ 
Andrew Goh, P.E. 
CIP City Engineer 



 Page ii City of Chandler Construction Bid 
Public Works & Utilities Department, Capital Projects Division  
Project Name: ALLEY REHABILITATION PM10 DUST EMISSIONS  
City Project No.:ST1909.401; Federal No.: CHN-0(245)D; ADOT No.: T024001C Rev. 
11/15/19 

CITY OF CHANDLER, ARIZONA 

ALLEY REHABILITATION PM10 DUST EMISSIONS 

CITY PROJECT NO.: City Project No.:ST1909.401; Federal No.: CHN-0(245)D; 
ADOT No.: T024001C 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 PARTICIPANTS AND PROJECT ...................................................................................... C-1 ARTICLE 1 -

 CONTRACT DOCUMENTS ............................................................................................. C-2 ARTICLE 2 -

 CONSTRUCTION SERVICES ........................................................................................... C-2 ARTICLE 3 -

 CITY RESPONSIBILITIES ................................................................................................ C-4 ARTICLE 4 -

 CONTRACT TIME ........................................................................................................... C-4 ARTICLE 5 -

 CONTRACT PRICE.......................................................................................................... C-7 ARTICLE 6 -

 PAYMENT ...................................................................................................................... C-7 ARTICLE 7 -

 CHANGES TO THE CONTRACT ..................................................................................... C-7 ARTICLE 8 -

 SUSPENSION AND TERMINATION .............................................................................. C-7 ARTICLE 9 -

 INSURANCE AND BONDS ........................................................................................... C-7 ARTICLE 10 -

 INDEMNIFICATION ..................................................................................................... C-8 ARTICLE 11 -

 DISPUTE RESOLUTION ............................................................................................... C-8 ARTICLE 12 -

EXHIBIT A – PROJECT SPECIFIC SPECIAL PROVISIONS ................................................................. SP-1 
EXHIBIT B – GENERAL CONDITIONS ............................................................................................. GC-1 
EXHIBIT C – TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS ..................................................................................... TS-1 
EXHIBIT D – FEDERAL PROVISIONS (IF APPLICABLE) ................................................................... FP-1 



City of Chandler Construction Bid   Page C-1
Public Works & Utilities Department, Capital Projects Division  
Project Name: ALLEY REHABILITATION PM10 DUST EMISSIONS  
City Project No.:ST1909.401; Federal No.: CHN-0(245)D; ADOT No.: T024001C
Rev. 2/20/2020 

CONSTRUCTION SERVICES CONTRACT 
PROJECT NO.: ST1909.401; Federal No.: CHN-0(245)D; ADOT No.: T024001C 

THIS CONTRACT is made and entered into on the _______ day of _________________, 20_____, 
by and between City of Chandler, an Arizona municipal corporation, hereinafter called 
“City” and the “Contractor” designated below (City and Contractor may individually be 
referred to as “Party” and collectively referred to as “Parties”). 

City and Contractor agree as follows: 

 PARTICIPANTS AND PROJECT ARTICLE 1 -
CITY: City of Chandler 

City Engineer: Andrew Goh 
Phone: 480-782-3343
Email: andrew.goh@chandleraz.gov 

CITY: City of Chandler 
Construction Project Manager:  Paul Ahlas 

Phone: 480-782-3328
Email: paul.ahlas@chandleraz.gov 

CONTRACTOR: Cactus Asphalt, a division of Cactus Transport, Inc. 
8211 W. Sherman St., Tolleson, AZ  85353
Arizona ROC No.: 194430 
Federal Tax ID No.: 86-0363424
Business Organization: corporation 
State Where Organized: Arizona 
Contractor Representative: Bryan Glazer 

Phone: 623-907-2800 
Email: jabram@cactusasphalt.com 

DESIGN PROFESSIONAL: Aztec Engineering Group, Inc. 
501 N. 44th St., Ste.  300 Phoenix, AZ  85008 
Design Professional Representative: Ms. Tracy Eberlein 

Phone: 602-770-4734 
Email: teberlein@aztec.us 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 
Constructing improvements to the alleyway pavement surfacing in four selected City of Chandler 
neighborhoods to reduce PM10 dust emissions.   

PROJECT LOCATION: 

Project consists of approximately 15.3 miles of existing alleyways in the following areas: 
• 5.2 miles Northeast corner of Dobson Road and Elliot Road
• 6.4 miles Northeast of Alma School Road and Elliot Road
• 2.8 miles Northeast Corner of Rural Road and Ray Road
• 0.9 miles Northeast corner of McClintock Drive and Chandler Boulevard.



 Page C-2City of Chandler Construction Bid  
Public Works & Utilities Department, Capital Projects Division  
Project Name: ALLEY REHABILITATION PM10 DUST EMISSIONS  
City Project No.:ST1909.401; Federal No.: CHN-0(245)D; ADOT No.: T024001C Rev. 
2/20/2020 

 CONTRACT DOCUMENTS ARTICLE 2 -

2.1 CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 
The Contract between City and Contractor will consist of the following Contract 
Documents: 

1. This Construction Services Contract and all of its Exhibits, including Project
Plans and Technical Specifications.

2. General Conditions and General Conditions Appendices, incorporated by
reference.

3. Project Specific Special Provisions as set forth in Exhibit A, incorporated by
reference.

4. Project Bid Proposal.

2.2 In the event of any inconsistency, conflict, or ambiguity between or among the 
Contract Documents, the Contract Documents will take precedence as described in 
Section 14.1.4 of the General Conditions. 

2.3 DEFINITIONS 
The definitions in Section 2 of the General Conditions apply to all the Contract 
Documents, including this Agreement.  Additional definitions or defined terms 
applicable to all the Contract Documents for this Project, if any, include the 
following: 

n/a 

 CONSTRUCTION SERVICES ARTICLE 3 -

3.1 GENERAL 

3.1.1 Scope of Work.  All terms and conditions are set forth in the Contract. Any terms 
and conditions and exceptions noted in the Contractor’s proposal or other 
documents do not apply unless agreed to in this Contract or an approved 
addendum. 

3.1.2 Contractor agrees this is a Unit Price Contract. Contractor agrees at its own cost and 
expense, to do all Work necessary required to fully, timely and properly complete 
the construction of the Project in strict accordance with the Contract Documents in 
a good and workmanlike manner, free and clear of all claims, liens, and charges 
whatsoever, in the manner and under the conditions specified, within the Contract 
time. 

3.1.3 Contractor must provide all of the labor and materials, and perform the Work in 
accordance with Section 4 of the General Conditions. Some, but not all, of the major 



 Page C-3City of Chandler Construction Bid  
Public Works & Utilities Department, Capital Projects Division  
Project Name: ALLEY REHABILITATION PM10 DUST EMISSIONS  
City Project No.:ST1909.401; Federal No.: CHN-0(245)D; ADOT No.: T024001C Rev. 
2/20/2020 

components of the Construction Services and the corresponding subsections of 
Section 4 of the General Conditions are set forth below. 

3.1.4 At all times relevant to this Contract and performance of the Work, the Contactor 
must fully comply with all Laws, Regulations, or Legal Requirements applicable to 
City, the Project and the Contract, including, without limitation, those set forth on 
attached Exhibit A. 

3.1.5 Contractor must perform the Work under this Contract using only those firms, team 
members and individuals designated by Contractor consistent with Contractor’s 
accepted Bid, or otherwise, approved by City pursuant to the General Conditions. 
No other entities or individuals may be used without the prior written approval of 
the Project Manager. 

3.1.6 Contractor must comply with all terms and conditions of the General Conditions. 

3.1.7 In the event of a conflict between this Contract and the General Conditions or an 
exhibit hereto or appendix thereto, the terms of this Contract will control. 

3.1.8 Ownership of Work Product.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this 
Contract, all Work Product prepared or otherwise created in connection with the 
performance of this Contract, including the Work, are to be and remain the property 
of City. For purposes of this provision, “Work Product” will include all designs, 
drawings, plans, specifications, ideas, renderings and other information or matter, 
in whatever form created (e.g., electronic or printed) and in all media now known or 
hereinafter created. All Work Product will be considered Work Made for Hire as 
defined in the United States Copyright Act 17 U.S.C. § 101 (Copyright Act). If for any 
reason, any such Work is found not to be a Work Made for Hire, Contractor hereby 
transfers and assigns ownership of the copyright in such Work to City. The rights in 
this Section are exclusive to City in perpetuity. 

3.2 CONTRACTOR’S PRE-CONTRACT AND PRE-WORK DELIVERABLES 

3.2.1 The Contractor must provide the Deliverables in accordance with Section 4.2 of 
the General Conditions. 

3.2.2 Any additional items which Contractor must deliver to City prior to commencing the 
Work on this Project, if any, include the following: 

n/a 

3.3 PRE-CONSTRUCTION CONFERENCE 
Contractor must attend the Pre-Construction Conference in accordance with 
Section 4.3 of the General Conditions. 



 Page C-4City of Chandler Construction Bid  
Public Works & Utilities Department, Capital Projects Division  
Project Name: ALLEY REHABILITATION PM10 DUST EMISSIONS  
City Project No.:ST1909.401; Federal No.: CHN-0(245)D; ADOT No.: T024001C Rev. 
2/20/2020 

3.4 PERFORMANCE OF THE WORK (INCLUDING FIELD MEASUREMENTS, 
SUBCONTRACTORS, AND SUPPLIERS) 
Contractor must perform the Work in accordance with Section 4.4 of the General 
Conditions. 

3.5 CONTROL OF THE PROJECT SITE 
Contractor must control and maintain the Project Site in accordance with Section 4.5 
of the General Conditions. 

3.6 PROJECT SAFETY 
Contractor must implement and enforce Project safety in accordance with Section 
4.6 of the General Conditions. 

3.7 MATERIALS QUALITY, SUBSTITUTIONS AND SHOP DRAWINGS 
Contractor must provide materials testing and submit substitute materials and Shop 
Drawings in accordance with Section 4.7 of the General Conditions. 

3.8 PROJECT RECORD DOCUMENTS 
Contractor must maintain and make available the Project Record Documents in 
accordance with Section 4.8 of the General Conditions. 

3.9 WARRANTY AND CORRECTION OF DEFECTIVE WORK 
Contractor must provide warranties and correct defective Work in accordance with 
Section 4.9 of the General Conditions. 

 CITY RESPONSIBILITIES ARTICLE 4 -

4.1 City will have the responsibilities, and provide the information specified in, and 
subject to the conditions set forth in, Section 5 of the General Conditions. 

4.2 Additional services to be provided or responsibilities assumed, by City, if any, are 
listed below: 

n/a 

4.3 Additional information to be provided by City, if any, is listed below: 

n/a 

 CONTRACT TIME ARTICLE 5 -

5.1 GENERAL 



 Page C-5City of Chandler Construction Bid  
Public Works & Utilities Department, Capital Projects Division  
Project Name: ALLEY REHABILITATION PM10 DUST EMISSIONS  
City Project No.:ST1909.401; Federal No.: CHN-0(245)D; ADOT No.: T024001C Rev. 
2/20/2020 

5.1.1 The total Contract Duration is 150 Calendar Days (including Substantial Completion 
by 120 Calendar Days and Final Acceptance by 150 Calendar Days). 

5.1.2 The Contract Time will start with the Notice to Proceed (NTP) and end with 
Final Acceptance, as set forth in Article 5.4 below. 

5.1.3 The Contract Time will be as set forth in the Project Schedule. Contractor agrees 
that it will commence performance of the Work and complete the Project through 
Final Acceptance within the Contract Time. 

5.1.4 Time is of the essence of this Contract for the Project, and for each phase and 
designated Milestone thereof. 

5.1.5 Failure on the part of Contractor to adhere to the approved Project Schedule will 
be deemed a material breach and sufficient grounds for termination of this 
Contract by City. 

5.2 PROJECT SCHEDULE 

5.2.1 The Project Schedule will be updated and maintained throughout Contractor’s 
performance under this Contract in accordance with Section 6.2 of the General 
Conditions. 

5.2.2 Work must be completed to meet the following milestones after the Notice to 
Proceed: 

Milestone Time Liquidated damages for delay 

1. within days $ per calendar day 

5.3 SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION 
Substantial Completion must be achieved no later than the Substantial Completion 
Date set forth in the Project Schedule.  Substantial Completion will be determined 
in accordance with Section 6.3 of the General Conditions. 

5.4 FINAL ACCEPTANCE 

5.4.1 Final Acceptance will be obtained within the time period set forth in the Project 
Schedule. 

5.4.2 Final Acceptance will be issued pursuant to Section 6.5 of the General Conditions. 

5.5 LIQUIDATED DAMAGES 



 Page C-6City of Chandler Construction Bid  
Public Works & Utilities Department, Capital Projects Division  
Project Name: ALLEY REHABILITATION PM10 DUST EMISSIONS  
City Project No.:ST1909.401; Federal No.: CHN-0(245)D; ADOT No.: T024001C Rev. 
2/20/2020 

5.5.1 Substantial Completion Liquidated Damages. Contractor acknowledges and 
agrees that if Contractor fails to obtain Substantial Completion of the Work within 
the Contract Time, City will sustain extensive damages and serious loss as a result 
of such failure. The exact amount of such damages will be extremely difficult to 
ascertain. Therefore, City and Contractor agree that if Contractor fails to achieve 
Substantial Completion of the Work within the Contract Time, City will be entitled to 
retain or recover from Contractor, as liquidated damages and not as a penalty, the 
sum per calendar day as indicated in MAG § 108.9. 

5.5.2 Final Acceptance Liquidated Damages. For the same reasons set forth in Article 
5.5.1 above, City and Contractor further agree that if Contractor fails to achieve 
Final Acceptance of the Work within the Contract Time, City will be entitled to 
retain or recover from Contractor, as liquidated damages and not as a penalty, the 
sum per calendar day as indicated in MAG § 108.9 commencing from the actual date 
of Substantial Completion or Final Acceptance as required under the Contract. 

5.5.3 MAG Liquidated Damages. Liquidated damages provisions in MAG § 108.9 will apply. 

5.5.4 City may deduct liquidated damages described in this Article 5.5 from any unpaid 
amounts then or thereafter due Contractor under this Agreement. Any liquidated 
damages not so deducted from any unpaid amounts due Contractor will be payable 
to City at the demand of City, together with interest from the date of the demand at 
the highest lawful rate of interest payable by Contractor. 

5.6 MUTUAL WAIVER OF CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES ONLY 

5.6.1 Contractor and City waive claims against each other for consequential damages 
arising out of or relating to this Contract. This mutual waiver includes. 

1. Damages incurred by City for rental expenses, for losses of use, income, profit,
financing, business and reputation, and for loss of management or employee
productivity or of the services of such persons; and

2. Damages incurred by Contractor for principal office expenses including the
compensation of personnel stationed there, for losses of financing, business and
reputation, and for loss of profit except anticipated profit arising directly from
the Work.

5.6.2 This mutual waiver is applicable, without limitation, to all consequential damages 
due to either party’s termination of this Contract. Nothing contained in this 
Article 5 .6 will be deemed to preclude an award of liquidated damages, when 
applicable, in accordance with Article 5.5 above. 



City of Chandler Construction Bid   Page C-7
Public Works & Utilities Department, Capital Projects Division  
Project Name: ALLEY REHABILITATION PM10 DUST EMISSIONS  
City Project No.:ST1909.401; Federal No.: CHN-0(245)D; ADOT No.: T024001C
Rev. 2/20/2020 

5.6.3 Nothing herein will be deemed to constitute a waiver of any other remedy available 
to City in the event of Contractor’s default under this Contract prior to full 
performance of the Work including, as applicable, specific performance or 
completion of the Work on behalf of Contractor, the cost and expense of which 
will be offset against any monies then or thereafter due to Contractor (if any) and 
otherwise immediately reimbursed to City by Contractor. 

 CONTRACT PRICE ARTICLE 6 -

6.1 CONTRACT PRICE 

6.1.1 In exchange for Contractor’s full, timely, and acceptable performances and 
construction of the Work under this Contract, and subject to all of the terms of 
this Contract, City will pay Contractor the “Contract Price,” which is $2,077,524.50. 

6.1.2 The Contract Price is all-inclusive and specifically includes all fees, cost, insurance 
and bond premiums, and taxes of any type necessary to fully, properly and timely 
perform and construct Work. 

6.2 COSTS 
For any portion of the Work which, either through this Contract, Change Order or 
otherwise, is performed and paid for on a cost, or time and materials basis, the 
costs which may be reimbursed to Contractor and chargeable against the Contract 
Price will be determined as set forth in MAG § 109.5. 

 PAYMENT ARTICLE 7 -

Payments will be made to Contractor in accordance with Section 8 of the General 
Conditions. 

 CHANGES TO THE CONTRACT ARTICLE 8 -

Changes to the Contract may be made in strict accordance with Section 9 of the 
General Conditions. 

 SUSPENSION AND TERMINATION ARTICLE 9 -

This Contract may be suspended or terminated in accordance with Section 10 of the 
General Conditions. 

 INSURANCE AND BONDS ARTICLE 10 -

10.1 Contractor must provide insurance in accordance with Sections 11.1 through 11.3 
of the General Conditions. Contractor must provide proof of such insurance and all 



 Page C-8City of Chandler Construction Bid  
Public Works & Utilities Department, Capital Projects Division  
Project Name: ALLEY REHABILITATION PM10 DUST EMISSIONS  
City Project No.:ST1909.401; Federal No.: CHN-0(245)D; ADOT No.: T024001C Rev. 
2/20/2020 

required endorsements in forms acceptable to City prior to commencing any 
Work under this Contract. 

10.2 Contractor must provide performance and payment bonds to City in Accordance 
with Section 11.4 of the General Conditions and A.R.S. § 34-222. 

10.3 Failure to provide proof of insurance and the required endorsements, or the 
required bonds, in forms acceptable to City, will be a material breach and grounds 
for termination for cause of this Contract. 

 INDEMNIFICATION ARTICLE 11 -

Contractor must have and assume the indemnity obligations set forth in Section 12 of the 
General Conditions. 

 DISPUTE RESOLUTION ARTICLE 12 -

Any claims or disputes relating to this Contract will be resolved according to the dispute 
resolution process set forth in Section 13 of, and Appendix 6 to, the General Conditions. 

SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW 





ITEM  16 

City Council Memorandum      Public Works & Utilities  Memo No. CP21-058
       

Date: February 8, 2021
To: Mayor  and Council
Thru: Marsha Reed, City Manager

Joshua H. Wright, Assistant City Manager
John Knudson, Public Works and Utilities Director
Andrew Goh, Capital Projects Manager

From: Gina Ishida-Raybourn, Utilities Engineering Manager 
Subject: Construction Contract No. WA2006.401, with Archer Western Construction, LLC, for the Chandler

Boulevard Waterline Replacement (Chippewa Place to Meadows Drive)

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council award Construction Contract No. WA2006.401 to Archer Western Construction,
LLC, for the Chandler Boulevard Waterline Replacement (Chippewa Place to Meadows Drive), in an
amount not to exceed $1,202,980.

Background/Discussion:
The City’s Water Distribution Division currently maintains over 36,000 valves and 1,100 miles of pipe in
the potable water system. This project is a continuation of a program to replace water mains that are
susceptible to main breaks due to age and condition. The program evaluates water infrastructure,
identifying high-priority water mains in need of replacement. Replacement of City water mains will result
in improved system reliability and reduced liability from water damage as a result of main breaks.

This project includes construction services to replace approximately 1,200 linear feet of water mains,
ranging in size from 8-inch to 12-inch in diameter, located in Chandler Boulevard between Chippewa
Place and Meadows Drive. In addition, water valves will be installed on Parklane Boulevard and
Commonwealth Avenue to provide additional isolation capabilities in the area.

The project scope of work includes installation of new 12-inch ductile iron pipe (DIP) waterline, new
8-inch DIP waterline, associated water services and connections, removal and disposal of existing pipe,
pavement, sidewalk, and landscape restoration. The contract completion time is 90 calendar days
following Notice to Proceed.

A related Professional Services Agreement with Wilson Engineers, LLC, for the Chandler Boulevard
Waterline Replacement (Chippewa Place to Meadows Drive) construction management services, is
also scheduled for this City Council meeting.

 



Evaluation:
Seven (7) bids were opened on December 29, 2020. The bid results were as follows:
  
Contractor Bid Total
Archer Western Construction, LLC $1,202,980.00
Achen-Gardner Construction, LLC $1,272,837.00
Revolution Industrial, LLC $1,506,528.00
Hunter Contracting Co.     $1,592,309.00
FPS, LLC $1,609,413.26
T&T Construction, Inc. $1,719,307.00
Action Direct, LLC dba Redpoint
Contracting $1,978,823.00

Fiscal Impact
Account No. Fund Name Program Name Dollar Amount CIP Funded Y/N
601.3820.6714.6WA023Water Bond Water Main Replacements $448,600 Y
605.3820.6714.6WA023Water Operating Water Main Replacements $754,380 Y

Attachments
Location Map 



ELLIOT RD

WARNER RD

RAY RD

CHANDLER BL

PECOS RD

GERMANN RD

QUEEN CREEK RD

OCOTILLO RD

CHANDLER HEIGHTS RD

RIGGS RD

HUNT HWVAL VISTA DR

LINDSAY RD

GILBERT RD

COOPER RD

MCQUEEN RD

ARIZONA AV

ALMA SCHOOL RD

DOBSON RD

PRICE RD

MCCLINTOCK DR

RURAL RD

KYRENE RD

56TH ST

CHANDLER BOULEVARD
WATERLINE REPLACEMENT

(CHIPPEWA PLACE TO MEADOWS
DRIVE), PROJECT NO. WA2006.401

°
NTS

CHANDLER BL

TOLEDO ST

PA
RK

LA
NE

 BLAR
RO

WH
EA

D D
R

COMMONWEALTH AV
AP

AC
HE

 DR

CH
IPP

EW
A P

L

ME
AD

OW
S D

R

CO
MA

NC
HE

 DR

WATERLINE REPLACEMENT
VALVE IMPROVEMENTS

MEMO NO. CP21-058

F:\ENGINEER\GENSERV\_ArcMap_Shared\Map Requests\Capital Projects\CP21-058 CHANDLER BLVD WATERLINE REPLACEMENT\CP21-058.mxd 1/15/2021 MARICELAH



ITEM  17 

City Council Memorandum      Public Works & Utilities  Memo No. CP21-071
       

Date: February 8, 2021
To: Mayor  and Council
Thru: Marsha Reed, City Manager

Joshua H. Wright, Assistant City Manager
John Knudson, Public Works and Utilities Director
Andrew Goh, Capital Projects Manager

From: Gina Ishida-Raybourn, Utilities Engineering Manager 
Subject: Professional Services Agreement No. WA2006.451, with Wilson Engineers, LLC, for the Chandler

Boulevard Waterline Replacement (Chippewa Place to Meadows Drive)

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council award Professional Services Agreement No. WA2006.451 to Wilson Engineers,
LLC, for the Chandler Boulevard Waterline Replacement (Chippewa Place to Meadows Drive), in an
amount not to exceed $105,730.

Background/Discussion:
The City’s Water Distribution Division currently maintains over 36,000 valves and 1,100 miles of pipe in
the potable water system. This project is a continuation of a program to replace water mains that are
susceptible to main breaks due to age and condition. The program evaluates water infrastructure,
identifying high-priority water mains in need of replacement. Replacement of City water mains will result
in improved system reliability and reduced liability from water damage as a result of main breaks.

This project includes the replacement of approximately 1,200 linear feet of water mains, ranging in size
from 8-inch to 12-inch in diameter, located in Chandler Boulevard between Chippewa Place and
Meadows Drive. In addition, water valves will be installed on Parklane Boulevard and Commonwealth
Avenue to provide additional isolation capabilities in the area. New development is anticipated in this
area in the near future and this project will replace potable waterlines before adjacent development
commences.

The project scope of work consists of contractor oversight, construction administration and inspection,
utility coordination, schedule review, review of progress payments, attendance at construction
meetings, review of shop drawings and submittals, preparation of final as-built drawings, and project
close-out. The contract completion time is 120 calendar days following Notice to Proceed.

A related Construction Contract with Archer Western Construction, LLC, for the Chandler Boulevard
Waterline Replacement (Chippewa Place to Meadows Drive), is also scheduled for this City Council
meeting.

 



 

Evaluation:
The City’s selection process was conducted in accordance with City policy and procedure and State
law. This project is being performed under the On-Call Consultant Pre-Qualified List for Water and
Wastewater Services. Staff recommends approval of this agreement with Wilson Engineers, LLC,
based on qualifications, relevant firm experience, team experience, project understanding, and project
approach.

Fiscal Impact
Account No. Fund Name Program Name Dollar Amount CIP Funded Y/N
605.3820.6714.6WA023 Water Bond Water Main Replacements $105,730.00 Y

Attachments
Location Map 
Agreement 



ELLIOT RD

WARNER RD

RAY RD

CHANDLER BL

PECOS RD

GERMANN RD

QUEEN CREEK RD

OCOTILLO RD

CHANDLER HEIGHTS RD

RIGGS RD

HUNT HWVAL VISTA DR

LINDSAY RD

GILBERT RD

COOPER RD

MCQUEEN RD

ARIZONA AV

ALMA SCHOOL RD

DOBSON RD

PRICE RD

MCCLINTOCK DR

RURAL RD

KYRENE RD

56TH ST

CHANDLER BOULEVARD
WATERLINE REPLACEMENT

(CHIPPEWA PLACE TO MEADOWS
DRIVE), PROJECT NO. WA2006.451

°
NTS

CHANDLER BL

TOLEDO ST

PA
RK

LA
NE

 BLAR
RO

WH
EA

D D
R

COMMONWEALTH AV
AP

AC
HE

 DR

CH
IPP

EW
A P

L

ME
AD

OW
S D

R

CO
MA

NC
HE

 DR

WATERLINE REPLACEMENT
VALVE IMPROVEMENTS

MEMO NO. CP21-071

F:\ENGINEER\GENSERV\_ArcMap_Shared\Map Requests\Capital Projects\CP21-071 CHANDLER BLVD WATERLINE REPLACEMENT\CP21-071.mxd 1/15/2021 MARICELAH















































ITEM  18 

City Council Memorandum      Public Works & Utilities  Memo No. CP21-074
       

Date: February 8, 2021
To: Mayor  and Council
Thru: Marsha Reed, City Manager

Joshua H. Wright, Assistant City Manager
John Knudson, Public Works and Utilities Director
Andrew Goh, Capital Projects Manager

From: Gina Ishida-Raybourn, Utilities Engineering Manager 
Subject: Report of City Manager Emergency Authorization of Project Agreement No. WW2103.402 with Garney

Companies, Inc., Pursuant to Job Order Contract No. JOC1914.401, for the Lone Butte Effluent
Pipeline Repair

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council accept the report of the City Manager emergency authorization of Project
Agreement No. WW2103.402 with Garney Companies, Inc., pursuant to Job Order Contract No.
JOC1914.401, for the Lone Butte Effluent Pipeline Repair, in an amount not to exceed $111,220.02.

Background/Discussion:
On Friday, September 4, 2020, the Public Works & Utilities Department was notified of a reclaimed
water (effluent) main break located on the Gila River Indian Community (GRIC) downstream of the
Lone Butte Wastewater Treatment Plant (LBWWTP). The City has a current lease agreement with
GRIC for the operation and maintenance of the LBWWTP, which includes the effluent pipeline. Staff
responded quickly by notifying GRIC Public Works personnel about the broken 36-inch diameter water
transmission main. 

The City and GRIC share a substantial interest in maintaining proper operation and long-term viability
of this pipeline segment that delivers reclaimed water to a storage basin for GRIC’s agricultural use.
Due to the impacts to an adjacent unpaved utility access road as well reclaimed water deliveries to
GRIC, pursuant to City Code Chapter 3, Section 3-13.3 Special Circumstances-Emergencies, the City
Manager authorized emergency procurement to hire an outside contractor to assist with initial clean-up
of the area surrounding the main break, investigation of the cause of the break, and completion of
necessary repairs to the reclaimed water transmission main. Following this authorization, the City
coordinated with Garney Companies, Inc., to complete repairs to the ruptured reclaimed water main. 

Evaluation:
On September 17, 2020, the City Manager determined the above-described circumstance represented
a public interest need pursuant to City Code Chapter 3-13.3 and authorized the use of emergency
procurement and expenditures to perform repairs on the effluent pipeline break. 

Fiscal Impact



Account No. Fund Name Program Name Dollar
Amount

CIP Funded
Y/N

610.3910.6714.6WW192 Reclaimed Water
Reserve Fund

Effluent Reuse -
Transmission Mains

$111,220.02 Y

Attachments
Location Map 
Agreement Project No. WW2103.402 



1/14/2021 Google Maps

https://www.google.com/maps/@33.2571353,-112.0083125,7797m/data=!3m1!1e3 1/1

Imagery ©2021 Landsat / Copernicus, Maxar Technologies, U.S. Geological Survey, USDA Farm Service Agency, Map data ©2021 2000 ft 

ginai
Polygon

ginai
Callout
Project Site

ginai
Text Box
Lone Butte Effluent Pipeline Repair
Project No. WW2103.402

ginai
Text Box
Memo No. CP-074



City of Chandler Job Order Project Agreement A-1 
Public Works & Utilities Department, Capital Projects Division  
Project Name: LONE BUTTE EFFLUENT PIPELINE REPAIR 
Project No.: WW2103.402 
Rev. 9/18/2020 

 
 

CITY OF CHANDLER 
JOB ORDER PROJECT AGREEMENT  

 
Project Name: LONE BUTTE EFFLUENT PIPELINE REPAIR 

Project No. WW2103.402 
 
This JOB ORDER PROJECT AGREEMENT (”Job Order”) is made this ________ day of _________ 2020 (“Effective 
Date”), by and between the City of Chandler, an Arizona municipal corporation, (“City”) and Garney 
Companies, Inc., a Missouri corporation, (“JOC Contractor”) and is entered into pursuant to Job Order 
Master Agreement No. JOC1914.401 (“JOC Master Agreement”). City and JOC Contractor may be referred to 
individually as “Party” or collectively as “Parties”). 
 
City and JOC Contractor, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein set forth, agree as follows:   

 
RECITALS 

 
A. On or about December 17, 2019, the Parties entered into the JOC Master Agreement, which terms and 
conditions are made a part of and incorporated into this Job Order Project Agreement by this reference. 
 
B. City proposes to engage JOC Contractor to repair existing 36-inch effluent pipeline as more fully 
described in Exhibit "A", which is attached to and made a part of this Job Order by this reference. 
 
C. JOC Contractor is ready, willing, and able to provide the services described in Exhibit “A” for the 
compensation and fees set forth and as described in Exhibit ”B”, which is attached to and made a part of 
this Agreement by this reference. 
 
ARTICLE 1.  DESCRIPTION OF WORK 
 
The Parties enter into this Job Order Project Agreement for the LONE BUTTE EFFLUENT PIPELINE REPAIR, 
Project Number WW2103.402.  The scope of work consists of repairing existing 36-inch effluent pipeline, 
all as more particularly set forth in Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. 
 
The JOC Contractor will not accept any change of scope, or change in contract provisions, unless issued in 
writing, as a contract amendment or change order and signed by the authorized signatories for each 
party. 
 
Performance and Payment Bonds, as set forth in Exhibit “C” and Exhibit “D” respectively attached hereto 
and incorporated herein by reference, will be due prior to execution of each Job Order Project Agreement 
in the full amount of each Job Order. 
 



City of Chandler Job Order Project Agreement A-1 
Public Works & Utilities Department, Capital Projects Division  
Project Name: LONE BUTTE EFFLUENT PIPELINE REPAIR 
Project No.: WW2103.402 
Rev. 9/18/2020 

At project completion, JOC Contractor must complete Contractor's Affidavit Regarding Settlement of 
Claims and Certificate of Completion, as set forth in Exhibit “E” and Exhibit “F” respectively attached 
hereto and incorporated herein by reference. 
 
ARTICLE 2.  PROJECT PRICE 
 
City will pay JOC Contractor for completion of the Work in accordance with the JOC Master Agreement a 
fee not to exceed the Guaranteed Maximum Price of $111,220.02 Dollars determined and payable as set 
forth in JOC Master Agreement and Exhibit “B” attached hereto and made a part hereof by reference.  
 
ARTICLE 3.  CONTRACT TIME & SCHEDULE 
 
JOC Contractor agrees to complete all Construction within 14 calendar days from the Notice to Proceed 
(NTP) Date.  
 
ARTICLE 4.  PARTICIPANTS 
 

CITY:  Project Manager:  Gina Ishida-Raybourn 
 Phone: 480-782-3584 
 Email: Gina.ishida-raybourn@chandleraz.gov 
 
JOC CONTRACTOR: Garney Companies, Inc.  
 4435 E. Holmes Ave., Ste. 102 

Mesa, AZ  85206 
 JOC Contractor Representative:  Shane O’Brien 
 Phone: 720-375-0988 
 Email: sobrien@garney.com 

 
 
 

SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW 
  



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Job Order as of the Effective Date. 

Date 

"CITY" 
CITY OF CHANDLER: 

DEPARTMENT HEAD/DESIGNEE

Recommended By: 

AndrewGoh,P� 

CIP City Engineer 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

City Attorney By: ____ _ 

ATTEST: 

City Clerk 

ADDRESS FOR NOTICE 
City of Chandler 
P.O. Box 4008, Mail Stop 407 
Chandler, AZ 85244-4008 

SEAL 

City of Chandler Job Order Project Agreement 
Public Works & Utilities Department. Capital Projects Division 
Project Name: LONE BUTTE EFFLUENT PIPELINE REPAIR 
Project No.: VVW2103.402 
Rev. 9/18/2020 

"JOC CONTRACTOR" 
Garney Companies, Inc.: 

Director of Operations 
Title 

11/11/2020 
Date 

,,,111111u,,,,, 
,,,,•''co MP ,1 ''•,,,,, ,,' "\ ........... 1\11 ,,, 

......

... 

� .•· '•· � .,,, 
:t-<_.-�·· ··· .. r .. \.::.�- . ,.... g st: [ CORPORATE \ z °; 

,,_,_....,_,._�'---"---��
.,,,.

�---s-EAL :n: 
\ \. ./' J 

ADDRESS FOR NOTICE 

Garney Companies, Inc. 

4435 E. Holmes Ave., Ste. 102 

Mesa, AZ 85206 

Phone: 720-375-0988 

Email: sobrien@garney.com 

\� ···•... . .. •··· , ... f 
,,,,,,, ,tt,sso•:jv..\ ,,,,-­,,,,,,,, .. ""'"'''\' 

A-1 



City of Chandler Job Order Project Agreement A-1 
Public Works & Utilities Department, Capital Projects Division  
Project Name: LONE BUTTE EFFLUENT PIPELINE REPAIR 
Project No.: WW2103.402 
Rev. 9/18/2020 

 
EXHIBIT A 

SCOPE OF WORK 
 

 
 

 



 4435 E. Holmes Ave, Suite 102, Mesa AZ 85206 
 Phone: 602.470.0001 
 Fax: 602.470.0025 
 www.garney.com 

 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

Exhibit A 

 

Scope 

JOC 1914.401 – WW2103 Lone Butte Effluent Pipeline Repair 

 

 

 

1. Repair 36” effluent pipeline as follows: 

a. 24 Hour Pump Watch and fuel up to 3 days until delivery of pipe and shutdown. 

b. Mobilize, Dewater excavation (as necessary) and coordinate plant shutdown. 

i. Garney will require a 4-day shutdown for the repair. 

c. Upon plant shutdown, dewater existing line and discharge into pond. 

d. Demo existing pipe joint to joint. 

e. Furnish and Install 36” C303 bar wrapped pipe per Thompson Pipe quote 

i. Pipe bedding to be ½ sack CLSM 1’ above pipe 

ii. Weld outside joints only 

iii. Interior joints shall be hand grouted 

iv. An additional 32 LF stick of pipe will be delivered and offloaded at the Lone 

Butte WRF. 

f. Welding inspection per Dye Penetrant Test in lieu of pressure test. 

i. Upon repair and welding inspection, pipeline shall be put into service. 

g. Backfill using native material and return to existing grade the pond slope and road. 

i. Excess dirt to be graded onsite 

ii. No seeding is included in this proposal 

h. Repair existing fencing as necessary 

2. Allowances included in this proposal: NONE 

3. Contingencies included in this proposal: 

a. City Contingency: $10,000 

4. Schedule is based on 6 days of work, delivery of new piping and shutdown of the existing line 

from flow. Pipe is currently scheduled to be delivered by 9/23/20.  

a. No submittals are included in this proposal. 

5. Specifically excluded from this proposal are: Building permits, Engineering, Remediation of 

contamination and hazardous material handling or disposal and testing services.  

 

 



EXHIBIT B 
FEE SCHEDULE 

 

City of Chandler Job Order Project Agreement B-1 
Public Works & Utilities Department, Capital Projects Division  
Project Name: LONE BUTTE EFFLUENT PIPELINE REPAIR 
Project No.: WW2103.402 
Rev. 9/18/2020 

 
 

 



4435 E. Holmes Ave, Suite 102, Mesa AZ 85206

Phone: 602.470.0001

Fax: 602.470.0025

www.garney.com

WA2103 Lone Butte Effluent Pipeline Repair

8,950.00$           
-$                    

6,876.17$           
-$                    

19,302.96$         
50,458.85$         

SUBTOTAL (NEGOTIATED PRICES): 85,587.98$        

10.00% 8,558.80$           

SUBTOTAL (NEGOTIATED PRICES + OVERHEAD AND PROFIT): 94,146.78$        

Sales Tax Percentage (Current Tax Rate) 5.07% 4,773.24$           

General Liability Insurance Percentage (Actual Cost per Job Order) 1.35% 1,270.98$           

Builder's Risk Insurance Percentage (Actual Cost per Job Order) 0.343% 322.92$              

Payment Bond (Actual Cost per Job Order) 0.75% 706.10$              

Performance Bond (Actual Cost per Job Order) included -$                    
SUBTOTAL (INSURANCE, BONDS, & TAXES): 7,073.25$           

SUBTOTAL (NEGOTIATED PRICES + OVERHEAD AND PROFIT + INSURANCE, BONDS, & TAXES): 101,220.02$      

City's Allowance 9.88% 10,000.00$         

TOTAL JOB ORDER: 111,220.02$       

Per the Job Order Master Agreement - This Fee Table includes all fees, costs, insurance and bond premiums, allowances, 

construction contingency, and taxes of any type necessary to fully, propertly and timely perform and construct the Work.  Also per 

the Job Order Master Agreement - For any portion of the Work which, either through this Contract, Change Order or otherwise, is 

performed and paid for on a cost, or time and materials basis, the costs may be reimbursed to JOC Contractor and chargeable 

against the Contract Price will be determined as set forth in MAG 109.5.

EXHIBIT "B-1"
Job Order Cost Proposal

Summary Sheet

Price of Subcontractor(s)
Price of Subconsultant(s)

Construction Material and Equipment

General Conditions
Preconstruction Labor (if applicable)
Construction Labor (if applicable)

Overhead and Profit (Coefficient per Job Order Master Agreement)

Insurance, Bonds, & Taxes

WW2103 Lone Butte Effluent Pipeline Repair



4435 E. Holmes Ave, Suite 102, Mesa AZ 85206

Phone: 602.470.0001

Fax: 602.470.0025

www.garney.com

SUBCONSULTANTS

PPSPPS - Professional Piping Systems - Welding Services



4435 E. Holmes Ave, Suite 102, Mesa AZ 85206

Phone: 602.470.0001

Fax: 602.470.0025

www.garney.com

EXHIBIT "B-2"

Supplemental Information

WA2103 Lone Butte Effluent Pipeline Repair

ATTACHED

WW2103 Lone Butte Effluent Pipeline Repair



WA2103 Lone Butte Effluent Pipeline Repair

9/18/2020 TOTALS 538 24,867 34,751 8,950 16,610 410 85,588

Comments Total Labor Materials Subcontract Equipment Other    

(Spec/Dwg) Description Quantity Unit MH MH/U Labor Unit Labor Total Matl Unit Matl Total Sub Unit Sub Total Equip Unit Equip Total Oth Unit Oth Total Total Cost Division Bid Item

GARNEY INDIRECTS GC 1

PRECONSTRUCTIONPROJECT MANAGER 1.0 WKS 0.0 #DIV/0! 0 0 0 0 0 0 GC 1

CONSTRUCTIONPROJECT MANAGER 1.0 WKS 10.0 10.000 104.60 1,046 0 0 0 0 1,046 GC 2

GENERAL SUPERINTENDENT 1.0 WKS 40.0 40.000 83.68 3,347 0 0 0 0 3,347 GC 2

PROJECT ENGINEER 1.0 WKS 20.0 20.000 58.56 1,171 0 0 0 0 1,171 GC 2

TRUCK: ON-HIGHWAY LIGHT DUTY 4X2 GAS 70.0 HRS 12.89 902 902 GC 2

SANITARY FACILITY 1.0 MOS 0.0 0.00 0 0 0 0 375.00 375 375 GC 2

DRINKING WATER 0.2 MOS 0.0 0.00 0 0 0 0 150.00 35 35 GC 2

PUMP WATCH YP 4

LABOR 0.0 0 0 0 0 0 0 YP 4

PUMP WATCH - DAY REGULAR TIME 3.0 SHIFTS 24.0 8.000 38.29 919 0 0 0 0 919 YP 4

PUMP WATCH - DAY OVERTIME TIME 3.0 SHIFTS 12.0 4.000 57.43 689 0 0 0 0 689 YP 4

PUMP WATCH - NIGHT REGULAR TIME 3.0 SHIFTS 48.0 16.000 38.29 1,838 0 0 0 0 1,838 YP 4

PUMP WATCH - NIGHT OVERTIME TIME 3.0 SHIFTS 24.0 8.000 57.43 1,378 0 0 0 0 1,378 YP 4

PUMP: FUEL 20.0 GAL 0.0 0.00 0 3.00 60 0 0 0 60 YP 5

PIPELINE REPAIR YP 4

LABOR 0.0 0 0 0 0 0 0 YP 4

REPLACE PIPE - REGULAR TIME - YARD PIPE CREW 6.0 SHIFTS 288.0 48.000 40.22 11,583 0 0 0 0 11,583 YP 4

REPLACE PIPE - OVERTIME  - YARD PIPE CREW 6.0 SHIFTS 72.0 12.000 60.33 2,896 0 0 0 0 2,896 YP 4

MATERIAL & EQUIPMENT 0.0 0 0 0 0 0 0 YP 5

JD470 EXCAVATOR: CATERPILLAR 349F 50.0 HRS 167.16 8,358 8,358 YP 5

WHEEL LOADER: DEERE 544K 50.0 HRS 61.44 3,072 3,072 YP 5

TRUCK: ON-HIGHWAY LIGHT DUTY 4X4 DIESEL UTILITY 50.0 HRS 40.26 2,013 2,013 YP 5

DRAIN LINE PUMP: 6" PUMP 1.0 WEEK 0.0 0.00 0 0 0 2,265.00 2,265 0 2,265 YP 5

PUMP: FUEL 100.0 GAL 0.0 0.00 0 3.00 300 0 0 0 300 YP 5

SHORING: 16' X 10' TRENCH BOX 2.0 EA 0.0 0.00 0 1,104.42 2,209 0 0 0 2,209 YP 5

PIPE MATERIAL: 36" C303 PIPE CL 250 96.0 LF 190.00 18,240 0 18,240 YP 5

PIPE MATERIAL: 36" C303 BUTT STRAP 4.0 EA 560.00 2,240 0 2,240 YP 5

PIPE MATERIAL: 36" JOINT RINGS W/BUR 2.0 EA 600.00 1,200 0 1,200 YP 5

PIPE MATERIAL: 6" THREADED HAND-HOLE OUTLETS 8.0 EA 224.00 1,792 0 1,792 YP 5

PIPE MATERIAL: FREIGHT 1.0 LOAD 3,000.00 3,000 0 3,000 YP 5

PIPE MATERIAL: SIKA 123 GROUT 12.0 EA 65.00 780 0 780 YP 5

PIPE MATERIAL: GROUT 4.0 CY 150.00 600 0 600 YP 5

READY MIX: 1/2 SACK CLSM 60.0 CY 68.00 4,080 0 4,080 YP 5

MISC: EXISTING FENCING MATERIAL 1.0 LS 250.00 250 0 250 YP 5

SUBCONTRACTORS 0 YP 3

PPS WELDING SERVICE 64.0 HRS 0.0 0.00 0 0 85.00 5,440 0 0 5,440 YP 3

WELDING INSPECTION SERVICE 1.0 LS 0.0 0.00 0 0 1,000.00 1,000 0 0 1,000 YP 3

TRUCKING: DISPOSE DEMO PIPE 1.0 EA 0.0 0.00 0 0 750.00 750 0 0 750 YP 3

TRUCKING: EXCAVATOR IN/OUT 2.0 EA 0.0 0.00 0 0 490.00 980 0 0 980 YP 3

TRUCKING: LOADER IN/OUT 2.0 EA 0.0 0.00 0 0 390.00 780 0 0 780 YP 3

Page 4 of 4

WW2103 Lone Butte Effluent Line Repair



Garney Construction Composite Rate Sheet Version

WA2103 Lone Butte Effluent Pipeline Repair

Prepared by: DMT

Addenda Noted: 

0.00%

Classification Wage Fringe Total Rate
(LESS LIT)

Laborer 1 31.33$          -$             31.33$          

Laborer 2 31.33$          -$             31.33$          

Laborer 3 31.33$          -$             31.33$          

Form Carpenter 38.29$          -$             38.29$          

Finish Carpenter 41.77$          -$             41.77$          

Cement Mason 34.81$          -$             34.81$          

Ironworker 41.77$          -$             41.77$          

Pipefitter 38.29$          -$             38.29$          

Piperfitter Helper 31.33$          -$             31.33$          

Pipelayer 38.29$          -$             38.29$          

Operator 1 43.51$          -$             43.51$          

Operator 2 38.29$          -$             38.29$          

Operator 3 31.33$          -$             31.33$          

Crane Operator 49.69$          -$             49.69$          

Carpenter Foreman 58.56$          -$             58.56$          

Pipe/Mech Foreman 58.56$          -$             58.56$          

TYPE OF WORK:

CRAFT # OF EMPLOY BASE FRINGE HOURLY TOTAL

EACH STATUS WAGE BENEFITS RATE RATE

Operator 1 1 -$             43.51$          43.51$          

Operator 3 1 -$             31.33$          31.33$          

Pipefitter 2 -$             38.29$          76.58$          

Laborer 1 1 -$             31.33$          31.33$          

Pipe/Mech Foreman 1 -$             58.56$          58.56$          

TOTALS 6 241.31$        

YARD PIPE CREW COMPOSITE RATE 40.22$          

TYPE OF WORK:

CRAFT # OF EMPLOY BASE FRINGE HOURLY TOTAL

EACH STATUS WAGE BENEFITS RATE RATE

Operator 1 1 -$             65.27$          65.27$          

Operator 3 1 -$             46.99$          46.99$          

Pipefitter 2 -$             57.43$          114.86$        

Laborer 1 1 -$             46.99$          46.99$          

Pipe/Mech Foreman 1 -$             87.85$          87.85$          

TOTALS 6 361.96$        

YARD PIPE CREW OVERTIME COMPOSITE RATE 60.33$          

OPERATOR: CRANES

LEAD: FOREMAN / ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT

LEAD: FOREMAN / ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT

LABORER: COMMON

LABORER: PIPELAYER

OPERATOR: TRACKHOE

OPERATOR: FRONT END LOADER

OPERATOR: BACKHOE

CARPENTERS: FORM WORK

CARPENTERS: FINISH WORK

CARPENTERS: CEMENT FINISHER

CARPENTERS: FINISH WORK

LABORER: PIPELAYER

LABORER: COMMON

LABORER: COMMON

LABORER: COMMON

Page 1

WW2103 Lone Butte Effluent Pipeline Repair



FY2019-2020

JOC CONTRACT # JOC1914.401

DESCRIPTION STD RATE OT RATE

SALARY: PROJECT MANAGER 104.60$         156.90$              

SALARY: PROJECT ENGINEER 58.56$           87.85$                

SALARY: SUPERINTENDENT 83.68$           125.52$              

LEAD: FOREMAN / ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT 58.56$           87.85$                

OPERATOR: TRACKHOE 43.51$           65.27$                

OPERATOR: FRONT END LOADER 38.29$           57.43$                

OPERATOR: BACKHOE 31.33$           46.99$                

OPERATOR: CRANES 49.69$           74.53$                

LABORER: PIPELAYER 38.29$           57.43$                

LABORER: COMMON 31.33$           46.99$                

CARPENTERS: FORM WORK 38.29$           57.43$                

CARPENTERS: FINISH WORK 41.77$           62.65$                

CARPENTERS: CEMENT FINISHER 34.81$           52.21$                

 

*RATES ARE PER HOUR

CREW RATE SHEET



FY2019-2020

JOC CONTRACT # JOC1914.401

DESCRIPTION

EXCAVATOR: CATERPILLAR 390FL

EXCAVATOR: CATERPILLAR 374DL

EXCAVATOR: CATERPILLAR 349F

EXCAVATOR: CATERPILLAR 336F

EXCAVATOR: CATERPILLAR 335FLCR

EXCAVATOR: CATERPILLAR 330F

EXCAVATOR: CATERPILLAR 325FLCR

EXCAVATOR: CATERPILLAR 315FL

EXCAVATOR: CATERPILLAR 308ECR

WHEEL LOADER: DEERE 744K

WHEEL LOADER: DEERE 644K

WHEEL LOADER: DEERE 624K

WHEEL LOADER: DEERE 544K

RUBBER TIRE BACKHOE: CATERPILLAR 420F2 IT

RUBBER TIRE BACKHOE: DEERE 310SK

FORKLIFT: CATERPILLAR TL1055C

SKID STEER LOADER: CATERPILLAR 299D 

SKID STEER LOADER: CATERPILLAR 289D

SKID STEER LOADER: CATERPILLAR 262D

TRUCK: ON-HIGHWAY WATER TANKER

TRUCK: ON-HIGHWAY LIGHT DUTY 4X4 DIESEL UTILITY

TRUCK: ON-HIGHWAY LIGHT DUTY 4X2 GAS 

MISCELLANEOUS: FX30 500GAL VACUUM EXCAVATOR

*RATES ARE PER HOUR

82.28$                                         

FHWA RATE

380.85$                                       

283.74$                                       

167.16$                                       

114.40$                                       

115.92$                                       

105.19$                                       

87.30$                                         

91.87$                                         

56.44$                                         

116.28$                                       

44.83$                                         

67.97$                                         

61.44$                                         

33.49$                                         

42.49$                                         

46.15$                                         

52.20$                                         

46.66$                                         

32.16$                                         

49.03$                                         

40.26$                                         

12.89$                                         

CREW RATE SHEET



 

 

 

 
Carl Rodgers 

Garney Construction 

   

Phone:   (913) 302-7724 

Fax:    

Email: crodgers@garney.com 

  
 

Date: 9/15/2020 
Rep.: Vivian Felix 
 
 

 

 
Qty Item # Name Price Total

4 36" C303 Butt-Strap $560.00 $2,240.00

2 36" Joint Rings w/ BUR $600.00 $1,200.00

64 36B303 36" C303 Pipe CL250 $190.00 $12,160.00

8 6" Threaded outlet $224.00 $1,792.00

** Freight is not included in prices *

** 2 day delivery **

Sub Total $17,392.00

Shipping & Handling  

Taxes 0.000% $.00

TOTAL $17,392.00

 

 

 
 

 
 
1003 MacArthur Blvd 

Grand Prairie, Texas 75050 
Phone: 972-262-3600 
  
 

 

 

Quote #: 200915-2115 

Freight to be $3,000.00



 

 

 

***ALL QUANTITIES ARE ESTIMATED. ACTUAL QUANTITIES  
WILL BE INVOICED AT QUOTED RATE. STAND-BY TIME 
WILL BE APPLIED. 

 

Thank you for your business. 



 

 

 

Quote #    
Today's Date:    

 
THOMPSON PIPE GROUP CUSTOMER INFORMATION SHEET 

 
 
 

Public Work 

Private Work 

 
Name and Location of Job - Address, Zip and County 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Owner Name and Address: (If Applicable) 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
General Contractor Name and Address: (If Applicable) 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Subcontractor Name and Address: (If Applicable) 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
Bond Company Name, Address and Bond Number: 

(Surety name - not insurance co): 

 
 

 
 

 
 

* When available, please attach a copy of the payment bond. 

 
 

 
PO #:      

 
 

 
Tax Exempt: 
Yes No 

Certificate Attached: 

Yes No 

Sales Representative: 

 
 

Phone: 

Contact: 

*Job Site Contact: 

Cell: 

 
 
 

Phone: 

Contact: 

*Job Site Contact: 

Cell: 

 
 
 

Phone: 

Contact: 

*Job Site Contact: 

Cell: 

 
  Is the Job Bonded?  

Yes No 
 
 

Phone: 

Contact: 

Bond No: 

 
NOTE: IF PROJECT IS TAX EXEMPT, PLEASE FORWARD 

A COPY OF THE TAX EXEMPTION CERTIFICATE. OR YOU WILL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR TAXES 

 

Completed By: 

Date Completed: 

The following information is required prior to scheduling and ordering material. 

 
 

 
 
 
 



 

 

 

THOMPSON PIPE GROUP PRESSURE 

PIPELINE SERVICES TERMS AND CONDITIONS: 

 

Scheduling of Welding Services:  

Standard lead time for welding services is 2- 3 weeks. Expediting these times is possible depending on 

volume and project. The actual date/time of service is subject to mutual agreement and the final 

scheduled date must be confirmed by Thompson Pipe Group Pressure. In the event work is scheduled and 

subsequently cancelled, Thompson Pipe Group Pressure will make every attempt to reschedule as per your 

request. 

Scheduling of Tapping Services: 

Standard lead time for tapping services is 2- 3 weeks. Expediting these times is possible depending on 

volume and project.  The actual date/time of service is subject to mutual agreement and the final 

scheduled date must be confirmed by Thompson Pipe Group Pressure. In the event work is scheduled and 

subsequently cancelled, Thompson Pipe Group Pressure will make every attempt to reschedule as per your 

request. 

Material Delivery Terms: 

1) DIP mechanical accessories are not included with this quote 

2) Freight to be FOB Thompson Pipe Group Pressure facility, pre-paid and add. 

3) Standard (non-expedited) delivery times for non-stock materials is estimated 10-12 weeks from 

approved drawings. Specific delivery dates must be confirmed at the time of order. 

4) Material Delivery Terms: F.O.B. Origin  

5) Prices are Quoted for Class 250 pipe unless otherwise noted. 

II. SPECIAL NOTES PERTAINING TO PRICES QUOTED  

The following notes are conditions of the pricing quoted herein: 

1) Prices are firm for 30 days from the date of this quote. 

2) Pricing includes one laying gasket (polyisoprene, 60 Duro) and one grout wrapper per Thompson Pipe 

Group Pressure joint. Additional gaskets and diapers will be invoiced accordingly. 

3) A cancellation charge applies if the order is cancelled. Materials are not eligible for return or credit 

unless specifically authorized by Thompson Pipe Group Pressure PRIOR TO RETURNING. 

4) Normal business hours are defined as 8:00am to 5:00pm, Monday thru Friday, exclusive of holidays.                    

OVER TIME CHARGES APPLY IF WORK IS PERFORMED AFTER NORMAL BUSINESS HOURS.  

5) STANDBY charges may apply and will Invoiced to buyers account. 



 

 

 

6) ALL QUOTED PRICING is contingent upon the customer furnishing materials and/or services as defined 
below. 
7) Contractor or Owner is responsible for providing and mounting tapping valve unless otherwise 

specified. 

8) If these quoted materials are used to connect to an existing concrete pressure pipeline, it is the 

responsibility of the purchaser to ensure that the existing pipeline is properly restrained to account for any 

thrust forces that may result from this modification. Please contact Thompson Pipe Group Pressure staff if 

there are any concerns or questions regarding the use of this material. 

Site Preparation 

1) Contractor or Owner is responsible for arranging and paying for all necessary permits, licenses, fees 

and/or inspections 

2) Contractor or Owner is responsible for all excavation de-watering, ventilation and/or scaffolding 

necessary to provide clear and safe workspace per applicable OSHA requirements. 

3) Contractor or Owner is responsible for removal of all hazardous and /or explosive chemicals from within 

pipeline, and surrounding area 

Safety 

1) Contractor or Owner is responsible for site excavations must meet Occupational Safety and Health 

Administration (OSHA) Safety Standards 

2) CONFINED SPACES WILL NOT BE ENTERED UNTIL OSHA PERMIT ENTRY PROCEDURES HAVE BEEN 

COMPLETED to our personnel’s satisfaction. 

3) The work site location must be accessible by a suitable roadway from a public highway. If the jobsite 

location or site conditions require barricades, traffic control or assistance, you or your representative must 

furnish barricades and assistance. 

4) Site conditions MUST be suitable for safe and efficient welding / tapping. If Wet / Muddy conditions 

exist, rock, pallets or other acceptable material must be employed to facilitate safe and efficient work 

conditions. 

Equipment & Utilities - Personnel to operate required. 

1) Contractor or Owner is responsible to furnish electric power and lighting as required by us to perform 

our work. 

2) Contractor or Owner is responsible to furnish an air compressor capable of operating and delivering 

compressed air at 120 cfm at 90 psi. 

3) Contractor or Owner is responsible for furnishing any necessary lifting equipment to lift, move, set or 

place our furnished equipment or materials. 



 

 

 

Labor 
 1) Contractor or Owner is responsible to furnish at a minimum, one man designated as your 

representative to provide safety oversight. Your representative must always be available to us when we 

are performing work on site for you. 

 2) Contractor or Owner is responsible to furnish labor to assist in rigging or handling materials in and out 

of work area. 

3) Contractor or Owner is responsible for Pipeline Preparation 

4) Thompson Pipe Group provides grout material and labor to grout the saddle and the gland. Thompson 

Pipe Group provides and installs diaper. Thompson Pipe Group DOES NOT provide material or labor to fill 

diapers with grout / mortar unless otherwise specified. 

5) You or your representative will be asked by our personnel to verify and confirm the pipeline operating 

pressure is reduced to a safe working limit (generally <90 psi) 

6) Contractor or Owner is responsible for Post Repair 

7) Contractor or Owner is responsible for Clean-up and debris removal. 

8) Contractor or Owner is responsible for Inspection of the work and sign off / acceptance of completion. 

9) Contractor or Owner is responsible for Restoring the pipeline and site to service after our work is 

complete 

10) TAPPING: Coupon retrieval is not guaranteed and in the event the coupon is not retrieved, or pilot bit 

is broken, Thompson Pipe Group Pressure is not liable for any costs associated with retrieval. 

ESCALATION Prices are firm for material shipped within 120 days of our acceptance of your order. Prices 

for material shipped after 120 days will be increased 1.5% per quarter until complete shipment is made on 

the order. 

DELIVERY Ready-to-ship/delivery noted elsewhere within this quotation is based on current production 

schedules and is based on your release for manufacturing or our receipt of approved drawings, and receipt 

of purchase order. Completed at a rate jointly determined by the purchaser and seller, subject to the 

terms and conditions herein. Changes in our production schedule prior to acceptance of this quotation 

may require adjustments in the delivery estimate. NOTE: Jobsite must be accessible to normal truck/trailer 

operations with no pushing or pulling allowed on truck/trailer. 

Only items specifically stated are included in the price(s). 

PAYMENT TERMS   Payment in full is due 30 days after date of invoice.  Retainage is not allowed. 

SERVICE CHARGE 1.5% per month on the unpaid balance will be due on all amounts unpaid 30 days after 

the due date. 



 

 

 

ACCEPTANCE This quotation is valid for acceptance for 30 days from date of bid shown on this quotation.  
If an award is not made within that time, we will accept an order from you contingent upon your receipt of 
a contract with the owner. 
SERVICE WARRANTY All service work, including but not limited to tapping, welding, line stop, field 

representation performed by us is subject to the satisfaction and acceptance of the customer at the time 

of performance, and no other responsibility or liability is accepted or implied by us. 

BASIS OF QUOTATION This quotation is made subject to the attached terms and conditions. All quotations 

are subject to correction of stenographic errors. 

 

III. THOMPSON PIPE GROUP ATTACHMENTS PROVIDED WITH THIS QUOTATION   

Attachments: 

- Quote 

- Customer Information Sheet (COMPLETE AND RETURN WITH ORDER) 

IV. Sales Tax: 

TAXES   Sales or Use Tax are not included.  Purchaser is responsible for payment of any such   assessments. 

If project is tax exempt, purchaser must furnish a tax exemption certificate at time of signing quotation, or 

tax will be invoiced. 

 

CUSTOMER ACCEPTANCE: 

 

Company: ____________________________________ 

  

Print Name: ___________________________________ 

 

Title: ________________________________________   

 

Thompson Pipe Group Pressure Quote Number: ___________________ 

 



9229 S Hardy Drive  Tempe, AZ 85284
Phone: 480-626-5257   Email: Sales@cpepumps.com

Quote #: CP20-2031 Job Name:

Customer: Garney Construction Location:
4435 East Holmes Avenue, Suite 102

Mesa, AZ 85206

Contact: Carl Rodgers  

Phone: 913-302-7724

Email: crodgers@garney.com   

Rental Equipment RATES
Qty Unit Rental Period Description Day Week 4 Week Total

1 EA 1 Week 250.00$           750.00$      2,250.00$     750.00$           
1 EA 1 Week 30.00$             90.00$        270.00$        90.00$             
1 EA 1 Week 30.00$             90.00$        270.00$        90.00$             
3 EA 1 Week 35.00$             105.00$      315.00$        315.00$           
1 LOT 1 Week 15.00$             45.00$        135.00$        45.00$             

 

QUANTITIES ARE ESTIMATES 1 Week Rental Total $1,290.00

QUANTITIES USED WILL BE BILLED
 Delivery $150.00

Pick-up $150.00

Estimated Install Labor $450.00

Estimated Removal Labor $225.00

Quote does not include applicable taxes

ESTIMATE TOTAL - $2,265.00
 

Prepared by: Tyler Larkins Accepted by:

 

Date: Date:

Subject to Terms and Conditions on Page 2 Estimate valid for 30 days from issuance date
Thursday, September 17, 2020

Hose, 6" x 20' Suction

GRIC - 6" Pump and Hoses 

Rental Quote

Chandler, AZ 

Pump, Pioneer 6" PP66S12

Hose, 6" x 50' Layflat 
Misc. Pipe, Hose and Fittings

Hose, 6" x 10' Suction

mailto:crodgers@garney.com


9229 S Hardy Drive  Tempe, AZ 85284

Phone: 480-626-5257   Email: Sales@cpepumps.com

Terms, Conditions & Specifications

1. Customer agrees to abide by the terms and conditions on the purchase or rental contract.

2. Quantities are estimates and system is designed with information supplied by the customer. Any additional

requirements will incur additional charges.

3. Customer responsible for all permits, traffic control, road crossings, etc.

4. Customer responsible for all FUEL & PM SERVICE during pump rentals.

5. Pump rate is based on 8 hour day, 48 hour week, 192 hour 4 week.

6. Overtime Charges, if applicable, are Computed: (Monthly Rate / 192) X .5 = O/T Charge Per Hour

7. Labor rate is for normal working hours. Weekend or nighttime will incur additional charges.

8.  Rental begins when equipment leaves CPE branch.  Pumping systems are on rent during installation.

JOB SPECIFIC TERMS, CONDITIONS & SPECIFICATIONS

 

9.  If Water Bridges are rented, they are placed under customer’s direction.  Customer accepts sole responsibility for placement, ongoing 

maintenance, and suitability for use in each specific traffic location.























 
EXHIBIT E 

 

City of Chandler Job Order Project Agreement E-1 
Public Works & Utilities Department, Capital Projects Division  
Project Name: LONE BUTTE EFFLUENT PIPELINE REPAIR 
Project No.: WW2103.402 
Rev. 9/18/2020 

CONTRACTOR'S AFFIDAVIT REGARDING SETTLEMENT OF CLAIMS 
 

________________________, Arizona 
 

Date ____________________________ 
Project Name: LONE BUTTE EFFLUENT PIPELINE REPAIR 
Project No.:  WW2103.402 

To the City of Chandler, Arizona 

Gentlemen: 

This is to certify that all lawful claims for materials, rental of equipment and labor used in connection with 
the construction of the above project, whether by subcontractor or claimant in person, have been duly 
discharged. 
 
The undersigned, for the consideration of $________________________, as set out in the final pay estimate, as 
full and complete payment under the terms of the contract, hereby waives and relinquishes any and all 
further claims or right of lien under, in connection with, or as a result of the above described project.  The 
undersigned further agrees to indemnify and save harmless the City of Chandler against any and all liens, 
claims or liens, suits, actions, damages, charges and expenses whatsoever, which said City may suffer 
arising out of the failure of the undersigned to pay for all labor performances and materials furnished for 
the performance of said installation. 
 
Signed and dated at ________________, this _________ day of _______________ 20_____. 
 
 

__________________________________ 
                       CONTRACTOR 

 
By _______________________________ 

STATE OF ARIZONA  ) 
) SS 

COUNTY OF MARICOPA ) 
 
The foregoing instrument was subscribed and sworn to before me this __________ day of __________________ 
20 _________. 
 

___________________________________ 
                              Notary Public 
 

                                                                         
 ___________________________________ 

                              My Commission Expires



 
EXHIBIT F 

 

City of Chandler Job Order Project Agreement F-1 
Public Works & Utilities Department, Capital Projects Division  
Project Name: LONE BUTTE EFFLUENT PIPELINE REPAIR 
Project No.: WW2103.402 
Rev. 9/18/2020 
 

CERTIFICATE OF COMPLETION 
 
Project: LONE BUTTE EFFLUENT PIPELINE REPAIR   
Project No.: WW2103.402 
 
 (TO BE COMPLETED BY CONTRACTOR) 
 
I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT ALL GOODS AND/OR SERVICES REQUIRED BY CITY OF CHANDLER PROJECT NO. 
WW2103.402 HAVE BEEN DELIVERED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND BID 
SPECIFICATIONS AND ALL ACTIVITIES REQUIRED BY THE CONTRACTOR UNDER THE CONTRACT HAVE BEEN 
COMPLETED AS OF ____________________________. 
                         (Date) 
FIRM NAME: ________________________________ 
 
PRINCIPAL: ________________________________ 

         (Name) 
 

________________________________ 
      (Signature) 

 
________________________________ DATE: ___________________ 

          (Title) 
 
CERTIFIED BY ENGINEER/CONSULTANT (IF APPLICABLE): 
 
_________________________________  DATE: ____________________ 

      (Signature) 
 
_________________________________  

        (Firm Name) 
  
PROJECT ACCEPTED BY USER DEPARTMENT 
 
_________________________________  DATE: ____________________ 

         (Signature) 
 
_________________________________  

          (Dept. /Div.) 
_______________ Date of Final Walk-Through 
 
_______________ Date As-Built Received 
 
_______________ City As-Built Number 

 
 
 
 



ITEM  19 

City Council Memorandum      Public Works & Utilities  Memo No. CP21-080
       

Date: February 8, 2021
To: Mayor  and Council
Thru: Marsha Reed, City Manager

Joshua H. Wright, Assistant City Manager
John Knudson, Public Works and Utilities Director
Kevin Lair, Transportation Manager
Andrew Goh, Capital Projects Manager

From: Daniel Haskins, Engineer
Subject: Professional Services Agreement No. ST1909.451, with Tristar Engineering and Management, Inc., for

the Alley Rehabilitation PM10 Dust Emissions Project Construction Management Services

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council award Professional Services Agreement No. ST1909.451 to Tristar Engineering and
Management, Inc., for the Alley Rehabilitation PM10 Dust Emissions Project Construction Management
Services, in an amount not to exceed $226,618.88.

Background/Discussion:
The Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) has developed ambient air quality trends for particle
pollution, also called particulate matter. PM10 describes inhalable particles with diameters that are
generally ten micrometers and smaller. In 2007, Maricopa County approved a regional PM10 reduction
plan imposed by the EPA. The City continues to perform alleyway rehabilitation to adhere to this
regional plan.

The project scope of work includes pre-construction assistance, construction management contractor
oversight, construction administration and inspection, utility coordination, materials testing quality
assurance, Federal Highway Administration funding compliance, and project close-out.  Services also
include public outreach and coordination with affected residents and businesses. The contract
completion time is 180 calendar days following Notice to Proceed.

A related Construction Contract with Cactus Asphalt, a Division of Cactus Transport, Inc., for the Alley
Rehabilitation PM10 Dust Emissions Project, is also scheduled for this City Council meeting.

Evaluation:
The selection process was conducted in accordance with City policy and procedure and State law. Staff
recommends approval of this agreement with Tristar Engineering and Management, Inc., based on
qualifications relevant firm experience, team experience, project understanding, and project approach.

Financial Implications:
This project is funded by 94.3% federal funds and 5.7% local funds.



Fiscal Impact
Account No. Fund Name Program

Name
Dollar
Amount

CIP Funded
Y/N

417.3310.6513.6ST248 Capital Grants Street
Repaving

$213,702.00 Y

411.3310.6513.6ST248 Streets General Obligation
Bonds

Street
Repaving

$12,916.88 Y

Attachments
Location Map 
Agreement 



ELLIOT RD

WARNER RD

RAY RD

CHANDLER BL

PECOS RD

GERMANN RD

QUEEN CREEK RD

OCOTILLO RD

CHANDLER HEIGHTS RD

RIGGS RD

HUNT HWVAL VISTA DR

LINDSAY RD

GILBERT RD

COOPER RD

MCQUEEN RD

ARIZONA AV

ALMA SCHOOL RD

DOBSON RD

PRICE RD

MCCLINTOCK DR

RURAL RD

KYRENE RD

56TH ST SR202

I10

SR
10

1

ALLEY REHABILITATION
PM-10 DUST EMISSIONS
PROJECT NO. ST1909.451

FED NO. CHN-0(245)D
ADOT NO. T024001C

°
NTS

MEMO NO. CP21-080 

ALLEY REHABILITATION

F:\ENGINEER\GENSERV\_ArcMap_Shared\Map Requests\Capital Projects\ST1909.451 ALLEY REHABILITATION PM10 DUST EMISSIONS\ST1909.451.mxd 1/4/2021 MARICELAH



  
City of Chandler Professional Services Agreement   Page 1  
Public Works & Utilities Department, Capital Projects Division  
Project Name: ALLEY REHABILITATION PM 10 DUST EMISSIONS 
Project No.: ST1909.451; FEDERAL ID NO.: CHN-0(245)D; ADOT NO.: T024001C 
 Rev. 10/16/2020  
 

 
 

 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Construction Management Services 

ALLEY REHABILITATION PM 10 DUST EMISSIONS 

Project No. ST1909.451; FEDERAL ID NO.: CHN-0(245)D; ADOT NO.: T024001C 

Council Date: February 11, 2021   Item No.  
 

THIS AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into on the ______ day of_________________, 
2021 (“Effective Date”), by and between City of Chandler, an Arizona municipal corporation, 
("City''), and Tristar Engineering and Management, Inc., an Arizona corporation, 
("Consultant") (City and Consultant may individually be referred to as “Party” and collectively 
referred to as “Parties”). 
 

RECITALS 
 
A. City proposes to engage Consultant to provide Construction Management Services for 
ALLEY REHABILITATION PM 10 DUST EMISSIONS project as more fully described in Exhibit 
"A", which is attached to and made a part of this Agreement by this reference. 
 
B. Consultant is ready, willing, and able to provide the services described in Exhibit “A” for 
the compensation and fees set forth and as described in Exhibit ”B”, which is attached to 
and made a part of this Agreement by this reference. 
 
C. City desires to contract with Consultant to provide these services under the terms and 
conditions set forth in this Agreement. 
 

AGREEMENT 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual promises contained in this 
Agreement, City and Consultant agree as follows: 
 
SECTION I--CONSULTANT’S SERVICES 
 
Consultant must perform the services described in Exhibit “A” to City’s satisfaction within 
the terms and conditions of this Agreement and within the care and skill that a person who 
provides similar services in Chandler, Arizona exercises under similar conditions. All work or 
services furnished by Consultant under this Agreement must be performed in a skilled and 
workmanlike manner.  All fixtures, furnishings, and equipment furnished by Consultant as 
part of the work or services under this Agreement must be new, or the latest model, and of 
the most suitable grade and quality for the intended purpose of the work or service.  



  
City of Chandler Professional Services Agreement   Page 2  
Public Works & Utilities Department, Capital Projects Division  
Project Name: ALLEY REHABILITATION PM 10 DUST EMISSIONS 
Project No.: ST1909.451; FEDERAL ID NO.: CHN-0(245)D; ADOT NO.: T024001C 
 Rev. 10/16/2020  
 

 
SECTION II--PERIOD OF SERVICE 
 
Consultant must perform the services described in Exhibit “A” for the term of this 
Agreement.  Unless amended in writing by the Parties, the Agreement term expires 180 
calendar days after the Notice to Proceed (NTP) Date. 
 
SECTION III--PAYMENT OF COMPENSATION AND FEES 
 
Unless amended in writing by the Parties, Consultant’s compensation and fees as more fully 
described in Exhibit “B” for performance of the services approved and accepted by City 
under this Agreement must not exceed $226,618.88 for the full term of the Agreement. 
Consultant may not increase any compensation or fees under this Agreement without the 
City’s prior written consent. Consultant must submit monthly requests for payment of 
services approved and accepted during the previous billing period and must include, as 
applicable, detailed invoices and receipts, a narrative description of the tasks accomplished 
during the billing period, a list of any deliverables submitted, and any subconsultant’s or 
supplier’s actual requests for payment plus similar narrative and listing of their work. 
Consultant must submit an Application and Certification for Payment Sheet with the 
monthly request for payment to: CapitalProjects.Payables@chandleraz.gov. Payment for 
those services negotiated as a lump sum will be made in accordance with the percentage of 
the work completed during the preceding billing period. Services negotiated as a not-to-
exceed fee will be paid in accordance with the work effort expended on the service during 
the preceding month. All requests for payment must be submitted to City for review and 
approval. City will make payment for approved and accepted services within 30 calendar 
days of City’s receipt of the request for payment. Consultant bears all responsibility and 
liability for any and all tax obligations that result from Consultant’s performance under this 
Agreement.  
 
SECTION IV--CITY'S OBLIGATIONS 
 
As part of Consultant’s services under this Agreement, City will provide furnished items, 
services, or obligations as detailed in Exhibit “D”. 
 
SECTION V--GENERAL CONDITIONS 
 
5.1 Notices. Unless otherwise provided herein, demands under this Agreement must be in 
writing and will be deemed to have been duly given and received either (a) on the date of 
service if personally served on the party to whom notice is to be given, or (b) on the third 
day after the date of the postmark of deposit by first class United States mail, registered or 
certified, postage prepaid and properly addressed as follows: 
 

To City: City of Chandler 
Public Works & Utilities Department 
Attn:  City Engineer 
P.O. Box 4008, Mail Stop 407 
Chandler, AZ 85244-4008 
 



  
City of Chandler Professional Services Agreement   Page 3  
Public Works & Utilities Department, Capital Projects Division  
Project Name: ALLEY REHABILITATION PM 10 DUST EMISSIONS 
Project No.: ST1909.451; FEDERAL ID NO.: CHN-0(245)D; ADOT NO.: T024001C 
 Rev. 10/16/2020  
 

With a Copy to: Project Manager 
City of Chandler 
Public Works & Utilities Department 
P.O. Box 4008, Mail Stop 407 
Chandler, AZ 85244-4008 
 
 

To Consultant: Mr. John Akin 
Tristar Engineering and Management, Inc. 
135 E. Chilton Dr., Ste. 201 
Chandler, AZ  85225 
  

5.2 Records/Audit. Records of Consultant’s direct personnel payroll, reimbursable expenses 
pertaining to this Agreement and records of accounts between City and Consultant must be 
kept on the basis of generally accepted accounting principles and must be made available 
to City and its auditors for up to three years following City’s final acceptance of the services 
under this Agreement. City, its authorized representative, or any federal agency, reserves 
the right to audit Consultant’s records to verify the accuracy and appropriateness of all cost 
and pricing data, including data used to negotiate this Agreement and any amendments. 
City reserves the right to decrease the total amount of Agreement price or payments made 
under this Agreement or request reimbursement from Consultant following final contract 
payment on this Agreement if, upon audit of Consultant’s records, the audit discloses 
Consultant has provided false, misleading, or inaccurate cost and pricing data. Consultant 
will include a similar provision in all of its contracts with subconsultants who provide 
services under the Agreement to ensure that City, its authorized representative, or the 
appropriate federal agency, has access to the subconsultants’ records to verify the accuracy 
of all cost and pricing data. City reserves the right to decrease Contract price or payments 
made on this Agreement or request reimbursement from Consultant following final 
payment on this Agreement if the above provision is not included in subconsultant 
agreements, and one or more subconsultants refuse to allow City to audit their records to 
verify the accuracy and appropriateness of all cost and pricing data. If, following an audit of 
this Agreement, the audit discloses Consultant has provided false, misleading, or inaccurate 
cost and pricing data, and the cost discrepancies exceed 1% of the total Agreement billings, 
Consultant will be liable for reimbursement of the reasonable, actual cost of the audit. 
 
5.3 Alteration in Character of Work. Whenever an alteration in the character of work results 
in a substantial change in this Agreement, thereby materially increasing or decreasing the 
scope of services, cost of performance, or Project schedule, the work will be performed as 
directed by City. However, before any modified work is started, a written amendment must 
be approved and executed by City and Consultant. Such amendment must not be effective 
until approved by City. Additions to, modifications, or deletions from this Agreement as 
provided herein may be made, and the compensation to be paid to Consultant may 
accordingly be adjusted by mutual agreement of the Parties. It is distinctly understood and 
agreed that no claim for extra services or materials furnished by Consultant will be allowed 
by City except as provided herein, nor must Consultant do any work or furnish any 
materials not covered by this Agreement unless such work is first authorized in writing. Any 
such work or materials furnished by Consultant without prior written authorization will be 
at Consultant’s own risk, cost, and expense, and Consultant hereby agrees that without 



  
City of Chandler Professional Services Agreement   Page 4  
Public Works & Utilities Department, Capital Projects Division  
Project Name: ALLEY REHABILITATION PM 10 DUST EMISSIONS 
Project No.: ST1909.451; FEDERAL ID NO.: CHN-0(245)D; ADOT NO.: T024001C 
 Rev. 10/16/2020  
 

written authorization Consultant will make no claim for compensation for such work or 
materials furnished. 
 
5.4 Termination. City and Consultant hereby agree to the full performance of the covenants 
contained herein, except that City reserves the right, at its discretion and without cause, to 
terminate or abandon any service provided for in this Agreement, or abandon any portion 
of the Project for which services have been performed by Consultant. In the event City 
abandons or suspends the services, or any part of the services as provided in this 
Agreement, City will notify Consultant in writing and immediately after receiving such notice, 
Consultant must discontinue advancing the work specified under this Agreement. Upon 
such termination, abandonment, or suspension, Consultant must deliver to City all 
drawings, plans, specifications, special provisions, estimates and other work entirely or 
partially completed, together with all unused materials supplied by City. Consultant must 
appraise the work Consultant has completed and submit Consultant’s appraisal to City for 
evaluation. City may inspect Consultant’s work to appraise the work completed. Consultant 
will receive compensation in full for services performed to the date of such termination. The 
fee will be paid in accordance with Section Ill of this Agreement, and as mutually agreed 
upon by Consultant and City. If there is no mutual agreement on payment, the final 
determination will be made in accordance with the "Disputes" provision in this Agreement. 
However, in no event may the fee exceed the fee set forth in Section Ill of this Agreement 
nor as amended in accordance with Section "Alteration in Character of Work." City will make 
the final payment within 60 days after Consultant has delivered the last of the partially 
completed items and the Parties agree on the final fee. If City is found to have improperly 
terminated the Agreement for cause or default, the termination will be converted to a 
termination for convenience in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement. 
 
5.5 Indemnification. To the extent permitted by law, the Consultant ("lndemnitor") must 
indemnify, save and hold harmless City and its officers, officials, agents and employees 
("lndemnitee") from any and all claims, actions, liabilities, damages, losses or expenses 
(including court costs, attorneys' fees and costs of claim processing, investigation and 
litigation) ("Claims") caused or alleged to be caused, in whole or in part, by the wrongful, 
negligent or willful acts, or errors or omissions of Consultant or any of its owners, officers, 
directors, agents, employees, or subconsultants in connection with this Agreement. This 
indemnity includes any claim or amount arising out of or recovered under workers' 
compensation law or on account of the failure of Consultant to conform to any federal, 
state or local law, statute, ordinance, rule, regulation or court decree. Consultant must 
indemnify lndemnitee from and against any and all Claims, except those arising solely from 
lndemnitee's own negligent or willful acts or omissions. Consultant is responsible for 
primary loss investigation, defense and judgment costs where this indemnification applies. 
In consideration of the award of this Agreement, Consultant agrees to waive all rights of 
subrogation against lndemnitee for losses arising from or related to this Agreement. The 
obligations of Consultant under this provision survive the termination or expiration of this 
Agreement. 
 
5.6 Insurance Requirements. Consultant must procure insurance under the terms and 
conditions and for the amounts of coverage set forth in Exhibit “C” against claims that may 
arise from or relate to performance of the work under this Agreement by Consultant and its 



  
City of Chandler Professional Services Agreement   Page 5  
Public Works & Utilities Department, Capital Projects Division  
Project Name: ALLEY REHABILITATION PM 10 DUST EMISSIONS 
Project No.: ST1909.451; FEDERAL ID NO.: CHN-0(245)D; ADOT NO.: T024001C 
 Rev. 10/16/2020  
 

agents, representatives, employees, and subconsultants. Consultant and any subconsultant 
must maintain this insurance until all of their obligations have been discharged, including 
any warranty periods under this Agreement. These insurance requirements are minimum 
requirements for this Agreement and in no way limit the indemnity covenants contained in 
this Agreement. City in no way warrants that the minimum limits stated in Exhibit “C” are 
sufficient to protect Consultant from liabilities that might arise out of the performance of 
the work under this Agreement by Consultant, Consultant’s agents, representatives, 
employees, or subconsultants. Consultant is free to purchase such additional insurance as 
may be determined necessary. 
 
5.7 Cooperation and Further Documentation. Consultant agrees to provide City such other 
duly executed documents as may be reasonably requested by City to implement the intent 
of this Agreement. 
 
5.8 Successors and Assigns. City and Consultant each bind itself, its partners, successors, 
assigns, and legal representatives to the other party to this Agreement and to the partners, 
successors, assigns, and legal representatives of such other party in respect to all covenants 
of this Agreement. Neither City nor Consultant may assign, sublet, or transfer its interest in 
this Agreement without the written consent of the other party. In no event may any 
contractual relation be created between any third party and City. 
 
5.9 Disputes. In any dispute arising out of an interpretation of this Agreement or the duties 
required not disposed of by agreement between Consultant and City, the final 
determination at the administrative level will be made by City Engineer. 
 
5.10 Completeness and Accuracy of Consultant’s Work. Consultant must be responsible for 
the completeness and accuracy of Consultant’s services, data, and other work prepared or 
compiled under Consultant’s obligation under this Agreement and must correct, at 
Consultant’s expense, all willful or negligent errors, omissions, or acts that may be 
discovered.  Correction of errors disclosed and determined to exist during any construction of 
the project on architectural or engineering drawings and specifications must be accomplished by 
Consultant.  The cost of the design necessary to correct those errors attributable to Consultant 
and any damage incurred by City as a result of additional construction costs caused by such 
engineering or architectural errors will be chargeable to Consultant and will not be considered a 
cost of the Work.  The fact that City has accepted or approved Consultant’s work will in no 
way relieve Consultant of any of Consultant’s responsibilities. 
 
5.11 Reporting. Written monthly reports, along with updated work schedules, will be made by 
Consultant in the format prescribed by City.  These reports will be delivered to City per schedule.  
When requested by City, Consultant will attend Council meetings and provide finished 
documents including correspondence for Council action, supporting charts, graphs, drawings 
and colored slides of same. 
 
5.12 Withholding Payment. City reserves the right to withhold funds from Consultant’s 
payments up to the amount equal to the claims City may have against Consultant until such 
time that a settlement on those claims has been reached. 
 



  
City of Chandler Professional Services Agreement   Page 6  
Public Works & Utilities Department, Capital Projects Division  
Project Name: ALLEY REHABILITATION PM 10 DUST EMISSIONS 
Project No.: ST1909.451; FEDERAL ID NO.: CHN-0(245)D; ADOT NO.: T024001C 
 Rev. 10/16/2020  
 

5.13 City's Right of Cancellation. The Parties acknowledge that this Agreement is subject to 
cancellation by City under the provisions of Section 38-511, Arizona Revised Statutes (A.R.S.). 
 
5.14 Independent Consultant. For this Agreement Consultant constitutes an independent 
contractor. Any provisions in this Agreement that may appear to give City the right to direct 
Consultant as to the details of accomplishing the work or to exercise a measure of control 
over the work means that Consultant must follow the wishes of City as to the results of the 
work only. These results must comply with all applicable laws and ordinances. 
 
5.15 Project Staffing. Prior to the start of any work under this Agreement, Consultant must 
submit to City detailed resumes of key personnel that will be involved in performing 
services prescribed in the Agreement. City hereby acknowledges its acceptance of such 
personnel to perform services under this Agreement. At any time hereafter that Consultant 
desires to change key personnel while performing under the Agreement, Consultant must 
submit the qualifications of the new personnel to City for prior approval. Key personnel 
include, but are not limited to, principals-in-charge, project manager, and project 
Consultant. Consultant will maintain an adequate and competent staff of qualified persons, 
as may be determined by City, throughout the performance of this Agreement to ensure 
acceptable and timely completion of the Scope of Services. If City objects, with reasonable 
cause, to any of Consultant’s staff, Consultant must take prompt corrective action 
acceptable to City and, if required, remove such personnel from the Project and replace 
with new personnel agreed to by City. 
 
5.16 Consultants or Subconsultants. Prior to beginning the work, Consultant must furnish 
City for approval the names of consultants or subconsultants to be used under this 
Agreement. Any subsequent changes are subject to City’s written prior approval. 
 
5.17 Force Majeure. If either party is delayed or prevented from the performance of any act 
required under this Agreement by reason of acts of God or other cause beyond the control 
and without fault of the Party (financial inability excepted), performance of that act may be 
excused, but only for the period of the delay, if the Party provides written notice to the 
other Party within ten days of such act. The time for performance of the act may be 
extended for a period equivalent to the period of delay from the date written notice is 
received by the other Party. 
 
5.18 Compliance with Federal Laws. Consultant understands and acknowledges the 
applicability of the Americans with Disabilities Act, the Immigration Reform and Control Act 
of 1986 and the Drug Free Workplace Act of 1989 to it. Consultant agrees to comply with 
these laws in performing this Agreement and to permit City to verify such compliance. 
 
5.19 No Israel Boycott. By entering into this Agreement, Consultant certifies that Consultant 
is not currently engaged in, and agrees for the duration of the Agreement, not to engage in 
a boycott of Israel as defined by state statute. 
 
5.20 Legal Worker Requirements. A.R.S. § 41-4401 prohibits City from awarding a contract to 
any consultant who fails, or whose subconsultants fail, to comply with A.R.S. § 23-214(A). 
Therefore, Consultant agrees Consultant and each subconsultant it uses warrants their 



  
City of Chandler Professional Services Agreement   Page 7  
Public Works & Utilities Department, Capital Projects Division  
Project Name: ALLEY REHABILITATION PM 10 DUST EMISSIONS 
Project No.: ST1909.451; FEDERAL ID NO.: CHN-0(245)D; ADOT NO.: T024001C 
 Rev. 10/16/2020  
 

compliance with all federal immigration laws and regulations that relate to their employees 
and their compliance with § 23-214, subsection A. A breach of this warranty will be deemed 
a material breach of the Agreement and may be subject to penalties up to and including 
termination of the Agreement. City retains the legal right to inspect the papers of any 
Consultant’s or subconsultant’s employee who provides services under this Agreement to 
ensure that Consultant and subconsultants comply with the warranty under this provision. 
 
5.21 Lawful Presence Requirement. A.R.S. §§ 1-501 and 1-502 prohibit City from awarding a 
contract to any natural person who cannot establish that such person is lawfully present in 
the United States. To establish lawful presence, a person must produce qualifying 
identification and sign a City-provided affidavit affirming that the identification provided is 
genuine. This requirement will be imposed at the time of contract award. This requirement 
does not apply to business organizations such as corporations, partnerships, or limited 
liability companies. 
 
5.22 Covenant Against Contingent Fees. Consultant warrants that no person has been 
employed or retained to solicit or secure this Agreement upon an agreement or 
understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee, and that no 
member of the Chandler City Council, or any City employee has any interest, financially, or 
otherwise, in Consultant’s firm. For breach or violation of this warrant, City may annul this 
Agreement without liability or, at its discretion, to deduct from the Agreement price or 
consideration, the full amount of such commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent 
fee. 
 
5.23 Non-Waiver Provision. The failure of either Party to enforce any of the provisions of 
this Agreement or to require performance of the other Party of any of the provisions hereof 
must not be construed to be a waiver of such provisions, nor must it affect the validity of 
this Agreement or any part thereof, or the right of either Party to thereafter enforce each 
and every provision. 
 
5.24 Disclosure of Information Adverse to City’s Interests. To evaluate and avoid potential 
conflicts of interest, Consultant must provide written notice to City, as set forth in this 
Section, of any work or services performed by Consultant for third parties that may involve 
or be associated with any real property or personal property owned or leased by City. Such 
notice must be given 7 business days prior to commencement of the services by Consultant 
for a third party, or 7 business days prior to an adverse action as defined below. Written 
notice and disclosure must be sent in accordance with Section 6.7 above.  An adverse action 
under this Agreement includes, but is not limited to: (a) using data as defined in the 
Agreement acquired in connection with this Agreement to assist a third party in pursuing 
administrative or judicial action against City; or (b) testifying or providing evidence on behalf 
of any person in connection with an administrative or judicial action against City; or (c) using 
data to produce income for Consultant or its employees independently of performing the 
services under this Agreement, without the prior written consent of City. Consultant 
represents that except for those persons, entities, and projects identified to City, the 
services performed by Consultant under this Agreement are not expected to create an 
interest with any person, entity, or third party project that is or may be adverse to City’s 
interests. Consultant’s failure to provide a written notice and disclosure of the information 



  
City of Chandler Professional Services Agreement   Page 8  
Public Works & Utilities Department, Capital Projects Division  
Project Name: ALLEY REHABILITATION PM 10 DUST EMISSIONS 
Project No.: ST1909.451; FEDERAL ID NO.: CHN-0(245)D; ADOT NO.: T024001C 
 Rev. 10/16/2020  
 

as set forth in this Section constitute a material breach of this Agreement. 
 
5.25 Data Confidentiality and Data Security. As used in the Agreement, "data" means all 
information, whether written or verbal, including plans, photographs, studies, 
investigations, audits, analyses, samples, reports, calculations, internal memos, meeting 
minutes, data field notes, work product, proposals, correspondence and any other similar 
documents or information prepared by, obtained by, or transmitted to Consultant or its 
subconsultants in the performance of this Agreement. The Parties agree that all data, 
regardless of form, including originals, images, and reproductions, prepared by, obtained 
by, or transmitted to Consultant or its subconsultants in connection with Consultant’s or its 
subconsultant’s performance of this Agreement is confidential and proprietary information 
belonging to City. Except as specifically provided in this Agreement, Consultant or its 
subconsultants must not divulge data to any third party without City’s prior written consent. 
Consultant or its subconsultants must not use the data for any purposes except to perform 
the services required under this Agreement. These prohibitions do not apply to the 
following data provided to Consultant or its subconsultants have first given the required 
notice to City: (a) data which was known to Consultant or its subconsultants prior to its 
performance under this Consultant or its subconsultants by a third party, who to the best of 
Consultant’s or its subconsultants’ knowledge and belief, had the legal right to make such 
disclosure and Consultant or its subconsultants are not otherwise required to hold such 
data in confidence; or (c) data which is required to be disclosed by virtue of law, regulation, 
or court order, to which Consultant or its subconsultants are subject. In the event 
Consultant or its subconsultants are required or requested to disclose data to a third party, 
or any other information to which Consultant or its subconsultants became privy as a result 
of any other contract with City, Consultant must first notify City as set forth in this Section of 
the request or demand for the data. Consultant or its subconsultants must give City 
sufficient facts so that City can be given an opportunity to first give its consent or take such 
action that City may deem appropriate to protect such data or other information from 
disclosure. All data must continue to be subject to the confidentiality agreements of this 
Agreement. Consultant or its subconsultants assume all liability to maintain the 
confidentiality of the data in its possession and agrees to compensate City if any of the 
provisions of this Section are violated by Consultant, its employees, agents or 
subconsultants. Solely for the purposes of seeking injunctive relief, it is agreed that a breach 
of this Section must be deemed to cause irreparable harm that justifies injunctive relief in 
court. Consultant agrees that the requirements of this Section must be incorporated into all 
subagreements entered into by Consultant. A violation of this Section may result in 
immediate termination of this Agreement without notice. 
 
5.26 Personal Identifying Information-Data Security. Personal identifying information, 
financial account information, or restricted City information, whether electronic format or 
hard copy, must be secured and protected at all times by Consultant or its subconsultants. 
At a minimum, Consultant or its subconsultants must encrypt or password-protect 
electronic files. This includes data saved to laptop computers, computerized devices, or 
removable storage devices. When personal identifying information, financial account 
information, or restricted City information, regardless of its format, is no longer necessary, 
the information must be redacted or destroyed through appropriate and secure methods 
that ensure the information cannot be viewed, accessed, or reconstructed. In the event that 



  
City of Chandler Professional Services Agreement   Page 9  
Public Works & Utilities Department, Capital Projects Division  
Project Name: ALLEY REHABILITATION PM 10 DUST EMISSIONS 
Project No.: ST1909.451; FEDERAL ID NO.: CHN-0(245)D; ADOT NO.: T024001C 
 Rev. 10/16/2020  
 

data collected or obtained by Consultant or its subconsultants in connection with this 
Agreement is believed to have been compromised, Consultant or its subconsultants must 
immediately notify City contact. Consultant agrees to reimburse City for any costs incurred 
by City to investigate potential breaches of this data and, where applicable, the cost of 
notifying individuals who may be impacted by the breach. Consultant agrees that the 
requirements of this Section must be incorporated into all subcontracts entered into by 
Consultant. It is further agreed that a violation of this Section must be deemed to cause 
irreparable harm that justifies injunctive relief in court. A violation of this Section may result 
in immediate termination of this Agreement without notice. The obligations of Consultant 
or its subconsultants under this Section must survive the termination of this Agreement. 
 
5.27 Jurisdiction and Venue. This Agreement is made under, and must be construed in 
accordance with and governed by the laws of the State of Arizona without regard to the 
conflicts or choice of law provisions thereof. Any action to enforce any provision of this 
Agreement or to obtain any remedy with respect hereto must be brought in the courts 
located in Maricopa County, Arizona, and for this purpose, each Party hereby expressly and 
irrevocably consents to the jurisdiction and venue of such court. 
 
5.28 Survival. All warranties, representations, and indemnifications by Consultant must 
survive the completion or termination of this Agreement. 
 
5.29 Modification. Except as expressly provided herein to the contrary, no supplement, 
modification, or amendment of any term of this Agreement will be deemed binding or 
effective unless in writing and signed by the Parties.  
 
5.30 Severability. If any provision of this Agreement or the application to any person or 
circumstance may be invalid, illegal or unenforceable to any extent, the remainder of this 
Agreement and the application will not be affected and will be enforceable to the fullest 
extent permitted by law. 
 
5.31 Integration. This Agreement contains the full agreement of the Parties. Any prior or 
contemporaneous written or oral agreement between the Parties regarding the subject 
matter is merged and superseded. 
 
5.32 Time is of the Essence. Time of each of the terms, covenants, and conditions of this 
Agreement is hereby expressly made of the essence. 
 
5.33 Date of Performance. If the date of performance of any obligation or the last day of any 
time period provided for should fall on a Saturday, Sunday, or holiday for City, the 
obligation will be due and owing, and the time period will expire, on the first day after which 
is not a Saturday, Sunday or legal City holiday. Except as may otherwise be set forth in this 
Agreement, any performance provided for herein will be timely made if completed no later 
than 5:00 p.m. (Chandler time) on the day of performance. 
 
5.34 Third Party Beneficiary. Nothing under this Agreement will be construed to give any 
rights or benefits in the Agreement to anyone other than City and Consultant, and all duties 
and responsibilities undertaken pursuant to this Agreement will be for the sole and 



  
City of Chandler Professional Services Agreement   Page 10  
Public Works & Utilities Department, Capital Projects Division  
Project Name: ALLEY REHABILITATION PM 10 DUST EMISSIONS 
Project No.: ST1909.451; FEDERAL ID NO.: CHN-0(245)D; ADOT NO.: T024001C 
 Rev. 10/16/2020  
 

exclusive benefit of City and Consultant and not for the benefit of any other party. 
 
5.35 Conflict in Language. All work performed must conform to all applicable City of 
Chandler codes, ordinances, and requirements as outlined in this Agreement. If there is a 
conflict in interpretation between provisions in this Agreement and those in Exhibit "A", the 
provisions in this Agreement prevail. 
 
5.36 Document/Information Release. Documents and materials released to Consultant, 
which are identified by City as sensitive and confidential, are City’s property. The 
document/material must be issued by and returned to City upon completion of the services 
under this Agreement. Consultant secondary distribution, disclosure, copying, or 
duplication in any manner is prohibited without City’s prior written approval. The 
document/material must be kept secure at all times. This directive applies to all City 
documents, whether in photographic, printed, or electronic data format.  
 
5.37 Exhibits. The following exhibits are made a part of this Agreement and are 
incorporated by reference: 
 
    Exhibit A - Scope of Services / Schedule 

Exhibit B - Compensation and Fees 
Exhibit C - Insurance Requirements 
Exhibit D - Special Conditions 
Exhibit E – Federal Requirements (if applicable)  
 

5.38 Special Conditions. As part of the services Consultant provides under this Agreement, 
Consultant agrees to comply with and fully perform the special terms and conditions set 
forth in Exhibit “D”, which is attached to and made a part of this Agreement. 
 
5.39 Non-Discrimination and Anti-Harassment Laws. Consultant must comply with all 
applicable City, state, and federal non-discrimination and anti-harassment laws, rules, and 
regulations. 
 
5.40 Licenses and Permits. Beginning with the Effective Date and for the full term of this 
Agreement, Consultant must maintain all applicable City, state, and federal licenses and 
permits required to fully perform Consultant’s services under this Agreement. 
 
5.41 Warranties. Consultant must furnish a one-year warranty on all work and services 
performed under this Agreement. Consultant must furnish, or cause to be furnished, a two-
year warranty on all fixtures, furnishings, and equipment furnished by Consultant, 
subconsultants or suppliers under this Agreement. Any defects in design, workmanship, or 
materials that do not comply with this Agreement must be corrected by Consultant 
(including, but not limited to, all parts and labor) at Consultant’s sole cost and expense. All 
written warranties and redlines for as-built conditions must be delivered to City on or 
before City’s final acceptance of Consultant’s services under this Agreement.  
 
5.42 Cooperative Purchasing Agreement (S.A.V.E. – Strategic Alliance for Volume 
Expenditures).  In addition to City of Chandler and with the approval of Consultant, this 



  
City of Chandler Professional Services Agreement   Page 11  
Public Works & Utilities Department, Capital Projects Division  
Project Name: ALLEY REHABILITATION PM 10 DUST EMISSIONS 
Project No.: ST1909.451; FEDERAL ID NO.: CHN-0(245)D; ADOT NO.: T024001C 
 Rev. 10/16/2020  
 

Agreement may be extended for use by other municipalities, school districts, and 
government agencies of the State.  Any such usage by other entities must be in accordance 
with the ordinance, charter, or procurement rules and regulations of the respective political 
entity.   
 
5.43 Budget Approval into Next Fiscal Year.  This Agreement will commence on the Effective 
Date and continue in full force and effect until it is terminated or expires in accordance with 
the provisions of this Agreement.  The Parties recognize that the continuation of this 
Agreement after the close of the City's fiscal year, which ends on June 30 of each year, is 
subject to the City Council's approval of a budget that includes an appropriation for this 
item as an expenditure.  The City does not represent that this budget item will be actually 
adopted. This determination is solely made by the City Council. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW 
 
 
  



1-26-2021

John Akin

President

jakin@tristar-az.com



 

 
City of Chandler Professional Services Agreement – Exhibit “A” Page A-1  
Public Works & Utilities Department, Capital Projects Division  
Project Name: ALLEY REHABILITATION PM 10 DUST EMISSIONS  
Project No.: ST1909.451; FEDERAL ID NO.: CHN-0(245)D; ADOT NO.: T024001C 
Rev. 9/16/2020  
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
SCOPE OF SERVICES/SCHEDULE 

 
 



1 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 

 

CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

ST1909-451 CHN0245D T024001C Alley Rehab PM 10 

(FHWA FUNDED PROJECTS) 

 

 

PROJECT TASKS 

 
1. PRE-CONSTRUCTION ASSISTANCE 

A. Task 1.1 Preconstruction Assistance  

i. Consultant must attend the pre-construction meeting.  

ii. Consultant must attend the pre-construction public meeting.  

iii. Consultant must attend three (3) coordination meetings with the Public Outreach 
Consultant to review improvements and properties requiring specific outreach 
efforts.   

 

2. CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT  

A. Task 2.1 Weekly Construction Meetings 

i. Consultant must conduct weekly construction meetings.  Each meeting includes 
agenda and minutes; Request for Information (RFI); Shop Drawing; Request for 
Information (RFI); Field Directive (FD); Material Certification; and Allowance Logs. 
Consultant assumes sixteen (16) weekly meetings will be held. 

B. Task 2.2 CPM Schedule 

i. Consultant must review and evaluate Contractor’s initial CPM schedule and provide 
recommendations for acceptance.  

ii. Consultant must review Contractor’s monthly CPM schedule updates submitted 
with each payment application, identify CPM tasks behind schedule that may affect 
critical path items, project substantial and final completion dates and initiate 
correspondence to City regarding those tasks. Consultant assumes four (4) reviews 
of updated CPM schedule.  

C. Task 2.3 Requests for Information (RFI’s) 

i. Consultant must review, evaluate, and respond to Contractor Requests for 
Information (RFI’s); and prepare and maintain a submittal log of all RFI’s. Consultant 
assumes a maximum of eight (8) RFI responses.  

D. Task 2.4 Shop Drawing Submittals 

i. Consultant must review, evaluate, and respond to Contractor shop drawing 
submittals; and prepare and maintain a submittal log of all shop drawing 
submittals. Consultant assumes a maximum of five (5) reviews.  

E. Task 2.5 Requests for Proposal (RFP) 

i. Consultant must prepare Requests for Proposal (RFP) documents detailing 
requested additional work tasks; review and evaluate Contractor RFP responses 
(cost derivatons) with approval recommendations; and prepare and maintain a 
submittal log list of all RFP’s. Consultant assumes five (5) RFPs.   

 

 



2 

 

F.  Task 2.6 Field Directives (FD’s) 

i. Consultant must prepare Field Directive (FD) documents detailing requested 
additional work tasks; review and evaluate Contractor FD responses with approval 
recommendations; and prepare and maintain a submittal log list of all FD’s. 
Consultant assumes five (5) FD’s.   

G. Task 2.7 Contractor Payment Applications 

i. Consultant must review and evaluate Contractor monthly payment applications 
and make recommendation for payment; maintain a weekly record of constructed 
pay quantities and compile monthly totals; and coordinate payment application 
with the City quantity report and the inspectors’ daily logs. Consultant assumes a 
maximum of four (4) payment applications, with two (2) reviews each. 

H.  Task 2.8 Public Outreach 

i. Consultant must provide public outreach services, whether by Consultant or 
subconsultant.  Tasks will include: create and maintain project website; maintain a 
24-hour bilingual project hotline to respond to inquiries, complaints and maintain 
a call log; public weekly email updates; public interactions with property owners as 
a liaison between property owners and the City; coordination meetings; project 
meetings; public meeting coordination; federal funds required partnering process 
(project team partnering meeting, maintaining status). 

 

3. CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION 

A. Task 3.1 Federal Compliance Administration  

i. Consultant must conduct Contractor and Sub-contractor laborer interviews.  

B. Task 3.2 Administrative Support   

i. Consultant must provide administrative support to City staff for federal reporting 

requirements. Consultant assumes one (1) administrative assistant for eighteen 

(18) weeks at four (4) hours per day for two (2) days per week.  

 

4. CONSTRUCTION INSPECTION 

A. Task 4.1 Inspection Services 

i. Consultant must provide weekly construction inspection to verify materials and 
installations conform to construction documents; prepare daily inspection reports 
documenting Contractor construction activities and progress during field 
inspection visits; and perform intermittent erosion control inspections.  Consultant 
assumes one (1) inspector full time forty (40) per week for four (4) months, and one 
(1) part-time inspector as-needed for forty (40) hours per week for two (2) weeks.  

B. Task 4.2 Landscape / Irrigation Inspection Services     

i. N/A 

C. Task 4.3 Project Closeout    

i. Consultant must compile non-conformance list prior to Substantial Completion; 
schedule and conduct Substantial Completion inspection; prepare Substantial 
Completion punch list generated from Substantial Completion inspection; track 
items on punch list and note completed items; and complete and distribute 
Substantial Completion certificates. 

ii. Consultant must schedule and conduct Final Completion inspection; and complete 
and distribute Final Completion certificates. 

 

 



3 

 

5. UTILITY COORDINATION  

A. Task 5.1 Utility Coordination  

i. N/A 

6. MATERIALS TESTING 

A. Task 6.1 Quality Control (QC) Test Program 

i. Consultant must review and verify Contractor’s Quality Control material test type 
and frequencies are consistent with City, MAG, and ADOT requirements; review and 
evaluate Contractor’s QC test schedule and provide recommendations on 
acceptance; and review and evaluate all Contractor sampling, test, and inspection 
results for conformance with construction documents.  

B. Task 6.2 Quality Assurance (QA) Test Program 

i. Consultant must prepare and maintain a materials Quality Assurance plan per City, 
MAG, and ADOT requirements. QA plan will be reviewed and approved by ADOT 
prior to initiating construction activities. 

ii. Consultant must coordinate with Contractor’s testing representative to obtain 
required QA tests and sample; complete sampling and compaction testing of 
subgrade (including lime-stabilized subgrade base), aggregate base and asphalt 
concrete materials in new asphalt concrete pavement areas; complete sampling 
and compaction testing of subgrade, aggregate base (where required) and 
concrete for new curbs, gutters, sidewalks and concrete pavement and structures; 
and complete sampling and compaction testing of backfill for new irrigation, sewer, 
water, storm drain pipe, and dry utilities. 

C. Task 6.3 Material Certifications   

i. Consultant must review and verify material certifications are met including “Buy 
America” requirements; and prepare and maintain materials certificate and “Buy 
America” requirement submittal log. 

D. Task 6.4 Independent Assurance (IA) Test Program  

i. Consultant must provide 3rd party independent quality assurance sampling and 
testing per the approved QA program produced in task 6.2.i. 

 

7. RECORD DRAWINGS  

A. Task 7.1 Record Drawings 

i.  Review and monitor Contractor’s weekly updates on red-line drawing set. 

 

ASSUMPTION, CLARIFICATIONS, AND EXCLUSIONS 

1. Application fees for City reviews and permits will be paid by CITY. 

2. The Owner’s Allowance will only be utilized with prior written approval from the City representative. 

3. The Overtime and/or Extra Hours Allowance will be used only in the event the contractor’s 

schedule requires additional hours beyond a 40-hour work-week for the inspector.   

4. Contract work must be performed in accordance with Exhibit D Title VI Assurances Appendix A 

and Exhibit E Title VI Assurances Appendix E. 



 
 

MakPro Services, LLC 
2036 N. Gentry • Mesa, AZ 85213 

 
Office: 480-890-1927 

Email:  teresa@makprosvc.com 

 
January 11, 2021 
 
 
Mr. John Akin 
Tristar Engineering 
10625 N. 25th Avenue, Suite 103 
Phoenix, Arizona  85029 
 
Dear John: 
 
MakPro Services, LLC (MakPro) is pleased to provide the following proposal for public 
outreach services for the City of Chandler’s Alley Rehabilitation PM10 Dust Emission Project 
(ST1909.451 CHN0245D T024001C), which will resurface alleys in four segments of 
Chandler neighborhoods. Public outreach is an important element in projects that may 
impact neighboring residents and businesses and provides a link between the project and 
the community it impacts. The City of Chandler has developed a strong relationship with its 
residents and businesses, and it’s important these relationships are maintained throughout 
construction projects.       
 
There are a variety of public outreach tools which can be used to establish appropriate 
communication with the effected stakeholders of a project. The services included in this 
scope and fee are based on our experience with the City of Chandler and the information 
you provided from your discussions with the City. This estimate is based on an estimated 
120-calendar day (4-month) construction schedule, and currently slated to begin in early 
February 2021. In addition, the public outreach services have been categorized into tasks; 
however, adjusting one task may require adjustment of other tasks as there are economies 
of scale and efficiencies embedded in the cost estimate.     
 
Please take a moment to review this scope and cost estimate and if I’ve missed or 
misunderstood any of the project characteristics, or if you’d like to customize this proposal 
in some other way, please let me know.   
 
Task 1.1:  Pre-Construction Assistance: MakPro will attend a pre-construction kick-off 
meeting, a pre-construction public meeting and also up to three (3) coordination meetings 
to discuss improvements and specific public outreach efforts. (12 hrs) 
 
Task 2.8:  Public Outreach: This effort includes various public outreach components: 
Website:  Makpro shall develop and maintain a project website for the project, capable of 
multilingual information, in Spanish and Chinese, which will include information about the 
construction schedule and how to contact the project team. The site will be updated with 
any new information on a regular basis. (10 hrs) 



Mr. John Akin, Tristar Engineering      January 12, 2021                                             
Public Outreach Services for Chandler Alley Rehabilitation PM10 Dust Emissions Project  
 
 
 
Hotline: MakPro shall maintain a 24-hour project hotline to respond to inquiries or 
complaints, maintain a call log and coordinate with the project team to respond to calls. 
($200/mo hotline cost) 
 

E-updates:  MakPro will coordinate with community or property managers to provide e-
updates on a regular basis, related to upcoming work and schedule. (8 hrs) 
 

Project & Partnering Meetings: MakPro will prepare for and attend approximately 14 project 
progress meetings during construction (4 months), as well as participate in ongoing team 
communications throughout the project. This task also includes monitoring the partnering 
process with monthly partnering evaluations and tracking.  (20 hrs) 
 

Community Contact:  MakPro will send out notifications via mail in advance of work taking 
place in alleys so that nearby neighbors will know of the project and how to contact the 
project team.  Reimbursable expenses of postage/printing for notifications are included in 
the reimbursable allowance. Based on our previous experience, the distribution area would 
be to homes/properties on either side of the alley, with approximately 1,700 pieces for 
mailing for all four segments.  (14 hrs) 
 
The total cost for public outreach services as identified above based on a 4-month 
construction schedule should not exceed $11,000.00 which includes an 
allowance of $2,800 for reimbursable expenses, such as printing and postage of 
notifications, and also a $1,000 allowance for translation services.  This cost 
estimate assumes a labor rate of $110/hour for principal and $90/hour for associate hours, 
as well as a flat fee of $200/mo for the project hotline. Excluded from this estimate are any 
unusual out-of-pocket expenses requested by the sponsor. In addition, the estimate 
incorporates efficiencies from one task/activity to another, so removal of an activity may 
require an adjustment of hours in other activities.   
 

Activity Principal Hrs 
($110/hr) 

Associate 
Hrs ($90/hr) Total 

Public Outreach Services    

Task 1.1: Pre-Construction Assistance 6 6 $1,200 

Task 2.8: Public Outreach 
                Project Hotline 

26 
 

26 
 

$5,200 
$800 

Subtotal 32 32 $7,200 
Reimbursable Allowance (printing/postage for notifications) $2,800 
Translator Allowance $1,000 
Grand Total $11,000 

 
This proposal assumes any displays, exhibits, engineering designs or details, required for 
public information will be provided by the owner, the design engineer, or the contractor.  
MakPro is not responsible for documenting existing property conditions, project signage or 
traffic signage. Changes of substance to this proposal during the project may affect the 
final cost. 



Mr. John Akin, Tristar Engineering      January 12, 2021                                             
Public Outreach Services for Chandler Alley Rehabilitation PM10 Dust Emissions Project  
 
 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to work with Tristar and the City of Chandler on this exciting 
project.  Should you have questions or need additional information related to this proposal, 
please feel free to contact me at (480) 890-1927. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
Teresa Makinen 
Principal 
  



SUB CONSULTANT :

PROJECT NAME :

PROJECT OWNER:

PROJECT NUMBER:

GENERAL INFORMATION / ASSUMPTIONS

BASIS OF ESTIMATE

1

2

3

4 Laboratory Facility: This estimate is based upon all laboratory testing being conducted in QT's AASHTO Accredited testing facility.  
The QT facility is a full service production laboratory that services numerous project's simultaneously.   Efforts are always made to 
prioritize samples in accordance with project needs.

QA Periodic Report Summaries:  Reports will be provided on a weekly basis, although test results will be conveyed in real time as 
requested by the Client. Weekly Reports will be submitted to the designated client representative by Tuesday of the week following the 
week in which the work was performed.  Reports shall show all QA sampling and testing activities performed by QT during the reporting 
period.  Reports from non-QT entities (i.e. suppliers, other firms, etc.) will be included if provided by the client.  QT utilizes a 
sophisticated materials testing information system for managing and reporting on project test information.  Reports from this system will 
be provided in pdf format for use by client.

ESTIMATE Amount Based on Defined Scope: This cost proposal is considered an initial Time & Materials cost estimate, subject to 
the GENERAL INFORMATION/ASSUMPTIONS as defined herein. For the estimate amount, QT will perform the requested Quality 
Assurance (QA) sampling and testing, both field and lab, that is specifically identified in the project documents, or other project 
controlling documents, at the time of this estimate.

References that Define QA  Requirements: This cost proposal is based upon the QT's interpretation of sampling and testing 
requirements from the supplied plans and specifications. If these interpretations are in error, if they change, or if the client elects to alter 
the sampling criteria, QT reserves the right to revise the scope and fee to  fit these changes to the assumptions. 

Work Outside of Defined Scope: If sampling and testing work is requested by the client that is not already defined in the project 
documents, such work will be accommodated; however, compensation for such services shall be in addition to the Estimate amount.   
QT encourages client project management to inform  job level project staff that requests for services outside the originally defined QA 
scope will result in additional costs.  Once identified, QT management will send client project management a Supplemental Agreement 
(SA) form, defining the scope, cost, and description of any requested additional work.  Preferably, the requested additional work will not 
be performed until after the SA form is signed and returned by client management.  However, because requests are often the result of 
unplanned events, and in order to not impact the construction schedule, some work may be performed prior to the SA form being 
generated and returned.  Regardless, by requesting the additional services, and then allowing them to be performed on the project, the 
client is accepting the responsibility to pay for requested services.  

Schedule: The estimate amount was developed prior to bid and without the benefit of a detailed project schedule.  In order to properly 
plan resource utilization after the bid, the client shall provide QT with a detailed base schedule prior to construction.  Using this detailed 
base schedule, QT will redistribute the pre-bid designated manpower and testing resources in accordance with the actual planned 
sequence and duration of scheduled construction activities.  This redistribution of resources will be provided to client management for 
comment and to further clarify the scope of planned services.  Significant deviation from the base schedule that results in extra field 
presence, or extra samples, may be considered extra work.

Invoicing:  Invoicing will occur on a 4 week cycle.  Each invoice shall include original scope charges that represent an appropriate, and 
defined, fraction of the original scope estimate amount.   In the event that extra work is requested and provided during the invoicing 
period, such services shall be identified separately from the original scope charges on invoices.   Additional work shall be calculated 
based on the unit prices defined in this cost proposal, or as otherwise superseded in specific Supplemental Agreements.

Assumptions of Production:
We have assumed total of up to 87 trips (or 174 hours) for materials testing services on this project.   This is proposed as an 
assumed on-call time and materials basis. Any work or site visits that are outside those specified  in the cost breakdown is beyond the 
scope of this proejct and subjeect to additional charges based on the referenced hourly or unit rates.

ST1909.401 Alley Rehabilitation PM10 Dust Emissions Project

City of Chandler

21006

QT

COST ESTIMATE SUMMARY

175 South Hamilton Place Build 6 Ste 114 Gilbert AZ 85233 Tel (480)496-2000, Fax (480)496-2001

ST1909-451 CHN0245D T024001C Alley Rehab PM 10



SUB CONSULTANT :

PROJECT NAME :

PROJECT OWNER:

PROJECT NUMBER:

GENERAL INFORMATION / ASSUMPTIONS

ST1909.401 Alley Rehabilitation PM10 Dust Emissions Project

City of Chandler

21006

QT

COST ESTIMATE SUMMARY

LABOR POSITIONS
5

6

7

8

QT CONTINGENCY SERVICES 
9

10

11

12

1/13/2021
Date

Signature

Field Technician(s) - In general, field technician(s) shall be assigned to the project in accordance with the SCHEDULED PROJECT 
MAN-HOURS sheet of this cost proposal, or as modified by a post-bid schedule evaluation.  The technician(s) will cover the requested 
materials sampling and field testing requirements on the project per the scope of the originally defined estimate amount.  For most 
efficiency and familiarity, use of the consistent personnel pool is always the objective, but cannot be guaranteed.  Technician time is 
charged on a portal to portal basis and related vehicle charges will apply.

Lab Technician - Lab Technician Indirect hours have been shown on the SCHEDULED PROJECT MAN-HOURS sheet of this cost 
proposal for information only. A reasonable, approximate estimate of lab testing quantities is reflected in this cost proposal.

All of the QT positions discussed in the QT SERVICES above are based on an assumption of 0% overtime (i.e. 40 regular hours plus 0 
overtime hours per week). Time will be billed as actually worked. Overtime will be considered time in excess of 40 hours in a week, or on 
weekends, or in excess of 8 hours in a day, or during intermittent night shifts.

Name

Reporting Technician - A reporting technician will accumulate and draft weekly reports for Materials Supervisor to review, evaluate, 
finalize, and transmit to the Client in a timely fashion.  This allows the Materials Supervisor to focus on report content in lieu of data 
input.

Scheduling Cancellation:
For any unforeseen circumstances a technician is cancelled upon their arrival onsite for scheduled activities, the client will be 
responsible for all charges associated with travel from portal to portal. This is considered services outside the originally defined QA 
scope and will result in additional costs. 

Jaye Richardson, Sr. Project Manager

The hours estimated herein do not include activities at fabrication yards or supplier production sites located off of the project.  In 
addition, non-compliance and associated retesting is also not accounted for in this estimate.  If needed or wanted,  these services may 
require additional hours and lab testing costs.

Materials Supervisor - This person will begin immediately upon notice to proceed and will be involved during the entire contract. This 
person will be dedicated to managing the day to day field and lab materials testing efforts. Initially, this person will work with the client 
Manager to develop the Materials Testing Plan for the project.  Then, this person will ensure that testing frequencies are being satisfied, 
that non-conformance issues are being properly addressed and rectified, that both field and lab test data is being properly reflected in 
the QT Materials Information Database, that project specific Periodic Materials Testing Reports are being prepared, transmitted and 
supported in a timely and accurate manner, and that both physical and personnel resources are provided to the job as scheduled and 
appropriate. This person will also attend and participate in project meetings when requested and will be the focal point for 
communication and coordination of materials testing activities between QT and the Client. 

QT's intent is to satisfy the project QA materials testing needs within the regular labor assumptions defined in this cost proposal. Based 
on past similarly staffed projects, overtime is typically not intended, but often incurred due to the contractor work schedule.  Overtime 
often results from long work days, uncontrollable field delays, weekend and night work, schedule intensity increases, owner agency 
mandates, etc..  This cost proposal assumes zero overtime.  QT will attempt to accommodate short term multiple work shifts, weekend 
work, night work, shift irregularity, and other unforeseen labor demands within this assumption.  However, if concurrent work activities go 
beyond the capacity of the herein stated manpower assumptions,  QT will work closely with the client to prioritize QA materials testing 
activity coverage and to adjust technician schedule in an ongoing Time & Mateirals basis. 

175 South Hamilton Place Build 6 Ste 114 Gilbert AZ 85233 Tel (480)496-2000, Fax (480)496-2001

ST1909-451 CHN0245D T024001C Alley Rehab PM 10





 

 
City of Chandler Professional Services Agreement – Exhibit “B” Page B-1 
Public Works & Utilities Department, Capital Projects Division  
Project Name: ALLEY REHABILITATION PM 10 DUST EMISSIONS  
Project No.: ST1909.451; FEDERAL ID NO.: CHN-0(245)D; ADOT NO.: T024001C 
Rev. 9/16/2020  
 

EXHIBIT “B” 
COMPENSATION AND FEES 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



Task Cost

1

1.1 4,499.73$                 

4,499.73$                 

2

2.1 11,674.97$               

2.2 1,945.83$                 

2.3 3,891.66$                 

2.4 3,648.43$                 

2.5 3,648.43$                 

2.6 3,648.43$                 

2.7 2,918.74$                 

2.8 (Included below)

31,376.47$               

3

3.1 1,038.79$                 

3.2 12,039.81$               

SUBTOTAL TASK 3: 13,078.60$               

4

4.1 83,356.43$               

4.2 N/A

4.3 1,803.94$                 

85,160.37$               

CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT

EXHIBIT "B-1"

CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT

SCOPE OF SERVICES

ST1909-451 CHN0245D T024001C Alley Rehab PM 10

FEE SCHEDULE (FHWA FUNDED PROJECTS)

Description

PRE-CONSTRUCTION ASSISTANCE

Pre-Construction Assistance

SUBTOTAL TASK 1:

Weekly Construction Meetings

CPM Schedule

Requests for Information (RFI)

Shop Drawing Submittals

Requests for Proposal (RFP)

Field Directive (FD)

Inspection Services

Contractor Payment Applications

Public Outreach

SUBTOTAL TASK 2:

CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION

Federal Compliance Administration

Administrative Support

CONSTRUCTION INSPECTION

Landscape/Irrigation Inspection Services

Project Closeout

SUBTOTAL TASK 4:



5

5.1 N/A

-$                         

6 MATERIALS TESTING

6.1 972.91$                   

6.2 972.91$                   

6.3 1,945.83$                 

6.4 207.76$                   

4,099.41$                 

7

7.1 2,462.69$                 

2,462.69$                 

11,000.00$               

49,838.55$               

5,103.06$                 

-$                         

65,941.61$               

10,000.00$               

10,000.00$               

20,000.00$               

226,618.88$     

UTILITY COORDINATION

Utility Coordination 

SUBTOTAL TASK 5:

QC Test Program

SUBCONSULTANTS

QA Test Program

Material Certifications

IA Test Program

Overtime and/or Extra Hours Allowance

Owner's Allowance

SUBTOTAL ALLOWANCES:

PROJECT TOTAL:

MakPro Services, LLC

Quality Testing, LLC

ACS Services, LLC

SUBTOTAL SUBCONSULTANTS:

ALLOWANCES

SUBTOTAL TASK 6:

RECORD DRAWINGS

Record Drawings

SUBTOTAL TASK 7:



Quality Testing, LLC
175 S Hamilton Place, Bldg 6, #114
Gilbert, AZ 85233
(480) 496-2000 ▪ (480) 496-2001
www.qt-corp.com

SUB CONSULTANT :

PROJECT NAME :

PROJECT OWNER:

ESTIMATE NUMBER:

Project Description:

Cost Estimate Summary:

Total Extended QT Direct Billable Labor
(Includes Labor as defined on PROPOSAL SUMMARY)

Total Laboratory Testing Fees
(Includes All Laboratory Testing)

Total Other Direct Costs
(Includes Vehicle, Subcontracted Services, etc. if Applicable)

Total Estimate of All Fees

1/13/2021
Date

City of Chandler

21113-01

QT

ST1909.401 Alley Rehabilitation PM10 Dust Emissions Project

Estimator Signature

2,175.00$                          

49,838.55$                        

26,498.55$                        

21,165.00$                        

The following pages identify the time frame, resourcing, and other assumptions used in developing this cost estimate. 
Assumptions are based on the information provided by your office, and QT's experience on similar projects, at the time 
of this proposal. If there are changes to the contractor's schedule, re-testing, additional site visits or other items that 
are not part of the originally assumed visits, these visits will be outside this scope of work. Items outside this scope of 
work will be extra work that will be billed to the contractor based on the units and rates established here within.

Jaye Richardson, Sr. Project Manager

Estimate Amount Defined Scope: This cost proposal is considered an estimate, subject to the GENERAL 
INFORMATION/ASSUMPTIONS as defined herein. For the estimate amount, QT will perform Quality Assurance / 
Acceptance sampling and testing, both field and lab, that is specifically identified in this cost estimate.

See contract documents.

ST1909-451 CHN0245D T024001C Alley Rehab PM 10



PROJECT NAME :

SCOPE OF SERVICES:

LABOR FEES
LABOR 
TYPE

REG
HOURS

REGULAR
RATE

ASS'D
% OT

OVERTIME
HOURS

OVERTIME
RATE(1)

EXTENDED
LABOR COST

Direct 2 174.95$    0% 0 174.95$    349.90$                            
Direct 35 146.53$    0% 0 146.53$    5,128.55$                         
Direct 70 119.70$    0% 0 179.55$    8,379.00$                         
Direct 174 72.65$      0% 0 108.98$    12,641.10$                       

Indirect 317 -$         0% 0 -$          -$                                  

SUBTOTAL DIRECT LABOR 26,498.55$                       
VEHILE AND PER-DIEM CHARGES

NO.
UNITS UNITS UNIT

PRICE
EXTENDED VEHICLE

AND PER-DIEM
87 EA 25.00$      2,175.00$                         
0 -$          -$                                  

SUBTOTAL VEHICLE AND PER-DIEM CHARGES 2,175.00$                         
OTHER PROJECT DIRECT CHARGES

NO.
UNITS UNITS UNIT

PRICE
EXTENDED OTHER 

PROJECT CHARGES
-$                                  
-$                                  
-$                                  
-$                                  

SUBTOTAL OTHER PROJECT DIRECT CHARGES -$                                  

LAB TESTING FEES
NO.

UNITS UNITS UNIT
PRICE

EXTENDED
LABORATORY FEES

17 EA 75.00$      1,275.00$                         
17 EA 150.00$    2,550.00$                         
17 EA 190.00$    3,230.00$                         
17 EA 120.00$    2,040.00$                         
17 EA 260.00$    4,420.00$                         
17 EA 110.00$    1,870.00$                         
17 EA 150.00$    2,550.00$                         
17 EA 190.00$    3,230.00$                         

EA -$                                  
EA -$                                  

-$                                  
-$                                  

TOTAL LABORATORY TESTING FEES 21,165.00$                       

TOTAL ESTIMATE OF ALL FEES 49,838.55$           

Estimator

(1) Regular Rate X Overtime Premium of 1.5

CLASSIFICATION

Registered Engineer
Materials Project Manager
Materials Data Coordinator
Materials Field Technician
Materials Lab Technician

DESCRIPTION

725 - Saybolt Visosity
728 - Storage Stability
727 - Emulsion Sieve Test
713 - Residue by Distillation

416 - Sieve Analysis

623 - Penetration
618 - Ductility
627 - Solubility

Date
Jaye Richardson, Sr. Project Manager January 13, 2021

DESCRIPTION

Trip Charge

DESCRIPTION

PROPOSAL SUMMARY 

ST1909.401 Alley Rehabilitation PM10 Dust Emissions Project

Quality Assurance/Acceptance Testing

COST PROPOSAL,  1/13/2021

ST1909-451 CHN0245D T024001C Alley Rehab PM 10

mailto:=@if(A64%3C%3E%22%22,%22DAY%22,%22%22)


 

 
City of Chandler Professional Services Agreement – Exhibit “C” Page C-1 
Public Works & Utilities Department, Capital Projects Division  
Project Name: ALLEY REHABILITATION PM 10 DUST EMISSIONS 
Project No.: ST1909.451; FEDERAL ID NO.: CHN-0(245)D; ADOT NO.: T024001C 
Rev. 9/16/2020  
 

EXHIBIT “C” 
INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

 
1. General. 
 
1.1 At the same time as execution of this Agreement, Consultant must furnish City a certificate 

of insurance on a standard insurance industry ACORD form.  The ACORD form must be 
issued by an insurance company authorized to transact business in the State of Arizona 
possessing a current A.M. Best, Inc. rating of A-7, or better and legally authorized to do 
business in the State of Arizona with policies and forms satisfactory to City.  Provided, 
however, the A.M. Best rating requirement will not be deemed to apply to required 
Workers’ Compensation coverage.  

 
1.2 Consultant and any of its subconsultants must procure and maintain, until all of their 

obligations have been discharged, including any warranty periods under this Agreement 
are satisfied, the insurances set forth below. 

 
1.3 The insurance requirements set forth below are minimum requirements for this 

Agreement and in no way limit the indemnity covenants contained in this Agreement. 
 
1.4 City in no way warrants that the minimum insurance limits contained in this Agreement are 

sufficient to protect Consultant from liabilities that might arise out of the performance of 
the Agreement services under this Agreement by Consultant, its agents, representatives, 
employees, subconsultants, and Consultant is free to purchase any additional insurance as 
may be determined necessary. 

 
1.5 Failure to demand evidence of full compliance with the insurance requirements in this 

Agreement or failure to identify any insurance deficiency will not relieve Consultant from, 
nor will it be considered a waiver of its obligation to maintain the required insurance at all 
times during the performance of this Agreement. 

 
1.6 Use of subconsultants:  If any work is subcontracted in any way, Consultant must execute a 

written contract with subconsultant containing the same Indemnification Clause and 
Insurance Requirements as City requires of Consultant in this Agreement. Consultant is 
responsible for executing the Agreement with the subconsultant and obtaining Certificates 
of Insurance and verifying the insurance requirements. 

 
2. Minimum Scope and Limits of Insurance.  Consultant must provide coverage with limits of 

liability not less than those stated below. 
 
2.1 Professional Liability.  If the Agreement is the subject of any professional services or work 

performed by Consultant, or if Consultant engages in any professional services or work 
adjunct or residual to performing the work under this Agreement, Consultant must 
maintain Professional Liability insurance covering errors and omissions arising out of the 
work or services performed by Consultant, or anyone employed by Consultant, or anyone 
whose acts, mistakes, errors and omissions Consultant is legally liable, with a liability limit 
of $1,000,000 each claim and $2,000,000 all claims.  In the event the Professional Liability 



 

 
City of Chandler Professional Services Agreement – Exhibit “C” Page C-2 
Public Works & Utilities Department, Capital Projects Division  
Project Name: ALLEY REHABILITATION PM 10 DUST EMISSIONS 
Project No.: ST1909.451; FEDERAL ID NO.: CHN-0(245)D; ADOT NO.: T024001C 
Rev. 9/16/2020  
 

insurance policy is written on a “claims made” basis, coverage must extend for 3 years past 
completion and acceptance of the work or services, and Consultant, or its selected Design 
Professional will submit Certificates of Insurance as evidence the required coverage is in 
effect.  The Design Professional must annually submit Certificates of Insurance citing that 
the applicable coverage is in force and contains the required provisions for a 3 year period. 

 
2.2 Commercial General Liability-Occurrence Form.  Consultant must maintain “occurrence” form 

Commercial General Liability insurance with a limit of not less than $2,000,000 for each 
occurrence, $4,000,000 aggregate.   Said insurance must also include coverage for products 
and completed operations, independent contractors, personal injury and advertising injury. 
If any Excess insurance is utilized to fulfill the requirements of this paragraph, the Excess 
insurance must be “follow form” equal or broader in coverage scope than underlying 
insurance. 

 
2.3 Automobile Liability-Any Auto or Owned, Hired and Non-Owned Vehicles  
 Vehicle Liability:  Consultant must maintain Business/Automobile Liability insurance with a 

limit of $1,000,000 each accident on Consultant owned, hired, and non-owned vehicles 
assigned to or used in the performance of Consultant’s work or services under this 
Agreement.  If any Excess or Umbrella insurance is utilized to fulfill the requirements of this 
paragraph, the Excess  or Umbrella insurance must be “follow form” equal or broader in 
coverage scope than underlying insurance. 

 
2.4 Workers Compensation and Employers Liability Insurance:  Consultant must maintain Workers 

Compensation insurance to cover obligations imposed by federal and state statutes having 
jurisdiction of Consultant employees engaged in the performance of work or services 
under this Agreement and must also maintain Employers’ Liability insurance of not less 
than $1,000,000 for each accident and $1,000,000 disease for each employee. 
 

2.5 Cyber Technology Errors and Omissions, Network Security, and Privacy Liability Insurance.  The 
policy must cover professional misconduct or lack of ordinary skill for those positions 
defined in the Scope of Services of this Agreement with a limit of not less than $3,000,000 
for each occurrence, $3,000,000 aggregate.  In the event that the professional liability 
insurance required by this Agreement is written on a claims-made basis, Consultant 
warrants that any retroactive date under the policy must precede the effective date of this 
Agreement; and that either continuous coverage will be maintained or an extended 
discovery period will be exercised for a period of two (2) years beginning at the time work 
under this Agreement is completed.  If such insurance is maintained on an occurrence form 
basis, Consultant must maintain such insurance for an additional period of one (1) year 
following termination of Agreement.  If such insurance is maintained on a claims-made 
basis, Consultant must maintain such insurance for an additional period of three (3) years 
following termination of the Agreement.  If Consultant contends that any of the insurance it 
maintains pursuant to other sections of this Exhibit C satisfies this requirement (or 
otherwise insures the risks described in this section), then Consultant must provide proof 
of same.    

  
2.5.1. The insurance must provide coverage for the following risks:  



 

 
City of Chandler Professional Services Agreement – Exhibit “C” Page C-3 
Public Works & Utilities Department, Capital Projects Division  
Project Name: ALLEY REHABILITATION PM 10 DUST EMISSIONS 
Project No.: ST1909.451; FEDERAL ID NO.: CHN-0(245)D; ADOT NO.: T024001C 
Rev. 9/16/2020  
 

2.5.1.1 Liability arising from theft, dissemination, or use of confidential information 
(a defined term including but not limited to bank account, credit card 
account, personal information such as name, address, social security 
numbers, etc. information) stored or transmitted in electronic form.  

2.5.1.2 Network Security Liability arising from the unauthorized access to, use of, 
or tampering with computer systems including hacker attacks, inability of 
an authorized third party, to gain access to your services including denial of 
service, unless caused by a mechanical or electrical failure.  

2.5.1.3 Liability arising from the introduction of a computer virus into, or otherwise 
causing damage to, a customer’s or third person’s computer, computer 
system, network, or similar computer related property and the data, 
software, and programs thereon.  

 
2.5.2. The policy must provide a waiver of subrogation. 
 

3. Additional Policy Provisions Required. 
 
3.1 Self-Insured Retentions or Deductibles.  Any self-insured retentions and deductibles must be 

declared and approved by City.  If not approved, City may require that the insurer reduce 
or eliminate any deductible or self-insured retentions with respect to City, its officers, 
officials, agents, employees, and volunteers. 

 
3.1.1. Consultant’s insurance must contain broad form contractual liability coverage. 
 
3.1.2. Consultant’s insurance coverage must be primary insurance with respect to City, its 

officers, officials, agents, and employees.  Any insurance or self-insurance 
maintained by City, its officers, officials, agents, and employees will be in excess of 
the coverage provided by Consultant and must not contribute to it. 

 
3.1.3. Consultant’s insurance must apply separately to each insured against whom claim is 

made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer's liability. 
 
3.1.4. Coverage provided by Consultant must not be limited to the liability assumed under 

the indemnification provisions of this Agreement. 
 
3.1.5. The policies must contain a severability of interest clause and waiver of subrogation 

against City, its officers, officials, agents, and employees, for losses arising from 
Work performed by Consultant for City. 

 
3.1.6. Consultant, its successors and or assigns, are required to maintain Commercial 

General Liability insurance as specified in this Agreement for a minimum period of 3 
years following completion and acceptance of the Work.  Consultant must submit a 
Certificate of Insurance evidencing Commercial General Liability insurance during 
this 3 year period containing all the Agreement insurance requirements, including 
naming City of Chandler, its agents, representatives, officers, directors, officials and 
employees as Additional Insured as required. 



 

 
City of Chandler Professional Services Agreement – Exhibit “C” Page C-4 
Public Works & Utilities Department, Capital Projects Division  
Project Name: ALLEY REHABILITATION PM 10 DUST EMISSIONS 
Project No.: ST1909.451; FEDERAL ID NO.: CHN-0(245)D; ADOT NO.: T024001C 
Rev. 9/16/2020  
 

 
3.1.7. If a Certificate of Insurance is submitted as verification of coverage, City will 

reasonably rely upon the Certificate of Insurance as evidence of coverage but this 
acceptance and reliance will not waive or alter in any way the insurance 
requirements or obligations of this Agreement.   

 
3.2.  Insurance Cancellation During Term of Contract/Agreement.  

3.2.1. If any of the required policies expire during the life of this Agreement, Consultant 
must forward renewal or replacement Certificates to City within 10 days after the 
renewal date containing all the required insurance provisions. 

 
3.2.2. Each insurance policy required by the insurance provisions of this Agreement must 

provide the required coverage and must not be suspended, voided or canceled 
except after thirty (30) days prior written notice has been given to City, except when 
cancellation is for non-payment of premium, then ten (10) days prior notice may be 
given.  Such notice must be sent directly to Chandler Law-Risk Management 
Department, Post Office Box 4008, Mailstop 628, Chandler, Arizona  85225. If any 
insurance company refuses to provide the required notice, Consultant or its 
insurance broker must notify City of any cancellation, suspension, non-renewal of 
any insurance within seven (7) days of receipt of insurers’ notification to that effect.  

 
3.3 City as Additional Insured.  The policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the 

following provisions: 

3.3.1. The Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability policies are to contain, or 
be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:  City, its officers, officials, agents, 
and employees are additional insureds with respect to liability arising out of 
activities performed by, or on behalf of, Consultant including City's general 
supervision of Consultant; Products and Completed operations of Consultant; and 
automobiles owned, leased, hired, or borrowed by Consultant. 

 
3.3.2. City, its officers, officials, agents, and employees must be additional insureds to the 

full limits of liability purchased by Consultant even if those limits of liability are in 
excess of those required by this Agreement. 



 

 
City of Chandler Professional Services Agreement – Affidavit of Lawful Presence Page AFF-1 
Public Works & Utilities Department, Capital Projects Division  
Project Name: ALLEY REHABILITATION PM 10 DUST EMISSIONS 
Project No.: ST1909.451; FEDERAL ID NO.: CHN-0(245)D; ADOT NO.: T024001C 
Rev. 11/1/19  
 

EXHIBIT “D” 
SPECIAL CONDITIONS 

 
 
 
Work within City's Right-of-Way. All work performed within City's Right-of-Way by Consultant 
and Consultant’s subconsultants must comply with City of Chandler requirements.  
 



 

 
City of Chandler Professional Services Agreement – Exhibit “E” E-1 
Public Works & Utilities Department, Capital Projects Division  
Project Name: [TITLE] 
Project No.: [####] 
Rev. 9/16/2020  
 

 
EXHIBIT “E” 

FEDERAL REQUIREMENTS 
 
 
 
 
 
 



FEDERAL DOCUMENTS 

Professional Services 
With 0% No Goal  – DBE Race Neutral 



FEDERAL FUNDED PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

CITY PROJECT NAME: 

CITY PROJECT NO:  

FEDERAL PROJECT NO: 

ADOT NO:  

ALLEY REHAB PM10 DUST EMISSIONS 

ST1909-451
CHN0245D 

T024001C 

1.0 SOQ Proposal Certification Form ....................................... SUBMIT WITH SOQ 

2.0 Lobby Certification .............................................................. SUBMIT WITH SOQ 

3.0 Prompt Pay Provisions 

4.0 Title VI Assurance, Title VI Appendix A and E 

5.0 DBE EPrise 

6.0 Records Retention 

7.0 Federal Immigration and Nationality Act 

8.0 DBE Documents 

8.1 DBE Forms and Documents Guide 

8.2 ADOT On-Line Bidders Proposers ............................... SBMIT WITH SOQ 

8.3 DBE Form 3210PS Final Payment Certification 

9.0 Pay Application Documents  

8.1 Pay Application Form 

8.2 Pay Application Supplement – Subconsultant Payment Record 

10.0 Subconsultant Subcontracts  

10.1 Subconsultant Subcontract Required Documents Guide 

10.2 SARF (Subconsultant Approval Request) 

10.3 Federal Compliance Acknowledgement 

10.4 Subrecipient DBE Assurances 

11.0 Buy America Requirements 



08-06-2020 

FEDERAL DOCUMENTS 1.0 

SOQ PROPOSAL CERTIFICATION FORM 

(SUBMIT WITH SOQ) 



Rev by COC 2020-03-04 

CITY OF CHANDLER 

SOQ PROPOSAL CERTIFICATION FORM 

CONSULTANT NAME: ______________________________________________________________ 

PROJECT NAME 

CITY PROJECT NO FEDERAL NO ADOT NO 

The statements below are to ensure Consultants are aware and in agreement with Federal, State, and 

City of Chandler Guidelines related to the award of this contract.  Consultants shall submit the specific 

Certification form attached to the related SOQ advertised.  Failure to sign and submit this Certification 

Form as specified in this SOQ with the SOQ proposal will result in the SOQ proposal being rejected. 

Submission of the SOQ by the Consultant certifies that to the best of its knowledge: 

1. The Consultant and its subconsultant have not engaged in collusion with respect to the contract

under consideration.

2. The Consultant, its principals and subconsultants have not been suspended or debarred from doing

business with any government entity.

3. The Consultant shall have the proper Arizona licenses(s) and registration(s) for services to be

performed under this SOQ and contract.  Furthermore, the Consultant and Key Team Members

including Subconsultants are currently licensed to provide the required services as requested in the

SOQ package.

4. The Consultant’s signature on any SOQ proposal or contract constitutes an authorization to the City to

ascertain the eligibility of the Consultant, its principals and subconsultants to enter into contract with

the City and with any other governmental agency.

5. The Consultant’s Project Team members are employed by the Consultant on the date of submittal.

6. All information and statements written in the proposal are true and accurate and that the City

reserves the right to investigate, as deemed appropriate, to verify information contained in proposals.

7. All members of the Project Team who are former City employees did not have or provide information

that gives the Consultant a competitive advantage, and either (1) concluded their employment with

City at least 12 months before the date of the SOQ or (2) have not made any material decisions about

this project while employed by the City of Chandler.

8. Work, equating at least 51% of the contract value, shall be completed by the Consultant unless

otherwise specified in the SOQ or contract.

9. No federally appropriated funds have been paid or shall be paid by or on behalf of the Consultant for

the purpose of lobbying.

10. The Consultant understands that it is required to have a compliant accounting system, in accordance

with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP), Federal Acquisition Regulation (FAR) of Title 48,

Code of Federal Regulations (CFR)-Part 31, applicable Cost Accounting Standards (CAS), and ADOT

Advance Agreement Guideline.



Rev by COC 2020-03-04 

 
 
 

11. Due to the project having federal aid funds, the Consultant affirmatively ensures that in any 
subcontract entered into pursuant to this advertisement, disadvantaged business enterprises shall be 
afforded full and fair opportunity to submit proposals/bids in response to this invitation and shall not 
be discriminated again on the grounds of race, color, or national origin in consideration for an award, 
in accordance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. 2000d to 2000d-4 and Title 49, 
Code of Federal Regulations, Department of Transportation, Subtitle A, Office of the Secretary, Part 
21, Nondiscrimination in Federally-assisted programs of the Department of Transportation. 

12. The Consultant shall utilize all Project Team members, subconsultants and DBE firms, if applicable, 
submitted in the SOQ and shall not add other Project Team members or subconsultants, unless the 
Consultant has received prior written approval from the City.  Furthermore, Consultant understands 
that each Subconsultant must be approved through a City of Chandler approval process. 

13. The Consultant shall either meet its DBE goal commitment and any other DBE commitments or make 
Good Faith Efforts to meet the DBE goal commitments as stated in its SOQ proposal or Cost Proposal 
and shall report on a timely basis its DBE utilization as detailed in the contract. 

14. If selected, the Consultant is committed to satisfactorily carry out the Consultant’s commitments as 
detailed in the contract and its SOQ proposal. 
 

I hereby certify that I have read and agree to adhere to the fourteen (14) statements above and/or that 
the statements are true to the best of my knowledge as a condition of award of this contract.  This form 
must be signed by a Principal of the Consultant. 

 
 
Name (Print):  ____________________________________________ Title: _______________________________ 
 
 
 
Name (Signature):
 _____________________________________________ Date: _______________________________ 

 
 

John Akin, PE                                                                 President

24 September 2020



08-06-2020 

FEDERAL DOCUMENTS 2.0 

LOBBY CERTIFICATION FORM 
(SUBMIT WITH SOQ) 



DISCLOSURE OF LOBBYING ACTIVITIES Approved by OMB 

Complete this form to disclose lobbying activities pursuant to 31 U.S.C. 1352  0348-0046 
(See reverse for public burden disclosure.) 

1. Type of Federal Action: 2. Status of Federal Action: 3. Report Type:
a. contract a. bid/offer/application a. initial filing
b. grant b. initial award b. material change
c. cooperative agreement c. post-award  For Material Change Only: 
d. loan  year _________ quarter _________ 
e. loan guarantee  date of last report ______________ 
f. loan insurance

4. Name and Address of Reporting Entity: 5. If Reporting Entity in No. 4 is a Subawardee, Enter Name
and Address of Prime:

Tier ______, if known :

Congressional District, if known :  Congressional District, if known :
6. Federal Department/Agency: 7. Federal Program Name/Description:

CFDA Number, if applicable: _____________ 

8. Federal Action Number, if known : 9. Award Amount, if known :
$

10. a. Name and Address of Lobbying Registrant b. Individuals Performing Services (including address if
( if individual, last name, first name, MI): different from No. 10a )

(last name, first name, MI ):

11. Signature:

Print Name: 

Title:

Telephone No.: _______________________ 
Authorized for Local Reproduction 
Standard Form LLL (Rev. 7-97) 

Information requested through this form is authorized by title 31 U.S.C. section 
1352. This disclosure of lobbying activities is a material representation of fact 
upon which reliance was placed by the tier above when this transaction was made 
or entered into. This disclosure is required pursuant to 31 U.S.C. 1352. This 
information will be available for public inspection. 
required disclosure shall be subject to a 
not more than $100,000 for each such failure. 

Prime Subawardee

Federal Use Only: 

Date:

who fails to file the Any person 
$10,000 and thancivil penalty of not less 

4c

PRINT

N/A N/A N/A

N/A N/A

N/A N/A

N/A N/A

N/A N/A

John Akin, PE
President
602.568.4661                         9/24/20



BIDDERS/PROPOSERS LIST EMAIL VERIFICATION



INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETION OF SF-LLL, DISCLOSURE OF LOBBYING ACTIVITIES


This disclosure form shall be completed by the reporting entity, whether subawardee or prime Federal recipient, at the initiation or receipt of a covered Federal 
action, or a material change to a previous filing, pursuant to title 31 U.S.C. section 1352. The filing of a form is required for each payment or agreement to make 
payment to any lobbying entity for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employeeof any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employeeof 
Congress, or an employeeof a Member of Congress in connectionwith a coveredFederalaction. Completeall items that apply for both the initial filing and material 
change report. Refer to the implementing guidance published by the Office of Management and Budget for additional information. 

1. Identify the type of covered Federal action for which lobbying activity is and/or has been secured to influence the outcome of a covered Federal action. 

2. Identify the status of the covered Federal action. 

3. Identify the appropriateclassification of this report. If this is a followup report caused by a material change to the information previously reported, enter 
the year and quarter in which the change occurred. Enter the date of the last previously submitted report by this reporting entity for this covered Federal 
action. 

4. Enter the full name, address, city, State and zip code of the reporting entity. Include CongressionalDistrict, if known. Check the appropriateclassification 
of the reporting entity that designates if it is, or expects to be, a prime or subaward recipient. Identify the tier of the subawardee,e.g., the first subawardee 
of the prime is the 1st tier. Subawards include but are not limited to subcontracts, subgrants and contract awards under grants. 

5. If the organization filing the report in item 4 checks "Subawardee," then enter the full name, address, city, State and zip code of the prime Federal 

recipient. Include Congressional District, if known. 

6. Enter the name of the Federal agency making the award or loan commitment. Include at least one organizationallevel below agency name, if known. For 

example, Department of Transportation, United States Coast Guard. 

7. Enter the Federal program name or description for the covered Federal action (item 1). If known, enter the full Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance 

(CFDA) number for grants, cooperative agreements, loans, and loan commitments. 

8. Enter the most appropriate Federal identifying number available for the Federal action identified in item 1 (e.g., Request for Proposal (RFP) number; 
Invitation for Bid (IFB) number; grant announcement number; the contract, grant, or loan award number; the application/proposal control number 
assigned by the Federal agency). Include prefixes, e.g., "RFP-DE-90-001." 

9. For a covered Federal action where there has been an award or loan commitment by the Federal agency, enter the Federal amount of the award/loan 

commitment for the prime entity identified in item 4 or 5. 

10. (a) Enter the full name, address, city, State and zip code of the lobbying registrant under the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995 engaged by the reporting 
entity identified in item 4 to influence the covered Federal action. 

(b) Enter the full names of the individual(s) performing services, and include full address if different from 10 (a). Enter Last Name, First Name, and 
Middle Initial (MI). 

11. The certifying official shall sign and date the form, print his/her name, title, and telephone number. 

According to the Paperwork Reduction Act, as amended, no persons are required to respond to a collection of information unless it displays a valid OMB Control 
Number. The valid OMB control number for this information collection is OMB No. 0348-0046. Public reporting burden for this collection of information is 
estimated to average 10 minutes per response, including time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data 
needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. Send comments regarding the burden estimate or any other aspect of this collection of 
information, including suggestions for reducing this burden, to the Office of Management and Budget, Paperwork Reduction Project (0348-0046), Washington, 
DC 20503. 



08-06-2020 

 
FEDERAL DOCUMENTS  3.0 

 
 
 

PROMPT PAY PROVISION 



Prompt Pay and Payment Reporting Provisions- 1/5 

CONSTRUCTION AND PROFESSIONAL SERVICES/DESIGN CONTRACTS 
PROMPT PAY AND PAYMENT REPORTING PROVISIONS 

(09/20/2016) 

MEASUREMENTS AND PAYMENT: 

Partial Payments: 

If satisfactory progress is being made, the contractor will receive a payment based on the 
amount of work completed. Progress payments may be made by the LPA/ Subrecipient 
Procurement Office to the contractor on the basis of an approved estimate of the work 
performed during a preceding period of time. The progress payments shall be paid on or 
before 14 days after the estimate of the work is approved. The estimate of the work shall be 
deemed received by the LPA/Subrecipient Procurement Office on submission to the person 
designated by the LPA/Subrecipient Procurement Office for the submission, review or 
approval of the estimate of the work. The LPA/Subrecipient Procurement Office by mutual 
agreement may make progress payments on contracts of less than 90 days and shall make 
monthly progress payments on all other contracts. Payment to the contractor on the basis of 
a duly certified and approved estimate of the work performed during the preceding calendar 
month under the contract may include payment for material and equipment. 

An estimate of the work submitted shall be deemed approved and certified for payment after 
seven days from the date of submission unless before that time the LPA/Subrecipient 
Procurement Office or Designee prepares and issues a specific written finding setting forth 
those items in detail in the estimate of the work that are not approved for payment under the 
contract. The contractor shall work with the LPA/Subrecipient or the LPA/Subrecipient 
Designee to finalize monthly estimate. The progress payments shall be paid on or before 
14 days after the estimate of the work is certified and approved in accordance with Arizona 
Revised Statutes Section 34-221. 

The contractor shall pay to the contractor's subcontractors or material suppliers and each 
subcontractor shall pay to the subcontractor's subcontractor or material supplier, within 
seven days of receipt of each progress payment the respective amounts allowed the 
contractor or subcontractor on account of the work performed by the subcontractors, to the 
extent of each subcontractor's interest, except that no contract for construction services may 
materially alter the rights of any contractor, subcontractor or material supplier to receive 
prompt and timely payment. 

A subcontractor may notify the LPA/Subrecipient Procurement Office in writing requesting 
that the subcontractor be notified by the Subrecipient Procurement Office in writing within 
five days from payment of each progress payment made to the contractor. 



Prompt Pay and Payment Reporting Provisions- 2/5  

Subcontractor Payments: 
 

(1) Retention: 
 
If the prime contract does not provide for retention, the contractor and each subcontractor of 
any tier shall not withhold retention on any subcontract. If the prime contract provides for 
retention, the prime contractor and each subcontractor of any tier shall not retain a higher 
percentage than the LPA/Subrecipient may retain under the prime contract. 

 
(2) No Set-offs Arising from Other Contracts: 

 
If a subcontractor is performing work on multiple contracts for the same contractor or 
subcontractor of any tier, the contractor or subcontractor of any tier shall not withhold or 
reduce payment from its subcontractors on the contract because of disputes or claims on 
another contract. 

 
(3) Partial Payment: 

 
The contractor and each subcontractor of any tier shall make prompt partial payments to its 
subcontractors within seven days of receipt of payment from the LPA/Subrecipient 
Procurement Office. Notwithstanding any provision of Arizona Revised Statutes Section 34- 
221, the parties may not agree otherwise. 

 

 
 

(4) Final Payment: 
 
The contractor and each subcontractor of any tier shall make prompt final payment to each 
of its subcontractors. The contractor and each subcontractor of any tier shall pay all 
monies, including retention, due to its subcontractor within seven days of receipt of 
payment. Notwithstanding any provision of Arizona Revised Statutes Section 34-221, the 
parties may not agree otherwise. 

 
(5) Payment Reporting: 

 
For the purposes of this subsection “Reportable Contracts” means any subcontract, of any 
tier, DBE or non-DBE, by which work shall be performed on behalf of the contractor and any 
contract of any tier with a DBE material supplier. 

 
The requirements of this subsection apply to all Reportable Contracts. 

 
Payment Reporting for all Reportable Contracts shall be done through the LPA DBE System 
which can be accessed at AZ UTRACS on the Arizona Transportation Business Portal at 
www.azutracs.com. No later than fifteen calendar days after the preconstruction conference, 
the contractor shall log into the system and enter or verify the name, contact information, 
and subcontract amounts for Reportable Contracts on the project. As Reportable Contracts 
are approved over the course of the contract, the contractor shall enter the subcontractor 
information in the LPA DBE System.  Reportable contracts information shall be entered into 

http://www.azutracs.com/


Prompt Pay and Payment Reporting Provisions- 3/5  

the system no later than five calendar days after approval by the LPA/Subrecipient 
Procurement Office. 

 
The contractor shall report on a monthly basis indicating the amounts actually paid and the 
dates of each payment under any Reportable Contract on the project. The contractor shall 
provide information for payments made on all Reportable Contracts during the previous 
month by the last day of the current month. In the event that no payments were made during 
a given month, the contractor shall identify that by entering a dollar value of zero. If the 
contractor does not pay the full amount of any invoice from a subcontractor, the contractor 
shall note that and provide the reasons in the comment section of the Monthly Payment 
Audit of the LPA DBE System. 

 
In addition, the contractor shall require that all participants in any Reportable Contract 
electronically verify receipt of payment on the contract within 15 days of receipt of electronic 
payment notification and the contractor shall actively monitor the system to ensure that the 
verifications are input. The contractor shall proactively work to resolve any payment 
discrepancies in the system between payment amounts it reports and payment confirmation 
amounts reported by others. 

 
The contractor shall ensure that all Reportable Contract payment activity is in the LPA DBE 
System. This includes all lower-tier Reportable Contracts. 

 
The contractor shall maintain records for each payment explaining the amount requested by 
the subcontractor, and the amount actually paid pursuant to the request, which may include 
but are not limited to, estimates, invoices, pay requests, copies of checks or wire transfers, 
and lien waivers in support of the monthly payments in the system. 

 
The contractor shall ensure that a copy of this Subsection is included in every Reportable 
Contract of every tier. 

 
(a) Sanctions for Inadequate Reporting: 

 
For each Reportable Contract on which the contractor fails to submit timely and complete 
payment information the LPA/Subrecipient Procurement Office will retain $1,000.00 as 
liquidated damages, from the monies due to the contractor. Liquidated damages will be 
deducted each month for each Reportable Contract on which the contractor fails to submit 
payment information until the contractor provides the required information as described 
herein.  After 90 consecutive days of non-reporting, the liquidated damages will increase to 
$2,000.00 for each subsequent month, for each Reportable Contract on which the 
contractor fails to report until the information is provided. These liquidated damages shall 
be in addition to all other retention or liquidated damages provided for elsewhere in the 
contract. 

 
(6) Completion of Work: 

 
A subcontractor's work is satisfactorily completed when all the tasks called for in the 
subcontract have been accomplished, documented, and accepted by the LPA/Subrecipient 
Procurement Office. 



Prompt Pay and Payment Reporting Provisions- 4/5  

 
 
 
 
 

(7) Disputes: 
 
If there is a discrepancy between what is reported by the contractor in the LPA DBE System 
and what the subcontractor indicates, an alert email will automatically be sent to the 
contractor. The email will be sent to the email address provided by the contractor in the 
LPA DBE System. It is the contractor’s responsibility to ensure that the email address in the 
system is kept current. 

 
The contractor shall provide a verifiable explanation of the discrepancy in the LPA DBE 
System as early as practicable but in no case later than seven days after the date of the 
alert email. 

 
The LPA/Subrecipient will determine whether the contractor has acted in good faith 
concerning any such explanations. The LPA/Subrecipient and ADOT BECO reserves the 
right to request and receive documents from the contractor and all subcontractors of any 
tier, in order to determine whether prompt payment requirements are met. 

 
The contractor shall implement and use the dispute resolution process outlined in the 
subcontract or by following the LPA/Subcrecipient escalation process, to resolve payment 
disputes. 

 
(8) Non-compliance: 

 
Failure to make prompt partial payment, or prompt final payment including any retention, 
within the time frames established above, will result in remedies, as the LPA/Subrecipient 
Procurement Office deems appropriate, which may include but are not limited to: 

 
(a) Liquidated Damages: These liquidated damages shall be in addition to all 

other retention or liquidated damages provided for elsewhere  in  the 
contract. 

 
(i) The LPA/Subrecipient Procurement Office will withhold two times the 

disputed dollar amount not paid to each subcontractor. 
(ii) If full payment is made within 30 days of the LPASubrecipient 

Procurement Office’s payment to the contractor, the amount withheld 
by the LPA/Subrecipient Procurement Office will be released. 

(iii) If full payment is made after 30 days of the LPA/Subrecipient 
Procurement Office’s payment to the contractor, the LPA/Subrecipient 
Procurement Office will release 75 percent of the funds withheld. The 
LPA/Subrecipient Procurement Office will retain 25 percent of the 
monies withheld as liquidated damages. 

 
(b) Additional Remedies. If the contractor fails to make prompt payment for 

three consecutive months, or any four months over the course of one 



Prompt Pay and Payment Reporting Provisions- 5/5  

project, or if the contractor fails to make prompt payment on two or more 
projects within 24 months, the LPA/Subrecipient Procurement Office may, 
in addition, invoke the following remedies: 

 
(i) Withhold monthly progress payments until the issue is resolved and full 

payment has been made to all subcontractors, subject to the liquidated 
damages described in paragraph (a) above, 

(ii) Terminate the contract for default, 
(iii) Disqualify the contractor from future bidding, temporarily or 

permanently, depending on the number and severity of violations, if 
applicable. 

 
In determining whether liquidated damages will be assessed, the extent of the liquidated 
damages, or additional remedies assessed, the LPA/Subrecipient will consider whether 
there have been other violations on this or other federal-aid contracts, whether the failure to 
make prompt payment was due to circumstances beyond the contractor’s control, and other 
circumstances. The contractor may, within 15 calendar days of receipt of the decision of the 
LPA/Subrecipient, escalate the decision according to the contract’s escalation process. 



08-06-2020 

 
FEDERAL DOCUMENTS  4.0 

 

 
 

TITLE VI ASSURANCE 

TITLE VI APPENDIX A  

TITLE VI APPENDIX E 

 

 













08-06-2020 

  
FEDERAL DOCUMENTS 5.0 

 

 
 

DBE EPRISE 



Professional Services DBE Special Provisions 08/26/2016 
LPA PS EPRISE - 1/12 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
DBE PROVISIONS  

 (PROJECT SPECIFIC - CONTRACTS) 
FOR USE ON LPA/SUBRECIPIENT FEDERAL AID PROJECTS WITHOUT DBE GOALS 

* NOTE:  REFER TO EDITING INSTRUCTIONS IN SECTIONS 13.0   *

(LPA PS EPRISE, 8/26/2016) 

DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISES: 

1.0 Policy: 

The Arizona Department of Transportation (hereinafter the Department) has established a 
Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) program in accordance with the regulations of the 
U.S. Department of Transportation (USDOT), 49 CFR Part 26.  The Department has received 
Federal financial assistance from the U.S. Department of Transportation and as a condition of 
receiving this assistance, the Department has signed an assurance that it will comply with 49 
CFR Part 26. 

It is the policy of the Department to ensure that DBEs, as defined in Part 26, have an equal 
opportunity to receive and participate in USDOT-assisted contracts.  It is also the policy of the 
Department: 

1. To ensure nondiscrimination in the award and administration of USDOT-assisted
contracts;

2. To create a level playing field on which DBEs can compete fairly for
USDOT-assisted contracts;

3. To ensure that the DBE program is narrowly tailored in accordance with applicable
law;

4. To ensure that only firms that fully meet 49 CFR Part 26 eligibility standards are
counted as DBEs;

5. To help remove barriers to the participation of DBEs in USDOT-assisted contracts;
6. To assist in the development of firms that can compete successfully in the market

place outside the DBE program; and
7. To promote the use of DBEs in all types of federally-assisted contracts and

procurement activities.

It is also the policy of the Department to facilitate and encourage participation of Small 
Business Concerns (SBCs), as defined in Subsection 3.0, in USDOT-assisted contracts.  The 
Department encourages consultants to take reasonable steps to eliminate obstacles to SBCs’ 
participation and to utilize SBCs in performing contracts. 

Local Public Agencies (LPA) and or Subrecipients of Federal financial assistance will 
administer and manage the contracts from advertising, consultant selection, negotiation, 
contract execution, processing payment reports and contract modifications, audits, DBE 
compliance (e.g., reporting and monitoring) through contract closeout. 



Professional Services DBE Special Provisions 08/26/2016 
LPA PS EPRISE - 2/12 

2.0 Assurances of Non-Discrimination: 

The consultant, subrecipient, or subconsultant shall not discriminate on the basis of race, 
color, sex or national origin in the performance of this contract.  The consultant shall carry out 
applicable requirements of 49 CFR Part 26 in the award and administration of DOT-assisted 
contracts.  Failure by the consultant to carry out these requirements is a material breach of this 
contract, which may result in the termination of this contract or such other remedy as the the 
LPA/Subrecipient with the Department’s concurrence deems appropriate, which may include, 
but are not limited to: 

1. Withholding monthly progress payments;
2. Assessing sanctions;
3. Liquidated damages;
4. Disqualifying the consultant from submitting SOQs, or any other forms of proposals, as

non-responsible;
5. Cancellation, termination, or suspension of the Contract, in whole or in part.

The consultant, subrecipient, or subconsultant shall ensure that all subcontract agreements 
contain this non-discrimination assurance. 

3.0 Definitions: 

(A) Commercially Useful Function (CUF): Commercially Useful Function is defined fully in
49 CFR 26.55, which definition is incorporated herein by reference.

(B) Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE):  a for-profit small business concern which
meets both of the following requirements:

(1) Is at least 51 percent owned by one or more socially and economically
disadvantaged individuals or, in the case of any publicly owned business, at least 51
percent of the stock is owned by one or more such individuals; and,

(2) Whose management and daily business operations are controlled by one or more of
the socially and economically disadvantaged individuals who own it.

(C) NAICS Code: The North American Industry Classification System (NAICS) is the
standard used by Federal statistical agencies in classifying business establishments for
the purpose of collecting, analyzing, and publishing statistical data related to the U.S.
business economy.

(D) Non-DBE:  any firm that is not a DBE.

(E) Race-Conscious (RC): a measure or program focused specifically on assisting only
DBEs, including women-owned DBEs.



Professional Services DBE Special Provisions 08/26/2016 
LPA PS EPRISE - 3/12 

(F)  Race-Neutral (RN): a measure or program used to assist all small businesses. For the 
purposes of this part, race-neutral includes gender-neutrality. 
 

(G)  Small Business Concern (SBC): a business that meets all of the following conditions: 
 
 (1) Operates as a for-profit business registered to do business in Arizona; 
 
 (2) Operates a place of business primarily within the U.S., or makes a significant 

contribution to the U.S. economy through payment of taxes or use of American 
products, materials, or labor; 

 
 (3) Is independently owned and operated; 

 
  (4) Is not dominant in its field on a national basis; and 
  
  (5) Does not have annual gross receipts that exceed the Small Business 

Administration size standards average annual income criteria for its primary North 
American Industry Classification System (NAICS) code. 

 
  (I) Socially and Economically Disadvantaged Individuals:  any individual who is a 

citizen (or lawfully admitted permanent resident) of the United States and who is: 
 
  (1) Any individual who is found to be a socially and economically disadvantaged 

individual on a case-by-case basis. 
 
  (2) Any individual in the following groups, members of which are rebuttably presumed 

to be socially and economically disadvantaged: 
 
   (i)  "Black Americans," which includes persons having origins in any of the Black 

racial groups of Africa; 
 
   (ii)  "Hispanic Americans," which includes persons of Mexican, Puerto Rican, 

Cuban, Dominican, Central or South American, or other Spanish or 
Portuguese culture or origin, regardless of race; 

 
   (iii)  "Native Americans," which includes persons who are enrolled members of 

federally or State recognized Indian tribe, Alaskan Natives or Native 
Hawaiians; 

 
   (iv)  “Asian-Pacific Americans,” which includes persons whose origins are from 

Japan, China, Taiwan, Korea, Burma (Myanmar), Vietnam, Laos, Cambodia 
(Kampuchea), Thailand, Malaysia, Indonesia, the Philippines, Brunei, 
Samoa, Guam, the U.S. Trust Territories of the Pacific Islands (Republic of 
Palau), the Republic of the Northern Marianas Islands, Macao, Fiji, Tonga, 
Kiribati, Tuvalu, Nauru, Federated States of Micronesia, or Hong Kong; 

 



Professional Services DBE Special Provisions 08/26/2016 
LPA PS EPRISE - 4/12 

   (v)  “Subcontinent Asian Americans,” which includes persons whose origins are 
from India, Pakistan, Bangladesh, Bhutan, the Maldives Islands, Nepal or Sri 
Lanka; 

 
   (vi) "Women;" 
 
   (vii) Any additional groups whose members are designated as socially and 

economically disadvantaged by the Small Business Administration (SBA), at 
such time as the SBA designation becomes effective. 

 
4.0  Working with DBEs: 
 
The Department works with DBEs and assists them in their efforts to participate in the highway 
construction program.  All proposers should contact the Department’s Business Engagement 
and Compliance Office (BECO) by phone, through email, or at the address shown below, for 
assistance in their efforts to use DBEs in the highway construction industry.  BECO contact 
information is as follows: 
 
  Arizona Department of Transportation 
  Business Engagement and Compliance Office 
  1801 W. Jefferson St, Suite 101, Mail Drop 154A 
  Phoenix, AZ  85007 
  Phone (602) 712-7761 
  FAX    (602) 712-8429 
  Email: ContractorCompliance@azdot.gov 
  Website :  www.azdot.gov/bec 
 
4.01 Mentor-Protège Program 
 
The Department has established a Mentor-Protégé program as an initiative to encourage and 
develop disadvantaged businesses in the highway construction industry.  The program 
encourages prime consultants to provide certain types of assistance to certified DBE 
subconsultants.  ADOT encourages consultants and certified DBE subconsultants to engage in a 
Mentor-Protégé agreement under certain conditions.  Such an agreement must be mutually 
beneficial to both parties and to ADOT in fulfilling requirements of 49 CFR Part 23.  For guidance 
regarding this program refer to the Mentor-Protégé Program Guidelines available on the BECO 
website.   
 
The Mentor-Protégé program is intended to increase legitimate DBE activities and is not 
intended to diminish nor circumvent existing DBE rules or regulations.   
 
5.0  Applicability: 
 
The Department has established an overall annual goal for DBE participation on Federal-aid 
contracts.  The Department intends for the goal to be met with a combination of race conscious 
efforts and race neutral efforts.  Race conscious participation occurs when the consultant uses 



Professional Services DBE Special Provisions 08/26/2016 
LPA PS EPRISE - 5/12 

a percentage of DBEs, as defined herein, to meet the contract-specified goal.  Race neutral 
efforts are those that are, or can be, used to assist all small businesses or increase 
opportunities for all small businesses.  The regulation, 49 CFR 26, defines race neutral as 
when a DBE wins a prime contract through customary competitive procurement procedures or 
is awarded a subcontract on a prime contract that does not carry a DBE contract goal. 

The DBE provisions are applicable to all consultants including DBE consultants. 

6.0 Certification and Registration: 

6.01 DBE Certification: 

Certification as a DBE shall be predicated on: 

(1) The completion and execution of an application for certification as a "Disadvantaged
Business Enterprise."

(2) The submission of documents pertaining to the firm(s) as stated in the application(s),
including but not limited to a statement of social disadvantage and a personal financial
statement.

(3) The submission of any additional information which the Department or the applicable
Arizona Unified Certification (UCP) agency may require to determine the firm's eligibility to
participate in the DBE program.

(4) The information obtained during the on-site visits to the offices of the firm and to active
job-sites.

Applications for certification may be filed online with the Department or the applicable UCP 
agency at any time through the Arizona Unified Transportation Registration and Certification 
System (AZ UTRACS) website at http://www.azutracs.com. 

DBE firms and firms seeking DBE certification shall cooperate fully with requests for 
information relevant to the certification process.  Failure or refusal to provide such information 
is a ground for denial or removal of certification. 

ADOT is a member of the AZ Unified Certification Program (AZUCP).  Only DBE firms that are 
certified by the AZUCP are eligible for credit on ADOT projects.  A list of DBE firms certified by 
AZUCP is available on the internet at http://www.azutracs.com.  The list will indicate contact 
information and specialty for each DBE firm, and may be sorted in a variety of ways.  However, 
ADOT does not guarantee the accuracy and/or completeness of this information, nor does 
ADOT represent that any licenses or registrations are appropriate for the work to be done. 

The Department’s certification of a DBE is not a representation of qualifications and/or abilities 
nor does it mean that a DBE firm is guaranteed or entitled to receive or be awarded a contract.  
Being certified simply means that a firm has met the criteria for DBE certification as outlined in 



Professional Services DBE Special Provisions 08/26/2016 
LPA PS EPRISE - 6/12 

49 CFR Part 26.  The consultant bears all risks of ensuring that DBE firms selected by the 
consultant are able to perform the work. 
 
6.02  SBC Registration: 
 
To comply with 49 CFR Part 26.39, ADOT’s DBE Program incorporates contracting 
requirements to facilitate participation by Small Business Concerns (SBCs) in federally 
assisted contracts. SBCs are for-profit businesses authorized to do businesses in Arizona that 
meet the Small Business Administration (SBA) size standards for average annual revenue 
criteria for its primary North American Industry Classification System (NAICS) code 
 
While the SBC component of the DBE program does not require utilization of goals on 
projects, ADOT and the LPA/Subrecipient strongly encourages consultants to utilize small 
businesses that are registered in AZ UTRACS on their contracts, in addition to DBEs meeting 
the certification requirement. The consultant may use the AZ UTRACS website to search for 
certified DBEs and registered SBCs that can be used on the contract.  However, SBCs that are 
not DBEs will not be counted toward the DBE participation. 
 
SBCs can register online at the AZ UTRACS website.  
 
The Department’s registration of SBCs is not a representation of qualifications and/or abilities 
nor does it mean that an SBC firm is guaranteed or entitled to receive or be awarded a contract.  
Being SBC registered simply means that a firm has met the criteria for SBC registration as 
outlined in 49 CFR Part 26.  The consultant bears all risks of ensuring that SBC firms selected 
by the consultant are able to perform the work. 
 
7.0  DBE Financial Institutions: 
 
The Department thoroughly investigates the full extent of services offered by financial institutions 
owned and controlled by socially and economically disadvantaged individuals in its service area 
and makes reasonable efforts to use these institutions. The Department encourages prime 
consultants to use such institutions on USDOT assisted contracts.  However, use of DBE 
financial institutions will not be counted toward the DBE participation. 
 
The Department and the LPA/Subrecipient encourages prime consultants to research the 
Federal Reserve Board website at www.federalreserve.gov to identify minority-owned banks in 
Arizona derived from the Consolidated Reports of Condition and Income filed quarterly by banks 
(FFIEC 031 and 041) and from other information on the Board’s National Information Center 
database.  
 
8.0  Time is of the Essence: 
 
TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE IN RESPECT TO THE DBE PROVISIONS 
 
9.0   Computation of Time: 
 



Professional Services DBE Special Provisions 08/26/2016 
LPA PS EPRISE - 7/12 

In computing any period of time described in this DBE special provision, such as calendar 
days, the day from which the period begins to run is not counted, and when the last day of the 
period is a Saturday, Sunday, Federal or State holiday, the period extends to the next day that 
is not a Saturday, Sunday, Federal or State holiday. In circumstances where the 
LPA/Subrecipient Procurement Office is closed for all or part of the last day, the period extends 
to the next day on which the LPA / Subrecipient Procurement Office is open. 
 
10.0  Consultant and Subconsultant Requirements:  
 
10.01  General: 
 
The consultant shall establish a DBE program that will ensure nondiscrimination in the award 
and administration of contracts and subcontracts. 
 
Agreements between the proposer and a DBE in which the DBE promises not to provide 
subcontracting quotations to other proposers are prohibited. 
 
10.02  DBE Liaison: 
 
The consultant shall designate a DBE Liaison responsible for the administration of the 
consultant’s DBE program.  The name of the designated DBE Liaison shall be included on the 
DBE Intended Participation Affidavit Summary.  
   
11.0  DBE Goal: 
 
The Department has not established contract goals for DBE participation in this contract. 
Consultants are still encouraged to employ reasonable means to obtain DBE participation.  
Consultants must retain records in accordance with these DBE specifications.  The consultant 
is notified that this record keeping is important to the Department so that it can track DBE 
participation where only race neutral efforts are employed. 
 
12.0     Bidders/Proposers List and AZ UTRACS Registration Requirement: 
 
Under Title 49 CFR of the Code of Federal Regulations, Part 26.11, DOTs are required to collect 
certain information from all consultants and subconsultants who seek to work on federally-
assisted contracts in order to set overall and contract DBE goals. ADOT collects this information 
when firms register their companies on the Arizona Unified Transportation Registration and 
Certification System (AZ UTRACS) web portal at http://www.azutracs.com/ a centralized 
database for companies that seek to do business with ADOT. This information will be maintained 
as confidential to the extent allowed by federal and state law. 
 
Prime consultants and all subconsultants, including DBEs listed in the SOQ must be registered 
in AZ UTRACS.  Proposers may verify that their firm and each subconsultant is registered using 
the AZ UTRACS website.  
 



Professional Services DBE Special Provisions 08/26/2016 
LPA PS EPRISE - 8/12 

Proposers may obtain additional information at the AZ UTRACS website or by contacting the 
LPA/Subrecipient. 

All proposers shall create a Bidders/Proposers list in the AZ UTRACS by selecting all firms, 
service providers, and vendors that expressed interest or submitted proposals or quotes for this 
contract. The Bidders/Proposers List form must be complete and must include the names for all 
subconsultants, service providers, and vendors that submitted proposals or quotes on this 
project regardless of the proposer’s intentions to use the those firms on the project.  

All proposers must complete and submit the Bidders/Proposers List online at AZ UTRACS prior 
to Cost Proposal submittal. A confirmation email will be generated by the system. This email 
confirmation shall be submitted with the Cost Proposal.   

FAILURE TO SUBMIT THE REQUIRED BIDDERS/PROPOSERS LIST CONFIRMATION 
EMAIL WITH THE COST PROPOSAL BY THE STATED TIME AND IN THE MANNER HEREIN 
SPECIFIED AND AS OUTLINED IN THE RFQ SHALL BE CAUSE FOR THE PROPOSER’S 
COST PROPOSAL TO BE REJECTED. 

13.0 Payment Reporting: 

The consultant shall report on a monthly basis indicating the amounts paid to all subconsultants, 
of all tiers, working on the project.  Reporting shall be in accordance with Prompt Pay and 
Payment Reporting requirements section ____ of the contract specifications. 

14.0 Crediting DBE Participation: 

14.01 General Requirements: 

To count toward DBE participation, the DBE firms must be certified at the time of Cost Proposal 
submission in each NAICS code applicable to the kind of work the firm will perform on the 
contract. NAICS for each DBE can be found on the AZ UTRACS website. General descriptions 
of all NAICS codes can be found at http://www.naics.com/search/.  

Credit towards the consultant’s DBE participation is given only after the DBE has been paid for 
the work performed. 

The entire amount of a contract that is performed by the DBE’s own forces, including the cost of 
supplies and materials purchased by the DBE for the work on the contract and equipment leased 
by the DBE will be credited toward DBE participation. Supplies and equipment the DBE 
subconsultant purchases or leases from the prime consultant or its affiliate will not be credited 
toward DBE participation. 

The consultant bears the responsibility to determine whether the DBE possesses the proper 
consultant’s license(s) to perform the work and, if DBE credit is requested, that the DBE 
subconsultant is certified for the requested type of work. 



Professional Services DBE Special Provisions 08/26/2016 
LPA PS EPRISE - 9/12 

The Department’s certification is not a representation of a DBE’s qualifications and/or abilities. 
The consultant bears all risks that the DBE may not be able to perform its work for any reason. 

A DBE may participate as a prime consultant, subconsultant, or as a vendor of materials or 
supplies.  The dollar amount of work to be accomplished by DBEs, including partial amount of a 
lump sum or other similar item, shall be on the basis of subcontract, purchase order, hourly rate, 
rate per ton, etc., as agreed to between parties. 

DBE credit may be obtained only for specific work done for the project, supply of equipment 
specifically for physical work on the project, or supply of materials to be incorporated in the work. 
DBE credit will not be allowed for costs such as overhead items, capital expenditures (for 
example, purchase of equipment), and office items. 

The consultant may credit second-tier subcontracts issued to DBEs by non-DBE subconsultants.  
Any second-tier subcontract to a DBE must meet the requirements of a first-tier DBE 
subcontract. 

A prime consultant may credit the entire amount of that portion of a contract that is performed 
by the DBE’s own forces.  The cost of supplies and materials obtained by the DBE for the work 
of the contract can be included so long as that cost is reasonable.  Leased equipment may 
also be included.  No credit is permitted for supplies purchased or equipment leased from the 
prime consultant or its affiliate(s). 

When a DBE subcontracts a part of the work of its contract to another firm, the value of the 
subcontract may be credited towards the DBE participation only if the DBE’s subconsultant is 
itself a DBE and performs the work with its own forces.  Work that a DBE subcontracts to a 
non-DBE firm does not count toward a DBE participation. 

A prime consultant may credit the entire amount of fees or commissions charged by a DBE 
firm for providing a bona fide service, such as professional, technical, consulting, or 
managerial services, or for providing bonds or insurance specifically required for the 
performance of a USDOT-assisted contract, provided the fees are reasonable and not 
excessive as compared with fees customarily allowed for similar services. 

14.02 Effect of Loss of DBE Eligibility: 

If a DBE is deemed ineligible (decertified) or suspended in accordance with 49 CFR 26.87 and 
26.88, the DBE may not be considered to count toward DBE participation on a new contract, but 
may be considered to count toward DBE participation under a subcontract that was executed 
before the DBE suspension or decertification is effective. 

When a DBE firm or a DBE prime consultant loses its DBE eligibility and a subcontract or 
contract has not been executed before a decertification notice is issued to the DBE firm by its 
certifying agency, the ineligible firm does not count toward DBE participation.  



Professional Services DBE Special Provisions 08/26/2016 
LPA PS EPRISE - 10/12 

When a subcontract is executed with the DBE firm before the Department notified the firm of its 
ineligibility, the consultant may continue to use the firm on the contract and may continue to 
receive DBE participation credit for the firm’s work. 

14.03 Notifying the Consultant of DBE Certification Status: 

Each DBE contract at any tier shall require any DBE subconsultant or supplier that is either 
decertified or certified during the term of the contract to immediately notify the consultant and 
all parties to the DBE contract in writing, with the date of decertification or certification. The 
consultant shall require that this provision be incorporated in any contract of any tier in which a 
DBE is a participant. 

14.04 Police Officers: 

DBE credit will not be permitted for procuring DPS officers.  For projects on which officers from 
other agencies are supplied, DBE credit will be given only for the broker fees charged, and will 
not include amounts paid to the officers.  The broker fees must be reasonable. 

14.05 Commercially Useful Function: 

A prime consultant can credit expenditures to a DBE subconsultant toward DBE participation 
only if the DBE performs a Commercially Useful Function (CUF). 

A DBE performs a CUF when it is responsible for execution of the work of a contract and 
carries out its responsibilities by actually performing, managing, and supervising the work 
involved.  To perform a commercially useful function, the DBE must also be responsible, with 
respect to materials and supplies on the contract, for negotiating price, determining quality and 
quantity, ordering the material, and installing (where applicable) and paying for the material 
itself that it uses on the project.  To determine whether a DBE is performing a commercially 
useful function, the LPA/Subrecipient will evaluate the amount of work subcontracted, industry 
practices, whether the amount the firm is to be paid under the contract is commensurate with 
the work it is actually performing and the DBE credit claimed for its performance of the work, 
and other relevant factors. 

A DBE will not be considered to perform a commercially useful function if its role is limited to 
that of an extra participant in a transaction, contract, or project through which funds are passed 
in order to obtain the appearance of DBE participation.  In determining whether a DBE is such 
an extra participant, the LPA/Subrecipient will examine similar transactions, particularly those 
in which DBEs do not participate. 

If a DBE does not perform or exercise responsibility for at least 30 percent of the total cost of 
its contract with its own work force, or if the DBE subcontracts a greater portion of the work of 
a contract than would be expected on the basis of normal industry practice for the type of work 
involved, LPA/Subrecipient will presume that the DBE is not performing a commercially useful 
function. 



Professional Services DBE Special Provisions 08/26/2016 
LPA PS EPRISE - 11/12 

When a DBE is presumed not to be performing a commercially useful function as provided 
above, the DBE may present evidence to rebut this presumption.  The Department will 
determine if the firm is performing a CUF given the type of work involved and normal industry 
practices. 

The LPA/Subrecipient will notify the consultant, in writing, if it determines that the consultant’s 
DBE subconsultant is not performing a CUF.  The consultant will be notified within seven 
calendar days of the LPA/Subrecipient’s decision. 

Decisions on CUF may be appealed to the ADOT BECO.  The appeal must be in writing and 
personally delivered or sent by certified mail, return receipt requested, to the ADOT BECO.  
The appeal must be received by ADOT BECO no later than seven calendar days after the 
LPA/Subrecipient’s decision.  LPA/Subrecipient’s decision remains in place unless and until 
the ADOT BECO reverses or modifies LPA/Subrecipient’s decision. ADOT BECO will promptly 
consider any appeals under this subsection and notify the consultant of the ADOT BECO 
findings and decisions.  Decisions on CUF matters are not administratively appealable to 
USDOT. 

The LPA/Subrecipient may conduct project site visits on the contract to confirm that DBEs are 
performing a CUF. The consultant shall cooperate during the site visits and the 
LPA/Subrecipient staff will make every effort not to disrupt work on the project. 

15.0 Required Provisions for DBE Subcontracts: 

All subcontracts of any tier, all supply contracts, and any other contracts in which a DBE is a 
participant shall include as a physical attachment, DBE Subconsultant Compliance Assurances 
available from the LPA/Subrecipient and all of the Uniform Terms and Conditions set forth in 
other sections of this contract. 

Consultants executing agreements with subconsultants, DBE or non-DBE, that materially 
modify federal regulation and state statutes such as, prompt payment and retention 
requirements, through subcontract terms and conditions will be found in breach of contract 
which may result in termination of the contract, or any other such remedy as the 
LPA/Subrecipient and ADOT deem appropriate as outlined in DBE Subsection 2.0. 

The LPA/Subrecipient reserves the right to conduct random reviews of DBE and non-DBE 
subcontract documentation to ensure compliance with federal requirements. 

The consultant shall ensure that all subcontracts or agreements with DBEs to supply labor or 
materials require that the subcontract and all lower tier subcontracts be performed in accordance 
with 49 CFR Part 26 provisions. 
The Consultant shall provide electronic copies of signed subcontract agreements for all DBE 
Subconsultants listed on the DBE Intended Participation Affidavit Summary by uploading them 
within 15 calendar days of an approved contract to the LPA DBE System.   

16.0 Certification of Final DBE Payments: 



Professional Services DBE Special Provisions 08/26/2016 
LPA PS EPRISE - 12/12 

DBE participation on the contract is measured by actual payments made to the DBEs.  The 
consultant shall submit the “Certification of Final DBE Payments” form for each DBE firm 
working on the contract. This form shall be signed by the consultant and the relevant DBE, and 
submitted to the LPA/Subrecipient no later than 30 days after the DBE completes its work.  

The LPA/Subrecipient and ADOT will use this certification and other information available to 
determine applicable DBE credit allowed to date by the Prime Consultant and the extent to 
which the DBE firms were fully paid for that work. By the act of filing the forms, the consultant 
acknowledges that the information is supplied in order to justify the payment of state and 
federal funds to the consultant. 

The consultant will not be released from the obligations of the contract until the “Certification of 
Final DBE Payments” forms are received and deemed acceptable by the LPA/Subrecipient.  

17.0 False, Fraudulent, or Dishonest Conduct: 

In addition to any other remedies or actions, the Department will bring to the attention of the 
US Department of Transportation any appearance of false, fraudulent, or dishonest conduct in 
connection with the DBE program, so that USDOT can take steps such as referral to the 
Department of Justice for criminal prosecution, referral to the USDOT Inspector General for 
possible initiation of suspension and debarment proceedings against the offending parties or 
application of “Program Fraud and Civil Penalties” rules provided in 49 CFR Part 31. 



08-06-2020 

FEDERAL DOCUMENTS 6.0 

RECORDS RETENTION 



RECORDS RETENTION 

Contractor and Subcontractor Project Records 

(Reference to A.R.S.35-214) 

The contractor, subcontractors and all suppliers shall keep and maintain all books, papers, records, files, 

accounts, reports, bid documents with backup data, including electronic data, and all other material relating to the 

contract and project for five (5) years following completion and acceptance of the work. 

All of the above material shall be made available for auditing, inspection, and copying and shall be produced upon 

request to the Agency.  

The City of Chandler – Capital Projects 

 215 E Buffalo Street, Mail Stop 407 

Chandler, Arizona 85225. 

The contractor shall insert the above requirement in each subcontract purchase order and lease agreement and 

shall also include in all subcontracts, a clause requiring subcontractors to include the above requirement in any 

lower-tier subcontract, purchase order, or lease agreement. 



08-06-2020 

FEDERAL DOCUMENTS 7.0 

FEDERAL IMMIGRATION AND NATIONALITY ACT 



Federal Immigration and Nationality Act 

(Reference to Arizona Executive Order 2005-30) 

The contractor, including all subcontractors, shall comply with all federal, state and local immigration laws and 

regulations, as set forth in Arizona Executive Order 2005-30, relating to the immigration status of their employees 

who perform services on the contract during the duration of the contract.  The Agency (City of Chandler) shall 

retain the right to perform random audits of contractor and subcontractor records or to inspect papers of any 

employee thereof to ensure compliance. 

By submission of a bid, the contractor warrants that the contractor and all prosed subcontractors are and shall 

remain in compliance with all federal, state, and local immigration laws and regulations relating to the immigration 

status of their employees who perform services on the contract.  The Agency may, at its sole discretion, require 

evidence of compliance from the contractor or subcontractor.  Should the Agency request evidence of 

compliance, the contractor or subcontractor shall have ten (10) working days from receipt of the request to supply 

adequate information.  The Department and Agency (City of Chandler) will accept, as evidence of compliance, a 

showing by the contractor or subcontractor, that it has followed the employment verification provisions of the 

Federal Immigration and Nationality Act as set forth in Sections 274A and 274B of that Act, including 

implementation of regulations and agreements between the Department of Homeland Security and the Social 

Security Administration's verification service.  The contractor shall include the requirements of this provision in all 

subcontracts for this project. 

Failure to comply with the immigration laws or to submit proof of compliance constitutes a material breach of 

contract.  The Agency will recue the contractor's compensation by $10,000 for the initial instance of non-

compliance by the contractor or a subcontractor.  Should the same contractor or subcontractor commit 

subsequent violations within a two (2) year time period from the initial violation, the contractor's compensation will 

be reduced by $50,000 for each violation.  The third instance by the same contractor or subcontractor within a two 

(2) year period may result, in addition to the $50,000 reduction in compensation, in removal of the offending

contractor of subcontractor, suspension of work in whole or in part or, in the case of a third violation by the 

contractor, termination of the contract for default  in addition, the Department may debar a contractor or 

subcontractor who has committed three (3) violations within a two (2) year period for up to one (1) year.  For 

purposes of this paragraph, a violation by a subcontractor does not count as a violation by the contractor. 

Any delay resulting from a sanction under this subsection is a non-excusable delay.  The contractor is not entitled 

to any compensation or extension of time for any delays or additional costs resulting from a sanction under this 

subsection. 



08-06-2020 

FEDERAL DOCUMENTS 8.0 

DBE  

FORMS/DOCUMENTS/GUIDE 



FEDERAL DOCUMENTS 7.0 

DBE Documents Instructions/Guide 
Race Neutral – 0% Goal  

SUBMIT WITH SOQ: 

7.1 Bidders –Proposers List This is an ADOT On Line Submittal Process.   
Email Verification An Email Verification / Confirmation will be 

provided to you by the system after you submit. 
Save this email verification as a pdf document  
and submit with SOQ. 

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- -------- 

SUBMIT AT SCOPE & FEE FINALIZATION: 

No additional DBE Documents are required at this phase. 

*Important Note: At this phase, a packet  of all DBE documentation is prepared and submitted to ADOT BECO
by City of Chandler.  This DBE Packet must be approved by ADOT BECO prior to City of Chandler Council Date
for approval of the contract.
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

DURING THE COURSE OF THE CONTRACT WORK, 
SUBMIT AS APPLICABLE 

7.2 DBE Form 3210PS – Final Payment This DBE Form is required for every DBE 
Subconsultant, whether or not listed as 
A committed goal DBE subconsultant or not, 
And, whether or not there is a DBE Goal. 

Important Note Regarding DBE Forms: 
DBE Forms provided by City of Chandler FOR THIS PROJECT, MUST BE USED. 
Do not use forms found on ADOT Website. 
Do not use previously saved City of Chandler forms from a previous project. 



BIDDERS/PROPOSERS LIST 

FEDERAL DOCUMENT REQUIRED TO SUBMIT WITH BID/SOQ:  Email Verification Print Out 

Email Verification Print Out Received from Utracs/AzDOT.gov confirms your electronic submittal Of 
Bidders/Proposers List.  The Confirmation Email is the required document to be submitted with your Bid / 
SOQ. 

WHERE TO CREATE AND SUBMIT BIDDERS/PROPOSERS LIST:   https://utracs.azdot.gov/BiddersListInfo/ 

WHERE TO CALL FOR QUESTIONS (SHOWN ON WEBSITE):  602-712-7761 





CERTIFICATION OF FINAL DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (DBE) PAYMENTS 

Professional Services Contracts 
(Submit one form for each DBE involved in the contract) 

The  undersigned  consultant on Agency Project No:    ADOT TRACS No: __________________ herby, 
certifies that full payment was made, to the firm indicated for material and/or work performed under this project's contract as follows: 

DBE FIRM AZ UTRACS Vendor Registration # 

Name of DBE Firm was paid the amount of 

This certificate is made under Federal and State Laws concerning false statement. Supporting documentation for this 
payment is subject to audit and should be retained for a minimum of three years from project acceptance date. In the 
event the DBE was not paid in accordance with affidavits submitted by the prime consultant, all documentation 
supporting the consultant's position should be submitted. 

I DECLARE UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY IN THE SECOND DEGREE, AND ANY OTHER APPLICABLE STATE OR FEDERAL LAWS 
THAT THE STATEMENT MADE ON THIS DOCUMENT ARE TRUE AND COMPLETE TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE. 

Consultant Company Name: 
Check One: Prime Consultant Sub Consultant 

Name: Title: 

Signature: 

Date: 

The undersigned sub consultant/supplier/manufacturer for the above named project hereby certified that payments 
were received and/or justification by consultant is correct. 

I DECLARE UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY IN THE SECOND DEGREE, AND ANY OTHER APPLICABLE STATE OR FEDERAL LAWS 
THAT THE STATEMENT MADE ON THIS DOCUMENT ARE TRUE AND COMPLETE TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE. 

DBE Firm Name: 
Check One: Sub Consultant/Supplier/Manufacturer Lower-tier Sub Consultant/Supplier/Manufacturer 

Name: Title: 

Signature: 

Date: 

3210PS - LPA 1.3.2017 



08-06-2020 

FEDERAL DOCUMENTS 9.0 

PAYMENT APPLICATION 

AND 

PAYMENT SUBCONSULTANT SUMMARY FORM 



 to:

Contract Amendments:

Number * % of time elapsed:

(contract days elapsed to date)

* % of contract complete including this pay app :

(contract dollar amount paid to date)

*required fields

%

Date:

Approved By:

Project Manager Date

Project Owner Date

Architectural/Design/Engineering Phase

-$   

Date Approved

Total Percent Complete to Date: 

-$   

For Official

City of Chandler

Amount

City of Chandler Project Title:

Application is made for payment as shown below and on the attached Payment Schedule Summary Sheet in accordance with the Contract Documents

Original Contract Price:

  Fax Number:

Name:

Address:

Use Only

Record ID:____________

Date:________________

-$           Current Payment Due (Total Amount Earned-Total of Previous Certificates for Payment):

Architect/Designer/Engineer's Certification
The undersigned certifies that the work covered bt this Application for Payment has been completed in accordance with the Contract Documents; that

all amounts have been paid by him for work which previous Certificates of Payment were issued and payments recieved from the Owner, and that the

current payment requested as shown is current, accurate and complete.

Budget Account #'s

Budget Account #'s

For Official City of Chandler Use Only

Authorized Signature:

Email Signed PDF copy to : CapitalProjects.Payables@chandleraz.gov

PO#

or Submit to:  City of Chandler, Capital Projects MS 407, PO Box 4008, Chandler, AZ 85244

City of Chandler Contact:

City of Chandler Project No.:

Federal / ADOT No(s)

 Application/Certification for Payment #:_______

Covering the Period From:

-$   Federal Penalties (Per City): Deduct Penalties (-) or Credit Reimb (+):

Architect/Designer/Engineer Information:  Invoice Number:

-$   

  PO Number:

  Phone Number:

Adjusted Contract Price (Original Contract Price + Total Change Orders Amount):

  Email Address:Contact:

Remit to Address:

           Total Previous Certificates for Payment:

           Total Amount Due to Date (as referenced on attached Progress Summary):



name name name name name name name

-$    -$    -$   -$   -$   -$   -$    

Pay App 

#
Work Mo Pay Mo

DBE Rpt 

Mo

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

-$   -$   -$   -$   -$   -$   

-$   -$   -$   -$   -$   -$   

Total To Date

Bal Remaining

Month

Subconsultants (add name, x if DBE)

DBE-> (x) =yes

Contract Amt

Change Order(s):

Total Contract:

Lower Tier --> (x)

Lower Tier to:

Project Numbers

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES PAY APP BACKUP - (REQUIRED)

Consultant

Project Name



08-06-2020 

FEDERAL DOCUMENTS 10.0 

SUBCONSULTANT SUBCONTRACTS 



FEDERAL DOCUMENTS  9.0 

Subconsultant Subcontracts for Professional Services Subcontracts 

(For contracts with NO DBE Goal – Race Neutral) 

All Subcontracts: 

During Scope and Fee, a copy of each of these documents will be provided by the City to ensure correct 

and current forms for the City are utilized. 

The following is a list of required documents that must be included in all Subconsultant Subcontracts. 

1. Subconsultant Approval Request Form (SARF)

2. Subconsultant Federal Compliance Acknowledgement

3. Prompt Pay Provisions

4. Title VI Assurance

5. Title VI Appendix A

6. Title VI Appendix E

7. Records Retention

8. Federal Immigration and Nationality Act

DBE Subconsultant Subcontracts: 

The following is a list of required documents that must be included in DBE Subconsultants. 

1. DBE Subrecipient Compliance Assurances

2. DBE Form 3210PS Final Payment



----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
SARF Rev 2020-10-26 City Reviewed/Approved: _____________________________ (For City Tracking/Audit Backup) 

SUBCONSULTANT APPROVAL REQUEST 
 
Instructions: Form must be filled out completely – all line items must have a response.  When Subconsultant is approved, Prime will receive 
an email confirmation. Subconsultant should not start work or have billable work prior to approval date.  

 

DATE   PRIME  

PROJECT NAME  

PROJECT # (City/Fed/ADOT)  
 

1 Subconsultant Company 
Name/Address/Tel 

Name  

Address  

Telephone  

2 Subconsultant Main Contact 
Name  

Email  

3 Utracs No (5 digit)  

4 Contract Amount  

5 NAICS Code(s) (must match work descr)  

6 
Work Description of tasks related to Prime 
Contract and NAICS Codes 
(attach separate sheet if necessary) 

 

7 QA Subconsultant/Testing(must be on ADOT 
approved list & will be verified) Yes:  OR No:  

8 Is Subconsultant a DBE Yes:  OR No:  

9a Is Subconsultant a Lower Tier  Yes:  OR No:  

9b If Lower Tier, to what Subconsultant  

10 

Subconsultant Contact for Monthly DBE 
Reporting  (All Subconsultants on a federal 

funded project must report into this system 
monthly. Please ensure that this name 
/contact info is in your DBE System Profile) 
(DBE System help: 888-635-0336) 

Name  

Tel  

Email  

11 Subconsultant Contact for the Monthly 
Invoice Preparation to the Prime 

Name  

Tel  

Email  
  

 
 
______________________________________________ 
Lower Tier Subconsultant Signature (if applicable)  / Date 
 
 
______________________________________________  ______________________________________________ 
Subconsultant Representative Signature / Date:   Prime Signature / Date 
 
 
 
 
 



Subconsultant Federal Compliance Acknowledgement 2020-09-24 

 
SUBCONSULTANT FEDERAL REQUIREMENTS ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

 

 
Project Name  
Project Numbers  

 

1. If federal compliance discrepancies re-occur without correction, Subconsultant and Prime may be required to meet with 
the City to review federal requirements.  If federal compliance discrepancies continue, subconsultant may be removed 
from working on this contract/project. 

2. UTracs: Subconsultant must have an AZ UTracs Registration/5 Digit Number. (https://utracs.azdot.gov) 
3. DBE:  

a. Subconsultant must be registered with ADOT DBE System (links are provided on the UTracs webpage) 
b. Subconsultant must review profile and ensure updated company and contact information is correct. 
c. Subconsultant agrees to monthly payment reporting in the ADOT DBE System: 
d. City of Chandler is a CA Agency and reports into the DBE System.  
e. This reporting is due by the Prime by the 10th, and the Subconsultants by the 30th of each month 
f. Subconsultant understands reporting include $0 payments until subcontract is complete. 
g. Subconsultant understands to NEVER upload any documents into this system for this project/contract. The City 

will upload any required documents to ensure correct federal requirements which avoids audit discrepancies. 
h. Help Number for reporting assistance:  888-635-0336 

4. Records Retention Requirements for CA Agency federal funded contracts is five (5) years. 
5. Title VI and Federal Immigration and Nationality Act compliance is required 
6. Subconsultant understands that all documents, emails, reports, invoices must have the Project Name and Project 

Numbers (City, Federal, ADOT).  
a. Prime/Consultant related documents  

STxxx-451 / CHN0xxxD / T0xxx01C 
b. Construction related documents (example: plans,submittals tech specs) 

STxxx-401 /  CHN0xxxD  / T0xxx01C 
7. Invoicing/Billing: Federal funded contracts require by calendar month for all work occurred in that given calendar month.  

a. Subconsultant understands and agrees to submit invoices to Prime monthly, no later than the 5th working day of 
the following month, if work occurred.  

b. If an expense has been missed and needs to be added to the following month, FHWA requires that an 
explanation be added to that document explaining why it was not included in the applicable billing month. (Note: 
FHWA does not allow this as on-going, please keep to minimum occurrences). 

8. Prompt Pay Provisions – Payments by Prime to Subconsultants, and Subconsultant to Lower Tiers must be made within 
7 days from the actual date that payment was received. 

a. The Date the City pays the Prime – Prime has 7 days to process payment to Subconsultant.  
b. The Date Subconsultant receives that payment from Prime, Subconsultant has 7 days to process payment to 

lower tier. (this means the date mail was actually delivered, or bank received direct deposit; does not mean the 
date identified in bank statement, or the date mail was opened). 

9. No work by Subconsultant can occur on this contract/project until approved by the City of Chandler. 
10. Subconsultants for work task Quality Assurance/QA/Materials Testing: Subconsultant must be on the ADOT Approved 

list: https://azdot.gov/business/engineering-and-construction/construction-and-materials/materials-quality-assurance/adot 
11. Subcontract must include current documents (provided by City):  Prompt Pay Provision, City of Chandler Title VI 

Assurance, Title VI Appendix A, Title VI Appendix E, Records Retention, Federal Immigration & Nationality Act, and if a 
DBE will include items listed below in #12-a. 

12. DBE Subconsultant only:   
a. DBE Subcontracts must include: 

i. LPA/Subrecipient EPrise Assurance, DBE Form 3210PS 
b. DBE Subcontract must show dollars applied to each work task description. 
c. DBE Subconsultant and Prime must fill out, sign, and submit DBE Form 3210PS to City of Chandler at 

completion of subcontract work. 
 
 
By signing below, I confirm I have read the above requirements for working on this federal funded contract 

Subconsultant Name  

Subconsultant Signature/Date  

Prime Signature/Date  

 

https://azdot.gov/business/engineering-and-construction/construction-and-materials/materials-quality-assurance/adot


BECO Rev. 7/01/2016 LPA DBE Subcontract Assurances Professional Services - 1/8 

 (PROJECT SPECIFIC - CONTRACTS) 
LPA/SUBRECIPIENT FEDERAL AID CONTRACT WITH OR WITHOUT DBE GOAL 
            

1.  Assurances of Non-Discrimination:          (LPA PS EPRISE 2.0) 
 
The consultant, subrecipient, or subconsultant shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, sex or national 
origin in the performance of this contract.  The consultant shall carry out applicable requirements of 49 CFR Part 
26 in the award and administration of DOT-assisted contracts.  Failure by the consultant to carry out these 
requirements is a material breach of this contract, which may result in the termination of this contract or such 
other remedy as the the LPA/Subrecipient with the Department’s concurrence deems appropriate, which may 
include, but are not limited to: 
 
 (1) Withholding monthly progress payments; 
 (2) Assessing sanctions; 
 (3) Liquidated damages; 
 (4) Disqualifying the consultant from future proposals as non-responsible. 
 
The consultant, subrecipient, or subconsultant shall ensure that all subcontract agreements contain this non-
discrimination assurance. 
 
2.  Time is of the Essence:               (LPA PS EPRISE 8.0) 
 
TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE IN RESPECT TO THE DBE PROVISIONS 
 
3.  Computation of Time:             (LPA PS EPRISE 9.0) 
 
In computing any period of time described in this DBE special provision, such as calendar days, the day from which 
the period begins to run is not counted, and when the last day of the period is a Saturday, Sunday, Federal or State 
holiday, the period extends to the next day that is not a Saturday, Sunday, Federal or State holiday. In 
circumstances where the LPA/Subrecipient Procurement Office is closed for all or part of the last day, the period 
extends to the next day on which the LPA / Subrecipient Procurement Office is open. 
 
4.  Crediting DBE Participation Toward Meeting Goals:     (LPA PS EPRISE 17.0) 
 
General Requirements: 
 
To count toward meeting the goal, the DBE firms must be certified at the time of Cost Proposal submission in each 
NAICS code applicable to the kind of work the firm will perform on the contract. NAICS for each DBE can be found on 
the AZ UTRACS website. General descriptions of all NAICS codes can be found at http://www.naics.com/search/.  
 
Credit towards the consultant’s DBE goal is given only after the DBE has been paid for the work performed. 
 
The entire amount of a contract that is performed by the DBE’s own forces, including the cost of supplies and 
materials purchased by the DBE for the work on the contract and equipment leased by the DBE will be credited 
toward DBE participation. Supplies and equipment the DBE subconsultant purchases or leases from the prime 
consultant or its affiliate will not be credited toward DBE participation. 
 
The consultant bears the responsibility to determine whether the DBE possesses the proper consultant’s license(s) to 
perform the work and, if DBE credit is requested, that the DBE subconsultant is certified for the requested type of 
work. 
 
If a DBE cannot complete its work due to failure to obtain or maintain its licensing, the consultant bears the 
responsibility to notify the LPA/Subrecipient, immediately after the consultant becomes aware of the situation, and 



BECO Rev. 7/01/2016 LPA DBE Subcontract Assurances Professional Services - 2/8 

request approval to replace the DBE with another DBE. The consultant shall follow the DBE termination/substitution 
requirements described in Subsection 22.0 of these DBE provisions. 
 
The Department’s certification is not a representation of a DBE’s qualifications and/or abilities.  The consultant bears 
all risks that the DBE may not be able to perform its work for any reason. 
 
A DBE may participate as a prime consultant, subconsultant, or as a vendor of materials or supplies.  The dollar 
amount of work to be accomplished by DBEs, including partial amount of a lump sum or other similar item, shall be 
on the basis of subcontract, purchase order, hourly rate, rate per ton, etc., as agreed to between parties. 
 
DBE credit may be obtained only for specific work done for the project, supply of equipment specifically for physical 
work on the project, or supply of materials to be incorporated in the work.  DBE credit will not be allowed for costs 
such as overhead items, capital expenditures (for example, purchase of equipment), and office items. 
 
The consultant may credit second-tier subcontracts issued to DBEs by non-DBE subconsultants.  Any second-tier 
subcontract to a DBE used to meet the goal must meet the requirements of a first-tier DBE subcontract. 
 
A prime consultant may credit the entire amount of that portion of a contract that is performed by the DBE’s own 
forces.  The cost of supplies and materials obtained by the DBE for the work of the contract can be included so 
long as that cost is reasonable.  Leased equipment may also be included.  No credit is permitted for supplies 
purchased or equipment leased from the prime consultant or its affiliate(s). 
 
When a DBE subcontracts a part of the work of its contract to another firm, the value of the subcontract may be 
credited towards the DBE goal only if the DBE’s subconsultant is itself a DBE and performs the work with its own 
forces.  Work that a DBE subcontracts to a non-DBE firm does not count toward a DBE goal. 
 
A prime consultant may credit the entire amount of fees or commissions charged by a DBE firm for providing a 
bona fide service, such as professional, technical, consulting, or managerial services, or for providing bonds or 
insurance specifically required for the performance of a USDOT-assisted contract, provided the fees are 
reasonable and not excessive as compared with fees customarily allowed for similar services. 
 
DBE Prime Consultant: 
 
When a certified DBE firm proposes on a contract that contains a DBE goal, the DBE firm is responsible for meeting 
the DBE goal on the contract or making good faith efforts to meet the goal, just like any other proposer. In most 
cases, a DBE proposer on a contract will meet the DBE goal by virtue of the work it performs on the contract with 
its own forces. However, all the work that is performed by the DBE proposer or any other DBE subconsultants and 
DBE suppliers will count toward the DBE goal. The DBE proposer shall list itself along with any DBE subconsultants 
and suppliers, on the DBE Intended Participation Affidavit Individual and Summary in order to receive credit 
toward the DBE goal.  
 
Effect of Loss of DBE Eligibility: 
 
If a DBE is deemed ineligible (decertified) or suspended in accordance with 49 CFR 26.87 and 26.88, the DBE may not 
be considered to meet a contract goal on a new contract, but may be considered to meet the contract goal under a 
subcontract that was executed before the DBE suspension or decertification is effective. 
 
When the consultant makes a commitment to use an ineligible DBE firm or the LPA/Subrecipient, made a 
commitment to use an ineligible DBE prime consultant, but a subcontract or contract has not been executed before a 
decertification notice is issued to the DBE firm by its certifying agency, the ineligible firm does not count toward the 
contract goal. The consultant must meet the contract goal with an eligible DBE firm or demonstrate good faith effort. 
When a subcontract is executed with the DBE firm before the Department notified the firm of its ineligibility, the 



BECO Rev. 7/01/2016 LPA DBE Subcontract Assurances Professional Services - 3/8

consultant may continue to use the firm on the contract and may continue to receive credit toward the DBE goal for 
the firm’s work. 

Notifying the Consultant of DBE Certification Status: 

Each DBE contract at any tier shall require any DBE subconsultant or supplier that is either decertified or certified 
during the term of the contract to immediately notify the consultant and all parties to the DBE contract in writing, 
with the date of decertification or certification. The consultant shall require that this provision be incorporated in 
any contract of any tier in which a DBE is a participant. 

Police Officers: 

DBE credit will not be permitted for procuring DPS officers.  For projects on which officers from other agencies are 
supplied, DBE credit will be given only for the broker fees charged, and will not include amounts paid to the 
officers.  The broker fees must be reasonable. 

Commercially Useful Function: 

A prime consultant can credit expenditures to a DBE subconsultant toward DBE goals only if the DBE performs a 
Commercially Useful Function (CUF). 

A DBE performs a CUF when it is responsible for execution of the work of a contract and carries out its 
responsibilities by actually performing, managing, and supervising the work involved.  To perform a commercially 
useful function, the DBE must also be responsible, with respect to materials and supplies on the contract, for 
negotiating price, determining quality and quantity, ordering the material, and installing (where applicable) and 
paying for the material itself that it uses on the project.  To determine whether a DBE is performing a 
commercially useful function, the LPA/Subrecipient will evaluate the amount of work subcontracted, industry 
practices, whether the amount the firm is to be paid under the contract is commensurate with the work it is 
actually performing and the DBE credit claimed for its performance of the work, and other relevant factors. 

A DBE will not be considered to perform a commercially useful function if its role is limited to that of an extra 
participant in a transaction, contract, or project through which funds are passed in order to obtain the appearance 
of DBE participation.  In determining whether a DBE is such an extra participant, the LPA/Subrecipient will examine 
similar transactions, particularly those in which DBEs do not participate. 

If a DBE does not perform or exercise responsibility for at least 30 percent of the total cost of its contract with its 
own work force, or if the DBE subcontracts a greater portion of the work of a contract than would be expected on 
the basis of normal industry practice for the type of work involved, LPA/Subrecipient will presume that the DBE is 
not performing a commercially useful function. 

When a DBE is presumed not to be performing a commercially useful function as provided above, the DBE may 
present evidence to rebut this presumption.  The Department will determine if the firm is performing a CUF given 
the type of work involved and normal industry practices. 

The LPA/Subrecipient will notify the consultant, in writing, if it determines that the consultant’s DBE subconsultant 
is not performing a CUF.  The consultant will be notified within seven calendar days of the LPA/Subrecipient’s 
decision. 

Decisions on CUF may be appealed to the ADOT BECO.  The appeal must be in writing and personally delivered or 
sent by certified mail, return receipt requested, to the ADOT BECO.  The appeal must be received by ADOT BECO 
no later than seven calendar days after the LPA/Subrecipient’s decision.  LPA/Subrecipient’s decision remains in 
place unless and until the ADOT BECO reverses or modifies LPA/Subrecipient’s decision. ADOT BECO will promptly 



BECO Rev. 7/01/2016 LPA DBE Subcontract Assurances Professional Services - 4/8

consider any appeals under this subsection and notify the consultant of the ADOT BECO findings and decisions. 
Decisions on CUF matters are not administratively appealable to USDOT. 

The LPA/Subrecipient may conduct project site visits on the contract to confirm that DBEs are performing a CUF. 
The consultant shall cooperate during the site visits and the LPA/Subrecipient staff will make every effort not to 
disrupt work on the project. 

5. Effect of Contract Changes: (LPA PS EPRISE 18.0) 

The consultant acknowledges that uncertainties can occur during the performance of the work and if for any 
reason it becomes apparent that the DBE goal will not be met then the consultant shall:  (1) immediately notify 
the LPA/Subrecipient of the potential or actual decrease in DBE compensation, and (2) make good faith efforts to 
obtain DBE participation to meet or exceed the project DBE goal. Good faith efforts required under the provisions 
of this section may vary, depending on the time available, the nature of the change, and other factors as 
determined by LPA/Subrecipient. 

LPA/Subrecipient will approve or deny the consultant’s good faith efforts with BECO concurrence. 

The consultant is not required to take work committed to another subconsultant and assign it to a DBE 
subconsultant in order to meet the committed DBE percentage. 

If the resulting change increases the scope or quantity of work being done by a DBE subconsultant, the DBE shall 
be given the opportunity to complete the additional work and receive additional compensation beyond their 
original subcontract amount. 

6. DBE Participation Above the Goal (Race-Neutral Participation): (LPA PS EPRISE 19.0) 

Additional DBE participation above the DBE participation required to meet the contract DBE goal is an important 
aspect of the Department’s DBE program. The consultant is strongly encouraged to use additional DBEs above the 
DBE goal requirement in the contract to assist the Department in meeting its overall DBE goal and help the 
Department to meet the maximum feasible portion of its DBE goals through race neutral participation as outlined in 
49 CFR Part 26. 

There are fewer administrative requirements on the part of the consultant when using race neutral DBEs (DBEs not 
listed on the DBE Intended Participation Affidavit Summary). For example, if a DBE is not listed on the DBE Intended 
Participation Affidavit Summary, the DBE does not have to submit an Affidavit, and the subcontract approval process 
follows the same process of any other subcontract. The consultant does not have to replace the DBE with another 
DBE subconsultant if the DBE fails to perform. Therefore these DBEs are treated as any other subconsultant on the 
project. 

7. Required Provisions for DBE Subcontracts: (LPA PS EPRISE 20.0) 

All subcontracts of any tier, all supply contracts, and any other contracts in which a DBE is a participant shall 
include as a physical attachment, DBE Subconsultant Compliance Assurances available from the LPA/Subrecipient 
and all of the Uniform Terms and Conditions set forth in other sections of this contract. 

Consultants executing agreements with subconsultants, DBE or non-DBE, that materially modify federal regulation 
and state statutes such as, prompt payment and retention requirements, through subcontract terms and 
conditions will be found in breach of contract which may result in termination of the contract, or any other such 
remedy as the LPA/Subrecipient and ADOT deem appropriate as outline in DBE Subsection 2.0. 

The LPA/Subrecipient reserves the right to conduct random reviews of DBE and non-DBE subcontract 
documentation to ensure compliance with federal requirements. 



BECO Rev. 7/01/2016 LPA DBE Subcontract Assurances Professional Services - 5/8

The consultant shall ensure that all subcontracts or agreements with DBEs to supply labor or materials require that 
the subcontract and all lower tier subcontracts be performed in accordance with 49 CFR Part 26 provisions. 

The Consultant shall provide electronic copies of signed subcontract agreements for all DBE Subconsultants listed 
on the DBE Intended Participation Affidavit Summary by uploading them within 15 calendar days of an approved 
contract to the LPA DBE System.   

8. Contract Performance: (LPA PS EPRISE 21.0) 

Contract items of work designated by the consultant to be awarded to DBEs shall be performed by the designated 
DBE or a LPA/Subrecipient, with BECO concurrence, approved DBE substitute.  The Consultant or a non-DBE 
Subconsultant shall not perform DBE contract work items without prior approval by LPA/Subrecipient, with BECO 
concurrence..  The DBE must perform a commercially useful function; that is, the DBE must manage, perform, and 
supervise a distinct element of work. 

The consultant is required to use DBEs identified in the SOQ to meet the contract goal, so the prime consultant is 
responsible for ensuring that the DBEs are available to meet scheduling, work and other requirements on the 
contract.  

The LPA/Subrecipient will visit the consultant’s office to conduct reviews to ensure compliance with CUF and other 
DBE requirements.  The reviews may include, among other activities, interview of DBEs and their employees and 
the consultant and its employees.  The consultant shall cooperate in the review and make its employees available. 
The consultant shall inform the LPA/Subrecipient in advance when each DBE will be working on the project to help 
facilitate reviews. 

The LPA/Subrecipient reserves the right to request and inspect all records of the consultant and all records of the 
DBEs and non-DBE subconsultants concerning this contract.  The consultant must make available a copy of all 
documents related to all contracts the LPA/Subrecipient upon request. 

Use of every DBE listed on the DBE Intended Participation Affidavit Summary is a condition of this contract. The 
consultant shall utilize the specific DBEs listed to perform the work and supply the materials for which each is 
listed on the DBE Intended Participation Affidavit Summary unless the consultant obtains written consent from the 
LPA/Subrecipient with BECO concurrence. The consultant shall not be entitled to any payment for work or material 
that is not performed or supplied by the listed DBE unless the consultant obtains written consent from the 
LPA/Subrecipient with BECO concurrence. 

9. DBE Termination/Substitution: (LPA PS EPRISE 22.0) 

General Requirements: 

The consultant shall make all reasonable efforts to avoid terminating or substituting a DBE listed on the DBE 
Intended Participation Affidavit Summary. At a minimum, the consultant shall negotiate in good faith, give timely 
notices and/or extend deadlines to the extent that it will not jeopardize the contract with the LPA/Subrecipient. 
Reasonable methods to resolve performance disputes must be applied and documentation provided to the 
Department and the LPA/Subrecipient before attempting to substitute or terminate a DBE. 

Consultant Notice of Termination/Substitution: 

All terminations, substitutions, and reductions in scope of work to be performed by DBEs listed on the DBE 
Intended Participation Affidavit Summary must be approved in writing by the LPA/Subrecipient, with BECO 



BECO Rev. 7/01/2016 LPA DBE Subcontract Assurances Professional Services - 6/8

concurrence and by means of the executed contract modification. The consultant shall contact the 
LPA/Subrecipient within 24 hours from the first sign of any reason for potential DBE termination/substitution. 

The consultant shall not terminate a DBE subconsultant listed on the DBE Intended Participation Affidavit 
Summary or complete the work contracted to the DBE with its own forces or with a non-DBE firm without the 
LPA/Subrecipient written consent and BECO concurrence. Before submitting a formal request to the 
LPA/Subrecipient for DBE termination/substitution, the consultant shall give written notice to the DBE 
subconsultant with a copy to the LPA/Subrecipient of its intent to terminate or substitute the DBE identifying the 
reason for the action.  The DBE shall be allowed a minimum of five calendar days to respond to the consultant’s 
notice advising the consultant, the LPA/Subrecipient of its position. Before making a determination for approval 
regarding the consultant’s termination and substitution request, the LPA/Subrecipient, with BECO concurrence, 
will consider both the consultant’s request and the DBE firm’s response. 

Consultant Request of Termination/Substitution: 

The consultant shall formally request the termination or substitution of a DBE listed on the DBE Intended 
Participation Affidavit Summary by submitting the DBE Termination/Substitution Request Form and supporting 
documentation to the LPA/Subrecipient; form is available from the LPA/Subrecipient. The submission shall include 
the following information: 

1) The date the consultant determined the DBE to be unwilling, unable or ineligible to perform.
2) A brief statement of facts describing the situation and citing specific actions or inaction by the DBE

firm giving rise to consultant’s assertion that the DBE firm is unwilling, unable, or ineligible to
perform.

3) A brief statement of the good faith efforts undertaken by the consultant to enable the DBE firm to
perform.

4) The total dollar amount currently paid for work performed by the DBE firm.
5) The total dollar amount remaining to be paid to the DBE firm for work completed, but for which the

DBE firm has not received payment, and over which the consultant and the DBE firm have no dispute.
6) The remaining work that has not been completed by the DBE and the corresponding dollar amount
7) The projected date that the consultant requires a substitution or replacement DBE to commence

work, if consent is granted to the request.

Written consent for terminating the performance of any DBE listed on the DBE Intended Participation Affidavit 
Summary will be granted only where the consultant can demonstrate good cause showing that the DBE is unable, 
unwilling, or ineligible to perform. Such written consent to terminate any DBE shall concurrently constitute written 
consent to substitute or replace the terminated DBE. Termination or substitution of a DBE listed on the DBE 
Intended Participation Summary will not be allowed based solely on a consultant's ability to negotiate a more 
advantageous contract with another subconsultant.  Prior to making a determination for approval regarding the 
consultant’s termination and substitution request, the LPA/Subrecipient, with BECO concurrence, will consider 
both the consultant’s request and the DBE firm’s response. 

Good Cause: 

The LPA/Subrecipient, with BECO concurrence, will make the determination of good cause by providing written 
consent to the consultant after evaluating the consultant’s good cause to terminate or substitute a DBE firm. Good 
cause for this purpose includes the following in relation to the listed DBE subconsultant: 

1. Fails or refuses to execute a written contract.
2. Fails or refuses to perform the work of its subcontract in a way consistent with normal industry practice

standards. However, good cause does not exist if the failure or refusal of the DBE subconsultant to
perform its work on the subcontract results from the bad faith or discriminatory action of the prime
consultant.



BECO Rev. 7/01/2016 LPA DBE Subcontract Assurances Professional Services - 7/8

3. Fails or refuses to meet the prime consultant’s reasonable, nondiscriminatory insurance/bond
requirements.

4. Becomes bankrupt, insolvent, or exhibits credit unworthiness.
5. Is ineligible to work on public works projects because of suspension and debarment proceedings pursuant

to federal or state law.
6. Is not a responsible consultant.
7. Voluntarily withdraws from the project and provides written notice of its withdrawal to the

LPA/Subrecipient.
8. Is ineligible to receive DBE credit for the type of work required
9. A DBE owner dies or becomes disabled with the result that the firm is unable to complete its work on the

contract.
10. Other documented good cause that the LPA/Subrecipient determines compels the termination or

substitution of the DBE subconsultant.

If good cause is determined, the LPA/Subrecipient and will notify the Consultant of the decision and necessary 
modifications to the contract can be made. 

DBE Replacement Good Faith Effort: 

If the LPA/Subrecipient, with BECO concurrence, approves the termination of a DBE, the consultant shall make 
good faith efforts to find another DBE subconsultant to substitute for the original DBE. The good faith efforts as 
identified in DBE Subsection 17.0 shall be directed at finding another DBE to perform at least the same amount of 
work under the contract as the DBE that was terminated, to the extent needed to meet the contract goal. The 
good faith efforts shall be documented and provided, upon request, to the LPA/Subrecipient within seven 
calendar days from the date of the request.  

A prime consultant’s inability to find a replacement DBE at the original price is not alone sufficient to support a 
finding that good faith efforts have been made to replace the original DBE. The fact that the consultant has the 
ability and/or desire to perform the contract work with its own forces does not relieve the consultant of the 
obligation to make good faith efforts to find the replacement DBE, and it is not a sound basis for rejecting a 
perspective replacement DBE’s reasonable quote. 

The termination of a DBE firm shall not relieve the consultant of its obligations under this Special Provision, and 
the unpaid portion of the terminated DBE firm’s subcontract will not be counted toward the DBE goal. If the 
LPA/Subrecipient has eliminated items of work subcontracted to a committed DBE, the prime consultant shall still 
make good faith efforts to replace the DBE with another DBE to the extent necessary to meet the goal. The 
LPA/Subrecipient will review the quality, thoroughness, and intensity of those efforts. 

When a DBE substitution has been approved by the LPA/Subrecipient and concurred by BECO, the consultant shall 
submit an amended DBE Intended Participation Affidavit Individual and Intended Participation Affidavit Summary 
to the LPA/Subrecipient for approval with the substitute DBE's name, description of work, NAICS code, AZ UTRACS 
registration number, and dollar value of work. Approval from LPA/Subrecipient with BECO concurrence must be 
obtained prior to the execution of a contract modification and before substituted DBE can begin work. 

Sanctions: 

Failure by the consultant to carry out the requirements of these DBE Termination/Substitution specifications is a 
material breach of contract and will result in such remedies as LPA/Subrecipient deems appropriate, with ADOT 
concurrence, which will include, but are not limited to the assessment of liquidated damages. The 
LPA/Subrecipient will deduct from monies due or becoming due the consultant, the dollar amount of the 
wrongfully substituted/replaced DBE subcontract plus 25% of the amount remaining to be paid to the DBE as 
liquidated damages. These liquidated damages shall be in addition to all other retention or liquidated damages 
provided for elsewhere in the contract. 



BECO Rev. 7/01/2016 LPA DBE Subcontract Assurances Professional Services - 8/8

10. Certification of Final DBE Payments: (LPA PS EPRISE 25.0) 

The consultant’s achievement of the goal is measured by actual payments made to the DBEs.  The consultant shall 
submit the “Certification of Final DBE Payments” form for each DBE firm working on the contract. This form shall 
be signed by the consultant and the relevant DBE, and submitted to the LPA/Subrecipient no later than 30 days 
after the DBE completes its work.  

The LPA/Subrecipient and ADOT will use this certification and other information available to determine applicable 
DBE credit allowed to date by the Prime Consultant and the extent to which the DBE firms were fully paid for that 
work. By the act of filing the forms, the consultant acknowledges that the information is supplied in order to 
justify the payment of state and federal funds to the consultant. 

The consultant will not be released from the obligations of the contract until the “Certification of Final DBE 
Payments” forms are received and deemed acceptable by the LPA/Subrecipient.  

11. Sanctions for Not Meeting Contract DBE Goal: (LPA PS EPRISE 24.0) 

If the LPA/Subrecipient determines, with BECO concurrence, that the consultant has not met the DBE goal at the 
end of the contract, the LPA/Subrecipient will, at its discretion, may assess liquidated damages up to two times 
the amount of the unattained portion of the original DBE goal, based on the circumstances of the noncompliance. 
Not meeting the DBE goal will also be reflected in the consultant evaluation. 

The LPA/Subrecipient, with BECO concurrence, will determine whether liquidated damages will be assessed and 
the amount of the liquidate damages, the LPA/Subrecipient will consider whether there have been other 
violations on this or other contracts, whether the failure was due to circumstances beyond the control of the 
consultant, whether the consultant has made good faith efforts to meet the goal, and other appropriate 
circumstances. 

In addition to any other sanctions, willful failure of the consultant, DBE or other subconsultant to comply with this 
contract or with the Federal DBE regulations may result in disqualification from further contracting, 
subcontracting, or other participation in the Department’s and LPA/Subrecipient projects. 

12. False, Fraudulent, or Dishonest Conduct: (LPA PS EPRISE 27.0) 

In addition to any other remedies or actions, the Department will bring to the attention of the US Department of 
Transportation any appearance of false, fraudulent, or dishonest conduct in connection with the DBE program, so 
that USDOT can take steps such as referral to the Department of Justice for criminal prosecution, referral to the 
USDOT Inspector General for possible initiation of suspension and debarment proceedings against the offending 
parties or application of “Program Fraud and Civil Penalties” rules provided in 49 CFR Part 31. 



08-06-2020 

FEDERAL DOCUMENTS 11.0 

BUY AMERICA REQUIREMENTS 



Material Certifications-Buy America Requirements Page 1 of 5 

MATERIAL CERTIFICATION REQUIREMENTS 

And 

BUY AMERICA REQUIREMENTS 

A. REGULATIONS
1. FHWA - BUY AMERICA  - CLARIFICATION OF FEDERAL REGULATION
https://www.transportation.gov/sites/dot.gov/files/docs/buy_america_provisions_side_by_side.pdf)
Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) - 23 U.S.C. § 313 – Buy America; 23 C.F.R. § 635.410

The Secretary of Transportation shall not obligate any funds unless steel, iron, and manufactured products 

used In such project are produced in the United States. 

Applies to iron and steel products and their coatings that are to be permanently incorporated into the project.  

The FHWA, in its 1983 rulemaking, determined that Buy America did not apply to raw materials and waived its 

application to manufactured products, although in the statute, based on the public interest.  Lake of adequate 

domestic supply resulted in a 1995 nationwide waiver for iron ore, pig iron, and reduced/processed/pelletized 

iron ore. In 1994, a nationwide waiver for specific ferryboat parts came into effect. 

2. MAG SPECIFICATION SECTION 106.2.1

3. ADOT SPECIFICATION 106.05 AND 106.15

B. PROCEDURE FOR MATERIAL CERTIFICATION REQUIREMENTS – CITY OF CHANDLER

1. All material for a federal funded project must have a material certification.

2. All material delivered to jobsite must be accompanied by a material certification.

3. Material Certifications must be submitted to the City of Chandler representative for review and approval and is

not deemed accepted until City of Chandler representative approval.

4. Buy America Material – All Iron and Steel products.  (See Item A above)

5. Buy America Material Installation: All Buy America Iron and Steel Products MUST NOT be installed without

Material Certification received and approval from City of Chandler.

6. All non-Buy America Material Installation: All non-Buy America material, if installed without material certification

receipt and approval is at the Prime Contractor's risk and WILL NOT BE PAID until approval of material

certification for that material.

C. MATERIAL CERTIFICATIONS – DOCUMENTATION REQUIRED PER FHWA, MAG SPECIFICATION, ADOT
SPECIFICATION AND CITY OF CHANDLER:
ALL MATERIAL – Items 1-11
1. Project Name
2. City Project Number
3. Federal Project Number
4. ADOT Number (previously known as Tracs Number) (if FHWA funded project)
5. Supplier Information:  Name, Address, Telephone Number
6. Description of the material supplied
7. Quantity of material represented by the certificate
8. Means of material identification, such as label, lot number, or marking
9. A Statement that the material complies in all respects with the requirements of the cited specifications.

Certificates shall state compliance with the cited specification, such as AASHTO M 320, ASTM C 494; or
specific table or subsection of the Arizona Department of Transportation Standard Specifications or Special
Provisions. Certificates may cite both, if applicable.

10. Authorization Signature Statement: A statement that the individual signing has the legal authority to bind the
manufacturer or the supplier of the material.

11. The name, title, signature, and date of signature of the signing-responsible individual.
BUY AMERICA IRON & STEEL PRODUCTS – Items 1-11 above AND Item 12 Below:
12. Buy America Verification Statement – statement that certifies material was made in America.

a. Examples: "Made in America",  "This product complies with Buy America requirements".



Material Certifications-Buy America Requirements Page 2 of 5 

 
FHWA –  CFR (Code of Federal Regulations) Title 23 – Section 635.410 Highways - BUY AMERICA 

 
Volume: 1 Date: 2013-04-01, Original Date: 2013-04-01 
CHAPTER I - FEDERAL HIGHWAY ADMINISTRATION, DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION. SUBCHAPTER G - 
ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC OPERATIONS. PART 635 - CONSTRUCTION AND MAINTENANCE. Subpart D - 
General Material Requirements.  
 
§ 635.410 Buy America requirements.  
 
(a) The provisions of this section shall prevail and be given precedence over any requirements of this subpart which are 
contrary to this section. However, nothing in this section shall be construed to be contrary to the requirements of § 
635.409(a) of this subpart. 
(b) No Federal-aid highway construction project is to be authorized for advertisement or otherwise authorized to 
proceed unless at least one of the following requirements is met: 

(1) The project either: (i) Includes no permanently incorporated steel or iron materials, or (ii) if steel or iron materials 
are to be used, all manufacturing processes, including application of a coating, for these materials must occur in the 
United States. Coating includes all processes which protect or enhance the value of the material to which the coating 
is applied. 
(2) The State has standard contract provisions that require the use of domestic materials and products, including 
steel and iron materials, to the same or greater extent as the provisions set forth in this section. 
(3) The State elects to include alternate bid provisions for foreign and domestic steel and iron materials which comply 
with the following requirements. Any procedure for obtaining alternate bids based on furnishing foreign steel and iron 
materials which is acceptable to the Division Administrator may be used. The contract provisions must (i) require all 
bidders to submit a bid based on furnishing domestic steel and iron materials, and (ii) clearly state that the contract 
will be awarded to the bidder who submits the lowest total bid based on furnishing domestic steel and iron materials 
unless such total bid exceeds the lowest total bid based on furnishing foreign steel and iron materials by more than 
25 percent. 
(4) When steel and iron materials are used in a project, the requirements of this section do not prevent a minimal use 
of foreign steel and iron materials, if the cost of such materials used does not exceed one-tenth of one percent (0.1 
percent) of the total contract cost or $2,500, whichever is greater. For purposes of this paragraph, the cost is that 
shown to be the value of the steel and iron products as they are delivered to the project. 

(c) 
(1) A State may request a waiver of the provisions of this section if; 

(i) The application of those provisions would be inconsistent with the public interest; or 
(ii) Steel and iron materials/products are not produced in the United States in sufficient and reasonably available 
quantities which are of a satisfactory quality. 

(2) A request for waiver, accompanied by supporting information, must be submitted in writing to the Regional 
Federal Highway Administrator (RFHWA) through the FHWA Division Administrator. A request must be submitted 
sufficiently in advance of the need for the waiver in order to allow time for proper review and action on the request. 
The RFHWA will have approval authority on the request. 
(3) Requests for waivers may be made for specific projects, or for certain materials or products in specific geographic 
areas, or for combinations of both, depending on the circumstances. 
(4) The denial of the request by the RFHWA may be appealed by the State to the Federal Highway Administrator 
(Administrator), whose action on the request shall be considered administratively final. 
(5) A request for a waiver which involves nationwide public interest or availability issues or more than one FHWA 
region may be submitted by the RFHWA to the Administrator for action. 
(6) A request for waiver and an appeal from a denial of a request must include facts and justification to support the 
granting of the waiver. The FHWA response to a request or appeal will be in writing and made available to the public 
upon request. Any request for a nationwide waiver and FHWA's action on such a request may be published in the 
Federal Register for public comment. 
(7) In determining whether the waivers described in paragraph (c)(1) of this section will be granted, the FHWA will 
consider all appropriate factors including, but not limited to, cost, administrative burden, and delay that would be 
imposed if the provision were not waived. 

(d) Standard State and Federal-aid contract procedures may be used to assure compliance with the requirements of 
this section. 

 
[48 FR 53104, Nov. 25, 1983, as amended at 49 FR 18821, May 3, 1984; 58 FR 38975, July 21, 1993] 
 
  



Material Certifications-Buy America Requirements Page 3 of 5 

MAG (MARICOPA ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS) 106.2.1 

 
106.2.1 Certificate of Compliance: A Certificate of Compliance shall be submitted on the manufacturer’s or supplier’s 
official letterhead, and shall contain the following information:  

1.  The current name, address, and phone number of the manufacturer or supplier of the material or equipment.  
2. A description of the material or equipment supplied.  
3. Quantity of material represented by the certificate.  
4. Means of material identification, such as label, lot number, or marking.  
5. A statement that the material complies in all respects with the requirements of the cited specifications. 

Certificates shall state the name of the specific cited specifications, such as AASHTO M-320, ASTM C494, or 
specific table or subsection of the Specifications or Special Provisions.  

6. A statement that the individual identified in item eight below has the legal authority to bind the manufacturer or 
the supplier of the material.  

7. Project identification: Project name and all associated numbers (agency, Federal, and ADOT TRACS).  
8. The name, title, and signature of the responsible individual. The date of the signature shall also be given.  
 

9. Each of the first six items specified above shall be completed prior to the signing of the certificate as defined in 
item eight. No certificate will be accepted that has been altered, added to, or changed in any way after the 
authorized signature has been affixed to the original certificate. However, notations related to project specifics 
such as project identification, contractor, or quantity shipped are acceptable, provided the basic requirements 
of the certificate (items one through six) are not affected.  

10. A copy or facsimile reproduction of the original certificate will be acceptable; however, the original certificate 
shall be made available upon request.  

 
106.2.2 Certificate of Analysis: A Certificate of Analysis shall include all the information required for a Certificate 
of Compliance and, in addition, shall include the results of all tests required by the specifications.  

 
 
 
Revised 2017 
  



Material Certifications-Buy America Requirements Page 4 of 5 

 

ADOT STANDARD SPECIFICATION 106.05 (09/14/12) 
 
 
106.05 Certificates:  of the Standard Specifications is revised to read: 
(A) General: 
The contractor shall submit to the Engineer an original or copy of either a Certificate of Compliance or a Certificate of 
Analysis, as required, prior to the use of any materials or manufactured assemblies for which the specifications require 
that such a certificate be furnished. 
 
Certificates shall be specifically identified as either a "Certificate of Compliance" or a "Certificate of Analysis". 
 
The Engineer may permit the use of certain materials or manufactured assemblies prior to, or without, sampling and 
testing if accompanied by a Certificate of Compliance or Certificate of Analysis, as herein specified.  Materials or 
manufactured assemblies for which a certificate is furnished may be sampled and tested at any time, and, if found not 
in conformity with the requirements of the plans and the specifications, will be subject to rejection, whether in place or 
not. 
 
Certificates of Compliance and Certificates of Analysis shall comply with the requirements specified herein, the ADOT 
Materials Testing Manual, and applicable ADOT Materials Policy and Procedure Directives. 
 
(B) Certificate of Compliance: 
 
A Certificate of Compliance shall be submitted on the manufacturer’s or supplier’s official letterhead, and shall contain 
the following information: 
 

(1) The current name, address, and phone number of the manufacturer or supplier of the material. 
(2) A description of the material supplied. 
(3) Quantity of material represented by the certificate. 
(4) Means of material identification, such as label, lot number, or marking. 
(5) A statement that the material complies in all respects with the requirements of the cited specifications.  

Certificates shall state compliance with the cited specification, such as AASHTO M 320, ASTM C 494; or 
specific table or subsection of the Arizona Department of Transportation Standard Specifications or 
Special Provisions.  Certificates may cite both, if applicable. 

(6) A statement that the individual identified in item seven below has the legal authority to bind the 
manufacturer or the supplier of the material. 

(7) The name, title, and signature of the responsible individual. The date of the signature shall also be given. 
 

Each of the first six items specified above shall be completed prior to the signing of the certificate as defined in item 
seven.  No certificate will be accepted that has been altered, added to, or changed in any way after the authorized 
signature has been affixed to the original certificate.  However, notations of a clarifying nature, such as project number, 
contractor, or quantity shipped are acceptable, provided the basic requirements of the certificate are not affected. 
 
A copy or facsimile reproduction of the original certificate will be acceptable; however, the original certificate shall be 
made available upon request. 
 
(C) Certificate of Analysis: 
 
A Certificate of Analysis shall include all the information required for a Certificate of Compliance and, in addition, shall 
include the results of all tests required by the specifications. 
  



Material Certifications-Buy America Requirements Page 5 of 5 

 

ADOT STANDARD SPECIFICATION 106.15 (02/15/11) – BUY AMERICA 

 

 

Section 106 -Control of Materials:  of the Standard Specifications is modified to read as follows: 

106.15 Domestic Materials and Products 

Steel and iron materials and products used on all projects shall comply with the current “Buy America” requirements of 

23 CFR 635.410. 

 

All manufacturing processes to produce steel and iron products used on this project shall occur in the United States.  

Raw materials used in manufacturing the steel and iron products may be foreign or domestic.  Steel or iron not meeting 

these requirements may be used in products on this project provided that the invoiced cost to the contractor for such 

steel products incorporated into the work does not exceed either one-tenth of one percent of the total (final) contract 

cost or $2,500, whichever is greater. 

 

Any process which involves the application of a coating to iron or steel shall occur in the United States.  These 

processes include epoxy coating, galvanizing, painting, or any other coating which protects or enhances the value of 

covered material. 

 

The requirements specified herein shall only apply to steel and iron products permanently incorporated into the project.  

“Buy America” provisions do not apply to temporary steel items, such as sheet piling, temporary bridges, steel 

scaffolding and falsework, or to materials which remain in place at the contractor’s convenience. 

 

The contractor shall furnish the Engineer with Certificates of Compliance, conforming to the requirements of Subsection 

106.05, which state that steel or iron products incorporated in the project meet the requirements specified.  Certificates 

of Compliance shall also certify that all manufacturing processes to produce steel or iron products, and any application 

of a coating to iron or steel, occurred in the United States. 

 

Convict-produced materials may not be used unless the materials were produced prior to July 1, 1991 at a prison 

facility specifically producing convict-made materials for Federal-aid construction projects. 

 
 



ITEM  20 

City Council Memorandum      Public Works & Utilities  Memo No. RE21-069
       

Date: February 8, 2021
To: Mayor  and Council
Thru: Marsha Reed, City Manager

Joshua H. Wright, Assistant City Manager
John Knudson, Public Works & Utilities Director
Andrew Goh, Capital Projects Manager

From: Erich Kuntze, Real Estate Manager
Subject: Final Adoption of Ordinance No. 4953 Granting an Irrigation Easement to Salt River Project

Agricultural Improvement and Power District (SRP) within a Portion of the West Side of Arizona
Avenue at Queen Creek Road, at No Cost, to Formalize an Existing United States Government
Undefined Irrigation Easement at this Location

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council approve final adoption of Ordinance No. 4953 granting an irrigation easement to Salt
River Project Agricultural Improvement and Power District at the northwest corner of Arizona Avenue
and Queen Creek Road, at no cost, to formalize an existing United States Government undefined
irrigation easement at this location.

Background:
SRP, on behalf of the United States of America (USA), is requesting the City grant an irrigation
easement over the west side of Arizona Avenue at the northwest corner of Arizona Avenue and Queen
Creek Road. The USA has an existing easement in this area that was granted on August 29, 1923, by
Quit Claim Deed. However, the width of the easement was not defined at the time. SRP has requested
the City grant an irrigation easement to formalize the size of the previously granted easement. The
easement will be granted to SRP at no cost. The new easement will be twenty feet wide and include a
total area of approximately 12,225 square feet. Staff has reviewed and approved the easement and
legal description for the requested easement.

This Ordinance was introduced and tentatively adopted on January 28, 2020.

Attachments
Location Map 
Ordinance No. 4953 



ELLIOT RD

WARNER RD

RAY RD

CHANDLER BL

PECOS RD

GERMANN RD

QUEEN CREEK RD

OCOTILLO RD

CHANDLER HEIGHTS RD

RIGGS RD

HUNT HWVAL VISTA DR

LINDSAY RD

GILBERT RD

COOPER RD

MCQUEEN RD

ARIZONA AV

ALMA SCHOOL RD

DOBSON RD

PRICE RD

MCCLINTOCK DR

RURAL RD

KYRENE RD

56TH ST

GR ANTING AN IR R IGATION EASEMENT TO 
SALT R IVER  PR OJECT AGR ICULTUR AL 

IMPR OVEMENT AND POWER  DISTR ICT (“SR P”)
WITHIN A POR TION OF THE WEST SIDE OF

AR IZONA AVENUE AT QUEEN CR EEK R OAD, AT NO COST,
TO FOR MALIZE AN EXISTING UNITED STATES GOVER NMENT
UNDEFINED IR R IGATION EASEMENT AT THIS LOCATION

°
NTS

303-36-281E

303-36-281C

303-85-178

303-36-648

AR
IZO
NA
 AV

QUEEN CR EEK R D

R OADR UNNER  DR

WA
SH
IN
GT
ON
 ST

BLUEJAY DR

PROJECT SITE

MEMO NO. R E21-069

F:\ENGINEER\GENSERV\_ArcMap_Shared\Map Requests\Real Estate\RE21-069 ORDINANCE 4953\RE21-069.mxd 12/14/2020 MARICELAH

OR DINANCE NO. 4953































ITEM  21 

City Council Memorandum      Public Works & Utilities  Memo No. RE21-083
       

Date: February 8, 2021
To: Mayor  and Council
Thru: Marsha Reed, City Manager

Joshua H. Wright, Assistant City Manager
John Knudson, Public Works & Utilities Director
Andrew Goh, Capital Projects Manager

From: Erich Kuntze, Real Estate Manager
Subject: Final Adoption of Ordinance No. 4956 Granting Three (3) Irrigation Easements to Roosevelt Water

Conservation District (RWCD) within Portions of Chandler Heights Road on Either Side of the Cooper
Road Intersection, at No Cost, to Accommodate the Cooper Road Improvement Project, from Alamosa
Drive to Riggs Road

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council approve final adoption of Ordinance No. 4956 granting three (3) irrigation easements
to the Roosevelt Water Conservation District (RWCD) within portions of Chandler Heights Road on
either side of the Cooper Road intersection, at no cost, to accommodate the Cooper Road
Improvement Project, from Alamosa Drive to Riggs Road.

Background:
To accommodate the construction of the City’s Cooper Road Improvement Project from Alamosa Drive
to Riggs Road, the City must grant three (3) irrigation easements to the Roosevelt Water Conservation
District so that RWCD facilities can cross Chandler Heights Road at three (3) locations on either side of
Cooper Road. Granting the easements to RWCD would be at no cost as they are required by a City of
Chandler project. Staff has reviewed and approved the easement and legal description for the
requested easement.

This Ordinance was introduced and tentatively adopted on January 28, 2021.

Attachments
Location Map 
Ordinance No. 4956 



CO
OP

ER
 RD

CHANDLER HEIGHTS RD

ELLIOT RD

WARNER RD

RAY RD

CHANDLER BL

PECOS RD

GERMANN RD

QUEEN CREEK RD

OCOTILLO RD

CHANDLER HEIGHTS RD

RIGGS RD

HUNT HWVAL VISTA DR

LINDSAY RD

GILBERT RD

COOPER RD

MCQUEEN RD

ARIZONA AV

ALMA SCHOOL RD

DOBSON RD

PRICE RD

MCCLINTOCK DR

RURAL RD

KYRENE RD

56TH ST

MEMO NO. RE21-083

GRANTING THREE (3) IRRIGATION
EASEMENTS TO ROOSEVELT WATER

CONSERVATION DISTRICT (RWCD) ON
CHANDLER HEIGHTS ROAD AT COOPER ROAD

°
NTS

ORDINANCE 4956

F:\ENGINEER\GENSERV\_ArcMap_Shared\Map Requests\Real Estate\RE21-083 ORDINANCE 4956\RE21-083 ORDINANCE 4956.mxd 12/28/2020 RANDYE















































































ITEM  22 

City Council Memorandum      Public Works & Utilities  Memo No. PW21-019
       

Date: February 8, 2021
To: Mayor  and Council
Thru: Marsha Reed, City Manager

Joshua H. Wright, Assistant City Manager
John Knudson, Public Works & Utilities Director  
Andrew Goh, Capital Projects Manager

From: Warren White, Principal Engineer
Subject: Final Adoption of Ordinance No. 4948 Adopting Updated Versions of Previously Adopted Public Works

Design and Construction Standards and Amending Chapter 43, Section 43-4.5, Subsections 43-4.5.A,
43-4.5.B, 43-4.5.C, 43-4.5.D, 43-4.5.E, 43-4.5.G, and 43-4.5.I of the Code of the City of Chandler,
Relating to the Adoption of these Updated Design And Construction Standards
 

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council approve final adoption of Ordinance No. 4948 adopting updated versions of
previously adopted Public Works design and construction standards and amending Chapter 43, Section
43-5, Subsections 43-4.5.A, 43-4.5.B, 43-4.5.C, 43-4.5.D, 43-4.5.E, 43-4.5.G, and 43-4.5.I of the Code
of the City of Chandler, relating to the adoption of these updated design and construction standards.

Background:
The City maintains and publishes Engineering Standard Details and Specifications, and Technical
Design Manuals (TDM), which have been created to guide developers and City staff on the design and
construction of the City’s infrastructure.  These documents are adopted by the City Council.

In addition to various general revisions, this update includes revised City fiber optic communication
cable and conduit standards, revisions to the Traffic Barricade Manual for new on-line application
submittal process, and continued updates for Americans with Disabilities Act compliance.

The Engineering Design Standards Committee, with representation from multiple City departments,
reviews proposed changes to the design standards and makes recommendations for annual updates. 
This process also involves reviewing the Maricopa Association of Governments (MAG) Specifications
and Standards and their annually-proposed revisions to determine if City standards could be removed
in favor of MAG standards.

This Ordinance would amend the following design standards:
  

January 2020 Standard Details and Specifications Manual
January 2020 Technical Design Manual No. 1 & 2, Water & Wastewater System Design
January 2020 Technical Design Manual No. 3, Drainage Policies and Standards
January 2020 Technical Design Manual No. 4, Street Access and Design Control
January 2020 Technical Design Manual No. 5, Traffic Signal Design



January 2016 Technical Design Manual No. 7, Traffic Barricade Design
Adopt the 2021 revisions to the MAG Uniform Standard Specifications and Details with certain
modifications

The revisions were provided to members of the development industry, including the Home Builders
Association of Central Arizona (HBACA), the Arizona Multihousing Association (AMA), utility providers,
and engineering design consultants.  Comments received were incorporated into these revisions,
where appropriate.

The complete set of current and revised Standard Details and Specifications is available for review on
the City Unified Development Manual (UDM) website and on file with the City Clerk.  A detailed
summary of the changes is also attached.

This Ordinance was introduced and tentatively adopted on January 28, 2021.

Attachments
Ordinance No. 4948 
Change Summary 2021 



ORDINANCE NO. 4948 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CHANDLER, 
ARIZONA, DECLARING THAT DOCUMENT ENTITLED "2020 
AMENDMENTS TO CHANDLER CITY CODE CHAPTER 43, SECTION 43-
4.5" TO BE A PUBLIC RECORD; AMENDING THE CODE OF THE CITY OF 
CHANDLER, CHAPTER 43 (PUBLIC WORKS AND UTILITIES 
DEPARTMENT), SECTION 43-4.5, SUBSECTIONS 43-4.5.A, 43-4.5.B, 43-
4.5.C, 43-4.5.D, 43-4.5.E, 43-4.5.G, AND 43-4.5.1 TO CONFORM WITH 
UPDATED DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION STANDARDS; PROVIDING 
FOR THE REPEAL OF CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; AND PROVIDING 
FOR SEVERABILITY. 

WHEREAS, the City of Chandler has previously adopted certain documents establishing 
minimum public works design and construction standards and specifications and believes it to be 
prudent to adopt the updated versions of those documents; and 

WHEREAS, Chapter 43, Section 43-4.5 needs to be amended to reflect adoption of those 
updated public works documents. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona, 
as follows: 

Section 1. 

Section 2. 

Section 3. 

Section 4. 

That certain documents known as the "2020 Amendments to Chandler City Code 
Chapter 43, Section 43-4.5" one paper copy and one electronic copy of which 
shall remain on file in the office of the City Clerk, is hereby declared to be a 
public record. 

That the Chandler City Code, Chapter 43, Section 43-4.5, Subsections 43-4.5.A, 
43-4.5.B, 43-4.5.C, 43-4.5.D, 43-4.5.E, 43-4.5.G, and 43-4.5.1 are hereby
amended by adoption of the amendments set forth in "2020 Amendments to
Chandler City Code Chapter 43, Section 43-4.5" said documents having been
declared to be a public record.

Providing for Repeal of Conflicting Ordinances. 
All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this 
ordinance, or any parts hereof, are hereby repealed. 

Providing for Severability. 
If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this ordinance is 
for any reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional by the decision of any court 
of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of the 
remaining portions thereof. 



INTRODUCED AND TENTATIVELY APPROVED by the City Council of the City of 
Chandler, Arizona, this __ day of December, 2020. 

ATTEST: 

CITY CLERK MAYOR 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona this __ day 
of December, 2020. 

ATTEST: 

CITY CLERK MAYOR 

CERTIFICATION 

I, HEREBY CERTIFY, that the above and foregoing Ordinance No. 4948 was duly passed and 
adopted by the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona, at a regular meeting held on the 
__ day of December, 2020, and that a quorum was present thereat. 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

CITY ATTORNEY 

PUBLISHED: 

CITY CLERK 



2020 Amendments to Chandler City Code Chapter 43, Section 43-4.5 
{Public Record for Ordinance No. 4948} 

Chandler City Code, Chapter 43 (Public Works and Utilities Department), Section 43-4.5 is 
hereby amended by adding the following (additions in ALL CAPS, deletions in strikeout): 

43-4.5. The following standards, details, specifications, and/or policies regarding public
works improvements are in effect in the City of Chandler:

A. City of Chandler Standard Details and Specifications. That certain document on file
with tl}e City Clerk marked, known and designated as "City of Chandler Standard Details
and Specifications", January� 2021 Edition, is hereby adopted by reference and made a
part hereof as if set forth at length herein.

B. City of Chandler Technical Design Manual, Numbers 1 and 2: Water and Wastewater
System Design. That certain document on file with the City Clerk marked, known and
designated as "City of Chandler Technical Design Manual, Numbers 1 and 2: Water and
Wastewater System Design", January� 2021 Edition, is hereby adopted by reference
and made a part hereof as though set forth at length herein.

C. City of Chandler Technical Design Manual, Numbers 3: Drainage Policies and
Standards. That certain document on file with the City Clerk marked, known and
designated as "City of Chandler Technical Design Manual, Numbers 3: Drainage Policies
and Standards", January� 2021 Edition, is hereby adopted by reference and made a part
hereof as though set forth at length herein.

D. City of Chandler Technical Design Manual, Number 4: Street Design and Access
Control. That certain document on file with the City Clerk marked, known and designated
as "City of Chandler Technical Design Manual, Number 4: Street Design and Access
Control", January � 2021 Edition, is hereby adopted by reference and made a part
hereof as though set forth at length herein.

E. City of Chandler Technical Design Manual, Number 5: Traffic Signal Design. That
certain document on file with the City Clerk marked, known and designated as "City of
Chandler Technical Design Manual, Number 5: Traffic Signal Design," January� 2021
Edition, is hereby adopted by reference and made a part hereof as though set forth at length
herein.

F. City of Chandler Technical Design Manual, Number 6: Streetlight Design. That certain
document on file with the City Clerk marked, known and designated as "City of Chandler
Technical Design Manual, Number 6: Streetlight Design", January 2020 Edition, is hereby
adopted by reference and made a part hereof as though set forth at length herein.

G. City of Chandler Technical Design Manual, Number 7: Traffic Barricade Design. That
certain document on file with the City Clerk marked, known, and designated as "City of
Chandler Technical Design Manual, Number 7: Traffic Barricade Design," January W-1-6
2021 Edition, is hereby adopted by reference and made a part hereof as if set forth at length
herein.



H. City of Chandler Technical Design Manual, Number 8: Landscape Design of Rights-of­
Ways, Medians and Retention Basins. That certain document on file with the City Clerk
marked, known and designated as "City of Chandler Technical Design Manual, Number 8:
Landscape Design of Rights-of Ways, Medians and Retention Basins", May 2018 Edition,
is hereby adopted by reference and made a part hereof as though set forth at length herein.

I. MAG Uniform Standard Specifications and Details. That certain document on file with
the City Clerk marked, known and designated as Uniform Standard Specifications and
Details for Public Works Construction, Sponsored and Distributed by the Maricopa
Association of Governments,� 2021 Edition, is hereby adopted by reference and made
a part hereof as though set forth at length herein with the additions, insertions, deletions
and changes set forth below.

1. The Public Works and Utilities Director/designee is authorized to increase standard
street cross sections, both pavement and right-of-way widths, as necessary to maintain
required traffic service levels when a traffic analysis indicates the need for additional lanes
of traffic.

2. Where MAG refers to corrective actions for deviations from standards and provides
options for "When the contracting agency is the owner" or "When the contracting agency is
not the owner (i.e. permits)", the Public Works and Utilities Director/designee is authorized
to utilize any of the corrective actions listed regardless of whether the City is the
contracting agency or not.

J. [Reserved.]

K. Policy on Geometric Design of Highways and Streets. That certain document on file
with the City Clerk marked, known and designated as "The Policy on Geometric Design of
Highways and Streets," 2004 Edition, published by the American Association of State
Highway and Transportation Officials, is hereby adopted by reference and made a part
hereof as though set forth at length herein.

L. City of Chandler Manual on Stormwater Quality Protection. That certain document on
file with the City Clerk marked, known and designated as "City of Chandler Manual on
Stormwater Quality Protection, December, 2007 Edition," is hereby adopted by reference
and made a part hereof as if set forth at length herein.



Change Summary 2020.xlsx 

Document No. Title Revision Summarx 

Standard Details 

C-112 Pg 1 ENGINEERED UTILITY BORE 
Revision to Bore Profile Typ. Section to show City fiber conduit per 

C-200 revision. Revision to title block for PQ 1 desiQnation.

New Pg 2 detail to illustrate minimum separation requirements 
C-112 Pg 2 ENGINEERED UTILITY BORE between City wet utility and 'Bore/Dry Private Utility" per MAG 

Table 608-3. 
C-113 TRASH RECEPTACLE ENCLOSURE Revision to note 1 to correct spellina of enclosures 

C-200
STANDARD UTILITY LOCATIONS Revision to City fiber conduit (T.S.) location adding primary location 
ARTERIAL STREETS at R/W line and alternate location at 611 back-of-curb. 

C-203
MAJOR ARTERIAL STREET TYPICAL Revision to base course note no. 2A. "Thickness shall conform to 
CROSS SECTION COC Standard Detail C-239, 12" minimum. 

C-203
MAJOR ARTERIAL STREET TYPICAL Add note 7 pertaining to minimum 0.2% longitudinal grade 

CROSS SECTION consistent with other street cross section details. 
Removing note regarding waiving sidewalk on one side of the 

C-206
COLLECTOR STREET WITH MEDIAN roadway. Due to onsite ADA route requirements, the City will now 

TYPICAL CROSS SECTION require sidewalks adjacent to all public streets in order to better 

meet the intent of the ADA. 

Removing note regarding waiving sidewalk on one side of the 

C-208
INDUSTRIAL COLLECTOR STREET roadway. Due to onsite ADA route requirements, the City will now 

TYPICAL CROSS SECTION require sidewalks adjacent to all public streets in order to better 

meet the intent of the ADA. 

Removing note regarding waiving sidewalk on one side of the 

C-209
COLLECTOR BOULEVARD TYPICAL roadway. Due to onsite ADA route requirements, the City will now 

CROSS SECTION require sidewalks adjacent to all public streets in order to better 

meet the intent of the ADA. 

Removing note regarding waiving sidewalk on one side of the 

C-210
COLLECTOR STREET TYPICAL CROSS roadway. Due to onsite ADA route requirements, the City will now 

SECTION require sidewalks adjacent to all public streets in order to better 

meet the intent of the ADA. 

C-239
DEPTH OF BASE COURSE MAJOR & Revision to set 12" as min base thickness in chart. Revised note 2 

MINOR ARTERIAL to clarify under asphalt concrete surface. 

Major update to existing detail meeting current construction 
C-256 TYPICAL RAISED CROSSWALK standards. New title "TYPICAL MID-BLOCK RAISED 

CROSSWALK". 

C-262
MANHOLE / WATER VALVE BOX CURB NEW detail to realign curb & gutter where a manhole or water 

REALIGNMENT valve are in conflict 

Revision to note no. 1 allowing use of compression fittings on 1" 
C-301 Pg 1 WATER SERVICE INSTALLATION services. Revision to note no. 3 adding use only approved meter 

flanQe adaptor for reducinQ the service line. 

C-301 Pg 1 WATER SERVICE INSTALLATION Removing note at lower left restricting taps on 16" mains. 

C-308 WATER PIPE BEDDING DETAIL 
Updating notes to fully reference MAG Section 601 and City List of 

Approved Products. 

Added note 8 for Type 'B' adjustments pertaining to fiberglass 

C-401
MANHOLE CONCRETE COLLAR AND manholes with necks (typically around 3" tall above barrel) to 
ADJUSTMENT TYPES ensure no weight is on the neck. Revised note 6, adding "and 

concrete collar installation." 

C-402 SEWER PIPE BEDDING DETAIL 
Revisions to move ABC to 1' above pipe, updating notes to fully 

reference MAG Section 601 and City List of Approved Products. 

C-510
TEMPORARY RETENTION BASIN NEW detail for temporary retention basin grading and drainage, 

MULCH DRYWELL improving drainage and ongoing maintenance requirements. 

Page 1 of 2 



Change Summary 2020.xlsx 

Technical Design Manuals 

TOM #1&2 Water and Wastewater System Design 
Revision to page 13, first paragraph, removing "Water services 

mav not be installed on 16 inch water lines." 

Revisions to page 32, Section J. Private Reclaimed Water System 

TOM #1&2 Water and Wastewater System Design design considerations, removing medium volume users consistent 

with reclaimed water aqreement. 

TDM#3 Drainage Policies and Standards 
Revision to page 19, Section 6.11.1 Surface Basins, adding 

reference to NEW detail C-510 for temporary retention basins. 

Revisions to page 33 pertaining to traffic signal conduit and 

TDM#4 Street Design and Access Control interconnect conduit. Revise language to refer to TDM#5 for the 

interconnect conduit reauirements. 

Revision to page 30, Section 3.4, remove subgrade relative 

compaction paragraph in favor of MAG standards. Relative 

TOM #4 Street Design and Access Control 
compaction under MAG 301.3 requires 95% below pavement, curb 

& gutter, attached sidewalk, roadway shoulders, and other areas 

within R/W subject to vehicular traffic, but allows 85% below 

detached sidewalks not subject to vehicular traffic. 

Various revisions related to fiber, equipment and conduit 

requirements. Revisions to specify use of 2013 ADOT Standards 

TDM#5 Traffic Signal Design 
instead of current. ADOT recently changed their signal standards 

and City wishes to continue using 2013 style poles/arms for 

maintenance and interchangeability purposes. Minor updates to 

TS-02, TS-07 and TS-08. Revised conduit notes on TS-14. 

General cleanup including dept./division updates due to reog, title 

changes, phone number updates, pronouns, consistency, etc. 

More relevant revisions include: 1) Updating procedure to online 

application submittal, review, and permit approval (instead of paper 

TDM#7 Traffic Barricade Manual or email submittals). 2) Changing advance notice required from 1 

to 3 days for lane restrictions. 3) Changing advance notice required 

from 3 to 5 days for alley closures. 4) Changing min 36 inch 

accessible path width to 60 inch (or 48 inch with 60x60 inch 

passing spaces every 200 feet) meeting ADA. 

Specifications (Supplements to MAG) 

CONCRETE CURB, GUTTER, SIDEWALK, 
Remove Section 340.3 supplement in favor of MAG subgrade 

SECTION 340 SIDEWALK RAMPS, DRIVEWAY, AND 

ALLEY ENTRANCE 
compaction standards. Related to revision to TOM# 4, Section 3.4. 

SECTION 355 UTILITY POTHOLES-KEYHOLE METHOD 
NEW supplement specification to ensure 1/2-sack CLSM is used 

as backfill for pothole repairs (vs mechanical compaction). 

Revision to replace existing Bore/Plan Profile supplement language 

SECTION 608 HORIZONTAL DIRECTIONAL DRILLING providing more clarity where City and MAG differ in particular with 

the tables. 

Page 2 of 2 



ITEM  23 

City Council Memorandum      Development Services  Memo No. N/A
       

Date: February 8, 2021
To: Mayor  and Council
From: Development Services Department
Subject: Study Session Minutes of the January 6, 2021, Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting 

Attachments
Jan 6, 2021 P&Z SS Minutes 



















































ITEM  24 

City Council Memorandum      Development Services  Memo No. N/A
       

Date: February 8, 2021
To: Mayor  and Council
From: Development Services Department
Subject: Regular Meeting Minutes of the January 6, 2021, Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
Jan 6, 2021, P&Z Reg. Mtg Minutes 






























	Agenda
	1__January 2021 Council Minutes
	       ATT_January 25, 2021, Special Meeting Minutes
	       ATT_January 25, 2021, Study Session Meeting Minutes
	       ATT_January 28, 2021, Regular Meeting Minutes
	2__CCTMO Monopalm Macro Tower at PD Evidence Yard
	       ATT_Resolution No. 5434
	       ATT_Wireless License Agreement
	       ATT_Map
	       ATT_Site Photos
	Site photo titled
	Site photo 2 titled

	3__PHO Rubenstein site License Agreement
	       ATT_Resolution No. 5435
	       ATT_Wireless Agreement, Exhibit A to Resolution No. 5435
	       ATT_Map
	       ATT_Site Photo
	4__Resolution 5436 IGA Maricopa County Regional Emergency Action Coordinating Team REACT Integrated Corridor Management ICM Pilot Loop 101 Price Freeway
	       ATT_REACT Agreement 
	       ATT_Resolution No. 5436
	5__Ordinance 4962 ANX20-0002 annexation SWC Gilbert and Ocotillo
	       ATT_Ordinance No. 4962
	       ATT_Exhibit A, Annexation Map and Legal Description
	6__Resolution 5437 Ordinance 4960 PLH20-0033 PLH20-0034 Chandler La Paglia High School Seminary and Professional Offices
	       ATT_Resolution No. 5437
	       ATT_Ordinance No. 4960
	ORDINANCE NO.  4960

	       ATT_Vicinity Maps
	       ATT_Development Booklet, Attachment A
	7__Ordinance 4961 PLH20-0023 PLT20-0037 Pecos and McQueen Retail 
	       ATT_Vicinity Maps
	8__Final Adoption of Ordinance 4954 PLH20-0028 Hudson Crossings
	       ATT_Ordinance No. 4954
	ORDINANCE NO.  4954

	       ATT_Vicinity Maps
	       ATT_Airport Conflict
	       ATT_Development Booklet, Attachment A
	9__Final Adoption of Ordinance 4955 PLH20-0048 Valerio at Ocotillo and Residence Inn Expansion
	       ATT_Ordinance No. 4955
	ORDINANCE NO.  4955

	       ATT_Vicinity Maps
	       ATT_Development Booklet, Attachment A
	10__Ordinance 4959 PLH20-0049 1st Pet Veterinary Centers
	       ATT_Ordinance 4959 with Exhibit A
	ORDINANCE NO.  4959

	       ATT_Vicinity Maps
	       ATT_Narrative
	       ATT_Site Plan
	       ATT_Ordinance No. 4723
	11__Liquor License Series 10 Tawa Inc 99 Ranch Market 53
	       ATT_A-Map
	       ATT_B-Floor Plan
	12__WW1901.202 Airport Water Reclamation Facility Membrane Pre-Design Services Wilson Engineers
	       ATT_Location Map
	       ATT_Agreement
	13__Agreement PW1-936-4262 Metering Services Inc Small Water Meter Installation Repair and Consulting Services
	       ATT_Agreement
	14__Agreement PW0-890-4209 Amendment 1 Core and Main LP Water Meters
	       ATT_Amendment
	15__Construction Contract ST1909.401 Cactus Asphalt Cactus Transport Inc Alley Rehabilitation PM10 Dust Emissions Project
	       ATT_Location Map
	       ATT_Contract
	4 - Bid Submittal 3-31-2020 FEDERAL- rev 6-24.pdf
	DO NOT DOUBLE-SIDE ANY PART OF THE BID SUBMITTAL
	PROJECT NAME:   ALLEY REHABILITATION  PM10 DUST EMISSIONS
	BID BOND
	PROPOSAL ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
	THIS  BID  IS SUBMITTED BY:  ,

	ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE
	PRIVILEGE TAX LICENSE

	5 - DBB Contract 2-20-2020 rev 6-24.pdf
	2.1 CONTRACT DOCUMENTS
	2.2 In the event of any inconsistency, conflict, or ambiguity between or among the Contract Documents, the Contract Documents will take precedence as described in Section 14.1.4 of the General Conditions.
	2.3 DEFINITIONS
	3.1 GENERAL
	3.1.1 Scope of Work.  All terms and conditions are set forth in the Contract. Any terms and conditions and exceptions noted in the Contractor’s proposal or other documents do not apply unless agreed to in this Contract or an approved addendum.
	3.1.2 Contractor agrees this is a Unit Price Contract. Contractor agrees at its own cost and expense, to do all Work necessary required to fully, timely and properly complete the construction of the Project in strict accordance with the Contract Docum...
	3.1.3 Contractor must provide all of the labor and materials, and perform the Work in accordance with Section 4 of the General Conditions. Some, but not all, of the major components of the Construction Services and the corresponding subsections of Sec...
	3.1.4 At all times relevant to this Contract and performance of the Work, the Contactor must fully comply with all Laws, Regulations, or Legal Requirements applicable to City, the Project and the Contract, including, without limitation, those set fort...
	3.1.5 Contractor must perform the Work under this Contract using only those firms, team members and individuals designated by Contractor consistent with Contractor’s accepted Bid, or otherwise, approved by City pursuant to the General Conditions. No o...
	3.1.6 Contractor must comply with all terms and conditions of the General Conditions.
	3.1.7 In the event of a conflict between this Contract and the General Conditions or an exhibit hereto or appendix thereto, the terms of this Contract will control.
	3.1.8 Ownership of Work Product.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Contract, all Work Product prepared or otherwise created in connection with the performance of this Contract, including the Work, are to be and remain the property of C...

	3.2 CONTRACTOR’S PRE-CONTRACT AND PRE-WORK DELIVERABLES
	3.2.1 The Contractor must provide the Deliverables in accordance with Section 4.2 of the General Conditions.
	3.2.2 Any additional items which Contractor must deliver to City prior to commencing the Work on this Project, if any, include the following:

	3.3 PRE-CONSTRUCTION CONFERENCE
	3.4 PERFORMANCE OF THE WORK (INCLUDING FIELD MEASUREMENTS, SUBCONTRACTORS, AND SUPPLIERS)
	3.5 CONTROL OF THE PROJECT SITE
	3.6 PROJECT SAFETY
	3.7 MATERIALS QUALITY, SUBSTITUTIONS AND SHOP DRAWINGS
	3.8 PROJECT RECORD DOCUMENTS
	3.9 WARRANTY AND CORRECTION OF DEFECTIVE WORK
	4.1 City will have the responsibilities, and provide the information specified in, and subject to the conditions set forth in, Section 5 of the General Conditions.
	4.2 Additional services to be provided or responsibilities assumed, by City, if any, are listed below:
	4.3 Additional information to be provided by City, if any, is listed below:
	5.1 GENERAL
	5.1.1 The Contract Duration is 120 Calendar Days.
	5.1.2 The Contract Time will start with the Notice to Proceed (NTP) and end with Final Acceptance, as set forth in Article 5.4 below.
	5.1.3 The Contract Time will be as set forth in the Project Schedule. Contractor agrees that it will commence performance of the Work and complete the Project through Final Acceptance within the Contract Time.
	5.1.4 Time is of the essence of this Contract for the Project, and for each phase and designated Milestone thereof.
	5.1.5 Failure on the part of Contractor to adhere to the approved Project Schedule will be deemed a material breach and sufficient grounds for termination of this Contract by City.

	5.2 PROJECT SCHEDULE
	5.2.1 The Project Schedule will be updated and maintained throughout Contractor’s performance under this Contract in accordance with Section 6.2 of the General Conditions.
	5.2.2 Work must be completed to meet the following milestones after the Notice to Proceed:

	5.3 SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION
	5.4 FINAL ACCEPTANCE
	5.4.1 Final Acceptance will be obtained within the time period set forth in the Project Schedule.
	5.4.2 Final Acceptance will be issued pursuant to Section 6.5 of the General Conditions.

	5.5 LIQUIDATED DAMAGES
	5.5.1 Substantial Completion Liquidated Damages. Contractor acknowledges and agrees that if Contractor fails to obtain Substantial Completion of the Work within the Contract Time, City will sustain extensive damages and serious loss as a result of suc...
	5.5.2 Final Acceptance Liquidated Damages. For the same reasons set forth in Article 5.5.1 above, City and Contractor further agree that if Contractor fails to achieve Final Acceptance of the Work within the Contract Time, City will be entitled to ret...
	5.5.3 MAG Liquidated Damages. Liquidated damages provisions in MAG § 108.9 will apply.
	5.5.4 City may deduct liquidated damages described in this Article 5.5 from any unpaid amounts then or thereafter due Contractor under this Agreement. Any liquidated damages not so deducted from any unpaid amounts due Contractor will be payable to Cit...

	5.6 MUTUAL WAIVER OF CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES ONLY
	5.6.1 Contractor and City waive claims against each other for consequential damages arising out of or relating to this Contract. This mutual waiver includes.
	5.6.2 This mutual waiver is applicable, without limitation, to all consequential damages due to either party’s termination of this Contract. Nothing contained in this Article 5.6 will be deemed to preclude an award of liquidated damages, when applicab...
	5.6.3 Nothing herein will be deemed to constitute a waiver of any other remedy available to City in the event of Contractor’s default under this Contract prior to full performance of the Work including, as applicable, specific performance or completio...

	6.1 CONTRACT PRICE
	6.1.1 In exchange for Contractor’s full, timely, and acceptable performances and construction of the Work under this Contract, and subject to all of the terms of this Contract, City will pay Contractor the “Contract Price,” which is $     .
	6.1.2 The Contract Price is all-inclusive and specifically includes all fees, cost, insurance and bond premiums, and taxes of any type necessary to fully, properly and timely perform and construct Work.

	6.2 COSTS
	10.1 Contractor must provide insurance in accordance with Sections 11.1 through 11.3 of the General Conditions. Contractor must provide proof of such insurance and all required endorsements in forms acceptable to City prior to commencing any Work unde...
	10.2 Contractor must provide performance and payment bonds to City in Accordance with Section 11.4 of the General Conditions and A.R.S. § 34-222.
	10.3 Failure to provide proof of insurance and the required endorsements, or the required bonds, in forms acceptable to City, will be a material breach and grounds for termination for cause of this Contract.

	1-GEN CON 5-27-2020.pdf
	SECTION 1 -  SCOPE OF THESE GENERAL CONDITIONS
	SECTION 2 -  GENERAL DEFINITIONS
	SECTION 3 -  STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS AND DETAILS
	3.1 City operates under the latest revision of the MAG Specifications and MAG Standard Details as amended by City.  City’s current amendment to the MAG Specifications, part of the City’s Unified Development Manual, may be found in the downloaded from ...
	3.2 Copies of the MAG Specifications and MAG Standard Details are available at the Maricopa Association of Governments office, 302 N. 1st Avenue, Suite 300, Phoenix, Arizona.  They may also be downloaded from their website at: http://www.azmag.gov/New...
	3.3 The MAG Specifications and Standard Details and City’s amendments thereto are incorporated into the Contract by this reference.

	SECTION 4 -  CONT R ACT OR’S R ES PONS IBILIT IES FOR CONST RUCT ION SE RVIC ES
	4.1 GENERAL
	4.1.1 Contractor must construct the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents and as outlined in Exhibit A of the Contract to the satisfaction of City, exercising the degree of professional care, skill, diligence, quality and judgment that a prof...
	4.1.2 If Contractor observes errors, discrepancies or omissions in the Contract Documents, Contractor must promptly notify the Design Professional and City and request clarification. If Contractor, with the exercise of reasonable care, should have rec...
	4.1.3 Project Team and agents of each of them, testing agencies and governmental agencies with jurisdictional interests will be provided access to the Work at reasonable times for their observation, inspection and testing.  Contractor must provide pro...
	4.1.4 Contractor must comply with, and require all Subcontractors to comply with, the Arizona Contractors’ license laws, including all requirements with respect to being duly registered and licensed.
	4.1.5 Contractor must insure that all employees performing any Work for which Contractor is responsible have a legal right to live and work in the United States. In addition, all compensation of any such employee must meet all applicable requirements ...
	4.1.6 Contractor must comply with the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 (IRCA).  Contractor understands and acknowledges the applicability of the IRCA activities.  Contractor agrees to comply with the IRCA while performing their work and to p...
	4.1.7 Pursuant to MAG Specifications §§ 107.4, Contractor must report immediately any discovery of archeological ruins or artifacts.  Excavation must stop immediately so that City can decide on the pertinent steps to follow such discovery.
	4.1.8 All property owners that may be affected by the proposed construction activities must be notified of the scope, duration of the construction activities and possible interference with their day-to-day activities by Contractor prior to start of co...
	4.1.9 Access must be maintained to adjacent properties at all times during construction. Where property has more than one point of access, no more than one access will be restricted or closed at any one time. Access to adjacent private driveways will ...
	4.1.10 Contractor must furnish and erect construction signs in accordance with Project Specifications. The signs must be professionally prepared and subject to approval by City, must be maintained by Contractor for the duration of the project, and mus...
	4.1.11 The number of signs required, the size, shape, installation requirements and information to be included for construction signs is established on the detail sheet, provided, however, signs must be a minimum of 4 foot by 8 foot and must be instal...
	4.1.12 All required construction signs must be installed by Contractor within 7 Days of Notice to Proceed.
	4.1.13 The Work to be accomplished under these Contract Documents has been designed for City by a Design Professional retained by City for this purpose.  It is understood that normal construction Administration for the purpose of interpretation of the...
	4.1.14 Contractor must reimburse City for costs incurred by the Design Professional for additional services to the Project through no fault of City or the Design Professional including, but not limited to, the following conditions:
	a. Additional Site visits, investigations, inspections, design work or reports by the Design Professional which are required due to damages to existing facilities or completed Work caused by the Contractor in his performance, Contractor’s negligence, ...
	b. Design Professional construction phase services rendered on the project during the time the project remains incomplete after the Contract date of final completion will be charged to Contractor at a rate previously negotiated City; and
	c. All retesting required due to the failure of Contractor’s Work to meet the requirements of the Contract Documents will be at Contractor’s expense.  All standby and travel time by the City’s testing lab, the Design Professional or City due to Contra...

	4.1.15 City may withhold from any payment otherwise due to Contractor any amounts necessary to pay the Design Professional for such additional services as provided herein above.
	4.1.16 Contractor will not be required to bear additional costs incurred by City due to errors by the Design Professional.

	4.2  CONTRACTOR’S PRE-CONTRACT AND PRE-WORK DELIVERABLES
	4.2.1 Prior to award of the Contract, Contractor must execute Contract and deliver to City.  Failure to do so may delay Contract award.  Contractor must also provide to City its Contractor’s License classification and number and its Federal Tax I.D. n...
	4.2.2 Before beginning any Work under the Contract, Contract must be fully executed by City.
	4.2.3 After Contract award, City will issue to Contractor a Notice of Award.  At that time Contractor must deliver to City such bonds and certificates of insurance with endorsements in such amounts (and other evidence of insurance requested by City) r...
	4.2.4 As evidence of Workmen’s Compensation Insurance, Contractor must, upon request, provide a letter of certification from the Industrial Commission of Arizona that Contractor is insured by the State Compensation Fund or is an authorized self-insure...
	4.2.5 Within 10 Days of the date of Notice of Executed Contract issued by City, Contractor must submit to City for review and acceptance the following items:
	4.2.5.1 Comprehensive construction Project Schedule including a Critical Path Method (CPM) diagram schedule as described in Section 6.2.  Project Schedule must be in Microsoft Project standard file format.  Within 10 Days of receipt of City’s comments...
	4.2.5.2 Preliminary schedule of submittals and Shop Drawings.  Within 10 Days of receipt of City’s comments, Contractor must submit the corrected and completed schedule of Shop Drawings submissions for approval.  Contractor’s schedule of Shop Drawings...
	4.2.5.3 Schedule of Values in a form specified by City reflecting the subcontracts and other categories that will be used to submit Pay Applications for the Work. The total amount of the Schedule of Values must not be greater than the Contract Price. ...

	4.2.6 Video Recording Requirement. Prior to performing any Work, Contractor must document the existing conditions of the Site, all other areas where Work will occur and all adjacent areas that may be impacted by the Work via digital video format.  Con...
	4.2.7 Aerial Construction Photography.
	4.2.7.1 If Contract duration is greater than 90 calendar days, Contractor must engage a professional aerial photographer to photograph the Site prior to construction mobilization, at three-month intervals during construction, and following final inspe...
	4.2.7.2 All photography must be made with a single lens precision aerial mapping camera equipped with a “high-resolution, distortion-free type lens,” calibrated by the National Bureau of Standards.

	4.2.8 Government Approvals and Permits.
	4.2.8.1 Contractor must obtain all necessary permits for the Work and pay all applicable fees, unless otherwise noted on the Plans and in the Specifications. City permit fees will be paid internally by City. For bidding purposes, an allowance for all ...
	4.2.8.2 Copies of all permits and the associated notices must be provided to City prior to starting the permitted activity.


	4.3 PRE-CONSTRUCTION CONFERENCE
	4.3.1 Prior to the commencement of any Work, City will schedule a Pre-Construction Conference.
	4.3.2 The purpose of this Conference is to establish a working relationship between Contractor, the utility firms, and various City agencies. The agenda will include critical elements of the Work schedule, submittal schedule, cost breakdown of major l...
	4.3.3 Minimum attendance by Contractor at any mandatory meeting with City must be (1) Contractor’s Representative, who is authorized to execute and sign documents on behalf of the firm, (2) Contractor’s on-site Superintendent, and (3) Contractor’s Saf...

	4.4 PERFORMANCE OF THE WORK (INCLUDING FIELD MEASUREMENTS, SUBCONTRACTORS, AND SUPPLIERS)
	4.4.1 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents to be the responsibility of City or a separate Contractor, Contractor must provide through itself or Subcontractors the necessary supervision, labor, inspection, testing, start-up, material, eq...
	4.4.2 Contractor must perform all construction activities efficiently and with the requisite expertise, skill and competence to satisfy the requirements of the Contract Documents. Contractor must at all times exercise complete and exclusive control ov...
	4.4.3 Contractor’s Superintendent must be present at the Site at all times that material Work under this Contract is taking place. Contractor’s Superintendent or designee must be present at the Site at all times any other Work under this Contract is t...
	4.4.4 All elements of the Work must be under the direct supervision of a foreman or his designated representative on the Site who must have the authority to take actions required to properly carry out that particular element of the Work.
	4.4.5 Working Hours.  Except in connection with the safety or protection of persons or the Work or property at the Site or adjacent thereto, and except as otherwise indicated, all Work at the Site must be performed during regular working hours, and Co...
	4.4.6 Where the Contract Documents require that a particular product be installed or applied by an applicator approved by the manufacturer, it is Contractor’s responsibility to ensure the Subcontractor employed for such work is approved by the manufac...
	4.4.7 Before starting the Work, Contractor must carefully study and compare the various Plans, Drawings, other Contract Documents, and Specifications relative to that portion of the Work, as well as the information furnished by City, must take field m...
	4.4.8 Before ordering materials or doing Work, Contractor and each Subcontractor must verify measurements at the Site and will be responsible for the correctness of such measurements. No extra charge or compensation will be allowed because of differen...
	4.4.9 Ground Level Construction Photography.
	4.4.9.1 The Contractor must furnish progress photographs of the project.  The photographer selected by the Contractor must be approved by the City and must be either a commercial photographer or an individual experienced and equipped for such photogra...
	4.4.9.2 The Contractor must deliver to City all photographs taken during that period with each application for payment.  If the current photographs do not accompany the application, the application will not be reviewed and will be returned to the Cont...
	4.4.9.3 Photographs must be identified by use of typewritten labels affixed to the back of the photograph.  The label must provide a description of the view, the direction from which the photograph was taken, the name of the project, City’s project nu...
	4.4.9.4 Photographs must be taken during the construction period and must be of aesthetic composition and depict the progress of the Work from the beginning of construction through and including the finished product.  City may vary the specified frequ...

	4.4.10 Underground Facilities.
	4.4.10.1 The existence and number of facilities as shown on the Plans are estimated from information furnished by the particular utility.  Contractor is responsible for field verification and location of all utilities prior to the start of constructio...
	4.4.10.2 Contractor is responsible for all coordination with utility companies.  The provisions of Sections 105.4, 105.6, 107.11 and 109.8.1 of the MAG Uniform Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction strictly apply and no additional comp...

	4.4.11 Relocation of Existing Water Meters.  When a service line has been extended and a line setter installed in a meter box, City forces will re-install meter.  No compression fittings will be utilized.
	4.4.12 Water Turn-On or Turn-Off.
	4.4.12.1 Contractor must coordinate all water line turn-ons and turn-offs through the City.  Application must be made to the Municipal Utility Division and Contractor must pay the established charges.  The City will close existing valves, but will not...
	4.4.12.2 Contractor must notify all customers affected by the turn-off not less than 48 hours in advance.  Notification must be in writing, must give the reason for the turn-off and must give the estimated time and duration that water service will be ...
	4.4.12.3 No direct payment will be made to Contractor for turn-ons or turn-offs. Costs associated therewith will be included in other items for which direct payment is made.

	4.4.13 Tests and Inspections.
	4.4.13.1 Contractor must give City timely (at a minimum, twenty-four hours) notice of readiness of the Work for all required inspections, tests or approvals.  Contractor must give timely notice to City in advance of backfilling or otherwise covering a...
	4.4.13.2 If any law, ordinance, rule, regulation, code, or orders of any public body having jurisdiction requires any Work (or part thereof) to be inspected, tested or approved, Contractor (unless another party is specified in the Contract Documents) ...
	4.4.13.3 All inspections, tests or approvals other than those required by law, ordinance, rule, regulation, code or order of any public body having jurisdiction must be performed by organizations acceptable to City and by the Design Professional if so...
	4.4.13.4 Neither observations by City, the Design Professional nor inspections, tests or approvals by others will relieve Contractor from their obligations to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.

	4.4.14 Uncovering Work.  If any Work that is to be observed, inspected, tested or approved is covered without written concurrence of City, it must, if requested by City be uncovered for observation. Unless Contractor has given City timely notice of Co...
	4.4.15 In all cases of interconnection of its Work with existing or other Work, Contractor must verify at the Site all dimensions relating to such existing or other Work.  Any errors due to Contractor’s failure to so verify all such grades, elevations...
	4.4.16 Contractor must establish and maintain all construction grades, lines, levels, and benchmarks, and will be responsible for accuracy and protection of same. This Work must be performed or supervised by a licensed civil engineer or surveyor in th...
	4.4.17 Contractor must photograph all buried piping of greater than four (4) inches in diameter prior to backfill.
	4.4.18 Contractor is responsible for the proper performance of the work of Subcontractors and any acts and omissions in connection with such performance. Nothing in the Contract Documents is intended or deemed to create any legal or contractual relati...
	4.4.19 Contractor must coordinate the activities of all Subcontractors. Contractor must coordinate performance of the Work with City’s Public Works & Utilities Department and other departments or agencies within City. The Design Professional and other...
	4.4.20 Contractor will not substitute or change any Subcontractor or Supplier without the prior written approval of City. Any substitute or replacement Subcontractor or Supplier must be required to meet the same qualifications and selection criteria a...
	4.4.21 Contractor must not change or replace any members of its Project team, including Contractor’s Representative, Project Manager, or Superintendent, without an explanation for the change being given to City, and receiving prior written approval of...
	4.4.22 Subcontractors whose scope of work has a value greater than 15% of the total Contract Price are required to furnish performance and payment bonds to Contractor, unless otherwise approved in writing by City.
	4.4.23 Contractor must comply with MAG Specification § 108.2 (E) unless otherwise specified in Contract Documents.

	4.5 CONTROL OF THE PROJECT SITE
	4.5.1 Throughout all phases of construction, including suspension of Work, Contractor must keep the Site reasonably free from debris, trash and construction wastes to permit Contractor to perform its construction services efficiently, safely and witho...
	4.5.2 Contractor must take whatever steps, procedures or means necessary to prevent dust nuisance due to construction operations. The dust control measures must be maintained at all times to the satisfaction of City and in accordance with the requirem...
	4.5.3 Contractor must maintain Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) and American National Standards Institute (ANSI) accessibility requirements during construction activities, including without limitation compliance with the 2010 regulations governin...
	4.5.4 Only materials and equipment used directly in the Work will be brought to and stored on the Site by Contractor. When equipment is no longer required for Work, it must be removed promptly from the Site. Protection of construction materials and eq...
	4.5.5 Contractor agrees all persons working on the Site must act at all times in the best interest of the Project and will comply with all applicable rules and regulations reasonably set forth by City related to the Site. Notwithstanding the foregoing...
	4.5.6 Contractor will be responsible to City for the acts and omissions of Contractor’s employees, Subcontractors and their agents and employees, and any other person performing any of the Work under a Contract with Contractor, or claiming by, through...
	4.5.7 City may conduct criminal, drive history, and all other requested background checks of Contractor and Subcontractor personnel performing Work or who have access to City’s information, data, or facilities in accordance with City’s current backgro...
	4.5.8 City will have a final authority, based upon security reasons: (i) to determine when security clearance of Contractor’s and Subcontractor’s personnel is required; (ii) to determine the nature of the security clearance, up to and including finger...
	4.5.9 If City objects to any personnel for any reasonable cause, then Contractor must, upon notice from City, remove such individual from the Project.

	4.6 PROJECT SAFETY
	4.6.1 The Project and all Work performed in relation thereto is governed by applicable provisions of the federal laws, including but not limited to, the latest amendments of the following:
	a. Williams-Steiger Occupational Safety & Health Act of 1970, Public Law, 91-596.
	b. Part 1910 and Part 1926 – Occupational Safety and Health Standards, Chapter XVII of Title 29, Code of Federal Regulations.
	c. Part 1518 – Safety and Health Regulations for Construction, Chapter XIII of Title 29, Code of Federal Regulations.

	4.6.2 Contractor is responsible for safety of the job Site for employees of Contractor as well as for members of the general public and others who may drive or walk through or be at the Site.
	4.6.3 Contractor recognizes the importance of performing the Work in a safe manner so as to prevent damage, injury or loss to: (i) all individuals at the Site, whether working or visiting; (ii) the Work, including materials and equipment incorporated ...
	4.6.4 Contractor assumes responsibility for implementing and monitoring all safety precautions and programs related to the performance of the Work.
	4.6.5 Contractor must provide a “competent person’ as required by O.S.H.A regulations. The “competent person” must be identified at the Pre-Construction Conference with City advised in writing of any changes.
	4.6.6 The “competent person” must make routine daily inspections of the Site and must hold weekly safety meetings with Contractor’s personnel, Subcontractors and others as applicable.
	4.6.7 Contractor and Subcontractors must comply with all legal and regulatory requirements relating to safety, as well as any City specific safety requirements set forth in the Contract Documents, provided that such City-specific requirements do not v...
	4.6.8 Contractor will immediately report in writing any safety-related injury, loss, damage or accident arising from the Work to Project Manager and, to the extent mandated by Legal Requirements, to all government or quasi-government authorities havin...
	4.6.9 Contractor’s responsibility for safety under this Section is not intended in any way to relieve Subcontractors and Sub-Subcontractors of their own contractual and legal obligations and responsibility for (i) complying with all Legal Requirements...
	4.6.10 As between City and Contractor, Contractor is responsible to City for any and all the safety issues relating to the Work on the Project. Contractor must administer and manage the safety program. This will include, but not necessarily be limited...
	4.6.11 Nothing in this agreement will relieve Contractor of his responsibility to maintain traffic, structures, etc., as noted on the Plans, Specifications, and Project Specific Conditions. Contractor is responsible to provide all necessary shoring, b...

	4.7 MATERIALS QUALITY, SUBSTITUTIONS, AND SHOP DRAWINGS
	4.7.1 Quality Control and Quality Assurance Testing.
	4.7.1.1 All construction materials to be used or incorporated in the Project are subject to inspection, Quality Control & Quality Assurance Testing, and approval or rejection by City. Any material rejected by City must be removed immediately and repla...
	4.7.1.2 The Contractor must establish, provide, and maintain an effective Quality Control Testing Program (QCTP). The Contractor must develop his own program or procure the services of a consultant. In either case, the party performing the tests must ...
	4.7.1.3 The Contractor must submit a written QCTP to the City as a required submittal. The Contractor must not begin Work until the Quality Control Program has been reviewed and accepted by the City. Resumes of all personnel that will be associated di...
	4.7.1.4 The QCTP must include, but not be limited to, on-site/field and laboratory testing of all material delivered to the Site and any existing materials or conditions pertinent to the project.
	4.7.1.5 All testing must be under the direction of a Professional Engineer registered in the State of Arizona, knowledgeable in Materials Testing. All “Test Report” forms must be stamped by said Engineer.
	4.7.1.6 The written QCTP will set forth the responsibilities of the engineer, project manager, supervisory personnel and each technician assigned to this project. Substitutions or replacement of personnel must require prior written approval by the Cit...
	4.7.1.7 The Contractor must establish a system to record and report all material test results.  The daily test reports must include, but not be limited to:
	a. Test designation;
	b. Date of test;
	c. Name of tester;
	d. Location of test/sample (station and offset);
	e. Product suppliers and product codes (as applicable);
	f. Depth/elevation of test/sample;
	g. Test result;
	h. Control requirement(s);
	i. Cause of rejection (if applicable);
	j. Results of retests (if applicable); and
	k. Remedial action (if applicable).

	4.7.1.8 The Contractor must submit test results to the designated City representative.
	4.7.1.9 The Contractor must also submit a weekly report to the City summarizing the testing and construction activities completed by emailing the report to the email addresses noted above. All weekly reports must be submitted simultaneously to the Con...
	4.7.1.10 The City will maintain a copy of the Project test results and weekly reports in the Project file. In cases where quality control activities do not comply with the contract provisions, the City may:
	a. Order the Contractor to replace ineffective or unqualified quality control personnel.
	b. Order the Contractor to stop operations until appropriate corrective action is taken.

	4.7.1.11 Although minimum testing requirements are specified herein, the Contractor bears full responsibility for the quality of the materials and their installation and may elect to perform additional testing beyond the requirements set forth herein ...
	4.7.1.12 The Quality Control requirements contained in this Section are in addition to and separate from Quality Assurance Testing, which will be performed by the City of Chandler or its representative. If the Quality Assurance test results are not in...
	4.7.1.13 Except as otherwise noted within this Section, Work or materials required by this Section are non- pay items. Per MAG Section 101, a non-pay item is an item of Work for which no separate payment will be made, the cost of which is to be includ...

	4.7.2 Trade Names and Substitutions.
	4.7.2.1 Substitutions prior to bid will only be considered if in compliance with Arizona Revised Statute § 34-104.
	4.7.2.2 Contractor, if requested by City, must submit Samples or any additional information that may be necessary to evaluate the acceptability of the substitution.
	4.7.2.3 City will make the final decision and will notify Contractor in writing as to whether the substitution has been accepted or rejected.
	4.7.2.4 If City does not respond within 15 working days, Contractor must continue to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents and the substitution will be considered rejected.

	4.7.3 Shop Drawings.
	4.7.3.1 Contractor must prepare and submit Shop Drawings which show details of all Work to insure proper installation of the Work using those materials and equipment specified under the approved Plans and Specifications.
	4.7.3.2 Contractor must submit a schedule of Shop Drawing submissions, which avoids bulk submissions to the extent reasonably possible, with the Project Schedule for City approval.  The schedule of Shop Drawing submissions must include all of the item...
	4.7.3.3 Shop Drawings must be numbered consecutively for each Specification section and must accurately and distinctly present the following:
	a. All working and erection dimensions.
	b. Arrangements and sectional views.
	c. Necessary details, including complete information for making connections between work under this Contract and work under other Contracts.
	d. Kinds of materials and finishes.
	e. Parts list and description thereof.

	4.7.3.4 Each Drawing or page must include:
	a. Project Name, City of Chandler Project Number and descriptions.
	b. Submittal date and space for revision dates.
	c. Identification of equipment, product or material.
	d. Name of Contractor and Subcontractor.
	e. Name of Supplier and Manufacturer.
	f. Relation to adjacent structure of material.
	g. Physical dimensions clearly identified.
	h. ASTM and Federal Specifications references.
	i. Identification of and justification for deviations from the Contract Documents.
	j. Contractor’s stamp, initialed or signed, dated and certifying the review of submittal, certification of field measurements and compliance with Contract.
	k. Location at which the equipment or materials are to be installed.

	4.7.3.5 Location will mean both physical location and location relative to other connected or attached material. City will return unchecked any submittal, which does not contain complete data on the Work and full information on related matters.
	4.7.3.6 Stock or standard drawings will not be accepted for review unless full identification and supplementary information is shown thereon in ink or typewritten form.
	4.7.3.7 Contractor must schedule, prepare and submit all Shop Drawings in accordance with a time-table that will allow its suppliers and manufacturers sufficient time to fabricate, manufacture, inspect, test and deliver their respective products to th...
	4.7.3.8 If the Shop Drawings show departures from the Contract requirements, Contractor must make specific mention thereof in the Letter of Transmittal; otherwise review of such submittals by City will not constitute review of the departure. Review of...
	4.7.3.9 The review of Shop Drawings will be general and will not relieve Contractor of responsibility for the accuracy of such Drawings, nor for the proper fitting and construction of the Work, nor for the furnishing of materials or Work required by t...
	4.7.3.10 The procedure in seeking review of the Shop Drawings will be as follows:
	a. Contractor must submit complete sets of Shop Drawings and other descriptive data as specified in this Section.
	b. After Contractor’s submittal or resubmittal of Shop Drawings, if Contractor has submitted Shop Drawings in accordance with the City-approved submittal schedule, or upon resubmission, City will be provided with three (3) calendar weeks for review. S...

	4.7.3.11 Contractor will be responsible for all extra costs incurred by City caused by Contractor’s failure to comply with the procedure outline above.

	4.7.4 Long Lead Time Items. Contractor must submit Shop Drawings, as required by the Engineer, on all long lead items to be furnished and installed as part of the project within 10 Days after the date of Notice of Executed Contract issued by City In a...
	4.7.5 Construction Water. If Contractor uses water from City’s water system for construction water, Contractor must obtain a fire hydrant meter from City of Chandler Utility Services (480-782-2280) and all construction water must be obtained through t...

	4.8 PROJECT RECORD DOCUMENTS
	4.8.1 During the construction period, Contractor must maintain at the jobsite a full-size set of prints of the Construction Document Drawings and Shop Drawings for Project Record Document purposes.
	4.8.2 Contractor must mark these Drawings to indicate the actual installation where the installation varies from the original Construction Documents. Contractor must give particular attention to information on elements that will be concealed, which wo...
	a. Dimensional changes to the Drawings.
	b. Revisions to details shown on Drawings.
	c. Locations and depths of underground utilities.
	d. Revisions to routing of piping and conduits.
	e. Actual equipment locations.
	f. Changes made by Change Order or Addendum.
	g. Details not on original Contract Drawings.

	4.8.3 Contractor must mark completely and accurately Project Record Drawing sets of Construction Documents.
	4.8.4 Contractor must mark Project Record Drawings sets with red erasable colored pencil.
	4.8.5 Contractor must note Request for Information (RFI) Numbers and Change Order numbers, etc., as required to identify the source of the change to the Construction Documents.
	4.8.6 Contractor must submit Project Record Drawing sets and Shop Drawings to City or its representative for review and comment.
	4.8.7 Upon receipt of the reviewed Project Record Drawings from City, Contractor must correct any deficiencies and omissions to the Drawings and submit the final original of the Project Record Drawings to City prior to Final Payment.
	4.8.8 Project Manager will review the Project Record Drawings monthly prior to the date established for the Payment Request and will be the sole judge of acceptance of these Drawings.

	4.9 WARRANTY AND CORRECTION OF DEFECTIVE WORK
	4.9.1 Contractor warrants to City that the construction, including all materials and equipment furnished as part of the Work, will be new unless otherwise specified in the Contract Documents, of good quality, and free of defects in materials and workm...
	4.9.2 City May Stop the Work.  If the Work is defective, or Contractor fails to supply sufficient skilled workmen or suitable materials or equipment, City may order Contractor to stop the Work without cost to City, or any portion thereof, until the ca...
	4.9.3 Correction or Removal of Defective Work.
	4.9.3.1 If required by City, Contractor must promptly, without cost to City and as specified by City, either correct any defective Work, whether or not fabricated, installed or completed, or, if the Work has been rejected by City, remove it from the S...
	4.9.3.2 Upon failure on the part of the Contractor to comply within a reasonably prompt time with any written order of City to correct or remove defective Work, City has authority to cause nonconforming materials or rejected Work to be remedied, remov...

	4.9.4 City May Correct Defective Work.  If Contractor fails within a reasonable time after written notice of City to proceed to correct defective Work or to remove and replace rejected Work as required by City or if Contractor fails to perform the Wor...
	4.9.5 Correction or Removal of Unauthorized Work.
	4.9.5.1 Any Work done beyond the lines and grades shown on the Drawings or established by the Design Professional or any changes in, additions to, or deductions from the Work done without written authority will be considered as unauthorized and will n...
	4.9.5.2 Upon failure on the part of the Contractor to comply promptly with any order of the City, City will have authority to cause unauthorized Work to be remedied, removed, or replaced at the Contractor's expense and to deduct the costs from any mon...

	4.9.6 Correction Period - One Year Guarantee.
	4.9.6.1 If, within one year after the date of Final Acceptance, or such longer period of time as may be prescribed by law or by the terms of any applicable special guarantee required by the Contract Documents, or by any specific provision of the Contr...
	4.9.6.2 If, in the opinion of the City, defective Work creates a dangerous condition or requires immediate correction or attention to prevent further loss to the City or to prevent interruption of operation of the City, the City will attempt to give t...
	4.9.6.3 This Section does not in any way limit the guarantee on any items for which a longer guarantee is specified or on any items for which a manufacturer or supplier gives a guarantee for a longer period. The Contractor agrees to act as co-guaranto...

	4.9.7 Acceptance of Defective Work.
	4.9.7.1 If, instead of requiring correction or removal and replacement of defective Work, City may accept Work when in the best interest of the City to do so with appropriate monetary credit from Contractor.  If any such acceptance occurs prior to fin...
	4.9.7.2 Alternatively, City may require Contractor to furnish at Contractor's expense, a special performance guarantee or other surety prior to acceptance of defective work.

	4.9.8 The Warranty period begins on the Final Acceptance date noted in the Certificate of Completion, irrespective of early completion by some Subcontractors of their work.
	4.9.9 Contractor’s warranty obligation must be in accordance with MAG Specifications.
	4.9.10 Nothing in the warranties contained  in  the  Contract  Documents are intended to limit  any manufacturer’s warranty which provides City with greater warranty rights than set forth in this Section or the Contract Documents. Contractor must prov...
	4.9.11 Contractor agrees that it will be responsible to manage and administer the correction of any Work that is not in conformance with the Contract Documents during the warranty periods set forth in this Section, or during any longer periods to the ...
	4.9.12 When notified of a warranty issue, Contractor must respond in writing within 48-hours and must perform warranty Work as soon as material for said repairs are available (as judged solely by City), and in any event Contractor must, take immediate...
	4.9.13 The time periods referenced in this Section apply only to Contractor’s obligation to correct nonconforming Work and is not intended to constitute a period of limitations for any other rights or remedies that City may have regarding Contractor’s...
	4.9.14 Without limiting the foregoing or anything in these General Conditions or the Contract to the contrary, Contractor must obtain and provide to City all warranties for any portion of the Project offered by the manufacturer, installer or provider ...
	4.9.15 Contractor’s warranty excludes damages or defects caused by abuse, alterations to the Work not executed by or through Contractor, improper or insufficient maintenance, improper operation, or normal wear and tear and normal usage.
	4.9.16 In the event of any noncompliance with this entire Section 4, City may require Contractor to stop or suspend the Work in whole or in part.


	SECTION 5 -  CITY RESPONSIBILITIES
	5.1 CITY PROJECT MANAGER AND INSPECTORS
	5.1.1 Project Manager is responsible for providing City-supplied information and approvals in a timely manner to assist Contractor to fulfill its obligations under the Contract Documents.
	5.1.2 Project Manager will also provide Contractor with prompt notice when it observes any failure on the part of Contractor to fulfill its contractual obligations, including any default or defect in the Project or non-conformance with the Drawings an...
	5.1.3 City may utilize Field Inspectors to assist Project Manager during construction in observing performance of Contractor. City’s use of Inspectors is for the purpose of assisting Project Manager.
	5.1.4 The Inspectors are authorized to inspect all Work and materials furnished. Such inspections may extend to all or part of the Work and to preparation, fabrication or manufacture of the materials to be used.  The Inspectors have the authority to i...
	5.1.5 The Inspectors have the authority to reject work or materials until any questions at issue can be decided by Project Manager.
	5.1.6 The use of Inspectors by City will not make City responsible for or give City control over construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures or for safety precautions or programs or responsibility for Contractor’s failure to perfo...

	5.2 DESIGN PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
	5.3  CIT Y ’S SEP AR AT E CONT R ACT ORS
	5.4 PERMIT REVIEW AND INSPECTIONS
	5.4.1 If requested by Contractor, Project Manager will provide assistance and guidance in obtaining necessary reviews, permits and inspections.
	5.4.2 The regulating agencies of City, such as Development and Sustainability, Fire and Planning Departments, enforce legal requirements. The enforcement activities of City are independent and separate from this Agreement.

	5.5 PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS TO THE CONTRACTOR.

	SECTION 6 -  CONTRACT TIME
	6.1 CONTRACT TIME
	6.1.1 The Contract Time will start with the Notice to Proceed (“NTP”) and end with Final Acceptance.
	6.1.2 Beginning on the date of the NTP, Contractor must begin to fulfill Contractor’s obligations under the Contract. Contractor’s obligations include providing City and other agencies with any submittals required by the Project Specific Special Provi...
	6.1.3 The Contract Time will be as set forth in the Project Schedule. Contractor agrees that it will commence performance of the Work and complete the Project through both Substantial Completion and Final Acceptance within the Contract Time.
	6.1.4 Time is of the essence of this Contract, for the Project, for the Work, and for each phase and designated Milestone thereof.
	6.1.5 Failure of Contractor to perform any covenant or condition contained in the Contract Documents within the time periods specified herein, will constitute a material breach of this Contract entitling City to terminate the Contract unless Contracto...
	6.1.6 Failure of City to insist upon the performance of any covenant or condition within the time periods specified herein, will not constitute a waiver of Contractor’s duty to perform every other covenant or condition within the designated periods, u...
	6.1.7 City’s agreement to waive a specific time provision or to extend the time for performance will not constitute a waiver of any other time provisions contained in the Contract Documents.  Failure of Contractor to complete performance promptly with...

	6.2 PROJECT SCHEDULE
	6.2.1 The Project Schedule must be in Microsoft Project standard file format, must be updated and maintained throughout the Contract Time, and must contain the following:
	6.2.1.1 Detailed representation of all activities for the project, both on-site construction and major procurement.  All significant activities together with the resource loading requirements for each and all items appearing on the schedule of values ...
	6.2.1.2 Dependencies between activities must be indicated so that it may establish as to the effect the progress of any one activity would have on other activities and on the Schedule.
	6.2.1.3 Activities for submission, review, and approval of all required submittals.
	6.2.1.4 An amount of time will be established prior to the final completion date for “punch list and cleanup”.  No other activities will be scheduled during this period.  Punch list and cleanup must be shown on the Project Schedule and must be entirel...

	6.2.2 Within 10 Days of receipt of City’s comments, Contractor must make all required corrections, adjustments, and additions to complete the Project Schedule and resubmit to City for review.  City’s review of and response to the Project Schedule is f...
	6.2.3 The Project Schedule must show milestones, including milestones for City-furnished information, and must include activities for City-furnished material and construction by other contractors when those activities are interrelated with Contractor ...
	6.2.4 The Project Schedule must be revised as required by conditions and progress of the Work, but such revisions do not relieve Contractor of its obligations to complete the Work within the Contract Time, as adjusted in accordance with the Contract D...
	6.2.5 For all items of materials and equipment that are critical or may require long lead times to acquire, the Project Schedule must show dates for submission, review and approval of submittals, ordering, and delivery.
	6.2.6 An updated Project Schedule must be submitted monthly to City as part of the Payment Request. The monthly submittal must include one full size plot of the entire schedule and one electronic copy containing the schedule in Microsoft Project stand...
	6.2.7 Contractor must provide City with a monthly status report with each Project Schedule detailing the progress of the Work, including: (i) if the Work is proceeding according to schedule, (ii) any discrepancies, conflicts, or ambiguities found to e...
	6.2.8 With each Project Schedule submittal, Contractor must include a transmittal letter including the following:
	a. Description of problem tasks, referenced to field instructions or requests for information (RFI’s), as appropriate.
	b. Current and anticipated delays including:
	(i) Cause of the delay.
	(ii) Corrective action and schedule adjustments to correct the delay.
	(iii) Known or potential impacts and their delay on other activities, milestones, and their impact on the Substantial Completion and Final Acceptance dates.
	(iv) Changes in construction sequence.

	c. Pending items and status thereof including but not limited to:
	(i) Time Extension requests;
	(ii) Substantial Completion date status;
	(iii) Final Acceptance date status.

	d. If ahead of schedule, the number of calendar Days ahead.
	e. If behind schedule, the number of calendar Days behind.
	f. Other Project or scheduling concerns.

	6.2.9 Critical Path Method (CPM).
	6.2.9.1 Unless otherwise specified in the Contract, the Project Schedule must include a Critical Path Method (CPM) diagram schedule showing the sequence of activities, the interdependence of each activity and identifies the Critical Path.
	6.2.9.2 The CPM diagram schedule must be in calendar Days and indicate duration, earliest and latest start and finish dates for all activities, and total Float Times for all activities except critical activities. The CPM diagram must be presented in a...
	6.2.9.3 The CPM diagram schedule must indicate all relationships between activities.
	6.2.9.4 The activities making the Project Schedule must contain sufficient detail to assure that adequate planning has been done for proper execution of the Work and such that it provides an appropriate basis for monitoring and evaluation the progress...
	6.2.9.5 The CPM diagram schedule must be based upon activities, which coincide with the Schedule of Values.
	6.2.9.6 The CPM diagram schedule must show all submittals associated with each work activity and the review time for each submittal.

	6.2.10 Float Time.
	6.2.10.1 The total Float Time within the overall schedule is for the exclusive use of City, but City may approve Contractor’s use of Float as needed to meet contract Milestones and the Project completion date.
	6.2.10.2 Contractor will not be allowed to sequence, hide, or reallocate Float Time through such strategies, as extending activity duration estimates to consume available Float, using preferential logic, or using extensive crew/resource sequencing, te...

	6.2.11 City-Caused Delays.  City-caused delays on the Project, if any, may be offset by City-caused time savings (i.e., Critical Path submittals returned in less time than allowed by the Contract, approval of substitution requests and credit changes w...
	6.2.12 Rain-Related Delays.  Contractor is required, in preparing the Project Schedule to take into account all relevant weather conditions, including normal rainfall and distribution. No additional compensation will be given for any rain-related dela...
	6.2.13 City’s “Policy Statement for Calculating Delays and Damages,” Appendix 1 to these General Conditions, will apply to all claims of delay and delay damages.
	6.2.14 Force Majeure.  If Contractor is delayed or prevented from the performance of any Work required under this Contract by reason of acts of God or other causes beyond the control and without fault of Contractor (financial inability excepted), perf...

	6.3 SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION
	6.3.1 When Contractor considers that the Work, phase or a portion thereof, which City agrees in writing to accept separately, is substantially complete, City will prepare and submit to Contractor a comprehensive Punch List of items to be completed or ...
	6.3.2 Upon receipt of Contractor’s Punch List, Project Manager will make an inspection to determine whether the Work or designated portion thereof is substantially complete. Project Manager may, at Project Manager’s sole option, be assisted in such in...
	6.3.3 Certificate of Substantial Completion.
	6.3.3.1 The Project Manager will not issue a Certificate of Substantial Completion unless and until the Work (or separable units or Phases as provided in the Contract Documents) is essentially and satisfactorily complete in accordance with the Contrac...
	6.3.3.2 If requested by City, Contractor must complete and turn-over to City the Project on a phased basis. Each phase will have a separate inspection by the Project Manager, a Punch List generated, and then an inspection by City with final approval a...


	6.4 PARTIAL UTILIZATION
	6.4.1 City at City’s option may use and occupy any substantially completed parts of the Work which has specifically been identified in the Contract Documents, or which City, the Design Professional and Contractor agree constitutes a separately functio...
	6.4.2 In lieu of the issuance of a Certificate of Substantial Completion as to part of the Work, City may take over operation of a facility constituting part of the Work whether or not it is substantially complete if such facility is functionally and ...
	6.4.3 Substantial Completion of or City's beneficial occupancy of a part of the Project will not alter the fact that the one-year warranty for the whole Project starts at the date of Final Completion of the whole Project.

	6.5 FINAL ACCEPTANCE
	6.5.1 Unless otherwise expressly agreed to in writing by City, Final Acceptance must be obtained by no later than 30 Days after the date of Substantial Completion. Failure to timely obtain Final Acceptance will be a material breach of the Contract.
	6.5.2 Upon receipt of written notice that the Work is ready for final inspection and acceptance, City and Contractor will jointly inspect to verify that the remaining items of Work have been completed. There will be no partial acceptance. Final Accept...
	6.5.3 Final Payment will not be due, owing, or paid by City until Final Acceptance is issued.

	6.6 CONTINUATION OF WORK
	6.6.1 Permitting Contractor to continue and finish the Work or any part of it after the time fixed for its completion (whether milestone, phase, Substantial Completion or Final Acceptance) or after the date to which the time fixed for any completion m...
	6.6.2 Furthermore, the timely completion of the Work being of the utmost importance under this Contract, notwithstanding the existence of one or more disputes between the parties concerning the scope of the Work, the Project Schedule, Contract Time, p...


	SECTION 7 -  CONTRACT PRICE
	7.1 UNIT PRICE CONTRACTS
	7.1.1 The Contract Price for all Unit Price Contracts will be the amount set forth in the Contract or Change Order multiplied by the verified quantity provided.
	7.1.2 Measurements of quantities to determine the total Contract Price must be in accordance with MAG Specification §§ 109.1 and 109.2.
	7.1.3 The Unit Price may only be changed as set forth in Section 9 below.

	7.2 CHANGE ORDERS
	7.2.1 Unit Price Change Orders.  The Change Order Price for all Unit Price Change Orders will be the amount set forth in the Change Order multiplied by the verified quantity provided.
	7.2.2 Measurements of quantities to determine the total Change Order Price must be in accordance with MAG Specifications §§ 109.1 and 109.2.
	7.2.3 The Unit Price may only be changed as set forth in Section 9 below.
	7.2.4 MAG Specification § 109.4.1 is modified as follows: Before § 109.4.1, the following is added:  Any deduction or increase in the Contract Price must be supported by a signed, written Change Order fully executed by City, and supported by such back...

	7.3 SALES TAX

	SECTION 8 -  PAYMENT
	8.1 PAYMENT FOR CONSTRUCTION SERVICES
	8.1.1 Payment for the Work will be made in accordance with MAG Standard Specification § 109 as amended below.
	8.1.2 Contractor must submit to City for review a completed Contractor Payment Request signed by Contractor, covering the Work completed as of the date of the Request and accompanied by such supporting documentation as is required by the Contract Docu...
	8.1.3 The Contracting Agency will retain 10 percent of all estimates as a guarantee for complete performance of the Contract in accordance with Arizona Revised Statutes Section 34-221 or 34-607, unless the Contractor elects to deposit securities in ac...
	8.1.4 The payment process functions as follows: Prior to the payment cycle date, Contractor must send a draft Contractor Payment Request to Project Manager.  The Project Team will review the Request and agree upon any necessary adjustments.  Contracto...
	8.1.5 When construction of the Project is fifty percent (50%) completed, Contractor may request payment of one-half of the retention pursuant to A.R.S. § 34-609(B)(3), subject to all of City’s rights to withhold or offset payments, and other rights of...
	8.1.6 City reserves the right under A.R.S. § 34-609(B)(3) to reinstate the ten percent (10%) retention if City determines that satisfactory progress is not being made.
	8.1.7 Contractor’s Warranty of Title.
	8.1.7.1 Contractor warrants and guarantees that title to all Work, materials and equipment covered by any Contractor Payment Request, whether incorporated in the Project or not, will pass to City at the time of payment, free and clear of all liens, cl...
	8.1.7.2 No materials, supplies, or equipment for the Work under this Contract will be purchased subject to any chattel mortgage or under a conditional sale contract or other agreement by which an interest therein, or any part thereof, is retained by t...
	8.1.7.3 Nothing contained in this Section will defeat or impair the right of such persons furnishing materials or labor under any bond given by the Contractor for their protection, or any right under any law permitting such persons to look to funds du...


	8.2 PAYMENT UPON SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION
	8.2.1 No payment will be made upon Substantial Completion, except for a regularly-scheduled monthly progress payment, as allowed by Section 8.2.2.
	8.2.2 No further payments will be made to Contractor until Final Acceptance.

	8.3 FINAL PAYMENT
	8.3.1 Subject to all of City’s rights to withhold or offset payment, and other rights under the Contract, Final Payment including remaining retainage will be paid only after:
	a. Work has been fully completed (including completion of all incorrect or incomplete work items) and the written Final Acceptance has been issued by City;
	b. Necessary operating manuals, any excess materials and supplies necessary for matching materials and supplies incorporated into the Work, acceptable sewer video results (if applicable), and complete “as-built” Drawings (including the Building Inform...
	c. Full and unconditional lien waivers and releases by Contractor and any person performing labor or supplying material, machinery, fixtures, or tools for the Work have been delivered to Contractor;
	d. All conditions and requirements imposed by City or any financing entity for the corresponding disbursement have been met; and
	e. Contractor delivers to City a Contractor Payment Request requesting Final Payment.

	8.3.2 Contractor must also submit a signed copy of Contractor’s Affidavit Regarding Settlement of Claims, Appendix 3 to these General Conditions, and Certificate of Completion, Appendix 7 to these General Conditions, prior to Final Payment.
	8.3.3 In addition, if required under the Project Specific Special Provisions, Contractor must compile a complete equipment list and maintenance manual to be submitted to City as a precondition to Final Payment. The list must include the following item...
	a. Name, Model and Manufacturer.
	b. Complete parts lists and Drawings.
	c. Local source of supply for replacement parts along with suppliers’ telephone numbers.
	d. Local service organizations serving the equipment and their telephone numbers.
	e. All tags, inspection slips, instruction packages, etc., removed from equipment must be properly identified as to pieces of equipment from which they were taken.

	8.3.4 Contractor must also deliver to City, prior to Final Payment, one (1) digital (in the format specified by City), and if requested by City, one (1) hard copy, of any applicable Maintenance manuals. Each manual must include all manufacturer’s oper...

	8.4  CIT Y ’S RIGHT TO WITHHOLD PAYMENT
	a. Defective Work not remedied;
	b. Third party claims filed or reasonable evidence indicating probable filing of such claims unless security acceptable to City is provided by Contractor;
	c. Failure of Contractor to make payments properly to Subcontractors or for labor, materials or equipment;
	d. Reasonable evidence that the Work cannot be completed for the unpaid balance of the Contract Price;
	e. Damage to City or another Contractor;
	f. Reasonable evidence that the Work will not be completed within the Contract Time, and that the unpaid balance would not be adequate to cover actual or liquidated damages for the anticipated delay;
	g. Failure to carry out the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents; or
	h. Contractor is in default of any of its other obligations under the Contract Documents.

	8.5 JOINT/DIRECT CHECKS
	8.6 PAYMENT NOT A WAIVER
	8.7 LIENS AND BOND CLAIMS
	8.8  FIN AN CI AL R ECORDKE EPI NG AND C IT Y ’S AUD I T RIGHT
	8.8.1 Records for all Contracts between City and Contractor must, upon reasonable notice, be open to inspection and subject to audit, scanning, and reproduction during normal business working hours. Such audits may be performed by any City’s represent...
	8.8.2 Contractor’s “records” must include any and all information, materials and data of every kind and character, including without limitation, records, books, papers, documents, subscriptions, recordings, agreements, purchase orders, leases, contrac...
	a. Compliance with Contract requirements for deliverables;
	b. Compliance with approved Plans and Specifications;
	c. Compliance with § 14.9 below;
	d. Compliance with Contract provisions regarding the pricing of Change Orders;
	e. Accuracy of Contractor representations regarding the pricing of invoices; or
	f. Accuracy of Contractor representations related to claims submitted by Contractor or any of their employees.

	8.8.3 Contractor must require all payees (examples of payees include Subcontractors, Suppliers, Insurance Carriers, etc.) to comply with the provisions of this Section by including the requirements hereof in a written Contract Agreement between Contra...
	8.8.4 City’s authorized representative(s) (including, without limitation, Project Manager) must have reasonable access to Contractor’s facilities, must be allowed to interview all current or former employees to discuss matters pertinent to the perform...
	8.8.5 If an audit inspection or examination in accordance with this Section, discloses overpricing or overcharges to City (of any nature) by Contractor or Contractor’s Subcontractors in excess of $100,000 in addition to making adjustments for the over...
	8.8.6 In addition to the normal paperwork documentation Contractor typically furnishes to City, Contractor agrees to furnish, upon written request from City, any of the documentation necessary for City to exercise its audit rights under this Section 8...
	8.8.7 City, its authorized representative, and the appropriate agency, reserve the right to audit Contractor’s records in compliance with local, state or federal policies, statutes or at City’s discretion, within three (3) years of Final Acceptance of...


	SECTION 9 -  CHANGES TO THE CONTRACT
	9.1 FIELD ORDERS
	9.2 EXTRA WORK/CHANGES IN THE WORK
	9.2.1 City reserves the right to make such changes in the Plans and Specifications for the Work, as it may deem appropriate and any such change as set forth in a written Change Order must be deemed a part of this Contract as if originally incorporated...
	9.2.2 In the event City and Contractor cannot agree on the terms of a Change Order, or when circumstances otherwise require, the Project Manager has the authority to direct the Contractor to perform extra work, if the work in question is an item not p...
	9.2.3 Contractor will not be entitled to payment for extra work unless a written Change Order, in form and content prescribed by City, has been executed by City. On all requests for Change Orders, Contractor must specify the increased or decreased cos...
	9.2.4 In general, pricing for Change Orders will include the same mark-up percentages that were in effect when the Contract was awarded. The cost or credit to the City resulting from a change in the Work is subject to Appendix 1 (Policy Statement for ...
	a. By mutual acceptance of a lump sum properly itemized in a form acceptable to City;
	b. By unit prices stated in the Contract Documents;
	c. When the City determines that a Unit Price Book Job Order associated with a Job Order Contract requires a Change Order, by using the same Total Cost Data and CCI that are in effect when the Change Order is anticipated to be issued; or
	d. By actual cost and a percentage fee covering overhead and profit, as follows:
	(i) Contractor will perform the extra work and be compensated for actual cost of labor, materials and equipment.
	(ii) Contractor will have the right to add the fee percentage applicable to the Work under the Contract, or if no such fee has been agreed to by the parties, not more than five percent (5%) to the Subcontractor’s prices for authorized extra work perfo...
	(iii) Contractor or Subcontractor will have the right to add the fee percentage applicable to Work under the Contract for self-performed extra work, or if no such fee has been agreed to by the parties, Contractor’s or Subcontractor’s maximum total all...


	9.2.5 Any agreement which modifies the terms of the Contract (including Change Orders) will be approved in writing by the Project Manager. Once properly executed by both parties, these modifications to the Contract will have the same effect as if they...

	9.3 ACCURACY OF CHANGE ORDER PRICING INFORMATION
	9.3.1 Subject to Sections 9.3.2 through 9.3.4, signature by the contracting parties  constitutes full accord and satisfaction between City and Contractor for all costs, damages, and expenses of whatever kind of nature, including delay, impact or accel...
	9.3.2 Accurate Change Order Pricing Information: Contractor agrees that it is responsible for submitting accurate cost and pricing data to City to support its Fixed Price, Unit Price, or Cost Plus Change Order Proposals or other Contract Price adjustm...
	9.3.3 Right to Verify Change Order Pricing Information: Contractor agrees that City, through its designated representative, will have the right to examine, copy, and scan the records of the Contractor, Subcontractor or Sub-Subcontractor’s records (dur...
	9.3.4 Requirements for Detailed Change Order Pricing Information: Contractor agrees to provide a detailed breakdown of allowable labor and labor burden cost (i.e., base wage rate of applicable classifications of workers, payroll taxes, and insurance a...

	9.4 EMERGENCIES
	9.5 DIFFERING SITE CONDITIONS
	9.5.1 If Differing Site Conditions are encountered at the Project Site, then notice by the observing party must be given to the other party promptly before conditions are disturbed (to the extent practicable) and in no event later than 14 Days after f...

	9.6 CHANGES IN LAWS, REGULATIONS, OR LEGAL REQUIREMENTS OR TAXES

	SECTION 10 - SUSPENSION AND TERMINATION
	10.1 SUSPENSION
	10.2 TERMINATION BY THE CITY FOR CAUSE
	10.2.1 MAG Specifications § 108.11 applies to the Contract.
	10.2.2 City may also terminate the Contract if City determines, in its sole discretion that Contractor has:
	a. After prior written notice, refused or failed to supply enough properly skilled workers or proper materials;
	b. After prior written notice, failed to make payment to Subcontractors for materials or labor in accordance with the respective agreements between Contractor and the Subcontractors;
	c. After prior written notice, disregards laws, ordinances, or rules, regulations or orders of a public authority having jurisdiction;
	d. After prior written notice, repeatedly failed to comply with written directives from City;
	e. Is adjudged as bankrupt or insolvent;
	f. Made a general assignment for the benefit of creditors;
	g. Appointed a trustee or receiver for itself or any of its property;
	h. Filed a petition to take advantage of any debtor's act, or to reorganize under the bankruptcy or similar laws; or
	i. Otherwise breached a provision of the Contract Documents or any other contract between City and Contractor.

	10.2.3 When any of the above reasons exist, City may terminate the Contract, without prejudice to any other rights or remedies of City, after giving Contractor and Contractors’ surety, if any, 7 Days written notice of City’s intent to terminate the Co...

	10.3 TERMINATION BY CITY FOR CONVENIENCE
	10.4 A.R.S. § 38-511

	SECTION 11 - INSURANCE AND BONDS
	11.1 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS
	11.1.1 At the time City issues Notice of Contract Award, the Contractor must furnish the City a certificate of insurance on a standard insurance industry ACORD form.  The ACORD form must be issued by an insurance company authorized to transact busines...
	11.1.2 The Contractor and any of its Subcontractors must procure and maintain, until all of their obligations have been discharged, including any warranty periods under this Contract are satisfied, the insurances set forth below.
	11.1.3 The insurance requirements set forth below are minimum requirements for this Contract and in no way limit the indemnity covenants contained in this Contract.
	11.1.4 The City in no way warrants that the minimum insurance limits contained in this Contract are sufficient to protect Contractor from liabilities that might arise out of the performance of the Contract services under this Contract by Contractor, i...
	11.1.5 Failure to demand evidence of full compliance with the insurance requirements in this Contract or failure to identify any insurance deficiency will not relieve the Contractor from, nor will it be considered a waiver of its obligation to maintai...
	11.1.6 Use of Subcontractors:  If any Work is subcontracted in any way, the Contractor must execute a written agreement with Subcontractor containing the same Indemnification Clause and Insurance Requirements as the City requires of the Contractor in ...

	11.2 MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMITS OF INSURANCE
	11.2.1 The Contractor must provide coverage with limits of liability not less than those stated below.
	11.2.1.1 Commercial General Liability-Occurrence Form.  Contractor must maintain “occurrence” form Commercial General Liability insurance with a limit of not less than $2,000,000 for each occurrence, $4,000,000 aggregate.  Said insurance must also inc...
	11.2.1.2 Automobile Liability-Any Automobile or Owned, Hired and Non-Owned Vehicles.  Contractor must maintain Business/Automobile Liability insurance with a limit of $1,000,000 each accident on Contractor owned, hired, and non-owned vehicles assigned...
	11.2.1.3 Workers Compensation and Employers Liability Insurance.  Contractor must maintain Workers Compensation insurance to cover obligations imposed by federal and state statutes having jurisdiction of Contractor employees engaged in the performance...
	11.2.1.4 Builders’ Risk/Installation Floater Insurance.  The Contractor bears all responsibility for loss to all equipment or Work under construction.  Unless waived in writing by the City the Contractor will purchase and maintain in force Builders’ R...
	a. Builders’ Risk/Installation Floater insurance must cover the entire Work including reasonable compensation for architects and engineers’ services and expenses and other “soft costs” made necessary by an insured loss.  Builders’ Risk/Installation Fl...
	b. The Contractor must also purchase and maintain Boiler and Machinery insurance with the same requirements as Builders’ Risk/Installation Floater insurance cited above if the Work to be performed involves any exposures or insurable property normally ...
	c. Builders’ Risk/Installation Floater Insurance must be maintained until whichever of the following first occurs: (i) final payment has been made; or, (ii) until no person or entity, other than the City, has an insurable interest in the property requ...
	d. The Builders’ Risk/Installation Floater insurance must be endorsed so that the insurance will not be canceled or lapse because of any partial use or occupancy by the City.
	e. The Builders Risk/Installation Floater insurance must include as named insureds, the City, the Contractor, and all tiers of Subcontractors and others with an insurable interest in the Work who will be named as additional insureds unless they are ab...
	f. The Builders Risk/Installation Floater insurance must be written using the Special Causes of Loss policy form, replacement cost basis.
	g. All rights of subrogation under the Builders Risk/Installation Floater insurance are, by this Contract/Agreement, waived against the City, its officers, officials, agents and employees.
	h. The Contractor is responsible for payment of all deductibles under the Builders’ Risk/Installation Floater insurance policy.

	11.2.1.5 Pollution Liability Insurance (Including Errors and Omissions).  For Job Orders, Pollution Liability Insurance is only required if applicable and determined on a project specific basis.  Contractor must maintain Pollution Liability Insurance ...
	a. The policy must provide for complete professional service coverage, including coverage for pollution liability that is a result of a breach of professional duties.
	b. The policy must provide for protection again claims for third-party bodily injury, property damage, or environmental damage caused for pollution conditions resulting from general contracting activities for which Contractor is legally liable.
	c. The policy must provide for cleanup costs when mandated by governmental entities, when required by law, or as a result of third-party claims.
	d. Completed Operations Coverage must be kept in place for up to the statute of repose.
	e. The policy must be endorsed to include the following additional insured language: “City, its elected officials, trustees, employees, agents, and volunteers must be named as additional insureds with respect to liability arising out of the activities...
	f. If Work under this Contract requires the transportation of any hazardous material or regulated substances, Contractor must carry Auto Liability with a CA 9948 endorsement or equivalent.
	g. If Work under this Contract requires the disposal of any hazardous materials from the job site, Contractor must obtain a certificate of insurance for Pollution Legal Liability from the disposal site operator with a limit of not less than $5,000,000...



	11.3 ADDITIONAL POLICY PROVISIONS REQUIRED
	11.3.1 Self-Insured Retentions or Deductibles.  Any self-insured retentions and deductibles must be declared and approved by the City.  If not approved, the City may require that the insurer reduce or eliminate any deductible or self-insured retention...
	11.3.2 The Contractor’s insurance must contain broad form contractual liability coverage.
	11.3.3 The Contractor's insurance coverage must be primary insurance with respect to the City, its officers, officials, agents, and employees.  Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the City, its officers, officials, agents, and employees will...
	11.3.4 The Contractor's insurance must apply separately to each insured against whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer's liability.
	11.3.5 Coverage provided by the Contractor must not be limited to the liability assumed under the indemnification provisions of this Contract.
	11.3.6 The policies must contain a severability of interest clause and waiver of subrogation against the City, its officers, officials, agents, and employees, for losses arising from Work performed by the Contractor for the City.
	11.3.7 The Contractor, its successors and or assigns, are required to maintain Commercial General Liability insurance as specified in this Contract for a minimum period of 3 years following completion and acceptance of the Work.  The Contractor must s...
	11.3.8 If a Certificate of Insurance is submitted as verification of coverage, the City will reasonably rely upon the Certificate of Insurance as evidence of coverage but this acceptance and reliance will not waive or alter in any way the insurance re...
	11.3.9 Insurance Cancellation During Contract Term.
	11.3.9.1 If any of the required policies expire during the life of this Contract, the Contractor must forward renewal or replacement Certificates to the City within 10 Days after the renewal date containing all the required insurance provisions.
	11.3.9.2 Each insurance policy required by the insurance provisions of this Contract must provide the required coverage and must not be suspended, voided or canceled except after 30 Days prior written notice has been given to the City, except when can...

	11.3.10 City as Additional Insured.  The above-referenced policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:
	11.3.10.1 The Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:  The City, its officers, officials, agents, and employees are additional insureds with respect to liabili...
	11.3.10.2 The City, its officers, officials, agents, and employees must be additional insureds to the full limits of liability purchased by the Contractor even if those limits of liability are in excess of those required by this Contract.


	11.4 BONDS AND OTHER PERFORMANCE SECURITY
	11.4.1 At the time City issues Notice of Contract Award, Contractor must provide a Performance Bond and a Payment Bond, each in an amount equal to the full amount of the Contract Price.
	11.4.2 Each such bond must be executed by a surety company or companies holding a Certificate of Authority to transact surety business in the State of Arizona, issued by the Director of the Arizona Department of Insurance and must be named in the curr...
	11.4.3 The bonds must be made payable and be acceptable to City. The bond forms for the performance and payment bonds must be in the forms required under A.R.S. § 34-221, et. Seq., as in Appendices 4 and 5 of these General Conditions.
	11.4.4 Upon the request of any person or entity appearing to be a potential beneficiary of bonds covering payment of obligations arising under the Contract Documents, Contractor must promptly furnish a copy of the bonds or must permit a copy to be made.
	11.4.5 All bonds submitted for this Project must be provided by a company which has been rated AM Best rating of A- or better for the prior four quarters by the latest edition of the ‘Results Best’s Key Rating Guide (Property/Casualty)” published by t...
	11.4.6 Personal or individual bonds are not acceptable.
	11.4.7 If the surety on any Bond furnished by Contractor is declared a bankrupt or becomes insolvent, or Contractor’s right to do business is terminated in any state where any part of the Project is located, or it ceases to meet the requirements of th...


	SECTION 12 -  INDEMNIFICATION
	12.1 To the extent permitted by law, the Contractor and its owners, officers, directors, agents, employees, and subconsultants (collectively "lndemnitor") must indemnify, save, and hold harmless the City and its officers, officials, agents, and employ...

	SECTION 13 - DISPUTE RESOLUTION
	13.1 All disputes arising out of or relating to the Contract, the Work or the Project, other than termination under Section 10, will be resolved pursuant to the Dispute Resolution process set forth in Appendix 6 of these General Conditions, and not pu...
	13.2 Contractor agrees that during any dispute between the parties, Contractor will continue to perform its obligations under the Contract until such dispute is resolved.
	13.3 Notwithstanding any other provision in this Contract, City has the right to immediately file in court and pursue an action for a temporary restraining order and injunctive relief against Contractor if City determines that such action is necessary...

	SECTION 14 -  MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS
	14.1 CONTRACT DOCUMENTS
	14.1.1 The Contract Documents are intended to permit the parties to complete the Work and all obligations required by the Contract Documents within the Contract Times for the Contract Price. The Contract Documents are intended to be complementary and ...
	14.1.2 It is the intent of the Contract Documents to describe a functionally complete Project (or part thereof) to be constructed in accordance with the Contract Documents.  Any labor, documentation, services, materials, or equipment that may reasonab...
	14.1.3 The Contract Documents establish the rights and obligations of the parties and include the Contract, Addenda (which pertain to the Contract Documents), Contractor's Bid or Proposal (including documentation accompanying the Bid and any post-Bid ...
	14.1.4 In the event of any inconsistency, conflict, or ambiguity between or among the Contract Documents, the Contract Documents will take precedence as follows from highest to lowest: Change Orders, Addenda, Contract, Project Specific Special Provisi...
	14.1.5 On the Drawings, given dimensions will take precedence over scaled measurements and large scale drawings over small-scale drawings.
	14.1.6 Clarifications and interpretations of the Contract Documents will be issued by the Design Professional through the City.
	14.1.7 The headings used in this Agreement or any other Contract Documents, are for ease of reference only and must not in any way be construed to limit or alter the meaning of any provision.
	14.1.8 The Contract Documents form the entire agreement between City and Contractor. No oral representations or other agreements have been made by the parties except as specifically stated in the Contract Documents.
	14.1.9 The Contract Documents may not be changed, altered, or amended in any way except in writing signed by a duly authorized representative of each party in the form of a Change Order.
	14.1.10 Re-Use of Documents.  Neither Contractor nor any Subcontractor, manufacturer, fabricator, supplier or distributor will have or acquire any title to or ownership rights in any of the Drawings, Specifications or other documents (or copies of any...

	14.2 REFERENCE STANDARDS
	14.2.1 Reference to standards, specifications, manuals, or codes of any technical society, organization, or association, or to Laws or Regulations, whether such reference be specific or by implication, will mean the standard, specification, manual, co...
	14.2.2 The provisions of any such standard, specification, manual or code, or any instruction of a Supplier will not change the duties or responsibilities of City, Contractor, Design Professional or Project Manager, or any of their Subcontractors, con...

	14.3 COMPLIANCE WITH ARIZONA LAW AND FEDERAL LAW
	14.3.1 Compliance with A.R.S. § 41-4401.  Pursuant to the provisions of A.R.S. § 41-4401, the Contractor hereby warrants to the City that the Contractor and each of its subcontractors (“Subcontractors”) must comply with all Federal Immigration laws an...
	14.3.2 A breach of the Contractor Immigration Warranty constitutes a material breach of this Contract and subject to penalties up to and including termination of this Contract.
	14.3.3 The City retains the legal right to inspect the papers of any Contractor or Subcontractor employee who works on this Contract to ensure that the Contractor or Subcontractor is complying with the Contractor Immigration Warranty.  The Contractor ...
	14.3.4 The City may, at its sole discretion, conduct random verifications of the employment records of the Contractor and any Subcontractors to ensure compliance with Contractors Immigration Warranty.  The Contractor agrees to assist the City in perfo...
	14.3.5 The provisions of this Article must be included in any contract the Contractor enters into with any and all of its subcontractors who provide services under this Contract or any subcontract.  “Services” are defined as furnishing labor, time or ...

	14.4 HAZARDOUS ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS
	14.4.1 Contractor will not be responsible for any Hazardous Environmental Condition uncovered or revealed at the Site which was not shown or indicated in Drawings or Specifications or identified in the Contract Document to be within the scope of the W...
	14.4.2 If Contractor encounters a Hazardous Environmental Condition or if Contractor or anyone for whom Contractor is responsible creates a Hazardous Environmental Condition. Contractor must immediately:
	a. Secure or otherwise isolate such condition;
	b. Stop all Work in connection with such condition and in any area affected thereby; and
	c. Notify City and promptly thereafter confirm such notice in writing.

	14.4.3 City will promptly retain a qualified expert to evaluate such condition or take corrective action, if any.
	14.4.4 Contractor will be responsible for any and all civil or criminal penalties, fines, damages, or other charges imposed by any regulatory agency or court for sewage discharges that are in violation of applicable statutes and laws and that are a re...

	14.5 COOPERATION AND FURTHER DOCUMENTATION
	14.6 ASSIGNMENT
	14.7 SUCCESSORS
	14.8 LAWFUL PRESENCE
	14.9 NO BOYCOTT OF ISRAEL CERTIFICATION
	14.10 NO THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARY
	14.11 GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE
	14.12 SEVERABILITY
	14.13 LEGAL REQUIREMENTS
	14.14 PARTIAL INVALIDITY
	14.15 ATTORNEYS' FEES
	14.16 CONFLICT OF INTEREST
	14.16.1 Contractor agrees to disclose any financial or economic interest with the Project property, or any property affected by the Project, existing prior to the execution of the Contract. Further, Contractor agrees to disclose any financial or econo...
	14.16.2 Contractor will not engage the services on this Contract of any present City employee who was involved as a decision maker in the selection or approval processes, or who negotiated or approved billings or Contract Modifications for this Contract.
	14.16.3 Contractor agrees that it will not perform services on this Project for a contractor, subcontractor, or any supplier, not covered under this Contract.

	14.17 INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR
	14.18 NOTICE OF INJURY
	14.19 CONFIDENTIALITY
	14.20 DATA CONFIDENTIALITY
	14.20.1 As used in the Contract, “data” means all information, whether written or verbal, including plans, specifications, renderings, photographs, studies, investigations, audits, analyses, samples, reports, calculations, internal memos, meeting minu...
	14.20.2 Contractor agrees that all data, regardless of form, including originals, images, and reproductions, prepared by, obtained by, or transmitted to City in connection with the Contractor’s performance of this Contract is confidential and propriet...
	14.20.3 Except as specifically provided in this Contract, Contractor or its Subcontractors must not divulge data to any third party without prior written consent of City.  Contractor or its Subcontractors must not use data for any purposes except to p...
	a. Data which was known to Contractor or its Subcontractors prior to its performance under this Contract unless such data was acquired in connection with Work performed for City;
	b. Data which was acquired by Contractor or its Subcontractors in its performance under this Contract and which was disclosed to Contractor or its Subcontractors by a third party, who to the best of Contractor’s or its Subcontractor’s knowledge and be...
	c. Data which is required to be disclosed by virtue of law, regulation, or court order, to which the Contractor or its Subcontractors are subject.

	14.20.4 In the event the Contractor or its Subcontractors are required or requested to disclose data to a third party, or any other information to which the Contractor or its Subcontractors became privy as a result of any other contract with City, the...
	14.20.5 Unless prohibited by law, within 10 Days after completion of services for a third party on real or personal property owned or leased by City, the Contractor must promptly deliver, as set forth in this Section, a copy of all data to City.  All ...
	14.20.6 Contractor or its Subcontractors assume all liability for maintaining the confidentiality of the data in its possession and agree to compensate City if any of the provisions of this Section are violated by Contractor, its employees, agents, or...

	14.21 SURVIVAL
	14.22 COVENANTS AGAINST CONTINGENT FEES
	14.23 NO WAIVER
	14.24 NONEXCLUSIVE REMEDIES
	14.25 PROJECT COMMUNICATIONS
	14.25.1 All communications concerning the performance of the Work or the Project will be provided to the designated Project Manager and Contractor’s Representative set forth in Article 1 of the Contract. City may change the designated Project Manager ...
	14.25.2 Project communications may be exchanged by e-mail, but email communications cannot change the terms of the Contract or the Scope of Work, or effectuate any change that requires a written Change Order.
	14.25.3 When any provisions of the Contract Documents requires Contractor or the Design Professional to give written notice to City, it will be deemed to have been validly given if delivered in person to the person designated in the Contract Documents...
	14.25.4 When any provisions of the Contract Documents requires City, Project Manager, or the Design Professional to give written notice to Contractor, it will be deemed to have been validly given if delivered in person to the person designated in the ...

	14.26 DRUG FREE WORKPLACE PROGRAM
	14.26.1 City has adopted a policy establishing a drug free workplace for itself and as a requirement for Contractors doing business with City, to ensure the safety and health of employees working on City projects.
	14.26.2 Contractor must require a drug free workplace for all employees working under the Contract. Specifically, all employees of Contractor who are working under a Contract with City must be notified, in writing, by Contractor that they are prohibit...
	14.27 Failure to require a drug free workplace in accordance with the City’s policy may result in termination of the Contract and possible debarment form bidding on future City projects.


	SECTION 15 - U PROVISIONS APPLICABLE SOLELY TO GMP AND COST-BASED CONTRACTS, CHANGE ORDERS, AND JOB ORDERS
	15.1 UADDITIONAL DEFINITIONS
	15.2 UCONTRACT PRICE
	15.2.1 The Contract Price for all Contracts, Change Orders, and Job Orders based upon payment of the Cost of the Work plus a Fee with a GMP, time and materials, or cost-plus a fee will be the Cost of the Work incurred plus the Fee agreed to in writing...
	15.2.2 The Contract Price may only be changed as set forth in Section 9 above.
	15.2.3 Only costs specifically designated as reimbursable costs are eligible for payment by City or may be charged against the Contract Price. All other costs will not be paid by City and will not be chargeable against the Contract Price.
	15.2.4 UCost-Based ContractsU. For Contracts, Change Orders, or Job Orders, reimbursable costs must be determined pursuant to Appendix 9 to these General Conditions, Cost of the Work, and not by MAG Specifications §109.5.

	15.3 UALLOWANCES
	15.3.1 Contractor must include in the Contract Price all Allowances stated in the Contract Documents and agreed to in writing by City. Items covered by these Allowances must be supplied for such amounts and by such persons as City may direct, provided...
	15.3.2 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents:
	15.3.2.1 These Allowances must cover the cost to Contractor, less any applicable trade discount, of the materials, labor, and equipment required by the Allowances, delivered at the Site, and all applicable taxes;
	15.3.2.2 Contractor’s costs for unloading and handling on the Site, labor, installation costs, overhead, profit and other expenses relating to materials, labor, and equipment required by the Allowance must be included in the Contract Sum and not in th...
	15.3.2.3 Whenever the cost is more or less than the Allowance, the Contract Sum must be adjusted accordingly by Change Order, the amount of which will recognize the difference between actual costs for an Allowance item and the amount of the Allowance ...


	15.4 UCONTINGENCY
	15.4.1 UConstruction ContingencyU.  This GMP includes a dollar amount listed as a Construction Contingency which will be readily available for increased costs for subcontractors, material, and equipment subject to prior approval of City, which approva...
	15.4.2 UOwner’s ContingencyU.  This GMP also includes a dollar amount listed as an Owner’s Contingency which may be used UonlyU by the City (owner department) for upgrades and changes in scope or other changes not already included within the intent of...

	15.5 UREDUCTION IN RETENTION
	15.6 UFINAL PAYMENT
	15.7 UOPEN BOOK
	15.8 UDIFFERING SITE CONDITIONS AND/OR CHANGE IN LAWS

	SECTION 16 - U PROVISIONS APPLICABLE SOLELY TO JOB ORDER CONTRACTS (JOC)
	16.1 UADDITIONAL DEFINITIONS
	16.2 ORDERING AND PROCESSING PROCEDURES FOR JOB ORDERS
	16.2.1 The process for developing and issuing a Job Order for a particular Project consists of three (3) procedures: (1) issuance of a RFP by City; (2) JOC Contractor’s response to the RFP in the form of JOC Contractor’s Job Order Cost Proposal; and (...
	16.2.2 URFP’s For Job Orders
	16.2.2.1 City will provide to JOC Contractor RFP with a Scope of Work (SOW) describing the Work to be performed, which may include special instructions and conditions, material submittal requirements, and, if applicable, a complete set of sketches, co...
	16.2.2.2 Some Job Order RFP’s will be issued by City without detailed sketches, drawing and specifications and will rely on JOC Contractor to produce them for City review and approval and is considered to be Pre-Construction and incidental design serv...

	16.2.3 UJOC Contractor’s Job Order Cost Proposal
	16.2.3.1 JOC Contractor must respond within ten (10) calendar days of the RFP date or site visit, whichever is later or as otherwise indicated on a case-by-case basis, by submitting JOC Contractor’s Job Order Cost Proposal to the City representative.
	16.2.3.2 Unless otherwise required under the terms of the RFP, JOC Contractor’s Job Order Cost Proposal must include the following.
	a. JOC Contractor’s Job Order Cost Proposal in PDF and electronic format;
	b. A Project Schedule and schedule of values that reflects the costs of each work element on the schedule. The schedule must show all milestones (e.g., permits, submittals, ordering materials, demolition, work phases, closeout and completion date); and
	c. Necessary documentation will be required to indicate that adequate scoping, layout, setup and planning to accomplish the Work has been done. Examples of documentation that might reasonably be expected include sketches, drawings, calculations, catal...

	16.2.3.3 JOC Contractor must select Subcontractors based on qualifications alone or on a combination of qualifications and price and must not select Subcontractors based on price alone. A qualifications and price selection may be a one-step selection ...
	16.2.3.4 Upon request, JOC Contractor must provide City with copies of Subcontractor quotes and the basis for selection of each Subcontractor.
	16.2.3.5 If City objects to a selected Subcontractor, City will make the objection and the reasons for the objection known to the JOC Contractor. JOC Contractor must then present an acceptable Subcontractor for the applicable discipline. City will not...
	16.2.3.6 For self-performed work, the City retains the right to have the JOC Contractor establish JOC Contractor’s costs by bidding their costs against at least three (3) other interested trade Contractors. No self- performed work will be allowed to b...

	16.2.4 UIssuance of Job Order
	16.2.4.1 City Representative will compare the JOC Contractor’s Job Order Cost Proposal with the City’s estimate, schedules and other requirements, and then, if the City Representative determines it is in the best interest of City, arrange a meeting wi...
	16.2.4.2 If the City Representative determines that it is in the best interest of the City, City will then issue a Job Order to JOC Contractor for execution.
	16.2.4.3 Specific Job Orders may vary, but unless agreed to by City in writing otherwise, the content of Job Orders under the Contract will generally be as follow, all of which will be signed and/or initialed by JOC Contractor’s designated representat...
	a. The description of the Scope of the Work and Project Schedule (attached as Exhibit A to the Job Order);
	b. The address or location of the Work;
	c. The Contract Price for Work (Construction) included in the Project (attached as Exhibit B to the Job Order);
	d. The name of the JOC Contractor representative for the Project;
	e. The Drawings and Specifications for the Project;
	f. If any shop drawings, project date and/or samples are required for the Job Order, the date for delivery of each required item (included in the Project Schedule, Exhibit A to the Job order); and
	g. Project Specific Provisions, if any, in Exhibit A to the Job Order, including, without limitation, whether any of the following are required: Pre-Construction Conference, weekly progress meetings, field office, storage enclosure, materials and equi...


	16.2.5 UJob Order IntentU. Each Job Order will be interpreted to include all items reasonably necessary to complete the Project under that Job Order as described in the scope of the Work in that Job Order. All Work must be performed in a professional ...

	16.3 UINCIDENTAL DESIGN SERVICES
	16.3.1 This effort includes all “extensions of design” for systems that are typically specified in a performance oriented manner by consultants and designers. Examples include: fire sprinkler systems, fire alarm and sprinkler systems, DDC controls, co...
	16.3.2 Incidental design includes all documents, sketches, schematic diagrams, floor plan layouts, equipment schedules and other documents produced by the JOC Contractor to define the work required for projects that the City does not develop formal or...
	16.3.3 JOC Contractor represents, covenants, and agrees, and contractually assumes the obligation to furnish, all of the required Design Services through properly licensed and experienced Design Professionals in complete accordance with all of the dut...
	16.3.4 All Design Documents (and all other Project-related documents, models, computer drawings and other electronic expression, photographs and other expressions CADD, and BIM files and images included) that JOC Contractor and/or JOC Contractor’s Des...

	16.4 UCONSTRUCTION SERVICES
	16.4.1 The following subsections of this Section 16.4 set forth requirements beyond those set forth in Section 4 above which apply to Construction Services performed under a Job Order.
	16.4.2 JOC Contractor must perform the Work using only those firms, team members and individuals designated by JOC Contractor consistent with each Job Order or otherwise approved by City pursuant to the General Conditions. No other entities or individ...
	16.4.3 UConstruction Phasing
	16.4.3.1 City use of the facilities is anticipated while the Work is being performed. The Work must be planned and accomplished so that there will be a minimum of interference and inconvenience to occupants in the building and agencies in the vicinity...
	16.4.3.2 If applicable, furniture, portable office equipment and wall appurtenances not rigidly fastened to the walls must be moved by JOC Contractor, protected from damage and replaced to the original position upon completion of the work. If the work...
	16.4.3.3 The work must, so far as practicable, be done in definite sections or divisions and confined to limited areas which must be completed before work in other sections or divisions are begun.

	16.4.4 UWork Site ConflictsU. In the event of a conflict between JOC Contractor and others in an occupied facility or where other Contractors are performing work on the same facility under other Contracts, City will decide to dispute and that decision...
	16.4.5 UOwnership of Work ProductU. Work Product prepared or otherwise created in connection with the performance of this Contract, including the Work, are to be and remain the property of City. For purposes of this provision, “Work Product” will incl...

	16.5 UOPTIONAL LIQUIDATED DAMAGES
	16.5.1 USpecific Job OrdersU. City will have the right to assess liquidated damages in relation to any specific JOC Project Agreement as set forth below.
	16.5.2 USubstantial Completion Liquidated DamagesU. JOC Contractor acknowledges and agrees that if JOC Contractor fails to obtain Substantial Completion of the Work within the Contract Time, City will sustain extensive damages and serious loss as a re...
	16.5.3 UFinal Acceptance Liquidated DamagesU. For the same reasons set forth in Section 16.5.2 above, City and JOC Contractor further agree that if JOC Contractor fails to achieve Final Acceptance of the Work within the Contract Time, City will be ent...
	16.5.4 UMAG Liquidated DamagesU. Liquidated damages provisions in MAG § 108.9 may apply to any specific JOC Project Agreement.
	16.5.5 City may deduct liquidated damages assessed pursuant to this Section 16.5 from any unpaid amounts then or thereafter due JOC Contractor under the Contract or any specific JOC Project Agreement between JOC Contractor and City. Any liquidated dam...

	16.6 UPERFORMANCE MEASUREMENT
	16.6.1 UPerformance AssessmentU. After the Final Acceptance of Work under each Job Order, City will complete a written evaluation of the performance of JOC Contractor on the Job Order.
	16.6.2 UConsideration in Assignment of WorkU. JOC Contractor’s record of cost, schedule and quality performance and comparative assessments will be significant considerations in City’s determination whether to award future Job Orders. JOC Contractor a...


	SECTION 17 - U PROVISIONS APPLICABLE SOLELY TO PRE-CONSTRUCTION SERVICES FOR CONSTRUCTION MANAGER AT RISK
	17.1 UADDITIONAL DEFINITIONS
	17.2 UGENERAL
	17.2.1 CM@Risk must perform the  Services required by, and in accordance with the Contract Documents and as outlined in Exhibit A of the Contract to the satisfaction of the Project Manager, exercising the degree of care, skill, diligence and judgment ...
	17.2.2 As a participating member of the Project Team, CM@Risk must provide to City and Design Professional a written evaluation of City’s Project Program and budget, each in terms of the other, with recommendations as to the appropriateness of each. C...
	17.2.3 CM@Risk must attend Project Team meetings, which may include, but are not limited to, bi- weekly Project management meetings, Project workshops, special Project meetings, construction document rolling reviews, public meetings and partnering ses...
	17.2.4 CM@Risk must provide Pre-Construction Services, described herein, in a timely manner and consistent with the intent of the most current Drawings and Specifications. CM@Risk must promptly notify City in writing whenever CM@Risk determines any Dr...
	17.2.5 CM@Risk when requested by City, must attend, make presentations and participate as may be appropriate in public agency and or community meetings, relevant to the Project. CM@Risk must provide drawings, schedule diagrams, budget charges and othe...
	17.2.6 UOwnership of Work ProductU. All Work Product prepared or otherwise created in connection with the performance of this Contract, including the Work, are to be and remain the property of City. For purposes of this provision, “Work Product” will ...
	17.2.7 CM@Risk represents to City in completing Pre-Construction Services and providing the reports and analysis required thereunder, that Work can be properly and timely constructed within the GMP Proposal, if accepted. CM@Risk does not assume any de...

	17.3 UDETAILED PROJECT SCHEDULE
	17.3.1 The fundamental purpose of the Detailed Project Schedule is to identify, coordinate and record the tasks and activities to be performed by all of the Project Team members and then for the Project Team to utilize that Deliverable as a basis for ...
	17.3.2 CM@Risk must include and integrate in the Detailed Project Schedule the services and activities required of City, Design Professional and CM@Risk including all construction phase activities based on the input received from City and the Design P...
	17.3.3 A Baseline Project Schedule must be initiated with the project Baseline Cost Model and agreed to by the project team at the same time. CM@Risk must update and maintain a detailed Project Schedule throughout pre-construction such that it will no...
	17.3.4 If phased construction is deemed appropriate at the time of developing the Baseline Cost Model or during the development of the Detailed Project Schedule, and City approves, CM@Risk must review the design and make recommendations regarding the ...
	17.3.5 ULong Lead Time ItemsU. As part of developing the Detailed Project Schedule, CM@Risk must identify all long lead time materials, fabrications, equipment, or other items which may impact the Project Schedule and may require early action on the p...
	17.3.6 UEquipment PlanU. Contractor must develop an Equipment Plan that addresses all rental and owned equipment, regardless of whether such equipment will be provided by CM@Risk or subcontractor(s), that will be necessary to construct the Project and...

	17.4 UDESIGN DOCUMENT REVIEWS
	17.4.1 CM@Risk must evaluate periodically the availability of labor, materials/equipment, cost- sensitive aspects of the design; and other factors that may create an unacceptable variance to the Baseline Cost Model and/or Baseline Project Schedule.
	17.4.2 CM@Risk must recommend, in conjunction with the Project Team, those additional surface and subsurface investigations that, in its professional opinion, are required to provide the necessary information for CM@Risk to construct the Project. Thes...
	17.4.3 CM@Risk must meet with the Project Team as required to review designs during their development. CM@Risk must familiarize itself with the evolving documents through pre- construction. CM@Risk must proactively advise the Project Team and make rec...
	17.4.4 CM@Risk must routinely conduct constructability and bid-ability reviews of the Drawings and Specifications as necessary to satisfy the needs of the Project Team. The reviews must attempt to identify all discrepancies and inconsistencies in the ...
	17.4.4.1 CM@Risk must evaluate whether: (a) the Drawings and Specifications are configured to enable efficient construction; (b) design elements are standardized; (c) construction efficiency is properly considered in the Drawings and Specifications; (...
	17.4.4.2 CM@Risk must check cross-reference and complementary Drawings and sections within the Specifications and in general evaluate whether: (a) the Drawings and Specifications are sufficiently clear and detailed to minimize ambiguity and to reduce ...
	17.4.4.3 The results of the reviews must be provided to Project Team in formal, written reports clearly identifying all reviewed documents and the discovered discrepancies and inconsistencies in the Drawings and Specifications with notations and recom...
	17.4.4.4 CM@Risk’s reviews must be from a Contractor’s perspective, and though it will serve to eliminate/reduce the number of RFIs) and changes during the construction phase, responsibility for the Drawings and Specifications will remain with the Des...

	17.4.5 It is CM@Risk’s responsibility to assist the Design Professional in ascertaining that, in CM@Risk’s professional opinion, the Construction Documents are in accordance with applicable Laws, Regulations, or Legal Requirements, building codes, sou...
	17.4.6 The Project Team will routinely identify and evaluate using value analysis principles and alternate systems, approaches, design changes that have the potential to reduce Project costs while still delivering a high quality and fully functional P...

	17.5 UBASELINE COSTS MODEL, DETAILED COST ESTIMATES, AND SCHEDULE OF VALUES
	17.5.1 At the conclusion of the Master Planning and Programming, if required, CM@Risk will review all available information regarding the design and scope of the Project using CM@Risk’s experience in performing similar work, knowledge of similar proje...
	17.5.2 After receipt of the Design Professional’s most current documents from certain specified pre- construction milestones, CM@Risk must provide a draft Detailed Cost Estimate including a detailed written report detailing any variances to the Baseli...
	17.5.3 If at any point the Detailed Cost Estimate submitted to City exceeds the previously accepted Baseline Cost Model or previously approved Detailed Cost Estimate agreed to as set forth in Section 17.5.2 above, CM@Risk must make appropriate recomme...
	17.5.4 Unless other levels of completion are agreed to in writing in the Construction Documents, at 50% Construction Drawings and included with the associated report, CM@Risk must also submit to the Project Team for review and approval a Schedule of V...
	17.5.5 CM@Risk is to track, estimate/price and address the Project Team’s overall project cost issues that arise outside of the Baseline Cost Model and the latest approved Detailed Cost Estimate such as: City generated changes, Project Team proposed c...
	17.5.6 Upon request by City, CM@Risk must submit to City a cash flow projection for the Project based on the current updated/revised Detailed Project Schedule and the anticipated level of payments for CM@Risk during the design and construction phases....
	17.5.7 UConstruction WaterU. CM@Risk must estimate the quantity of water to be used and include the cost thereof in each Detailed Cost Estimate and GMP Proposal provided by City.

	17.6 USUBCONTRACTOR AND MAJOR SUPPLIER SELECTIONS
	17.6.1 There are two ways to select Subcontractors and major Suppliers prior to submission of a GMP Proposal: (1) qualifications-based selection; or (2) a combination of qualifications and price. Except as noted below, the selection of Subcontractors/...
	17.6.2 City may approve the selection of a Subcontractor(s) or Suppliers(s) based only on their qualifications when CM@Risk can demonstrate it is in the best interest of the Project. All Work that is performed, after such a qualifications-based select...
	17.6.2.1 Qualifications based selection of a Subcontractor(s)/Supplier(s) should only occur prior to the submittal of the GMP Proposal.
	17.6.2.2 If a Subcontractor/Supplier selection plan was submitted and agreed to by City, CM@Risk must apply the plan in the evaluation of the qualifications of a Subcontractor(s) or Supplier(s) and provide City with its review and recommendations.
	17.6.2.3 CM@Risk must receive written City approval for each selected Subcontractor(s) and Supplier(s).
	17.6.2.4 CM@Risk must negotiate costs for services/supplies from each Subcontractor/Supplier selected under this method.

	17.6.3 All Work must be competitively bid unless a Subcontractor or Supplier was selected pursuant to Section 17.6.2 above.
	17.6.3.1 CM@Risk must develop Subcontractor and Supplier interest, submit the names of a minimum of three qualified Subcontractors or Suppliers for each trade in the Project for approval by City and solicit bids for the various Work categories. If the...
	17.6.3.2 If City objects to any nominated Subcontractor/Supplier or to any self-performed Work for good reason, CM@Risk must nominate a substitute Subcontractor/Supplier that is acceptable to City.
	17.6.3.3 CM@Risk must distribute Drawings and Specifications, and when appropriate, conduct a Pre- Bid Conference with prospective Subcontractors and Suppliers.
	17.6.3.4 If CM@Risk desires to self-perform certain portions of the Work, it must request to be one of the approved Subcontractor bidders for those specific bid packages. CM@Risk’s bid will be evaluated in accordance with the process identified below....
	17.6.3.5 CM@Risk must receive, open, record and evaluate the bids; provided, however, that if CM@Risk or one of its affiliates is bidding to self-perform the Work that is the subject of the bid, then the bids must be received, opened, recorded and eva...

	17.6.4 CM@Risk will be required to prepare two different reports on the subcontracting process.
	17.6.4.1 Within fifteen days after each major Subcontractor/Supplier bid opening process; CM@Risk must prepare a report for City’s review and approval identifying the recommended Subcontractors/Supplier for each category of Work. The report must detai...
	17.6.4.2 Upon completion of the Subcontractor/Supplier bidding process, CM@Risk must submit a summary report to City of the entire Subcontractor/Supplier selection process. The report must indicate, by bid process, all Subcontractors/Suppliers contact...

	17.6.5 The approved Subcontractors/Suppliers will provide a Schedule of Values with their bid proposals, which will be used to create the overall Project Schedule of Values.
	17.6.6 If after receipt of sub-bids or after award to Subcontractors and Suppliers, City objects to any nominated Subcontractor/Supplier or to any self-performed Work without any reasonable basis, CM@Risk must nominate a substitute Subcontractor or Su...

	17.7 UGMP PROPOSAL
	17.7.1 When a GMP Proposal is submitted for a phase of the Work, the GMP will have a Detailed Cost Estimate of the Costs of the Work (as set forth in Section 15.2) in each phase of the Work that is being proposed plus the current estimate for all othe...
	17.7.2 A GMP Proposal for the entire Project will be the sum of the Cost of the Work, CM@Risk Fee, and General Conditions Cost. CM@Risk guarantees to complete the Project at or less than the final GMP Proposal amount plus approved Change Orders. CM@Ri...
	17.7.3 CM@Risk must prepare its GMP Proposal in accordance with City’s request for GMP Proposal requirements based on the most current completed Drawings and Specifications at that time, which unless otherwise directed by City in writing, will be at 1...
	17.7.4 An updated/revised Detailed Project Schedule, Equipment Plan, and Schedule of Values must be included in any GMP Proposal(s), all of which must reflect the GMP Plans and Specifications the Detailed Project Schedule must be shown in relationship...
	17.7.5 UGMP Proposals(s) Review and Approval
	17.7.5.1 CM@Risk must meet with the Project Team to review the GMP Proposal(s) and the written statement of its basis. In the event the Project Team discovers inconsistencies or inaccuracies in the information presented, CM@Risk must make adjustments ...
	17.7.5.2 If during the review and negotiation of GMP Proposals design changes are required, City may authorize and cause the Design Professional to revise the GMP Plans and Specifications to the extent necessary to reflect the agreed-upon assumptions ...

	17.7.6 All portions of or items comprising the GMP Proposal are subject to audit by City, as deemed appropriate by City, including, without limitation, any based upon unit prices or Work to be self- performed by CM@Risk, or its affiliates.

	17.8 UPAYMENT PROCEDURE FOR PRE-CONSTRUCTION SERVICES
	17.8.1 Requests for monthly payments by CM@Risk for Pre-Construction Services must be submitted monthly and must be accompanied by a progress report, detailed invoices and receipts, if applicable. Any requests for payment must include, as a minimum, a...
	17.8.2 In no event will City pay more than seventy-five (75%) of the Contract Price until acceptance of ALL Pre-Construction Services and award of the final approved Construction Services Contract for the entire Project by City Council. If CM@Risk doe...
	17.8.3 CM@Risk agrees that no charges or claims for costs or damages of any type will be made by it for any delays or hindrances beyond the reasonable control of City during the progress of any portion of Pre-Construction Services specified in this Co...
	17.8.4 No compensation to CM@Risk will be allowed contrary to Article I, Chapter I, Title 34 of the Arizona Revised Statutes.
	17.8.5 If any service(s) executed by CM@Risk is abandoned or suspended in whole or in part, for a period of more than 180 days through no fault of CM@Risk, CM@Risk is to be paid for the services performed prior to the abandonment or suspension.

	17.9 USURVIVAL OF THE DESIGN SERVICES CONTRACT, DUTIES, OBLIGATIONS AND WARRANTIES


	2-GEN CON APPENDICES 11-1-19.pdf
	SECTION 15 – APPENDICES
	CALCULATING DELAYS AND DAMAGES
	E/C Delay E/N Delay
	COST REDUCTION INCENTIVE PROPOSALS
	FOR DESIGN BID BUILD CONTRACTS
	COST REDUCTION INCENTIVE PROPOSAL FORM

	CONTRACTOR'S AFFIDAVIT REGARDING SETTLEMENT OF CLAIMS
	PERFORMANCE BOND
	PAYMENT BOND
	DISPUTE RESOLUTION

	CONSTRUCTION SIGN DETAIL
	COST OF THE WORK
	(APPLICABLE SOLELY TO CONSTRUCTION MANAGER AT RISK AND JOB ORDER CONTRACTING)
	SECTION 1 – COSTS TO BE REIMBURSED
	1.2 Labor Costs
	1.3 Subcontract Costs
	1.4 Costs of Material and Equipment Incorporated in the Completed Construction
	1.5 Costs of Other materials and Equipment, Temporary Facilities and Related Items
	1.5.2.3 Equipment Rental Rates
	1.6 Miscellaneous Costs
	1.7 Other Costs and Emergencies
	1.8 Related Party Transactions
	SECTION 2 – COSTS NOT TO BE REIMBURSED
	SECTION 3 – DISCOUNTS, REBATES, REFUNDS AND SAVINGS
	SECTION 4 – GENERAL CONDITIONS COSTS


	4 - Bid Submittal 3-31-2020 FEDERAL rev 6-24.pdf
	DO NOT DOUBLE-SIDE ANY PART OF THE BID SUBMITTAL
	PROJECT NAME:   ALLEY REHABILITATION PM10 DUST EMISSIONS
	BID BOND
	PROPOSAL ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
	THIS  BID  IS SUBMITTED BY:  ,

	ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE
	PRIVILEGE TAX LICENSE

	TECH SPECS.pdf
	GENERAL PROVISIONS
	PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT
	OWNER SUPPLIED MATERIAL
	ENVIRONMENTAL MITIGATION MEASURES
	PART A: BID ITEMS

	ITEM NO. 1  MILL ALLEYWAY, SIX (6) INCHES
	ITEM NO. 2  ASPHALT MILLINGS (PREPARED, HAULED, & PLACED), SIX (6) INCHES
	ITEM NO. 3  ASPHALT EMULSION (FOG SEAL)
	ITEM NO. 4  MATERIAL AND DENSITY TESTING
	ITEM NO. 5  PRE-CONSTRUCTION VIDEO OF ALLEYWAY CONDITIONS
	ITEM NO. 6  TRAFFIC CONTROL
	ITEM NO. 7  PROJECT SIGNS
	ITEM NO. 8  INFORMATION SIGNS
	ITEM NO. 9  STORMWATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN
	ITEM NO. 10  ARCHAEOLOGICAL PROJECT MONITORING
	ITEM NO. 11            OWNERS ALLOWANCE  (UNFORESEEN CONDITIONS)

	ST1909-401 Bid-Contract Federal Docs Sec 2020-06-24.pdf
	3 DBE EPrise - LPA - w goal 7-1-2017  ADD GOAL.pdf
	For the purpose of this section, ‘arrangements’ means, at a minimum, agreement between the bidder and the certified DBE, either written or oral, on unit prices and scope of work.
	This certificate may not be revised or corrected after submission of the bid.  If the bidder certifies that it has met the goal, the bidder cannot change its position after submission of the bid and submit documentation of a good faith effort.  If the...

	14.8 Form 3114C Joint Chk Agrmt 7-1-2016.pdf
	Authorized Prime Representative
	Name_____________________________________________ Title _______________________________________
	Signature _______________________________________________________    Date __________________________
	Authorized Subcontractor Representative
	Name_____________________________________________ Title _______________________________________
	Signature _______________________________________________________    Date __________________________
	Authorized Material Supplier Representative
	Name_____________________________________________ Title _______________________________________
	Signature _______________________________________________________    Date __________________________

	14.9 Form 3110C DBE Final Pymt Cert 12-20-2016.pdf
	Contractor Company Name:
	Name: Title:
	DBE Firm Name: Check One:
	Name: Title:


	5 - DBB Contract  replacement pages.pdf
	2.1 CONTRACT DOCUMENTS
	2.2 In the event of any inconsistency, conflict, or ambiguity between or among the Contract Documents, the Contract Documents will take precedence as described in Section 14.1.4 of the General Conditions.
	2.3 DEFINITIONS
	3.1 GENERAL
	3.1.1 Scope of Work.  All terms and conditions are set forth in the Contract. Any terms and conditions and exceptions noted in the Contractor’s proposal or other documents do not apply unless agreed to in this Contract or an approved addendum.
	3.1.2 Contractor agrees this is a Unit Price Contract. Contractor agrees at its own cost and expense, to do all Work necessary required to fully, timely and properly complete the construction of the Project in strict accordance with the Contract Docum...
	3.1.3 Contractor must provide all of the labor and materials, and perform the Work in accordance with Section 4 of the General Conditions. Some, but not all, of the major components of the Construction Services and the corresponding subsections of Sec...
	3.1.4 At all times relevant to this Contract and performance of the Work, the Contactor must fully comply with all Laws, Regulations, or Legal Requirements applicable to City, the Project and the Contract, including, without limitation, those set fort...
	3.1.5 Contractor must perform the Work under this Contract using only those firms, team members and individuals designated by Contractor consistent with Contractor’s accepted Bid, or otherwise, approved by City pursuant to the General Conditions. No o...
	3.1.6 Contractor must comply with all terms and conditions of the General Conditions.
	3.1.7 In the event of a conflict between this Contract and the General Conditions or an exhibit hereto or appendix thereto, the terms of this Contract will control.
	3.1.8 Ownership of Work Product.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Contract, all Work Product prepared or otherwise created in connection with the performance of this Contract, including the Work, are to be and remain the property of C...

	3.2 CONTRACTOR’S PRE-CONTRACT AND PRE-WORK DELIVERABLES
	3.2.1 The Contractor must provide the Deliverables in accordance with Section 4.2 of the General Conditions.
	3.2.2 Any additional items which Contractor must deliver to City prior to commencing the Work on this Project, if any, include the following:

	3.3 PRE-CONSTRUCTION CONFERENCE
	3.4 PERFORMANCE OF THE WORK (INCLUDING FIELD MEASUREMENTS, SUBCONTRACTORS, AND SUPPLIERS)
	3.5 CONTROL OF THE PROJECT SITE
	3.6 PROJECT SAFETY
	3.7 MATERIALS QUALITY, SUBSTITUTIONS AND SHOP DRAWINGS
	3.8 PROJECT RECORD DOCUMENTS
	3.9 WARRANTY AND CORRECTION OF DEFECTIVE WORK
	4.1 City will have the responsibilities, and provide the information specified in, and subject to the conditions set forth in, Section 5 of the General Conditions.
	4.2 Additional services to be provided or responsibilities assumed, by City, if any, are listed below:
	4.3 Additional information to be provided by City, if any, is listed below:
	5.1 GENERAL
	5.1.1 The total Contract Duration is 150 Calendar Days (including Substantial Completion by 120 Calendars Days and Final Acceptance by 150 Calendar Days).
	5.1.2 The Contract Time will start with the Notice to Proceed (NTP) and end with Final Acceptance, as set forth in Article 5.4 below.
	5.1.3 The Contract Time will be as set forth in the Project Schedule. Contractor agrees that it will commence performance of the Work and complete the Project through Final Acceptance within the Contract Time.
	5.1.4 Time is of the essence of this Contract for the Project, and for each phase and designated Milestone thereof.
	5.1.5 Failure on the part of Contractor to adhere to the approved Project Schedule will be deemed a material breach and sufficient grounds for termination of this Contract by City.

	5.2 PROJECT SCHEDULE
	5.2.1 The Project Schedule will be updated and maintained throughout Contractor’s performance under this Contract in accordance with Section 6.2 of the General Conditions.
	5.2.2 Work must be completed to meet the following milestones after the Notice to Proceed:

	5.3 SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION
	5.4 FINAL ACCEPTANCE
	5.4.1 Final Acceptance will be obtained within the time period set forth in the Project Schedule.
	5.4.2 Final Acceptance will be issued pursuant to Section 6.5 of the General Conditions.

	5.5 LIQUIDATED DAMAGES
	5.5.1 Substantial Completion Liquidated Damages. Contractor acknowledges and agrees that if Contractor fails to obtain Substantial Completion of the Work within the Contract Time, City will sustain extensive damages and serious loss as a result of suc...
	5.5.2 Final Acceptance Liquidated Damages. For the same reasons set forth in Article 5.5.1 above, City and Contractor further agree that if Contractor fails to achieve Final Acceptance of the Work within the Contract Time, City will be entitled to ret...
	5.5.3 MAG Liquidated Damages. Liquidated damages provisions in MAG § 108.9 will apply.
	5.5.4 City may deduct liquidated damages described in this Article 5.5 from any unpaid amounts then or thereafter due Contractor under this Agreement. Any liquidated damages not so deducted from any unpaid amounts due Contractor will be payable to Cit...

	5.6 MUTUAL WAIVER OF CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES ONLY
	5.6.1 Contractor and City waive claims against each other for consequential damages arising out of or relating to this Contract. This mutual waiver includes.
	5.6.2 This mutual waiver is applicable, without limitation, to all consequential damages due to either party’s termination of this Contract. Nothing contained in this Article 5.6 will be deemed to preclude an award of liquidated damages, when applicab...
	5.6.3 Nothing herein will be deemed to constitute a waiver of any other remedy available to City in the event of Contractor’s default under this Contract prior to full performance of the Work including, as applicable, specific performance or completio...

	6.1 CONTRACT PRICE
	6.1.1 In exchange for Contractor’s full, timely, and acceptable performances and construction of the Work under this Contract, and subject to all of the terms of this Contract, City will pay Contractor the “Contract Price,” which is $2,077,524.50.
	6.1.2 The Contract Price is all-inclusive and specifically includes all fees, cost, insurance and bond premiums, and taxes of any type necessary to fully, properly and timely perform and construct Work.

	6.2 COSTS
	10.1 Contractor must provide insurance in accordance with Sections 11.1 through 11.3 of the General Conditions. Contractor must provide proof of such insurance and all required endorsements in forms acceptable to City prior to commencing any Work unde...
	10.2 Contractor must provide performance and payment bonds to City in Accordance with Section 11.4 of the General Conditions and A.R.S. § 34-222.
	10.3 Failure to provide proof of insurance and the required endorsements, or the required bonds, in forms acceptable to City, will be a material breach and grounds for termination for cause of this Contract.


	16__Construction Contract WA2006.401 Archer Western Construction Chandler Boulevard Waterline Replacement Chippewa to Meadows
	       ATT_Location Map
	17__Professional Services Agreement WA2006.451 Wilson Engineers Chandler Boulevard Waterline Replacement Chippewa to Meadows
	       ATT_Location Map
	       ATT_Agreement
	18__Project Agreement WW2103.402 Garney Companies Inc Job Order Contract JOC1914.401 Lone Butte Effluent Pipeline Repair
	       ATT_Location Map
	       ATT_Agreement Project No. WW2103.402
	Project No. WW2103.402
	PERFORMANCE BOND
	PAYMENT BOND
	CONTRACTOR'S AFFIDAVIT REGARDING SETTLEMENT OF CLAIMS
	CERTIFICATE OF COMPLETION
	WW2103 Lone Butte Effluent Line Repair Proposal - REV01.pdf
	01 - WA2103 Lone Butte Effluent Pipline Investigate Rev 1- Exhibit A
	02 - WA2103 Lone Butte Effluent Pipeline Repair Rev1- Exhibit B
	03 - Crew Sheets
	03A - Chandler JOC Crew Rate Sheet
	04 - Back-up Quotes
	Thompson Pipe Group
	Capital Pump - Pump



	19__Professional Services Agreement ST1909.451 Tristar Engineering and Management Inc Alley Rehabilitation PM10 Dust Emissions
	       ATT_Location Map
	       ATT_Agreement
	PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT Construction Management Services
	Project No. ST1909.451; FEDERAL ID NO.: CHN-0(245)D; ADOT NO.: T024001C
	Council Date: February 11, 2021   Item No.
	RECITALS
	AGREEMENT
	PROF SERV AGR  1-4-21.pdf
	PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT Select Agreement Type
	Project No. [####]
	Council Date: INSERT DATE  Item No. INSERT #
	RECITALS
	AGREEMENT

	ST1909-451 FED DOC SEC 2021-01-22.pdf
	8.3 DBE Form 3210PS Final Payment 1-3-17.pdf
	Contractor Company Name:
	Name: Title:
	DBE Firm Name: Check One:
	Name: Title:
	Untitled



	20__RE21-069
	       ATT_Location Map
	       ATT_Ordinance No. 4953
	21__Final Adoption of Ordinance 4956
	       ATT_Location Map
	       ATT_Ordinance No. 4956
	22__Ordinance 4948 Final Adoption
	       ATT_Ordinance No. 4948
	       ATT_Change Summary 2021
	23__Study Session Minutes of the January 6, 2021, Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting 
	       ATT_Jan 6, 2021 PandZ SS Minutes
	24__Regular Meeting Minutes of the January 6, 2021, Planning and Zoning Commission
	       ATT_Jan 6, 2021, PandZ Reg. Mtg Minutes

